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COMPREHENSIVE SMOKING PREVENTION
EDUCATION ACT

FRIDAY, MARCH 5, 1982

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMFITE&ON HEALTH AND THE ENVI,RONMENT,

COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,
Washington, D.C.

The a§ubcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 9:50 a.m., in room
2123, 'Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Henry A. Waxman
(chairman) presiding.

Mr. WAXMAN. The meeting of the subcommittee will come to
order.

This,morning the subcommittee will receive testimony on H.R.
4957 and H.R. 5653, legislation designed to improve public aware-
ness about the healthy effects of smoking. .

I doubt there are many Americanstincluding smokers, who don't
know the admonition "Warning: The Surgeon General has deter-
mined that cigarette smoking is dangerous to your health." This
warning is now required on all cigarette packages and advertising
and has been the focal point of the Federal Government's smoking
education campaign for over a decade.

During this period we have learned much about smoking and its
effect on human health. In fact, the Surgeon General's 1979 report
on smoking characterized the weight of scientific evidence against
smoking as overwhehning:

Just last week Surgam,General C. Everett Koop issued a chilling
report which documented clear, convincing evidence about the rela-
tionship between smoking and our mostleared disease---cancer.

The report provides a further confirmation of the tragic fact that
smoking is the single most 'preventable cause of death and illness
in this country.

The known facti about, smoking and health are many: Smoking
tan reduce life expectancy by as much as 8 years. It dramatically
increases the risk of ca,ncer, and lung and heart disease. It can in-
srease the possibility of high-risk births or even fetal death. For
women using oral contraceptives, smoking substantially increases
the risk of heart attack and stroke.

As I see it, there are two aspects to this legislation.
Firtt, it is my belief that the present cigarette warning label is

not as effective as it could or should be. It should be strengthened.
It should be replaced by a series of health warnings which express
the facts about smoking and health in a clear, straightforward
manner.

. (1)
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The health warnings should be displayed on cigarette packages,
but more importantly they shouldj,ae displayed on cigarette adver-
tising.

It is clear to me that the sophisticated imagery used in cigarette
company advertisements are dangerously misleading The health
concerns about smokinglare undermined by images and myths that
fit into the marketing strategies of the tobacco industry

Our second purpose this morning is ta.cletermine the applOpitate
Federal role in stimulating greater research on smoking as well as
working with the voluntary health sector to promote smoking edu-
cation and prevention;

I believe this is a critically important role for the Federal Gov-
,. ernment. Establishment in statute of an Office on Smoking and

Health will provide the necessary stability to assure continuation
of the Department of Health and Human Services' important activ-
ities in this area. .

Today is the first of three hearings on,the Comprehensive Smok-
ing Prevention Education Act. What we" ultimatply decide will
signal the commitment of this Congress,with respect to health pro-
motion and disease prevention. ,

Before recognizing our witnesses, I would like to ask that copies
of H.R. 4957 and H.R. 5653 and a list of cosponsors be printed in
the hearing record. Without objection, that will be the order

[The text of the bills and cosponsors follows]

-
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97m CONGRESS
2n SESSION

3

H. R. 5653

I

To amend the Public Health Service Act and the Federal Cigarette Labeling and
Advertising Act to establish a national program under an Office of Smoking
and Health to inform tfie public of the dangers from smoking, to change the
label requirements for cigarettes, and for other purposes.

. IN 11:11., HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

MANCH 1, 1982

Mr. WAXMAN introduced the following bill, which was referred to the Committee
on Energy and Commerce

A BILL
To amend the Public Health Service Act and the Federal

Cigarette Labeling and AdVettising Ad to establish a na-
<

tiorial program under an Office of Smoking and Health to

inform the public of the dangers from smoking, to change

the label requirements for cigarettes, and for other pur-
ions.

1 ' Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Ilepresenta-

lives of* United States of America in Congress assembled,

3 That this Act may be cited as the "Coniprehensive Smoking

4 Prevention Education Act of 1332".

5 SEC. 2. The Congress finds that
/

..
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(1) cigarette 'smoking 'is the largest preventable

cause of illness and premature death in tbe United

States and it's associated with the unnecessary deaths of

over three hundred thousand Americans annually;

(2) smoking is the nuxnr one cause of lung

cancer in the United States and is the major cause of

chronic obstructive lung diseases such as emphysema;

(3) heart disease accounts for nearly one half of

the deaths in this country and one third of these death's

are attributable to smoking;

(1) pregnant women who smoke are at a higher

risk for the possibility of spontaneous abortion, still

births., premature births, and child weight deficiencies;

(5) woihen who take birth.control pills and smoke

are more likely to suffer a heart attack or stroke than

women who don't smoke;

(6) certain occupational hazards in conjunction

with an individual's smoking increase substantially the

risk of disease and death;

(7) present Federal, State, and private initiatives

have been insufficient in conveying these health mes-

sages to the American public;

(8) it is estimated that cigarette smoking related

deaths and disabilities result in125,800,000,000 annu-

9
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1 ally in lost produetivity to the United States econeinf

2 and $13;600,000,000 in medical costs; and

3 (9) because of the above findings: a new strategy

4 should be undertaken to educate and provide- informa-

5 tion to The American public to allow them to make in-

! 6 formed decisions Tds- to whether dr not they should

7 smoke.'

8 SEC. 3. (a) Title XVII of the Public Health Service Act,

9 is amended by adding at the end the following:

10 "SMOKING AND HEALTH

11 "Sec. 1711. (a) There is established in the Department

.12 of Health and Human Services the Office of Smoking and
.

13 Health (hereinafter in this section referred to ai the 'Office')

14 which shall be under the Assistant Secretary for Health. The

15 Secretary shall appoint a Director to head the Office.

16 - "(b) The Secretary, acting through the Office, shall es-
-

17 tablish and ailminister a program to inform the public of the

18 dangers to human health presented by cigarette smoking. In

19 carrying out the program the Secretary shall-

20 "(1) coordinate all research and educational pro-
/ ,.

21 grams and otlrr activities within the Department

22 which relate tO the effect of cigarette smoking on

; 23 human health and coordinate, through the Interagency

24 Committee im Smoking and Health, such activities

25 with similar activities of other Federal agencies;

,

/

/
/
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1 "(2) establish and maintain a liaison with appro-

2 p.riate. private entities, other Federal .agencies, and

3 State and local public agencies respecting activities re:

4 lating to the effect' of cigarette smoking on human

5 health;

6 "(3) cohduct research on the effect of cigareite

7 smoking on human health, develop materials for in-

8 forming the public of such effect, and provide assist-

ll ance for education programs on smoking and health;

.10 "(4) collect, analyze, and disseminafe (through

11 publications, bibliographies, and otherwise) information,

12 studies, and other data relating to the effect of ciga-

13 rette smoking on human health, coordinate the devel-

14 opment of materials on smoking and health, and devel-

15 op standards, criteria, 'and methodologies for improved

16 information kograms related to smoking and health;

, 17 and
,..

18 "(5) acmpile, and make available information on
s

19 State and local laws relating to the .sale, distribution,\ s -
20 ur, and consumption of cigarettes.

N ThQ Secretary may carry- out paragraph (3) directly and

'...
22 through grants.

23 "(c) To carry out the coordination activities under the

,24 program established under subsection (b) there is established
*

25 an Interagency Committee on Smoking and Health to be
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1 composed of One representative from each of the following:

2 The Vederal Trade Commission, the Department of Eduda-

3 tion, the Department of Labor, and any other Federal agency

4 designated by the Secretary. The Committee shall meet at

5 least four times each year and the Director of the Office of

6 Smoking and Health shall serve as the Chairman of the Com-

7 mittee.

8 "(d) The Secretary, acting through the Office, shall

9 transmit a report to Congress not later than January 1 of

10 each year which shall contain-

11 "(1) current information on the health conse-

12 quences of smoking;

13 "(2) an overview ,of the activities of the Office

14 during the previous year 'and an assessment of the

15 Federal activities undertaken to inform the public of

16 the health consequences of smoking; and

17 "(3) such recommendations for legislation as the

.18 Secretary may consider appropriate.".

19 (b) Section 1701(b) of the Public, Health Service AO (42

20 U.S.C..300n(b)) is amended by striking out "and 1709" and

21 inserting in lieu thereof "1709, and 1711".

22 (c) The amendment made by subsection '(a) shall take

23 effect October 1, 1982.

1 2
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SEC. 4. (a) Section 4 of the Federal Cigarette Labeling

2 .and Advertising Act (15 u.s.p. 1333).is amended to read. as

3 follows:

4 "LABELING

5 "SBO. 4. (aX1) It shall bq unlawful for any person to

6 manufacture, package, import, or export for sale or distribu-

tion any cigarettes the package of which fails to bear, in AC-

cordance wfth the reqUirements of subsection (b), one of the

9 label statements listed in the follociing paragraphs:

10 "(A) For infOrmation on the Specific Dangers of

11 cigarette smoking, write, to the Surieon General,

12 United States Public Health Service, Washington, Dis-.

13 trict of Columbia 20201.

14 "(B) Warning: Cimette smoking is the number

15 one cause of Emphysema and Lung Cancer.-

16 "(C) Warning: Cigaretteimoking is a major cause

't 17 of Heart Disease.

18 "MY' Smokers! No matte& how long you have

19 smoked, quitting now greatly reduces the risks to your

20 health:
6

21 "(E) Warning: Cigarette smoking 'by pregnant

22 women may result , in ,Birth Defects or)pontaneous

23' Abortion.

24

25 Death from heart disease, cancer, of; emphysema.

"(F) Warning: Cigaretti3 sinoking may cause
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9

. 7

1 "(0) Warning: Cigarette smoking is addictive and

2 will, injure your health.

3 "(2)It shall be unlawful for any person to manufacture,

4 package, import, or export for sale or distribution any ciga-

5 rettes. the package of which fails to bear, in accordance with

6 regulations proinulgated under subsection (b), a label which
..

7 identifies any chemical substances the intended use of which

8 results or may reasonably be expected to result, directly or

9 indirectly, in its becoming a component or otherwise affecting

10
: -

the characteristics of the cigarettes. The Federal Trade Com- ..")

11 mission shall promulgate regulations prescribing the form of

12 the label required by this paraeapi.

13 - "(3) It shall be unlawful fok any person to advertise any

14 cigarette unless the advertising bears, in accordance with the

15 requirements of subsection (b), a label statenient listed in .

16 paragraphs (1) and (2). _

17 "(b) The Federal Trade Commission shall establish a

18 system under which ..- ...... (

, 19 "(1) each brand of cigarettes and the advertising

20 for each brand of cigarettes shall, in each seven-year

21 period beginning after the system is made applicable to

22 it, bear each of the label statement:listed in subsection
..

23 (a)(1),
...

\
1

%

0,

,

i
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1 "(2) no kand of cigarettes or its advertisinfgihall

2 bear one of the label statements listed in subsection

3 (a)(1) for a period greaterrthan one year,

4 . "(3) in any year, each label statement listed in

5 1 subsection (aX1) shall appear on substantially the same

6 number of brands as determined under the system,

7 "(4) the label statements shall _bailp-ated in a
.

8 conspicuous place on eacb cigarette package and in..

9 each cigarettzadvertising and shall appear in conspicu-

10 ous and legible type in contrast by typography, layout,

11 and color with all other printed or background material
,

12 .on the package or in the aditertiting, and
,

13 "(5) the label statenients on packages of ciga-

14 rettes for export from the United States shall be print-

15 ed in the principal bingitage of the cOuntry to which

16 the cigarettes are exported. ,

17 "(c) It shall be unlawful for any person to manufacture,

18 package, import, or export for sale or distribution any ciga-

19 rettes the package and advertising of which fails to disclose

20 the level of-

21 "(1) tar
22 "(2) nicotine, arid

23 "(3) carbon In' onokide,

-10-5
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1 . produced by the cigarette when smoked. The level of tar,

2 nicotine, and carbon monoxide shall be baked ou the levels

3 established annually by the Federal Trade Commission.".

4 (b) Section 5(a) of suCh Act (15 U.S.C. 1334) is amend-

5 ed by inserting before the period the following: "or in any

6 cigarette advertising".

7 (c) Section 7 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1336) is

8 amended-

9 (1) by striking out subsection (a),

10. (2) by itriking mit "Except 'as provided in subsec-

11 tion (a), nothing" in subsection (b) and in;erting in lieu,
12 thereof "Nothing", and

13 (3) by redesignating subsections (b) and (c) as sub-

14 sections (a) and (b), respectively.

15 (d)/ Section 8 of such Act (15 U.SX. 1337) is amended

16 by 'striking oiit subsection (a) and by striking out "(b)".

17 (e) Section 9 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1338) is amended
. 18 by striking out "$10,000" and inserting in lieu thereof

19 "$100,000".

20. (0 Section 1N i!uch Act (15 U.S.C. 1339) is amended

21 by inserting "(a)" afteVSEc. 10." and by adding at the end

22 the following:

23 "(1)(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), any person

24 may commence a civil action against any person who is al-

25 leged to be in violation of section 4 or 6 to restrain 'such

,

4
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1 violation. Any civil action under this paragraph shall be

2 brought in the United States district court for the district in

3 whiCh the alleged violation occurred or in which the defend-

4 ant resides or .in which the defendant's principal place of

5 business is located. The district courts of the United States

6 shall have jurisdiction over suits brought under this para-

7 graph without regard to the amount in controversy or the

8 citizenship of the parties. In any civil action under this para-

9 graph, proceiss may be served on a defendant in any judicial

10 district in which the defendant resides or may be found and

11 subpoenas for witnesses may be served in any judicial dis-

12 trict.

13 "(2) No civil action may be commenoed under para-
t

14 graph (1) to restrain a violation of section 4 or 6

15 "(A) before the expiration of sixty clays after the

16 plaintiff has given notice of such violation (i) to the

17 Fedeiral Trade Commission, and (ii)- to the person who

18 is alleged to have committed such violation, or

19 "(B) if the Attorney leneral hastcommenced and

20 is diligentliprosecuting a civil aetion in a courrof the

21 United States to require compliance with section 4 or

202 6, but if such proceeding or civil action is commenced

.4
23 after the giving of notice, any person giving such

24 notice may intervene as a matter of right in such pro-

25 ceeding or action.

4:1



13

11

1. Notice under this paragraph shall be given in such manner as

2 the Federal Wade Commission shall prescribe by rule.

3 "(3XM In any action under. paragraph 0.), the Federal

4 Trade Commission, if not a party, may intervene as a matter

5 of right.

6 "(B) The court, in issuing any final order in any action

7 brought pursuant to paragraph (1), may award costi of suit

8 and reasonable fees for attorneys and expert witnesses if the

9 courtmeetermines that such an award is appropriate; Any

10 court, lin issuing its decision in an action brought to review

11 such an order, may award coats of suit and reasonable fees

12 for attordeys if the court determines that such an award is

13 approPriate.

14 "(C) Nothing in this section shnl restricA any right

15 which any person (or class of person3),may have under any

16 statute or commdn law to seek enforcement of section 4 ore

17 or to seek any other relief.

18 "(p) When two or more civil actions brought under

19 paragraph (1) involving the same defendant and the eame

20 issues or violations are peliding in two or more judiciar dis-

21 tricts, such pending actions, upon application of such defend-

22 ants to such actions which is made to a court in which any

28 such action is brought may, if such court in its discretion 'so

24 detides, be consolidated for trial by order (issued after giving

94-382 0 - 82 - 7
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1 all parties reasonable notice and opportunity to be heard) of

2 such court and tried in-

3 "(i) any district which is selected by such defend-

4 ant and in which one of such actions is pending,

5 "(ii) a district which is agreed upon by stipulation

6 between all the patties to such actions and in which

7 one of such actiolis is pending, or

8 "(iil) a district which is selected by the court and

9 in which one of such actions is pending.

10 The court issuing such an order shall give prompt notification

11 of the order to the other courts in which the civil actions

12 consolidated under the order are-pending.".

13 (g) Section 11 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1340) is repealed

14 and section 12 of such Act is redesignated as section 11.

15 SEc. 5. The amendments made by seCti.on 4 Ithall take

16 effect upon the expiration of the one-year period beginning on

17 the date of the enactment of this Act. During such one-year

18 period, the Federal Trade Commission shall promulgate such

19 regulations as may be necessary to implement the amend-

20 ments made by section 4 on their effective date.
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97TH CONGLES8
18T SESSION

To amend the Public Health Service Act and the Federal Cigarette Labeling and
Advertising Act to establish a national program under an Office of Smoking
and Health to inform the public of the dangers from smoking, to change the
label requirements for cigarettes, and for other purposes.

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

NOVEMBER 12, 1981

Mr WAXMAN introduced the following bill, which ws.1 referred to the Committee
on Energy and Commerce

A BILL
To amend the Public Health Serrice_Act and the Federal

Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act to establish a na-
tional program under an Office of Smoking and Health to

* inform the public of the dangers from smoking, to change

the label requirements for cigarettes, and for other purposes.

1, Be it enacted by the Senal, and Houses of Representa.
1

2 tines of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

s3 That this.Act may be cited as the "Comprehensive Smoking

4 Prevention Education Act of 1981".

5 SEC. 2. The Congress finds that-

1



16

2

1 (1) cigarette smoking is the largest preventable

2 cause of illness and premature' death in the United

3 States and is associated with the unnecessary deaths tif

4 over three hundred thousand Americans annually; ;

5 (2) smoking is the number one cause of lung

6 cancer in the United States and is the major cause of

7 chronic obstructive lung diseases such as emphysema;

8 (3) heart disease accounts for nearly one half 'of
.

9 the deaths in this country and one third of these deaths

10 are attributable to smoking;

11 (4) pregnant women who smoke are at i. higher

12 risk for the possibility of spontaneous abortion, still

13 births, premature births, and child weight deficiencies;

14 (5) women who take birth control pills_and snioke

15 are more likely to suffer a heart attack or 'stroke than

16 women whO don't smoke;

17 (6) certain occupational hazards in conjunction

18 with an individual's smoking increase substantially the

19 risk of disean and death;

20 (7) present Federal, State, and private initiatives

21 have been insufficient in conveying thtse health mes-

22 sages to the American public;

23 (8) it is estimated that cigarette smoking related

24 deaths and disabilities result in $25,800,000,000 annu-

2
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1 ally in lost productivity to the United States economy

2 and $13,600,000,000 in medical costs; and

. 3 (9) because of the above findings, a new, strategy

4 should be undertaken to educate and provide informa-

5 tion to the American public to allow them to make in-

6 formed decisions ai to whether or not they should

smoke.

8 SEc. 3. (a) Title XVII of the Public Health Service Act

9 is amended by adding et the end the following:

10 "SMOKING AND REALTM

11 "SEC. 1711. (a) There is established in the Department

12 of Health and Human Services the Office of Smoking and

13 Health (hereinafter in this section referred le as the 'Office')

14 which shall be under the Assistant Secretary for Health. The

15 Secretary shall appoint a Director to head the Office.

.16 "(b) The Secretary, acting through the Office, shall es-

17 tablish and administer a program to inform the public of tlie

18 dangers to human health presented by cigarette smoking. In

19 carrying out the program the Secretary shall-

20 "(1) coordinate all research and educational prO-

21 grams and other activities within the Department

22 . which relate to the effect of cigarette smoking on

23 human health and coordinate, through the.Interagency

24 Committee on Smoking and Health, such activities

25 with similar activities of other Federal agencies;

r

4-;;-
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1 '"(2) establish and maintain a liaison with appro-

2 'priate private entities, other Federal agencies, and

3 State and local .public agencies respecting activities re-

-lating to the 'effect of cigarette smoking on human

5 health; -"

6 "(3) conduct research on the effect of cigarette

7 . smoking on Imman health, develop materials for in-

8 forming the Ilublic of such effect, and provide assist-

9 ance for education programs on smoking and health;
r**

10 "(4) collect, analyze, and disseminate' (through

11 publications, bibliographies, and otherwise) inforniation,

12 studies, and other data relating to the effect ot ciga-

-13 rette smoking on human health, coordinate the devel-

14 opment of materials on smoking and health, and devel-

15 op standards, criteria, and methodologies for improved

16 information progranis related to smoking and health;

17, and

18 "(5) compile 'and mike available information on

19 , State and local laws relating to the sale, distribution,

20 use, and consuraption of cigarettes.

21 The Secretary nly carry out paragtaph (3) directly and

22 through grants.

23 "(c) To carry out the coordination activities under the
-

24 program established under subsection (b) there is established

25 an Interagency Cominittee on Smoking and Health) to be

r
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1 composed of one representative from each of the following:

2 The Federal Trade Commission, the Department of Educa-

3 tion, the Department of Labor, and any other Federal agency

4 designated by the -Secretary. The Committee shall meet at

5 least four times each year and the Director of the Office of

6 Smoking and Health shall serve as the Chairman of the

7 Committee.
. , . .
8 "(d) The Secretary, acting through the Office, shall

6 transmit a report to Congress not later than January 1 of

10 each year which shall contain-

11 "(1) current information on the health conse-
12 quences of smoking;

13 "(2) an overview of the activities of the Office
14 during the previous year and an assessment of the
15 Federal activities undertaken to inform the public of

16 the health consequences of smqking; and

17 "(3) such recommendations for legislation as the
."18 Secretary may consider appropriate.".

19 (b) Section 1701(b) of the Public Health Service" Act (42

20 11.S.C. 30(hi(b)) is amended by striking out "and 1709" and

21 inserting in lieu thereof "1709, and 1711".

22 SEG. 4. (a) Section 4 of the FederatCigarette Labeling

23 and Advertising Act (15 U.S.C. 1333) is amended to read a;

24 follows:

2,4

,



1

20

6

"LABELING

'

,

2 "SEC. 4. (a)(1) It shall be unlawful for any person' to

3 manufacture, package, import, or export for sale or distribu-

4 tion any cigarettes the package of which fails to bear, in ac-

5 cordance with the requirements of subsectiv (b), one of the

6 label statements listed in the following paragraphs:

7 "(A) For information'on the Specific Dangers of

8 cigarette snioking, write to 'the Surgeon General,

9 United States Public Health Service, Waslington, Dis-

10 trict of Columbia 20201,

11 "(B) Warning: Cigarette snieking is the number

12 one cause of Emphysema and Lung Cancer.

13 "(C) Warning: Cigarette smoking is a major cause

14 of Heart Disease.

15 "(D) Smokers: No matter how long you have

16 smoked, quitting now greatly reduces the risks to your

17 health. -

18 "(E) Warning: Cigarette smoking by pregnant

,19 women may result in Birth Defects or Spontaneous'

20 Abortion.

21 "(F) Warning: Cigarette smoking may cauie

22 Death from heak diSease, cancer, or emphysema.

23 "(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to atIvertise any

24 cigarette unless the advertising(Nbears, in accordance with the
,

i
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1 requirements of subsection (b), a label statement lista in

2 paragraph (1).

3 "(b) The Federal Trade Commission shall establish a

4 system under which-

5 "(1) eXch brand of cigarettes and the advertising

6 for each brand of cigaret4tes shall, in exch six-ytar

wriod beginning alter the system is made applicable to)

8, it, bear each of the label statements listed in subsection

9 (a)(1),

10 "(2) no brand of cigarettes or its advertising shall

11 bear one of Ore ,label statements listed in subsection

12

13 "(3) in any year, each label atepent listed in

14

15

.16 "(4) the label statements shall be located in a

17 conspicuous place on each cigarette package and in ,

18 each cigartite advertising and shall appear in conspicu-

19 oust and legilge type in contrast by typography, layout,

20 and color with all other priiited or background material

21 on the package or in the advertising, and

22 "(5) the label statements on packages of ciga-

- 23 rettes for export from the United States shall be print-

24 ed in the principal language of t4e countify to which

0.0

(aX1) for a period greater than one year,

subsection (aX1) shall appear on substantially the same

number of brands as determined under the ,system, -

25 the cigarettes are exported.

e
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X1 \ 'le) It shall be unlawful for any-person to mamifacture,

2 package, import, or export for sale or distrilmtia any ciga-

3 rettes the package and adirertising of whick fails tO disclose

4 the level of-,

"(1) tar,

6 "(2) nicotine, and

"(3) carbon monoxide,

8 !produced by the cigarette 'when smoked. The level of tar,

9 nicotine, and carbon monOxide shall be based on the levels

10 established annually by the Federal TradaCommission.".

(b) Section 5(a) of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1134) is amend-

. 1.1 ed-ly inserting before the Pe 'od the following: "or in any

13 cigarette advertising".

.14 (c) Section 7 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1336) is amend-

15 ed-

16' (1) by striling out sub)eetion (a),

17 (b) by striking out "Except as provided in subsee-

. 18 tion (a), nothing" in subseceon (6) and inserting in lieu

19 thereof "Nothing", and

20 (3) by redesignating subsections (b) and (c) as sub-

21 sections (a) and (b), respectively.

(d) Section 8 of such Ad (15 U.S.C. 1337) is amended

.23 by stliking out subsection-(a) and bt striking out "(b)".

4

1.

27
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(e) Section 9 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1338) is amended

2 by stilling out "210,000" and inserting in lieu thereof

3 "2100,000".

4 (1) Section 10 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1339) is amended

5 by inserting "(a)" after "Szo. 10." and by adding at the end

6 the following:

7 "(bX1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), any- person

8 may commence a civil action against any person who is al-

l} leged to be in violation of section 4 or 6 to restrain such

10 violation. Any ciyil action under this paragraph shall be

11 brought in the United States district court for the district in

12 -which the alleged violation occurred or in. which the defend-

13 ant resides or in which the defendant's kincipal place of

14 business is located. The district, courts of the United States

15 shall have jurisdiction over suits brought under this para-
,.

16 graph without regard to the amount in controversy or the

17 citizenship of the'parties.ein any civil action under this para-

18 graph, process may be served on a defendant in any judicial

19 district in which the defendant resides or may be found and

20 subpoenas for witnedes may be served in any judicial dis-

21 tiict.

, 22 "(2) No civil action may be commenced under para-.
23 graph,(1) to restrain a Tit:dation of section 4 or 6
24 ."(A) before the expiration of sixty days aftef the

25 plaintiff hiwkgiven notice of such 'violation (I) to the

1



24

10

1 Federal,Trade Commission, and (ii) to the person who

2 is alleged to have committed such violation, or

3 "(B) if the Attorney General has commenced and

4 is diligently prosecuting a civil action in a court of the

5 United States to require compliance with section 4 or

6, but if such proceeding or civil action is commenced

7 after, the giving v,f notice, any person giving such

8 notice may intervene as a matter of right in such pro-

9 ceeding or aetion.

10 Notice under this paragraph shall be given in such manner as

11 the Fideral Trade Commission shall prescribe by rule.

12 "(3XA) In any action under-paragraph (1), the Federal

13 Trade C.ommission, if not a party, may intervene as a matter

14 of right.

15 "(B) The court, in issuing any final order in any action

16 brought pursuant to paragraph (1), may award costs of suit

17 and reasonable fees for attOrneys and expert witnesses if the

18 court determines that such an award is appropriate. Any

,19 court, in issuing its decision in an" action brought to review

26 such an order, may award costs of suit and reasonable. fees

21 for attorneys if the court determines that such an award is

22 appropriate.

23 "(C) Nothing in this section shall restrict any right

24 which any person (or class otpersons) may have under any

23 ,
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I statute or common law to seek enforcement of section 4 or 6

i 2 or to seek any other relief.

3 "(D) When twsi or more civil actions brought under

4 paragraph (1) invelving the same defendant and the same

5 issues or violations are pending in two or more judicial dis-

6 tricts, such pending actions, upon application of such defend-
'

7 ants to such actions whicli is made to a court in which any

8 such action is brought may, if such court in..its discretion so

9 decides, be consolidated for trial by order (issued after giving

10 all parties reasonable notice and opportunity to be heard) of

11 such court and tried in-

12 "(i) any 'district which is selected by such defend-

13 ant and in Which one of such actions is pending,
,

14 "(h) a district which is ;greed upon by stipulation

15 between all the parties to such actions and in which

16 one of such actions is pending, or

17 "(iii) a district ivhich is selected by the court and /
18 in which one of such actions is pending.

19 The court issuing such an order shall give prompt notification

20 of the order to the other ourts in which the civil actions

21 consolidated'under the order are pending.".

22 (g) Section 11 of such Act (15 U.S.C. 1340) is repealed

23 and section 12 of such Act is redesignated as section 11.

24 SEC. 5. The amendments made b'y section 4 shall take

25 effect upon the expiration of the one-year period beginning on
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1 the date of the enactment of this Act. During such one-year

2 perida, the Federal Trade Commission shall promulgate such

3 regulations u may be necessary to iMplement the amend-

4 ments made by section 4 on their effective date.
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Mr WAXMAN I am pleased to introduce our first panel of wit-
nesses Professionally each has distinguished himself or herself in
the field of eritertainment. They are also xolunteers who have
given of their time to work at reducing the deaths and illness asso-
ciated with cigarette smoking.

John Forsythe has a long list of TV and film credits and current-
6, portrays the character of Blake Carrington in the TV series Dy-
nasty Amanda Blake charmed many of us in the role of Miss Kitty
in Gunsthoke Robert Keeshan needs no introduction to those who
have known and praised his work with children through captain
Kangaroo.

,On behalf of the subcommittee, I would like to welcome each of
you to our hearing today and ask you to come forward, if Au
would.

I feel like I should say after many years, good morning, Captain.
Mr. KEESHAN. An educated Congressman.
Kr WAXMAN' We are delighted to have each of .you with us

today to share your views and personal perspectives on this itnpor-
tant subject.

Mr. Forsythe, why don't we start with you.

STATEMENTS OF JOHN FORSYTHE, BEVERLY HILLS, CALIF:;
AMANDA BLAKE, ON BEHALF of TfIE AMERMAN CANCER SO-
CIETY; AND ROBERT KEESHAN, ON BEHALF OF THE AMERICAN
LUNG ASSOCIATION

-

Mr FORSYTHE. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I want
to thank you for inviting me to testify this morning.

Gentlemen, while I am here as a concerned citizen and a father
of three children, I also am aware that I am here because I am an
actor, and actors have a certain visibility.

This visibility and the affection that audiences may feel for us
because of our work we realize can often sway and influence large
numbers of people. So, as a group, we actors are not unmindful
that this influence can be misused.

Many of us who try to use this influence constructively realize
that we bear a very heavy responsibility to do our homework,and
to be as evenhanded as we can.

I am also awake that I am not a scientist, that my opinions aye--
based on material I have read and largely from the Surgeon Gezier-
al's reports. I am aware, too, of the importance of the tobacco ih-
dustry to our very shaky economy today. I am also very sympathet-
ic to the plight of the small farmer in 'these very harsh times.

Having said that, I must tell you that I have very strong feelings
about the importance of this bill, H.R. 4957. I was fortunate enough
to have stopped smoking some 30 years ago on the advice of a dear
friend, who will appear on this panel later, Dr. William.Cahan. He
is a surgeon specializing in lung cancer, and I will never stop being
grateful to him for having advised me to stop.

Two other members of my immediate family were not quite so
fortunate My younger brother- and my younger sister, both moder-
ately heavy cigarette smokers, wouldn't or couldn't stop, and they
b6th died of lung cancer within the last 4 years.

14-387 0 - 82 - 3
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To watch a beatniful, vibrant woman in the prime of her life
waste away so that she was almost unrecognizable is so devaseating
that it is yery hard for me to talk about. Almost the same situation
held true for my brother.

It was not long after those two batk-to-back blows that I decided
to use whatever clout that I had as a reasonably well-known actor

, to help. My feeling is that if I can be influential.during my lifetime
in getting even 50 teenagers not to start cigarette smoking, I would
have done much more than having entertained 50 million people
through some television series.

So now I talk with some regularity to groups of young people I
try to assist the American Cancer Society and the American Heart

.Association in any way I can. -

To describe rny feelings about sMoking to you now in specifics I
think would, be difficult and time consuming. I would prefer, if you
will permit me, Mr. Chairman, to read to you a very short editori-
al, if I may, from the Los Angeles Times. It is dated Febrtiary 24,
1982. It says:

In previous reports on smoking and health, the U.S Surgeon General's office has
described cigarette smoking as "associated" with or :'related" tO bladder, kidney and
pancreatic cancers. In his latest report, the Surgeon General goes further Smoking
is now cited as a contributory factor" in these diseases, as well as the frimary
cause tn 85 percent of the 90,000 de4hs that occur annually from lung cancgr

What all this means is that the health risks from smoking have now officially
been identified as being more extensive and more demonstrated than in the past
Smokers are more likely to die from stomach cancer or ceivical cancer than are
nonsmokers. Smokers are more lik ly to suffer from premature cardiovascular dis-
eases than are nonsmokers

In all, Smeon General C. Everett1Koop reports smoking is responsible for an es-
tinated $40,000 deaths in the United States each year Smoking's costs exceed those
of any natural catastrophe, $28 billion a year in health care expenses, lost, income,

lost production.
All use of tobacco is dangerous. Cigars and pipe smoking ere linked to some 'can-

cers, as are chewing tobacco and snuff. The best and most obvious advice for anyone
who uses tobacco is to stop. The best advice in every other case is never to take up
tobaccoase in the first place.

Here at least there are encouraging signs Smoking among young peodle has ap-
parently been declining. In 1977 29 percent of high school seniors said they smoked
daily. In 1981 the figure was down to 20 percent. Anti-tobacco education campaigns
ought to be intensified. Children should be taught early to avoid tobacco -as they
would avoid rabid dogs.

- The Surgeon General's report again underscores the absurdity of Federal subsi-
dies$78 million worth this yearto those who grow, a crop that is a public health
menace. This makes as much moral sense as giving government support to a can-

, neryt whose products are regularly contaminated by the/botulism bacillus
Mut the Surgeon General says about the perils of tobacco ought to be taken seri-

ously by the public, certainly, and for a change by Congress,.

They are strong words, but that editorial echoes my seritiments
completely.

Mr. WAxrdArr. Thank you very much.
Ms. Blake, we would like to hear from you.

STATEMENT OF AMANDA BLAKE

11 Ms. BIAKE. Mr. Chairman and members 'of the committee, I am
flrivileged to have this opportunity to represent the American
Cancer Society and to voice our support for H.R. 4957, the Compre-
hensive Smoking Prevention Education Act of 1981,
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This task is made especially pleasant in that I am able to testify
today with my good friends John Forsythe and Bob Keeshanand
that we are here together representing this very exciting new coali-
tion of the American Cancer Society, American Heart Association,
American Lung Association and the National Interagency Council.

That these organizations have joined together to fight as a com-
bined force on this issue must surely highlight to us all the .over-
whelming importance the voluntary health agencies and the medi-
cal community place on smoking as a health hazard.

On February 22 of this year, the U.S. Surgeon General, in his
report entitled "The Health Consequence'S of SmokingCancer,"
issued the following warning.

Cigarette smoking is the major single cause of cancer mortality in the United
States. Tobacco's contribution to all cancer 'deaths is estimated to be 30 percent.
This means we can expect that 129,000 Americans will die of cancer this year be-
cause of the higher overall cancer death rates that exist among smokers as co-m-pared to nonsmokers.

Cigarette smokers have total cancer death rates two times greater than.do non-
smokers Heavy smokers Nave a 3 to 4 times greater excess risk of cancer mortality.

I was particularly interested in the Surgeon General's statistics
on oral cancer and larynx cancer contained in that 'report. He said
that these cancers would strike an estimated 40,000 people and will
cause approximately 13,000 deaths this year in our country.

He Went on to say that an estimated 50 to 70 percent of oral and
laryngeal cancer deaths are associated with smoking. I am a victim
of oral cancer, a victim of cigarette smoking. Clearly had I known
what it was going to cost me to lie a smoker when I lit that first
cigarette, I would never have struck the match.

Gentlemen, how do I explain in a way that you can understand
the fear of finding out you have cancer. They tell me that cancer is
the most feared disease, and I believe it. In our minds, cancer has
come to mean death. It has come to mean pain and disfigurement.

When my doctor told me I had cancer of the mouth, I didn't, be-
lieve it. I had never even heard of cancer of the mouth, yet I had it.

I am an actress, and I found out cancer of the mouth meant I
was going to have to have surgery that would affect my face. I
would also have to learn to talk again. What worse could you tell
an actress? I thought, what if it is in my larynx? What if they have
to remove my vocal cords.

When I woke up from the surgery, I remember I made a deliber-
ate effort to moan and I thought thank God.I still have my voice
box. The nurse came and asked me if I needed pain medication,
and I heard myself say yes. That siniple word meant that I could
still talk, that I could learn again to practice my profession. I was
lucky.

But the emptional pain and the fear were monumental, and the
memory of it will be with me for the rest of my life.

After relating my experience to the members of this committee
you must surely understand why I am so disheartened to learn
that the percentage of smokers among young girls ages 17 and 18
has gone up. I am even more disheartened to learn that lung
cancer will outdistance breast cancer as the.No. 1 cancer killer of
women by as early as next year and that many doctors and medi-

30
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cal researchers attribute this to the increase in smoking among
wdmen.

We may have come a long way, baby, as the cigarette ads say,
but I doubt sincerely that where we women wanted to end up was
with higher cancer mortality rates ceded by smoking.

Still, we do know that our education efforts have not overall
been a failure. According to the American Cancer Society statistics,
there are still some 54 million smokers who smoke more than 630
billion cigafettes each year. However, there are also 33.3 million
ex-smokers, up from 31.5 million 3 years ago.

EINn the level of teenage smoking, which only a few years ago
was going up at alarming rates, has started to drop in recent years.
Teenage girls who smoke now constitute 13 percent of that popula-
tion as compared to 15 percent' in 1974 and teenage boy smokers -
are down to 11 percent from 16 percent.

Now, I am hot an elipert on 'advertising. I am not a doctor or a
research scientist. I am a cancer patient with a particular kind of

cancer that is heavily associated by my doctor, by many U.S. Sur-
geons General and by most of the respected profession* in the

'country with smoking. I smoked two to three packs of cigarettes a
day for about 30 years. That, in my mind, .was probably a major
contributing factor to my cancpr.

I am here because I want to,spare as Many young Arnericang as I
can the painful and frightening experience that I had. I find it in-
credible that anyone can sit in this room or in any room and say
that since we do not have enough information on the effectiveness
of cigarette labeling we shouldn't try a new labeling technique
which might increase that number of ex-smokers.

I am sUre that we have all seen a report by the Frc that tells us
that most people don't really know what could happen to them 'if
they smoke. I surely did not.

If we .save just a ..few thousand people from having to suffer
'through surgery, radiation therapy, and chemotherapy and from
having to face either the prospect or the reality of prematur4 death
and of disfigurement by simply changing cigarette labels, no ciga-

rette company is going to be able to convince me that their cost is

going to be tod great to make it worthwhile. I simply will not
aècept it.

Last year the tobacco industry made over $6 billion on tobacco
products alone:$6 billion on a product whose additives don't have
to be listed anywhere, not even with Gaiernment researchers; $6

billion on a product.that many U.S. Surgeons General say causes
cardiovascular disease, lung disease and cancer and other kinds of
cancer; $6 billion on a product associated with over 300,000 prema-
turetleaths a year and with $25 billion in lost productivity; $6 bil-
lion on a product that caused me to go through surgery and exten-
sive rehabilitation treatment.

Since 1974 the Federal Government has spent over $215 million
to strengthen that $6 billion a year industry. Every year the Gov-
ernment spends money on tobacco price supports and tobacco re-
search and marketing. That industry can surely afford to spend a_
little more on its labeling, or even a lot more on its labeling.

Therefore, I, for one, wholeheartedly endorse the legislation of-
, fered by the chairman whatever the cigarette industry may claim
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it is going to cost I do not believe any cost-benefit analysis of this
labeling proposal will prove to be supportive of the tobacco indus-
try's position.

I believe that I would not have smoked had I seen a label on a
cigarette package or in a cigarette ad that said, "Warning: Ciga-
rette smoking may cause death from heart disease, cancer, or em-
physema." That simple message would have saved me years of
grief in dealing with an illness that jeopardized my career and my
life.

I urge the members of this committee to overcome whatever po-
litical considerations exist with regard to the tobacco industry and
to show the courage and public dedication that will be needed fo
pass this legislation. .

I understand how difficult this will be for some of you. I also be-
lieve you will have failed in your commitment to your conktituents
and in your duty as representatives of all the people if you do not,
at the very least, give our people an opportunity to make an in-
formed decision about cigarette sn-pking, an opportunity to know
what it is they do to their bodies when they smoke.

I am prepared to assist you, Mr. Chairman, and the other 38
sponsors of this legislation in any way I can to insure passage of
H R. 4957 We must succeed for the sake of the health and safety of
our citizens.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much for your very effective testi-
mOny.
,Mr. Keeshan. ,

STATEMENT OF ROBERT'KEESHAN

Mr KEESHAN. Good morning, Mr. Chairman;Congressmea.
I am most happy to be here this morning.and representing the

American Lung Association. I could just as easily be representing
the American Cancer Society or the American Heart Association
because I 'delight in .the significance of this coalition, which has
come together to more effectively inform America about the dan-
gers inherent in cigarette smoking.

I am grateful for the opportunity that you afford me to appear
before this committee to express my views and my concerns about
a health hazard which threatens the well-being and eventually the
lives of millions of young Americans.

I believe most of you are aware that I have spent the last 35
years on television and radio educating young Americans, helping
to develop them, intellectually, fphysically and culturally in order
that they may become healthy, well-educated, stable contributors
to our society..

The .human being begins the learning process at birth. Much
learning, especially in the earlier years, is by observation and imi-
tation, For example, we learn language by observation and imita4
tion. ,

As we grow older, observation and imitation remain a significant
part of the learning process and the models of our observation
extend beyond the family. By preteen and teen years, many of the
most influential models for young people are their peers. It is at
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This time that that demon, peer pressure, plays a significant role in
the development of attitudes, actions and habits.

Peer pressure is probably the most significant inflirerice in caus-
ing a young person to light a cigarette for the first time. It is an

6 unnatural habit. Blow some cigarette smoke in the face of your dog
or cat one orthese days and note the reaction.

We have to overcome this natural antipathy for cigarette smok-
ing, and peer pressure pla5rs a very great role. It has been estimat-
ed that over 5,000 children light up for the first time each day.
Many of these children are 7 or 8 years of age, part of our hurried
generation, anxious to be grown up and, most unfortunately, equat-
mg smoking with maturity. Why not? They are mod6ling the be-
havior of those they view as sophisticated adults.

Almost 15 percent of teenage girls smoke cigarettes, slightly
more than teenage boys. The increase izrcigarette smoking by teen-
age girls In the last decade is alarming,There has been much spec-
Wation as to the reasons for this increase.

Perhaps smoking by young women is no longer frowned upon.
Teenage girls have, indeed, been 4erated from social taboos. They
are now as free as any other group' to endanger their health and to
shorten their lifespan.

We all know the pains suffered by the long-time adult smoker
who decided to quit the habit, and we are most sympathetic, but
would it not bt a better idea to apply an ounce of prevention to the
young American, to arrest the development of America's most pre-
ventable cause of death?

This bill of yours, Mr. Waxman, which is the subject of these
hearings, is particularly attractive to me because it calls for the or-
ganizations, the marshaling of forces to educate all Americans as
to the dangers inherent in cigarette smoking in a much more effec-
tive manner than we had done so in the past.

Educating young Americans, telling them the facts, disabusing
them of the notion that cigarette smoking is a sign of maturity,
helping them to resist peer pressure by developing proper attitudes
at an early stage in life, are all programs that can creatively and
effectively reach young Americans with the message cigarette
smoking, feeling good and living long do-not go together.

I have become convinCed that on our program Captain Kangaroo,
which is produced for preschool and early school age children, it is
now time for us to develop programs that will help young people
develop attitudes toward smoking, that will help them in a few
years, later in their life, to resist peer pressure that is such a sig-
nificant cause of their lighting up for the first time.

Our programs in this regard will begin in the fall of this year. As
a direct result of this coalition which comes before you today, we
must reach preteens and teens with the life-saving message, smok-
ing can kill you.

Let's help those older Americans who are victims of the habit to
give it up, but let us turn our great efforts to our children, who
have the most to kain and the Jongest to live. If we can effectively
reach young men and women and prevent them from beginning to
smoke, if we can reach them successfully, then we may all say with
conviction, you have come a long imy, baby.

Thank you, sir.
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you.
Let me say to the three of you, you have beeri absolutely fantas-

tic to come here. I think your testimony is as effective as any I
have ever heard as a Member of Congress. I think you have ex-
plained to us and brought a visibility to this issue tilat I think will
have an effect beyond this. room. I think it will niake it far, far
easier for us to pass this legislation.

Each of you has been working as a volunteer, talking to young
people, talking to organizations about the dangers of smoking.

Mr Forsythe, why don't I direct this to you. What reaction da
you get when you talk to Children, young people and teenagers
about smoking?

Mr FORSYTHE. I agree most wholeheartedly with Bob that that
should be our thrust because as cruel as it may seem, we can try to
help the older people: The young people is where ev rything is .at.

It is quite remarkable the kind of pressure thatLlntensified edu-
cational campaigns have brought about in schopls, the w appar-
ently the strongest point in the antismoking cathaigif has been
children coming home, telling their parents, "please ,ptop smoking,
-Daddy, please stop smoking, Mother.'

I would think that our efforts and our moneys could best be
spent largely in that area.

r. WAXMAN. W en 'we discouarge them from taking up a bad
it, it has. an ad i ,4impact?

Mr FORSYTHE. A doubl nded thing, yes. Some people may com-
plain about frightened -children, tut I think it is a more realistic-
approach to life, even though they may be slightly frightened.

Mr. W4xmAri. The three of you are involved in the media. You
know what is effective in communicating to people, you know what
is effective in reaching them.

How do you see.the role of the media in cigarette advertising and
in the subtle ways that role models are established in programing,
to influence people to take up this habit? Do any of you want to
comment on it?

Mr KEESHAN. I think there is no question that role modeling ig
very persuasive with young people. When a character who is obvi-
ously sophisticated, glib, well spoken, admired, in a dramatic con-
text, let us sok, is a cigarette smoker, the two become confused.

There is no question that a 7- or 8-year-old will associate that one
attribute of the charatter, the use dsigarettes,hvith the other at-
tributes of that characterthe glibness, maturity, admiral&
'which he earns. .

I think it is incumbent upon usI would never tell a,.producer
under no circumstances should a character smoke a cigarette.be-
cause there are times when for draniatic purposes it is necessary,
as there are times when for dramatic purposes it isInecessary to
portray villians.

But if it is gratuitous, if it is merely a gratuitous action on the
part of the character, I think there is absolutely no excuse for it., Mr. WAXMAN. Do you know whether producers of programs or

(films either in television or motion pictures will purposely put in a
plug for cigaretths or a brand of cigarettes by using it as part of the
scenario or part of the performance?
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Ms. BLItax. I have never encountered that,. I think inserting of
smoking of clerettes to make a store point Or portray a dramatic
moment, I think that has been decreasing, very much so, in the s7

list years.
They are using other methods of showing or pumping up a dra-

matic.moment rather than lightii up a cigarette. I have found a
decrease in it.

Mr. Foitsrria. I have not come across it, either. As a matter of
fad, I have something good to say about the tobacco industry in

one sense,
For 5 years I had a television series called Bachelor Father, and

our sponsors were tobacco people. I indicated to theni that I never
wanted to make a commercial, I never wanted to appear in any
commercials. They were kind enough never to for- me to appear._

So on that level, I think they-Ilave been g.. . On some other -
levels I could question that.

Mr. KEESHAN. I have to add to those Aind comments. I must say,
Mr. Chairman, that no cigarette company has ever, asked Captain
Kangaroo to smoke,

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, I want to thank you again. I want to recog-
nize my colleagues to ask questions. I Want you to know how much
I appreciate your testimony.
. Mr. Bliley

- Mr. Buisy. Thank Au, Mr4hairman.
Mr. Keeshan, would you say from your exterience, children

begin sinoking .1)ecause of observing it in someone else, their par-
ents, their peers, or do you think they do it because of advertisihg?
What do yoh think is the primary purpose?

Mr. KEESHAN. A decade ago or more, Mr. Bliley, I might have
been able. to say to you 9iat I think adveitising mfluenced them
because I think the medium that advertises or affedi children
and by children I mean preteens and youngerwould be the televi-

. sion media. It has been a generation since we have had such adver-
tising in television.

It can be influential in magazine advertising, but I do think the
greatest pressure on young children 8 and 9 and 10 and 11 years of

age to Smoke comes from peer piessure.
That is why I think educational programs with the young, that

will develop attitudes to smoking, make them aware and in-
formed as to the danger o *ng,, are very important in order
that they may he'ahle to resist peer pressure.

It is not the, only action that peer *pressure causes them to
engage. in, but peer pressure is very,significant with young people.

Mr. Bum. From your testimony I gathered that all three of-you
havapnnoked at one time or another, some perhaps 'longer than
others. I know Mr. Forsythe testified that he gave kt up. I assume
the others have, too. He indicated, I believd, that it was consulta-
tion with his physician that caused him to give it up.

How about yourself? Was it the warnings on the label, fo m-

ple, what we are considering here, or was it con'sultiiwW1th your
physician?

Mr. KEESHAN. It was consultation with, my physician. He made it
very clear to me that I was risking my health in continuing smok-
ing. I must Say that as important as the reason for giving it up was.
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the reason I took it up in the first place. I think it was more than
anyyhing else an affectation.

I rempmber very, very dearly doing it because every other teen-
age kid that I associated with did it, and if you didn't do it you
were a sissy It was just peer pressure th4 caused me to take it up.

I remember that as a teenage experience very plainly. If I had
been the beneficiary of an education program, as our young people
can be today, I don't think I would have taken up cigarette smok-
ing in the first place. I would have resisted that peer pressure.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you.
Do you have a comment, Ms. Blake?
Ms. BLAKE: Yes. I took up smoking because I thought it was

glamorous.
Mr. BLILEY. My question was; what caused you to stop?
Ms. BLAKE It waabecause I had a sore in my mouth and when I

went to the doctor he said, you are going to quit smoking, aren't
you" I said, well, the horse has already escaped from the barn, but
I am quitting smoking. If you can save my life, I promite you I will
never smoke again.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you very much.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Rogers.
Mr RocEas. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate the chair-

man's:land courtesy in albting me to sit on this panel today and
participate in the proceedings.

I would like, Mr. Chairman to say thank you to these three
people in the public eye for joining us here today ozrthis very im-
portant cause. There are some of us who, although ware of the
possible dangers of smoking, are also somewhat conc rned about
the fact that this legislation may be overreaching in dome of the
constitutional aspects and philosophical aspects of what Govern-
ment shOuld and should not do.

There are some or us who have a little concern about the central
Government setting up, in effect, a brainwashing organization to
sway people, free people, on what they should do or not do.

Some of the aspects of this bill bring to mind possible fears of
whether or not the Central Government should be involved in
swaying public attitudes for or against a matter that is essentially
a private choice and the dangers that that might bring to the fact
that the Government possibly could enter other areas of public per-
suasian on matters that are, in a democracy, matters of private
choice. -

This bill, in fact, would create a very large bureaucracy in the
Government with unspecified, open-ended funding. It would kib-
stantiaIly place a very large load on the Federal court system,
which already is almost swamped in litigation, by permitting any
person to bring a civil suit with penalities of $100,000 for alleged
violations of the regulations with even one pack of cigarettes. The
United States District Court amount for bringing suit would be
waived under these proceedings.

Two, I think this bill would divert attention from all other envi-
ronmental and occupational factors which may haw ,human health
side effects by focusing exclusively on smoking.

The chairman's proposal is really premised on an FTC study that
claims that Americans are not aware of, the health warning on
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cigarette packages and in advertising. The 6-month comment
period for that staff study lids not yet expired. Yet, we are being
asked to take action before the facts are in from that staff report
bS, the Federal Trade Commission.

This change flies in the face of a November 20 statement of last
year by the Health Secretary, Mr. Schweiker, who saki, and I

quote, "A Gallup Poll this year found that the percentage of smok-
ers In the United States is now the lowest in the 37 years of the
Gallup Polls. 90 percent, 9 of 40 people, agree that cigarette snok-
ing is harmful."

e present system I think of providing health information to
permits people to make their own decision, to make a free choice on
whether or not to smoke apparently is working because 90 percent
of the people understand and agree that cigarette smoking is hat\n-
'fuL

Would we, in this bill, be providing a lot ofpossible danger to our
democratic system, in addition to the funding opsts, in addition to
the huge bureaucray involved, in addition to the economic costs in-
volved--And would we be perhaps loading up on/the Government's
so-called responsibility in this area at great cost?

I wonder what your thoughts might be, any of you who would
care to comment on that line.

Mr. KEESEAN. Mr. Rogers, I agree that we should be concerned
and that we should permit every American to make a free choice,
to make a decision as to whether to smoke cigarettes or not to.

We ot talking about banning the sale of cigarettes, but I
think tallitlwe also *must be certain that every American is able to
make an informed decision.

For that segment of the population *in which I am particularly
interested, and my -friend Mr. Rogers is particularly interested
the other Mr. Rogers, Mr. Rogerswe are concerned that our
young Americans are not able at this point with4the information

, they have to make a free choice when they are subjected to peer
pressure &id modeling at a later age of 9 and 10 and 12.

The American Lung Association, for example, has a marvelous
program which is calledit is in an experimental stage at the
momentwell, the Seattle program in the Seattle area in which
they do emphasize many health hazards, cigarette smoking only
one of them.

Other concerns that you expressed this morning, other environ-
mental cbncerns are also emphasized in this program. The program
is designed, for kindergarteners, first and second graders. These
young people will be informed. So, they will be making an in-
formed judgment.

I think that is what w should be concerned about, that when
that free judgment is exercised by all Americans, as we like so
proudly to point to our ability to make free choices, that that free
choide will be intelligently made, just as we try to inform them
every 2 years when we run for Congress so that they can make an
intelligent and informed choice among candidates.

We want them to make an informed choice as to whether they
should smoke or not smoke. I want my young people to be in-
formed. I think this bill.will go a long way to help to inform those
young people.

415
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Mr FORSYTHE. Mr. Rogers, in spite of the New Feaeralism I am
old-fashioned enough to believe that the Government has a very,
very strong responsibility when a public menace is as evident as
the Surgeon General makes this appear.

When you have this kind of incontrovertible proof that it is not
allied or related to, but contributory, then surely Members of Con-
gress have a very heavy responsibility in this matter. I am not
quite as worried aliout the bureaucratic results as you are.

Ms. BLAKE. I don't think I can top that. I think you have said it
all, Johri.

Mr RoGERS. I am wondering, since you apparently believe, all of
you, that the United States Government, the Central Government,
should have a heavy responsibility in cOnvincing our citizens of our
country not to smoke, would it be also equally as much of an obli-
gation of our Governnient in your view that perhaps we should re-
quire advertisements for power lawnmowers to disclose that push
lawnmowers-are relatively safer?

Should Volkswageebe required to put in their advertisements
that Volkswagen passengers are more likely to be injured in the
event of an accident' than passengers in other kinds of cars? How
far should we go with this new ground that we are breaking with
this bill?

Mr. WAXMAN. Will my colleague yield to me for a second?
I want to address the question as the author of the bill. It is an

interesting point you are raising about the obligation of the Gov-
ernment in this regard.

The Constitution provides that the public health and safety is a
responsibility for the Government of the United States. We are
now paying billions of dollars for the health care costs of people
who have been affected by cigarette smoking.

The Government is already spending millions of dollars in tobac-
co subsidies. We are already involved. Since we are paying all of
these costs, particularly the billions of dollars in costs that take
care of people's health, it seems to me the Government has to
figure out what to do.

In protecting the public health, we can ban cigarettes, as we can
ban any other item that is clearly 'so dangerous. As a policy that
wouldn't work. We found that out when we tried to have a prohibi-
tion against alcoholic beverages.

We want to assure people's right to make decisions for them-
selves, but when we have advertisements that are paid by people
who stand to profit, that try to make cigarette smoking attrac-tiveI hold up this advertisement as one of many examplesit
seems to me that someone has to counter the heavy propagandiz-
ing, brainwashing, that is going on paid for by the industry. Indus-
try stands to make billions of dollars from their investments in
promotional advertising o try to persuade people to take up a
habit that will do a tremendous amount of harm to their health. At
a fninimum I think the government ought to be trying to make
people aware of srpolsing's health risks so that they can make a
free and informed choice.

I even think we ought to go far beyond just asking the industry
to change their labels. I would like to see us pay for advertising on
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television to counter the years of advertising 'that have built up
over time to convince people that smoking is glamorous.

We are not going that far. We are suggesting that the Govern-
ment ought to let people know what is at risk for them.

Now,. I rind it a peculiar argument to say on the one hand Gov-
ernment should not be involved in telling people one thing ahd on
the other hand suggest that 9 out of 10 people already know it. I
want to be sure that everyone knows that when they pick up a
cigarette, when they decide for themselves to smoke, that they are
endangering their health. Furthermore they are endangering 4iot
just themselves, but they present a risk to their family due to their
illness and possible death they cost the taxpayer who pays for
their treatment and they cOst society in the toss of productivity

Mr. ROGERS. Reclaiming whatever time I may have remaining, I
think the American Lung Association and the American Heart As-
-sociation and other privately funded organizations are doing an ex-
cellent job of educatmg and warning.

I think that these privately funded organizations are the proper
groups to fund these efforts because they do not get into the consti-
tutional and philosophical questions of a Central Government
brainwashing its citizens.

Mr. Bum. Since this is a bill, Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I
might ask you a queition.

Since 9 out of 10 peoplemore than 9 out of 10 people, according
to the Gallup Poll.-.-already realize that .smoking may be harmful
to their health, what increased percentage do you think this bill,
sbould it become law, will add to that?
"AMr. WAXMAN. Any, increase in public knowledge is worth the
price of having stronger labels. Saying to someone they may die
from heart disease, lung disease or cancer raises in their minds
what kinds of risks they are taking when they smoke.

It is well worth requiring the industry that is earning billions of
dollars from selling this product to at least take on that obligation
of informing the public as to the risks inherent in this product.

Mr. Bum. Not to prolong this, Mr. Chairman, but I know the
penalties have been increased 10 tithes in this bill, from $10,000 to
$100,000. It is my understanding that since labeling Was required
on cigarettes there has never been a case brought of a violation.

I was wondering if you might educate me as to why the increase,
if we have never had a violation before. Why increasa it?

Vr. WAXMAN. Let's get into that down the, road as we look into
the sections of the bill. I think we ought to have effective sanctions
to assure compliance with the law.

Let's hear from our witnesses and go into the questions of why
the legislation is needed or not needed.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, but I thought we were al-
ready doing that.

Mr. ROGERS. ryield back.
Mr. WAXMAN. Let me again extend my appreciation to you. It's

been very helpful to have you here, and I think the fact thgt you
are here is a demonstration to us not just of your strong feelings
and sincerity, but the importance of this matteg. Thank you.

Our next panel represents a broad spectrum of voluntary public
health groups, including the American Heart Association, the

45
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American Cancer Society, the American Lung Association and the
National Int&agency Council on Smoking and Health.

I am particularly pleased these gentlemen could be here with us
this morning to share their special medical and scientific expertise
on this important subject.

Steven Ayres is the chairman of the Department of Medicine at
St Loais University School of Medicine. Dr. John Oates is profes-
sor of medicine, Department of Medicine and Pharmacology, School
of Med,icine,, Vanderbilt University. Dr. Robert Daugherty is the
dean or the School of Medicine, University of Nevada. Dr. William
Cahan is attending surgeon at the Memorial Sloan-Kettering
Cancer Center.

We will make your statements a part of the record. You may
proceed as you see at.

STATEMENTS OF STEPHEN M. AYRES, M.D., CHAIRMAN, SMOKING
ON HEALTH COMMITTEE, AMERICAN LUNG ASSOC[ATION;
JOHN A. OATES, M.D., CHAIRMAN, SUBCOMMITTEE ON' SMOK-
ING, AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION; WILLIAM G. CAHAN, M.D.
ON BEHALF OF AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY, INC.; AND
ROBERT M. DAUGHERTY, JR., M.D., PH. D., CHAI;RMA,N, NATION-
AL INTERAGENCY COUNCIL ON SMOKING AND HEALtH
Dr Mims. Mr Chairman, members of the committee, I thank

you for the opportunity of presenting the views of the American
Lung Association and chest physicians throughout the United
States on the issues of cigarette smoking. It is important to recog-nize that the physicians here represent a broad fabric of American
medicine, physicians specializing in heart disease, cancer, and lung
disease.

I would like to emphasize that the modern physician would
prefer to prevent disease rather than to treat it. It's very clear that
a large percentage of the almost 2 million deaths each year are re-
lated to problems that are potentially preventable, related to var-
ious habit forming, unhealthy human behaviors. Cigarette smoking
clearly causes lung disease, heart disease, and cancer.

If people did not smoke, many people who die of those diseases
would not çd,je of those diseases. Chronic respiratory' disease is acondition t leads individuals to become progressively short ofbreath. You ight visualize it as breathing through a narrowstraw for man ears of hfe, unable to receive life-giving air.

There are about 47 million people in the United States who have
chronic respiratory disease and the cost of care for these people is
approximately $45 billion. Cigarette smoking is a major cause of
this problem During this past year, 60,000 people died. There is no
real controversy regarding the relationship between smoking and
disease Over 30,000 studies have been published, and almost all ofthem have demonstrated some aspect of this positive relationship.

There have been over 14 reports provided by the Surgeon Gener-
al representing the Federal Government. The National Heart,
Blood, and Lung Institute in 1978 published a document in which
they concluded that cigarette smoking is the single most important
risk factor for disease of the lung. Reduction or ideally, elimination
of cigarette smoking would have a major impact on national health
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_and on the_social and economic costs that are a consequence of
smoking related diseases.

Now this is the National Institutes of Health speaking, the most
prestigious research organization in the entire world. Part of this
legislation is designed to coordinate the findings and activities of the
National Institute of Health with physicians and health educators
throughout the United States.

The only way to modify unhealthy behavior is through educa-
tion. There has been considerable speculation about the impact of
the label and other activities on those people wRo say they know
abotit the health effects of cigarette sntking. Knowledge and belief
are tWo different sides.

We feel that knowledge can only be converted into belief by con-
stant reminders, by constant health education by what some would
call brainwashing. Each year, there are many new studies which
confirm these relationships. I have presented some of these to the
committee in the formai report. Very few studies ever surface that
doubt this relationship. We are concerned about the imbalance that
exists between those forces designed to get people started smoking,
and those meager forces of we physicians, health educators, and
others who try to modify and prevent smoking.

Let me just give you one example taken from a report written by
the Ted Bates Advertising Co. in a chapter which they wrote, they
said, and the title of the chapter was "How to Reduce Objections to
the Cigarette."

They pointed out that since cigarettes do not have any real, abso-
lute positive qualities, that it's very important that effective adver-
tising reduce objections. Then further in theirAeport they pointed
out what I believe to be the real heart, of the issi* in terms of the
overall approach to young people. They point out, this is the Ted
Bates Organization speaking; for the young smoker the cigarette is
not yet an integral part of life, of day-to-day life; in spite of the fact
that they try to project the image of a regular, run-of-the-mill
smoker. For them a cigarette and the whole smoking process is
part of the illicit pleasure category. In a young sm4er s mind a
cigarette falls into the same cathgory of drinking wine, beer, shav-
ing, wearing a bra or purposely not wearing one. Demonstration of
independence. For a young starter, a cigarette is an introduction to
sex life, courtship, smoking pot, and keeping late hours.

It then recommends a strategy for attracting young people to
start smoking. 'We feel labeling is only a beginning.

i
Clearly, label-

ing by itself will only continue the process of attempting to nform
young people and older people concerning the hazards of cigarette
smoking. We aim to have a social milieu, a fabric in which un-
healthful behavior becomes socially acceptable.

Consider, if you will, that this legislation really represents the
role of the foot soldier in an entire armentarian. It is the begin-
ning, not the end. I would paint out, gentlemen, that these are dif-
ficult economic times. The Federal portion of the over $200 million
in health costs are rising. Medicare health costs are rising. If
Americans were to stop smoking tomorrow, it is very likely that
the budget could be balanced considerably earlier than is presently
projected.

Thank you for the opportunity.
[Dr. Ayre's prepared statement and illustrations follow:1

4 7
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The environmental anitation movement of the early Twentieth

Century with smsemphasis,on pure drinking water and sanitary waste

disposal provided clear evidence that maintenance of the public health

was a.major responsibility of government. More recently, the widespread

adoption of cigarette smoking has led to a new epidemic of preventable'

deaths that can only be eliminated by direct action of public health

authorities. Like the'Biack Death or illague of 1348-1350 which killed

one third of the population, ciggfette smoking liads to the premature

Oaths of large numbers of a nation's population. Adoption of H.R. ,

5633. the "Comprehensive Smokrng Prevention Ace'would place the United

States government squarely in the role of defender of the public health.

The Federal Government must attempt to eliminate as many of

the hundreds of thousands of deaths due to cigareotte smoking as possible

and co reduce the billions of dollars spent for the care of people

with tobacco-related diseases. Every effort must be made to discourage

young people from stirting smoking and to help confirmed smokers stop

smoking.. The incitese in cigarette smoking among Idolescent girls

has been porticularly alarming and there is reason to'believe that

a group of societal pressures are responsible for this situation. Lung

cancer was at one time extremely rare in women; its dramatic increase

in the past decade is a stark reminder of the risks of adolescent

cigarette smoking:

KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF

Why do people smoke? The'Roper Report commissioned by the

tObacCo industry wared that most people knew that cigarette smoking

was harmful and that nany smokers desired to,stop. This public opinion

organization detailed a series f problems that threatened 'the %Ontindea

viability of the tobacco iy and emphasized particularly the spread

oi health anowiedge among the public and the growing activism of non-

smokers.

Unfortunately, the knowledge that cigarette smoking' is dangerous

is not necessarily translated into abstinence. Behavioral scientists

have developed the "health belief" model to explain why individuals



'say "know" that a particular behavior is harmful even though they do

lot translate this knowledge into appropriate action. They know but

they do not believe. Health ducation is pitifully primitive in the

. United States, health educational spots fiave markedly declined from

television programming, and the ministure,"warningr on cigirettes and
- cigarette advertising is ineffective, At one time, when a surgeon

general had not.been appointed .to office. the tobacco industry ridiculed

che printed warning by pointing to the non-existence of the individual

vhose name appeared on the ciga?ette package.

, Rotation of warning labels that would constantly remind

potential smokers of specific diseases produced bv cigarette smoking

each time they reached for a smoke and would have an imporlant effect

on converting fact into belief. While cleariy less effective6than

the pillion dollar advertising blitz launched annually by the tobacco

industry. such rotating labels would be an important first step. A

casual' inspection of advertising material convinces most observers

that its mission is to encourage non-smokers to smoke and to keep

smokers smoking. Rotation of labels shoeld be followed by other

health educational techniques such as the publication of en anti-

smoking message of identical size next to each smoking advertisement.

Free choice qn agfree society is only possible when each individual

is informed, Crying "fire" in a crowded theatre is not dissimilar

,Co encouraging one's neighbor to regula'rly inhale smoke:

SMOKING DOES CAUSE HUMAN DISEASE

Although che tobacco industrY charaCterizes the linkage of

cigarette smoking and human illness 4s the "Smoking and Health

Controversy," the only controversy is the unwillingness of that

industry to voluntarily phase out cigarette productinn and to

encourage individuals to stop smoking. The evidence establishing the

toxic lature of cigarette smoke has been acCumulating since the

publication of the first report of the Surgeon General in 1964. Since

Ifthen,thousands articles dOcumenting the harmful effects of cigarette

smoking have been published and the United States Public Health Service

5.
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table below thows death rates for tWo hypotheticIi. population samples.

.a Sroup of 100,000 smokers end another group of 100,000 non-smokers.

The number of deaths expected in the subsequent ten years for the two

groups of men between the ages of 55 and 59 are shoWn. Only che four

most common causes of death associated with smoking are shown in chis

calculation.

Non-Smokers Smokers

oronar), Artery Disease 6,168 11,454

Lung Cancer 257 3,223

Stroke 1,066 1,600

Emphysema 69 860

Total Deaths Expec'ted 7,560 17,137

T s analysis shows that for each 100,000 population sample

in che age roup 55-59 years, the smoking population'will have 9,57}

more deaths t.an the non-smoking population. If one assumes chat the

total hospital and professional cost of each individukl prior to death

averaged $10,000, the total excess health cost of the smoking group

is close to 100 million dollars. Since there are about five million

men in the United States between the ages of 55 and 59, the coral

excess health cost in that age bracket is five billion dollars.

NEW AND CONFIRMING EVIDENCE IS CONTINUALLY PUBLISHED

Each ysar a large number of publications from laboratories

around che world confirm che relationship between cigarette smoking

and human disease. Many different 6,pes of studies have been,performed--

epidemiologic study of death races, results of stopping smoking, studies

of lung function, and examination of tissues at autopsy in smokers

and non-smokers. A brief selection of several recent papers fo//ows.

Each of chese has been published in a highly respected, peer-reviewed

medical journal.

Two recent studies have shown increased life expeccancy in

individuals who diiconcinued smoking compared to those who continued
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ham issued 13 Subsequent reports on imoking and health. In 1976, the National
Heart, Lung anclglood Institut*, a component of the prestigious National

Institutes of Health, concluded its Task Force Report on Prevention,

Control and Education in Respiratory Diseases with the following

recommendation:

"Cigarette mmoking is the si.tigle ost impOrtant risk factor for

diseases of the lung. It is known to cause or exacerbate not only the

respiratory diseases discussed in this report, but lung cancer, cardio-

vascular disease and stroke, as well. Reduction, or ideally, elimination

of cigarette smoking would have a major impact on nationql health and

on the social and economic costs that are a consequence of smoking-

related diseases. The problem of smoking warrants the highest priority

in all programs concerned with diseases of the lung. The most important

target groups for antismoking programs are preadolescents and adolescents_

whO hall'e not yet started to smoke or in whom the smoking habrt is not

entrenched."

In a free society, government cannot directly order abolition

of destructive behavior but must constantly warn of the conseqdences of

such behavior so that individual citizens can make informed choices. Such

destructive behavior accounts for a large component of the annual mort,slirvIP
experience. Tri 1980, for example, approximately 700/000 died from coronar4

artery disease. 180,000 from stroke, 105,000 from lung cancer, 30.000 from

bladder cancer. 7,500 from esophageal cancer and 60,000 from emphysema and

other chronic obstructive pulmonary diseases. The common factor linlin

these one millimeedeaths, more than half of the total deaths each sear, ic

a demonstrated relationship to cigarette smoking.

Many of these deaths are related to multiple factors includine

heredity, exposure to environmental agents and excessive dieter)

cholesterol as well as to cigarette smoking. Cigarette smoking,

however, is the single most itmortant factor--imany times more

important than any other risk factor. Detailed epidemiologic data

allow separation of the mortality directly related to smoking.

The Celler-Cesner Tables, published by Robbins and Hall in

1970, have been used by many physicians who'practice "prospective

medicine" to analyze the life expectancy of individual patients. The
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Smokers had Significantly more,evi4ence of inflammation in the smallest

areas of the airways and that this inflammation was probably reversible

when smoking was discontinued. Hale et al in an article published

in the same journal demonstrated for the first time that smokers dying

without obvious heart disease had thickening of the pulmonary Mood'

vessels. These data suggest a response to reduced oxygen concentrations

in the smaller airways related co cigarette smoking.

The toxicity of cigarette smoke to innocent bystanders as yell as

to smokers was shown b'y a recent study of Dahms et al. (Chest 80 530-

534. 1981). Ten patients with bronchial aschms and ten normal indivi-

duals were exposed to cigarette smoke in an environmental chamber.

Pulmonary function telts (the FE91.0) decreased 21% in_ the asthmatics

but not in the normals. The asthmatic patients were not particularly

sick and were ambulatory. A substantial percintage of the general

populatiop has theioort of reactive airways demonstrated by the asthmatic

so that the study emphasizes a major publithealth concern.
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Children
are not
free
to make
an informed
choice 4

about
smoking.,
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In this country 340,000people
die prematurely every year from
the effects of cigarette smoking.
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POLLED AMERICANS UNAWARE

Smoking causes most cases of
bronchitis and emphysema

).

Smoking causes lung cancer

4

60% did not know

20% did not know
4

Smoking causes many heart attacks 50% did nct know

\ --
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much...-
Dr. Oates.

STATEMENT OF JOHN A. OATES, M.D.

Dr OATES. Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, I am Dr.
John Oates, professor of medicine and pharmacology at Vanderbilt
University, and chairman of the subcommittee on smoking of the
American Heart Association. I appreciate the opportunity to testify
on behalf of the Heart Association which is a nonprofit, voluntary
health organization with 119,000 members and almost 2 million
other volunteers who are dedicated to the reduction of premature
death and disability from cardiovascular disease.

Cardiovascular diseases kill neatly 1 million Americans each
year This year, some 11/2 million Americans will have a heart
attack and about 550,000 of them will die from this cause. Another
174,000 people will develop peripheral vascular disease, a major
disability These figures have special significance because cigarette
smoking has been firmly established as a major contributor to the
occurrence of heart attacks, sudden death, and peripheral vascular
disease.

Cigarette smoking is the most preventable cause of death and
disability from these cardiovascular diseases. Compared to the non-
smokers, cigarette smokers are more likely to suffer heart attacks,
to die from heart attacks and to die suddenly from coronary artery
disease Fortunatley, quitting smoking reduces the risk toward that
of the nonsmokers.

Cigarette smoking partkularly increases 'heart attacks an
sudden death among younger men and women. The American
Heart Association and the Coalition on Smoking on Health are
committed to helping smokers who want _to quit and preventing
children from starting to smoke. Accordingly, we wholeheartedly
support the passage of H.R. 5653.

-The provision of statutory standing of the Office of Smoking and
Health is very important. The proposed role of the Office of Smok-
ing and Health will be instrumental in combining and coordinating
the efforts of the public and private sectors to address the problem
of cigarette smoking. Thus, a relatively small Federal effort can be
used to mobilize enormous private sector resources to address a
major health problem. Requiring the rotation of new warning
statements on cigarette packages and advertisements is needed to
better inform the public since the current warning statement is
overexposed and worn out.

"This should come as no surprise since any message presented in
exactly the same way will soon become so familiar that it will lose
its effectiveness. Moreover, two optometrists in a study of cigarette
billboards found that while the brand name was highly visible, the
warning could not be read.

Clearly there is a need for varied warning statements and a
format that is visible. Yet the tobacco industry argues that the
warning labels should remain the san'ie in every ad. This is contra-
dicted by the practices of.the industry itself which changes adver-
tising copy frequently to sell cigarettes.
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For example, here are copies of a very successful advertising
campaign which made numerous changes during the course of a
'single year. It's obvious that the mtw,sage must be changed to atrin
tract attention. Cigarette advertising uses a multitude of: different'
images, to appeal to different markets. The logical extension is that
the warning must also be tailored to appeal to differing consumers

For example, smokers with a history .of heart disease in their
families may find a warning on smoking and heart attack a much
more personally relevant matter than a general, vague message

The American Heart Association has insufficient access to the
media to inform the public adequately on the hazards of smoking
The number of antismoking public service aRnouncements on tele-
vision since the ban on cigarette commercials has been drastically

-- reduced with hirdly any being shown during prime time Informa-
tion in the print media has been equally scarce. It has been sug;
gested by some that heavy advertising by the tobacco industry
serves to discourage coverage of the hazards of smoking in the
print media. .

This potential for intimidation was reinforced when a cigarette
advertising account for a half million pound sterling was abruptly
withdrawn from the Sunday Times of London after a report on
heart transplants which named the brands of cigarettes smoked by
patients. For whatever reason, the broadcast and print media do
not provide the public with full information on the dangers of
smoking. . ' -

Accordingly, the warning labels would provide ak assurance that
all citizens have access to at least a minimal levelThf information
It would provide an important means by which the Federal Gov-
ernment at no cost can effectively assist the priyate sector in edu-
cating the public about the hazards of smoking, The decision to
smoke is frequently made before-the age of 21, usually without full
awareness of the odds against escape from the smoking habit This
legislation would be an important step toward assuring that this is
an informed decision.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
[Dr. Oates' prepared statement follows:]

5 tj
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TESTIMONY
OF

JOHN A. OATES, M.O.

CHAIW4AH
4, SUBCOWITTEE ON SMOKING
AMERICAN HEART ASSOCIATION

Mr Chairman and members of the Subcommittee on Health and Environments, my
name is John A. Oates, M.D. / am Professor of Medicine and Pharmacology at
Vanderbilt University and Chairman of the Subcommittee on Smoking of the
American Heart Assegiatton.

I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this Subcommittee on behalf of
the American Heart Association to testtfy in support of the "Comprehensive
Smoking Act of 1981." As you may know, the American Heart Association is a
nonprofit voluntary health organization with over 119,000 members and almost 2
million other volunteers who are dedicated to the reduction of premature death
and disability from cardiovascular diseases.'

Cardiovascular diseases kill nearly one million Americans each year. This is
more'than all other causes combined. Heart attacks, the nation's number one
killer, claims most of these lives. This year, as many as 1.5 million
Americans can be expected to have a heart attack and about 550,000 of them
will die The survivors will join over 4 million Americans who have a historY
of coronary disease.'

These figures have special significance because cigarette smoking has been
firmly implicated as a major contributor to the occurrence of heart attacks,
sudden death, peripheral vascular disease and it greatly aggravates other
forms of cardiovascular diseases. Cigarette smokers are more likely, than
non-smokers, to suffer a heart attack, more likely to die from these attacks
and more likely to die suddenly. This effect is directly related to the
amount smoked with heavy smokers being at three times the risk of non-smokers.
Ffortunately, ceasing to smoke reduces the risk toward that of nonsmokers.'

Based on data from the Framingham Heart Study', we estimate that over 174,000
Americans will develop peripheral vascular disease this year. While, twenty
percent of these_ people will be diabetics,.....7M. of the remainder_will_b4.-
cigaiitte -smokers ' Moreover, diabetics who also smoke are at even greater
risk.' The link of cigarette smoking to peripheral vascular disease is
consistent and independent, of diabetes and other risk factors and related
directly to the number of cigarettes smoked.'

Perhaps most signifiCant is the fact that when people stop smoking, their risk
of these cardiovascular diseases gradually returns to normal. The risk of
fatal and non fatal heart attacks among ex-smokers is similar to non-smokers
in about 10 years.'-' The risk of peripheral vascular disease is similarly
reduced to that of a non-smoker in about 5 years."

The evidence incriminating cigarette smoking as a major risk factor for heart
attack and peripheral vascular disease was judged by an expert panel of the
American Heart Association to be conclusive." They further concluded that
"Theoretically, cigarette smoking is the most preventable cause of these
cardiovascular diseases and mortality therefrom".'

In spite of the overwhelming evidence linking, cigarette smoking to
cardiovascular and other diseases, over 52 million Americans are still
smoking." However, two thifds of theses smokers would like to quit and most
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have tried to do so." Following an unsuccessful attempt to quit, many of
these smokers tend tO Switch to low tar and nicotine cigarettes."'" This is
evidenced by the continuing rise in the market shfre of these cigarettes to

60.9% of all sales in 1981,"

This development is alarming because the evidence's suggests that many people

. switch to low tar and nicotine in an effort to lower their risk of adverse

health effect. While switching to these cigarettes may lower the risk for
soot diseases, there is no evidence of a reduction in risk for cardiovascular

diseases." In fact, recent evidence from the Framingham Heart Study's,

suggests that low tar and nicotine cigarettes may even increase the risk of

cardiovascular disease. This could be a very dangerous development since most

cigarette-related deaths are from heart attacks.'

The American Heart Association is committed to helping smokers who want to
quit and preventing children from' starting to smoke. Accordingly, we

wholeheartedly support the passage of H.R. 4957, the "Comprehensive Smoking
Prevention Education Act of 1981". The provision of statutory standing to the

Office on Smoking and Health is very important. ,The proposed role of the

Office on Smoking and Health will be instrumental in combining and

coordinating the efforts of the public and private sectors to address the
problem of cigarette smoking. This is a clear case where a relatively small
federal effort can be used to mobilize enormous private sector resources to
address a major health problem.

The provision requiring the rotation of six new warning statements on

cigarette packaits and advertisements is neededlto better inform the public of

the specific dangers of cigarette smoking. The rationale for the requirement

of a warning statement in the first place, was to inform consumers of the
health hazard. However, the FTC" has recently concluded that the current
warning statement, which has been used on packagei and advertisement since

1972, is overexposed and worn out. This conclusion was supported in part by a

study by Starch Message Report Service which found that only 2.4% of adults
exposed to cigarette ads reads the Surgeon General's warnings. This should

come as no surprise since any miisage presented exactly the same way will soon

become so familiar that it will lose its effectiveness."'" Furthermore,

since cigarette companiet vary the copy of their advertisements to avoid the

"wear out" effect, it seems reasonable to conclude that the warning statement

requries no less.

Effediky andr-Prowitz," Ix 1- study-ol cigarette bfIlborrds-, found the warning

statement to be written uniformly on all billboards and in a manner similar to

that used in newspaper and magazines. Individual letters in the warning

-consistently appeared the same, i.e., reduced detail. When compared with the

detail and size of the letters in the brand name, the two largest observed

warning statements were 38 and 17 times smaller. These two optometrists

concluded from their test that while the brand name was visible, the warning

was not

A

6 1.

14



57

This amplY supports the need for varied warning statements in a format that is
visible_ However, the Tobacco Institute" in response to the FTC Staff
Report, argued that the effectiveness of the cigarette advertisement and
warning statement must be Judged by different criteria. The rationale is that
"the former (advertisement) oust achieve consumer recall for a particular
brand among numerous other bPands, all of which present competing and
Confl.icting messages while the latter (warning) appears consistently-to the
consumer in every advertisement and on every paCk of cigarettes." This dual
criteria is not only unsupported but unsupportable. If the warning statement
has been "remarkably effective" by being presented consistently the same way
then it would seem that brand recall would be enhanced if the portrayed image
was maintained unchanged over the years. For example, the Marlboro
advertisement should be most effectfve if the original ad copy was continued.
Yet, the copy is changed and changed frequently. Different cowboys are used
in different settings Additionally, Brown and Williamson made several
changes in its very successful Barclay campaign last year.

1

The Tobacco Institute also noted that cigarette advertising uses a multitude
of images to appeal to different markets. This is indeed consistent with the
concept of market segmentation. The logical extension of this is that the
warning must also.be tailored to appeal to differing consumers. For example,
smokers with a history of heart disease in their families may find a warning
on smoking and heart attack much more personally relevant than a general
message

Moreover, the argument that cigarette advertising is limited to the print
media while consumers are exposed in all media to information on the hazards
of smoking is misleading The number of anti-smoking PSA aired on television
since the ban on cigarette commercials has been drastically reduced with
hardly any being show

)

during prime time. Additionally, information on

cuI
smoking and health in t print media has been equally scarce. It has even
been suggested by so :-" that the tobacco industry may be using its
advertising as a leverage to discourage coverage on the hazards of snoking in
the print media.. For whatever reason, the broadcast and prilt media is
largely inaccessible for informing the public of the dangers of smoking

Meanwhile, the so called brand advertising goes on at the tune of one billion
dollars per year '7 Regardless of the intent, non-smokers and Ishildren are'
heavily exposed to this advertising. It would be very difficult to argue
convincingly that some non-smoi,ers, especially children and_teenagers, are_not
affitad-BY this constant portrayal of smokers as being young, attractive,
healthy and enjoying an adventorous and pleasurable lifestyle. With this kind
of bombardment with no effective counter, it is not hard to understand why 53%
of smokers do not know or believe that smoking causes many cases of heart
attack "

cor the above reasons, the warning label becomes .a very important mpdium to
get more information to the public. The American Heart Associaton has made
and will Continue to make efforts to better inform the public about hazards of
smoking However, we do nOt believe that we have adequate access to the media
to fully inform the public Our efforts will have a greater chance of success

if the clearly deceptive intention of cigarette advertising is attenuated by
including an effective warning. The warning is yet another way, at no cost,
in which the federal government can effectively assist the private seCtOr in
educating the public about the hazard of cigarette smoking.

Therefore, the American Heart Association strongly supports the adoption of
the six specific warnings proposed in H.R. 4957. We further propose the
incorporation of the "circle and arrow" format, recommended by the FTC", to
display the warning on advertisements. This format would significantly
enhance noticeability of the warning. Finally, requiring that the warning
letters measure at least 25% of the maximum brand name letters and be of the
same proportionate detail would much improve its visibility." These simple
measures, at nO COSt, would contribute greatly to the education efforts of the
private sector.
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Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Cahan.

STATEMENT OF' WILLIAM G. CAHAN

Dr. CAHAN. I first thank you for the privilege and honor of testi-
fying before this committee. I would like before my testimony,
begins to submit two periodicals which I think would be of impor.,-e"
tance. One is titled, 'Cigarette Smoking Among Tennagers and
Women." Another is called, "Dangers of Smoking, Benefits of Quit-
ting,"

Mr. WAXMAN. We will be pleased to receive those.
Dr. CAHAN. For 40 years I have been associated with Memorial

Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center. It is the earlitst cancer institute in
'this country. It is one of the most prestigous. The last 33 years of.
those 4004 have been a chest surgeon on the thoracic service, deal-
ing a great deal with malignant tumors of the chest and thoracic
cavity.

Cancer is an extraordinary disease. It's awesome and awful.
There is hardly any among us that has not been touched one way
or another either by family or friend with this particlar disease so
we have had some inkling that there is that extraordinary alter-
ation in one's life, one's hopes, one's dreams by its onset. All the
statistics we have been hearing are certainly suggestive of the con-
nection between smoking and cancer and other diseases. What is
often lost n numbers I think is the human element which presents
itself to us who are in the world of cancer as a daily diet, if you
will.

If you have sat where I have sat seeing patient after patient with
her or his cancer, and seen the destruction this makes in their
lives, you would I think become dedicated, to trying to find out
what the mechanisms are and how you can prevent these disasters.

In this 30-year period we have seen many changes in cancer
which I -think are germane to this discussion. For one thing we
have seen a little over 30 years ago the reintroduction of cigarette
smoking as a possible cause. It's hard to believe in this day and
age, that in those days people were very skeptical, suspicious of
and rather reluctant to believe the connection.

Since that time, we have seen an extraordinary maturation of
this idea until there is an unequivocal relationship. Other observa-
tions made in this time period that even with the improvement of
surgical and radiation therapy we are still unable to cure many
cancers, in particular, cancers associated with the cigarette smok-
ing habit.

For example, at our best we can cure one in three lung cancers.
But unfortunately, the overall average is just 1 in 10.

Again, in the same period of time, we have seen that which you
have already heard from other panelists, the remarkable rise in
the incidence of women's lung cancer. Where we used to have a
ratio at Memorial Sloan-Kettering Cancer Center of at least 12
males to 1 female, this is now almost even in a short period of 15
years and bodes well to pass the men in incidence. These are not
women who work as "Rosey the Riveter" or in industrial hazards
These are housewives, office workers, teachers, and the like for

";=');
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whom there cannot be, I think by any stretch of the imagination,
the equivalent of a man's exposure to industrial exhausts.

We are familiar with a well-popularized cigarette slogan men-
tioned today. I would like to paraphrase it and have it read, "You
have come the wrong way, baby."

In any event, I thought it might be of interest to you if I present-
ed an X-ray of a chest showing a cancer of a lung in a woman. I
will Kit it on the viewing screen. This 59-year-old woman, wife,
grandmother, mother, with all the reasons in the wo?ld to stay
alive, was a heavy smoker for 20 or more Years. By definition,
heavy smoking is a pack a day for 20 or more years.

She was very careful to have periodic chest X-rays to monitor
her condition and each time a negative chest X-ray came from her
office she breathed a sigh of relief and went out and kept smoking.
Her family was naturally quite concerned about this and tried to
stop her.

One day she coughed up a little blood and had this chest X-ray
taken She came to my office, bringing it with her, as have so many
thousentls. This is a chest X-ray showing the heart, the ribs, and
her left lung which is on this side and appears normal.

What I would like to draw to your attention is the shadow in the
right upper lobe of her lung. She sat thereand the drama is re-
peated over and over againlooking at her own X-ray with that
shadow. She smoked until the day she came to my office, and saw
her own particular tragedy in the making and stopped on a dime.

Trying to stop people from smoking is one of the most difficult
problems we have to face today. There are many methods. physi-
cians' advice, smoking clinics, acupuncture, hypnosis, and so forth.

But we have a better than 90-percent take on stopping people
from smoking when they view their own chest X-ray and see the
shadow for the first time. This is the hard sell, but by then, the
horse has left the stable.

What we are talking about, is to avoid reathing that particular
point, by any.and all means.

Another major problem is the question of children smoking. We
have already heard about this today but I want to give you the
cancer point of view.

We are now more and more aware that growing tissues are more
sensitive to carcinogens, cancer-forming agents, than are adult tis-
sues. We have seen ample evidence of this in children who to be
irradiated for a large thymus and then went later on, as adults to
develop thyroid cancer in the field of radiation. We have also seen
it in children who had radiation of benign bone tumors and later
developed cancers at the iladiated site.

Similarly, young tissues/exposed to carcinogens in tobacco smoke
might well be inore sensitive to therh and more liable to develop
cancer. If that is the case, and we think it is, we have a dismal pro-
jection to make, within 25 to 35 years in consideration that chil-
dren are smoking at an earlier age, we can expect an enormous
epidemic, of lung cancer and smoking-related diseases, particularly
in women.

I try to stop people at all times from smoking, anywhere and ev-
erywhere. I have often said I have been invited to the best of
houses once. I think I have also been quoted as saying I have saved

14-387 0 - 82 - 5
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more lives at dinner tables than I do at the operating tables
which is no reflection on my surgery but it is a form of prevention
of it.

In discussing the labels Mr. Bliley, you made a point: after all we
already have a label and if we change the label, what difference
would it make, I think in the cessation of smoking we need many,
many efforts to create a climate. Some are general and some Are
very personal. I think somebody picking up a cigarette packet and
lighting it each day with a warning that is more than the present
slap on the iVrist would be much better alerted than- the ones we
presently have.

In short, cancer is a dread disease. Any of you who have had con-
tact with it can bear that out beyond belief. You have heard
Amanda Blake discuss hers, you have heard John Forsythe talk
about his family members. If there is any way )it all within the
realm of the law to prevent it, it would be doing a great act of hu-
manity for the rest of the people of this country.

Thank you very much.
rreftimony resumes on p. 1821
[Dr. Cahan's prepared statement and perioeticals follow1
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TESTIMONY OF wILLIAM G. CANAN, M.D.

Mx. Chkirman, members of the Committee, I feegnrivileged

td be here today to testify on behalf of the American Cancer

Society, a voluniary health organlkation with oveis3Aillion

active voLanteees, dedicated to fighting cancer. Because of

the mandate of the tMerican Cancer Sociiety it is most fitting

that we offer our testimony ip str4 support of H.R. 4957, the
.474

Comprehensive Smoking Prevention Education Act of l
Par .

I am professor of ry at the Cornell University Medical

College, and serve as a ding surgeon, The Thoracic Sfvice

of Memorial Hospital, in the Memorial Sloan-Kettering C ncer

Center. I am a long-time active volunteer of the. American

Cancer.Society. .1 have served as a Member of the Committees on

Tobacco and Cancer of the Society's National Board of
-..

Directors, and currently serve on the Society's Ad Hoc

Committee on Tobacco Habituation.

I feel thaE I can address the problem of tobaccdTd cancer

from. a_ rather -special perspective. In addition to my Iterest-
.

in Thoracic surgery, I have also hadir intense interest in

clinical research.. I conducted some_of the early research

experiments in animals which established the causal

relationships between smoking and cancer.

f"



I would like to commend you, Mr. Chairman, for your

leadership and your foresight in sponsoring this ifportant

preve2tive health care measure. I would also like to say how

pleased I.am to be able to testify as part of this'

distinguished panel. The work that the American'pincer ZCIVIc

will be doing on thi together with the American Heart

Association, the American Lung Association and the National

Interagency Council on Smoking and Health, is, I hope, just the

begianing of a coalition dedicated to educating Americans to

the dangers of smoking. We are all extremely excited about the

potential impact on the smoking problem in this country

resulting from the joining of forces of our organizations. iThe

reason Ve are testifying together is to underscore the amount

of.energy that our or6Snizations are willing to exert to

encourage.this Vital health effort.

The reasons for our dedication are clear. Today, 54

million Americans will light up a cigarette and we know that

smoking will contribute to the death of over 300,000 of them

this yeai mh;ne. 430,000 Americans will die from all forms of

cancer in 1982. According to the February 22 Surgeon General's

...report on the Health Consequences of Smoking 129,000 of those

deaths will be caused by the use of tobacco products.l.

VP
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851 of the 111,000 lung cancer death; this year will be

P
smoking elated. Ms know from the Surgeon General's report

that th overall cancer deaith ratesiof male smokers are

.

,

appro tely double those of nonsmokers and for female smokers

the death rate is approximately 30 percent higher.

The Surgeon General found that cigarette smoking was a

major cause of lung, laryngeal, oral cavity, and esophageal

cancer. It was also found to be a contributory factor tot

bladde!, kidney and pancreatic cancer. in addition, he noted

that epidemiological studies suggest an assoCiation between

cigarette smokilig and stomach cancer to a possible association

between smoking and uterine and cervicalfcancer.

What is oven worse, those cancers most closely associated

with cigarette smoking (lung, esophageal, laryngeal, oral

cavity and pancreatic cancer), can be the most difficult odes

to treat, the,cancers with the least hope for survival. Fo'r

example, the overall 5-year survival rate for lung cancer is

only 10%; for cancer of esophagus, 4% and for cancer of the
a

pancreas, 2%.2

When the Surgeon General released his report on February 22

of this year, the President of the American Cancer Society, or.

Robert Nutter, said:

7 o r
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'When we hear of a bad accident involving 20

or 30 people everyone isAorrified and offi-

cials start clamoring for more consumer pro-

tection. Here we have a situation in which

two to three hundred people a day are being

killed by tobacco-related cancers and these

people have been given virtually no protec-

tion at all.'

As a physician who must care for victims of cigarette

smoking, I can state with conviction to the members of this

committee that dying from lung cancer is one of the most awful

experiences a human being can go through. To permit people to

kill themselves this way without making the hazards amply clear

is an irresponsible act that we, as doctors, and you, as

legislators, must not allow to continue.

The American Cancer Society strongly supports the efforts

of the sponsors of this legislation to maintain a formal Office
-----

of Smoking and Health. Such an office dedicated solely to

educating Americans to the dangers of smoking and, in addition,

working to eliminate the American smoking habit is vital ea the

voluntary health sector in real terms as well as symbolically.

We need a group of knowledgable professionals at the federal

level in such an office committed to this cause.

71 qT
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W. are also pleased that the Chairman has shown an interest

in adding to hie legislation an amendment which would require

that all cigarette companies list with the Secretary of HHS all

tObacco additives. We are not asking that the trade secrets in

the tobacco industry be revealed. However, the ACS questions

why the cigarette industry has, for so long been exempt from

any requirement to list their additives when most other

consumable consumer goods have not had such an exemption.

In addition, we are well aware.that cigarette smoking is

dangerous. It is vital, that at the very least, government

scientists be given an opportunity to test the health impacts

of burning and inhaling such flavoring additives as cocoa

husks. The scientific and medical communities must also be

allowed to test these additives so as to protect the 54 million

smokers and for those other millions whom we are not reaching

through education efforts who may yet start to smoke.

I know the labeling provisions of the legislation raise

some questions. I cannot say for sure that six rotating labels

listing exactly the ill effects of cigarette smoking will make

the difference. I can say that in 1979 13.5% of boys aged 15

and 16 and 11.6% of girls that age are regdlar smokers: I can

say that at ages 17 and 18, the incidence increases to 19.3%
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for hoys and 26.2% for girls. AlsO, the percentage of girls

age 17 and IS who smoke has'zisen sharply since 1974. One

further poini, by 1981, according to statistics from the

National Cancer Institute, lung cancer will outdistance breast

cancer as the number one cancer killer of women.
3

Our children are risking their lives, possibly because of
-
clever advertising, combined with the various reasons that

influenced so many people to begin smoking years ago: peer

pressure, peer imitation, saying it looks so sophisticated,

grown-up, etc. At the very least, we must give them the best

information about the hazards of cigarettes to permit them to

mak. an informed decision. An FTC staff study came to the

following conclusion:

°...many [smokers] ape unaware of the existence

of the relationship between smoking.and some of

its most serious and widespread health conse-

.quences, such as heart disease...Some of the

health consequences of smoking, such as lung

cancer and emphysema, are more well known.

Howevsr, even for lung cancer, the most well

known health effect, some substantial gaps

in consumer knowledge are evident."4
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We have an oblisation to fill those gaps, especially for

the young. Amanda Blake has told us she would not have prooked

had she known clearly what could happen to her, How many of

those 17 year old girls who are lighting up a cigarette today

comprehend that they could get ora4 cavity cancer and would

have to undergo the difficult and painful rehabilitation that

is necessary to overcome the disabilities associated with that

disease. Not enough!.

Mr. Chairman, the Congress's own research agency, the

Office of Technology AssesMment, in its ASSESSMENT OF

TECHNOLOGIES FOR DETERMINING CANCER RISKS FROM THE ENVIRONMENT,

dated June 1981, states that tobacco smoking "is the single

most important preventable environmental factor contributing to

illness, disability, and death in the United States." The OTA

report sites a WHO reference stating "smoking-related diSeases

are such important causes of disability and premature death in

developingtcountries that the control of cigarette smoking

could do more to improve health and prolong life in these

countries than any single action in the whole field of

preventive medicine."

P;1410...V
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Further, the OTA report adds, 'tobacco is know to

.

contributp more heavily to the number of cancer deaths than any

other.single substance."_

Members of this Committee, I urge you and your colleagues

in both Houses of the Congress to pass this measure into publice-

law as quickly as your considerations and pfocesses will

al/ow. The American Cance'r Society and I believe this bill can

make a difference to the health of our country. We look to you

to help us in this crusades

1/The Health Consequences of Smoking -- Cancer --, A Report of

the Surgeon General, U.S. Departyp Of Health ana Human

Services, OFfice on Smoking and Health, February 22, 1982, P-
.

4-7.

2/ 1982 Cancer Pacts 6 Figures, American Cancer Society, Inc.,

19.

2/ Dangers of Smoking, American Cancer Society, Inc., 1980, p.

57 a 66-68.

1/ Staff Report on the Cigarette Advertising Investigationi,

Federal Trade Commission, May, 1981, p. 3-45.
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Introdudlon

Why do some teen-age Arts and young women smoke,
while others do not smoke? This is a major question
facing the antismoking forces in the country. For all
around there are signs that even as the adult population
of the country is beginning to curtail its cigarette smoking,

the nation's young, specifically teen-age girls and young
women, are now more likely to smOke and 'to smoke more

tha in the past.

Many theories have been develoPed to explain this
phenomenon, including; the women's liberation
movement, the increased number of young women
entering the work place, and the intensive advertising
efforts of the cigarette industry targeted at this audience.

Yet, little specific information has been available from the
young people themselvesincluding the extent of their
cigarette snioking, who are the smokeri and nonsmokers,
their attitudes kowards and motivations for smoking, and

most important of allpresent and potential bafflers to
cigarette smoking.

With the belief that this kind 'of information was vital not
only to their own antismoking efforts, but to concerned
parents, edicators, public health officials, community
leaders and government authorities, the American Cancer
Society sponsored this study. It's purpose is not merely to
assess the incidence of cigarette smoking among these
groups, but to understand the difnamics of what is

occurring and what steps the American Cancer Society
other antismoking forces can take to reverse this

trend.

79
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How theStudy was Conducted 4

The study was carried out in three pheses:

Phase 1: A Literature search of articles and research
studies concerning cigarette smoking among
teen-agers and young women.

Phase II: Focused group discussions with both teen-
agers and young womensmokers and
nonsmokersfor the development of initial
hypotheses and the development of the
questionnaire.

Phase III: The study itself is based on a national
representative sample of 3,009 households,
from which were selected projectable
subsarnples of respondents for the following
groups:

Young Women
(18 to 35 years of age)

Total 559
Smokers 227
Nonsmokers 227
Former smokers 105

feen-age Girls
(13 to 17 years of age)

Total 267.
Smokers 125

Nonsmokers 142

Teen-age Boys
(13 to 17 years of age)

Total 246
Smokers 127
Nonsmoker 119

In all, a total of 1,072 teen-agers and young women were
interviewed in their homes with a lengthy and detailed
questionnaire. In no case was more than one respondent
interviewed per household. Interviewing took place during
the months of October and November, 1975.

80
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Sum Mary' 5

The results of the study point to several imporlant trends
and some surptising findings.

1. Cigarette Smoking Is On The Rise
Among Teen-Age Girls:

From 1969 to4475, cigarette smoking among teen-
age girls has increased at the rate of 23%. Today,
27% of all teen-age girls smoke cigarettes either
occasionally or heavily compared to only 22% in
1969. Translated into people, this increase means
that half a million more teen-age girls are now
smoking. During this same period of time, however,
cigarette smoking among boys levelled off and
remained at the 30% level. What has clearly
happened is that teen-age girls have nearly caught
up with their male counterparte(See Chart l).

2. Teen-age Girls and Young Women Are
Smoking More Heavily Than In The Past:

During this same.period of time, pack-a-day-or-more
smoking has increased fourfold among teen-age girl

smokers. In 1969, 10% of all teen-age girl smokers
smoked at leasea pack a day compared to 39%
now. Boys, on the other hand, cdntinued to smoke at

the same levels asbefore.

The smoking scene among young women more
closely duplicates the pattern for teen-age girls, For
while smoking incidence has shown only a slight
increment among young women (34% in 15; 36%

now), the proportion of heavy smokersOrticularly
really heavy smokershas accelerated sharply.

According to the United States Health Survey,

conducted in 1965, one out of two young women
smokers (51%) were smoking at least a pack of
cigarettes a day. By 1975, the figure was 61% with

the sharpest increase among the more-than-one-
pack-a-day group (up from 9% in 1956 to 25% now).

Currently, then, the locuaof the smoking problem is
among teen-age girls and young women. (See Chart

II).
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3. Yst Ills Antismoking Mssugs
Has Bssn Hoard: i
This increue in the numbers and intensity,of -

cigarette smoking among young women and teen-age
girls has-occurred at a time when these young
people were at least intellectually fullytware of the
hazards of smokfrig.

1

For a substantial majority of the group the message
has tome through loud and clear: *

'
Smoking is as harrnful for women as for men
(74% teen-age girls; 80% young women).

Smoking is is harmful for young people irs well
as for older people (71% teen-age girls; 71%
young women).

It is not safe to smoke low tar cigarettes (56%
teen-age girls; 54% young women).

Smoking during pregnancy Can harm the fetus
(56% teen-age girls; 62% young women).

Among young smokrks, 56%of the tielkage girls and
62% of the young women believe wholly or in part
that smoking is as addictive as illegal drugs. (See
Chart Ill). Yet they still smoke and start to smoke in
greater numbers and with more frquency than in the
Past-
The question is why? Thue trends help to explain
the reasons:

616-362 0 - $2 - 6

,

.,

,

6



78

4. The All Pervasive Smoking Environment:

While young people continue to be aware of the
antismoking message, the situation all around them

, and their own perceptions of who and how many
peopkismoke more than counterbalances the impactx
of what they_have seen, heard or read about the
dangers of.smoking.

For example, among teen-age girl smokers:

82% Of all teen-age girls think of teen-agers as
smokers "rather than nonsmokers.

Two out of three believe that morewomen are
smoking now than a few years ago.

72% of the girls with boyfriends report that their
fellows are smokers.

66% say that half of their friends or more smti.
.

.40 87% smoke with their.parents' knowledge; 34%
%Vitt, their parents' approval.

84% 4have fathers who smoke or smoked; 64%,
mothers.,

Add to...athe fact that

49% of the teen-age girls who smoke report that

their schools have ker" rooms
.where it is permitt up daring the school

day.

An4 68% of the teen-age girls who smoke .

indicate that their own doctors have not warned
them apainst smoking. . -

83
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5. Fewer Antismoking Commercials:

Another key factor too, is that awareness of
antismoking television commercials, has been cut
drastically as a result of.the retrenchment of free
matching time following the baiting of cigarette
advertising on television. In 1969088% of all teen-
agers reported that they had seen Of heard an
antismoking television commercial in the past 4
weeks. Currently, only 48% are exposed to this type
of television spot On the other hand, the kinds of
people identified with cigarette advertising include the
following:

%attractive, sexy,

enjoying themselves, young,

well drea4sed, and healthy.

(See Chart V).

6. Changing Moral !torn's:

Further bolstering the impressions of the al IP
Pervasive smoking environment and especially
helping to explain in part the sharp increase
smokirig among teen-age girls, are the changJ in
the prevailing social norms. For compared to the
teen-age girls; teen-age boys have changed less than
the girls in their attitudes, needs and feelings-about
themselves as far as these relate to smokin*.

With teen'age boys, cigarette smoking cOntinues to
go hand-in-hand with social uneasiness, the need to
be popular with the opposite sex, the urge to prove
one's masculinity. It is an intrin* part of adolescent/
boy rebélliousness,a3 it tias alwayit been.

8
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With.Teen-age girls, the picture which emerges is very
different For in tygs iristance a real change has

occurred in the prevailing social norms and the

differential between boys and girls has been blurred.

-I
The teen-age girls, for example,. are so'cially
considerably more at ease with their own peers,
more "sophisticated" than their male peers, and less

in need of social props. Indeed, the rebelliousness
agaihst adult societyonce far more the province of ,

the boysis now very much a part of the girls' .

environment as well. Girls are joining in with the boys

and smoking pot, drinking alchohbl and getting in

trouble with the authorities. It Is not just in cigarette

4
smoking that the teen-age girls are catching up with .

the boyt. .

7. The New Values:

In general, the teen-age girlsAave been more
influenced by the new youtlWalues than the boys.

These "New ,Values", 'originally generated by college

youth in the 'sixties and now pernleating the majority

of all young people l represent the bceakdown of
previous moral norris and are ch Oterized by the

rejection of authority, emphasis n the emotional

rather than the rational, freer xual morality, a

strong aent on self and se Mulfillment, the

aceee
styla

The new youth values do not necessarily cause.more

young,people to smokebut they make it easier,to

do what one wants to do and to resist argumentV-t\
T 4/

against doing it .

f illegal.drugs and a more informal life

, 711. Now Morality" by Danial Yankalovich, McGraw-Hill, 1974.

c
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Opportunitiss for Chant le:

Yet, interestingly, opportunities for curbing smoking
among young people are also intrinsically tied in with
these same new values. For the very emphasis on
the importance of self, the need to be an
independent thinker, the importance of physical well-
being can provide more effeclive incentives against
smoking than the more traditional threat of future
health hazards. These, then, are the major trends

10 revealed by the study. lAffollows in capstilated
form, are additional sig

nxtii
t and interesting '

.faklings relating especially to the 6reased incidente.
:44,-N4"

volume of smoking among leenade girls and
.40.162 "men.

.

.
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Findings in Brief 11

The Teen-age Smoker

a) The Self-tonfident Toon-age Girl Smoker:
Even among her girl peers, the teen-age girl smoker
stands out as more confident, outgoing and very
much at ease in her own social grouping.

Parties are her metier. One measure of both her
sophistication and her value structure i the fact that
31% of the girl smokers (ages 13 to 17.years old)
havi already had sexual relations. Instead, It is the

"teen-age girl nonsmoker who tends to be quieter,
have less self-confidence, or self-esteem, and is shy
with the,boys. The nonsmoker is a more devoted,
te4evisiOn viewer and reader. Sexually, too, she is far
less precocious than the smoker. Slightly more than a
third (38%) have boyfriends and Just 8% have had
sexual relations. (See Chart VII).

b) Rebi;fflousness and.SmokIng: Cigarette
smoking among teen-age girls, however, does appear
to be highly kkintified with an antiauthority, rebellious
syndrome in terms of the adult world. This cuts across
parents, school, institutionsand even impacts
receptivity to antismoking messagesemanating from
adult authorities. .

One out of two of the teen-age girl smokers
(53%) are annoyed by the so-called experts who
tell them what is good for them (34% teen-age
girl nonsmokers).

Half of.the teen-age girl smokers 'agree that,there
is too Much regulation of people's lives (39%
nonsmokers).

Almost half of the teen-age girl smokers want to
do something entirely different from what their
parents want them to do (26% nonsmokers).

4

8
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One out of three of the teen-age girl smokers
(32%) hate school (16% nonsmokers); 29% have
been suspended or expelled from school
compared to 4% of the nonsmokers.

a) Cigarette Smoking, Alchohol, and Marijuana: An
even more overt indication of the rebellious nature of
the teeri-agegirl smokef is her use of alchohol and
marijuana:

Among teen-age girl smokers, 81% drink alcohol
compared to 42% of their nonsmoking girl peers.

Almost a third of the teen-age girl smokers (32%)
sometimes drink to get drunk compared to 4% of
the nonsmokers.

One out of four of the girl smokers (25%) use
mariluana compared to only 3% of the
nonsmokers.

Among teen-age boy smokers, the same trends are
apparent Yet for all of these current forms of
rebellion, the old wood shed image of sm6king as a
sYmbol of assertiveness apparently lingers on among
teen-age smokerswhile the concept of nonismoking
as proof of nonconformity or rebellion against the adult
world, societY, advertising or big business has not
caught on. (See Chart4Illl).

d) Smoking as a Social Asset: For the teen-age boy
smokers out to prove their masculinity, cigarettes are
still regarded as a social aeset This is not the case,
however, with the teen-age girl smokers. Instead a
mahority (52%) consider smoking.to be a social
drawback. This may make it easier for her to quitbut
is,also one other sigh of her flaunting and rebellious
spirit (See Chart IX).

,
, 8
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) A Permissive Adult World: Smoking as a form of
adolescent rebellion becomes more difficult to
comprehend in a society in which many adults take a
very lenient, if not tolerant posture, regaiding tean-age
smoking. Parents know about their teen-age daughters
smoking (87%) and 34% cOndone it Many schools
are providing special "smoker" rooms in line with
changing timeseven though there are signs that the
availability of legal smoking places in the school plant
appears to be directly correlated with an increase in
teen-age girls smoking. Among teen-age girl smokers,
49% report that their schools have regular smoking ,
areas compared to 32% of the nonsmokers. (See

Chart X).

t) Doctors and Smoking Among Young People:
Nor do most members of the medical profession play

an Wive role as antagonists of smoking among young
people. For example, 70% of the teen-age girls and
73% of the young women report that tjoir personal
doctor c4clinid has not cautioned them at all about the

dangers of smoking.

'
g) Peer Pressure: Peer relationships, long identified
as a major factor in teen-age smoking, continue to
operate as a dominant influence with teen-age girl

smokers, for exampler flocking together.
'

Among teen-age girl smokers, 69% repOrt that

half or more of their male friends and 66% report
that more than half of their female friendsAsmoke.
Among teen-age girls who d6 not smoke, only
32% claim that half of their male friends smoke
and 19% more than half of their girl friends
smoke. '

Generally too, among the girls and young women,
smokers usually come in pairs.

I
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72% of the teen-age-girl smokers have
boyfriends who smoke compared tO 27% of the
nonsmokers.

68% of the young women smokers have
bbyfriends or girl friends who smoke, compared
to 41% of the nonsmokers. (See Chart Xl).

h) Everybody Smokes: The all pervasive smoking
environment, according to the teen-ageri, is'not
limited to their families and friendsbut tort whole
world all around them. Most teen-agerss kers and
nonsmokersconsider smoking to be a majority
phenomenon among their own peer group, as well as
among most adults. Teachers, executives, housewives,
feminist leadersall are thought of as smokers.
Doctors and athletes are the only two exceptions.
(See Chart XII).

Then, too, there are the cigarette ads which help to
reinforce the image.of the cigarette smokers as
attractive, (68%); enjoying themselves, (65%); well
dressed, (62%); sexY. (52%); young, (50%); and
healthy, (50%). (See qhart XIII).

I) The Smoking Rationale: Teen-age smokers, like
adults, have developed their own rationale for
continuing to smoka. Sure snioking is bad for youbut
still and all:

The dangers of smoking are exaggerated for my
age group (52% teen-age girl smokers; 54%
teen-age boy smokers).

There's too much talk these days about things
that are bad for you (43% teeh-age girl smokers;
48% teen-age boy smokers). ,

And then there's air pollution which islust as
important a cause of lung cancer as cigarettes
(teen-age girl smokers, 67%; teen-age boy
smokers, 31%).
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j) Barriers to Smoking: Teen-age girl nonsmokers
divided intolwo almost equal groupsthe
Traditionalists and the Vulnerables.

It is easy to understand why the "fraditiohalisti" do
not smoke. They are strongly religious, resOectful of ,
authority, and net accepting the new 4alues. They also
shy away from their peers who smoke, drink or use
-marijuana.

The other group of nonsmokers, the "vulnerables" are
very different, for they share many of the same values
as the smokers, and are highly exposed to the total

smoking environment.

On the surface, the vulnerables appear to be ready
candidates for the next wave of new smokers:

One out of two of the vulnerables report that half

or more of their male friends smoke.

A third indicate that at least 50%'of their girl
friends smoke.

A majority of them have one or more parent who
smoke, half have siblings who smoke.

Yet the "Vulnerables" do not smoke.

Instead they have found, consciously or unconsciously,

some strong barriers to smoking. These are:

The importance of being in control of one's life. ,

Emphasis on cihysiciil fitness and well being:

Concern about the addictive nature of cigarettes.
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And, perhaps most of all by becoming militant
antismokerspeopie who are angered by other
smokers, upset by smoke filled rooms, and ready
for increased regulation of smoking.

In other words', thu are finding a new cause and a --1"
peer identification.r4ee Chart XIV).

k) Antismoking Education: Many teen-agers have
attended antismoking programs including 48% of the
teen-age girl smokers and 49% of the nonsmokers. A
large majority (84%) have found them meaningful,
including, however, most of those who are now
smoking. The problem is one of timing. Six out Of ten
girl smokers, for example, have started to smoke
before they are thirteen years of agebut have only
attended smoking education classes or programs in
the seyenth, eight, ninth, or tenth grides of school
'when it is already too late. (See Chart XVI).

II: Young Women Smokers

a) An Inclopendent4Undod 'Group: Many of the
same qualities which distinguish teen-age girl
smokers from nonsmokers are also apparentbut to
a lesser degreebetween young women smokers
and nonsmokers. The women smokers also tend to
be. more social and outgoing, antiauthority and
strongly subjected to the total smoking environment
-and "peer" pressure. Over two-thirds of all young
women smokers (68%) hive boy friends or husbands
who smoke compared to less than half (41%) of the
nonsmokers. Their Mends also smokeand they are
somewhat more likely to have come from homes in
Which one or both of their parents smoked.
Compared with their own nonsmoking peers, the
young women smokjrs are readier to:

Have fun now and forget about the future (46%
smokers; 36% nonsmokers).

9?
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Rationalize that everything you do these days
seems to give you cancer (46% smokers; 32%

nonsmokers).

Feel that there is too much regulation of
people's lives (41% smokers; 32% nonsmokers).

Believe we are close to finding a cure for cancer

(50% smokers; 45% nonsmokers).

Yet they also have:one strong characteristic which
could be used Ewan integral part of any antismoking'
effort-61% Of the young women smokers express a

"strong need to be independent compared to 52% of

their nonsmoking contemporaries. (See Chart XVII).

b. Working Woinon: Contrary to the theory that the

increase in heavy smoking among young women is.

correlated with the greater number of women who are

now employed, the findings of the study shOw that it

is the housewivesnoUthe working womenwho are
,niore likely to be the heavy smokers.

Among young women smokers, 39% are employed

full or-part timeand 61% are housewives (or

unemployed Or students). The pattern for nonsmokers

is parallel (37% are employed; 63% are housewives).

A look, however; at the inCidence of heavy smoking

arid the myth about cigarettes and working women is

refuted.

Arming housewives who smoke, 66% are heavy
smokers; dnong working women, 53% are heavy.

smokers.

Interestingly, it is also the woriiing women who afford

the best opportunity for converting smokers into

nonsmokers, accentuating the desirability of
antismoking campaigns directed at the workplace.

(See Chart XVIII).

17
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The myth fait the Women's Liberat& movement
encouraging cigarette smoking is also not
substantiated by the findings of the'study for eqdal
numbers of young women smokers (70%) and
nonsmokers (69%) identify stnrgly or partially with
the Women's Liberation movement

i
c. Smoking and Pregnancy: A critical period to ,
reach young women smokers is not only during
pregnancy but-in the months after the woman has
given birth. A majority of young women smokers'
(62%) believe that smoking can harm the fetus. Even
more important, during pregnancy, 67% of the
smokers have either cut back (32%) or stopped
smoking (35%). Unfortunately, however, the
abstinence does not hold upfor here they are back
smoking once again.

d. Smoking and Children: Several years ago, when
antismoking commercials were far more widely
available on television, young children were reported
to be among the main crusaders against their
mother's smoking habits. Today, over half of the
young women smokers wifil children (56%) report that
their children are bothered By their smokingbut
theri is little evidence that the children are as militant
in their efforts as in the past Among former smokers,
for example, very few mention that their children were
a major Influence in getting them to quit.

. The Former Smokers: While progress has been
made in getting some young women to quit ir
smokingthe main success has been among the light
rather than the committed smoker. Most of these
former smokers (63%) smoked less than a pack a
day. There aro, however, important lessons to be
learned from the former smokers:

,
Most did quit of their own accord, (50%), some
were encouraged by their boy friends or
husbands (28%), a handful by their doctors.

6 641,c
, ,
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c.

One out of tvio used willpower rather than
substitutes such as candy or gum.

7Almost none of this age group of young women
smokers reported that they gained weight

Most found immediate gratification from quitting.

The feeling of being in control of One's life, an
increased sense of physical wellbeing, the end of
cigarette bad breath and smell, and money saved,
proved to be stronger reinforcements than even the
insurance they are buying against future disease and
ill health. (See Chart XIX). .

f. The Potential for Quitting: Most young smokers
want to quit Among young women, 70% can be
classffied as "potential quitters"T-smokers who
express concern over their smoking and some
eagerness taquit. Among teen-age girls, 58% of the
smokers can similarly be classified as "potential for
quitting." (See Chart XX). 1

, V
Only a minority, then, are committed to continued
smoking. This group expresses little or no concern
over their own smoking and tends to deny the -
dangers of the habit. Indeed, everything about the
group suggests that they will strongly resist any or all

attempts to get them to give up their cigarettes.
_

The potential quitters, on the other hand, are nail way
there, but still need help to 'conquer their smoking
habits:

Two out of three of the potential quitters (65%)
believe that once you start smoking it is
impossible to stop.

A majority (60%) agree that smoking is as
addictive as illegal drugs,

. Over hatf (57%) are vrorried about their weight

. Or

95).
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Two out of three (67%) have boy friends or
husbands who now smoke, suggesting the need
for more emphasis on "quitting couples."

Potential quitters among the young women
smokers also are more likely to be employed,
pointing.to the advantages of antismoking
programs directed at the workplace.

They are also mire involved with clubs and group
activities again indicating the desirability of
widespread antismoking effortp. Most of all, however,
many of these potential quitters are asking for the
help offered by more strict regulation of their own and
other people's smoking.

Among the potential young women quitters:

- 55%belleve that it is impoctant to take special
measures to protect ou?ealth./

49% want to see stxicter regulations of where
one can and cannot smoke in public.

'31% want to see cigarette advertising in
newspapers and magazines regulated.'

They are, in otheryords, looking for allies and
support from the all-important militant nonsmokers who
support the same causes even more strongly: '

4

4
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Teen-agers and Young Women

The Pius Side
Smoking is a minority
phenomenon
'Teen-age girl smokers
do not consider
smoking to be a social
asset
Smoking is not a
necessary social
propat least for the
girls
The "evils" of-smoking
are known
The militant
nonimokera new
form of peer pressure
Most smokers want to
quit
Most young smokers
are not Tt committed

The Ne Values:
emphasis on self, self-
control, self-fulfillment
Importance of physical
appearance and fitness

The example of the
former smokers

Pregnancy,and
smoking
Children as allies

Fear of gaining weight
is not aminhibiting
factor
The readiness for
antismoking regulation

The Minus Side
The increase in
smoking
The all pervasive
smoking environment
"Bverybody smokes"
theory
Health hazerls are
seen as exaggerated
for teen-agers
Relaxation of
restrictions at home

Boys still smoke to
expressiheir
masculinity
Smoking rooms ih
schools .

Cutback, in television
antismoking advertising
Peer pressure; smokers
come in pairs and
groups
Parents who smcike.

The advertised image
of the smoker
Doctors don't speak up

The New Values:
Antiauthority, emphasis
on the emotiopal rather
than the rational
Belief that Smoking is
addictive makes
q6itting harder
The problems of being
a housewife
encourages young
women to smoke
"The cure is jtist
around the corner"
Outch for smokers`
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CIGARETTE SMOKING TRENDS
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Chart 2
THE GIRLS ARE SMOKING MORE THAN THE BOYS

Base:Cigarette Smokers

911-3117 0 - 82 - 7
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Smoke a pack
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. Ctiall 3
THE ANTISMOKING MESSAGE HAS BEEN HEARD

Base: Tetn-age girls and young women. . .

SO%

,

,

SS% 56%
54%.

,

62%

Teen-Age Young
Girls Women

Smoking is as
harmful for women
as for men,

I,

0
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Teen-Age Young
Gide WS""
Smoking Is as
harmful for young
'people as will as
for older people.

...

Teen-Ago Young
GifIS Women

It Is not sife to
smoke low tar
cigarettes.

Teen-Age Young
Girls Women

Smokfig is as
addictive as
Illegal drugs.

-
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Chaii 4
1HE AU. PERVASIVE SMOKING ENVIRONMENT

114% duo: Toon-age smokors
- 52%

72%

55%
14%

41%

My father Bellew all My Half of my
smokes teen-agers boyfriend friends
et smoksd. smok* smokes.' mkt.

kw Teewape Ød makers wia heyfrkole,

My mother
smokes
or smoksd.

fSAW OR HEARD AN ANTISMOKING Chart 5
COMMERCIAL IN LAST FOUR WEEKS 1969-1975

Sim Toan-ageboys and glrla
Saw or heard
an antismoldng
commercial

Oki not see
or hear
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commeicial
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or see an
antismoking
commercial
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Chart 6

TEEN-AGE GIRL SMOKERS ARE MORE ADVANCED SOCIALLY
THAN THFIRMALE PEERS

TEEN-AGE SMOKERS .

GIds Boys
%

Going to parties and
dances is a favorite 715 Si
leisure time activity

It's important to me to
be popular with the 4$ SI

opposite sex

Smoking Is a social 37 55

asset

Meeting new people and
being In anew r
situation makes me
nervous

32 45

Chart 7

THE SELF CONFIDENT TEEN-AGE GIRL SMOKER .

TEEN-AGE GIRLS
Smokers Nonsmokers

Parties are a favorite 75 511

leisure time activity

Have a boy friend 84 3$

Reading is a favorite 3S 61
le re time actMty

I hen feel I'm not 34 SO

v ry good at things

ting new people makes
meiervous

.

32 46

have had,sexual relations 31

;
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CIGARETTE SMOKING AND
TEEN-AGE GIRL REBELUOUSNESS

Chart 8

\

I

---7...

Drink alcohol

Sometimes drink to
g,drunk

Have been suspended or
expelled from school

Use marijuana

Ran away from home

TEEN-AGE GIRLS
'Smokors Nonsmokers

% % 1

$1

32

29

25

25

42

4

4

3
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SMOKING AS A SOCIAL ASSET
Chart 9

TEEN-AGE SMOKERS. Girls Boys
%

Smoking is asocial asset 37 55

Smoking is a drawback 52 31

Neither one/both 13 11

,
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SCHOOLS WITH SMOKING AREAS

-.,

49%

..,

32%

To4-44 Old TNIAim GM
Smokers Noismokort

Chart 10
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Chart 11
SMOKING AMONG PEERS

TEEN-AGE GIRLS
Smokers Nonsmokers

% . 5%

t

Boyfriend smokes 72 27

Half of mate friends N 32

smoke

Half of female friends IN 19

smoke
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MOST TEENAGERS THINK
Chart 12

ALMOST EVERYBODY SEEMS TO SMOKE

Usua NyThirikof se
Smokers Rather then
Nonsmokers

TEEBAGERS
Girls Boys
% %

...-
Teen-agers 112 $4

Women executives 69 70

Housewives 67 54

Feminist leaders 64 - 76

Doctors 30 30

Athletes -
. 9

11

Teachers SS 67

Chart 13

KINDS OF PEOPLE SHOWN IN CIGARETTE ADS

Teen-age Girl
. Smokers

%

Attractive 69
..

Enjoying themselves se

Well dressed as

. Se 54

YoU g 50 .

Healthy 49 -
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BARRIERS TO SMOKING
Chart 14

How "Vulnerable" Teen-age girl Nonsmokers Differ From Smokers

I am the most antismoking
person in my family

Being In &smoked filled
room annoys me

Believe smoking cigarettes
is a serious health hazard

Being around smokers is a
serious health hazard

Enjoy sports

Would welcome more
ethphuis on physical
fitness

Support regulating smoking
in public

-

Difference betwen
"vulnerabW non-

smokers and current
smokers

++
,

Each + represents a 10%
difference of "vulnerable"
nonsmokers over smokerii...

...- ,Chart 15

,

THE MILITANT NONSMOKER

TOTAL NONSMOKERS

I find being in a smoke
filled room very annoying

I favor regulating where
smokers can and cannot smoke

I favor regulating advertising
of cigarettes in newspapers
and magazines

Being around peotile who smoke

Teen-age
Girls

Young
Women

,
110 70

5$ 65

47 42

211 30
is a seriouthealth hazard

.

29



,

(

_

101 .

MOST ANTISMOKING EDUCATION
IS TOO LITTLE AND LATE

,.

TEEN-AGE GIRL
SMOKERS

%

s.

er

Chari16

Started to smoke before 60
13 years of age

Attended antismoking 46
education prograNn
school

Attended antismoking
education in 6th grade
(12 years old)
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. Chart17
YOUNG WOMEN SMOKERS VERSUSNONSMOKERS

61%

50% Smokers Nonsmokers

46% 46%

Have A Strong We Are Close To Have Fun Now Everything ,
Need To Be Finding A Cure And Forget You DaThese Days
Independent For Cancer About The Future Seems To

30 Give You Cancer
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HEAVY SMOKING AMONG -
Chart 18

HOUSEWIVES VERSUS WORKING WOMEN

Smoke A Pack Or Mors
Of Cigarattes A Day

154

Houseveves ea

Working Women 53

WHO ENCOURAGED YOU

Chart 19
TO QUIT?

No one/did on own 50

Husband/boy friend 211

Relative (parent, sister, etc.) 13

Doctor 3

Friends 2

Children 2

Other 2

COnfirmed

Smokers

Potential
Quitters

POTENTIAL FOR QUITTING

Tion-aga Girls Young Women

MA& GOVINOMIST MIMING Of OWL 1077 241,141/1037 1-1

'f;ttl'
107

Chart 20

Confirmed

Smokers -

Potential

Quitters
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DANGERS
,OF SMOKING

*
BENEFITS.

OF QUITTING
& RELATIVE RISKS

OF REDUCED EXPOSURE
REVISED EDITION

*
An up-to-date summary -of the key scientific and,
medical studies, plus new idormation on
economics, psychology, pharmacology and other
aspects of tobacco smoking and health.

51

American Cancer Society, Inc.
777ilircl Avenue, New York, New York 10017
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INTRODUCTION

Within the past 15 years, the habit of smoking tobacco
mainly in pigaretteshas been universally condemned by authori-
tative medical groups and government medical officers as a leading
cause of death and a major public health problem in deve1dped
countries:

* "As imp:Want a cause of death as were the great'epidemic
diseases that affected previous generations in this country." [British
Royal College of Physicians, 197W

' * "Thelargest preventable cause of death in America.' [Sec-
retary Joseph A. Califano, Jr., U.S. Department of Health, Educa-
tion and Welfare, 197912

* "No longer any doubt.... a major and certainly removable
causee'of ill-health and premature death.* [World Health Organiza-
tion, 1979r

The purpose of this booklet is to summarize the.latest-
-

formation about smoking and health, derived from thousands of
epidemiological, biological, pharmacological, pathological and
other studies.

The present bboldet is an update of the one published by
the American Cancer Society in 1972 under the title "The Dangers
of Smoking, The Bengfits Quitting' which summarized key
studies, books, and major surveys starting with that of the laid-
mark-report Smoking and Health of the Advisory Committee to
the Surgeon General of the U.S. Public Health Service in 1964.

On the 15th anniversary of the famous 1964 report, Janu-
ary, 1979, the present Surgeon General, Ji.dius B. Richmond, M.D.,
issued a new report titled SMOKING& HIALTH composed of 22
detailed scientific papers compiled by 12 agencies in the Depart-,
ment of Health, EdUcatioa and Welfare arid reviewed by scientists
recognized as experts'in the differedfields.

The then Secretary of HEW, Joseph A. Califano, Jr., wrote
in the intToduction that the new report 'demolishes the claims

I. Smoking Is Health Now. Report of Royal College of Physician: of London/Pitman
Publishing Co., London, England, WM P., 9.

2. Stnoltisig & Health, A report of the Surgeon General, U.S. Dept. of Health, Educed=
& Welfare, Washington. D.C., US. Government Priding Mee, 1979, p. fi.

3. Controlling the Smoking Epidemic, Wodd Health Organizatiou, Geneva. Switzerland.
1979, pp. 74

440"
*
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made by'cigarette manufacturers and . . . others . . . that the sci-
entific evidence was sketchy, that no link between smoking and
cancer was 'proven.' ... Today there can be no doubt that smoking
is truly slow-motion suicide."

. .
,

This, booklet The Dangers of Smoking, The Benefits of
Quitiing and Reduced Exposure adds,4o the material covered in
the original The Dangers of Smoking, The Benefits of Quitting, the
latcist findings in the 1979 Surgeon General's report, and other
HEW reports published since 1972, plus those of .the 1979 report,
"Controlling the Smoking Epidemic," of the World Health Organ-
ization, and a number of recent individual studies.

Only the most pertinent investigations are citedAnd, in
many cases, the findings of many are merged. Where a single
study is described directly, the reference is given in a footnote;
where several are abridged or described from another source, a
general page re1erence4given to the survey publication in which
the material appears. .

See Bibliography at end of this booklet for sources of these
general references marked [SG] [Diehl] [Royal] [WHO].

,

6
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DANCERS, BENEFITS, RELATIVE RISKS

,.

Following is the first chart to codify in simplified terms the
dangers of smoking, the benefits of quitting, and the relative risks
of smoking low tar/nicotine/filter-tipped cigarettes.

All tobacco-smoking damage seems,to be cl,ofe related: to
the age at which the smoker started, the number of cigarettes, pipes
or cigars smoked per day, the length of time smoking has taken
place, whether or not the smoker inhMes, how deeply the smoker
inhales, bow much of the cigarette ( or pipe or cigar) is smoked,
the tar and nicotine content of the smoke. Thus, any diminution,
or change, in any of the variable elements would affect the smoker's
risk; and quitting entirely will reduce risks progressively over a
period of time, providing irreversible tissue changes have not
taken place.

The smoker whq quitstalso. achieves many immediate
health benefits. The first is a rapid decline in the carbon monoxide
level in the blood within twelve hours. Headaches and stomach-
aches caused by smoking disappear. Stamina and vigor improve.
Often ex-smokers nolice a keener sense of taste and smell.

But there are many more importaht, long-term health and
life-saving benefits from quitting cigarettes. See chart on the fol-
lowing two pages.
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RISKS -

OF SMOKING

ask: ihodssol
aspelosty. 25-year-old 2-
pack a day smokers have life
expectancy 83 years shorter
thin non-smoking contem-
poraries..0ther smoldng levels:
proportional risk.

Mt Lose easeor. Smoking
cigarettes "major cause in
both men and women."

(5Gom

Risk: tarps team. in all
smokers lincluding pip* and
cigar) it's 2.9 to 17.7 times
that of nonsmokers.

Mk Nos* mess. Cigarette
smokers have 3 to 10 times as'
many oral cancers,as non-
smokers. Pipes, cigars, chew-
ing tobacco also major risk
factors. &OM seems
synergistic carcinogen with
smoking.

Risk: Como otosopkops,
Cigarettes, pipes and cigf
increase risk of dying of esoph-
ageal cancer about 2 to 9
times. Synergistic relationship
between smoking and alcohol.

al* Castor of *SW
Cigarette smokers have 7 to
10 times risk of bladder
cancer as nonsmokers. Also
synergistic with certain
exposed occupations: dye-
stuffs, etc!

list Claw epergnes.
Cigarette smokers have 2 to 5
times risk of dying ot pan-
creatic cancer as nonsmokers.

log

BENEFITS
OF QUITTING

ilosollt: Radom tisk ol
promatirs dootk cumulatively.
Atter 10-15 years, ex-smokers'
risk approaches that of those
who've never smoked.

Want: Gradual decrease In
risk. Affor 10-15 Pam risk
appruchos that of MN who
um smoked.

Weft Ordeal Walks of
, risk after smoking cessation.

Rados nasal a* 10
pars.

Welt: Reducing or eliminat-
ing smoking/drinking reduces
risk in first few years: risk
imps to load of sessmookors
I. 10-15 years-

Ilsaellt: Since risks are dose
related, reducing or eliminat-
ing sinoking/drinking :kohl
hap risk-milking effect

Worn: Risk docreases
gradually to that of sos-
smokers ever 7 pars.

Weft Sincithere is evidence
of dose-related risk, reducing
or eliminating smoking should
have risk-reducing effect.

I ItAt3

RELATIVE RISKS:
FILTER-TIPPED,
LOW T/N BRANDS

Rodocid risk of lea& from
certain diseases (see below)
implies increased life ex-
pectancy.

Filter tips Woes risk, but It
is still 5 times that of non-
smogers. Low T/N brands
reduce male risk by 20%,
female risk by 40%. .-
Filter tips Woes rlsk 24 to 49
moot.

No identified benefit

No identified benefit

No identified benefit

No identified benefit,
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RISKS
OF SMOKING

Risk: Ceram bud disuse.
Cigarette smoking is major
factor; responsible for 120,000'
excess U.S. deaths from
coronary heart disease (tHD)
each year.

Risks: Omit konliltis sod
poimuary sinpkysonts. Ciga-
rette smokers have 4-25 times
risk of death from these dis-
eases as nonsmokers. Damage
seen in lungS of even young
smokers.

Risks: Mirk* sod low
woiglit. Smoking mothers have
more stillbirths and babies of
low birthweightmore
vulnerable to disease and
death.

Risks: Mires ol minion
mothers smaller, roar-
Infested Pa TOPPI lad
aMalit sun years aftor
Wt.

Mg: Mak ilex, Cigarette
smokers get more peptic
ulcers and die more often of
them; cure is More difficult
in sniokers.

Risk: Allergy aosi impairmsot
of Mono system.

Risks: Altsrs pitarmacoloOe
Outs of marry medicine,
lbws* tells sod greatly
Wrongs risk ol thrombosis
wfth mal contrauplivos.

94-317 0 - $2 - "
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BENEFITS
OF QUITTING

Skarply decreases
risk attm en yur. After 10
years ex-smokers' risk is
same as that of those who
never smoked.

Witt: Cask aod :prism
disappear during first few
weeks. Lay tonna may
improve and rate of deteriora-
tion slow down.

boolit: Women who stop
smoking before 4th month of
pregnancy eliminate risk of
stillbirth sot low birtiratigkt
caused by smoking.

Unlit: Since children of non-
smoking mothers are bigger
and more advanced socially,
inference is that met souk*,
dada, patent,/ might rail
Ink oodordnolopod cbildroa.

Bondi: Ex:smokeri get
uciers but these are mors
likely to Mal replay and
esmplotsly than those of
smokers.

built: Since these are direct,
imjnediate effects of smoking,
they are obviously avoidable
by not smoking.

WM: Majority
comments sinstod by smok-
ing Mom to normal attar *
cessation: Nonsmokers on Pill
have much lower risks of
thrombosis.

RELATIVE RISKS:
FILTER-TIPPED
LOW T/N BRANDS

Low T/N male makers bad
12 posteatismer CHO rats,
female low T/N smokers 19
percent lower than high TIN
smokers.

No identified benefit

No identified benefit

No identified benefit

No Identified benefit

No identified benefit

9
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IMORTALITY, DISABILITY ANDCHRONIC ILLNESS

The most direct result of smoking is visible in the differ-
ences between the death rates of smokers and nonsmokers in the
same age groups, and in the differences in the number of years of
life between the two groups. .

"Death rates are uniformly higher among smokers than
among nonsmokers, in both sexes, and whatever the age at death.
The excess mortality of cigarette smokers is proportionately
greater at ages 45-54 than at yo'unger or older ages. A smoker
doubles his risk of dying before age 65." [WHO 1979, p. 9]

Death Rates
Among smokers, the death rates from all causes increase

with the number of cigarettes smoked per day, the number of years
the smoker has smoked, and the earlier the age at which smoking
started. Other variables include depth of inhalation, tar and nico-
tine levels of the smoke, and tile number of puffs per cigarette. All
of these contribute to the degree of risk involved in smoking.
[SG 1979, p.2-20-25]' .

In eight major prospective studies of about two million peo-
ple, cigarette smoking is associated with a 61 percent average
increase in overall death rates. In the two most vulnerable age
groups, 35-44 and 45-54, the death rates of Smokers are 86 percent
higher and 152 percent higher, respectively. [SC 1979, p. 2-11]

The death rate for a given number of cigarettes smoked is
higher among inicalers than among those who don't inhale.
Ischemic heart disease, lung cancer, and chronic obstructiVe lung
disease are not as likely to develop in individuals who do not inhale
tobacco. smoke. . .,.

Del,Rutes: Male
For groups of men smoking fewer than 10 cigarettes per day,

of the types prevalent until the 1960's, the death rate is about 34
percent higher than for nonsmokers; between 10 and 19 cigarettes
per day, it is 70 percent higher; between 20 and 39 ciguettes per
day, the death rate is 96 percent higher, and for those who smoke

Mote: The lan Surgeon General's RMOd k Paginated hg chanters, rather than
consecutively. The chapter numbers are underlined to distinguish them from the
page numbers. .

10
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40 cigarettes or more a day, the death rate is 123.percent higher
than for ponsmokers. [Hammond, E. C., Horn, D., Smoking and
Death RatesReport on forty-four months of follow-up on 187,783
men. Part I, Total Mortality; JAMA 166: 1159-72, 19581 The death
rate of smokers is substantially higher fox men who started before
age 20, than for thosewho started after age 25.

Low tar/nicotine cigarette smokers have lower mortality
rates than medium or high tar/nicotine cigarette smokers; how-
ever, overall death rates of low tar and nicotine ( less than L2 mg
nicotine and less than 17.8 mg. tar) cigarette smokers are 52 per-
cent higher than for nonsmokers.

Death Rates: Female
Women who smoke cigarettes have a significantly higher

death rate than-those who have never smoked regularly. As with
men, the relationship between death and smoking is directly re-
lated to the number of cigarettes and the duration of the smoking
habit.

The overall mortaliti rates are somewhat lower for women
smokers than for male smokers of the same age. This reflecti lower
past exposure to cigarette smoke, such 2S starting smoking later,
smoking cigarettes with lower tar and nicotine content, and smok-
ing fewer cigarettes per day than men.

As women are beginning to smoke earlier.and smoke more,
however, their smoking-related illnesses are increasing.

Nornial Death Rate and Excess Deaths
For each age group there is an expected deith rate per

100,000 population for persons who have never smoked. The differ-
ence between the number of deaths of smokers, and the number of
deaths expectedbased on nonsmokers' death ratesare "excess
deaths."

For men between the ages of 35 to 44 who smoked ciga-
rettes, the excess number of deaths is 33 percent; for ages 45-54,
more than 40 percent. In other words, if no one smoked, there
would be at least 35 percent fewer male deaths between ages 35
and 54. [Hammond, 5. C. Smoking in relation'to the death rates of
one million men and women. In Haenszel, W. ( Editor ). Epidemi-
ological Approachei to the Study of Cancer and Other Chronic
Disease. U.S. Public Health Service, National Cancer Institute

3 6
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Monograph 19, 1906, pp. 127-204. Kahn, H. A,The Dorn study of
smoking iind mortality among US. veterans: report on 8% years
of observation. In Haenszel, W. op. cit., pp. 1-128]

Smoking-Related Deaths '

"It bas been calculated that in countries where smoking has
been a widespread habit, it is responsible for 90 percent of lung

cancer deaths, for 75 percent of bronchitis deaths, and for 25 per-
cent of ischemic heart disease deaths under 65 years of age in men,'
In women the proportions may be somewhat less." [WHO 1979,

p. 10]

Life Expectancy
A 25-year-old, two-pack-a-day smoker of cigarettes of the

type prevalent until the 1960's has a life expectancy 8.3 years
shorter than his nonsmoking counterpart. For groups of men smok-

ing fewer than 10 cigarettes per day, the loss of years of life
expectancy is 4.6 years; smoking 10 to 19 cigarettes a day shortens
the life expectancy by 5.5 years; and smoking 20 fo 39 cigarettes
a day, by 6.2 years. [Hammond, E. C. Life Expectancy of Ameri&tn
Men in Relation to Their Smoking Habits, J.N.C.I., 43: 951-962,

1909.1 (See Table I p. 13 ).

Pipe and Cigar Smoking
Pipe and cigar smOkers have mortality rates similar to those

of cigarette smokers for cancers of the oral cavity, pharynx, larynx,
and esophagus; but they have much Ioper death rates than ciga-

rette smokers (but higher rates than nonsmokers) for cancer of
the lung, ischemic heait disease, and chronic obstructive lung dis-

ease. The differences are thought to be related to differences in
inhalation of smoke. Pipe and cigar smoke is chemically similar to
cigarette smoke, except that the former is alkaline. Since alkaline
smoke is irritating to the respiratory tract, it deters many pipe and

cigar smokers from inhaling. When cigarette smokers switch to
pipes or cigars, however, the tendency for some 'is to centinue

inhaling.

Disability -
. As in mortality, there is a normal or expected rate of dis-

ability: A National Health Survey by the U.S. Public Health
Service calculated that in a single year cigarette smoking caused

an additional or excess of:

12 MORTALITY, DISABILITY AND CMIONIC ILLNESS
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r
Table 1

SURVIVORSHIP OF MEN AGED 25 IN RELATION TO CURRENT NUMBER OE
CIGARETTES SMOKED PER DAY: BASED ON RATES ADJUSTED
TO THE 1959-81 US. LIFE TABLE FOR ALL MALES

Never
smoked Smokers: No. of cikarettes daily

Age All men regularly 1-9 10-19 20.39 40-
(yr-) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)
25 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 .100.0 100.0

30 99.1 99.4 99.1 99.1 99.1 98.8

35 98.2 98.7 98.1 98.1 98.0 97.3

40 96.8 97.8 98.8 98.5 98.5 , 95.1

45 94.6 96.4 94.2 94.0 93.8 91.0

50 91.1 94.4 90.8 90.0 89.3 85.8

55 85.8 90.9 85.9 83.8 82.5 77.7

60 78.1 85.5 77.8 75.3 .73.5 67.1

65 87.8 77.7 67.3 63.4 81.1 54.0

70 55.2 68.7 52.4 I 47.7 45.9 4010

75 41.2 52.3 36.2 33.3 30.3 25.7

80 26.7 35.6 20.8 .18.6 18.1 14.3

85 1318 19.2 7.3 8.5 7.2 8.5
,

90 4.9 7.0 2.2 2.2 2.2 2.1

95 1.0 1.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4
Life

expectancy
(age)

70.2 73.8 89.0 88.1 8714 65.3

Life
expectancy 45.2 48.6 44.0 43.1 , 42.4 40.3

(yr-)
Difference
from N.S.R.

(yr- )
3.4 0 4.6 5.5 6.2 8.3 .

SOURCE: Haminond, E.C., Rogot, E. (SC 1979, p. 2-12)

,
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. . 81 million person-days lost from.work.
145 million person-days spent ill in bed. [SC 1979, pp.

For men'between ages 45 and 64, more than 25 percent of

the number of days of disability were associated with cigarette
smoking.

Another study among women, housewives and Those with
paid jobs, showed that those whd smoked cigarettes spent 17 per-.

cent more days ill in bed than women who have never smoked.

iSmoking and Illness, National Clearinghouse for Smoking and
Health, Public Health Service, May 19671

Chrouit Illness
Taking.the rate of clironic illness of people who had never

smok.ed cigarettes as the baseline, in 1967 ple National Clearing-
house for Smoking and Health estimated that:

. "There are 11 million mxe chronic cases of illness yearly
Q

) in this country than there would Ve",( if no ond smoked).
The same estimate reported that:
Theie are 280,000 More persons who repirt aleart condi-

tion" and estimated One million more cases of chronic bronchitis
and/or emphysema; 1.8 million motb cases of sinusitis; one million

more cases of peptic uleer thini there would be if no one ever
smoked 'cigarettes. (Ibidr

Quitting Reduces Risk
There is ample evidence that giving up cigarettes reduces

the excess risk of mortality: The benefit is cumulative, over a period

of years. After test° 15 years of smoking cessation, the ex-smokers'
risk of dying prematurely is reduced close to that of persons who
have never smoked, as in the following chart ( Figure 1):

14 MORTALITY, D1SABIL/TY AND CHRONIC ILLNESS
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Figure I

, I
ANNUAL PROBABILITY OF DYING FOR EX-SMOKERS WHO QUIT

10-14 YEARS, CURRENT CIGARETTE SMOKERS AND NONSMOK-
,ERS, ACES 55 T.0 64, U.S. VETERANS 1954 COHOI1T, 16-YEAR FOL.
1:0W-UP. -
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StopI 10-14 years
Maiduftim amount smoked 21-39 cigarettes per day

o-0 Current cigarette smokers
Smoking 21-39 cigarettes per day
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SOURCE: Roget, E., Snwking and)fertality Among U.S.
Veterans Inc. Chronic Diseases 2 (89-20311974).
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IILUNG CANCER _

, Smoking cigarettes has been identified by official commis-
sions and scientific studies in many countries ( Australia, Canada,
Denmark, Finland, France, Holland, New Zealand, Sweden,
United Kingdom, the United States ) as the cause of the enormous
rise in the incidence of lung cancer in those count4ies since World
War H, a rise so steep that it has been called an epidemic. Lung
cancer is fatal in about 92 percent of male cases, and in 88 percent
of female cases.

'Increase in Mortality
In 1914, the death rate from lung cancer was 0.7 per

.100,000 population in the United States and Great Britain for both
men and women. By 1950, the lung cancer death rate for U.S. men
had risen to 18.4 per 100,000/year. In 1964, it had mounted to 37.6
and in 1977, to 54.8. Comparable figures for white' females were
4.0 in 1950, 5.9 in 1964 and 14.9 in 1970.

In 1950, there were 18,313 U.S. lung cincer deaths; in 1964,
there were 45,838 lung cancer deaths and in 1977, 90,510 died of
these tumors. For 1980, the prediction is 101,000 such deaths.
Some of this increase is due to an aging popMation. [Vital Statistics
of the United States 1950, 1964, 1977. U.S. Government Printing

Office.] .

However, the U.S. Surgeon General reported in 1971 that
"... cigarette smoking is the main cause of lung cancer in men .. .
in women (it ) accounts for a smaller portion of the cases than in

men." [SG 1971, p. 11] "

In the 1979 Surgeon General's Report, this conclusion was
strengthened: "Cigarette smoking is the major cause of lung cancer ,

in both men and women. [SG 1979, p. 5-31]
An increased risk of lung cancer has been found for everk

. smoking habit investigated. There are dose-response relationships
for developing lung . cancer. That is, the number of cigarettes
smoked per day, the duration of smoking, degree of inhalation, tar
and nicotine content of cigarettes, all contributed an increased

risk of developing lung cancer.
The age at which people start smoking is also related to the

ill effects; men who started smoking before age 15 had a deith rate

16
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from lung Cancer nearly four times higher than those Wbo began
after age 25.

Pipe and cigar smokers have higher lung cancer mortality
rates than nonsmokers, but considerably lower rates than cigarette
smokers. [SG 1970, p. 5-23]

Safety in Stopping

The risk of developing lung cancer increases with age, for
both smokers and nonsmokers; however, the incidence of lung
cancer in cigarette smokers is much higher.

A comforting corollary for those who are able to stop smok-
ing cigarettes; "There Is a decrease in risk ol developing Ring,
cancer, Which occurs over a period of several years.* After.10 to 15
years, the risk of dying of lung cancer for ex-smokers has decreased
to the point where it is only slightly above the risk for nonsmokers
of the same age. All of the major studies show this reduction in
.risk.

Figure 2 on p. 18 shows the diffgrent incidences of bron-
chial carcinoma in smokers and ex-smokers, according to years
stopped, and nonsmokers.

Male/ Female Differences in Lung Cancer
The.difference in lun cancer incidence and mortality be-

tween male and female smo ers has often been cited by critics as
casting doubt on the conn .*.on between cigarette smoking and
lung ttancer. However, it ually takes 15-20 years of smoking to
produce lung can urnan being, and heavy smoking among
women is concentrated in the age groups in which lung cancer is
least prevalent. Difference in hormonal makeup may also play a
part.in the difference in the lung can r rates between male and
female smokers.

Women generally smoke less of each cigarette than men,
thus avoiding the heavy concentration of nicotine and tar in the
last parref the ciprette. On the average, women_also_inhale less
frequently and less deeply than men, and smoke filter-tipped ciga-
rettes with lower tar and nicotine.

Rapid Increase of Female Lung cancer
However, lung cancer mortality is increasing in women

more rapidly than any other cause of death. The lung cancer death
rate in women has risen nearly 1,000 percent since 1930. The U.S.

J 0
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Figumg

N
BRONCHIAL CARCINOMA
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.Fig. 2 Relationship between the Incidence of bronchial carcinonut and
time since cigarette smoking was stopped, compared with the
in continuing smokers and nonsmokers.

Source: Doll, R., Prattical steps lowards the prevention of bronc
corcinetna. Scot. MM. jnL 15:498-447, 1970.
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lung cancer death rate is rising faster today among women than
among men, as more and more women smokers move into the age
groups in which lung cancer becomes prevalent. [Royal, pp. 59-60,
SG 1971, pp. 251-252]

In 1964, lung cancer was the fifth leading cause of death
from cancer in U.S. women. It rose to fourth place in 1967 and to
third place in 1969, passing cancer of the uterus. In 1977, lung
cancer mortality passed that of cancer of the colon and rectum as
the second leading cause of death from cancer in U.S. women. If
present trends are not reversed, during the next decade lung cancer
will become the leading cause of cancer mortality in U.S. women,
exceeding deaths from cancer of the breast.

Sex Differences in Smoking
An English doctor calculated in 1964 that the lifetime con-

sumption of cigarettes among 47-year-old men was four times as
great as among 47-year-old women, and that the male, lung cancer
death rate between ages 45 and 49 was five times as great as among
women. [Royal, p. OM The British note that smokint has been in-
creasing more rapidly among British women than among British
men. [Royal p. 59.]
. Today, although there are still fewer U.S. women smoking

,than U.S. men, the gap is rapidly narrnwint. Cigarette smoking
among U.S. teenage girls has been increasing steadily, so that as of
1974, equal percentages of boys and girl; are smoking cigarettes.
But there have been recent declines as shown in Table II on the
following page.

Over the past decade, there has been a 2.6 percent decrease
in the number of adult U.S. females who snioke cigarettes, whereas
there has been a 13.6 percent reduction in the number of adult
U.S. males imoking cigarettes.

Filter Tips
The public began to become aware of the connection be-

tween cigarettes and lung cancer and other diseases in the early
1950's with the publication of the earliest prospective smokint and
health studies. This growing awareness has had a strong impact on
the smoking hablts of people all over the, world. In the years pa
which key studies and reports were issued, there were drops in- the
overall consumption of cigarettes. And smokers have switched in

.04
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Tabre II

, PERCENT OF TEENAGERVHO ARE CURRENT CIGARETTE
SMOKERS FOR SELECTED YEARS IN THE UNITED STATES

Percent smokers ages 12-18

Girls Boys

1988 14.7

1970 H.9 - 18.5

1972 13.3 15.7T

1974 . 15.3 1 15.8

Source: National Clearinghouse for Smoking and Health. Patterns and
Prevalence .of Teen-age Cigarette Smoking: 1968, 1970, 1972, and 1974.
U.S. Department of Health, Education, aad Welfare, Public Health Ser-
vice, Center for Disease Control, DHEW Publication No. (HSM) 74-8701,
July 1974. 4 pp.

20

-



121

massive mpnbers to filter-tipped cigarettes on the assumption that
removing some of the particulate matter ( tar) and gases from
smoke ought to lower the risk. Today, more than 90.3 percent of
cigarettes sold in the United States are filter-tipped, 25 years age,
filter tips represented less than three percent of the market. Manu-
facturers have steadily changed the types of tobacco in cigarettes
and as a result have decreased the amount of tar and nicotine in all
brands. Thus, today miny brands without filters give off less tar
and nicotine than some filter-tipped brands did a dozen years ago
(See p. 22)

Filters: Long-Tenn Benefit
1

The long-term use (10 years or more) of filter cigarettes is
associated with lower death rates from lung cancer than that asso-
ciated with an equal number of nonfilter cigarettes. This conclusion
comes from a number of studies.

In a study of 552 patients with lung cancer' matched
with 522 controls, Wynder et al, found that those who had switched
to filters 10 yeirs earlier had a lower risk Of lung cancer than those
continuing to smoke the same number of nonfilter cigarettes.
[SC 1971, p. 275.)

Tar and Nicotine

In a repent large prospective study, 897,825 men and women
smokers in 23 states Were divided into three categories according
to tar and nicotine levels', and examined with respect to lung can-
cer. The results are shown in Table 111, page 22.

Relative Risks of Low Tar

For males smoking the same number of cigarettes per day,
there appears to be a 19 percent reduction in risk of developing
lung cancer with the use of low T/isl cigarettes. For females, there
is a 40 percent reduction in risk. However, in a separate matched-
group analysis, the number of cigarettes smoked per day was
found to be relatively more important than the tar and nicotine
content of cigarettes.

In the last 25 yeays, there has been a great drop in the tar
and nicotine content of the smoke from cigarettes consumed in the
Ilfgh tar and nkotine (T/N): 25(15 to 35.7 mg. tan 2.0 tii'2.7 mg. nicotine. Medium
T/N: 17,05 to 25.7 mg. tan 1.2 to 1.9 mg. nkotine. Low T/N: less than 17.6 mg tar
and less than 12 mg. nkotine.

1.2
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Table III

AGE-ADJUSTED LUNG CANCER MORTALITY RATIOS'
FOR MALES AND FEMALES BY TAR

AND NICOTINE IN CIGARETTES SMOKED

Males _Females

High T/N

.Medium T/N

Low T/N

LOO

0.95

0.81 4

1.00

0.79

0.80

'The mortality ratio for the category with highest risk was Made 1.00 so
that the relative reductions in rislc with the use of lower T/N cigarettes
could be visualized.

Source: Hammond, E.C., Gatfinkel, L., Seidman, H., Lew, E.A. Some
recenevindings concerning arette smoking. In: Hiatt, Watson,
1.0., insect!, J.4. (Editors). Origins of Human Cancer:Book A: Incidence
of Cancer le Humans. New York Cold Spring Harbor Laboratory, 1977,
p7.101,4 12.
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United States. A recent autopsy study asked. are there differences
in lung damage in smokers who died (of diseases other than lung
cancer) in the period 1955-1960 (Group A) as compared with
those who died in the period 1970-1977 (Group B )?

In fact, structural changes of various sortscells with atypi-
cal nuclei (having the appearance of cancer cell nuclei ), lesions
with no cilia and basal cell hyperplasiawere found far more fre-
quently in the bronchial epithelium pining) of Group A smokers
than in Group B. (See Figure 3, p. 24] This encouraging sign has
prompted the authors of this autopsy study to predict that at some
future date, there should be a decline in the death rates of cig-
arette smokers from lung cancer. (Auerbach, 0., Hampond, E. C.,
Garfinkel, L Changes in Bronchial Epithelium in Relation to Cig-
arette Smoking, 1955-1900 vs. 1970-1977. The New England Jour .
nal of Medicine 300 (8): 381-386, 1979.]e
Dangerous Occupations ,, Lung cancer is caused not only by cigarettes but is also
assoCiated with .exposure to Certain minerals and chemicals, and,
in a very small degree, with polluted air. However, although the
risk of lung cancer is four times as great, among (say) cigarette
smoking uranium miners as in the general cigarette smoking poiu-
lation, a is 10 times greater among uranium miners who kmoke
than ampng nonlmoking uranium miners. In a 17-year follow-up
study of 3,414 uranium miners, there were 62 lung cancer deaths
but only two of these were of nonsmokers. [SG, 1971, p. 256.]

Cigarette smoling and occupational exposures are sai0 to
be synergistic, acting together in a complicated way. Most hazard-
ous occupational exposures involve single substances or only a
few. Cigarette smoking, however, results in exposure to more than
2,000 chemical compounds, among which are carcinoiens, tumbr
initiators and promoters. (SG 1979, p. 5-27.] Thus, the number and
type of interactions can be very Urge. .,

'Asbestos workers have eight times the lung cancer risk of
the general population. But among asbestos workers who smoke
cigarettes this risk has been estimated to be 92 times the risk of
nonsmokers who do riot work with asbestos. (Selikoff, I. J., Bader,
R. A., Bader, M. E., Churg, J., Hammond, E. C. Asbestosis and
neoplasia. Th American Journal of Medicine 42 (4): 487-496,

.

,..

1

'
c,

a

LUNG CANCER '23

,

, 1
(

i
1 .... ;

1.28

,

/

..

%

,.



25

10
.

A4

Figure 3
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*igure 3: Percentage of Sections with Advanced Lesions (Cilia Absent and
All Nuclei Atypiml) According to Smoking Habit in Group A (1955-1980
Deaths) and Group B (1970-1977 Deaths).
Source: Auerbach, 0. etalon eng Jul.+300(8):381-386, 1979. Ibid.

24

129
`PI .



.125

April 1967. Selika, 1. J., Hammond, E. C., Churg, J. Asbestos ex-
posure:smoking, anh neoplasia. Journal of the American Medical
Association 204 ( 2) :104-110, April 8, 1968.)

There is also an increased risk of lung cancer reported
'among 2eople who work with arsenic, chromium, nickel, coal,
natural g,as and graphitebut in all cases, the risk is much greater
for cigarette smokers than for nonsmokers in the same occupations.
ISG 1971, pp. 256-258.)

General Mr Pollution

Many peoyle have noted that the rise in lung calker co-
incides with the great increase in industrial and urban air pollution,
and have theorized that this is the real cause of lung cancer/
Studies, so far, do not bear this out.

The conclusion, based on more than 13 different epidemio-
logic investigations, is that in the absence of cigarette smoking, the
cornkined effects of all atmospheric agents do not increase the
death rates for laig cancer more than a very feW cases per 100,000
persons per year. [SC 1979, p. 5-27.]

Two 1967 studies were made of people living in Los
Angeles, where air pollution is the worst in California, matching
smokers and nonsmokers in relation to the time they had lived
there and in other California cities. It showed that the general risk
of lung cancer was no greater in Los Angeles than in any other
California city. However, it may be too early_ to conclude that'air
pollution is not a significant factor in lung cancer, since the disease
takes many years to develop and air pollution became a problem
in Los Angeles only between 1945 and 1950. [SC, 1968, p. 98] .

Smoking Dogs

One of the criticisms leveled at the cigarette-and-health
linkage was that lung cancer had not been produced in large ani-
mals by cigarette smoke. In 1970, this gap was filled by the results
of a long-term study of dogs whp smoked cigarettes through a
special device. Ninety-seven healthy beagles were used in the
experimeit. The dogs were divided into groups smoking numbers
of cigarettes equivalent to one to two packs a day by a 150 lb. man,
with one nonsmoking control group. All smoking dogs showed
cancerous or other pathological chabges in the lungs after 875 days
of smoking.

94-3$7 0 - 22 - 3,
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A number of dogs died during the experiment, but none was
a nonsmoker. At the end of the experiment 40 dogs were sacrificed.
A number of tumors were found inlhe lungs of the animals. Two.
of eight nonsmoking dogs (25%) had tumors; four of 10 dogs (40%)
who smoked filter-tipped cigarettes had ttlmors; five of 10 ( 50%) of
a group of nonfilter smokers ( who smoked only half as many ciga-
rettes), and 12 of 12 (100%) of the full-quota nonfilter group, had'
tumors. One interesting fact. the only invasive tumors were found

.full-quota nonfilter smokers, and two of these were carcinomas
similar to the type most often seen in men.

Dogs' lungs were also analyzed for emphysema, and tissue
and cellular changes. By far the largest number of pathologies were
found in the dogs who had smoked the full quota of nonfiltei ciga-
rettes, considerably fewer in those who smoked only half as many
nonfilters, very few such changes in filter-tip smokers and none in
the nonsmoking dogs.

Comparing the results with those of studies of thern lungs of
men the authors conclude: ". . . the types of histologic changes
produced in the lung parenchyma (main lung tissue) were found
to be the same in the beagle as in man, in both species there is a
dale relationship; in both . . . the degree of damage . . . increases
with indeasing duration of cigarette smoking . . ." Extrapolating
the beagle study to man, the authors state: "Findings inthis study
strongly suggest that smoking cigarettes with an efficient filter will
producejess damage to the human lung parenchyma than smoking
identittU cigarettes without filters" (authors' italics). [Hammond,
E. C., Auerbach, 0., Kirman, D., Garfinkel, L. Effects of Cigarette
Smoking on Dogs, Archives of Environmental Health, December,
1970, p. 752.1

Pro-Smoking Criticisms
Defenders of cigarette smoking raise three other objectioni -

to the cause-and-effect relationship between cigarettes and lung
cancer:

Objection 1. The evidence is only statistical.
Answer': This is not true. Hundreds of epidemiological, ex-

perimental, pathological, and clinical studies all demonstrate that
cigarette smoking is hazardous.

Health statistics are the basis of most disease control. And
all biomedical research, whether in experimental animal- or human
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populations, must use statistical techniques to analyze and reach
sound, scientific conclusions.

The Royal College of physicians points out: ". . . it is pos-
sible to observe what is, in effed, an experiment in which millions
of people who have been smoking cigarettes often develop lung
cancer while millions of others who have abstained seldom do so."
(Royal, p. 61)

Objection 2. The associatthn is nonspecific in that many
differentdiseases are associated with cigarette smoking.

Answ*: The great fog of Loildqn in 1952 increased the
death rati for many diseases, particularly respiratorcy and coronary
disease. Cigarette smoke, like the London fog, is not a single chemi-
cal, but thousands of chemicals, many of them knO:vn to be harm-
ful. It is unreasonable to suppose that exposure to this range of
cheinicals would increase the risk of only bne disease.
- Objection 3. The genetic theory: people inherit a tendency
toward lungpancer and a desire to smoke cigarettes.

Answer: While there are some psychological and physio-
logical differences between smokers and nonsmokers, there is no
evidence 9f an inherited tendency toward lung cancer. When many
British doctors stopped smoking, the lung cancer death rate for
that profession went downwhich contradicts the premise of an
inborn desire to smoke, and an inborn tendency to lung cancer.

Other easily dispr
That the rise in

diagnosis; disproved
men than th women, both
p. 63.]

e criticisms are:
cer is fictitious, caused by better

t the rise has been greater in
frig diagnosed the same way. [Royal,

g.
e fac

That the rise in lung cancer may have resulted froni a fall in
the TB death rate; disproved by the fact that while the fall in TB
mortality has been greater in women, the rise in lung cancer has
been greater in men.

Some Conclusions

1. "Cigarette smoking is the major cause of lung cancer in
both men and women. This fact has been supported by prospective
and retrospective epidemiological studies, clinical studies, autopsy
studies, and experimental studies in animals. The conclusion is
based on evidence which exceeds by several times the evidence
available when this same conclusion was first reached in 1904.
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r 3. "Lunt cancer mortality is increasing in women more"
rapidly than any other cause of death. If present trends continue,
lung cancer will be the leading cause of 'cancer death among
women in the next decade. .

5. "The long-term use (10 years or more) of filter cigarettes
is associated with lower death rates from lung cancer than those
of persons who smoke an equal number of nonfilter cigarettes.

8. ," . . The risk of developing lung cancer for ex-smokers
depends on the type of smoker he or she used to be ( and is prortor-
tivnal ) to the number of cigarettes previously smoked per day,
degree of inhalation, the age when smoking was started, and dura-
tion of smoking . . . It takes from 10 to 15 years,,however, until the
risk of developing lung cancer [of ex-smokers] approaches that of
nonsmokers." [SG 1979, p. 5-31.)
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HIOTHER CANCERS
a

Tobacco smoking also causes, or is strongly associated with,
cancers of the larynx, mouth, esophagus, urinary bladder, pan-
creas and possibly kidney.

Cancer of the Larynx
A typical patient with cancer of the larynx is a 60-year-old

male who has been a heavy cigarette smoker and also a moderate-
to-heavy alcohol drinker. [Marks, R. D., Putney, I. J., fimuggs, H. J.,
Adkins, W. Y, Wallace, K..M. Management of Cancer of the Lar-
ynx. Journal of the South Carolina Medical Association 71 (11):
333-338, 19751

The relative risk for developing laryngeal cancer is 15.8 for
pale cigarette smokers anct 9.0 for female cigarette smokers. This
large sex difference is now diminishing, probably because of the
increase in female cigarette smokers. [SG 1979, p. 5-33]

Pipe and cigar smokers have a risk similar to that of ciga-
rette sronkers of developing laryngeal cancer. [SG 1979, p. 5-36]

The number of cigarettes smoked per day is strongly related
to the risk of developing cancer of the larynx. In one study relative
risks for males ranged from 2.9 for short-term light smokers, to 17.7
for heavy, long-term smokers. [Williams, R. R., Horn, J. W., Asso-
ciation of cancer sites with tobacco and alcohol consumption and
socioeconomic status .of patients: Interview.study from the Third
National Cancer Survey. Journal of the National Cancer Institute
58 (3): 525-547. March 1977]

Autopsy studies reveal a clear dose relationship between the
number of cigafettes smoked and atypical cellular changes in the
larynxes of men who did not die of larynx cancer. Every smoker of
a pack-or-more-a-day studied had atypical cellular changesthe
more cigarettes smoked, the more such cell changes. But 75 percent
of the'nonsmokers had no abnormal cells; and those who did, had
yery few. Of the men who had quit smoking, 40 percent had ab-
normal cells which were disintegratingthat is,,disappearing, and
being replaced by normal cells. [Auerbach, 0., Hammond, E. C.,
Garfinkel, L., Histologic Changes in the Larynx in Relation to
Smoking Habits, Cancer 25: pp. 92-104, January 1970]

A distinct syngergisni bttween alcohol and tobacco in laryn-
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geal cincer has been confirmed, verifying the link noted in over 14

/ earlier studies. [Wynder, E. L., Covey, L. S., Mabuchi, L., Mushin-
ski, M. Environmental factors in capcer of the larynx. A sesond '
look. Cancer 38 ( 4): 1591-1601, October 1976]

Long-term cigarette smokers, both males and females, who

use filter-tips, reduce their risk of laiyngeal cancer by from 24 to 49

percent, and the risk amongtex-smoker drops gradually after ces-

sation. After approximately ten yea, ex-smokers' risk of larynx

cancer approaches that of nonsmokers. [SG 1979, 5-34]
Cancer of the larynx is often cured, usiialli by surgery and

generally by removal of the larynx, the main organ of speech. The

patient thus cured can be taught a new method of speech, and
must live with a permanent opening in his throat. A new pperi-
mental operation can sometimes create a new "vocal cord' out of

pharyrigeal tissue that makes re-learning speech quicker and

easier.

Surgeon General's Conclusion

". . . Epidemiological, experimental and autopsy studies in-
dicate that cigarette smoking is a significant causative factor in the
development of cancer of the larynx. The risk of developing laryn-
geal cancer in,pipe and cigar smokers is similar to that for cigarette
smokers, [and] much greater for heavy smokers who also drink
heavily, compared with individuals who only have exposure to
either substance. There is a substantial decrease in risk ... with the
long-term use of filter qoarettes (10 years"ror more) compared to
the use of nonfilter cigarettes, [and) a gradual reduction in risk of

... laryngeal cancer after cessation of imoking." [SG 1979, pp.5-37,

38j

Mouth Cancer '
Analysis of a large number of studies reveals from three to

ten times as many mouth cancers (cancers of the lip, tongue, floor
of the mouth, hard and soft palate, etc.) in cigarette smokers as in

nonsmokers. Pipe smoking has long been recognized as a cause of

lip cancer; pipe and cigar smoking as well as tobacco chewing, also

contribute to cancer at other sites in the mouth.
Alcohol consumption and possibly poor dentition agi; ap-

pear to be risk factors. In one study, 76 percent of oral cancer in
males was attributed to the interaction of tobacco and alcohol. The

30 OTHER CANCERS
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risk for the heavy drinker who alsa smokes is from six to 15 times )
greater than for the individual who does not use tobacco or alcohol.
[Rothmin, K.; Keller, A. The effect of joint exposure to alcohol and
tobaCco on risk.of cancer of the mouth and pharynx. journal of
Chronic Disease 25: 711-716, 1972.]

Mduth cancers are often cored because they are readfiy
seen and treated at an early stage. Of one series of 117 patients
cured nf mouth.cancers, 43 'quit snioking but 74 continued to
smoie. AU remained free of symptoms for three years. Then 24 of
the 74 smokers developed new cancers of the mouth; but only four
of the 43 who had quit smoking developed cancer a second time.
Thus, the repeat rate of mouth cancer was four times as, great
among smokers as among those who stopped smoking. [hTobre, C.,
Multiple Mouth-Throat Cancer, American journal of Surgery, pp.
534-536, October 1965]

Surgeon General's Conclusion

. Smoking is a significant causal factor in the develop-
ment of cancer:of the oral cavity. . the use of pipes, cigars and
chewing tobacco is associated with cancer of the oral cavity. The .
risk of using these forms is the same general magnitude as that of
using cigarettes . . . The use of alcohol and tobacco together re-
sults int higher risk oqyveloping cancer than ... from the use of
either substance alone. NG 1979, p. 5-42]

Cancer of the Esoplagus
Cigarette smoked have a risk of dying of esophageal cancer

about two to nine times that of nohsmokers, depending on the
number of cigarettes smoked and on the amount of alcohol,drunk.
The known cancer-causing chemicali in cigarette smoke dissolve
in alcohol, and in this form they more readily penetrate tissues.
Thus, when swallowed, they are 'apt to enter the walls of the
esophagus. This has been demonstrated experimentally in animals.
[SG 1979, p. 5-44, 45]

- A stay of the esophagi of 1,268 men who died of causes
other than esophageal cancer showed that abnormal cellspre-
cancerous cellswere.found much more frequently in the tissues
of smokers than in nonsmokers. [Auerbach, 0., Stout, A. P., Ham-
mond; E. C., Garfinkel, L., 'Histologic Changes in Esophagus in
Relatio o Smoking Habits, Archives of Environmental Health 11 ,
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.( 1): 4-15, July, 1965.)

Surgeon General's Conclusion
". . Cigarette smoking is a significant causal factor in the

developmenttf cancer of the esophagus, The risk ... [in] pipe and
cigar smoking is about the same . . . as that for cigarette smokers
... studies also indicate a synergistic relationship between the use
of alcohol and tobacco and . . . cancer of the esophagus. [SG 1979,

PP. 544, 45]

-Cancer of the Urinary Bladder and Kidney
A number of studies have shown a higher incidence of can-

cer of the urinary bladder among smokers, and a higher death
rate from this disease among smokers than among nonsmokers. The
increased riskas compared with nonsmokersof contracting blad-
der cancer ranges up to- more than seven times among all smokers,
and is ten times as great in heavy smokers.

About 40 percent of male bladder cancers and 31 percent
of fernale bladdercancers may be attributed to smoking cigarettes.

In ex-smokers, the risk of developieg bladder cancer de-
creases and approaches that of nonsmokers about seven years after
quitting smoking. (Wynder, E. L., Goldsmith, R. The epidemiology
of bladder cancer. A settond lookrRancer 40: 1246-1268. 1977)

Saiokers also have a higher risk of kidney cancer, ranging
from alout onapand one-half to two and one-half times normal.

Certain occupational exposures to dyestuffs, rubber, leather,
printing inks, paint, petroleum, and other chemicals increase the
risk of developing bladder cancer. A number of substances, in the
chemical family of Aromatic amines, have been identified as risk
factors in human bladder cancer and are also found in cigarette
smoke. Thus, cigarette smoking,alone, or in concert with occupa-
tional exposures can act as agents in the development of bladder
cancer. [SG 1979, p. 5-47)

Surgeon General's Conclusion
"Epidemiological studies demonstrate a significant associa-

tion between cigarette smoking and cancer of the urinary bladder
in both men and women ... Cigarette smoking acts independently
as a cause of bladerecancer and probably acts synergisticalry, with
other risk factors such as occupational exPosure to certain aromatic

40"
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amines." ... Studies have demonstrated an association of cigarettes
witth cancer of the kidney among men.- [SG 1979, p. 5-491

Cane* of the Pancreas
The incidence of cancer of the pancreas has increased three-

fold in the United States since 1930 and now ;anks fourth in fre-
quen-cy among fatal neoplastie disease4 [Seidman, H., Silverberg,
E., Holleb,.A.I., Cancer Statistics, 1478. A comparison of white
and black populations. CA 28: 2429, 1976)

Pancreatic cancer is more common among U S. men than
. women but ttie male-to-female ratio is decreasing steadily. Mor-

tality rates for smokers from this disease are twice that of nonsmok- -
ers, and five times that for males smoking more than two packs of
cigarettes a day.

Surgeon Generate Conclusion

". . . Data from prospective and retrospective investiga-
tions have demonstrated a significant association between cigarette
smoking.and cancer of the pancreas . . . The relative risk . . . is
about five times greater for a two-pack-a-day smoker than for a
nonsmoker." [SG 1979, p. 5-53]
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IVHEART ATTACKS, CIRCULATORY DISEASES.
AND STROKE

Cigaiette smoking causes a higher death rate frqrn' coronarye
heart disease in the United States. It has been estimated that more
than 120,000 excess deaths from this disease each year in this
country are caused by cigarette smoking. [Am. Heart Association
Report of Ad Hoc Committee on Cigarette Smoking and Cardio-
vascular Diseasol Am. Heart Association Document 11/10/771

, Stu, 1es of more than two million individuals show that
cigarette smoking increases the risk of sudden cardiac deaths, and
atherosclerosis (lesions, plaques and occlusions of arteries, heart
and other organs). However, the association between cigarette
smoking and strokes, and angina pectoris (chest ilain) is not con-
clusive; and there is no apparent relationship betIfieen smoking
anj.the incidence of hypertension (high blood presyme), Never-
Ole less, hypertension and cigarette smoking, when present to-
gether, multir 'y risk. (see below )

Quitting Sharply Reduces Risk
Stopping smoking sharply decreases the risk of heart at-

tacks, 'and other circulatory', diseases. This begins to happen within
one year after stopping and after 10 years, the ex-smoker's risk is
ahnosiithe same 'as that of the person who has never smoked.
[Hammond, E. C. Garfinkel, L., Coronary Heart Disease, Stroke

and Aortic Aneurysm. Factors in the Etiology, Archives of En-
vironmental Health 19 (2 ): 168-182, August 19691

In a study of all British doctors, age 35-64, since 1951, many

of these physicians have given up cigarette smoking. But fewer

British men in general have stopped smoking cigarettes. In 1968

--deaths.from all heart and blood vessel diseases among these British
doctors had dropped by six percent since 1953; while the deaths
from these diseases in all British men had increased by nine per-
cent. (Royal, p. 881

The most recent U.S. information on smoking cessation in

the following table shows significant decreases in the probability
of death from coronary heart disease for those who have stopped
smoking for five or more yews. (See Table IV, p. 35).

Risk Factors
Several major "risk factors" have been identified in heart

34
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Table IV

ANNUAL PROBABILITY OF DEATH FRPM CORONARY HEART
DISEASE, IN CURRENT AND DISCONTINUED SMOKERS, BY AGE,
MAXIMUM AMOUNT SMOKED, AND ACE STARTED SMOKING

Age started smoking ,

Age

M1011013111
daily number
of cigarettes

smoked

15-19 2044

Current
smokers

Discontinued Current
for five or smokes:

-more
(gabibility x 105)

Discontinued
for five or
more years

55-84 0 501 501 7
10-80 708 588 811 151
21-89 900 no 872 698

65-74 o 1,015 1,015

10-20 1,501 1,169 1,478 1,213

21-89 1,710 1,334 1,573 1,098

'For age group 65-74, probabilities for discontinued smokers are for 10 or
more years of discontinuance since data for the 5-9 year discontinuance
group are not given.

SOURCE: U.S. Public Health Service. The Health Consequences of Smoking.
A Reference Edition: 1976. U.S. Department of Health, Education, and
Welfare, Public Health Service, Center for Disease Control, HEW Publica-
tionNo..(CDC)78-8,957, 1976, 657 pp.
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attacks. The three leading risk factors are 1) cigarette smoking;
2) high blood pressure (hypertension), and 3) high blood choles-

terol.
Each of these risk factors increases a person's chances of

hating a heart attack. People who smoke cigarettes, but have
neither of the other two factors, have a death rate from heart at-
tack 60 percent greater than that of nonsmokers. If all three risk
factors are present, the risk goes up to 300 percent that of persons
without any risk factors. Risk is also related to age and the amount
of exposure.

Artery Disease
Studying the arteries of cigarette smokeh at autopsy, pa-

-thologists have seen that the blood vessels of smokers contain a
great number of fatty plaques, which adhere to the walls and clog
circulation. This condition is known as atherosclerosis, a form of
arteriosclerosis, and is thought to predispose the sufferer to heart
-attacks.

In a study of this type, the arterioles (small arteries) and
arteries of nearly 2,000 men %/to died of all causes wereexamined.
Blood vessels were removed from various parts of the boay: the
trachea ( windpipe), bronchial tubes, esophagus, stomach, pan-
&teas and adrenal glands. The scientists did not know the smoking
habits of the men until after they examined these tissues and
recorded their findings. It was found that the walls of the blood
vessels in alLthese organs tended to thicken with .age in all sub-
jects. But thickening was considerably greater in smokers than in
nonsmokers, and, was directly related to the number of cigarettes
smoked. "Regardless of the mechanism, it seems likely that the
tiiickening of the walls of arterioles and small arteries located in
an organ has at least a slightly deleterious effect upon that organ,"
the authors concluded. "If widespread, it may put some strain

upon the cardiovascular system as a whole. If sq, this may have
some bearing on the increase in death rates from a multiplicity of
diseases with advancing age and with amount of cigarette smok-

ing." [Auerbach, 0., Hammond, E.C., Garfinkel, L., Thickening of

Walls of Arterioles and Small Arteries in Relation to Age and

Smoking Habits, New England Journal of Medicine 278: 980-984,

May 2, 1968.]
This study was later extended to a microscopic examination
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of arterioles of heart muscle. Fibrous thickenings in the walls of
these smill blood vessels were found in 90.7 percent of those who
had smoked two or more packs a day, in -48.4 liercent of those who
had smoked less than one pack a day, and in none of those who
had never smoked regularly. [Auerbach, O. Carter, H. W., Car-
Finkel, L., Hammond, E. C. Cigarette smoking anclsoronary artery
iliseases: A macroscopic and microscopic study. Chest 70(6): 697-

, December 1976.]

icotine Cuts Oxygen imd Speeds Heartbeat
Cigarette smoking stimulates certain glands to release

adrenalin and other powerful hormones which cause the walls
of the heart to contract more strongly and more often, increase the
heart rate, and thereby increase the heart's need for oxygen and
other nutrients. Certain blood vessels contract grongly under the
influence of these hormones.

But at the same time, the carbon monoxide (CO) in cigè-
étte smoke replaces as much as twelve percent of the oxygen which
would normally be carried by the red cells in the blood viith car-
boxyhemoglobin (COHba tight band of CO and hemoilobin.)
So, while the smoker's heart needs more oxygen, it gets less. The
lack of oxygen in the blood may contribute to the develo ment of
atherosclerosis. [SC 1971, p. 36]

Exposed Occupationr
A Study of Parisian taxi drivers showed that smokers of 15

cigarettes a day had four times the level of carboxyhemoglobin as
those smoking fewer than Eve cigarettes a day. Blast furnace work-
ers were tested at the end of their shift, nonsmokers had between
4.0 and 4.9 percent of total carboxyhemoglobin. Those who smoked
more than 20 cigarettes a day had blood leVels of 8.5 percent. "It is
evident that if air li011ution is a pathogenic factor it is small in
comparison with smoking." [WHO 1979, p. 27]

Smoking Pilots Risk Death
A 45-year-old male airplane pilot who smokes 20 cigarettes

a a risk of sudden death 2.8 times greater than that of a
no m mg pilot, irrespective of other risk factors. Tobacco smoke
significan ly interferes with the physical and mental abilities that
are so important for pilots. The limitations include visual impair-
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ment, timing or temporal impairment, and impairment in decision-
making and coordination. Many are the result of increased car-
boxyhemoglobin level in the blood. [WHO 1979; p. 27]

Other Effects
Smoking cigarettes also damages breathing capacity; thus, a

smoker takes in less air with each breath than a nonsmoker. This
further diminishes the amount of oxygen available to the over-
worked heart of a smoker. [SG 1971, p. 146 et seq.]

Another mechanism related to smoking affects the platelets
a fraction of the blood which causes/clots. Smoking seems to
cause the platelets to adhere "which might contribute to acute
thrombus (clot) formation." [SG 1971, p. 9]

Conelusions
". . Smoking is one of three major independent risk factors

for heart attacks, [both] fatal and nonfatal . .. and sudden cardiac
death in adult men and women. Moreover, the effect is dose re-
lated, and synergistic with other risk factors for heart attack . . ."

". . . Cigarette smoking is associated (in limited autopsy
_studies) with more severe and extensive atherosclerosis of the
aorta and coronary arteries than is found among nonsmokers . . .

While more data might be desirable . . . there is no reasonable
doubt that cigarette smoki4 enhances atherogenes [establishing]
a fundamental rationale for the findings on the incidence of heart
attack, including sudden cardiac death, aortic aneurysm, and peri-
pheral vascular disease in relation to smoking. It is somewhat un-
certain, but likely, that smoking has an adverse effect on the recur-
rence of heart attack among survivors of a prior myocardial
infarction."

". . . Epidemiologic data on the association between cigar-
,

ette smoking and angina pectoris and cerebrovascular disease
(stroke) are not conclusive . . . There is no apparent relationship
between smoking and the incidence of hypertension, [althougt.]
smoking joins with hypertension to affect the patient with the car-
diovascular burden of both risk factors.

_It should be noted, however . . . that risk (of coronary
heart disease) in smokers reverts to normal or nonsmoken' levels
after they cease to smoke ..." [SG 1979, pp. 4-63-6]

38 HEART ATTACKS, CIRCULATORY DISEASES'AND STROKE
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V-tEMPHYSEMA, CHRONIC BRONCHITIS AND
OTHER NONCANCEROUS LUNG-DISEASES

When patients with bronchitis are asked if they have a
cough they not infrequently reply 'yes, like everyone else.' They
do not realize that people with healthy lungs have no cough and
produce no phlegm." [Royal, p. 89]

Smokers cough more than nonsmokers and Rroduce more
sputuni. This can occur eery soon after the onset of smoking and
even when the number of cigarettes smoked is very small. [Smok-
ing Or HealthThird Report of College of physicians, 'Pitman,
London; 1977, p. 77] Respiratory infections, including postopera-
tive ones, are more common in smokers, who take longer to recover.

Cigarette smoking acts independently of9d synergistically
with the other risk factors contributing tko bronchitis. In de-
veloped countries it is now the most importint cause of chronic',
bronchitis." [WHO 1979, p. 20]

Definitions
Chronic bronchitis and pulmonary emphysema are often

linked, because they are frequently found together, and because
they seem to be produced by similar causes and mechanisms.
Clinically pure forms of chronic bronchitis and emphysema are the
exceptions rather than the rule, and luiig cancer is often also seen
in the samb patients.

Chronic bronchitis is efined as the "chronic or recurrent
excessive mucus secretion o the bronchial tree." [SG 1971, p, 139]
It is identified by two symptoms, fl ) chronic cough rhich pro-
duces (2) sputum. The sputum may be clear, but often edfitains
pusbecause people with chronic bronchitis are highly susceptible
to lung infections. Teen-agers, who smoke-as few as five cigarettes
a day, cough and spit almost as much as an adult heavy smoker.

The longer a person with chronic bronchitis smokes, the
worse the condition becomes. The air passages in the lungs be-

'"come peogressively narrowed, making it harder and harder to
breathe. This is often worsened by the fact that so many people
with bronchitis also have emphysema.

Pulmonary emphysema destroys the tiny air sacs in the lung
where oxygen is absorbed into the body. As the walls between the
sacs are destroyed, the sacs becothe largerbut, because fewer in

;1"
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number, they ciffer less total surface from which oxygen cal be ab-
sorbed. Hence, more and more breaths are required. A normal
adult expends about 5 percent of his energy in breathing; a person
with advanced emphysema uses up to 80 percent of hi's strength
just to breathe. He is constantly exhausted, gasping for air.

Deaths from pulmonary emphysema and chronic bronchitis
(known together as COLDChronic Obstructive Lung Disease)
have increased greatly in the United States in recent years.

In 1945, there were .bnly 2,038 such' deaths listed in the
United States. [Diehl, 88-90] In 1977, the figure had risen to 23,000
deaths per year. Chronic bronchitis and emphysema rank second
only to coronary artery dise2se as a cause of Social Security-
compensated disability. [SC1979, p. 8-7]

In the United Kingdom, with; population only one fourth
that of the United States, there are more than 30,000 inch deaths
each year; and 35,030,000 man-days are lost from work annually
as the result of emphysema and chronic bronchitis. This is ten to
12 times the number of days lost through industrial disputes.
[Royal, p. 891

Smokers Vulnerable to COLD Death .

Cigarette smoking is the most important cause of COLI?.
Cigarette smokers have higher mortality rates from chronic bron-
chitis and emphysema, an increased prevalence of respiratory
symptoms, and diminished performance on pulmonary function
testing compared to nonsmokers. These differences become more
marked as the number of cigarettes increases. [SC 1979, p. 8-7].

The most recent data from a 20-year followup of 347440

British male physicians found a 1.5-fold higher death rate from
COLD in smokers who inhaled than in smokers who did not inhale.
[Doll, R., Peto, R. Mortality in relation to smokffig: 20 years' ob-
servations on male British doctors. British Medical Journal 2: 1525-
1538, 1979]

A number of recent studies have established a higher pre-
valence of respiratory symptoms in adolescent, teenage, and young
adult smokers as compared with nonsmokers. In a study of 14,033
child smokers, aged 10 to 12% in the United Kingdom, more were
found than their nonsmoking classmates. [Bewley, B., Bland, J. M.,
Smoking and respiratory symptoms in two groups of schoolchil-
dren. Preventive Medicine 5: 63-69, 1976]

EMPHYSEMA, CHRONIC BRONCHITIS AND
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suryey ck 12,505 high school students in this country re-
pOrted that regUlar pough, phlegm prochiction and wheezing cor-
related strongly with cigarette smoking. [Rush, D. Changes in
respiratory symptoms related to smoking in a teenage population:
The resulis of two linked surveys separated by one year. Interna-
tional journal of Epidemiology. 5 ( 2 ) r.173-118, 19761

More Sensitive BreathMg Tests
New refinements in measuring lung function now make it

possible to pinpoint early changes in small airways of the tracheo-
bronchial tree, those with diameters of two millimeters or less.
Cigarette smokers show abnormal changes in the small airways
which are absent from the lungs of nonsmokers. Cigarette smoking
can obliterate more than 50 percent of the small airways without
producing significant signs when conventional methods ofineasur-
Mg pulmonary function are used. Evidence from a number of dd..
ferent laboratories and clinics indicates damage to small airways
in from 35 to 66 percent of asymptomatic cigarette smokers. Dam-
age to the small airways has also been reported in teenage smokers
with histories of smoking as brief as one to five years. [SG 1979,
pp. 6-10-22]

These sensitive new tests now offer the possibility of detect-
ing early signs of emphysema and chronic bronchitis before the
patient develops symptoms.

Air Pollution

A number of studies have been made in different plaCes at
different times among workers exposed to high concentrations of
polluted air at work. Although all these workers have'more lung
diseases than in the rest of the population, the great preponderance
of such diseases is invariably found, as. of lung cancer, among
cigarette smokers.

Studies of workers in the mechanical, chemical, ceramics,
foundry or marble, corn-mill, mining, tire cutting, asbestos, con-
struction, cement, rubber, cork and other industries have shown a
higher incidence of respiratory diseases among smokers than
among nonsmokers exposed to the same occupational hazards.
[WHO 1979, p. 261

Increased prevalence of pulmonary diseases has been dent!
onstrated in areas of air pollution in the Netherlands, Japan and

94-3117 0 - 12 - 10
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Polandlut these studies were poorly controlled for socioeconomic

status and smoking habits, in a study of telephone installers and

repairmen in Baltimore, New York City, Washington, D.C., and

rural Westchester County, New York, researchers were unable to

find any relation between pulmonary symptoms and degree of

urbanization of place of work or residence. They were, however,

able to establish a strong correlation between smoking habits and

pulmonary symptoms. [Comstock, O. W., Stone, R. W., Sakai, Y.,

Matsuya, T., Tonascia, J. A., Respiratory findings and urban living.

Archives of Environmental Health 27 (3): 143-150, September

19731
In a 1964 survey in the United States and an earlier one

(1951) in the United Kingdom, rates of such illnesses as clirpnic

7 bronchitis, asthma, and emphysema, were greater among those in

lower socioeconomic groups. Recently, however, a study of 9,226

residents of Tecumseh, Michigan, found that most of the differ-

ences in incidence of chronic bronchitis in people of differing oc-

cupatipnal, educational, or income classes were attributable to .

differ ces in smoking habits. Compared with smoking, poor occu-

pation educational background, and economic circumstances had

only a weak deleterious effect. [Higgins, M. W., Keller, J. B., Metz-

ner, H. L., Smoking, socioeconomic status, and &tonic respiratory

disease. American Review of Respiratory Disease 116: 403-410,

19771
As a result of these and other studies, it is concluded that if

air pollution increases risk of COLD, this increase must he small

compared to that related to cigarette/smoking under conditions of

air pollution to which the average person is exposed. [SC 1979,

. p. 6-38]

Polish Workers

Lo A Ilolish study of 280 workers in the Electro-mechanical

perative in Warsaw, concentrating on those who had smoked a

pack or more a day for ten years, revealed that: .

1. Smokers become ill 3.5 times as often as nonsmokers, and

that absenteeism caused by smoking-related disease was up to five

times as frequent among smokers.
2. Nonsmokers were 1.5 times as immune to colds as smok-

ers..Smokers "often. became the first to contract influenza."

3. Smokers have twice as many on the job accidents as non-

EMPHYSENiA, CHRONIC BRONCHITIS AND
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smokers, [Job Absenteeism among Habitual Smokers, Korsak, A.,
World Sri% °king and Health, Vol. 2, No. 2, Pall, 1977, pp. 15-171

Interaction Between Smoking and Occupational Exposures
Both smoking and occupational exposuresare known to con-

tribute to diseasemainly involving the lungs, cardiovascular sys-
tem, kidneys, bladder, and central nervous system: Now attention
is being given to the ways these two factors buy acttogether:

1. Tobacco products may serve as vectors by becoming
contaminated with toxic agents; or 2. workplace chemicals may be
transformed into more harmful agents by the chemicals in smoke.
Certain toxic agents may be foRnd both in the workplace and in
tobacco, increasing exposure, causing an additive or, in some
cases, an exponential effect. Smoking may also contribute to acci-
dents in the workplace.

Tobacco Contaminants

The National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health
(NIOSH) has ident:ified a number of _potential contaminants
fotindin tobaccO products including inorganic fluorides and mer-
cury, lead, dinitrn-ortho-creosbl, formaldehyde, boron irifluoride,
organotin, methyl parathion, and carbaryl.,In addition, hydrogen
cyanide has been found in cigarette smoke in significantconcentra-
tions, and cigarette smoking also contributes to increased ex-
posure to carbon monoxide. Other harmful chernical agents found
within tobacco and in the workplace include acetone, acrolein,
alilehydes, arsenic, cadmium, formaldehyde, hydrogen sulfide, ke-
tones, lead, methyl nitrite, nicotine, nitrogen dioxide, phenol, and
polycyclic compounds. [SG 1979, p. 7-7-9]

In a study of Boston fire fighters, both occupation and cig-
arette smoking contributed to chronic nonspecific respiratory dis-
ease. [91elor, R., Peters, J. M., Prevalence rates of chronic non-
specific respiratory disease in fire fighters. American Review of
Respiratory Disease. 109 ( 2): 255-261, February 1974]

NIOSH has recommended that workers exposed to certain
substances refrain from smoking, but that this curtailment should
also be accompanied by simultaneous control of occupational ex-
posures to toxic physical and chemical agents. [SG 1979, p. 7:18]
Lung Proteetion

Among the main protective mechaniims Of the lungs are

EMPHYSEMA, CHRONIC BRONCHITIS AND
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the ciliatiny hairlike structures which line airways and beat, like a

waving field of grain, moving the mucus blanket constantly out-

ward. This process rids the lungs of foreign particles. Inhaled

smoke stops the movement of cilia and gradually destroys them.

. The respiratory Mucus blanket is, itself, secreted by gob/et

cells. When the lining cells of the lung are denuded, the number of

goblet cells increases as does mucus production. This is thought

to be one mechanism that initiates bronchitis in smokers.
Another way lungs clear themselves of foreign matter is

through the activity of macrophages, a type of cell whose func-

tion is to ingest foreign matter and transport it, via the blood or
lymph systems, to one of the body's excretory organs.This process

is known as phagocytosis. The actiirity of the macrophages is also
inhibited by cigarette smoke. [SG 1971, p. 1761 [SG 1979, p. 6-81]

Other Effects of Smoke
Two other major possibilities of how smoking may damage

the lungs are: :
1. 'Altering Protea.se-Antiprotease Balance

. Emphysema is characterized by irreversible destruiton of
tissue, mainly of the protein elastin, an important component of
lung connective tissue. Elastin can be attacked and destroyed by

enzymes called proteases, released by white blood cells and macro- s

phages, as part of the body's normal defense mechanisms. Anti-
proteases, found primarily in blood serum, serve to check proteases.

If, for any reason, this balance is upset and excess protease accu-

mulates, it digests elastin, permanently destroys lung tissue, and

enlarges respiratory airmaces.
Smoking is the major factor in upsetting the bodily balance

between proteases and antiproteases. The damage is done to
macrophages, to which cigarette smoke is toxic. When these cells

are injured by exposure to smoke, they die, releasing large quanti-

ties of proteases in the process. Furthermore, antiproteases are
inhibited from counteracting protease activity in the presence of ...
cigarette smoke. [SG 1979,6-26401

2, Compromising Immune Mechanisms
Inhalation of tobacco smoke produces signiEcant changes in

immune mechanisms in both animals and people. The ability of
...

'
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macrophages to engulf bacteria and other foreign substances is im-
paired in smokers, and the total number of macrophages is fn.
creased. Changes in their ultrastructure have alio been observed in

, smokers, which are absent in nonsmokers. . .

Lymphocytes ( white cells), important in the bodYi de.fense
system, have been recovered in greater numbers ( by human
bronchopu/monary lavage) from smokers than from nonsmokers.

These observations indicate considerable physiological im-
. pairment of immune mechanisms insmokers.[SC 1979, p. 630-32]

Conclusions

"Cigarette smoking, even in,young,:age groups, produces
lung damage. Cessation of smoking leads tNat least partial resolu-
ticip of symptoms. Pulmonary function and histologic abnormalities
have been observed in yound smokers, confirming clinical suspi-
cions of lung damage in this group."

". . . pulmonary functional abnormalities, believed to repre-
412 sent small airway dysfunction, occurs ( sic) in smokers . . . It has 44'

been suggested that Such changes may be precursors of more
extensive anatomic-functional abnormalities if smoking were
continued." ,

". A number of recent investigations have suggested that
destruclive lung changes . . . may,result from excesi liberation of
or failure to inhibit, puiteases in the lung. Cigarette smoke has
-been demonstrated to impair a variety of functions of the human
alveolar macro hage," IF

"Most the differences in the prevalance gf chronic bron-
chitis in s ects of differing occupational, educational, or income

asses can be attributed to differences in smoking1/4habits." [SG
1979, pp. 649-42]

a ,

if
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ViSMOICING AND PREGNANCY
"DRUG M*ETABOLISM, MEDICAL TESTS

Pregnancy and Infant Health
More and more data show that cigarette smoking during

pregnancy has a significant adverse effect upon the well-being of

the fetus, the health of the newborn baby, and the future develop-

ment of the infant and child.

Stillbirth and Low Birthweight
Women who -inoke during pregnancy have significantly

more stillbirths, and more of their babies die during the first month

of infancy, than those of non-smokinimothe study of 2,000
pregnant women concluded thi3t 20 percent Of the unsjIcessfuI

pregnancies 'would have been successful j,f,the3mo r had not
been a regular smoker." (Russell, C. S., Another Hazard of Smok-

ing, New Scientist, 41 (631) p. 64-65, January, 1965)
A prospective British study of 17,000 births jhowed that

-the mortality in babies of smokers was sivificatly higher than in

those of nonsmokers." The reason: "thegiCess of low birthweight

babies* [Butler, N. R., Alberman, E. D:, Prenatal Pmblems, Edin-

burgh, E. & S. Livingstone, Ltd. 1969, p. 7244]
"Low birthweight" refers to babies preniature'by weight,

(under 514 pounds.) In a study of 100,000 births, smoking mothers'

babies weighed on the average 6.1 ounces less than those of lion-

s oking mothers. [SG 1971, p. 389, also Table 2, pp. 397-399]
Low birthweight is related more to smoking than to any

.o er factor. And it is related to theiengthof time the pregnant
w man smokes before giving birth. In 48,-000 pregnancies, the

thers who did not smoke had the largest babies; those who

s oked during only the first part of their pregnancy, haq smaller

bies; and those who smoked during the entire pregnahey had

e smallest babies. [SG 1971, p. 389-390]
The more a woman smokes during pregnancy, the greater,

the reduction jn her infant's birth weight, according to a large

number of studies. However, if a woman gives up smoking during

pregnabcy, her risk of delivering a low-birth-weight baby be-

comes similar to that of a nonsmoker. [SG 1979, p.8,121

In one large study, the most significant differences between

smoking and nonsmoking pregnant women, in risk of "perinatar

46
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death (in the developed fetus or soon after birth) and in preg-
nancy complications, were found to occur at the gestational ages
from 20 weeks to 32 to 38 weeks. [Meyer, M. B., Tonascia, J. A.,
Maternal smoking, pregnancy complications, and perinatal mortal-
ity, American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology 128 (5): 494-
502, July 1, 1977]

Physiologic Effects in Pregnancy
Smoking causes an increase in the amount of carbon mon-

oxide in the blood, and, therefore, a decrease in its oxygen content.
When a pregnant woman smokes, this oxygen-poor blood cir-
culates through the fetus. Dr. L D. Longo stated that "the de-
creased availability of oxygen . . . is probably injurious to fetal
tissue." [Carbon Monoxide in the Pregnant Mpther and Fetus,
Annals of the N.Y. Academy of Sciences 174 (1): 313-341, October
5, )270]

When rats and rabbits are exposed to nicotine or cigarette
smoke, they have more unsuccessful pregnancies and smaller off-
spring than control animals. Studies in mice have showed that
nicotine (and it m'etabolites) accumulate in the placentathe
membrane around the fetusand pass into the fetus. [SG 1971, pp.
407 and 415]

In one of the few studies of simulated marijuana smoking in
animals, it was reported that guinea pigs exposed to marijuana
smoke showed an increased maternal heart rate during the smok-
ing period, and changes were observed in both maternal and fetal
electroencephalograms. [Singer, P. R., Scibetta, J. J., Rosen, M. G.
Simulated marijuana.smoking in the matemal and fetal guinea pig.
American Journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology 117. 331-340,
October 1, 1973]

Long-Term Effects in Children
A long-term follow-up study showed that when the mothers

had been heavy smokers during pregnancy, their children at the
age of seven were shorter in stature and had retarded reading
ability and lower ratings on "social adjustment" than the children
of nonsmoking Mothers. [Butler, N. R. A National Long-Term
Study of Perinatal Hazards, presented at 6th 'World Congress of
Gynecology-Obstetrics, New York, April 12-18, 1970, 11 pp.]

Another long-term study demonstrated some signiffpant dif-
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ferences in favor of nonsmokers' children with respect to behavior
ratings and school plavement. ()Dunn, H. G., McBurney, A. K.,
Ingram, S., Hunter, C. M. Maternal cigarette smoking during preg-
nancy and the child's subsequent development. II Neurological
and intellectual maturation to the age of 64 years. Canadian Jour-
nal of Public Health 43-50, January/February 1977]

Peptic Ulcer
Male cigarette smokers get more stomach ulcers and also

die of peptic ulcer more often than do nonsmokers. Antacid treat-
ment for stomach ulcer is less effective in smokers than in non-
smokers, and hearmg is slower. (SG)971, p. 423f

In one study, the interrelationships among coffee, alcohol,
and smoking were examined in 36,656 men and women, aged'30 to

59; 2,597 of them bad a history of peptic ulcer disease. Men who

smoked had a 2.1-fold greater frequency of ulcer disease than
those who did not smoke and women had a 1.6-fold geater fre-
quency. Neither coffee drinking nor alcohol consumption alone
was related to inveasedoccurrence of peptic ulcerdisease. [Fried-
man, G. D., Siegelaub, A. B., Seltzer, C. C. Cigarettes, alcohol,
coffee and peptic ulcer. The New England Journal of Medicine
290 (9): 469-5 473, February 28, 1974]

In studies done at different times and in four different
countries ( Britain, Poland, Israel, and the United States ), peptic
ulcer was found 70 to 90 percent more frequently in both men
and women who smoked than in nonsi35rers. Ex-smokers also had
consistently greater evidence of peptic ulcer. [SG 1979, p. 9-8]

Allergy and Pharmacology
Tobacco and its products, including smoke, can affect the

immtine system ifftsim ways. as atagews, where-they interact with
thp immune system to induce specific responses such as production
of antibodies or sensitized cells, or as irritant, pharmacologic, and
toxic agents, interacting with the host defense system and in-
fluencing the functional ability of these elements.

There is evidence that tobacco leaf and its products are.'"
antigenic in animals and man, but the evidence that tobacco smoke

is antigenic in man is meager and controversial at present. [SG

1979, p. 10-9] Nicotine is not the responsible antigenic component
of tobacco leaf, but five plant proteins have been isolated from

SMOKING AND PREGN'AtICY
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tobacco leaf and found to possess the property of precipitating
human sera, a test for antigenicity. Wanifotopoulos, S., Cotsis, N.,
Papazoglou, N., Commis, L. Antigenic study of nicotiana taba-
cum and research on precipitins against tobacco antigens in the

olserum of smokers and nonsmokers. Allerg et unopatho-
logia 2 (1 ): 111-114, January/Pebruary 197 )

Asthma,or hay fever affect as much as 1 to 17 percent of
the population in the United States. Studies of active and passij,e
smoking have shown that allergic individuals, especially those
with asthma or rhinitis, may, in fact, be more sensitive to the non-
specific noxious effects of cigarette smoke than healthy individuals.
[SC 1979, p. 10-24]

Effect of Passive Smoking: Pharmacology

Tobacco smoke can be a significant source of atmospheric
Pollution in enclosed areas. The total smoke exposure of nonsmok-
ers is much smaller than that ot smokers, but the ambient smoke
may be qualitatively richer in certain compounds, such as nicotine,
carbon monoxide and ammonia. There are no data linking in-
creased risk of lung cancer to passive inhalation of tobacco smoke.

Nicotine in the air is of concern because it is considered to
be one of the factors contributing to atherosclerotic cardiovascular
disease in cigarette smokers. However, urinary nicotine measured
in nonsmokers under conditions of severe tobacco smoke pollution
showed values substantially below those for urinary nicotinein
smokers. [Russell, M. A. H., Feyerabend, C., Blood and urinary
nicotine in nonsmokers. Lancet 1 ( 7900): 179-181, 1975]

Carbon monoxide, at levels occasipnally found in smoke-
-filleZenvironments, can produce slight deterioration in attentive-
ness and cognitive function. But effects of carbon monoxide at
levels found in motor vehicles, for example, were found to be in-
significant. The combined effect of alcohol and carbon monoxide
could be demonstrated. [Medical College of Wisconsin. Exposure
of humans to carbon monoxide combined with ingestion of ethyl
alcohol and the comparison of human performance when exposed
for varying periods of time to carbon monoxide. Medical College
of Wisconsin, Department of Environmental Medicine, Mil-
waukee, 1974, 39 pp.)

SMOKING AND PREGNANCY
DRUG METABOLISM, MEDICAL TESTS 49

cA54

F



150

Adult Reactions to Passive Smoking

In a -1975 telephone survey, smokers and nonsmokers were
asked: "Is it annoying to be near a person who is smoking cigar-
ettes?' Thirty-five percent of male smokers and 34.5 percent of
female smokers replied 'Yes" as did 77 percent of males and 80.5

percent of females who bad never smoked. Effects of ambient
smoke vary with the individual, ranging frpm minor eye and throat

irritations to anginal attacks. [National Clearinghouse for Smoking

and Health. Adult Use of Tobacco, 1975. US. Department of
Health, Education, and Welfare, Public Health Service, Center

for Disease Control, Bureau of Health Education, National Insti-
tutes of Health, National Cancer Institute, National Clearinghouse
for Smoking and Health, June 1976, 23 pp.)

Passive Inhalation in Children
"The risk of a young infant developing bronchitis or pneu-

monia in the first year of life is doubled if its parents smoke. The

risk is increased if the parents also cough and produce phlegm.
Wheezing in children up to age five is more common if the parents

smoke. A study of 4,000 Paris schoolchildren and students ages
10-20 ;bowed that adnoidectomy and/or tonsillectomy, considered

as an index of repeated upper respiratory tract disease in early
childhood, was very significantly related to the amount of smoking

by each parent. [WHO 1979, p. 221

hit eractions of Smoking with Other Substances
Since cigarette smoke is a complex mixture of noxious sub-

stances, it is not surprising that it can affect and interact with
drugs, food constituents, and responses to diagnostic tests. Much

-oftre-experimental work in man, animals and tissues indicates that ,

the dominant drug-interaction effect of smoking involves enzymes

in the liver.

Phenacetin and Theophyline
". . . the frequency of altered disposition and pharmacolog-

icareffects of many common drugs in smokers make it apparent
that cigarette smoking should be considered as one of the primary

sources of drug interactions in man." [SC.1979, p. 12-23] As one
example, studies in man and animals given pbenacetin, a common

pain killer, show lower levels of phenacetin in smokers than in non-
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smokers. Researchers attauted this to increased metabolism.of
the driug by enzymes. "Cigarette smoking may necessitate modi-
fication of drug therapy and later organ fuation or responsive-
ness.'" [SG 1979, p. 12-28] The dosing of theophyline, a broncho-
dilator with a narrow therapeutic range, is seriously affected by
smoking.

Analgesic and ,Psychotropir Drugs

"Smokers differ from nonsmokers in their pain threshold,
psychosomatic charqcteristics and drug consumption, the presence
,of substances, it ch as nicotine, which cause competing or additive
pharmacological effects, May complicate the action of drugs used
in treating pain or anxiety [SG 1979, p. 12-45]

Marijuana

Marijuana smoking also affects liver enzymes concerned
with drug disposition. It has recently been estimated that 13 mil-
lion people in the United States now smoke marijuana. [Abramo-
wIcz, M. (Editor ), Marijuana. Medical Letter on "Drug and
Therapeutics. 18 ( 17 ): 69-70, August 13, 1976]

The Pill

In 1973, a report was published stating that cigarette smok-
ing might enhance the risk of thromboembolism or cardiovascular
disease in women who use oral contraceptives. A subsequent re-
port showed that women who took the pill and smoked one pack
of cigarettes per day had a 200 percent hie/eased risk of a stroke.
[Collaborative Group for the Study of Stroke in Young Women.
Oral contraceptives and stroke in young women: Associated risk
factors. Journal of theAmerican.Medical_Assorin don 23147 718-
722, February 17, 1975.] In another study of oral contraceptive
users, the relative-riskof heartattacksincrea,sed from 1.2 in women
smoking fewer than 15 cigarettes a day, to 4.1 in womensmoking
15 to 24 cigarettes,a day, and to 11.3 in women smoking 25 or more
cigarettes a day. [Mann, J. I., Vessey, M. P., Thorogood, M., Doll,
R. Myocardial infarction in young women with special reference to
oral contraceptive practice. British Medical Journal 2: 241-245,
May 3, 1975] A third study showed excess annual deaths of 1 per
10,000 for oral contraceptive users who had quit smoking and 1 per
3,000 users who continued to smoke.
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Obesity
Although many individuals who have given up smoking

report significant weight gains, there is no measureable change in

resting metabolic rate in former smokers who have quit. [Sims,

E. A. H. Experimental obesity, dietary-induced thermogenesis, and

their clinical implications. Clinics in Endocrinology and Metabo-

lism. 5 ( 2 ) : 377,395, July 1978]

Anthlyopia, Osteoporosis,V itamins
Smoking is linked with amblyopia (an eye disease) and

osteoporosis (loss of calcium from the body). "Smoking causes

changes in plasma and leukocyte concentrations of vitamin C and

impairs biochemical functions of this vitamin. Vitamin B-12 is
metabolized in the detoxification process of cyanide derived from

smoking. Some heavy smokers develop an aniblyopia which is re-

versed by either vitamin B-12 supplementation or termination of

smoking. Evidence is also presented suggesting that smoking may

alter the metabolism of lipids, carbohydrates, proteins, and other

vitamins such as vitamin B-6." [SG 1979,p. 12-68]

Diagnoslic Tests -

Testing normal individuals, not suffering from any smoking-

related disease or any other disease, rqsearcpers have found that

"smoking causes significant changes in the 'normal' values in vari-

ous biochemical and clinical tests that may be done routinely in a

clinical laboratory.' Such tests include white blood cell counts

(higher in smokers), measurements of other blood components
(smokers "showed increases in hemoglobin, hematocrit and mean

corpuscular volume"), Some studies have 'found higher choles-

terol levels in heavy smokers; others have not. Smoking seems to

decrease creatinine, albumin and-folulinlevelsTIncrease -uric
acid. Platelets, a clotting factor in blood, go up in smokers, as do

other blood viscosity factors: fibrinogen,,plasma viscosity, and red

cell aggegation. [SG 1979, pp. 12-79, 82, 83,84, 16..

Carcinoembryonic antigen (CEA), a rker for certain

cancers used to monitor treatment, is elevated in smokers; the

blood levels of CEA decline to normal levels three months after

quitting smoking.
Among the Surgeon General's conclusions:
"The majority of the blood components elevated due to ciga-
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. rette smoking appear to revert to approximately normal levels after
cessation of smold.ng.

Me smoking status of an individual sho be included in
reports of clinical/diagnostic tests performq:1 oikthat individu4."
[SG 1979, p. 12-871

Smoking and Fires
.

. In 1979, the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)
reported that more fatal fires are caused bY cigarettes than by any
other source of combustion. These fires resjylt.in an estimated 2,500
deaths each year in the United States. In a special analysis.of the
ignition of fatal fires reported to the Association for the years 1971-
1978, the NFPA found that cigarette-caused fires account for 40.2
percent of fatal fires with known ignition sources and 34.9 percent
of corresponding fire deaths. The next leading accidental ignition
sOurce ( match, lighter, candle ) accounts for 9.9 percent of the fatal
fires and 913 percent of the fire deaths. Many of these are also
related to smoking.

The Naliorfil-FirProtection Association analyzed the /host
common areas of fire origin and materials ignited in fatal fires
started by cigarettes in Table V, p. 54.

In addition to the fatalities, an NFPA analysis found that atatleast 25,000 people we injured during 1977 in residential fires
ignited by cigarettes a that approximately $313 million in prop-
erty was lost in these fires. .

California State Fire Marshal Philip C. Fivro testified tor)
March 22, 1977 at the first session of the American Cancer Society's
National Commission, on Smoking and Public Policy, held in Los
Angeles, that of more than 1.2 million fires in the United States in

--19757-abour19-perc-ent,-nr225,b00-,-were causedhy smoking.

SMOKING AND PREGNANCY
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Table V

FATAL FIRES STARTED BY CIGARETTES

The Top Ten Ignition Scenarios

Material Set
On Fue

' Area Where
Started

Percent
of Deaths

Percent
of Fire

Upholstered furnitpre Living room 43.9 40.1

Bedding Bedroom 30.8 34.3

Upholstered furniture Bedrooms 2.9 3.1

Bedding Living room 2.4 2.3

Rubbish Kitchen. 2.3 1.7'"

Clothes on a person Bedroom 1.9 2.7

Clothes on a person Living room 1.5 2.1

Soft goods other than
bedding or clothes
on a person Bedroom 1.3 1.2

Clothes on a person Kitchen 1.0 1.4

Furniture
(type undetermined) Living room 1.0 0.7

Source: National Fire Protection Association.
Based on 3,037 deaths in 2,131 accidental fires in the United States reported

to the Msociation for the years 1971-1978. The ten scenarios in this Table

accounted for 89.0 percent of these deaths and 89.6 of these fires.
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SMOK19G HABIT:
PSYCHOLOGY AND PHARMACOLOGY

Smoking is a complex act involving learned behavior, Plea-
sureor reduction of unpleasant situationsa stimulating and pos-
sibly habituating and/or addictive drug (nicotine), and a variety
of other chemicals with an enormous number of physiological
effects. Most research In helping smokers quit hai used learning
theory, based on behavior modification.

Learning theory regards smoking as belukvior acquired
under social -reinforcement, typically peer pressuresince most
smokers begin as teenagers when peer pressure is most potent. At
first inhaling tobacco smoke is repugnant. Each puff increases
physical tolerance, and builds the habit. Eventually, smoking pro-
duces enough reinforcement to sustain itself without social pres-
sures.

The number of emotional events, both positive and nega-
tive, that can influence smoking is potentially very great. To modify
smoking behavior may require a variety of intervention techniques
in a spectrum of situations. And it is complicated by the fact that
smoking provides instant reinforcement from the physiologically
powerful drug, nicotine. [SG, 1979, pp. 16-5-7]

Nicotine

Nicotine from an inhaled cigarette reaches the brain in
seven seconds (twice as fast as from an intravenous injection). A

' pack-a-day smoker takes more than 70,000 puffs a year, a frequency
of "shots" unmatched by any other drug taking. Thus, the habit is
tremendously "overlearned," And its serious ill effects, of which
smokers are aware, come years later; thus seem very remote.

Nicotine is the most powerful pharmacological Agent in
cigarette smoke; other ingredients that exert chemical effects on
the boay are carbon monoxide and tar (particulate matter, a mix-
ture of several thousand chemicals.) One study in which tar and
nicotine were varied and dissociated, showed that the number of
cigarettes smoked was related to the nicotine content but not to
the tar. IClauser, S. C., Glauser, E. M., Reidenberg, M. M., Rusy,
B. F., Tallarida, R. J. Metabolic effect in man of the cessation of
smoking. Pharmacologist 11 (2): 283, 1969. ( Abstract)]
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The results are consistent with the idea that people smoke

tobacco to obtain nicotine although smokers will smoke nicotine-

hee cigarettes.
Many report that they _smoke when stressed. Some investi-

gators consider that nicotine is the primary reinforcer because of

its role in reducing tension and distress, associated with nicotine
deprivation. But the evidence is not conclusive. [Jarvik,, M. E.,

Biological factors underlying the smoking habit. In Jarvik, M. E.,

Cullen, J. W., Gritz, E. R., Vogt, T. M., West, L. J. ( Editors). Re-

search on Smoking Behavior. N1DA Research Monograph No. 17.

U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Public
Health Service, Alcohol, Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Admin-

istrant*, National Institute on Drug Abuse, DHEW Publication
No. (ADM ) 78-581, December 1977, pp. 122-148] [SG 1979, p.

15-8]

Genetic Predisposition
An ongoing study using identical twins has reported evi-

dence of a genetic predisposition to smoke. However, this seems

doubtful. The most recent review concludes that "the theory of
genetic predisposition is disproved by the smoking discordance

among monozygotic [identical] twins." [Ramström, Lars, M., Ph.D.,

"The Swedish Twin StudyPublicity & Criticism," World Smoking

& Health, 3 (2): 14-19, 1978]

Hormonal Factors
Hormonal changes in puberty occur at about the same time

that individuals start sinoking; thus, endocrine responses and
smoking have been examined for possible links with smoking.

Growth hormone and ACTH were measured in nonsmokers

after smoking two cigarettes. A rapid increase in both hormones

was observed, but no significant change in others, e.g. LH ( lutein-

izing hormone), FSH ( follicle stimulating hormone, TSH (thyroid

stimulating hormone), and testosterone (male hormone) levels.

[Winternitz, W. W., Quillen, D. Acute hormonal response to cigar-

ette smoking. Journal of Clinical Pharmacology 17 ( 7): 389-397,

July 19771 Vasopressin (a hormone affecting the contraction of

blood vessels ) levels are also affected by nicotine.

Smoking Cessation
Significant physiological changes occur immediately on

THE SMOKING HABIT:
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smoking cessation in heart rate, diastolic' blood pressure, excre-
tion of adrenalin and norepinephrine, EEG, cortical alpha activity
of the brain, and cardiopulmonary function tests.

Many ex-smokers report feelings of well-being and im-
proved health, but others experience a wide variety of temporary
unpleasant side effects including craving for tobacco, irritability,
restlessness, dullness, sleep and gastrointestinal disturbances,
anxiety, impairment oi concentranon, judgment, and psychomotor
p...;-. formance.

Withdrawal symptoms of varying severity following cessa-
tion are the principal reasons cited for relapse to smoking. Women
are more likely to fail in smoking cessation efforts thA men, and
itis possible that there is a sex difference in withdrawal s oms.
(Guilford, J. S., Factors \Related to Successful Abstinence from
Smoking. Pittsburgh, Am6rican Institutes for Research, July 1966,
171 pp.}

Sndfking in Adolescents and Children.

The decrease in adult smoking since 1964 is paralleled to a
lesser degree among teenage boys and younger teenage girls, al-
though among ..older teenage girls (17-18) it continues to increase
sharply. Hundreds of studies have been conducted by behavioral
scientists Man effort to understand the complex factors involved
in the initiation of smoking in this group. Such information is
essential to create effective programs to persuade young people not
to start smoking. '

Between the ages of 4 to9 or 10, children accept the fact
that smoking is hazardous to health. At this age they express
anxiety when they observe a parent or older sibling smoking. Yet
as they approach adolescence, many Of these same-children-may
begin to smoke.

Adolescent Transition
-

Adolescence is the time of transition from self-definition as
a family member to identification with the peer group as a source
of status. Becoming a smoker may have the immediate value of
being accepted by peers, of feeling more mature because smoking
is an adult behavior forbidden the child, and may also serve as an
act of defiance to authority figures. t

The smoking pare becomes a model for the child. If both

e THE SMOKING HABIT:
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parents smoke, there is a greater likelihood that the child will
begin smoking than if only one or neither parent smokes. On the
other hand, parental disapproval of smoking is not a significant

factor to the teenager. Both smoking and nonsmoking junior high

school students in one study recognized that their .parents dis-

approved of their smoking behavior. [SG 1979, pp. 17-13, 14]

Teenage Influences
The smoking behavior Of older siblings is a possible in=

fluence on Aiounger children. Twenty-eight to 30 percent of the

boys and 25 to 26 percent of the girls who report regular smoking
also have older siblings who smoke. If an older sibling and both
parents smoke. a child is four times as likely to smoke as a child
who has no smoking model in the family. [SG 1979, p. 17-14]

Teenagers who are employed outside the home are twice as
likely to smoke as teenagers who are not employed. Students who

plan to go to college are the least likely to smoke. Children in lower
socioeconomic levels are more likely to smoke but socioeconomic
status correlates less with smoking than with parvtal smoking or

poor scholastic performace,*e infhience of the mass media in the
initiation of smoking is dircult to establish.

Teenage smokers seldom consider the decision to smoke a

wise one. In an American Cancer Society study, 78 percent of 4th
graders associated smoking with cancer. Seventy-seven percent of

teenage smokers believe that it is better not to start smoking than

to have to quit. Eighty-four percent say smoking is habit forming,
and 68 percent.think that it is a bad habit. [SC 1979, p. 17-81

Decisions
In view of this, the U.S. Public Health Service suggests: "It

is fiitiTe to eoWinue to tell teenagers that-smoking-is harmful,-
The most effective thing that we can do is to help them to under-

stand the benefits of smoking as compared With the costs and dan-

gers so that they will have the facts that they need to make a
thoughtful decision as to whether to smoke or not to smoke."
[National Institutes of Health, Teenage Smoking National Pat-

terns of Cigarette Smoking, ages 12 through 18 in 1972 and 1974
U.S. Department of Health, Education, and Welfare, Public Health

Service, National Institutes of Health, DHEW publication, No.

( NIH) 76-931, 1976, 125 pp.]
"Perhaps the real question to be answered is: why do we

THE SMOKING HABIT:
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knoWingly choo'se to engage i self-destructive behavior when so
ranch of our energy is directed toward preserving our livesr [SC
1979, p. 17-251 i
Psychosociallquences
Personality Traits of Adult Smokeis

Many sttidieihave attempted to correlate the smeikingerabit
with various personality traits. A large British study found, that
smokeis are greater risk-tak&s, more tmpursive, more prone to
divorce and lob changing, more lnterestI in sex and more likely
to drink tea,tcoffee and alcohol. [ ., Kiernan, K. Personal-
ity scores and irnolcing-behvilor. A lngitudinaI study. British
journal of Preventive aid Social Medicine 30(2): 123- e
1976.] In general, smokers seem to toe toward extrove -
*ling excitement, willing take risks, liking parties; they are
sociable, carefree and going, and maY be aggressive. Non-
smokers tend to be ertsintrospective, retiring, booll,
prudent, emotionally controlled, passive, and reliable.

Internal-External Control, ..
Four of five studies showed smokers to be more externally

controlled 'than nonsmokers. Internalized-controlled individuals
tend to belleve,that they are masters of whit happens to thpm;
externally controlled persons tend to look to fate, luck pr things
beyond their control to bring them their rewards. [SC 1979, pp.
18-0, 9]

. ,... f
Drug Taking

Of six.personality factors in drug taking, two mos linked
with smoking were 1) general tendency to use drugs and 2 "fear

, of-personal-reaction-to-drugs." Smokers of tobacco consume- re
marijuana, more psychotropic drugs, ana more aspirin than do
nonsmokers of tobacco. [SC 1979,p. 18-14

Ex-Smokers' Personality

Former smokeSs express aggression more openly than either
nonsmokers or smokers who never tried to stop; tfle`y alma have a
'stronger need for achievement than any other group, a lesser need
for close ties with peers, and more behavioral stability than the
other groups. Neuroticism and extroversion are.associated with the
ability to abstain from smoking. Such individuali are high in ex-

THE SMOWIC HABIT :
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troversion and low in neuroticism. Male quitters are more sociable

-and more extroverted in thelr behavior. No relationship has been
found between education level and smoking cessation.-Successful

quitlers are more likely to be males than females. [SG 1979, pp.

18-17-19)

Force of Habit
There is mo evidence that the number oi cigarettes

snioked per day is direc y, and often markedly, related to inability

to quit smoking: [West, D. W., Graham, S., Swanson, M., Wilkin-

son, G. Five year follow-up of a smoking withdrawal clinic popula-

tion. AmeriCan Journal of Public Health 67(6): 536-544, June

1977)

How to Quit
It has been estimated that 95 percent of the more than 30

million smokers who have quit since 1964 have done so on their
own. About one third or fewer of smokers who are motivated to
quit are interested in formal programs, a potential audience of per-
haps 15 million Americans. However, only a small minority of those

who express an interest in quitting actually a5end siich programs,
perhaps because they are not universally avdilable. The American
Cancer Society has expanded its activities in this area since it is

known that about 30 percent of smokers who participate in such

programs are still not smoking one year later.
There have been great advances in information about smok-

ing cessation methods in recent years, mainly based on large-scale
coronary prevention trials and research clinic experience. The most
critiCal concern is the validity of the self-report data. This has

been questioned in up to 20 percent of clinic participants. Carbon
monoxide in the blood appears to be a more reliable measure of

smoking behavior than self-reporting.

tr,

Education and Prevention
Vast numbers of antismoking programs exist for both young

peoplend adults. Nevertheless, it is still not known what forms of

education are most effective in keeping young ri ople from moving
from experimentation with cigarettes to becomin ahitual smok-
ers. And it is still not known how best to help adullgive up the
smoking habit.

THE SMOKING HABIT:
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Teenagers (68 percent of girls and 67percent of boys) per-
ceive teachers as likely to be smokers. Yet an American Cancer

ty id that only 23 percent of female teachers and
18 ! - - . t of male eachers actually smoke. [SC 1979, p. 17-15)

kfost states support education as a potentially important
ans of preventing smoking and influencing cessation of smok-

mg, although results to date from such programs are far from satis-
factory. In 35 states, school policies on smoking education are
based on state laws which expressly prohibit minors from smoking
on school property. Yet the impaet is believed to be negligible.

-.
.,
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VIIISMOICINC ECONOMICS AND STATISTICS

'Smoking results in a considerably increased morbidity rate,

with its consequent loss of working clays, absenteeism and exces-

sive demands on medical services, both for primary and for hospital

care. The cost to the conimunity of premature death, increased ill-

ness, and loss of productive capacity resulting from cigarette

smoking is very high in countries where the habit has been common

for a long time." [WHO 1979, p. 10]
In the Uftited States, it was estimated in 1976 that the

average smoker spent $240 a year for 506 packages of cigarettes.

Total retail expenditures for tobacco accounted for approximately

1.5 percent of disposable income. [Smoking and Alcohol Abuse;

Luce, B. R. and Schweitier, S. 0. World Smoking and Health, Vol.

8, No. 2, Summer 1978, pp. 27-31]
Per capita cost for smoking-related disease is estimated at

$454 annually in the United States. Total cost in the United States

for major smoking-related disease and fires, including health care,

lost earnings through morbidity and mortality, and property costs

was estimated at $27,539,700,0110 in 1976. This is 11.3 percent of

the comparable aggregate costs of all U.S. illness. Total ost-of-
pocket health care cost of smoking-related diseases was estimated

at $8.2 billion in 1976, approximately 7.8 percent of all U.S. health

care costs. ( ibid). '

Tobacco Fanning
Peak periods of tobacco-growing coincide with times when

agricultural labor is needed for other crops; hence, in developing

countries tobacco farming may interfere with the food supply.

Farmers in such countries are generally in debt to private com-

panies; a large proportion of their income goes to transnational
tobacco companies. Since most countries export little of their

tobacco crap, it &As not aid their balance of paymeqts. [WHO

1979, p. 331
"Tobacco-growing is helping to spread deserts, because

huge quantities of firewood are cut annually from threatened

forests to provide heat for curing the tobacco." [WHO, 1979 p. 331

U.S.ToTacco Economics
Tobacco is a cash crop in 16 states of this country, and
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dominates the agriculture of several, most notably North Carolina
and Kentucky'. It Is also a major industry, whose customers spent
$18 billion for its manufactured products in the U.S. in 1978, of
which $16,580,000,000.went for cigarettes. Federal, state and local
governments collected $6,270,000,000 in tobacco excise, sales and
guskoms taxes in fiscal 1978. U.S. tobacco exports were valued at
$2,120,000,000 in that year. Tobacco imports the same year totaled
$423,000,000 exclusive of duty'.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture has spent well over
$1.5 billion on tobacco programs since 1933. Current tobacco price
support loansnf the Department's Commodity Credit Corporation
total $750 million. Total of all such loans since 1933 is about $6 bil-
lion. Almost no interett has been paid on these loans to the govern-
ment, although the Department of Agriculture paid well over $500
million in interest to the U.S. Treaiusy through June 80, 1974, to
borrow the moniy. Net losses on loan principal totalled $55 million
by 1974.3 Department of Agriculture budget for tobacco loan ser-
vice, tobacco inspection, marketing news and tobacco research was
$54 million in fiscal 1978.2

It is interesting to note that Ell legislation thus 'far passed
has exempted U.S. cigarettes sold in export from using the warning
label, except those shipped to the U.S. Armed Forces overseat.

Consumers the world over spend an estimated $85 to $100
billion each year to buy four trillion cigarettes, about 1,000 cigar-
ettes for every man, woman and child in the world. [Erik Eckholm,
Worldwatch Paper 18, March 1978, WOrldwatch Institute, Wash-
ington, D.C.]

Consumption

From 1925 to 1950 the per capita consumption of cigarettes
of persons 18 years old and older in the United States rose steadily,
from 1,285 to 3,522 cigarettes per year. There was a dip in 1954, the
year when the American Cancer Society first published results of
its first major prospective study of the effects of smoking on health
(see p. 77). U.S. per capita consumption reached its peak in 1963

1. Tobacco in the National Economy, U.S. Department of Agriculture, ASC.%
Muck 1970, p. 3.

2. Tobaoro Situation, Huck 1979, p. 17.
3. History & Evaluation of Tobacco Program 1933-74, Crave, E. Raper. 20th. National

Tobacco wooers Conference. Jan. 27-30, 1915, Charleston, S.C. Unpublished. Dept.
pi Agriculture document.
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at 4,336 cigarettes, and declined in 1964, the year of the first -Sur-

geon General's Report." It declined again between 1968 and 1970,

ihe period of intensive broidcasting of anti-smoking messages by

the major TV and radio networks and stations. (The value of these
messages in commercial time was estimated at $75 million.) [SG
1979 pp. A-5, 6, 7] In the last four years, U.S. per capita consump-
tion has declined. In 1979 it was at the lowest point since 1958.

It is assumed that the events mentioned in conjunction with

the declines in per capita consumption were operative factors, but

there is no way.to prove this.
Until 1967, the only assays of tar and nicotine content of

certain popular brands of U.S. cigarettes available to the public
were published in Reader's Digest magazine, and Consumers
Union Reports. In 1967, the Federal Trade Commission laboratory
began publishing its own assays of tar and nicotine in all U.S. ciga-
rette brands and has continued to do so every six months.

Per Capita and Total Decline
Both the per capita and total cigarette consumption have

declined consistently in the United States since 1973, reversing a
general 90-year trend. The estimated percentages of men and

women over age 18 who smoke cigarettes have also declined.
Among men, 52.6 percent f adults smoked in 1955; this has
dropped to 39.3 percent in 1975.* The percentage of female smok-

ers rose from 24.5 percent in 1955 to a peak of 33.7 percent in 1966,
and retreated to 28.9 percent in 1975. Percentages of ex-smokers

among men have risen from 10.9 percent in 1955 to 29.2 percent in
1975; among women from 3.9 percent in 1955 to 14.5 percent in

1976. [SG 1979Table 2, p. A-10]
Although the percentage of the U.S. population that smokes

is smaller than it was a decade ago (see below), the United States
retains its longstanding title as the world's premier cigarette-
smoking country: in the mid-seventies, annual U.S. cigarette con-
sumption was 2,750 cigarettes per capita for all citizens of all ages;

Japan was second with zeoo.

Haw Many Smokers?
In absolute numbers, there were an estimated 53.3 million

Speech of Joseph A. Califano, Jr., Secretary of Health, Education andWelfare, April
1979, San Francisco, CAW. Published in new News..
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U.S. cigarette smokers in 1965, and 54.1 million in 197& of whOm
48 million were over the age of 18. This sinall numerical groyth
trailed behind the Increase in population, it represents, in absolute
nurnbers,8.5 percent fewer male smokers and 11.1 percent more
female smokers. [SG 1979, pp. A-11(

Most current cigarette smokers began smoking in their
teens. Today, in the United States, there are 3.3 million regular
teenage smokers, 12 to 18 years of age, representing 12 percent
of this age group. This is a drop of four percentage points since
1974, according to Secretary Joseph A. Califano, Jr., of HEW. He
gives his sources as,surveys performed by the National Clearing-
house for Smoking and Health in 1968 and 1974, and the National
Institute of Education in 1979. Among teenage smokers, girls (1.7
million ) now outnumber boys, (1.6 million ).

See tables presented by former Secretary Joseph A. Cali-
fano, Jr. of the trends in snioking in different teenage groups: (See
1:11 65. 66,87)-

Who Smokes

Adult male smoking is in inverse ratio to family income,
while adult female smoking increases with family income. Smok-
ing is relatively uncommon among professionals of both sexes.
[SG 1979, pp. A-14-15] But among managers and administrative
personnel, the percentage of female smokers is higher than that of
males. (SG 1979, p. A-16)

Male white collar "workers (professionals and technical
workers) have the lowest smoking rates; blue collar workers (la-
borers and craftsmen) have the highest. Women show the oppo-
site correlation. Upwardly mdbile men tend to smoke less and
downwardly mobile men are more likely to be heavy smokers.
[SG 1979, pp. A-15-16]

A study of four 'health professions (physicians, dentists,
pharmacists, nurses) in 1975 found only 21 percent of physicians
smoking in that year; 30 percent had been smoking in 1967.
Twenty-three percent of dentists, and 28 percent of pharmacists
were smokers; both groups showed substantial declines in smoking
between 1967-P: and 1975. Only among nurses had smoking in-
creased, from 37percent in 1969 to 39 percent in 1975. But the great
majority of all health professionals agreed that they should set a
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Table VI .

CIGARETTE SMOKING AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE AGE. 12-14:

For boys, the percentage of regular smokers went

from 2.9% in 1968

to 4.2S in 1974

to 3.2S in 1979

For girls, the percentage of regular smokers went

from 0.6% in 1968

to 4.9% in 1974

to 4.3% in 1979

TO sum up: a sharp drop among boys since 1974,

butonly a slight drop among girls.
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Table VII

CIGARETTE SMOKING AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE ACE 15 AND 18:

For boys, the percentage of regular smokers went

from 174% in 1968

to 18.1% in 1974

to '13.5% in 159

For girls, the percentage of regular smokers went

from 9.6% in 1988

to 20.26 in 1974

to 11.8% in 1979

To sum up: a sharp drop among both boys and girls.

,-
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Table VIII

CIGARETTE SMOKING AMONG YOUNG PEOPLE ACE 17 AND 18.

For boys, the percentage of regular smokers went

from XI% in 1968

to 31.0% in 1974

to 19.3% in 197g $

For girls, the percentage of regular smokers went

from 18.6% in 1968

to 25.9% in 1974-,

to 26.2% in 1979

To sum up: a sharp drop among boysbut

a disturbing, continuing rise among girls.
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good example by not smoking. And the majority, except pharma-
fists, never smoked in front of patients. [Survey of Health Profes-
sionals, 1975. Department of *glib, Education and Welfare,'
National Clearinghouse for Smoking and Health, Atlanta, Georgia
30333]

What They Smoke

From 1950 to 1960, the inarket share of filter-tip cigarettes
increased rapidly from 1.6 percent to 50.9 percent By 1975, 85 per-
cent of current regular smokers consumed filter cigarettes. In
1979, the market share of filter-tip cigarettes exceeded 90.3 percent

Sales of U.3. cigarettes with 15 mg or less of tar have in-
creased from 3 percent to over 30 percent during the period 1970
to 1978. Along with this increase, there has been a decline in sales
of relatively higher 'tar" and nicotine brands. From 1954 to 1977,
the sale-weighted average la)." ( particulate matter in smoke) per
U.S. cigarette declined from' approximately 36 mg to 17 mg or less,
fdr both filter-tip and nonfilter cigarettes. A decline in the sales-
weighted average nicotine per cigarette was also observed, and is
pow at the level of 1 mg or less in many brands [Table IX, p. 73,
Table X, p. 74]

Parallel reductions in tar/nicotine have taken place in other
developed countries. In Great Britain, lung caffrer rates are. now
decreasing, and in the United States, deaths from cardiovascular
diseases have begun to decline. Both effects may be attributable,
at least in part, to smoking cessation patterns and to switching
from high to low tar/nicotine cigarettes.

Chdnges in Lung Abnormalities

Some proof of these effects comes from a recent histologic
study in the United States which has shown a dramatic drop in
lung abnormalities in imokers who died ( of diseases other than
lung cancer ) in the period. 1970-1977, as compared with those
who died in 1955-1900. A much lower proportion of abnormal-
ities of various soutscells with atypical nuclei, lesions with no
cilia and basal cell hyperplasiawere found in the bronchial
epithelium of smokers who died between 1970-77 than in those
who died between 1955-60. Those who died in 1970-1977 must
have smoked lower tar and nicotine cigarettes than the earlier
group because all brands had decreased tar and nicotine content
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Figure 4

PERCENTAGE OF CURRENT, REGULAR TEENAGE SMOKERS,

UNITED STATES, IN SELECTED YEARS, BY SEX

14

12

10

1968

CI Male

il Female

70

1970 *-0 1972 1974 1976

Year of Survey



171

The authors of this work view the findings as a very encouraging
sign and predict that, at some future date, there should be a
decline in the United States oflung cancer death rates of ciga-
rette smokrs (see lung cancer Section H). [Auerbach, 0., Ham-
mond, E. C., Garfinkel, L. Changes in Bronchial Epithelium
in Relationship to Cigarette Smoking, 1955-1960 vs. 1970-1977.
The New England Journal of Medicine 30(1(8): 381-386, 1979.]

Smokers Smoking More

The actual number of smokers has declined more than the
per capita consumption of 'cigarettes. Possible explanations: k)
Those who smoke least, are most apt to quit, leaving a higher
increment of heavier smokers; 2) Those who continue smoking
may be smoking more; 3) New smokers may be smoking more
than long-term smokers [SG 1979, p. A-17]

Since this major change in smoking patterns has occurred
coincidentally with a steady drop in the sales-weighted tar con-
tent of U.S. brands of cigarettes (including a drop in nicotine,
which is usually in a ratio of 1:10 to tar), theories are that the
remaining smok&s may be smoking more cigarettes and inhaling
more Aeeply in order to compensate for the lowered tar/nicotine
content of their brands. However,, an experiment designed to
test these theses has indicated that smokers may increase their
smoking temporarily when switching to a low TIN brand, but
that they return to habitual levels within a short time. There is
the further fact that the decline in tar/nicotine *as more rapid
between 1957 and 1965 than between 1966 and 1977. [SG 1979,
pp. A 18-19-20]
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Figure 5

ANNUAL CONSUMPTION OF CIGARETTESPE%PERSON ACED 18

YEARS AND OVER. ANNUAL CONSUMPTION OF FILTERT1P
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Table IX

' .6

SALES WEIGHTED AVERAGE "TAR" PER CIGARETTE, 1954-1977

1958 60 85

40 I
I I 1

mg ,

ss

30

2S -

20

15
I 1 I

1955 eo . 65

70 75
I I

ca

i

49
mg

35

30

25

20

Year

I

70
I

75

15

-----'l
Source: Consumers Union (9), Hammond, E. C. (20), Maxwell, I. C. C. (27,-
30), Owen, T. B. (38), Philip MOrriS, Inc. (39a), U.S. Federal Tiride Com-
mission (67) Wakeham, H. (73), Weber, X H. (76), Wynder, E. L. (78).
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Table X

MARKET SHARE OF CIGARETTES WITH "TAR" 15 MC. OR LESS,

1967-1978 (.1978 PROJECTED)

30

^

20

10

1967 68 89 70 '71 7-2 . 73 74 75 78 77 78

tear

Sotirce: Maruvll, I.C.C. (2740), Standard and Poor's Corioratittn (44),
U.S. Federal Trade Common (ST -89).
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APPENDIX -

The results of seven prospective studies of large popula-
tions, totaling nearly seven million person-years, are frequently
grouped irethis and other reports. Great weight has been given to
these studies made in tliree countries, because of their consistency.

These seven comprise all the large prospective smoking
studies known. The first started in October, 1951; the latest, in
October, 1959. Several are continuing..

In brief, the seven groupsire asiollows: ,

(1 ) British doctors, a questionnaire.having been sent to all
members of the medical profession in the United Kingdom Moll
and Hill, 1951]

(2) White American meir in nine states. These men were
enrolled by a large number of American Cancer Society volun-
teers, each of whom was asked to have the questionnaire filled in
by 10 white men beeween the ages of 50 and 69. [Hammond and
Horn]

(3) Holders of U.S. Government Life Insurance policies,
available to persons who served in the armed forces between 1917
an4 1940. [Dorn, continued by Kahn]

(4) Men aged 35 to 64 in nine occupation's in 'California
who were suspected of being subject to a higher than usual occu-
pational risk of developing lung cancer. [Dunn, Linden and Bres-
low]

(5) California members of the Atherican Legion and their
wives. [Dunn, Buell andBreslow]

(6) Pensioners of the Canadiikepartment of Veterans .
Affairs, i.e., Veterans of World Wars I and II and the Korean War.

(7 ) American' men and women in- 25 states, enrolled by
volunteer researchers of the Ameri ancer Society, each of
whom was asked to enroll about 10 families bitining at least one
person over 45. 1Hammond]

See Table XI, p. 77 for dates and numbers.
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Tabisal

OUTLINE OF PROSPECTIVE STUDIES OF SMOKING AND MORTALITYN
.:

Authors "-"Doll .

&MR
Hamniond
& Ham

(Dorn)
Kahn '

Dunn,
Linden,
Bres lei

Dunn,
Buell,
Breslow

Best,
knle,
Walker

Hammond

,m/

Subjects

.

Ilritish.
Doctors

,

Whits man
in 9 stated

U. S.
veterans

.

occupa-
tional
groups

Arnerican
Legion
members

pensioners
(veterans &
dependents)

In
25 States

Numb& of
usable replies

343000
.

4

188,000 . 248,000
, A

87,000 89,888
; s

/
78,000 1,057,000

Date of
enrollment .

Oct 1951 jan.-Mar.
HO ..
s

Jan. 1954
& Jan. 1.95i

Nov. 1953
and May.
1957

May-Npv.
1957 ,

'Sept 1955- -
July, 19415

Oct. 1959-
Feb. IWO

:.:,::,
410Age 35-75 + 50-89 , 35434 . 35-89 25-75 +. 35-75 + 35.84f---
Mend* follOwed

..
120 44 , ' 100

.
about 48 38 . . 72 70 \

Ne- ef deeds 4,534 11,870 46,270 1,714 5,404 9,070
'

43,211

Pe=289,000

of

t
888,000 . 1,312,000/ Z2,000 338,571 383,000 3,784,571

Total molder nf subjects: 1,741,888got:al number of person-years of exposure: 8,955,142
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you.
Dr. Daugherty.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT M. DAUGHERTY, JR., M.D., PH. D.

Dr. DAUGHERTY. ,I am Dr. Bob Daugherty,. dean of the school of
medicine at the University of Nevada and chairman of the Nation-
al Interagency Council on Smoking and Health.

It is in that latter capacity 1. appear before you today to urge sup-
port for H.R. 4957 and now H.R. 5653, also known-as the Compre-
hensive Smoking Prevention Education Act. The National Inter-
agency Council on Smoking and Health is a voluntary association
of health education and youth leadership organizations having re-
sponsibility or concern with the problem of cigarette smoking on
human health. The interagency council seeks to provide a coopera-
tive and independent force to inform the public of the harmful ef-
fects of cigarette smoking.

Currently there are 30 national organizations that comprise the
membership of the council. The Coalition on Smoking and Health
which was announced here today will serve as the public policy
arm of the National Interagency Council and will work closely
with the three majority voluntary health organizations represented
at this table with me today, American Cancer Society, American
Heart Association, and the American Lung Association.

Last month, the Tobbacco Institute launched its biggest cam-.
paign ever, a campaign estimated to cost well in excess of $1 mil-
lion includes nine insertions in national editions of Newsweek,
People, Sports Illustrated, Time, TV Guide, and U.S. News &
World Report: I am holding a copy of the campaign that now ap-
pears that most people have seen. Considering the conclusive evi-
dence linking cigarette smoking to disease, we agree with the
theme, weigh both sides before you take sides, which is why we
urge in fact rotation of the warning labels that provide up-to-date
facts on the hazards of cigarette smoking.

On the Office of Smoking and Health, maintaining the interface
with the Federal sector is sequential. The Interagency Council is
determined to play its role as coordinator in the private sector,
However, the commitment of the Federal Government to perform
its role has:become a source of great concern.

As you know, the OMB has twice trie. iCW-Trie out the Office of
Smoking and Health. Fortunately, Secretary Schweiker has been
able to get the funding restored. Certainly the $2 to $3 million
budget of that Office is miniscule compared to over $1 billion used
to promote the sale of cigarettes. Yet this small amount provides
the necessary funds to carry out essential governmental functions
in smoking and health.

Requiring the rotation of six new warning statements on ciga-
rette packages and advertisements we believe it is critical. Since
the Fir has shown convincingly that the current warning is worn
out, immediate action is needed to make this an effective medium
to reach the public with information on the hazards of smoking.

The Tobacco Institute has, referred to the rotational warning as a
cumbersome soistem implying a burden tO the industry. However, if
you look at the ads of cigarettes this claim is ridiculous. Cigarette
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ad copy is changed and changed frequently. On the F wall are
seven samples of a Marlboro ad collected from national magazines
in one 4-week period during one munth. Are we to believe changing a
simple label is cumbersome and a burden?

Their argument that this represents increased regulation on an
overregulated industry also seems to lack merit. It overlooks the
fact that tobacco and tobacco products are exempt by agency deter-
mination or specifically by statute from those laws which were en-
acted by the Congress and in particular this subcommittee to pro-
tect the health and well:being of the American consumer.

Passage of H R. 495^y-wou4 assure consumers receive theTheces-
sary information on the heth hazards of cigarette smoking. No
one is being denied the right to smoke. No one is being restrained
on selling cigarettes or distributing cigarettes. We are not imposing
restrictions.

The legislation simply seeks to provide the consumer with the
right to know. Thank you.

[Dr. Daugherty's prepared statement followsl
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TESTIMNY

OF

ROBERT M. DAUGHERTY, JR., M.D., PH.D.

CHAIRMAN

NATIONAL INTERAGENCY COUNCIL

ON

SMOKING AND HEALTH

.v

Mr: Chairman, Members of the Subcoemittee on Health and Environment, I am

Robert Daugherty, Jr., M.D. Ph.D., Dean of the School of Medicine, University

of Nevada and the present Chairman of National Interagency Council on Seoking

and Kealth (NICSM). It is in this latter capacity ,that I appear before you

today.

The National Interagency Council on Smoking And flealjh Is a vOluntary

association of health, education and youth leadership organizations having

responsibility or concern with the problem of cigarette saoking on human

health., It seeks to provide a cooperative and independent force to inform the

public of the harmful effects of cigarette smoking. Thirty national

organizations Currently comprise the membership of the Council. A list of

those organizations is attached to my stateeent.

The NICSM, through its member organizations-and $O local interagency councils,

has and will continue its efforts to educate people about the dangers of

cigarette sooking and assist these smokers who want to quit. The techhical

information and other service we receive from the federal sector facilitate

the more.efficient utilization of our limited resources. On the other hand,

the Office on Soaking and Health, with fts limited budget, must rely heavily

on the prviate sector to carry the message to the public. This federal -

private Interface is largely responsible for the.continuing downward trend in

smokincamong Americans.

While-thd prevalence of snaking is declining' 2 we do not underestimate the

difficulty of the task that lies ahead. The tobacco industry, with its vast

resources is very good at waging campaigns designed to create diversion and

doubt In the minds of the public. Since the 197$ public opinion survey

sonducted for the Tobacco Institute by the Roper Organization' recnesended

'these and other tactics, such cupaigns have proliferated in the media. Last

month, the Tobacco Institute launched whet Peter Sparker, Vice-President

Public Information,' called "the biggest campaign we've ever done'. The

campaign will include nine Insertions in national editions of Newsweek,

'People, Sports Illustrated, Time, TV Guide, and U.S. Mews and WorialliFoFt
during 1982. The cost of a campatgrirThilimegnitude is estimated at well In

excess of $1,000,000. Considering the conclusive evident* linking cigarette

nuking to diseaswa campaign with the thele "Weigh Both Sides Before You

Take Sides" can only be designed to create confusion.

To counter the immense determination of the
tobacco industry to keep Americans

smoking, our lipited resources must be effectively coordinated and the

Jnterfate with the federal sector maintained. The MICSH is determined to play,

its role as coordinator in the private sector. However, the commitment of the

federal government to perform its role has betas, a source of great concern.

As you know, the Office of Manageeent and
Budget has twice tried to "line out"

the Office on Slicking and Health (OSH).
Fortunately, OHMS Secretary Scbmpiker

has been able to get the funding restored.
The'$2-3 million budget of OSH is

miniscule when conpired to over SI billion' used
to promott the sale of

cigarettes. Yet, It provides an essential function to the private

organization that must get the job done.
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H.R. 4957 would assure that OSH continue to provide this vital function. A
secure existence for OSH with.deltneated functions and objectives, would also
be a significant stimulant to the private sector.

The establishment of an.piteragency Committee within1SH to coordinate all
federal activities"that Telate to smoking is a very ortant provision of
H.R. 4957. Ely requiring federal agencies to coordinate, as the private
agencies now do, will further enhance the quality and efficiency of federal
perforeance Considering the dim prospect for increasing federal outlays in
this area, efficiency is critical.

The provision of H.R. 4957 requiring the rotation of six new warning
statements on cigarette packages and advertisements is immensely Important.
The FTC' has shown convincingly that the cdrrent warning is "worn out".
Immediate action is needed to make this an effective medium to reach the
public with information on the hazard of smoking. This requirement is
something which, the federal government can do, at no cost, to supplement
private efforts. Its importance cannot be overemphasized since the broadcast'
and printr" art largely inaccessible for communicating information oil the
effects of smoking.

The Tobacco Institute' has referred to the rotational warning as a "cumbersome
system', implying a burden to the industry. However, an observant* of the
copy of cigarette advertisements point out how ridiculous this claim is.

Brown and Williamson's Barclay ad campaign used at least seven completely
different or variations in the copy. This was rated one of the "top ten"
campaigns for 1981 " In accordance with this provision in H.R. 4957, the
same warning statement would have been used on all these variations. The
point is that cigfrette ad copy is changed and changed frequently to avoid
"wear out". Requiring a label change once a year is indeed a simple matter.

The Tobacco Institute has also argued that this represents increased
regulation on an overreculated industry. This argument also lacks merit. It
overlooks the fact that tobacco and tobacco products are either exempt by
agency determination or specifically by statute from those laws which were
enacted by the Congress and in particular this Subcommittee to protect the
health and well being of tht American consumer. The Food and Drug
Administration has by agency determination ruled that tobacco and tobacco
products are neither 'foods' nor 'drugs' to be regulated under the Food, Drug
and Cosmetic Act. The Consumer Pioduct Safety Act specifically exempts by
statute tobacco and tobacco products from being defined as a "product" to be
regulated under that Act. The Federal Hazardous Substances Act specifically
exempts tobacco and tobacco products from being considered a "hazarous
product" under that Act. Tobacco and tobacco products art also not regulated
under the Toxic Substances Act.

So Mr Chairman, and Members of the SubcomTkittee, although the Congress of the

k
Unit d States has declared cigarettes to bf dangerous to ones health, tobacco
and bacco products have escaped being regulated under those Acts which were
enact d by the Congress to specifically protect consumers from health and
'safety risks. While tobacco and tobacco proaucts cannot be considered to be a

food under the Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, I find it somewhat ironic that it
continues to be bxported as a food under the Food for Peace program.

The argument that the provision of more disease specific warning labels is
"excessively regulatory" and "paternalistic" is ludicrous. To the contrary,
this legislation represents a minimum of government regulation especially when
considered against the exception to the federal laws I have just noted.

H.R. 4957 would give the consumer the necessary information on the specifit
health hazards of cigarette smoking so that the consumer would be able to make
an Informed choice as to whether or not he or she smoked. No one is being
denied the right to smoke under this legislation nor are any restraints on
sales or distribution being imposed on the cigarette manufacturing industry.
This legislation seeks only to provide consumers the right to know all of the
health hazards of cigarette smoking.

t
Mr. Chairman and Members of this Subcommittee, the National Interagency
Council on Smoking and Health stand ready to do their parts in working closely
with the Congress and the Federal government in a stronger partnership to
ensure that intonation on the hazards of smoking is reaching Americans
everywhere. 6

Thank you.

-
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very., much.
Each of you has come here with your own professional experi-*

ence and expertise. But you are also here representing three of the
major health organizations that are concerned about smoking, the
Heart Association, the Lung Association, and the Cancer Society I
want first of all to commend you for establishing this coalition or-
ganized to try to work together in this one area of tremendous
public health significance. I hope this will be the beginning of coali-,
tion activities Th other areas as well:

Each of you represents a nonprofit organization receiying,volun-
tary contributions from the public. As I understand the purMses of
your-organizations: you have other priorities in addition to trying
to bring public attention.to the problems of smoking.

Parts of your budgets, maybe the majority of the money collected
by your organization, goes to funding activities such as research If
we placed the full burden on Voluntary nonprofit organizations to
fund programs for people to have contrary information on what is
being sent to them through very skilled and expensive industry ad-
vertising campaigns, aren't we asking ponprofit, voluntary organi-
zations to divert scarce resources from research and other activi-
ties, and isn't this going to be an impossible t.tsk because you can

, never counter the millions of dollen of advertising spent by the to-
bacto industry?

Dr. Daugherty, I would address that to you, if I might.
Dr. DAUGHERTY. I agree with what you have said, Mr. Waxznan. I

think most of my effort with one of these organizations is with the
American Heart Association. I guess one of the reasons we are here
today is that cigarette smoking is one of the major risk factors for
coronary artery disease.

As Dr. Oates pointed out, it is the leading cause of. death in the
United State today and cigarette smoking, if we could get people to
stop, could prevent that. There are lots of things involved by the
Heart Association in terms of researth on hypertension, cardiovas-
cular disease includinrstroke, and we need to continue to do that

You are correct in saying' that if we had to devote all of our re-
sources to this, all of our resources wouldn't even touch what the
industry has available to if in the course of a year.

Mr. WAXMAN. I find it ironic that some of our colleagues with us
todaY sent a letter to' *embers of the House of Representatives
urging them not to join in support of our bill. Mr. Rogers referred
to the concern he has that we are going to divert attention from all
the environmental and occupational factors which may have
human health effects by focusing exclusively on smoking.

Three days out of this week and the next couple of weeks this
'subcommittee is marking up a bill to change the Clean Air Act. I
expect the result, as I see things going in Our subcommittee, will be
that our committee is going to present a bill to the Gmgresg that
will dramatically weaken, the protectioni3 of the Clean Air Act
which has been set up to prlect public health.

Once we have this bill out, I don't think it's going to becoffie law,
I don't think it will pass. But. if the Congress followed the recom-
mendations of some Members who are offering this legislation, we
are going to weaken efforts to try to clean up the air. Shouldn't we ;
then put in even More effort to try to stop cigarette smoking?
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Dr. Cahan maybe I could address this to you. Are we talkingabout things that can be segregated, considered separately, or isthere a synergistic effect of air pollution, cigarette smoking, andother environmental exposures? .
Dr. CAHAN. Well, an ideal arrangement, would be to take themajor carcinogenic materialsthat we breathe, imbibe and out ofour culture. But in a realistic sense, I think that it may be difficultto hccomplish both and you therefore may not accomplish either. Idon't know how these legislative mechanisms work. There is po4 -question, however, in ,discussing the environment, cancer special-ists,-eschew any and all things which cause cancer.

., We'have-a strong feeling that the personal envii.onment, namely,smoking, is the preponderant cause of our particular interest,which is cancer. Therefore, I think the concentration would be inthat direction. I,think there are many lives to be saved in both. Butthat to my mind, would have prime interest.
Mr. WAXMAN. There is a combined impact? There is a synergisticimpact to these exposures?,

_Dr. CA1-411: Yes, the synergism, is called cdcarcinogenicity. Thereis no question that one plus one equals three, not two..For exam-ple, radiation plus sOme other carcinogen painted on animal skinwould cause cancer more predictably than one alone. An asbestosfactory worker who smokes, has a marked increase in his chance ofdeveloping cancer of the lung than if the asbestos worker does not 'smoke.
, - _-i Mr.

i
..WAXMAN. I guess the point I am drawing out s that weshould not divert our efforts in any area, and we should not expectthat one area alone is worthy of our atteption as representatives inGovernment today. The tobacco industry frequently characterizesthe reports and statements of the U.S. Surgeon General as merelyone man's -opinion. It suggests true researchers as opposed to prac-tiCing physicians are not quite as confident as you gentlemen aboutthe health effects of smoking.

HOw mould you respond to that comment, Dr. Oates?Dr. OATES. The Heart Association has examined these issues ex-tremely carefully and repeatedly with expert groups of scientistsfrom a variety of fields and there is a unanimous opinion in theseexaminaticos that there is no question regarding the data.Mr. WAXMAN. Do you find researchers as well as practicing phy-sicians have come to the same conclusion?
,Dr. OATES. These are indeed the researchers who have come tothe conclusion that cigarette smoking is a major cause of cardio-vascular diseases.

Mr. WAXMAN. Among iihricians that you have come in contactwith, how much of a-differing opinion do you find? Is this a wide-spread consensus, or is this one where maybe there is only a slightmajority of views that cigarette smoking is harmftil?Dr. Daugherty. ,

Dr. DAUGHERTY. I think there is widespread consensus. As 4matter of fact physicians is the one group that has 'the highest per-centage of people who stop smoking. I think that alone is evidencethat the practicing physician believes the data that has come fromthe researchers, which incidentally the Surgeon General is oneperson, but he has put together the data from many, many investi-
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gators. It is not one man's .opinion. It is in fact facts compileny
one man to present to the public.

Mr. WAXMAN. And then let me just ask a couple of questions be-
cause I think it is important to bring these point.i out. Dr Ayres, -

can a smoker reduce the risk to health by qiiitting, even after
years of heavy smoking?

Dr. AYRES. That evidence, that quitting srnciking reduces the inci-
'dence of disease, is part of the evidence thal points to the causality).
of cigarettes., One example, a large number of physicians in Greatil,
Britain were followed for a humber of years. -Over half of them
stopped smoking, and the reduction of deaths from chronic lung
disease 1;ves 34 percent, cpmpared to orily 4 percent in the general
population:

So there is a very substantial body of literature developing, this
point. There are other studies in American- populations that show, -,
that after a number of years of abstaining ffom smoking, the deatk
rates from lung disease and heart disease are substantially re-
duced. That is very important and even people with symptomatic
heart disease or symptomati6 emphysema can be improved if they
stop smoking.

May I talk to that?
Mr. WAXMAN. ^Yes, Dr. Cahan.
Dr. CAHAN. One of the sophistries with which smdkers amuse

themselVes frequently is that it is "too late to stop.' This has no
meaning in a scientific sense. We do not know where that point of
no return is, where that cell beaten on suddenly waves the white
flag of surrender and says all right, if You insist, I am going to
become cancerous..

There is no question that the sooner one §tops, the better the
chance one will not get to this point of no return. this is a message
we should convey to people who smoke for any length, of time.
There is unquestionably a renewal, a healing, a recovery of the
mucus , membranes of the tracheal bronchial tree once the irrita-
'tion factor 4s stopped.

This renewal can return in time almost to its original pristine
state, after a period of 10 or 15 years, and to be equated with tItose
who neVer smoked.N-

Mr. WAXMAN. What role does carbori monoxide in cigarettes play '
in the risk of heart disease and pregnancy outcome?

Are Carbon monoxide levels lowet in low-tar-nicotine bitarettes
and is there a safe or safer cigarette?

Dr. AYRES. The carbon monoxide issue is an interesting one, it is
interesting it was not mentioned in eatlier ,reports. It is only' in
recent years that it has been recognized that when carbon monox-
ide combines with hemoglobin that there is a deprivation of the
ox gen available to the heart mdscle;

ere is excellent evidence that smoking cigai.ettes decreates the
exercise tolerancp of patients with coronary artery disease..One of
Pie problems .with the methods of reducing tar and nicotine is that
they do not reduc the gases in cigarette smoke aria carbon monox-
ide is one of the gases of great concern. Incidentally, carbon monox-
ide is not a required labeling issue and there are many of us who
believe that the carbon monoxide content should also be on the
cigarette package.
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Mr. WAXMAN. Why would that information be valuable to some-one?
Dr.-Mu& If smoicers wished to select what they believed to be ahealthful cigarette and we incidentally do not believe th46 are anyhealthful cigarettes, they need to have a complete listing of thedangerous element's so they can make an informed choice.'Dr. OATES. The evidence does not show low tar and nicotine ciga-rettes provide any protection from the risk of hearCattacks.

Mr. WAXMAN. So a low-tar/low-zicotine cigarette may not have alow danger level for the smoker if he thinks he is going to have asafer cigarette. Is that correct?
Dr. OATES. Furthermore, there is a well-documented compensa-tion with the low-tar/low-nicotine cigarettes in which smokers willsmoke more and inhale more deeply to gain higher levels of nico-tine and other substances in the smoke.
Mr. WAXMAN. I am going to call on my colleagues to engage insome questions that they might have for you. But I want to ask aquestion and I am asking it rhetorically.
This Government spends money on vaccinating children. We hadsome hearings indicating that some of the cuts in the vaccination

program are poorly- thought olit and endangering many childrenwith the possibility of getting some -dreaded diseases. But I .do notknow that When we encourage children to come in floil vaccinadons,that that ,is any more brainwashing than it would be to try toinform people that smoking cigarettes is going to be hazardous totheir health, dangerous to their well-being.-
And. I think in both cases the Government has a responsiblity to,fry to educate the public as to the dangerqf why they shouldkiavoid smong on the one hand, and why the ought to get vacci,nated on the other.
Mr. Bliley.
Mr. VLILEY. Thank you, Mr. giairman.
Thank you, gentlemen, for appearing today.
Dr. _Ayres, does the American Lung Association have any re- Isearch results that positively show that extensive labeling will de-, crease the incidence of smoking in the United States?
Dr.' AYRES. The American Lung Association supports researchamong the scientific community, but. is not a research institution ofitself. I do not believe there is very rthich good marketing informa-tion about the impact of labeling. I think there is a strongly heldbelief that it is an important aspect of our total fabric in the at-tempt to persuade people to stop or to not start.
Mr. 8LILEY. Thank you. Does anyone else'want to comment? ,Dr. OATES. I think one could view the labeling not in terms ofproved Marketing effectiveness, bul in terms of the right to know41.

when someone purchases a lethal -Ooduct.
Dr. CAHAN. Mr. Bliley, in light of the fact that cigarette smokinghas increased in the face of the currentviabel suggests it is indeedineffectual, and is all the more reason, as our advertising brethren.would say to stop that particular campaign and get a better one. Ithink the daily reminders that good campaign might produce arevery important, as I said before, as a persistent repeated r6ninder.There aile those warnings that come as a block-sized headlinesuch as the Surgeon General's report. But daily reminders I have
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found in my attempts'to stop people are just as important. The
nagging wife, for the husband who persists in smoking; the water
dripping on stone. All these, things, finally do add up. This, would
also be a way ef approaching it and estimating its value.

Mr. Bui...Ey. Well, Dr. Cahan, since you have said that you do not
know whether it would work or not, that the changing of the labels
or whatnot would have an effect, should we not await the research
on this before we reqiiire'it? In other words, should we nottet the
evidence in before we require a procedtre?

Dr. CAHAN. I think that these are very hard things to estimate
before you really get into the experiment, if you want to use that.
We cannot prejudge it Of course. On thOther hand, I do think that
the idea behind it has a parallel, in an effective campaign used on
television, where so mhny children stopped smoking when they
viewed antismoking television commercials which have largely
been discontinued.

That is the only parallel I can judge as far as that istoncerned.w.
But in all probability, multiple labels will serve up a multiplicity of
personal warnings to fit some particular individual; for example,

k, the pregnant wpman looking at that particular label. It will do a
great deal more than the pallid one that we have at the present
time.

As somebqdy has said, it has become a part of our background
alreddy, like a hydrant in front of the house or a picture you no
longer see on the wall. The idea of changing them is interesting
and people will be more likely to read them.

Dr. AYRES. Mr. Bliley, we just do not have the resources that the
tobacco industry does to perform these marketing studies. We
know the tobacco industry invests hundreds of millions of dollars
with each campaign to see if a particular message is effective. We
have to rely_basically on sonie predictions that it may be effective.

I happen to believe that it would be ineffective and probably an
inappropriate use of private and Federal funds to invest a billion
dollars to see if the labels worked. It would be more appropriate to
follow the judgment of experta and attempt the labeling approach
and then look at cigarette sales down the road and see if it is effec-
tive. -

Mr:BLILEY. You are certainly entitled to your opinion.
Dr. Oates, to the best of your knowledge ha's the American Heart

Association performed any research evaluating the effects of rotat-
ing warning labels on human behavior with regard to smoking?

Dr. OATES. We have not evaluated the specific aspects of warning
labels, but we are quite familiar with the data that relates to the
level of knowledge that these warning labels would attetnpt to cor-
rect.

, For example,"among people who currently are smokers, only 58
percent know that smoking is a cause of many heart attacks. It is

, our feeling with respect to the label that the person who purchases
these products should know in specific what are the risks. And this
right to know is irrespective Of marketing surveys in terms of ef-
fects on behavia:

We think that the personalized aspect of the messages as indicat-
ed will speak more specifically to the people whose families have
heart disease, wom,en who are on birth control pills, and people

, ,
t
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will become familiar with the multiplicity of the dreadful effectsthat occur ri-om the cigarettes.
We think there is a right toknowledge of these things and thatit is something of great value.

-Mr. BLILEY. Since you gentlemen are in the health field and areconcerned, genuinely so arid rightfully so with the health of theNAtion, as we are as members of this subcommittee and membersof this Congress, we already have legislation that requires warningon cigarettes, with which you may agree or may not agree.But there are other products that are for sale. Alcohol specifical-ly comes to mind. That certainly has health hazards associatedwith it. Yet. we do not require warnings on that advertising or re-strictions. In the limited time and resources we have in the com-mittee, should we not be looking at this area before we go to in-crease warning labels here, when the respected Gallop Poll saysover 90 percent of/the people in the country believe already thatsmoking may be harmful to their health?
Dr. AYRES. Well, we are in a crisis situation, sir. I think that themagnitude of the smoking related deaths and illness so exceedsthat of many of the other issues that have been raised that weshould begin-there. Now I personally have no problem with a simi-lar warning on alcohol. But many of the others, Mr. Rogers men-tioned power mowers, certainly that is significant. But I think it isa little unrealistic to take the number of fingers and the deathsfrom power mowers and compare, that with the number of deathsfrom cigarette smoking.
So it is really a matter of beginning where our efforts will bemost important.
Mr. BLILEY. Do you have statistics on other products, any of you,as to what effects it has on' health?
Dr. OATES. I think as physicians we are vety familiar with themultiplicity of factors that halm effects on health. And all of us arehere ,because we feel that this one particular factor represents anepidemic of major proportions that is threatening American healthand it is a particularly dreadful epidemic because it is inflicted ini-tially, most often, on children who enter into a difficult-to-breakhabit without adequate information.
Mr. BLILEY. But Doctor, is teenage alcoholism not reaching epi-demic proportions in this country?
Dr. OATES. Exactly. But I do not think our choice here is to com-pare things that are both terribly bad. I think that we aie seeingdeaths due to. cigarette smoking that exceed those in most majorwars of this world.
Mr. WAXMAN. Will my colleague yield at that point? I shouldpoint out just for the record that to the credit of the alcohol indus-try they do spend money to discourage children from drinking.They talk abdut drinking 'alcoholic beverages as something foradults only: They are also a regulated industry.
The cigarette industry is not regulated. They do not put moneyinto discouraging young people from sinoking. In fact, they do theexact opposite. They put money into advertising campaigns to en-courage young people to take it up.
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Dr. OATES, In these times of fiscal constraints it is important that
we are wasting billions of dollars of the health budget to care for
the morbidity and mortality of the use of tobacco.

Mr. BLILEY. No further questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Bliley. Mr..Rogers.
Mr. ROERS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I served as local chairman of the American Cancer Society and

American Heart Association campaigns to raise funds from volun-
teers, fund the programs that yoti so elowntly promote in your
different organization.

And I was honored and proud to do so, and stip am.
And it is for that reason that I think the organization that you

represent can best sell the American people on the hazards or
smoking. And not the U.S. Government. It is my opinion that the
Government can best do the research and support the scientific re-.d.
search, and to then let and help in any way possible the privatelywm"
funded voluntary organization do the selling, the propagandizing
and, if you will, the brainwashing, because it has- the army of
people and the hundreds of people we involved in the campaign to
raise those funds.

It has the army of peoble wjlling and -able to take on the task if
properly motivated and armed and equipped with the proper mate-
rial. I am told that 'the American Lung 'Association spends less
than 5 percent, of its total budget; 5 percent or less, in funding re-
search. I frankly think that is a little bit embarrassing for the folks
that I ask money out of back home for that program. I do not think
they are aware of that.

I was not either. Frankly, the Organization and the Heart Associ-
ation and the others I think are well equipped to sell the concepts
that you have described here today. But President Reagan and this
administration and this Government intent upon reducing the cost
of the size of the Government that we have, and failure to do so,
could possibly render us in very severe economic problems. So the
president and many others seem to feel that private organization,
voluntary organization such as your own should be given more Or
the responsibility for what many in the last 5 or 6 years perceived
to be public service, governmental programs. Would it not be more
appropriate for the Central Government to fund the scientific re-
search on smoking and the hazards, and then to let your organiza-
tion and others take that scientific research and do with it what
you do best, and not establish another huge bureaucracy up here
devoted to telling people not to smoke?

Would that not be the best route to take, given the circum-
stances we are in? Dr. Ayres.

Dr. Ams. Well, I suppose I should first respond to the issue of
the 5 percent on research. And I suspect I know where those fig-
ures came from. We feel at the American Lung Association that we
have accomplished much of our goal because we have been at:
tacked so frequently by the tobacco industry, and we give ourselves
an A on the report card for that.

We support research, but we also use our budget for the support
of public education and professional education, and we haire a large
number of affiliations, as you know, in many States throughout the
United States, all the States. The issue about how much to put into
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biomedical research and how much to put in behavioral research isa very significant issue. My own view is that we have done aboutas much biomedical research as we need to do. It is the tobacco in-dustry that keeps saying do more research. They would like us tofind out something that we have not already found.
So I think we have done enough biomedical research, not quiteenough, we now need, to put those dollars into behavioral research,into helping physicians and others understand how we can promotehealthful habits.
Mr. ROGERS. If I may interrupt you, why do you not put more ofthose moneys into telling the American people not to smoke? Whydo you not have advertisementg such as Marlboro over there tOingpeople not to smoke?
Dr. AYRES. Well, you know the budget of your Lung Associationas well as ours. When you think of that $1 billion figure, I do notthink there are enough Christmas seals that will ever be printedthat can equal that figure. It is the unequal balance that concernsus. And I share your concerns about Government.I think we all do. But at some point, you gentlemen have todecide where Government should take a stand and where it shouldnot. And we believe that an epidemic that kills as many Americansas cigarettes do is very worthy of a Federal and coordinated ap-proach.

Dr. OATES. We are particularly interested in this issue of howmuch we can do in the Heart Association for informing the publicabout smoking. We find that we are in a very frustrating andboxed-in position in terms of being able to be effective in this area.There haVe been some estimates of the cost of a 30-second spot tomake one single message on television. It is in the neighborhood of$80,000. That is about equivalent to the annual budget of theSmoking Subc'ommittee of the Heart Association at the moniedt.Such a public service message, by our past experience, is likely tobe shown at about 2 a.m. in a not very interesting programingformat. This is one of the reasong why the Heart Association findsthat it needs to work together with the Federal Government. Wewould not ask that the Federal Government assume all of this re-sponsibility, but feel that with a small amount of money in theOffice of Smoking and Health that this could bring together forcesthat could accomplish this job in a way that they singly could not.Perhaps the best example of this is in the area of hypertensionwhich is another risk factor for cardiovascular disease, where theNational Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute has been exceedingly ef-fective working with the private agencies to bring about a remark-able change in, the treatment of hypertension, and we are verygratified that the incidence of stroke is falling remarkably.So I think this is ji*area where the Federal Government with asmall effort workine4ith private groups has been exceedingly. ef-fective and that is a model we could follow.
Dr. CAHAN. I am not an economist but I do not think it'is askingtoo much to project that the problems of voluntary organization aregoing to be increased as far as fundraising is concerned in light ofour present economic situation, and that this will become a deepen-ing one.
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What with the estate tax differences and what with diminished
incomes, voluntary agencies are going to suffer along with others.
So I think at this particular time it would beviPpropriate for the
Government to help.

Mr. ROGERS. Yield back my time, Mr. Chairman.
.Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Rogers.
Gentlemen, thank you very much for your testimony today. It

has been very helpful to us. We appreciate your taking the time to
be with us.

The intPoduction of our next witness is a special pleasure. From
1961 to 1965, Dr. Luther Terry played an integral role in:identify-
ing and substantiating that cigarette smoking is a major human
health risk. We have learned much in the 18 years since Dr. Terry
sounded the alarm. It is appropriate today that we solicit the views
of the man who made the position of Surgeon General synonymous
with smoking prevention.

STATEMENT OF LUTHER TERRY, M.D., PHILADELPHIA, PA.

Dr. TERRI% Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members, of the commit-
tee. 41r

I appreciate your inviting me here to speak on this very iznpor-
tant subject. I recognized this as an important subject, dating back
to 1964 when I was Surgeon General. Prior to that I was-successful
in appointing a very fine scientific advisory committee to review
the subject;-and as a result, on January 11, 1964, we published the
results of that committee's study, of over almost 2 years. And it
has been a hallmark in the field of the recognition of tobacco
smoke in relation to disease.

I am very gratified that in these 18 years since that report was
released, that none of the significant fmdings and conclusions of
that committee have been repudiated.

As a matter of fact, the main thing that has happened over more
recent times is that there has been further substantiation of many
of those facts that were brought out in the original Advisory Com-
mittee's report, and we have extended our information with regard
to smoking and health into other areas that were not known; for
instance, the effect on pregnancy, women, and birth control pills
and even some more substantial scientific information on the sub-
ject of heart disease, and particularly coronary disease.

So that I am. very gratified that this information has been fur-
ther substantiated and that it is readily available to the public and
is strongly endorsed by the medical profession.

I am also indebted to you, Mr. Waxman, for having so succinctly
in the, November 12, 1981, issue of the Congressional Record, to
have capsulized the information on the subject to the extent of

-.----bringing out the importance of the subject.
At the risk of being redundant, I will have to say again what sev-

eral of our other witnesses have said, that smoking is the most pre-
ventable cause of disability and death in the United States today.
What more challenging statement could be made in terms of re-
sponsibility of the American people to do something about?
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/At this stage I would like to say just a word about Secretary Cali-fano because I have such great admiration for him and for thestand that he took.
Prior to his creating the Office on Smoking and Health, we had aclearinghouse which was created in the. Public Health Service,which served in'the same general direction. The fact that Mr. Cali-fano raised the status of this segment in terms of its location andimportance and staffing and funds I think was a great lift for us.I have been greatly concerned by the rumors that the Office of:Management and Budget wishes to cut clown or even cut out thefunds for this, and I feel that we should be appreciative, at least toa significant degree, to Secretary Schweiker in keeping this pro-gram alive.

,Now, 'if I may, I would like to speak specifically about a few ofthe legislative proposals which are before you. I think the first onethat I would like to take uy ik the question of the statutory cre-ation of an Office on Smoking and Health.
As you know, at the present time this unit is an administrativecreation of the Secretary and could be wiped out with the sweep ofa pen. At the same timethis subject and this organization is soimportant that the Congress should manifest its interest in this tothe degree of creating a statutory segment in our Government;, namely, the Office on Smoking and Health. ,I would also like to emphasize the fact that I think the amountof money .necessary for this prograM has not been adequately metin any respect. When you think that the Clearinghouse, the prede-cessor of the Office on Smoking and Health had a budget of about$3 million back in 1971-72 and today we expect that Office to oper-ate on a third of the number of employees and alSout $2 million.Imagine what,$3 million was in 197 -72 in comparison to $2 mil-lion now, after 10 years of inflation.

Frankly, I would be delighted if th Congress would authorize anappropriation level for the Office on Smoking and Health, and Iwould personally recommend that a level of $10 million a year over'pie next few years would be proper.
Furthermore, I would hope that the Appropriations Committeeswould respond to such an authorization and give us the supportthat we need for the program..
In relation to other aspects, I think the definition of the responsi-bilities of the Office on Smoking and Health which are included inthe bills is particularly important. One thing I would like to espe-cially emphasize' is the requirement of an annual report of thePublic Health Service and the Department of Health and HumanServices to the Congress on the scientific aspects on smoking andhealth.

I well recall back in 1965, when the first Smoking and HealthAct was passed, 'that one of the authorizations and requirementsand I think it has been tremendously important.I am not sure that we would have accumulated the amount ofinformation or gotten the amount of support that we needed in thePublic Health Service to carry on this program had it not been re-quired by the Congress that the Department submit an annualreport.
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I think this issue is too important to alrow it to slip "by and that
this should be continued. ,

There is a question of our needing more research in the field of
smoking and ,health. The tobacco industry over the years has re-
peatedly said "we need more research, the facts are not all in."

I think most of us in the scientific field know that this is com-
pletely irresponsible, that there are enough facts to point in the di-
rection we need to go. I would also say, yes, there is justification in
having more research. The research, however, should be primarily
directed, now that we know smoking affects these certain organs
and causes certain disease conditions, so that we can learn more
about exactly how it does it, and we should know. -

However, I think probably the mo.§.t important thing and area in
which we need research in smokingInd health today is in relation
to-behavioral studies, to understand why people continue smoking
In other words, we need funds for this type.of research.

I also apphud the provision in the bill for requiring a health
warning on cigarettes that are exported for consumption. For sev-
eral years I served as the chief of our delegation to the World
Health Organization. More recently, I served- on an advisory com-
mittee to the World Health Organization on the subject. .

Frankly, I have been embarrassed to think that we would re-
quire such a health warning on cigarettes for consumption by our
own nationals, and yet not require it for other countries.

It is true that in most of the more advanced countries they now
by their own laws require health warnings. But one of the areas I
think of a great concern to many of us is tremendous movement on
the part of the tobacco industry to develop, stimulate and expand
the market in the'developing, or the Third World countries.

Those countries, in general, do not have the scientific excellence
or efficiency to evaluate the problems. Consequently, I fear that we
axe feeding epidemics of death to some of our developing foreign
neighbors, where we should be helping with food and other things
in their normal development. .

I would like to comment just briefly about the question of leav-
ing the Federal Government out of this and letting volunteer orga-
nizations and local authorities take care of it.

I think most of us realize that this is really not a reasonable ap-
proach. You know very well that if,,as of this wee the Federal
Government dropped its requirement on the health riling on ad-
vertising and on packages, they would be discontinue , and none of t
our municipalities or even States could be effective in requiring
that sort of requiremb.ut.

So, there are certain things like that, which the Federal Govern-
ment must do in sfrtnulating and assisting, but at the same time, I -
realize that many of the problems in relation to smoking have a
very important aSpect of local actio41Lboth volunteer and local gov-
ernment action.

I think one of the best examples in this respect is what we call
involuntary smoking, or the secondary effect of smoking on a non-
smoker. In that regard, I think this is not an area in which the
Federal Government can act very effectivelS7, except in relation to
Federal buildings and installations. ,
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,1 think that we have seen ov the country the actions that havebeen taken by local governments, al-Ft that local organizations hasbeen very active in this regard. It is something which they can do.I think the Congress, in it is viewing the problem 4s it relates tomany aspects of smoking and health, has to carefully decide whichof those things the Federal Government alone can do, or predomi-nantly can do, and which they cannot do as well and therefore,should riot take action in that direction.

I realize therb are lois of aspects of file problem, Mr. Chairmanand members, that I have not touched on. I think my printedreport to you goes into more detail, but at the same time I didwant to touch on some of those matters.which I felt were of great-est importance.
Thank you, sir.
(Dr. Terry's prepared statement follows:I

..
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Statement 'of Dr. Luther I.. Terry
Former Surgeon General, U.S. Public Health Service

Before the Subcommittee on Heilth and Environment on
HR 4957, "Smoking Prevention Education-Act of 1981"

March 5, 1982

Mr. ehairman and Members oftthe Committee:

I wish to,express my appreciation to C4airman,Waxman for his invitation to ap-
pear before this Bubcommittee,on the important issue of smoking and health.

As most of you recall, I was the Surgeon General who issued 'the Report of the
Sargeon Genera Vs Advisory Committee on Smoking and Health on January 11,
1964.. Since that time I have continued my professional interest and activities
on the subject for I feel that it is one of par major hesath problems. The tragic
fact is that this dardage to the health of oar citizens continues and ,yet it conld
be prevented if we were able to convince people not to smoke.

I am pleased to report that none of the conclusions of the Advisory Committee
have been repudiated in these 18 years since the Repoirt was issued. The only
changes which have occurred are that many of the observations have been ex-
tended and new scientific evidence has been added to show additional areas of
health damage produced by tobacco smoking. A recent clear example is the
carrent Surge 6n General's Report, The Health Consequences of Smoking: Ckn-
car 1982 which was released on February 22, 1982. In this Report the Surgeon
General has reaffirmed our exhIting knowledge of the causative relationship be-
tween smoking.and certain types of canter. It has gone futher in presenting
evidencemot only in relation to cancer of the lung, the oraVcavity, the larynx,
and the esophagus, but to cancer of other locations such'as the bladder and
kidney, the pancreas, the stomach and of the uterine,ceivix. he relationship
of smoking and cancer t beyond scientific dispute.

In addition, over recint years the importange of smoking in cardiovasenlar
diseag!, especially coronary heart disease, in piegnt.ncy, in chronic bronchitis
and emphysema and general longevity has been established beyond any question
of scientific doubt.--

The tobacco industry since-the first evidence of the health damaging effects of
smoking, has coitinued to maintain that the evidence is not clear and that we
need more scientific data. Gentlemen, I say to you that the evidence toJay is
so conclusive that I do not understand how anyone could doubt its authenticity.
Therefore, thequestien before this Committee and the American public is-03t
whether there is evidence orthe dangers of smoking, but rather, what can we
do about this najor health problem? As I understand the question before us to-
day is what can the Congreiz do in recognizing this hazard and assist our re-
sponsible health and community leaders in preventing this major health catastro-
phe?

Smoking has been clearly shown to be the most oreventable cause of disability
and death in the United States today. The price we pajas individuals, and as a
society, is so massive and so important that our national Ned local leaders must
lend every effort to avoid this tragedy. It is my conviction thit the Congress

.
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las a responsibility to see that every effort in midst to get this message across.It is a life or death issuel

At this point I must express,my admiration for Secretary Joseph Califano thdhis strong stand on this issue. /Utast* only recognized and acted on this subject,as he did by the establishment
elan Office on Smoking and,Health in thelDepart-mint, but he spoke out strongly and frequently on the issue. This may have beenan important aspect of his removal aa Secretary, but this event was tragic onlyfor the American public and not to Mr. Califano. His position and reputation onthis issue will stand the test of time and only represents the ambivalence of ourpolitical leaders to face-up to an issue involving such

massive economic andmonetary influences. It is a sad commentary but nevertheless true.
In addition to my comments about Secretary Califano, I must comment on morerecent events. I understand that the Offiee of Budget and Management recom-mended an abolition of the funds forithe Office on Smoking and Health in an ef-fort to decrease Federal expenditures. I further understand that only the per-sonal insistence of Secretary Schweiker resnited in a continuation of the support -for this valuable program. Though the present support for the Office on Smok-ing and Health is far from adequate, I must applaud Mr. Sehweiker for keepingthis program alive.

U our political leaders could recognize all of the aspects of smoking and health- the issue would be clear. The coat that the American public is paying is mass-ive. When one eonsiders time lost from work, acute and long-term hospital careand physician charges' - it far outweighs the returns for tobacco growers andmanufacturers, and taxes derived from tobacco producis. These figures are over-whelmincand when coupled with"the suffering, the disability and deaths due tosmoking, it represents the 'modern American tragedy.
I shall not atteinpt to res:iew the scientific evidence on the subject since that willhave been presented by the Office on Smoking and`HealtV, the Surgeon GeneFaland other expert witneses. 'As a matter of fact, your Chairman has well re-lated the seriousness of the problem in his remarks in the Congressional Recordon November 12, 1981.

-
I would like to comment about the report ofthe I?deral Trade Commission andHR 4957.

1) I strongly support the provision in HE 4957 for the staiutory el-tablishment of an Office on Smokingnd Wealth in the Departmentof Health and Human Services. Up until this time the Office hasbeen an executive creation and is subject to the wig and whims ofthe Administration and the Secretary of Health andli7An S4rvices.This subject is of such great importance to the Amer can publicthat it deserves a Congressional mandate toassure its supportand survival.

2) an view of its importance, I recomMend that the Congress authorizea level of annual support which is consonant with its responsibilities.
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Over the years this program has suffered from a lack of budget-
ary support. Not'only has the support been changeable and in-
consistent, but.that support has been lumped with other PHS
responsibilities to the extent that it has not had reliable, adequ-
ate financial support. It is about time that the Congress should
not only indicate its suppoit but to also stipulate an expenditure
level which will be required to Carry out the Congressional :nate-
date irriesponsible.fisattion.

As an example, the4moking program in the Public Health Ser-
vice was supported at about $3 million it 1972. Over the ensuing
years the level of support has varied in competition with other
health programs and its lack of specific support in the Depart-
mental budget. At the present time, the allocation of funds to
the Office en Smoking and Health is about $2 =Wirt. You can
appreciate what this decrease is in actual dollars with the in-
flationary increase of the past 10 years. It realistially amounts
to the fact that the Federal government is not convinced of the
importance of this issue and is willing to let it die of starvation.
I can't belleveAhat this is the intention of the Congress but is the
result of4 lack of statutory authorization of the Office en Smok-.
ing and Health and the lack of a specific authorization and approp-
riation for the Office. I hope that this session. of the Congress
will correct this serious deficiency.

I would suggest that an authorization of $10 million per year over
the next few years would be a wise irovision. In turn, I would
hope that theAppropriationCommittee would recognize this nee4
and meet this authorikation.

to. 3) I support the definition of responsibilities of the Office en Smoking
and Health and would like to emphasize the importrice of an educa-
tional program on smoking. It is a sad commentary that our society
galore the tobacco indtstry to spend $1.0 billion a year on advertis-
ing and yet the Offica en Smoking aia Health can barely afford to
compile and publish its annual report to the Congress. .We need a
massive information and educational progrim which oot only reaches
the general public but is especially directed at our youth. Thie costs
money and I can think of no better way to spend our tax dollars.

4) I agreW.with the need for more research on the subject of smoking and
health. In doing so, I çlo not agree with the tobacco industry which
closes its eyes and ears to all of the current splettlific information
and blandly suggests that "the issue of health damage is not settled
and we need more h". I submit to you that the facts of the
health issue of smoking is incontrivertibly established - but we do
need more. studies to Luther clarify the mechanisms by'which smok-
ing prieiuces its damage, and especially behavioral studies to assist
us in convincing our public, especially our youth, to not start smok-
ing orb, quit before they are "hooked".
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In using the term "hooked", I dollso with full aspreciation of the term.It is my personal conviction that cigarette smoking is an addiction. AsI have worked with smokers over the years, it has become quite clearto me as a physician that tobacco smoking is addictive. I have seen .and worked with so many smokers who want to quit and yet they are un-able to conquer this need for the tobacco smoke effect. I have satthroughpersonal conferences with many smokers who are trying togait and seen them manifest the characteristics. of "hard drug" with-drawal to doubt that it is a true physiological dependence. The psycho-logical dependence on smoking is clear and evident, but I am convincedthat a chronic cigarette smoker has a true physiological dependenceand that this is the problem with so many of our smokers who attemptto quit. To see a smoker go through the tremor, the sweating, the in-ability to concentrate, and the other serious disturbances of bo.ly func-tions related to withdrawal can not lead to any other conclusion. Un-fortunately, / am afraid that a large percentage of our physicians donot appreciate this problem and often do not give the medical supportthat is needed'when their patients are trying to qnit smoking.

41112...

5) I commend the provision of Ha 4957 to reqnire an annual report to theCongress from the Public Health Service. I am grateful that the origi-nal Congressional Act of 1965 required such a report (as well as a re-port from the Federal Trade Commission). In the fight for operating.funds. I am convinced that the Pub Lic Health Service would not haveprovided the necessary funds for the annual report had it not been re-quired by the Congress. We can not allow this requirement for up todate scientific information on Smoking and Health to vacillate with thewhims of budget manipulators in the Federal beaurocracy.

The other fact gathering ind
informational activities of the Office arealso important.

6) I strongly endorse the creation of an interagency Committee on Smok-ing and Health as provided by HR 4957.
7) The problem of labeling of a health warning is one of the principalparts of HR 4957. I agree with the. Federal Trade Commission thatthe current warnings are relatively ineffectual. Yet. I can not agreethat they have had no effect. Time and again I am identified in asocial or business meeting as the person who was primarily responsiblefor this "warning". I have been gratified on many occasions to harethe smoker pull a pack of cigarettes from his pocket and say, "oh.you proposed this warning?" Though some continue to smoke, theyare aware of the yarning. but I like the FTC,.would like for it tocarry more of a "watlop"./

Some of you may recall that in 1965 my staff and I in testimony beforeCongressional Committees recommended a more prominent and ex-plicit health warning. We even presented to the Comsnittees mocked-
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uit packages of cagarettes with.the warning in large print across the
front of the package. Nevertheless, the Congress in its ultimate
wisdom elected a less explicity warning to be placed in small print
in the edge of the package. Though it was not what we wanted and
recommended, I ara grateful that the Congress took this giant step
to recognize for the first time that smoking is harmful to your health.
I am futher pleased that in the renewal of the Act in 1970 the Congress
decided to make the warning more positive in saying that "The Sargeon
General has deteromined that smoking is dangerous to your health".
Since all of the Sargeon Generals for the past 80 years have sanctioned
this statement, I think each of us claims a part'of the action but since
the ?sal hallmark in this fight was the report of 1964, I ao claim a bit
more of the responsibility and crwidit.

I appland the action' of the Congress in requiring a more explicit warn-
ing in 1970 but I do not feel that the prehat warning is adequate in either
its canter or its prominence. For instance, I agree with the FTC in
recommending a rotating warning which refers to certain disease en7
tities but I would also nrge more prominence to the warning. I etill
believe that the warning should be across the face of the package. I
also-feel that such warnings should be on cigarette dispensing machines
and that the warning on billboards and other similar outdoor advertise-
ments should be larger and more legible. The present warnings on bill-
boards and 'similar outdoor advertisinj is so small and difficult to road
that it is almost completely ineffectual. The warning here, too, should
be more explicit and of such size that it can be read by the passing mo-
torist without his having to stop on the roadside, and get out his bino-
culars, in order to determine the complete message on the billboard.
It is rediculous I

8) I agree thet iublished and advertising information should not only re-
veal the tar and nicotine contents of cigarettes but should also reveal
the carbon monnxide yield. Recent scientific evidence has revealed
that exposare of persons to carbon monoxide is more important than
we previously recagnized. Scientific technology provides tests by
which carbon monoxide can be accarately measured. In light of these
facts, I think that a listing of the carbon monoxide yield of cigarette
smoke is probably as important as tar and nicotine yields. I recom-

mend that it be required on all cigarette packages and in all cigarette
adv,ertising and sales.

9) In relation to the health warnings on Cigarettes manufactured for ex-
port. I strongly recommend a health warning on the principal langu.
age of that country be required on all cigarette packages and advertli-
ins. In* dealings witheur international neighbors, it has been eni-
barrassrhg to me to acknowledge the health ;warnings required on
cigarettes for domestic consumption and yet not requiring a similar
warning.on the Product which is for consumption abroad. I am aware
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-



4

205

tliat in most of the advanced countries that a bealth warning is re-qtdredeigy their local laws. In thos countries where there'are notsuch r/quirernents, American products should provide the sametype of health warning that we require for domestic consumption intheir language.

With regards to the foreign market, I am concerned about the increasedemphasis that American cigarette manufacturers are exerting in the de-veloping countries. The increase in the advertising thrust in recentyears is tremendous. I interpret this effort as an attempt to protecttheir industry in the face of a clearly decreasing demand in the UnitedStates. It is a rather sad commentary that our government and in-dustry should concentrate on supplying the developing countries withcigarettes and military supplies, rather than food, social,progrtrnsand other developments whicb wonld lead to improvement rather thandestruction of their nations. To my mind, the use of cigarettes and ,tobacco products is one of the most destructive elements which wecould promote in the developing countries.
10) In commenting earlier on the types of health warnings on packagesand advertising, I did not remark about the experience in Sweden andthe United Kingdom in this regard. Both of these countries have fay_several years required varied and specific health warnings on cig-arette packages and advertising. Frankly, I do not know how effectivethese programs have beeti. In general, I got the impression that theyhave been reasonably effective, but definitive evidence is not availableio me. I woad suggest to this Committee that you assign staff or em.ploy reliable consultants to take a careful look at the Swedish andUnited Kingdom experience for your information. We do not need toreinvent the wheel..

Overall, I appland tie action of this Committee in recognizing the importance ofthis issue. As I have said earlier, it is one of tbe most important health issues.facing the American public and our responsible leaders. We can either face upto the issue or we can bury our heads in the And and hope it wilbgo away. Iwould dare submit, that in the latter circumstance the issue will persist longerthan we are able to survive with our inability to breathe under the sand.

94-387 0 - 82 - 13
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Dr. Terry.
In your view, what is the most significant new information we

have learned about the health effects of smoking since your report
was issued?

Dr. TERRY. I think the confirmation of the effects on coronary ar-
teries and coronary heart disease is by far the most significant It
is the most significant because it involves so many more people and
is such a life and death measure in so many instances.

There are others that are of considerable importance, particular-
ly in relation to smoking and pregnancy. But the number of people
involved, the potential dangers and death even in this important
area of pregnancy is not anything to compare with the problem in
relation to cardiovascular disease.

Mr. WAXMAN. You mentioned the Office of Smoking and Health
that was, I believe, started in the mid-sixties. Is that correct?

Dr. TERRY. No. The Clearinghouse on Smoking and Health was
set up by me, as a matter of fact, when I was Surgeon General, and
it operated under that name and in that capacity until Secretary
Califano changed the name, upgraded its status from the Public

Health Service to the Department and changed it in that respect.
There has been a continuing program. As you know, there have

been reports regularly from the Public Health Service .to the Con-
gress.

Mr. WAXMAN. The Office of Smoking and Health, which is now
part of. the Department of Health and Human Services, is some-
thing that this bill would make statutory. We would authorize it to
be part of the Government and to be funded each year by the Con-
gress.

As it is now, the Office could be abolished if the Secretary and
the rest of, the administration agreed to it, It could be abolished by
the Office of Management and Budget, just striking the item from

.the budget.
Now, you worked with the Congress. You know this is an author-

izing committee. We set up an agency or we set up a program. But
then the funding must go through the Appropriations Committee.

You indicated at one time $3 million ,was the amount giveni,to
this effort by the Federal Government. Now the, Office is'funded at
$2 million, with 12 employees.

I am wondering if that in any judgment could be considered a
huge government bureaucracy to deal with a problem of this mag-
nitude; second, and whether from your experiencd of working with
the Congress if we authorized a statutory agency could we expect
that the Approprations Committee would increase appropriations
above the $2 million in the current budget?

Dr. TERRY. Mr. Chairman, I think, to be quite frank and realistic
about it, the recommendation from the department recently and
from the Public Health Service, if you are interested in the number
of employees needed in the Office of Smoking and Health Sand
amount of 'funds needed, is absolutely ludicrous.

Obviously it is a decision that is handed down from the top of the
department, Who else participates in it, I do not know, but I think
the relatively recent resignation of the director, the head of the
Office of Smoking and Health, Mr. John Penny, is an excellent ex-
ample of what he thought was the direction in which it was going
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by this cut in the number of employees and even the meageramount of funds available.
' Mr. WAXMAN. YOU touched on the other aspect .of the bill thatshould get some attention, and that is the export of tobacco prod-ucts from the United States overseas, particularly to Third Worlddeveloping countries.
It is unlikely their governments have any kind of program formaking available to their citizens information about the dangers ofsmoking. I doubt very much that there is a voluntary heart associ-ation, lung association, or cancer society anywhere near the caliberwe have in this country.
We have permitted cigarettes to be exported to these countrieswithout any health warning. Do you have any basis to believe thatexcept by word of mouth, occasionally, some of these people couldhave any idea that this habit being pushed upon them is a danger-ous one and that they will live, maybe die, to regret it?Dr. TERRY. It is a very complicated question, if one can character-ize it as a question.

.In the first place, I think there are a few of the more educated,the more advanced people in those countries that do recognize it. Idon't think the vast majority of them do.I am not suit how many would be informed, how many morewould be informed with a health warning on cigarette packagesand labels. On the other hand, I am sure some more would be.Frankly, as a loyal American citizen I would be much morehappy to think my Government required this sort of labeling for itsforeign neighbors as well as its domestic consumption.One other thing in that respect. I think ehat there isn't muchthat we can do as American citizens other than requiring such awarning for all American products in those countries.But I think we have to depend a great deal on the World HealthOrganization and its various organizations, like the Pan AmericanHealth Organization, which is the regional' office for WHO in theAmericas.
I think we have to work, support, help WHO and its regional of-fices and activities. I think that this is the thing that we can dobest and most effectively. This; I think, is already underway, thatthe World Health Organization has an expert committee on smok-ing or health.
They first created that particular phrase, "smoking or health."Furthermore, last year smoking was taken as the World Healthstbject of the year, and World Health Day was devoted to the sub-ject of smoking or health.

- SO, I think there are others who will be working on it. I thinkthat we need to assist in that direction, but there are certainthings 'that are our definite and direct responsibility, such as thelabeling of our export products.
Mr. WAiMAN. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLUM. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, Dr. Terry, for appearing today.
Doctor, in this time of fiscal restraint that we are in, don't youthink it would be More prudent to evaluate the use of rotatingcigarette labels before we require them?.
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Dr. TERRY. I am not convinced that I know what you are talking
about when you talk about fiscal austerity and rotating labels for
the simple reason that I do not believe that the rotating labels
would pose any real appreciable increased cost.

Mr. BLILEY. You don't?
Dr. TERRY. No, I don't. I can't see why, if you were changing the

health warning label once a year, to think that changing the
presses to change the wordage of that label for that particular
manufacturer would cost anything very much. I can't believe it.

Mr. BLILEY. I think you would find plant managers who would
tell you that when you shut down equipment and machinery and
stop people to make changes, that it does cost consider-ably.

Dr. TERRY. I can't conceive a plant having to be shut down very
long for that particular change, sir.

Mr. &lux. I see.
The other part of my qtiestion is we couldn't know what this Cs

going to do, so why put it in? I mean, as a physician you wouldn't
recommend a procedure for treating a patient until it had been
evaluated, would you?

Dr. TERRY. I don't think the question you pose to me is quite a
proper one or could be answered directly. As a physician, I would
recommend to my patient anything that I thought would improves
that person's health, whether it was of a preventive or a curative
type.

I am quite convinced that this would add some more to the effec-
tiveness of the health knowledge of the American people, if we had
a more specific warning, if we had a warning which was rotated.

Frankly, I would like to see, Mr. Blileythough I don't believe
you were in the Congress at that time, not on this committee,
anyhowback in 1965, when we were testifying before this com-
mittee we presented to the committee marked up cigarette pack-
ages in which we had very prominent wordage across the front of
the package and recommended specific explicit warning.

The Congress, in its ultimate wisdom, decided not to do that and
decided on a less explicit warning on the edge of the package. Even
that we were grateful for, because it was the first time that the
Congress had ever officially recognized smoking as a health danger

I think we have come a way now, that there is reason to believe
that more explicit warnings, more prominently displayed and rotat-
ing in type, would be more helpful.

For instance, we don't have any final results, but the evidence in
Sweden is strongly suggestive. Sweden requires a rotating warning
Some of the studies there recently have iuggested that a larger
number of the people are aware of a health warning on the pack-
age since it became a rotating type of warning.

On the other hand, I think frankly that we do not have enough
evidence to say it is clear from the Swedish experience that i;o and
so and so and so. I think there is krongevidencethat it suggests
that such warnings are helpful.

Mr. BuLry. Finally the message is getting across in this country.
George Gallup's poll says 92 percent. That is a pretty high rating.
If any member of this body has a 92 percent name ID, they don't
worryloo much about the other 8 percent..
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'Dr. -TERRY. I am not diiputing a fact of Mr. Gallup, but Mr.Gallup` has been wrong before on some of his polls.Mr. BLILEY. Are you suggesting he might be wrong here?Dr. TERRY. I am suggesting he is wrong. I don't believe 92 per-cent .of the people are aware of the meaning of the curreAt healthwarnings.
.,^ Mr. BLILEY. What do you base that suggestion on?

Dr. TERRY. On my observations and discussions with people.Mr. BLILEY. I see.
Doctor, moving on tO the subject, the labeling itself, the publicseems fully aware of what you and other Surgepns General havesaid about smoking, as has been documented repeatedly in publicopihion polls.
Doesn't this show that the Government and private organizationshave succeeded in educating the American public?Dr. TERRY. I don't'think they have succeeded in educating them

,..
enough.

Mr. BLILEY. I see.
Dr. TERRY. I think yes, there has been some informational, edua-tional effect. I don't think it is enough.
Mr. BuLEv. When_ you were the Surgeon General in 1964, the'report of your Advisory Committee emphasized that smoking, ahd I

,
quote, "should be labeled 'habituation' to distinguish it clearlyfrom 'addiction.' " Since that time numerous scientists have repeat-ed this distinction including, for example, Dr. Ernest Wende in1979.

Don't you believe in view of the scientific uncertainty in thisarea that the warning related to addiction proposed by this billcannot be justified? ,
Dr. TERRY. I don't wani to argue about the details of each specif-ic warning. On the other .hand, let me say very directly that it hasbeen my personal conviction that cigarette smoking is addictive.Mr. BLILEY. In spite of what your Advisory Committee said in. 1964?
Dr. TERRY. There are many things we know now that the Adviso-ry Committee did not know in 1964. Yes, regardless 'of what thecommittee reported at that time.
Mr. BLILEY. In spite of What Wende said in 1979?Dr. TERRY. What did the committee say about cardiovascular dis-ease in 1964? They pointed out a higher mortality rate among' smokers. At that time they were reluctant to attach a cause andeffect relationship to smoking and coronary disease.On the other hand, I think the evidence since that time has quite'clearly demonstrated that there is a cause and effect relationshipand this was clearly brought out in the 1979 report of the SurgeonGeneral.

Mr. BLILEY. So you would change and say it is now addictive asopposed to merely--
11 Dr. TERRY. I said it is my conviction that cigarette smoking is ad-: dictive to many people.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank_you, Doctor.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Rogers.
Mr. ROGERS. Dr. Terry, have you any training or experience orbackground in behavioral research or behavioral science?
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Dr..TERRY. I am haVing difficulty hearing you.
Mr. ROGERS..I am sorry. Have you any background or training in

behavioral science or behavioral research?
Dr. TERRY. That is a difficult question. I have not had formalized

training in psychiatry, psychology or behavioral research of that
sort.

Mr. ROGERS. You have not had practice in that area,*either, have
you?

Dr: TERRY. I don't think any physician practiced medicine, as I
did for many, many years, without practicing in full recognition of
human behavior:

Mr. ROGERS. Well, I am a lawyer. I practice behavioral science in
practicing law. We all practice behavioral science in our way of
life. As a medical doctor, have you had any training or practice in
behavioral science?

Dr. TERRY. I have had a lot of experience in behavioral sciences
in dealing with patients and their problems.

Mr. ROGERS. I am wondering why you don't address the subject
here today beciause this bill really addresses behavior and behavior
research'of the American people.

I happen to agree viith George Gallup. At least he is in the ball
park. Until you show me something, different I am going to believe
that po percent of the population of the country agrees that ciga-
rette smoking is harmful and don't need,f& be warned anymore.

The question is how do. you make theni behave according- to the
science that they knoif? That subject has not been addressed by
any witness here this morning, from a background in that science,
and I would wonder why there are no behavioral researchers here
this morning to tell us the answer to that. ,

Gallup also says that the percentage of smokers in the country is
down to the lowest point in history in 37 years. It seems to me
what this Congress adopted a few years back, and your report,
which started off the debate, it seems rto me that what is being
done is working:

Can you argue with that? -
Dr. TERRY. It has been intermittent and spasmodic over these 18

years. At the same time, I think overall we have made progress,
and I am very happy for that. I think we should keep up what we
are doing, but we need to do more.

Mr. ROGERS. Thank you very much.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank.you, Mr. Rogers.
Dr: Terry, again, my appreciation for your being with us. You

were very helpful to us.
The subcoinmittee will now recess until 2.
[Whereupon, at 12:15 the stibtommittee recessed, to reconvene at

2 p.m., the same day.)

IAFTER RECESS
80

subcommittee reconvened at 2 p.m., Hon. Henry A.

.

.

Waxman, chairman; presiding.]
Mr. WAXMAN. The meeting of the subcommittee will please come

to order.

,

.
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Our last panel today represents the advertising and publishingtrade associations. Erid Rubin is Counsel for the Outdoor Advertis-ing Association of America. Michael Waterson -is Research Directorof the Advertising Association and represents the Anierican Associ-ation of Advertising Agencies. David Minton is Washington Coun-
'

sel for the Magazine Publishers Association.
We would like to welcome each of you .today to our hearing.Come forward, if you would, please. Without objection your full"prepar ed statements will be made part of the record. We would liketo ask you to summarize those statements in as brief a period aspossible so wd can have an opportunity for questions..

STATEMENTS OF MICHAEL J. WATERSON, ON BEH4LF OF AMERI-
CAN ASSOCIATION OF ADVERTISING AGENCIES, AMERICAN AD-VERTISING FEDERATION, ANWASSOCIATION OF NATIONAL AD-VERTISERS; ERIC RUBIN, COUNSEL, OUTDOOR ADVERTISINGASSOCIATION OF AMERICA; AND DAVID MINTON, WASHINGTONCOUNSEL, MAGAZINE PUBLISHERS ASSOCIATION
Mr, WATERSON. I would like,, to thank the chairman for giving metime to testify today on behalf of the American Association of Ad-vertising Agencies, the American Advertising Federation, and theAssodiation of National Advertisers.
I would also like to introduce niyself. I am Researc D rector ofthe Advertising Association, based in London. I am memberof the Council for National Academic Awards.
The functhn of the Advertising Association is to see that the in-terests of manufacturers, advertising agencies and the media arerepresented in the United Kingdom and European parliaments,and to insure that issues such as the one under discussion heretoday are debated fairly, and in the light of all avairable researchevidence.
We have worked closely with the EEC Parliament, with theCouncil of Europe, and the British Government on the questionsco.ncerning the advertising of alcoholic drink, advertising to chilldren, and the incidence of false advertising claims.It is also relevant for me to point out?the the Advertising Associ-ation did not defend cigarette advertising without first researchingareas where we felt uncertain of our position. If our research hadindicated areas of concern, I would not be tere today:In short, the Advertising AsSociation would not jeopardize itshard-won position of respect in Europe, by defending a doubtfulcause.)I do believe that there are good grounds for rejecting themeaSures proposed dn H.R. 4957.

My reasons derive from the research evidehce available pthichshows that restrictions on cigarette advertising do not have anyeffect on overall cigarette consumption. Restrictions do howeverslow down the transfer of sthokers to low-tar, low-nicotine brands.The evidence ianges from edonometric studies, which isolate theimpact of factors such as price, and health campaigns on consump-tion; through to appraisals of perception of cigarette ads and anti-cigarette ads, through to comparision studies of the different mar-kets.
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In my opinion a lot of information can be got frOm this data,
since the position varies from country to country. For example, in
Switzerland there is virtually complete freedom to advertise follow-
ing a recent referendum. In Norway and Poland bans on cigarette
advertising exist. In Norway a massive health campaign has ac-
companied the ban. Yet per capita cigarette consumption has
hardly varied over the 5 years before the ban or the 6 years since
In Sweden 16 health warnings rotate on cigarette packs, but no
effect can be detected. In Finland the main effect of the ban has
been to slow down the transfer of smokers to low-tar brands.

1...,The research evidence suggests clearly that the governments
that have tried to reduce smoking by restricting tobacco acts have
not been successful.

The reason is simple, cigarette ads do not sell the idea of smok-
ing. Cigarette ads sell brands and most importantly, low-tar and
low-nicotine brands.

The evidence from econometric analysis backs up this common-
sense view. Many such studies have now been conducted in Europe
on cigarette and similar markets. None show ads exerting any in-
fluence other than at the brand level.

This explains why health messages on packs don't work. It is rel-
atively easy to sell a new brand. It is virtually impossible to make
people smoke more cigaretts or use more gasoline through advertis-
nig. Similarly, modifying the behavior of smokers not to smoke is
extremely unlikely to result from health warnings on packs or in
ads.

In addition to this aspect, health warning are shown by the evi-
dence to be ignored because they are messages -smokers don't want
to receive. In the United Kingdom it is almost impossible to find a
smoker who doesn't know the health hazard. ,Yet it is also almost
impossible to find a smoker who knows the words used in the pack
warnings.

The fact is, that other parameters such as income and price level
are far more important. For example, in Britain, cigarette con-

. sumption fell by 15 percent last year due to a large price rise.
For these reasons, it is my view that H.R. 4657 will not contrib-

ute to a decline in cigarette consumption. If it is enacted into law,
it will, however, contribute directlyrto a fall in the rate of conver-
sion of smokers from high to low-tar brands.

The research evidence' shows that countries such as the United
States and West Germany where cigarette advertising is permitted
have experienced a more rapid conversion rate to low-tar ciga-
rettes, than countries such as Norway and Poland where aaertis-
ing is banned. Any interference with the effectiveness of brand ad-
vertising, such as that proposed by H.R. 4957, will certainly slow
down this conversion process.

Finally, I would submit that H.R. 4957, if passed, will set a dan-
gerous precedent. In every country in Europe and imposition of
cigarette advertising regulations has signaled the start of demands
that the advertising of other product groups be restricted.

I would suggest that if H.R. 4957 is enacted, it will form the basis
for demands for the restriction of the advertising for many other
products in common- usage today. As such it strikes at the heart of
the`market system of the United States.

i
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To conclude, I believe that H.R. 4957 will not succeed in its aimsif ,passed. .
To quote one of the most recent studies produced by a major re-search organization in Germany,"every, country in the world thathas tried to reduce smoking by restricting tobacco advertisementshas been unsuccessful." The experirrent has been tried, and hasfailed. In Italy cigarette advertising is to be allowed again after a20-year ban, during whith period consumption rose by 60 percent.In all probability however, the bill, if enacted, would have unfortb?.nate and unlooked for consequence-s of a seri9us natkire.I will be happy to answer any questions, but before I do I wouldlike tomention that copies of my report on this subject have beeninserted for the record, and made available for members of thecommittee. I will be happy to supply the committee with copies ofany other research evidence I have referred to.Thank you for your time.

[Mr. Waterson's prepared statement follows:J,
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Testimony of'Michael J. Waters8n for the

American Association of Advertising Agencies,

the American Advertising Federatlon, and

the Association of National Advertisers

-.Before the House Subcommittee on Health

and the Environment of-the Committee on Energy and Commerce

on H:R.4957, The Comprehensive Smoking

Prevention Act of 1981

\\\ Merch25, 1982
41'

I.would like, firtt of.all,.to thank the Chairman for, giving

me time to testify today on behalf of Ihe Ameripan Associa-
.

tion of Advertising Agencies, the,American Aavertising,Yedra-

tion, and the Association of National Ad4rtisers, On his legiss'jn

lation designed to reduce cigarette consumption hy further're- 4

stricting cigarette advertising.

As you are aware, the advertising industry is heavily affected

by recommendations in your legislation. We welcome this oppor-

tunity to appear before your committee to illustrate the prac-

tical effects of such action which may be counter-productive to

the very 'nature of your intent.

Secondly, I w ld like to introduce myiel apd the organization

/ work for. .

I am Research,Director of the Advertising Association, based in

the United Kingdom. I have an honors.degree in Econometrics,

and a masters degree in Marketing.

The Advertising Association has existed for.more than 50 years.

Its function is to ensure that the joint interests of manufac-

^
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turera, advertising agencies and the media ire fairly repre-
sented in the United Kingdom and European parliaments.

Our pprpose is to work with governments, to ensure that issues
such as the one under

discussion here today are debated fairly,
.and in the light of all available research evidence.

For example, we,worked
closely with the Bfitish government to

research exhaustively the incidence of false and misleading
advertising claims, in conjunction with leading consumer organi-zations.

We have worked
closely with the European

Economic Community,
'ParliaMent and Commission, and with leading European consumergroups to research the

questions arising about advertising tochildren.

And we have worked in harmony with leading organizations in
Europe concerned with alcoholism, with the Council of Europe,
the EEC Commission and the British Department of Health on the
questions concerning the advertising of,alcoholic drink,

I feel it is also relevant for me to point out that the Adver-
tising Association did not undertake the task of defending theplace of cigarette

advertising in Europe without first research-
in the issues involved. We spent two years debating the various
points with our members and researching areas where we felt un-certain of our'position.

If our research had indicated areas
. of concern, such as suggesting that cigarette

advertising wasa factor in promoting total sales of cigarettes, 4 would notbe here today.,

2
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In short, the Advertising Association wopld not be prepared to

jeopardise its hard-won position of'respect in parliamentary

circles in Europe, by defending a lost or doilbtful cause. I

do believe that there are good grounds for rejecting measures

sUch as those proposed in H.R.4957.

My reasons derive from the research evidence I have collected

.in recent years, which shows that restrictions on cigarette

advertising do not have an); effect on overall cigarette con-

sumption. Advertising restriction's do however slow down the '

transfer -of smokers to low-tar, low-nicotine brands.

In my opinion H.R.4957 may well result in a decline in cig-

arette advertising, denying valuable,OrodUct information,

particularly relating to new low-tar brands, to consumers, and

therefore having an effect the very opposite of.that intended.

The research evidence.I have examined ranges from major econo-

metric studies, whicli attempt to isdiate the impact of various

factort such as income, price, and health campaigns on cigarette

consumption; through to appraisals of consumers' perceptions of

cigarette advertisements, anti-cigarette advertisements, and

advertisements defending cigarette advertisements; through to

comparison studies of the different.European markets where many

different types of attempts have been made to cut smoking.

In my opinion a great,deal of useful information can be derived

from this mass of data, sinFe the position varies so greatly

from country to countri-in Europe. For example,.in Switzerland

there is virtually complete freedom'for the manufacturers to

advertise where and how they like, following a recent Aferen-
.

dum on the issue. In Norway, Sweden and Finland a complete

balt-On cigarette advertising exists.' In taiway a massive health

campaign has accompanied the cigarette.advertising ban. Yet

per capita cigarette consumption has hardly varied over the
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five years before the ban or over the six years since. In
Sweden, no less than 16 health warnings rotete on cigarette
packs, but no effect can be detected. In Finland the main
effect of the advertising ban has been'to slow down the trans-
fer of smokers to low-tar brands.

In the UK cigarette idvertising is allowed, but consumption
dropped by 15% last year due to a very large price increase.

The research evidence suggestb clearly that of the governments
that have tried to reduce smoking by

restricting tobacco ads
or by increasing the number of health warnings, none has been
successful.

The reason is simple, cigarette ads do not sell the idea of
smoking. Cigarette ads sell brands and morst importantly,
low-tar and low-nicotine brands.

The evidence from properly conducted econometria analysis,
backs up this common sense view. 'A large number of such
studies have now been conducted in Europe on cigarette and
similar markets. None show ads exerting any influence other
than at the brandilevel.

This partly explains why health messages on packs don't work.
It is xelativeli

easy tosell a new brand. It is virtually
impossible to make people smoke more cigarettes or use more
gasoline through advertising. Similarl; modifying the be-
havior of smokers not to smoke is extrembly unlikely to result
from health warnings on packs or isn ads.

In addition to this aspect, health warnings are shewn by re-
search evidence to be ignored because they are messagessmokers
don't want to receive. In the United Kindgom it is almost im-

a
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possible to find a.smoker who doesn't know the health hazard,

or who has not at some stage tried to give up smoking. Yet it

is also almost impossible to find a smoker who knows the words

used in the pack warnings.

The fact is, that the only factor we can find associated with

falling cigarette consumption, is the price of cigarettes.

For these reasons, iteis my view that H.R.4957 will not in any

way contribute to a decline in cigarette consumption in the USA.

If ft is enacted into law, it will,however,contribute directly

to a fall in the rat.e-tf conversion of smokers from high to low-
.

,tar and low-nicotine brands.

The research evidence shows-quite clearly that countries such

as Vinland and Norway with cigarette\adVertising bans, or

countries where advertising is highly restricted, have a smaller

proportion of the population smoking low-tat and low-nicotine

cigarettes. Countries such as the USA,and West Germany where

cigarette advertising is permitted have experienced a much more

rapid conversion rate to low-tar cigarettes. iny interference

with the effectiveness of brand advertising, such as that pro-

posed by H.R.4957, will certainly slow down this conversion

process. Finally, I would submit that H.R.4957, if passed;

will set a dangerous 'precedent.

In every country in Europe where cigarette advertising is re-

stricted or banned, the imposition of regulations has signaled

the start of fresh demands that the advertising of other'pro-

ducZ groups should be restricted.

223
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'I would suggest that if H.R.4957
is successful, it will formthe basis for demands for the restriction

and regulation of theadvertising for many of the other
products,in common usage today.As such it strikes

at the heart of the market system of the USA.

To conclude, I believe that H.R. 4957 will not succeed in itsaims if passed. To quote one of the most recent studies.on thesubject, produced by ZAW in Germany,
concerning data from 14countries "every country in the world that has.tried to reducesmoking by restricting

tobacco advertisements has been unsuc-cessful." Therefore there is no reason for the United State&government to experiment in the area. This experiment hasalready been attempted in Western Europe without success. Inall probability however, the bill, if enacted, would have un-fortunate and unlooked for consequences of a serious nature,such as discouraging
sales of new products or product Improve/Mits.

I'll be happy to answer any questions,
but 134fOre I do woldlike to mention that copies of my report on this subject havg

lieen inserted for the Record, and made available for membersof the Committee. I will be happy to supply the Committee withcoPies of any
other research evidence I'have referred to.

Thank you for your time.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Mr: Waterson., Mr. Rubin.

STATEMENT OF ERIC RUBIN
Mr. RUBIN. I am counsel to the Outdoor Advertising Associ ioiiof America (OAAA). OAAA is the trade association of the stin ard-ized outdoor advertising industry. I am also a partner in azt"liut-door advertising bnsinesi located in Lynchburg, Va., and am testi-fying before the subcommittee today from that dual perspective.The OAAA appreciates this opportunity to testify regarding theadvertising restrictions that would be imposed on cigarette adver-tising_by H.R. 4957 and to state its opposition to those provisions.H.R. 4957 is predicated on the sponsors' conclusion that cigarettesmoking is a health hazard and that current Federal, State, andprivate initi tives have been insufficient to inform the Americanpublic of th health consequences of smoking. -In this r gard, the bill largely parallels an extensive series ofstaff recommendations already under consideration by the FederalTrade Commission.

,In the OAAA's view, the question of wgether the 'warning textshould be revised has been largely eclipsed by the eublic's virtuallyuniversal underitanding of the potential hazards of smoking. TheFI'C staff report itself points out that 90 percent of the Americanpublic now un&rstands that cigarette smoking is.potentially dan-,gerous to health.

I,
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From a practical standpoint there is a serious question whether
the additional disclosures mandated by this bill would have any
perceptible impact on cigarette consumption. This is borne out by
testimony presented by the first panel this marling and is docu-
mented by the empirical data presented in Dr. Waterson's testimo-
ny today. It is difficult to understand how more specific advertising
disclosure4 would achieve a level of public awareness that has not
already been attained given the plethora of detailed product infor-
mation generally available and already comprehended by the
publid.

The advertising regulation provisions of H.R. 4957 are trouble-
some 'from a legal, as well as policy, standpoint. It is essential to
recognize that cigarettes are a lawful commodity and that current
cigarette advertising.incorporating the Surgeon General's warning
is lawful commercial speech that is protected in the first amend-
ment.

As a result, despite its substantial interest in public health
issues, the Congress does not have unfettered discretion to impinge
on that advertising.

It is easy to lose sight of these principles when considering dra-
matic issues such as smoking and health. Nevertheless, the sub-
committee must confront the fact that H.R. 4957 imposes specific
prior restraints on protected speech and that the courts have em-
phasized that every such restraint is inherently "suspect."

The operative constitutional standard is that any governmental
restriction of protected speech must be the "least restrictive
means" available to achieve the governmental objective. Given the
effectiveness of the ccirrent health warning system, the imposition
of a new, more burd:tsome disclosbre scheme is almost_ by defini-
tion not "the least restrictive means."

Finally, it should also be noted that separate first amendment
.problems are raised by section 4(d) of this bill which would increase
the penalty from $10,000 to $100,000 for each violation of the Ciga-
rette*Labeling Act.

With a potential penalty of this magnitude for noncompliance, it
is easy to see how these provisions could themselves become a de-
terrent to otherwise lawful speeeh. This potential "chilling effect"
on speech alone would represent an infringement on first amend-
ment protections.

Indeed, if enacted into law, the constitutiimal fate of 'this bill
might well be sealed if even one cigarette manufacturer decided
that it was compelled t6 abandon or even significantly reduce its
advertising in order to diminish or avert the potential exposure to
criminal penalties.

Finally, the OAAA would like to address itself. briefly to that
part of the legislation 'which requires the conspicuous display of the
health warning. Certainly until very recently, this was the most se-
rious issue with respect to the dissemination of cigarette advertis-
ing in the outdoor medium.

Brit in July 1981, the F.T.C. filed five companion consent judg-
ments in U.S..District Court which resolve this issue by establish-
ing an entirely new and unique warning format that is to be used-
solely for billboards. These consent judgments.abandon the tightly
,contained,warning rectangle format that has been in use for ten
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years and require instead that a greatly enlarged Surgeon Gener-al's warning be displayed within a segregated banner that extendacross the entire length of each sign. My lovely assistants here willshow you two examples. This is the actu'al billboard copy, was untillast Monday, the warning displayed on poster-size billboards whichwere 12 by 24 posters.
The right-hadd side is the warning which now appears as ofMonday when the consent order finally came into effect. You cansee the distinction and difference between the two warnings is verygraphic. That is the actual size.
Indeed the new warning format already provides the type of con-spicnous dislosure on billboards that would be required by the in-stant legislation.
The GAM appreciates this opportunity to present its views.Thank you.
[Mr. Rubin's prepared statement follows:]

94-387 0 - 82 - 15
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TESTIMONY OF OUTDOOR APVERTISINGISSOCIATION
OF AMERICA REGARDING H.R. 4957

My name is Eric Rubin. I am an attorney in private practice

in Washington, D.C. and counsel to the Outdoor Advertising

-Association of AmericaIOAAA). OAAA is the trade association

of the standardized outdoor advertising industry. I am also' a

partner in an outdoor advertising business llocated in Lynchburg.

Virginia and am testifying before the Subcommittee today from

that dual perspective. The OAAA appreciates this opportunity to-

testify regarding the advertising restrictions that would be imposed*

on cigarette advertising by H.R. 4957c

The OAAA is comprised of one hundred and seventy member-companies

that serve 7,900.distinct local advertising markets throughout the

United States. The OAAA's membeis are principally small localli7based,

family-owned h.usinesses operating in a sin9le locality, or in several

contiguous areas within a particular state. Other OAAA members are

relatively large companies which operate on a regional or national

basis.

Like all other media, outdoor advertising is purchased by both

national and local advertisers for the dissemination of all types

of commercial, political and social messages. In 1980, outdoor

advertising represented 16.64% of media expenditures for adve'rtising

of the 15 leadtagrS4garette brands.1/ During that same period,

cigarette idvertising represented
approximately 151 of all ads

disseminated on outdoor advertising. These communications are

4/ Leading National Advertisers, Media Decisions, October, 1981,

Pade 174.
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presented im two basiC
standard-sized 'billboard formats. The

*poster panel ia a 12 foot by 24 foot sign upon which a pre-printed
message is posted. A 'painted bulletin" is a 14 foot by 48 foot
sign which contains

a hand-painted message. Posters are maintained
in one location and

advertising copy ia
periodically pasted onto

the surface,of the sign. The painted bulletin,sign face is hand-
painted at a central

production faciliiy and is then tranaported
in sections and affixed to a permanently installed

support framework.
A bulletin will remain in one location for a period of time, usually
two months, and ia then

disassembled and replaced by another
message while the first message is relocated to another billboard
structure. In this way, the

same hand-painted mess-age is moved to
a series of different sites in a metropolitan

area over a siX month
or twelve month period.

H.R. 4957 is predicated
on the sponsors' conclusion that

cigarette smoking is a health hazard and that
curreneFederal,

State and private initiaiives
have been insufficient to inform the

AMerican public of the
health consequences of smoking. Thus, the

bill would impose a series of new boilerplate
health warnings for

insertion in cigarette
advertisements to'educate the American public.

These warnings would be rotated between the
advertisements for each

cigarette brand over a six-year period of time. In this regard, the
bill largely- parallels

an extensive aeries of staff
recommendations

already underconsideration by the Federal Trade Commission.
At first glance, the proposed legi

a relatively benign public public pa

it seems incongruous-that
the very comp

ion would seem to advance

Bu in a very real sense,

and emotioeally laden

4
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queeion of how far the government should go in attempting to curb

cigarette smoking SHLd be played out within th narrow pontextl

of advertiaing regulation. In the OAAA's view, the question of whether

the warning text should be revised has been largely eclipsed by the

' public's vixtually universal understanding of the potential,hazards

of smoking. The F.T.C. Staff Report4tself points out that 90% of

the American public now understands that cigarette smoking is

potentially dangerous to health. Indeed, the report released last

week by the Surgeon General notes that since 1965 the proportion

of Americaqs who smqke has decreased from 42% to 32%.

But implicit in H.R. 4957 16 a policy which extends beyond

.a cognitivetationale.
The apparent policy of the bill is that

if cigarette advertising detailed the potential hazards

of smoking to'health then people wouldn't smoke; ifiperhaps the

warning just a little more drisVc, people would be scared and

would quit.

In our view there is false logic lurking in this view.

Prom a 'practical standpoint there is a serious question,whether

the additional disclosures mandated by this bill would have any

Perceptible impact on cigarette consumption. p.early, consumer

demandfor these products is 'shaped a complex series of factors.

Indeed, at best it is unclear whether consumers aould ever rely on

advertising for more than the general type,of information contained

in the current Farning system. The bill simply presumes thai new

and more specific advertising
disclosures would achieve a 1eve1 of-
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-public awareness that has not attained

despite the plethora
of detailed product

information generally available and
already comprehended by the public.

Perhaps the FTC itself
best articulated re limitations of

what can reasonably be
accomplished through advertising disclosure

when It first looked at the problem in 1964 at a time when public
awareness was far less pervasive.

"In attempting to fulfill its,statutory
reponsibilities to prevent unfair or deceptivecigarette advertising and labeling, the Commissionshould not be understood as attempting.a
comprehensive solution to the problem. Labelingand advertising

restrictions could not, in anyevent, provide a complete
answer to the social, moral,medical and economic

issues raised by the widespreadincidence of the smoking habit...* Statement ofBasis and Purpose
Accompanying Trade Regulation RuleFor the Prevention of Unfair and Deceptive

Advertisingand Labeling of Cigarettes In Relation to the HealthHazards of Smoking (1964) at p. 7.

The advertising
regulation provisions of H.R. 4957 are

troublesome from a legal, as well as policy, standpoint. It is
essential to recognize

that cigarettes are a lawful commodity and
that current cigarette

advertising incorporating the Surgeon
General's warning is lawful commercial speech that is protected by
'the First Amendment. As a result, despite

its substantial interest
in public health issues, the Congress does not havecunfettered

discretion in the selection
of the measures to effect that purpose.

Where the means it hai selected impact on protected Speech, the
.Congress clearly cannot exercise its authority

independent of First
Amendment considerations.
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It is easy to lose sight of these principles when considering

dramatic issues such as smoking and health. Yet, before going further

with this legislation the Subcommittee must confront the fact that

H.R. 4957 imposes specific prior restraints on protected speech and

that the/Courts have emphasized that every such restraint is

inherently "suspect".!/ It does not matter that the regulations afe

thought to further some laudable government goal or that it may be

convenient to appropriate advertising to conduct a public health

education campaign. The operative qpnstitutional standard is that
A

any governmental restriction of protected spibech must be the 'least

restrictive means' available to achieve the governmental objective.

Given the effectiveness of the current health warning system, the,

imposition of a new, more burdensome disclosure scheme is almost

by definition not "the least restrictive means'. Inevitably, the

bill raises serials First Amendment questions.2/

The constitutional difficulties faced by this legislation

Can perheps best be illustrated by reference to the reactions of

the federal courts in analogous circumstances where the F,T.C.,hat'

ordered affirmative disclosure requirements. Attached to this

testimony is a short sxpopsis of these cases. Ii' will suffice here

simpli to point out that each time a Circuit Court has addressed

the issue, the Court has narrowly.proscribed the government's

aUthority to impose restrictions on commercial speech through

affirmative disclosure. Significantly, the:v decisions occur

2/ See, e.g., Beneficial Corp. v. F.T.C., 542 P.2d 611 (3d Cir.

1976), cert. den. 430.0.S. 983 (1977).

2/ Central Hudson Gas v. Public Service Commission, 447 U.S. 557

(1980).
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in the context of a finding that prior advertising was in fact

deceptive.- By contrast, ciiarette
advertising has for more than a

decade has 'incorpotated
the Surgeon General's warning and is noT

similayly unlawful. .Thus, it is difficult to believe that.the courts
will view with any greater favor the draconian warning system that
would result from the instant legislation..

Finally, it should ilso be'stated that separate First Amendment
considerations are raised by the Sectio6 4(d) of H.R. 4957 which
would increase the penalty from $10,000 to $100,000 for each violation,
of the Cigarette Labeling Act. Under these provisions, each sepafate
nonconforming adveitisement would constItute a distinct crime to.which
the Penalty would attach. With a potential criminal-penalty of this
magnitude for noncompliAnce,

it is easy to see how these provisiond
could themselves become,a deterrent

to otherwise lawful speech.. The
potential "chilling effect" on speech alone could represent an

infringement on First Amendment
protections.±/ Indeed, the constitut

ional fe.te of this bill, if
enacted into law, might well be sewled

if even one cigarette
manufacturer decided that it was compelled to

abandon advertising, or even significantly reduce it advertising '
for ust a few of its brands, in

order to diminish or avert the
pot ial exposure io criminal peAlties.1/

4/ See, 22.1., Dumbrowski
v. Ffister,.380 U.S. 079 (1965), Buckley v.Valeo, 424 U.S. 1 (1976)

.

CSi See, 141. Oklahbma
Telecasters Assoc. v. &lisp, F.suppt(W.D. Okla. 1981), 7 Hed.L. Rptr. 2490.
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Finally, the OAAA would like to address itself briefly to

that part of the legislation which requires the conepicuod display

of the health warning. Certainly
until very recently, this has proven

to be the most serious issue with respect to the disseminatiom of .

cigarette advertising in the outdoor medium. But in July k981, the

Compission ftled five,companion consent
judgments in U.S. District

- Courtf./ which establish ,an entirely new and unique warning

-format that is to be used solely for billboards. The consent

judgments abandon the tightly contained warning rectangle format

that has been in use for ten years
and require,4nstead that a greatly

iiiiiigesiirgeon General's warning be displayeAlthin a segregated

banner that extends across the entire length:of the base of each

sign. Unlike the original format, the,warning must now conform to

specific size requirements and must be displayed against a babkground

which contrasts with the
remainingi-advertising copy on the sign.

The Commission's order also requires that the warning Must be Printed

in a specific type style that maximizes the visibility' of messages

on billboards. '

The billboard provisions of the consent judgments are not

simply teChnical adjustments but
rather represent a basic revision

in Commis'sion policy. Indeed, .they Are a manifestation of aecisely

the type of conspicuous disclosure that would he required by the

instant legislation.'

CONCLUSION

An effective health warning system for cigarette advertising .

already eiists. Recent actions by the F.T.C. have dramatically
-

improved the visibility of the warning.in the outdoor medium.

A.R. 490 unwisely proposes to jettison current warnini

mechanism in,favor.of i more burdensoie regulatory scheme. This

;imposed scheme rafses serious First
Amendment concerns that are

made particularly accute by the proposal to impose a $100,000

criminal penalty,for
violatiopi of the disclosure requirements. %

'f,/ See dnited States of America v. Philip MorrisdInc., Consent

Judgment 7C;Civ. 1315 (JAC); U.S. District Court for the

Southerm4District of New York, July 13, 1981.

/
t '1,
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Synopsis of Circuit
Court Decisions Limiting

Affirmative Disclosure Orders of the P.T.C.

he Supreme Court first
extended First Amendment

protection to
commercial speech in Virginia State Board of Pharmacy v. Virginia

A

Citizen's Consumer Council, 425 U.S. 748 (1975). In subsequent
decisions ihe Court has developed a clear-cut

standard for reviewing
government restrictons

on advertising:, government
regulation of

truthful commercial speech for a,lawful activity must directly
advance a substantial

government interest and be qo more extensive
than necessary to serve that interest.

Central Budson Gas v.
Public Service Commission, 447 U.S. 557, 566 (1980).

The incorporation of commercial speech within the penumbra
of the Pirs Amendment has'forced a broad reexamination by
the Circuit Courts of

the substantial prior restraints that are
inherent ill all affirmative

disclosure orders. The issue was
clearly drawn by the Third Circuit in Beneficial Corp. v. P.T.C.,

/542 P.2d 611 (3d Cir.
1976), cert. den. 430 U.S. 983 (1977)

There, the court noted
that ordinarily it was obliged to 'defer

broadly to the Commission's
exercise of informed discretion

in forming remedial orders that bear some4ttiortal
relationship to

the removal or prevention of an established violation.' Id. at 618.
Nevertheless, the Court drew a distinction with respect to commercial
spech remediess "But we are dealing in this case with the

government regulation 6f a form of speech. The Pirst Amendment
requires, we believe,

an examination of the:Commission's
action that

is more searching than in other contexts." Id. at 618-19. The Third
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Circuit went on to explain the dichotomy between deceptive sieect,

which is not protected, and the constraints imposed by.the Pirst

Amendment on the F.T.C.'s authority to prescribelremedies with

respect to such practices..

It is now well established beyond dispute that

there is no commercial speech exception to the

Pirst Amendment. (citations omitted) That does

not mean that an advertiser may engage in speech

,
that is an essential part of a scheme to violate

an otherwise valid law. (citations omitted) It

does mean that the remedy for perceived violations

can go no further in imposing a prior restraint
on protected speech than is reasonably necessary

to accomplish the remedial objective of preventing

the Violation. (citation omitted) Id. at 619.

The Court.concluded: 'The Commission, like any other government

agency, must starCfrom the itemise that any prior restraint is

suspect, and thaet the remedy can go no further than is necessary

for the saimination of deception.' Id. at 620..

In Warner-Lambert Co. v. P.T.C., 562 F.2d 749 (D.C. Cir. 1977),

cert. den. 435 U.S. 950 (1978), the District of Columbia Cireuit

Court had occa,ft to review the Commission's remedial autho9ity in

the context of a corrective advertising order. The Court reafffrmed

that the First Amendment 'triggers a responsibility to order

corrective advertising only if the restriction inherent in the order

is no greater then necessary to serve'the interest involved:' Id.

at 762. The Courtield that it was not necessary for the Commission

to order Warner-Lambert to beqin F.T.C.-ordered corrective

Ydvertisements with the phrase 'contrary to prior advertising,'

and ordered that language expunged fr6s1 the Commission's order.

Id. at 763.

i
ft 43ne a
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The Seventh Circuit has also had occasion-to clarify this issue
in two recent cases. In National Commission on Egq Nutrition v.

F.T.C., 570 F.2d 157 (7th Cir. 1977) cert. den. 439 U:S. 821 (1978),
the Court riArrowed the scope of areF.T.C. advertising

disclosure
order and severely limited a requirement that advertisements contain
disclosures about eggs, cholesterol and heart disease begause the
First Amendment "does not Permit a remedy broader than.that which
is necessary to prevent deception (citing Beneficial) or correct
the effects of past deception,

(citing Warner-Lambert)." Id. at
164./ Two yeirs later the

Court reaffirmed this limitation

in Encyclopaedia Britannica, Inc. v. F.T.C., 605 F.2d 694, 972 (7th

Cir. 1979), cert. den. 445 U.S. 534 (1980) stating: 'A remedy for

deceptive advertising which is broader than is neceseary to prevent,
future deception is impermissible under the First amendment."

In Standard Oil Co. of California v. F.T.C., 577 P.2d 653

(9th Cir. 1978) the Ninth
Circuit.also recognized the constitutional

limitation on the P.T.C.'s discretion
to remedy misleading advertising.

In that case the Commission
found that Standard Oil and its

advertising agency had disseminated
a deceptive advertisement for

gasoline,and entered an "all products" cease and desist order
against the respondents. The Circuit Court interceded and narrowed

the Commission's order on the basi,s that it was overly broad and

thus failed to satisfy First
Amendment requirements. The Circuit

Court cautioned the agency that First Amendment
considerations

"dictate ethat the Commission
exercise restraint in formulating

remedial orders which amount to a prior restraint on protected
commercial speech." Id. at 662.

I/ This case is of particular interest here becayse the courtheld that the P.T.C. could
not require NCEN to argue theother side of the

tIolesterol-heart disease controversy becauseit amounted to "interfering
unnecessarily with the effectivepresentation of the pro-egg position." Id. at 164
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you. Mr. Minton.
,

STATEMENT OF DAVID MINTON

Mr. MINTON. I am David Minton; Washington counsel to the
Magazine Publishers Association. I think the magazine which you
displayed this morning showing the two-page ad from the Tobacco
Institute is the same magazine which carried a two-page article on
the Surgeon General's Report on Cigarette Smoking.

So, our industry, although we are interested from an economic
standpoint in cigarette advertising, I believe we have fulfilled the
mission to inform the public -as to the issues of the day as they
relate to cigarette smoking and other subjects.

I have nothing to add to what has been said except that our con-
cern relates to the legal issue of whether that remedy you propose
for the ill you perceive is effective. We believe that the evidence is
fairly overwhelming that ,warnings labels and advertising warnings
do not have the effect those who design them wish they would
have. I did a one-man survey last week with a roll of Rolaids. I
passed them out to rily 20 colleagues in my office. Eleven of them
took it without noticing what it was they were taking, other than it
was a candy mint. There is a 65-word warning label on a package
of Rolaids that star quarterbacks don't mention when they 4re ad-
vertising them.

If you are on a certain kind of diet or taking a certain kind of
drug you shouldn't take Rolaids. I realize that is a different kind of
subject, the over-the-counter market. But, I think it illustrates, as

r report after report after report illustrate, that people do not pay
that much attention to warnings. They pay attention to big warn-
ings, as Mo Udall remarked at the time of Three Mile Island. If
they say that everybody within 150 miles of this place will be ex-
terminated within the next 10 days, people pay attention. But they
don't always pay attention to lesser threats.

There are many studies, one of the most recent was in the Carter
administration. The Department of the Treasury and Department
of Health and Human Services, in studying the problem of alcohol-
ism, devoted a great deal of attention to the effectiveness of warn-
ings, cigarette label warnings and advertising warnings.

The Carter administration under Secretary Califano, study came
to the conclusion that there was no evidence that cigaiette labeling
and cigarette advertising had had an appreciable effect on the
overall decline in smoking which has occurred over the last 20-year
period. _

So, it is our view, as defenders of the right to publish pretty
much what you want, that if there is demonstrable evidence that
your proposAl will not work, then we kiliPe that you will reflect at
length on whether it should be enacted.

It is easy to enact a bill and say, ph, well, let the Supreme Court
decide it. Maybe this will work or maybe it won't. But as defenders
of all of our constitutional rights I am sure that Members of Con-

gress are concerned about the precedential effect of passing laws to
. control human behavior. Thereis_a_wide variety of proposals by

the many different interest groups today, regulations relating to
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teenagers using contraceptive devices, cigarette warnings, drugwarnings, and oth?r kinds of warning.

The warning label on a hammer was illustrated in a Departmentof Health and Human Seryices study. One hundred out of one hun-dred peeple in a test never noticed that a hammer had a label al-though the label on the hammer said, "Do not use this hammer."So, if there is eviderice, not just from the Tobacco Institute, butfrom the government itself, that labels don't work, and if there aremore effective remedies you might pursue in other areas, then theSupreme Court suggests that you pursue remedies in other areasand that you do not inifringe upon a constitutional right that existsunder the first alnendment.
That is our position.
[Testimony res mes on p. 247.]
Mr. Minton's pirepared statement follows:]

.
4
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TESTIMONY OF DAVID MINTON, WASHINGTON COUNSEL,
MAGAZINE PUBLISHERS ASSOCIATION, BEFORE THE

SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH Axp ENVIRONMENT ON H.R. 4957

March 5, 1982

The Magazine Publishers Association is an organization

representing 188 United States publishing firms which publish

nearly 800 consumer magazines. EPA represents weekly news

and feature magazines, journals of literature and opinion,

special interest publications in practically every aspect

of human behavior, and a variety of other subjects. The

American people subscribe to 250 million copies of each issue

of MPA magazines.

As an organization, EPA has testified before numerous

congressional commitlees and administrative agencies on sub-

jects of general and specific concern to the publishing industry,

and we hope that our contribution to the legislative and

administrative process has been constructive. Today, we

appear 'to present our views on the issues in H.R. 4957 which

relate directly to the publishing industry.

Section 4 of H.R. 4957 requires the purchasers of cigarette

advertising to include specific statements of health warnings

in each publication of the advertising. This requirement is

not new -- the Federal labeling requirement for cigarette

packages became effective January 1, 1966, and the addition

of the warningslabel to advertising began in 1972. Since 1972,

?:;39
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there has been no legislative consideration of expanding

the requirements of the present magazine advertising label.

The rotating warnings proposed in this legielation is a far

broader requirement than the current stateMent, however, and
coMes after the Supreme Court has more clearly construed

the constitutional limits of permissible government regulation

of commercial speech under the rirst Amendment. It also comes

after substantial experience and research in measuring the

effectiveness of warning labels,
including those applicable

to cigarettes. This experience plays a part in determining

whether government control of commercial speech is constitu-
tionally permissible. So, in a sense, this is a fresh atmosphere

for considering the issue, and we hope that the subcommittee

will weigh carefully the principles involved in lighty these
developments.

The Magazine Publishers
Association opposes section 4

for; two reasons: we think it exceeds the permissible limit
of government regulation of advertising as that limit has

been eetablished by the Supreme Court of the United States,
and we think that even if it were not unconstitutional, it

will not achieve the goal you appear to be pursuing -- persuading
people to stop smoking. If there is differ as to the

4
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correctness of our objection to the bill on constitutional

grounds, the evidence indicating that labeling is not likely

to help achieve your objectives should lead you to refrain

from imposing the restraint upon free speech in the first place.

We are sure that the members of this subcommittee hold

dear the constitutional rights of all citizens, and would

not risk an infringement upon those rights without clear and

compelling evidence not only as tO the rightness of the cause,

but also the wisdom of the precedent of the infringement,

particularly in light of current pressures to enact legislation

or approve constitutional amendments designed to regulate the

behavior of citizens or overcome a Supreme-Court decision.

*"Commercial speech" is a term used to differentiate be-

tween speech which relates to economic interests ahd speech

which does not. The Supreme Court in Valentine vs. Chrestensen,

decided in 1942, held thai the Constitution did not extend to

negate a New York statute prohibiting the distribution of

handbills "or other advertising matter" in any "public place."

The Court said, Neare equally clear that the 6onstitution

imposes no such (First Amenament) restraint as respects purely

commercial advertising. 4/ A similar conclusion was reached in

1/ Valentine vs. Chrestensen, 316 U.S. 52 (1942).

4
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Breard vs. Alexandria,
involving door-to-door salesmen ped--

dling without a permit. But since Breard, in 1951, the Court
has not denied protection

to commercial speech on that basis
alone, and, in the words of Mr. Justice Douglas, the Chrestensen
rule "has not survived reflection."2/

In 1975, the Court moved sharply in the opposite direction.
In Bigelow. vs. Virginia, a Virginia statute making the news.

paper advertisement of abortion referral services a crime was
struck down as an

unconstitutional infringement upon the First
Amendment. If there were lingering doubts as to "purely"

commercial speech's status under the First Amendment because
the Bigelow case involved Abortion services -- a public issue

transcending mere commercial speech -- the Court's decision
in Virginia Pharmacy in 1976 laid all doubts to rest.. JuStice
Blackmun, speaking for the Court, defined the issue to be
whether purely commercial speech was outside the protection
of the Fixst Amehdment.

"Our answer," Justice Blackmun said,
"is that it is nott"2/

2/ Breard vs. Alexandria, 341 U.S. 622 (1951); Justice Douglas's
comment-EiniiiiTTE-dananaramo vs. United States, 358 U.S.524, at 534 (1959).

2/ Bi elow vs. Virginia 421 U.S. 809 (1975); Virginia StateBoard of-Fgarmacy vs. Virginia Citizens Consumer coUNEIT,425 U.S. 748, 762 71§76).
Subsequent deaiaTsiIsufthol="-Ing theVirginia Pharmacy,rule include, among others, Bates vs. StateBar of Arizona, 433 U.S. 350 (1979) and Cafey vs. PopulairE-trivrEei ra--anational, 431 U.S. 678 (1977 .

0
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The Court has nevertheless recognized legitimate avenues

for regulation of commercial speech, just as there a& legitimate

grounds for the regulation of political speech. The Securities

and Exchange Act, the Sherman Antitrust Act, and a number of

other laws regulate commercial speech, but the interests of

society in the positive benefits of those legislative aims

have been considering an "overriding" public interest. Virginia

Pharmacy itself prescribed that purely commercial speech could

be regulated to be "clean" as well as "free." A clear ex-

ception to the protection of the Constitution is deceptive

or misleading advertising.

In 1980, the Supreme Court defined in detail the constitu-

tional protection of commeicial speech in Central Hudson Gas.''

That,case involved a New York State regulation which banned

commercial advertising by a public utility which promoted

the purchase of' atural gas. Justice Powell laid out the

rule to be foll ed to test constitutionally permissible

regulation Of advertising. He said,

If the communication is neither misleading

nor related to unlawful activity, the govern-

ment's power is more circumscribed. The

state must assert a substantial interest to

be achieved by restriction on commercial

speech. Moreover, the regulatory technique

must be in proportion to that interest. The

limitation on expression must be designed
carefully to achieve the state's goal. Com-

pliance with this requirement may be measured

by two criteria. First, the restrictidn must

2 4 3
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directly advance the state interest-involved;
the regulation may not be sustained if ii
provides only ineffective or remote supportfor the government's purpose. Second, ifthe governmental interest.could be served
as well by a more limited

restriction op
commercial speech, the excessive restrictioncannot survive.1/

, Mr. Chairman, we believe that the restrictions proposed
in section 4 of H.R. 4957 do not meet the requirements pre-
scribed in Hudson Gas. They do not, because the effectiveness
of advertising and label warnings do not have a favorable

impact upon public behavior,
most particularly where personal

habits are involved.
Most likely, the effectivenest would beA

unmeasurable. Finally, the goal which you,seek to achieve
may be more effectively achieved by means not involving further

restrictions upon the Freedom of Speech. We hope that this

subcommittee's Commitment'to that liberty outweighs its interest
in pursuing the unexplored potential of further re:trictions
upon commercial speech.

In. determining whether the proposed restriction violates
the rule so clearly enunciated in Hudson Gas, we must first

determine Whether cigarette
advertising is free of misleading

content. To mislead, as Webster
defines the word, is "to lead

in a wrong direction or into a mistaken action;
to leild astray.

1/ Central Hudson Gas vs. New York public SeriAce
Commission,I00 -37a7-1EI4S -may: Mr. JusticeRegagair-dissentedin both this case and Virginia. Pharmacy.

ON'
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See deceive." "Deceive,"WSbster says, "is to cause to believe

the false."

The Federal Trade Commission staff in its recent report

contended thaecigarette advertising is "deceptive" because

it fails to provide
sufficiently'detailed information as to

the harmful effects of smoking. That is called deception by

omission. The Commission staff went to great lengths to attempt

to prove this because unless they could prove deception, the

FTC.cannot act under current law. The staff's tactic was to

concede that the public is somehow vaguely aware that smoking

is "harmful" or "hazardous," but is not.aware of the extent

of possible harm. Various surveys in which people failed to

identify correctly statistical information about smoklAg

allegedly proved the point. So, the staff concluded, cigarette

advertising debeives.

The staff's argument has several weaknesses. First of

all, all but the most zealous adherents of the staff's cause

would concede thai the ilublic is aware of the widespread

publicity about the plotential harm which can result from

smoking, and is made more aware every day by Government reports,

newspaper articles, magazine reports and by t1e television

news programs. This week's Time devotes a lengthy article tck

the Surgeon General's Report.
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Secondly; every FTC or judicial case used by.the Commission
staff to support its claims of decertiqk involved advertisements
of a very different sort, all of which made affirmative claims.

"Wonder Bread builds healthy bodies 12 ways." Household Finance
makes "Instant Tax Refuna." That is a positive claim of some-
thing good that will happen if you buy Wonder Bread or take

your tax return to Household.
In fact, itswas not so; so

the advertisements were ordered ft be withdrawn:

Cigarette ad%;ertising does not makeaffirmative,claims

in regard tq the effect of smoking upon health -- which is !I

the only reason either the FTC or the Congress is involved
in this matter. Thç only mention of health in any cigarette

advertisement is the declarative
statement "WARNING: THE

sURGEON GENERAL HAS DETERMINED
THAT CIGARETTE-SMOKING IS

DANGEROUS TO YOUR HEALTH." Cigarette adverti;ing pictures

things .cowboys, pretty girls, and so on; but there is no
claim. Thene are statements of _pertinent fact: nicotine
and tar content, determin4d under FTC standards. There are'
also claims that the brand advertised "tastes better," which
is a matter of opinion. In recent years, tar and nicotine

f

content have become a major
advertisinWeatute for most

brands,land perhaps a reason for switching brands. That in

itself demonstrates public awareness. Cigaitte manufactcers
no.longer advertise the cigarettes which an ol er generation

..01
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remembers. Not'a dime is spent on plain old Camels;-Luckies,

or Chesterfields, although peopie who prefer those brands

continue tb buy them. o'

An advertisement 4hiel makes no affirmative claim co

anything and wliich has a health warning in plain sight,and

p/ain words i not deceptive, and therefore ls within the

boundary of protection for commercial speech prescribed by

the Supreme COurt.

The second issue is whether:theremedy proposed is likely

to be effective, or whether the results will be ineffective

or remote, thereby failing the Court's standard.

The FTC staff concluded that the current cigarette label

is ineffective, apparently beciuse everybody hasn't quit

, .

smoking.. Since it appears that the goai is the.Islimination

of cigarette imoking in the United States, there may be many

_#gtograMs which would fail to meet the staff's tOst. Advertising

libels be one of them, but the claim that the public is

not aware defies common sense and the Surgeon General's mist

recent report. The 1982 Report of the Surgeongeral showed

that today.53 million people smoke,ahout the same number as'

...20. years ago. That is a significant decline in the percentage

of the population. There were about 180,million people in

the.United States in 1962, and there are about 230 million

247
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today. The percentage of,adult smokers has dropped from 42%
to 33%. Public attitudes have changed; medical advice has
changed. Radio and television advertising is no longer avail-'

able.

In testing whether H.R. 4957 complies with the standards
set out in Hudson Gas, the

relevant question is whether in-4
creased restrictions will have a direct impact upon achieving

the legislative goal. We believe that the correct answer is
&her "no" or "nobody knows." In either case, we believe

that the prudent advocate of
constitutional freedom should

refrain from restraint upon free speech rather than impose
further questionable restrictions.

Recent studies of the effectiveness of warning adveFtise-

ments and labeling show that the public tends to ignore them.

In their November, 1980 Report to the President and the Congress,

the Departments of the Treasury and Health arrdHuman Services
foundthat "the public generally is 'over warned' by,the

Government" and that the effectiveness of warning declines as
the dgc;:e and frequency of warnings increase. Personal

attitudes, experience, and habit play a highly significant

role in determining whether a person pays attention to warnings,
regardless of the consequences. The Report specifically found
that "fear statements" are "generally not as.effective and
may cause the audience to feel

overly threatened and, as a

2 4 8.
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result, screen out the message. The "size" of the problem is

telated to the effectiveness of the warning, too. Many people

switched from aerosol spray cans to carbon dioxide spray cans

when alerted,to aerosol's threat to the level of ozone in

the stratosphere. Residents near Three Mile Island moved

put quickly. The widespread fear of strontium 90 in cow's

milk was a significant factor in public support for banning

nuclear testing in the atmosphere. Those are big threats --

of almost incomprehensible proportions -- which appear to

threaten life on earth. As Representative Udall remarked

at the time of Three Mile Island, enemies you can't see,

feel, or hear, arouse a deeper fear than 3thers.

When it comes down to the personal level, the effective-

ness of warning is significantly lower. It is peklaps a'charm-
_.

ing aspect of the American character that most people don't

believe what the newspapers or the government says. The regula-

tion of personal behavior,4particularly personal habits, is

extremely difficult. Many manufacturer warnings or instructions

do not appear to work. Controlled experiments illustrate the

problem. One experiment involved the use of hammers -- the

device you drive nails with -- which had been carefully labelled

to warn of danger, or to instruct the user ncd....to use the tool

at all. One-hundred high school and college students were

1/ 'Report to the President ind the tongres-e on Health Hazards
Associatedrwith Alcohol and Methods to Inform the General

Public of these Hazards, U.S. Department of the Treasury
and U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, November, 1980.

24 9
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asked to use the hammers to drive nails in pieces of wood.
They all did, and following the experimat, all were asked
what the labels said. Not one out of 100 had even noticed
the labels.1/

pveryone knows how to spell relief. Not everyone knows
that the label of

that famed'over-the-counter
antacid contains

a 65-word warning as to the dangers involved
in eating that

4
tasty mint.

Observe passengers on any flight and see how many pay any
attention whatever to the verbal safety

instructions of flight
attendants. In actual emergencies

involving the necessity
for using oxygen masks, passengers generally are at a loss,
including business travelers most frequently exposed to the
instruction.

It is an interesting
problem. Automatic seat belts,

required on all American cars in the mid-1§70s, were so un-
popular with the American people that

Congress repealed the
requirement, despite

overwhelming evidence ai to the effective-
ness of the belts, and

the failure of people to use seat belts
which require personal fastening. Perhaps we all believe
in our own

indestructibility, our own immortality on earth.
Whatever the reason, in personal matte's -- don't smoke, don't

_

y Journal of Products Liability, 1977, Vol. 1, pp. 255-259.

2 5
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drive when you're drinking, don't jaywalk -- admonitions of

the consquence, regardless of the evidence, don't have much

effect. In the specific instance of the Government's 15 year

campaign to persuade people to quit smoking, the 1D80

Treasury/NHS Report concluded that "it is impossible at this

time to i.solate the impact of any specific communication

technique on smoking behavior."2/

To extend further restrictions upon the freedom to

advertise a commodity the manufacture, sale, and cansumption

of which is legal in every State in the Union does not, in

our judgment, do justice to the rule of law, particularly

in the presence of evidence that this legislative remedy wdlttld

not beeffective. It might be easy to recommend the enact-

ment of this legislation and then see what happens. Maybe

the Supreme Court will declare it unconstitutional, maybe

it won't. In matters affecting personal liberties, this

would not be the first time. In 1962, Congress enacted-legis-

lation prohibiting the importation of any "Communist political

propoganda" which would infect the minds of the American

people. The,sponsor of that bill -- no longer here -- dismissed

his critics with a wave of the hand and the suggestion that

2/ Treasury/HES Report, page 38.
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if thgy opposed it, take it to the Supreme Court. They did,
and they won. It is our hope that every advocate for the pre-
servation of cherished although not always popular freedoms
does not have to resort to litigation to preserve those rights.

There are other areas of concern where legislation would

prove effective. Should Congress require the Administration

to enfprce the 55 mile-per-hour peed limit? There is over-

whelming evidence of the direct relationship of speed to traffic
deaths. Fifty thousand people died in traffic accidents last

year, most of them as the direct
result of speed, yet *Congress

appropriated no funds in FY 1982 to enforce the statutory
speed limit. That very real problem involves no constitutional

question. The Supreme Court has prescribed no rule. But in
the case of further restrictions upon commercial speech, the
Court has, and in our opinion H.R. 4957 transgresses that rule.
We hope that you will reconsider. We hope, as Justice Douglas
put it, that the advertising

restrictions proposed in section 4
"will not survive reflection."

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
Mr. Minton and Mr. Rubin, you are both attorneys, is that cor-rect, representing the Outdoor Advertising people and the Maga-zine Publishers?
Mr. MINTON. Yes.
Mr. RUBIN. Yes.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Waterson, you were referred to as Dr. Water-son.

_
---Mr.---WATgasoN. I think- that-was a mistake. Actually I am Mr.Waterson. I have two degrees but one of them is not a ddctorate.Mr. WAXMAN. You are research director of the Advertising Asso-ciation, you have been involved in research on advertising and itseffect?
Mr. WATERSON. Yes. We have been through these questions inEurope many, many times over the past 5 years. They have beenrather more current in Europe than they have here.So, I have a-great deal of evidence at my disposal which maybehas not been worked on in the States.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Minton, you referred to this Newsweek maga-zine.
Mr. MINTON. Time is the magazine I was referring to, but if itwas Newsweek--
Mr. WAXMAN. I thought you referred to Newsweek.

t,
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Mr. MINTON. I am sorry. I didn't see the cover of'the magazine
this morning but I am familiar with both the Newsweekand Time
articles

Mr. WAXMAN. The March 8, 1982, issue of Newsweek contains a
story on the Surgeon General's recent warning about the health ef-

fects of smoking. "The risks associated with smoking, the most im-

portant public health issue of our time."
There is a box on page 89 with the picture and test of the article.

In the same issue of Newsweek I noted that there are no fewer
than six full-page color ads promoting various brands of cigarettes.
I would like to put the article referred to by Dr. Koop as well as
the ads in the record. Without objection that will be the order.

[The material referred to. followsj

2 53



in

e
era

T nor Placido Dom.ngo



C
J1



."

.

,,

' C
Z

'
if)
C

\.?



CoMo te.

it

Ps..0

Witatz,s,

1 I I

F PIO aue vIr Littis
,0 41,

\



:zo

,

111111,,

;h.



Nobody does it better.
0

0

This is volli world_
This is your Ww' ,on
The only Inw tar
built on tastv 6T%



I.

25

%met lit Surgeon Gem.; No Deelfrined
The Cquenneirg Nevem to Yolks&

2 Co

/.



256

LATEST U.S. GOV'T REPORT:

-711i

Caritoo Scotes,-. St

N ) TlieCarheettiligalefitrl,
...4.14111,1C. (imptkilis th00,1.4.100.0cY-w`el

;

111

CARLTON IS LOWEST.
C Viter ,t1,;

VW\ 111`. t,11.(H H12 P illt I Inn(

wining= Ilts sargar Goneral Hss Detrained'
lbst Notts rnisng Is Daiwa: toYovr Hiskts.

,

N

26/



257

Mr. WAXMAN. The first ad is from the Phillip Morris Co. for Vir-ginia Slims. It portrays the Virginia Slims woman as the highly at-tractive woman of today. She's come a long way.
Another shows a young couple ice skating. Dusk has settled andit is time for "Vantage" pleasures. The question is how much of animpact can thetSurgeon General's warning have against this kindof competition and how can those concerned about public healthcompgte with the gaily barage of cigarette ads associating smokingwith the vigorous ttractivr-healthy lifestyle?
Mr. IVIIVTON. I guess I am Dest qualified to say that I am not anexpert in either ld and don't feel competent to answer as a pro-fds.kional witnes . As a citizen, I suppose it stands as a monument

to n-ee press, that you can persuade people to buy advertising inyour magazine at the same time that you print articles reporting
as to the adverse effects of buying the product. .

Mr. WAXMAN. You and Mr. Rubin claim there are perhaps firstamendment problems if we pass this legislation due to prior re-straint on speech. What speech is being restrained? It seems thereis a requirement being added. There is' a warning label require-ment already in law. What restraint is there that violates the firstN -amendment?'
Mr. MINVN. It is a further restrainting upon cOmmercial speechwhich has a constitutional protection defined under Supreme Courtdecisions. In the last 6 years, there have been a half-dozen or soSupreme Court decisions that have clarified that pure commercialadvertising is entitled to protection under the first amendment.You have examples of cases of a complete ban upon advertising, ora limited ban on advertising, or requirements of specific kinds ofadvertising. It is not my position as a lawyer that your bill is un-constitutional It is my position that your bill raises an issue that Ithink is within the boundary of constitutional protection. The ,Hudson Gas Co., case in which the Court laid down the guidelinethat, if your remedy does not appear to be effective, and if thereare other methods that you might pursue that would be effective,then the imposition of the restraint upon free speech may be un-constitutional.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you know whether the requirement that adsfor cigarettes have this warning label, which has been the law for Iguess around 10 years, whether that has been challenged in thecourts, or whethvr the prohibition against advertising on televisionhas been challenged in the courts and whether either has beenchallenged successfully? I
Mr. RUBIN. Let me just answer--

*- Mr. WAkMAN. I include in that questiongo ahead. ,Mr. RUMN. No, if you have more---r.
Mr. WAXMAN. I mentioned the restrictions on advertising applyto both magazines and outdoor advertiging. Have you filed a law-suit yet on behalf of the Outdoor Advertisers? .. .Mr. RUBIN. Let me answer you this way. The whole issue ofwhether commercial speech is protected by the first amendmenthas only really recently been articulated by the Supreme Court.There is no way to challenge the issue that you raise. There wouldbe no history because. it was only articulated several years agb for
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the first time. But there has been at least one case on it every year
from the Supreme Court. Central Hudson is the most recent

Mr. WAXMAN. You hayen't filed any lawsuits? You haven't chal-
lenged the constitutionality of the present restrictions?

Mr. RUBIN. I have no reason to.
Mr. WAXMAN. But you would have reap= if the rotating label

system was passed or if the label were of a different size or the
warning a different substance? Do you think that would trigger the
boundaries between what is constitutional and tvhat is not?
. Mr. RUBIN. As Mr. Minton says, you start from a base level of
what now exists. And the proscription is on additional restraints in
a context where they are not the leastthey are not the least re-
strictive means. And the least restrictive means is the test. The
question is whether, if you are not going to achieve anything more
with the new imposition on protected speech, the question is
whether that is valid under the first amendment.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you have any opinion you would offer?
Mr. RUBIN. I think I testified that I think it comes within the

area where there is substantial question.
Mr. WAXMAN. Do any of you have anything to offer to us by way

of either your expertise or knowledge on the allegations about the
dangers of smoking? Is that beyond your competence?

Mr. MINTON. It isn't the subject of my testimony. Our objection
to your bill is directly related to provisions of section 4 regarding
imposition of restrictions on advertising.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Waterson, you raised the notion that this new
restriction will have the impact of forcing cigarette manufacturers
to stop advertising. Then you claimed that would be unfortunate
because, among other reasons, the advertising of low-tar and nico-
tine cigarettes would not be available to the public.

Is that a correct statement?
Mr. WATERSON. I didn't say it would force them to stop. I merely

suggested any increase in regulated activity would probably de-
crease the effectiveness of brand advertising. That is my belief.

Mr. WAXMAN. Of brand advertising. _

Mr. WATERSON. Yes.
Mr. WAxmAN. I see. And is it your opinion that there is a public

value to having brand advertising because of the low-tar and nico-,
tin& content offone brand versus another?

Kr. WATERSON. The governments throughout the Western world
bave tired to encourage low-tar advertising. Certainly in Europe $

and, I believe, in this country asAvell.
Mr. WAXMAN. We have had some testimony this morning' from

some emminent medical professionals and researchers who seem to
indicate that there may be a problem with carbon monoxide.
Carbon monoxide is associated with heart disease, higher risks to
pregnant women and113 present in high amounts in many low-tar
nicotine cigarettes.

' Is that something with which you are familiar?
Mr. WATERSON. All I would say is that every government, to my

knowledge in Western Europe, has tried to encourage the consump-
tion of low-tar nicotine cigarettes at the expense of high-tar nico-
tine cigarettes.
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I do not know much about carbon monoxide levels but I do be-
lieve the official government position in Europe is that, as I stated,
low-tar is better.

Mr. WAXMAN. So, your argument is that because other govern-
ments try to encourage this, that we should take that into consider-
ation and weigh it against what scientists are now telling us?

Mr. WATERSON. No, that is simply th'e limit of my knowledge.
Mr WAXMAN. Simply the limit of your knowledge. Now, I want

to show you an ad from the New York Times magazine. I can show
it from here If you want a closer look, we Will be glad to bring it to
you It is an advertisement, a copy of which we will m'ake available
for the record It is a picture of ice cream and Kent cigarettes.

[The advertisement referred to follows]
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Mr. WAXMAN. I assume you 'are familiar with the kinds ofthemes advertising people think about to encourage the public tobuy their product. What major themes do you think are present inthis ad and what information of value does the manufacturer or adagency tend to convey to the public. Do you think they are sayingsmoking is as wholesome as eating ice creatn? Are they trying to. say to people that if they stop smoking they will get fat?
Mr. WATERSON. My expertise is limited to highly detailed knowl-edge of the effect of advertising on consumption levels throughoutmany product areas. I have no idea what went through the mind ofthe advertiser when he made up the advertisement.Mr. WAXMM4. Do you think advertising plays b role' in increasedsmoking bY young people?
Mr. WATERSON. Every shred of evidence we have, and yon have acopy of my monograph on the subject.in your record, suggests thafthis is not so. There is no evidence at all to my knowledge through-out Europe or indeed in .the St.ates to suggest that advertising en-courages young people to smoke. --
Mr. WAXMAN. Do you think advertising a product makes it morelikely that people who are the target of the advertising are morelikely to buy a product?
Mr. WATERSON. I simply think it is impossible for advertising tostimulate the consumption of all products simultaneously. Youngpeople are sold drinks and 1 million other products. I think it isslightly .naive to think they can be sold all these things simulta-neously and consuine all of them more as a result of advertising.Mr. WAXMAN. In a hearing of our own Subcommittee on Over-sight and Investigations there was a quote from a report by theTed Bates Advertising Agency obtained by the Federal Trade Com-mission. It states:

For the young smoker the cigarette is not yet 'an integral part of life, of day-to-daylife, in spite of the fact that they try to project the image of a regular, run-of-the-mill sinoker. For them, a cigarette and the whole 'smoking process, is a part of theillicit pleasure category . In the young smoker's mind a cigarette falls into thesame category with wine, beer, shaving, wearing a bra, or (purposely not wearingone), declaration of Independence and striving for selfaidentity For the young start-er, a cigarette is associated with introduction to sex life, with courtship, with smok-ing "pot" and keeping late studying hours.
. Wouldn't one tend to think that this proposed advertising cam-paign was targeted to a particular group, particularly teenage girls,who appear to be taking up smoking at a faster rate? In effect theyare proposing to target not just to a brand, as you said in your tes-timony, but to taking up a new habit? -

Mr. WATERSON. I have been connected with advertising for 15years, products like drink, particularly, in your suggestion, target-ed to young people. I have never once seen any campaign include astatement to the effect that there was a desire or hope of increas-ing--the total market for that product by brand advertising.If slim kings sell more, somebody else sells less. It is as simple asthat in my belief.
Mr. WAXMAN. You indicated Sweden has had a number of labelchanges but has had no decrease in smoking cigarettes. Would youfurnish for us for the record your data?
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Mr. WATERSON. I can givejoirthe total consumption levels in
Sweden which show no drop after imposition of 16 health warn-
ings. I can give it bacit as far as you like. I don't have it with me
but I can furnish it.

WAXMAN. How long has Sweden had that warning label re-
q ment?

r. WATERSON. I am not clear of precisely how long.
Mr. WAXMAN. If it were only a few years would ,you think per-

haps it is too early fo make a conclusion?
Mr. WATERSON. I can submitI have under my; in my files data

on literaly maybe 50 different countries. I can submit it with the
date. I can't remember pricisely what it shows. I do know in all of

Scandinavia there is no evidence to suggest that either the imposi-

tion of health warnings or indeed massive state campaigns gainst
smoking, as in Norway, has had any impact on total levels con-

sumption.
In Norway the situation has most clearly shown where they have

spent in United Kingdom terms, 20 million pounds, $40 million,

you multiply that by 5 in U.S. terms, over $100 million over a
period of 5 years. This has not had the impact of decreasing con-
sumption.

Me. WAXMAN. How do you explain the decrease in cigarette con-
sumption in this country everyone seems to acknowledge if it is not

due to greater awareness of the dangers of cigarette smoking due

to anticigarette campaigns, warning labels, and more press infor-

mation?
.4>Mr. WATERSON. I am not saying that isnie reason for it. I am
simply saying specifically information on Ifilels and specifically the
Norwegian campaign had no impact. I do believe in the United
Kingdom for example, the theme of newspapers, bombardment of
hepltEstampaigns and so on, has had an effect. I don't believe the
wdrnings specifically have been shown to have any effect at all.

They are ignored because the smoker chooses to ignore them by
and large.. No matter how many you have.

Mr. WAXMAN. But you do acknowledge the fact that there has

been a decrease in cigarette smoking in the United Kingdom, and
also here. How do you explain it?

Mr. WATERSON. Because of the bombardment of health informa-
tion over the past 10 or 15 years I presume.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you think peoples' knowledge comes only from

one specific source and that there is not a growing awareness as

they are confronted with claims and arguments from a variety of

different sources?
Mr. WATERSON. Research evidence suggests to me people don't

read the packs. That is all. I do believe that they take in over a
period of years the health campaigns that have been launched at
them in this country and in the United Kingdom. They apparently
have not at all in Norway.

Mr. WAXMAM Do you think we would be more effective if we

mandated counter-advertising of cigarette smoking?
Mr. WATERSON. I do not know because I have no data based on

counter-advertising campaigns except in NorwaST. I am clear. The
situation here is very different from Norway. In Norway the lipecif-
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ic campaign does not appear to have had any impact at all as op-posed to the sorts of articles my colleague referred to.
Mr. WAXMAN. If ysil can sell a product by advertising, why can'tyou reach people with'information about the dangers of that prd-uct by advertising?
Mr. WATERSON. As I explained in my testimony it is very mucheasier to sell a single brand, to get a brand trial is a very muchsimpler thing than to attempt to modify human behavior which isan enormously complicated subject. It is very difficult to do as indrink 'moderation campaigns, for example. It is very difficult to getacross concepts of that sort. At least it is much more difficult.'
Mr. WAXMAN. If there is a difficulty in getting across a message,is the best way to approach that problem by abandoning anyeffort? Or, to try to be as effective as you can, to reach as manypeople as you can?
Mr. WATERSON. I think you have to depend on the research evi-dence an& I think that research evidence stiows that the bill. ascomposed is extremely likely to be ineffectiveY
Mr. WAXMAN. What wouM be effective?
Mr. WATERSON. I have no idea, in this country. I think in theUnited Kingdom the continuation of the present situation as it is isproving effective. In this country---
Mr. WAXMAN. Is that based on the high price of cigarettes? Am Icorrect in assuming from what you have said earlier that the effec-tiveness of discouraging smoking in the United Kingdom is basedto a great degree on the high price of cigarettes?
Mr. WATERSON. That is difficult to say. In the short-term, cer-tainly if yoli increase the price you will decrease consumption. Inthe long-term we don't have enough evidence to suggest that thatconsumption decline won't go back next year. There is also theproblem one can see from Norway, where you attempt to controlthe product by thattjacking up the price 40 to 50 percent, you en-courage people to import illegally. In Norway, 30 percent of spiritsconsumption is illegally distilled which is in itself a considerablehealth hazard. Thirty percent of the spirits consumed in Norway,this is a Government estimate, not mine, again I can furnish de-tails.

M. WAXMAN. I missed the point of that.
WATERSON. Attempts to control consumption levels by mas-sive price increases or advertising bans and so on.

Mr. WAXMAN. I see. Certainly the free market system indicates ifyou want a product and have to pay a high price in one place youwill go to a place where you can pay a lower price.
Mr. WATERSON. Exactly, that is my point.
Mr. WAXMAN. That is reasonable to expect. I go to you as anexpert in adveitising and say we have a big public health problemin this country. People are dying of cancer and lung disease andheart disease. It appears to be that cigarettes are a leading cause.What would you recommend to me as an advertising expert know-ing how to sell things to people? Your answer would be---Mr. WATERSON. This really isn't my field at all but I would sug-gest that as a purely personal impression, I think Captain Kanga-roo is right. That you need more education.
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Bliley.
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Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you very much,
gentlemen.

Since we gave Newsweek an opportunity Mr. Chairman, I ask
unanimous consent we include in the record a report from the Sur-
geon General that was in Time on March 8. It tends to confirm a
lot of what you have said, Mr. Waterson. And I will quote one pas-
sage from it. "Surprisingly, 95 percent Of the people who broke the
smoking habit did so without the help of organized programs."

Mr. WAXMAN. Without objection we would like to make the arti-
cle from the March 8, 1982 issue of Time Magazine on the Surgeon
General's report, as well as, I am sure the gentleman wouldn't dis-
agree, as well as all cigarette advertisements in that issue, a part
of the record. . --.

Mr. BLILEY. Certainly.
[The article and advertisements referred ,to follow:]
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Mr. BLILEY. Mr. Waterson, have yo,u conducted any researchstudies supporting the notion that rotating warning labels reducescigarette smoking?
Mr. WATERSON. We have looked at the UK situation where th$,number of warnings increased. We found no evidence at all.Mr. BLILEY. How many?
Mr. WATERSON. One to three. There has been no evidence at allthis has had any impact. We have tried to research it econometri-cally and second, using surveys of peoples' knowledge and im res-sions of the health warning.
Mr. BLILEY. Do you, know of any studies by anyone else, t athave been, conducted that would support this?
Mr. WATERSON. I don't believe there is any evidence at all to sup-port the notion health warnings have any effect at at on packs ofcigarettes. Or advertisements.
Mr. BLILEY. I see. "Do you think that one of the reasons for thedecrease in cigarette smoking in the United States 'might be flue tothe fact that the U.S. population is becoming more educated and,hence, perhaps more rational?
Mr. WATERSON. It could well be. I don't have special knowledgerequired to comment but I am sure that is part of the reason.Mr. Br n FY. You mentioned Norway. Do they allow cigarette ad-vertising in Norway?
Mr. WATERSON. No, it is banned. Drink advertising too is banned.Mr. BLILEY. It has cut consumption in neither instance? -Mr. WATERSON. Zero. Nothing at all. The only effect of both banswe can see is a big increase in illegal distillation of spirits.Mr. BLILEY. I see. .
Mr. WATERSON. There has also been an increase in smoking to-bacco.
Mr. BLILEY. You also mentioned;Italy. How long has Italy bannedadvertising?
Mr. WATERSON. Twenty years.
Mr. BLILEY. You say consumption has risen by 6")0 percent.Mr. WATERSON. The specific Government data is in the back ofmy submission to you.
Mr. BLILEY. So now they are thinking ofl

' Mr. WATERSON. [continuing) Reinstating avertising.Mr:BLILEY. Are they planning to have required labels?Mr. WATERSON. The debates are still going on. I think ,they willcarry health %earnings.
Mr. BLILEY. I see.
Mr. WATERSON. The situation is parallel to a number of othercountries, especially Poland, where a ban has been in existencesince 1972, and again consumption has risen over that 'period fromapproximately 70 million cigarettes to 90 million cigarettes overthat period.

--"Mr. BLILEY. It is your opinion, backed by your research, that ad-ditioxial warning labels would have absolutely no dfect bn cdn-sumption?
Mr. WATERSON. That is my considered opinion, yes, zero.Mr. BLILEY. I see. ,.
Mr. Chairman, I want to thank the witnesses again, and I haveno further questions.

2 7 ^
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Mr. WAXMAN. You all believe one effect of this legislation will be

to adversely affect the economic interests of the advertising agen-
cies and the advertising industry?

Mr. RUBEN. I don't even know how to answer that question, hon.'
:estly. I have no knowledge of that.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you feel that there would be harm to some
extent because of the concern about liability?

Mr. RUBEN. Cigarettes are advertised on billboards, just like

automoPiles and local hardware stores, but I have no knowledge at
all, or no expertise at.all on what the effects of -this would be in
terms of their desire to continue advertising one way or another.

Mr. BLILEY. Would the chairman yierd on that point?
Mr. Ruben, you in your testimony brought up penalties. You, as

an oadoor advertiserI understand you have a firm. As you un-
derstand the legislation with regard to the penalties, would your
firm, say, if you forgot to change thelAbeling during one of the
time periods, could you possiblY be held liable?

Mr. RUBEN. There are all sorts of liabilities. I am sure the adver-

tiser would hold us liable. I am not sure whether we would be held
liable or not. I don't know.

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
,Mr. WAXMAN. Did either of ttie other two have any comments to

make about my question? Do you feel that the' advertising tipsiness

would suffer economicallyif this legislatiOn is-adopted?
Mr. WATERSON. I believe the most serious aspect of the legisla-

tion is not the immediate economic impact, but the fact that it is
likely to be used as a stepping stone by many other pressure.
groups to impose health warnings, advertising restrictidns in other
areas. This is precisely what happened in Europe.

Mr. MINTON. I have no expertise in that field, Mr. Chairman.
Our interest is in any imposition of any government regulation

upon advertising; that is, at least where it transcends what appear
to be the boundaries of lawful regulation.

Mr. WAXMAN. You are afraid of other prature groups. Where

has it led in Europe?
Mr. WATERSON. The European Parliament next week is to debate

furtter restrictions on drink advertising, for example. The Council
of Europe is also debating restrictions ,on drinking advertising.

Mr.. WAXMAN. What responsibilities do advertisingkgencies have

in promoting the consumption of products which are unsafe?
Mr. WATERSON. I feel many products in this country and Europe

are unsafe.
Mr. WAXMAN. Do ,yop feektat advertising agencies have any re-

sponsibility in this record?
Mr. WATERSON. I think/ i is a Government responsibility as to

what should be freely sOli'd and what is not.
Mr. WAXMAN. Freely sold? If it is and there is no prohibition,

you feel it should be fully advertised?
Mr. WATERSON. I think the government should decide these m411,-.

ters in each individual country. I don't think it ig the responsibility
of the advertising agency to suggest that restrictions should be ap-

plied. 1/4.
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If the Government feels that a restriction should be applied, thenthat is the way it is. But it is their regponsibility, not the advertis-ing industry's.
Mr. WAXMAN. Are you a citizen of the United States?Mr. WATERSON. No, United Kingdom.
Mr. WAXMAN. Are you a taxpayer here?
Mr. WATERSON. Yes, indeed.
Mr. WAXMAN. We have a lot of people who are getting very sick,many of them are dying due to cigarettes. It is costing the taxpay-ers of this country millions of dollars to treat their illnesses. Wehave a budget deficit. We don't want to spend so 'much of yourmoney in taxes. I assume we are taking more than you like intaxes.
We are all concerned about people's health. It is a moral concernthat everyone should have. We .want to discourage people fromsmoking. It is a fact cigarettes are legal and there is no prohibition.No rational person could have the idea that we should say an indi-vidual shouldn't be allowed to smoke if they wish.It is legal to smoke, it is legal to sell cigarettes, it is legal to ad-vertise cigarettes. How should we, if you were in the position of ad-vising us, try to lessen the consumptioh of cigarettes? How.wouldyou advise us to do it?v,

.Mr. WATERSON. I think you have a real problism.:I think if youadd up the cost of all of the products advertised in thits country, ifyou add up the cost--.
Mr. WAXMAN. ypiC6itiA`-equate that. A car is not A.pateAtly dan-,gerous thing used Odr,:A15- one purpose: A car is used in a verybeneficial way. SonWileople can argue that cigarettes relax them,but I don't think there, is. any medical expert that could say thereis a value to smoking a cigarette, even if sotheone receives some,psychological benefit.

We are selling peoplelcie iiipa of smoking, and the only thtiigthat can, coine from smoking is bad health.
Mr. WATERSOIsi [continuing).jhe wbiele point of my testimony isthat we don't know about selling smoking. ,
Mr. WAXMAN. HQW do you account for the increase in smokingwhen advertising is so widespread?
Mr. WATERSON. How do you account for the fact that smoking inEastern European countries has paralleled that, with no advertis-ing? Drinking has done the same thing.

-Mr. WAXMAN. How do you account for it?
Mr. WATEresom.Because advertising has no impact on total con-sumption. We have shown it over and over again. There are anumber of factors which go into increased consumption of any oneindividual product. It may be a whole string of things. It may betelevision, pictures, I don't know.

aWe-are clear of that. Every shred of evidenee throughout theworld suggests it is not advertising that is a basic motivator of that--type of factor. If it was true, we would buy cosmetics and every-',.,,thing else in the United States because they are advertised tentjmes more.
, Mr. WAXMAN. I am mit an expert in advertising. We are politi-cians. We run for office,and try to sell ourselves to the public.

2-78
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Every time we have ever seen a campaign or election, where
there has been no campaign, and the only thing on the ballots
would be a race for Congress, the voter turnout is low. When there
is a competition to try. to sell one candidate versus another, the
total voter turnout increases.

Why couldn't I assume from that that if there is a campaign to
sell a lot of different brands, making smoking a brand of cigarettes
more attractive, and each brand competing with the other to make
it appear more attractive, that that will increase the total con-
sumption of that particular product?

Why should I not make that assumption?
Mr. WATERSON. There are two points there. I can only go on the

research I have seen personally. I have never seen research on an
American political Campaign. Every evidence I have which covers
the tobacco markets of Europe shows that those forms of advertis-

ing do not increase the consumption of cigarettes.
In Europe at least the political advertising is outside of the con-

trol system so you can make claims that you can't make in brand
advertising. You can make claims that are wild and unrealistic,
which you can't there.

Mr. WAXMAN. I have never told anybody tfiat.voting for me will
make them sexy, healthier and more active. I claim they will be
happier.

I have nothing further. Mr. Bliley, do you have anything fur-

ther? I.

.Mr. BLILEY. I just wanted to say I thought we were discussing
whether or not we should increase the warning labels on there. I

think the testimony from these gentlemen, particularly from Mr.

Watersqn, was that it does not have the effect of reducing con-
sumption, and for that I am very grateful. I look forward to read-
ing the additional evidence you intend to send us. Thank you.

Mr. WAXMAN. I am certainly interested in reading the additional
information and evidence you send us. I must admit it defies my
knowledge of what I expect human behavior to be. I am not saying
it is the only reason why people smoke but it is certainly one.

I want for the record to read the whole paragraph from the Time
Magazine article to which Mr. Bliley referred. The paragraph
starts, "Since the 1964 report, almost 313 million people have man-
aged to give up smoking. 'Quitting cold turkey appears to be a
more effective strategy than cutting down without trying to stop
entirely.' Surririsingly, 95 percent of the people who broke the
smoking habit did so without the help of organized programs."

I think that would refer to organized programs to help people

_stop smoking. People who want to quit, quit. Tha,t is the way I did
it and the way most other people do as well.

Again, let me thank/you gentlemen for your testimony today. We

look forward to receiving additionalinformation.
Mr. BLILEY. Before we adjourn, might I have an indication what

the schedule will be for this subcommittee?
Mr. WAXMAN. We are expecting to try to work out the following

schedule: To hear from the administration next Thursday morning
and then to have Friday's hearings. devoted to the testimony that
we will work out with the Tobacco Institute in order to hear a'
number of witnesses that day relative to this legislation.

I
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Mr. BLILEY. Thank you.
[Whereupon, at 3 p.m. the subcommittee adjourned.]
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COMPREHENSIVE SMOKING PREVENTION
EDUCATION ACT

THURSDAY, MARCH 11, 1982

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
.

SUBCOMMITTEE ON ,HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT,
COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,

Washington, D.C.The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9 a.m. in room B-318, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Henry A. Waxman(chairman) presidingt
Mr. WAXMAN. The Meeting of the subcommittee will please cometo order.
This morning, the subcommittee continues hearings on the Com-prehensive Smoking Prevention Education ACt. Last Friday, weheard testimony from a panel of distinguished physician research-ers who presented evidence that smoking is the No. 1 health riskfactor for Americans. We also heard from a panel of prominentcitizens who expressed their personal concern over the health ef-fects of smoking as it touched their lives and those of their fami-lies. I regret that more members could not have heard.their presen-tation. It was truly moving, and I think clearly sets forth thereason why this legislation is so necessary.

Today, we will hear from the administration. Recently, the De-partment 'of Health and Human Services released an excellentreport on the health consequences of smoking as it related tocancer. In releasing the rep*t, the Surgeon General characterizedsmoking as the chief cause of preventable disease and illness inthis country. This alone should make passage of the Comprelien-sive Smoking Prevention Education Act a top priority.'The pending legislation is designed to make Americans moreaware of the serious risks smoking posed to their health, and in thecase of pregnant women, to the health of the unborn child. Smok-ing is a self-destructive habit. It is destrusitive of human life and isresponsible for an almost unimaginable toll in terms of lost produc-tivity to the economy and excess medical costs. Prevention of smok-ing through every means at our disposal is in our personal and ga-tional best interest.
I want to make it clear that changes in the current warninglabel are not the only steps necessary to make a major differencein the smoking behavior of Americans. It is also important that theFederal Povernment, through the Office of Smoking and Health,maintaiii a prominent role in developing new educational materi-als, work closely- with the voluntary health sector and maintain avigorous research presence. I- believe the combined impact of thesestrategies can have a powerful effect in encouraging current smok-
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ers to quit and discouraging potential smoiters from striking that
first match.

Our first witnesses this morning are a distinguished panel of
physicians: Edward N. Brandt is Assistant Secretary for Health of
the Department of Health and Human Services. Accompanying Dr.
Brandt are Dr. C. Everett Koop, U.S. Surgeon General; Dr. Vincent

T. De Vita, Director of the National Cancer Institute; Peter L.
Fromer, Acting Director of the National Heart, Lung, and Blood
Institute; and William Po llin, Director of the National Institute on

Drug Abuse.
I would like to welcome each of you to our hearing today and I

will ask my colleague, Mr. Bliley, is there any comment you would

like to make?
Mr. BLILEY. No statement. Thank you very much.
Mr. W4xmAN. Dr. Brandt, we are pleased to have you with us. I

wbuld like to call on you at this time to make your presentation to

the.committee.

STATEMENTS OF EDWARD N. BRANDT, JR., M.D., ASSISTANT SEC-

RETARY OF HEALTH, AND DR. C. EVERETT Kb0P, SURGEON.

GENERAL, PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, ,ACCOMPANIEP BY DR. VIN-

CENT T. DeVITA, DIRECTOR, -NATIONAL CANCEL 1NSTI TE,

AND DR. WILLIAM POLLIN, DIRECTOR, NATIONAL INSTI UTE

ON DRUG ABUSE
Dr. BRANDT. Thank you very mach, Mr.,Chairman. I am. pleused

to present to you the statement of the Department of Health and
Human Services on the health effects of cigárptte smoking. These
health effects and their significance to the Kmerican people must
necessarily provide the rationale and justification for whatever
action your committee may take in regard to the_ bill befone you.

As you mentioned, I am accompanied 'by Pr. Koop, Surgeon Gen-

eral; Dr. Vincent DeVita, National Cancer institute; and Dr. Peter
Frommer of,the National Heire, Lung, and Blood Institute.

Let me begin by presenting a capsule description of the health
effects of cigarette smoking: Then we will give you a mbre detailed
description of smoking and cancer 'and in regard to pulmonary dis-

. ease. I will also address research efforts' by the National Institute
on Drug Abuse, on the. addiCtivecharacteristics Of cigarette smok-

ing.
In summary, cigarette smoking is cleUrly the single most impor-

tant preventable cause of premature -illness and, death_ in the
United States, Estimates of the number of deaths related to sinok-

ing exceed 300,000 annually. One may compare this figure With the

105,000 deaths that occur each year as a resUlt of all iniuties, thd
20,000 deaths from homicides, or the 40,000 infant deaths.

Cigarettdsmoking is one of the three major independent risk fac-
tors in coronary heart disease; a major cause of dancer ot the lung,
cancer of the larynx, oral cavity and esophagus, and a major cause
of chronic bronchitis and emphysema.

, Maternal cigarettes smoking is associated with regarded fetal
growth and increased risk for spontaneOud abortion and prenatal
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death, and slight impairment of growth and development duringearly childhood.
Cigarette smoking acts synergistically with oral contraceptives toenhance the probability of coronary and some cerebrovascular dis-ease. It acts also with alcohol to increase the risk of cancer of thelarynx,, oral cavity, and esophagus; with asbestos and-some otheroccupationally encountered substances to increase the likelihood ofcancer of the lung; and with other risk factors to enhance cardio-vascular risk.
Mr. Chairman, cancer was the firit disease to be associated withcigarettes. As Dr. Koop pointed out in introducing .our 1982 Reporton Smoking and Health A few weeks ago, reports linking smokingand lung cancer began appearing in scientific literature as long as50 years ago. The evidence which links cigarette smoking with lungand other cancers was reviewed in most careful detail irf the 1982report just issued, which will be summarized by Dr. Koop in a fewmoments.

A subject which was hardly touched upon in the 1964 report isthe effect of smoking on women, and in the case of maternal smok-ing its effect on the fetus and infant. In 1980 this was the topic ofthe Department's report to Congress. Its conclusions were thatwomen are not immune to the damaging effects of smoking, andthat the lesser occurrence of smoking-related diseases amongwomen smokers is a result of their having lagged about a quartercentury behind men in their widespread use of cigarettes.The 1980 report establisheetlILVgarette smoking -is a majorthreat to the outcome of pregnanc d the well-being of the baby.Another public health question, now enormously important, re-lates to the use of the new low-yield cigarettes. This was the sub-ject of the Department's 1981 report. The report's conclusions werethat although there is no safe cigarette, smoking cigarettes withlower yields of tar and nicotine poses a lower risk of lung cancerthan smoking other cigarettes, provided there is no compensatorychange in smoking pattern.
As you pointed outs Mr. Chairman, the 1982 Report of the Sur-geon General focused upon cancer. The report noted that morethan 100 diseases that we call cancer" have come to, be the secondleading cause of death in the United States..The report also made anumber of other important points, which again will be summarizedby Dr. Koop in a few moments.
The National Cancer Institute's effort in smoking research hasgrown from a $1 million program in 1968 to one costing about $10million in 1982. Our program now focuses on preventing smokingand involves, first, behavioral studies to examinawirg peoplesmoke; second, epidemiological studies of populations with highrates of lung and other smoking-related cancers to identify cofac-tors such as occupation and alcohol consumption; toxicology studiesto examine the content of substances in today's low tar and nico-tine cigarettes that initiate and promote cancer; pharmacologicstudies to determine which factors in tobacco might be addictive;and finally, a program to help smokers quit by encouraging physi-cians, dentists, and .other health professionals to distribute infor-mation on smoking cessation to their patients.
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This past year, NCI-supported investigators identified how the
body handles two carcinogens found in tobacco smoke. They are
now determining whether these carcinogens affect specific organs
or tissues. This research is relevant because this particular class of
carcinogens, called nitrosamines, can be reduced in smoke with the
use of better filters.

Oftem when people think of the health consequences of smoking
cigarettes, they think of lung cancer. Yet the number of cigar
related deaths resulting from noncancerous pulmonary and co o-
nary heart diseases is far greater.

Chronic obstructive pulmonary diseases today represent the fast-
est &wing of the major causes of death, now ranking fifth. In
1980, 55,000 Americans died of pulmonary diseese. Almost 3 mil-
lion Americans now suffer from emphysema, a terribly debilitating
disease. The evidence is substantial and unequivocal that cigarette
smoking is the chief culprit in the onset or exacerbatiOn of these
diseases.

During the past 10 years we liavealso obtained a far better un--,
derstanding of the mechanisins of lir% damage, including the de-
struction of elastin, the major structural protein of the lung, which
is adversely affected by cigarette smoke. Despite a dramatic decline
in mortality during the past decade, coronary heart disease re-
mains the No. 1 killer in this country, claiming three quarters of a
million lives In the United States each year.

The scope of the problem is indeed enormous. Cigarette smoking
is one of the three major risk factors to coronary artery disease,
the other two being high blood pressure and high serum cholester-
ol. Epidemiological evidence clearly places the smoker at a greater
risk of heart disease than the nonsmoker. Furthermore, the more
one smokes, the greater the risk. There is also, however, fortunate-
ly, evidence that smoking cessation can decrease that risk.

On the basis of drug dependence and the addictive properties of
cigarette smoking, and on the basis of research conducted by the
National Institute on Drug. Abuse, it is our view that cigarette
smoking represents a prototypic dependence process and is, in fact,
the most widespread exaMple of drug dependence in this country.

It is important to note that DSM-III, the standard diagnostic.
Manual of psychiatric disorders in the United States, and the
World Health Organization's International Classification of Dis-

, ease, both include tobacco dependence as a dependence disorder.
The key fmdings to date indicate nicotine as the main factor in

estpblishing and ma ning dependence on tobacco. This results,
in part, from tiple, powerful biological and psychological ef-

fects, whic nclude stimulation of the release of a number of hor-

in

monal substances, such as norepinéphrine, epinephrine, "grdwih
hormone, cortisol, vasopressin, and probably beta endorphin; the
production of behavior-arousal and EEG alerting patterns; and the
fact that it is one of the most rapidly metabolized of all self-admin-
istered substances.

Mr. Chairman, at this time I would like to turn my attention to
the bill before your subcommittee,. H.R. 4957. This bill would estab-

. lish an Office of Smoking and Health within the Department of
Health and Huma'n Services. We oppose this provision. Such an
office created by statute would not provide the flexibility that ,per-

,
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rnits us, as we have at.eresent, the opportunity to alter the pro-gram if needed.
.Since 1966 the Department has ..maintained an active smokingcomponent which has worked closely with State and local govern-ments and with voluntary health and educational agencies to helpbring about great changes in the smoking behavior of adults andteenagers alike.

,This administration, and in particular our Department(' hasplaced great emphasis on prevention. We are concerned about thehealth problems that smoking causes, and we will continue to oper-ate an effective program.
We support the bill's requirements for stronger health warningsbecause we believe they would increase the public's knowledge ofthe hazards of smoking and Make it possible for smokers and po-tential smokers to make better informed judgments as to whetherto continue smoking, or to begin smoking.
We believe, however, that several modifications should be consid-ered. We would,strongli suggest that in the proposed section 4 ofthe'Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act, the Secretaryof Health and Human Services be given the responsibility for de-termining and modifying the actual wording of the multiple warn-ings. We believe that the system iecommended in proposed section4(b) might be more effective is all of the proposed warnings appearon each brand simultaneously, sO that the smoker does not knowwhich warning may appear on the packages he buys. This is thesystvil in use in Sweden, where 16 different warnings appear onpackages at a given time. In addition to greater effectiveness, thissystem would minimize industry expens4 and compliance oversightrequirements. We would, however, want the flexibility to adoptother systems shoUld this prove to be ineffective.

Cigarette manufacturers are currently allowed to cite levels oftar and nicotine as determined by the method specified by the FTCwhen new or reformulated. brands are advertised which have notyet been tested by the FTC. Such a provision wemould recommendbe added to the proposed section 4(c).
At this time, Mr. Chairman, I would like to turn to Dr. Koop andask him to summarize the 1982 Report of the Surgeon General onthe Health Consequences of Smoking.

--' STATEMENT OF DA. C. EVERETT KOOP\
Dr. KOOP. Mr. Chairman, I would like to do this by calling yourattention to the two charts, first looking at the one on your left.You have already heard that cigarette smoking is a major cause of----"-capcer .of the lung, larynx, oral cavity, and esophagus, and theseptopbrtional charts show the percentage of deaths from cancer ofthese sites to all cancers that we know about in the human body.They compare 1950 with 1977. The whole pie is all cancer, and thesize of.the slice represents those cancers we are concerned aboutthat dre smoking-related.

You can see from the size of the slice of these two pies that from1950 to 1977, the percent more than doubled. It went from 12 to 27percent. I would also call your attention to the fact that these rep-resent four cancers only. They do not count/ the smoking-related1 .
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cancer deaths that we know now come from bladder, kidney, and
pancreas, some proportion of which can be attributed to cigarette
smoking.

If you now look at the chart on your right, it shows t e remark-
able increase in lung cancer deaths in relation to tota ancer
deaths. The top red line shows the steady increase in the number
of deaths from cancer from 1950 to 1978. And the lower red line
shows the equally remarkable decline in all cancers other than
cancers of the lung. This line has its remarkable slope primarily
due to our added ability to handle cancers of the prostate, the
colon, the rectum and breast &ricers. And because the survival of
lung cancer has remained unchanged, you can see that that blue
line in the middle has the same slope as all cancer.

And indeed, if you will look at the time between 1975 and 1978,
you will see that the two lines, the red line for all cancer and the
blue one for lung cancer only, parallel each cipher almost exactly,
and this coincides with the same period of time when the red line
at the bottom is absolutely flat.

There is much more that could be said, Mr. Chairman, but this
puts that report in a nutshell.

Dr. BRANDT. That concludes our statement, Mr. Chairman. We
would lie pleasedto respond to any questions.

.. [Testimony resumes on p. 2941
[Dr. Brandt's prepared statement follows1
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-') STATEMENT BY

EDWARD N. B;ANDT, JR., M.D.

ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR HEALTH

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee:

I am pleased`to submit to you today this strement of thepepartment of Health
and Human Services.on the health effects df cigarette smoking. These health

' effects and their significance to the American people must necessarily provide
the rationale and justification for whatever action your Committee may take
in regard to the bill beforl you.

With me today are Dr. C. Everett Koop, Surgeon General; Dr. Vincent DeVita,
Director, National Cancer Institute; Dr. Peter Frommer, Acting Director, National
Heart, Lung, and Blood InAtitute; and Dr. William Pain, Director, National Instituteon Drug Abuse.

. I will begin by presenting a capsule description
of the health effects of cigarette

smoking and then a more detailed description of smoking and cancer and cardiopulmonary
diseases. I will also address research efforts by the National Institute on Drug
Abuse on the addictive characteristics of cigarette smoking.

In summaryi:cigarette smoking is clearly the single most important preventable
cause of premature illness and death in the United States. Estimates of the ;umber
of deaths related to sMoking exceed 300,000 annually. One may compare this
figure with' the 105,000 deaths that occur each year as a result of all injuries,
20,000 deaths from homicides, or the 40,000 infant deaths.

--
Cigarette smoking is one of the three major independent risk factors fol coronary
heart disease and arteriosclerotic peripheral yascular*sease; a major cause
of cancer of the keg, larynx, oral cavity and esophagusLand a major cause of\ chronic bronchitis and emphysema.

Cigarette smoking is a contributory factor in cancer of the urinary bladder, kidney,
and pancreas. it is also associated' with peptic ulcer disease. Maternal cigarette
smoking is associated with retarded fetal growth, an increased risk for spontaneous
abortion and prenatal death, and slight impairment of growth and development ..,during early childhood.

,-
. .t
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Cigarette.srhoking acts synergistically with oral contraceptives to enhance the

probability of corona-c; and some ceebrovascular disease; with alcohol to increase

the ri4 of cancer of the larynx, oral cavity,-and esoptiagiis; with asbestos and

sorrie other occupationally encountered substances to increase the likelihood

'of cancer of the lune and with other risk factors to enhance cardiovascular risk.

/t
InvoluntarY.Or ive inhalation of cigarette smoke can poicipitateor exaceibate

symptoms qf existing disease states, such as asthma and cardiovascular and respiratory

. diseases and May be carcinogenic for nonsmokers.. Smoking is also the major

identifiable cause of deaths and injuries from residential fires.

Mr. Chairman, cancer. was the first disease to be a§sociated with cigarette smoking.

As Dr. Koop pointed out in introducing our 1982 report on smoking andhealth

a few weeks ago,-reports linking smoking and lung cancer began appearing in

the scientific literatuiv as long as 50 Kears ago. In 1964, when the Surgeon General's

Advisory Committee's report was issued, lung cancer in men, and chronic bronchitis

in both men and women, were the two diseases which the Committee identif ied

as being caused by cigarette smoking.

I
The evidence which links cigarette smoking with lung and other cancers was reviewed

in the mostcareful detail in the 1982 report just issued. Today, 18 years after

the 1964 report, additional human 'experience and enormous amounts of new researN

make it possible for science to conclude that cigarette smoking is a major cause

of cancees- of the lung, larynx, oral cavity, and esophagus, and that it is a contribut-

ory factor in the development Of cancers of thetladder, pancreas., and kidney.

Lur.ig_.cancer accounts for one out of every four cancer deaths, and 85 percent

jof 'these are due to si3oking. Overall, approximately 30 percent of all cancer

deaths are aistribuf ble to tobacco use.
411F

;
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A subject Which was hardly touched uponin the 1964 report Is the effect of smoking

on women, and in the case of maternal smoking, its effect on the fetus and infant.

1111980, this was the topic of the Department's report to Congress. Its conclusions

were that women are not immune to the damaging effects of smoking. and that

the lesse; occurrence of smoking-related diseases among women smokers is a

result of women having lagged one-quarter century behind menin their widespread
use of cigarettes.

The 1980 report established that cigarette smoking is a major threat to the outcorne

of pregnancy and the well-being of the baby. The risk of spontaneous abortion,

fetal death, and neonatal death increases direcily with increasing levels of maternal

smoking during pregnancy. Smoking causes a markedly increased risk of heart

attack and subarachnoid hemorrhage.

Another public health question, now enormously important, relates to the use

of the new, low-yield cigarettes. This was the subject of the Department's 1981

report. The Report's conclusions were that although there is no Afe cigarette,

smoking cigarettes afith lower yields of tar and nicotine poses a lower risk of

lung cancer than smoking higher-yield cigarettes, provided there is no compensatory

change in smoking patterns. Increasingly, smokers have turned to lirse lower-

yield products; there is evidence to suggest that in doing so, at least some have

increased their smoking or changed the way they smoke. This may have negated

any potential benefit in their having switchedto thise products.

Smoking and Cancer

The 1982 Report of the Surgeon General on the Health Consequences of Smoking

focussed upon cancer. The report noted that the more than 100 diseases we call

94-387 0 - 82 - 19
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cancer ar.e the second leading cause of death in the United Sates. The repok

also made these important points:

4

. o It Ls now clear from a largenumber of epiderniologic studiesboth retro- .

spettive and prospective-.-that smoking is causally related to at least

30 percent of all cancer deaths. This means that approximately 129,000

people a year die of cancers related to smoking. In 1964 the Surgeon

Genetrars Advisory Committee was able to conclude that cigarette smoking

causes lung cancer in men. Now subsequent studies show it causes lung

cancer in women as well. Smoking is also the mapr causal factor ill

tamers of the larynx, mouth and esophagus. The habit contributes to

. development of cancers of the bladder, pancreas and kidney. Although ,

cigarettes are the mask concern because of the number of people who

smoke ihem regularly, pipes and cigars ace also' imPlicated in cancers

of the lung, laiynx, mouth and esophagus. The cancers I have mentioned

. are ones tliat have not been especially responsive to our current treatment

-orr,"""

/ rAthods. . . .1.
-

o The causal relajionships ate strong. if we just look at lung cancer, the

major cause of cancer death among U.S. males, a cigarette smoker is

to tunevnore likely to die of this disease than a nonsmoker. And th'is

risk increases with the number of cigarettes smokeda direct dose-

response relationship. One' optimistic point 'in the report was that the

rislc decreases among persons Who hpe quit smoking. Former smokers

who quit 15 years ago or longer hive lung cancer mortality rates only

slightly above those of nonsmokers. In terms of time trends, since 1950

we have seen the lung cancer rate increase more than five percent a

year among American women. They started sUing in large numbers

after World War II, abotit 20 years later than men. Our statistics suggest

that cancer of the lung may soon overtake breast cancer as the major

cause of cancer death for women.

290
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o For the first time, two preliminary epideiniologic studies are suggesting '
an increased risk of lung cancer In nonsmoking wives of smoking husbands,

I implicating sidestream smoke as a cancer risk factor. A third study

shows a trend in this directico, byt the results are not statistically

significant. More evidence is needed on the risk to "passive" smokers. t

o We arcencouraged by the figures on people who have been'able to quit

smoking, most of them through their own efforts. In 1963, 42 percent
... of adults in the United States smoked. In 1980, the proportion dropped'

to 33 percent. 'We are also encouraged by the recent report of the National

Institute on brug Abuse showing a drop in the number of high school

seniors who smoke daily, irom 29"percent in 1977 to 20 percent in 1981.

These encouraging trerids reflect the work of both Government, voluntary
art private'health agencies in educating the public about the health
hazards of smoking.

, . ,
The National Cancer Institutes effort in smoking research has grown from a
$1 million program iri 1968 to coe costing $12.3 million In 19,82. 'The program's
. .4,

original goal was to reduce the risk of cancer in smolsers who could got be persuaded

to quic. Most of that effort focused on rteveloping a 1ess-hazar4ous cigarette .

and less-hazardous ;rays of smoking. In1978, we decided to discontinue developmint

of a less-hazardous cigarette', jeaving,that tail( to be continued by the tobacco

industry. Cur program now focuses,on preventing smoking and involves,:

. .
o Behavioral studies to examine why people smoke, wi,ththe goal of fidding

ways to encourage them riot to begin smoking or to help them quit;
.N.

o Epidemiologic studies of populations with high rates of lung and other

smoking-related cancers to ideritify Cofactors, itch as occupation and
s

alcohol consiTmption, that might increase a smoker's chance of developing
cancer;

*
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o Toxicolov studies to examine the cOntent of substances in today's low-

tar and qicotine cigarettes that initiate and promote cancer-aitd to jearn

how these substances are handled by theVyl

o Pharmacologic, studies to determine which factors in tobacco might

be addictive and how those substances work;

o A programto help smokers quit by encoueaging physicians, dentists,

and other health professionals to distribute information on smoking

cessation to their patients.

The cu'rrent programs of th.e National ."..ancer Institute include a number of studies

being carried on by NCI epidemiologists iii areas of the Untted.States wherelung

and other smokmetelated cancers are high, to evaluate risk factors in arition

to cigarette smoking that may contribute to thosl high cancer rates. e

This past year, NCI-supported Investigators identified how the body handles two

carcinogens Sound in tobacco smoke. They are now crietermini whether thtse

carcinogens affect specific organs or tissues. This research is elevarit because

this particular class of carcinogens, called nitrosamines, can be reduced in smoke

wish the,use of better hirers,

In the area of behavioral stuthes, we have a group of four different grantees
invesiigating smokers a;ho have-quit, to determine how th;y ififfer from smokers

who can't quii. Vie know that 93 percent 2f smokers who quit 510 so on their own.

From this study we hope to learn who they are, what techniques they used and

now they differ from smokers who,can't quit. These studies are n'early complete,

and a workshop scheduled for this spring should yield some important new information

on what motivates people to quit smoking and how these techniques might be

applied to help others.

a
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1 would like to mention one program of the Office of Cancer Communications

because we are proud of its success. Baseil on thewell-documented evil?nce

that counseling by a physiciap.-ean.motivate smokers to quit, the office developed

a "Helping Smokers Quit Kit" for phyticiav) use with patients. More than
133,000 of these kits-!-which irich;de posters for the waiting room, take-home

materials for smokers, and information on counsehng the smoking patientwere

distributed. In fact, the kit was so well received that a similar one was created

for dentists. Ibis project was endorsed by the American Dental Association,

which,is cooperating with us to distribute the kit. Staff are now working with
OW

the rUnerican Pharmaceutical Association to develop a similar program for pharmacists.

. ,
The National Cancer Institute is interested in pursuing some ntw leads. There

is a growing body of evidence that people who smoke low tar and nicotine cigarettes

adjust their smoking behaviorinhaling more deeply or covering the ventilation
, holes in the cigarette filters. This is thought to be an attempt to compensate

for the decreased nicotine yield. We plan to take a look at this question. lf these

preliminary studies are confirmed, it wouid imply that smokers of todays cigarettes

are not decreasing their exposure to nicotine and th fact may actually be increasing

their exposure to harmful combustion products such as hydocarbons and carbpn

monoxide.

-

Smoking and Cardio-pulmonary Disease

Very often, when people think of the health consequences of smoking cigarettes

they think of lung cancer. Yet, the number of cigarette-related deaths resulting

from (noncancerous) pulmonary and co;onary heart diseases is far greater.

Chronic obstructive pulmonary diseases (COPD) today represents the faste,st

growing of the major causes of death, now ranking filth. In 1930, 53,000 Americans

died of pulmonary diseases. Almost three million Americans now suffer from

emphysema, a terribly debilitating disease. More than seven million have chronic

bronchitis. Chronic respiratory diteases account for approximately ten percent

of disability benefits for lost work hours. And, the evidence is substantial and

unequivocal that cigarette smoking l$ the chief culprit in the onset or exacerbation
of these diseases. . .1

_
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kesearch has for sOme tune provided us with data demonstrating that smokers

have higher moctallty rates from chronic bronchitis and emphysema and that

smokers have far less pulmonary function than nonsmokers. During thrpast ten

years, vie have abdobtained a far better understanding of the mechaniims of

lung damage, including the destruction of elastin, a major structural protein of

the lung which is adversely affected by cigarette smoking. And, within recent

years, evidence has been reported which suggests that the small airways function

of the lung may be adversely affected in healthy nonsmokers if they are exposed

to cigarette smoke from ?dyers.

Research continues in this area to give us a better basis of knowledge in order

to prevent or arrest the progress of pulmonary diseases. Studies have demonstrated

the benefits of smoking cessation, including improvements in lung performance

on standard spirometric (breathing) tests soonafter one quits. However, pulmonary

diseases represent a progressive condition and once a certain point is reached

* we can only hope to retard its progression. InveStigators are working towards

developing a simplified means of detecting the disease condition at an early enough

stage to intervene and reverse the process. At the same time, research continues ,

to try to develop and evaluate programs designed to helPindividuals give up smoking,

since smoking prevention or cessation represents the only effective intervention

/ measure we now have.

Despite a dramatic decline in mortality airing the past decade, coronary heart

disease remains the number one killer in this country, claiming three-quarters

of a million lives in the United States each year. For every minute of the day,

there are about three Americans who suffer a heart attack. While the progress

in reducing coronary heart disease and other cardiovascular deaths during recent

years is heartening, the scope of the problem remains enormous.
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Cigarette smoking is one of the three major tisk factors for coronary heart disease;

the other two being high blood pressure and high serum cholesterol. Epidemiological

evidence clearly places the smoker at a higher rk of heart disease than,the

nonsmoker. The more one smokes, the greater the risk. There is also evidence
that smoking cessation can decrease the risk. After only one year free of cigarettes,
a former smoker may be able to reduce the risk of heart disease to close within
that of the nonsmoker.

fife
The exact mechanisms of how cigarette smoking affects coronary heart disease
are still unknown and are the subject of considerable research now underway.

Nevertheless, the evidence based on epidemiologic and autopsy studies clearly
linking the amount of smoking with higher incidence of heart disease, Ls indeed

A Impressive.

Addictive Properties of Cigarette Smoking

On the issue of drug dependence and the addictive properties of cigaretteroking,

and on the basis of research conducted by the National Institute on Drug Abuse

(NIDA), it is our view that cigargtte smoking represents a prototypic dependence

process and in fact is the most widespread example of drug dependence in this

country. It is important to note that DSM-III, the standard diagnosti.c manual

of psychiatric disorders in the U.S.,and the World Health Organizations's International

Classification of Disease both include tobacco dependence as a dependence disorder.

NIDA researchers are Exploring the same questions that we ask of any other drug-

Using behavior: what factors,(1) determine initial expermiertation of use; (2/
the progression from casual recreational use to regular, compulsive use; (3) the

achievement of abstinence; and (4) the high rate of relapse.

The key findings to date implicate nicotine as the main factor in establishing

and maintaining dependence on tobacco. .This results 'In part from its multiple,
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powerful biological and psychological effeCts, wMch Include stimulation of the

release of a number of hormonal Substances (norepinephrine, epinephrine, growth

hormone, cortisol, vasopressin, and probably beta endorphin); the production of

behavioral/arousal and EEG alerting patterns; and the fact that it is one of the

most rapidly tnetabolized of all selt-administered substances.

It is the establishment of tobacco dependence with IFs consequent impairment

of an individual's ability to easily discontinue behavior that he or she intellectually

knows is self-damaging which leads to%he multiple grave health consequences

that I have previously summarized. The eXtent of tobacco's ability to do this

is most easily comprehended when one notes that whereas the large majority

of Americans who use alcohol are subjectively and objectively able to satisfactorily

control their level of use, over 75 percent of tobaccosmokers would like to quit

but have difficulty in doing so. Along with all the devastating health effects

that are a consequeoce of tobacco smoking is the fact that we are talking about

an addictive disorder that is as challenging as that of any other drug we know

about.

Mr.Chairman, in closing, 1 would like to turn my attention to the bill before jtour

Subcommittee, H.R. 4957.

This bill would establish an Office of Smoking arid Health within the Department

of Health and Human Services. We oppose this provision. An Office created

by statute would not provide flexibility. At present,.we can alter the program

as needed. Indeed, since 1966 the Department has maintained an active smoking

componerv, which has worked closely with State and local governments and with

voluntary health and educational agencies to help bring about great changes in

the smoking behavior of adults and ieenagers alike. This Administration, and

in particular this Department, has placed great emphasis on prevention. We are

concerned about the health problems that smoking causes, and we will continue

to operate an effective program.

29.6
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We support the bill's requirements for strong health warnings because we believe

they would increase the public's knowledge of the hazards of smoking and make

it poStble for smokers and potqntial smokers to make better-informed judgments

as to whether to continue smoking or begin smoking. We believe however, that

several modifications are needed.

We would strongly suggest that in proposed section 4 of the Federal Cigarette

Labeling and Advertising Act, the Secretary of Health and Human Services be

given the responsibility for determining and modifying the &Neal wordings of

the multiple warnings.

We believe that the system recommended in proposed section 4(b) mightlbe

more effeCliite if all of the proposed warnings appear on each brand simultaneously,

so that the sn1oker does not know which warning may appear on the packages

he buys. This is the system in use in Sweden, where 16 different warnings appear

on packages at a given time. In addition to greater effectiveness, thissystem

would minimize industry expense and compliance oversight requirements. We

would however, want the flexibility to adopt other systems should this prove

to be ineffective.

Cigarette manufacturers are currently allowed to cite levels of tar and nicotine

as determined by the methods specified by the FTC when new or reformulated

brands are advertised which have not yet been tested by the FTC. Such a provision

should be added to proposed section 4(c).

Mr1Chairman, this concludes my statement. We will be pleased to respond

to-questions you may have.
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Mr. WAXMAN. I want to thank you both for your statement. We
appreciate the fact that you summarized it, and without objection
your full statement will be made a part of the recbrd. I would like
to ask some questions of you, Dr. Brandt. You and the others with
you may be able to answer yes or no to these questions, but if you
wish to elaborate, feel free to do so.

I would like to know whether'the following statements are scien-
tifically valid: ,

,Cigarette smoking is the largest preventable cause of illness and
premature death and is associated with the unnecessary deaths of
over 300,000 Americans annually. ,

Dr. B-aArgur. Yes, that is the scientific evidence.,
Mr. WAXMAN. Smoking is the No. 1 cause of lung cancer in the

United States and is the major cause of chronic obstructive lung
disease. .

Dr. BRANDT. Yes.
Mr. WAXMAN. Cigarette smoking is the No. 1 cause of emphyse-

ma. .
Dr. BRANIYT. Yes, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. Heart disease accounts for nearly one-half the -

deaths in this country and it is estimated that one-third of these
deaths are attributable to smoking.

Dr. BRANDT. If you amend that to be cardiovascular disease, the
statement is correct. .

Mr. WAxmAN. Cigarette smoking is the major cause of heart dis-
ease.

Dr. BRANDT. Yes.
Mr. WAxstAN. Pregnant women who smoke are at higher risk for

the possibility of spontaneous abortion, stillbirths, premature
births, and child weight deficiencies than women who do not
smoke.

Dr. BRANDT. Yes, that is correct. L
Mr. WAXMAN,. Women who take birth control pills and smoke are

more likelrto tuffer a heart attack or stroke than women who do
not Smoke.

Dr. BRANDT. That is correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. Certain occupational hazards, in conjunction 'kith

an individual's smoking, increases 'substantially thb risk of disease

.and death.
Dr. BRANDT. That is right.'
Mr. WAXMAN. Cigarette smoking may cause death from heart

disease, emphysema, or cancer.
Dr. BRANDT. That is right.
Mr. WAXMAN. Cigarette smoking is addiCtive and will injure your

health. .

Dr. BRANDT. That is right.
Mr. WAXMAN. No matter how lohg one smokes, quitting greatly

reduces the risk to their health. -
Dr. BRANDT. That is correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. The tobacco industry has made a number of state-

ments about this legislation and about the health problems that
many claim are associated with smoking. ,

It has been suggested that requiring specific warning statements
about heart disease or lung cancer will send a signal to young pros-

1
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pective smokers that smoking will only cause diseases that affect
older people The implication of this position is that the current
warning label is more meaningful than those proposed in the legis-
lation. -

,Do you agree?
Dr BRANDT I think that the warning labels that name specific

diseases will influence younger pewle to recognize that in the first
place, we have to get across to everyone that the disease, is a result
of cigarette smoking, is cumulative and dose-related. And I think if
we can emphasize to young people not only the fact that it is harm-
ful to their health but also causes specific illnesses, that would be
more effective.

Furthermore, it depends on how young they are talking about,
but the proposed warning about women who are pregnant and
smoking would certainly get to a younger group of people.

Mr. WAXMAN. Over the years, the tobacco industry has chal-
lenged the Surgeon General's statements about the relationship be-
tween smoking and health. They have suggested that the Surgeon
General's warning, however well intended, is more conjecture than
scientific fact.

For example, in a 1982 review of scientific literature entitled
"Cigarette Smoking and Cancer: A Scientific Perspective", the To-
bacco Institute writes, and I am quoting them, 'The claim that
cigarette smoking causes lung cancer has not been proven scientifi-
cally The charge ignores unresolved scientific questions concerning
animal experiments, smoking patterns, and lung cancer rates, diag-
'nostic variables and many confounding factors.'

ould you care to respond?
Dr. BRANDT. The question of what is scientific proof, I guess, is

the issue that is being raised, and the argument has been raised
that until such time as you can show the physiologic Mechanism by
which cigarette smoke transforms a normal cell into a malignant
cell, you cannot claim that smoking causes cancer.

.
We know of very few mechanisms, that result in ease, yet we

do know a lot of causes and we do know that if you an get people
to quit smoking, their risk of lung cancer and heart disease will di-
minish. NI think Dr. De Vita may be able to address this in some more
detail. --7 .

Dr. DEVITA. Dr. Brandtput it well, Mr. Chairman. My own per-
sonal feeling is that the scientific evidence is irrefutable in the ,

sense that the strength of association of smoking and lung cancer
is overwhelming. The dose response relationship between the inci-
dence of smoking and the number of cigarettes smoked and the
time and duration of smoking is irrefutable, and the fact that you
could cease smoking and reduce the mortality from lung cancer is
one further piece of evidence. I think that the animal data shows
that you can cause cancer from cigarette products. \I believe that the statement you just read would not stand up to
the test of scientific facts.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you believe that we must fully understand the
etiology of cancer before we can determine the role of smoking in
proMoting the incidence of cancer?
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Dr. DEVITA. I do not believe we have to understand the etiology
of any disease to prellent it. History is replete with prevention of
disease without knowing the causesfor example, smallpox and
cholera. We know that cigarettes cause lung cancer, so if we can
prevent smoking, we can do a lot to alleviate the cancer problem in
this country.

Mr. WAXMAN. Frequently you read in tobacco industry publica-
tions that the field of epidemology yields only statistics, not facts
from which scientific conclusions can be derived. Would you ex-
plain the role and importance of epidemiology in establishing cau-
sation in a disease like lung cancer?

Dr. DEVrrA. Well, epidemiology is like a doctor for the entire
country listening to what is going on in the country, as opposed to
what is going on in an individual patient and is a largely used
method of case control studies;-that is looking at individual dis-
eases and trading back to controls that do not have the disease and
looking at the variables that seem to be influencing the incidence
of cancer.

What is important for an epidemiological study, which is a very
sound scientific method, is the strength of the association to the
particular factor, and if you put a number of suspected carcinogens
on a scale and looked at the relationship between, say, cigarette
smoking and any number of other materials that we are investigat-
ing at the present time, the difference in the association is really
what is key. The relative risk of lung cancer for a heavy smoker is
about tenfold what it is for nonsmokers. For a very heavy smoker,
two packs a day, you are talking about a 20 to 25-fold increase in
risk.

These are very sound metgods of associating certain agents with
the incidence and mortality from disease.

Mr. WianAN. We often hear the suggestion that genetics may be
responsible for illness associated with smoking. Some people are
more predisposed to cancer or heart disease. Can .ge-netics explain
the correlation between smoking and chronic lung disease?

Dr. DEVrrA. In my 'opinion, no. There are some twin studies,
_identical twins, with one smoking and one not, and only the smok-
ing twins get lung cancer; the nonsmoking twins do not. And that
would be continually confirmed. I see no eviiience to the contrary.

Mr, WAXMAN. rwant to recognize my colleagues for questions. I
might have some additional ones later.

Mr. Bliley.
'Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Dr. Koop, in your recent press conference announcing publica-

tion of this year's Surgeon General's report, you claimekthat, and
I quote, "Smoking ii; responsible for some 340,000 deaths in this
country annually."

Are you. aware that this figure was manufacturad without any
scientific basis by an advertising man, Emerson Foot, back in 1965,
who publicized the first Surgeon's General report?

Dr. Koop. No, sir, I am not.
Mr. Bur.sY. Where did you get your figure, 345,000?
Dr. Koop. We got our inforination from the National Center for

Health Statistics.
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Mr BLILEY Dr &Kip, one .of the points made in this year's Sur-
geon General's report, was a statement that about half the cigarette
smOkers viho quit do not resume the habit, and that about 95 per-
cent of the quitters do so on their own, without help from outside
sources.

Doctor, do you hot think these figures contradict the statement
in the promect warning label regarding addiction, which suggests
it is nearly impossible to quit?

Dr KOOP. No, I do not think so, sir. Studies that you just quoted
also indicate that it is the motivation bexond the quitter s response
that is the important thing. And if you have the kind of a person
who can be self-rewarding, then his motivation is higher.

For example, my father, a two-pack cigarette smoker, had a ter-- rible chronic cough. My mother asked me one day if I could do
something to 'help hini stop. I said he will never stop because he
has not got the guts.'He was standing right behind me, and he
never smbked again in his life. He was the kind of a man who had
a self-rewaYding kind of a personality. I tliink that is what counts
in the motivation, of these people.

Mr BuLEY. I see. Doctor, in your extensive medical background,
have you had any training in behavioral sciences?

Dr Koop Specific training diet conies in college and medical
schoof and graduate school, and the fact that you cannot help but
learn sornething by watching people in medical practice over the
years.

Mr. BuiAv. But you have not had any specific training?
Dr. KOOP. No, sir.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you.
Dr. Brandt, hgve you had any trainink in behavior sciences?
Dr BRANDT. I have had no foitinal training in behavioral scien-

cies.
Mr. BLILEY. I see. Are you familiar with this report, this report

to the President and the COngress on health hazards _associated
with alcohol and methods to inform the general public of these haz-
ards? It was published in November 1980.
aFBnainn. I am not familiar in 'detail; no, sir.
Mr. Bum. I see. Well, in that report, I wanf to read you some

statements. While it was coneerned primarily with alcohol, it does
take on tobacco.

We were concernr1 about the overuse of one othe Go.vernment's,most important
formi of health alert, a general health hazard warning label, if it as. possible to coin-
municate the information adequately through other means. It, as a numbet of com-
munications experts advise, the public is becoming jaded over Govt-Rment warn-
ings, the Government should use health hazard warning labels with caution.

The second-ntatement:
Labeling alcoholic beverages with a series of specific health hazard warning,

rotating labels, such as we are talking about here
Was also considered as a possibleTrnethod to conveY a -large number of specific

health' wiirnings to the alcohol-consuming public. The departments believed rotating
labels for alcoholic beverages would"confuse the public, cause them to believe that
one paiticular brand, for example with 50-percent alcohol, might cauie alcoholism,
while another product with 12-percent alcohol might cause birth defects, and so on.
Also, such a requirement would pose potentially difficult administrative and en-
forcement pl-oblems, especially affecting imported product&
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Pregnant women in childbearing years confront multiple hazards in the safe com-
pletion of pregnancy. Among these-are cigarette smoking, alcohol consumption, ex-
cessive amounts of caffeine, and inadequate diet. A strategy based on individual
warnings directed toward each health risk may simply have the effect of over-
whelming the woman and her family with prohibitions. If everything appears to be
harmful. some May adopt the fatalistic view and continue unsafe habits and life-
styles. .

It is our judgment such information can be more successfully conveyed through a
public information campaign coVering all significant risks to pregnancy, rather than
through a labeling effort directed toward the single risk of alcohol consumption
with corollary efforts singling out smoking and caffeine.

Although smoking levels have declined in public awareness, the health hazards
have increased. The department conOuded, after reviewing available studies, that it
is impcesible at this time to isolate Wimpact of any specific communication tech-
nique on smoking behavior, including the cigarette warning label on the cigarette

Package.
Do you agree with those statements?
Dr. BRANDT. Well, I campt agree with all of those statements,

Mr. MO I think that in the first place, we are trying to be selec-
tive.

I would agi-ee with' the statement that 'you. can overwhelm the
public with information,about everything being harmful, and that
it is important to select those things that have the greatest iisk to '

the public. If one looks at the causes of death, and in particular if
one looks at the loss of years of productive life, that is, premature
deaths, deaths before the life expectancy, and sel4cts from that list
those agents that have the greatest rniluence on persons losing
their lives, and selectively warns on that, then we will accomplish
the most. Clearly, cigarette smoking leads that list. We feel that
therefore we -must warn, the public.'

Now that does not mean that that is the only thing we will do. -
Certainly, public education efforts must conttie. .Certainly we
have to continue our research, partiCularly on htfw people can quit
smoking.

So I think we will be selective. I do not disagree that we should
be, bUt I think cigarette smoking is certainly rigl*-nt the moment
fhe most important thing we can address.

Mr. Bully. Well, Dr. Brandt, yovited the Sw,edish experience.
Dr. BRANDT. Yes, sir.
Mr. BLILEY. We had testimony Friday afternoon at our last hear-

ing, 'so far unrefuted, that in ,11 years, 5 years before and .6 years
since rotating labels went on the packs, there has been absolutely
no change or virtually no change in consumption in Sweden..

In Great Britain, where they have had rotating labels for 3
years, there has been no measurable change in consumption, before

or after.
In Norway, where they have totally banned cigarette advertising,

and there has been a massive campaign bythe Government to edu-
cate pe,plerOn the dangers of smoking, there has not been any

In oland, where cigarette advertising is banned, there has been
no change in consumption. And indeed, in Italy, where cigarette
advertising has been banned for 20 years, consumption is up' 60
percent.

Now, we are mot in this bill today talking about he4th hazards.
It is not designed that way. It is designed to putting laelink on to,

3.02'
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get people to stop smoking. The fact of the matter is that where it
has been tried, it has not worked.

Now neither you nor Dr. Koop are trained in behavioral scien-
cies What do you base your testimony on that by doing this, we
will reduce smoking?

Dr BRANDT. Well, I think that one can look at what is happening
in this country in the past 18 years. Cigarette consumption is
down. The most recent survey of high school seniorg, for exam-ple

Mr. BuIrEv. True. I accept that. But is it down because of the
warning on the packs, or is it down because of the education?

Dr. BRANDT [continuing]. I think it'is probably both.
Mr. BLILEY. You think it is proba12.1y both? Can you state for a

fact? Do you haVe any studies to say that it is down because of la-
beling?

Dr. BRANDT. No, sir, but-L--
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you. You have answered mS, question. I yield

back my time to the chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. I thank thtentleman for yielding.
Mr. Whittaker.
Mr. WiirrrAKER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I regret that I was

unable to attend last Friday's" hearings, but I do very much wel-
come Dr. Brandt and the panel.

I would like to, for my own edification, induire essentially what
the agency has in mind when they suggest simultaneous labeling
might be more effective than the rotating labeling. I im curious
about how many labels could be placed on a cigarette pack or
whether it should be, for example, two packs out of a carton, or
wduld it be required on all cigaretts 9f whatever brand for some
period of tithe? What essentially are you proposing there?

Dr. BRANDT. What we are proposing is that there be only one
warning label on any one package, but that in any carton or any
selection of packages, the smoker would be exposed to all of the
warning labels that are available. That is, rather than run one
warning label for 6 months and then another one, that you run all
of them simultaneously so that they are constantly exposed with a
wide variety of information.

Mr. WHITTAKER. Dr. Brandt, would you favor, and when I say
"you" I mean you as the agency, would you favor a substantial in-
crease in cigarette taxation as a disincentive to smoking, and di-
recting possibly the increased revenue toward defraying some of
the health-related costs .of smoking and/or research?

Dr. BRANDT. Well, as you know, sir, the President's budget does
not call for such an increase, and I would look upon the excise tax
issue as more of an economic question than one I am qttalified too
answer.

Mr. Winn-AKER. Would, you hazard a guess, if it is possible
within the amount of research you have done in this area, what
the level of additional taxation is that would be necessary pez pack
to cover the estimated $13.6 billion of health-related costs, just to
break even?

Di-. BRANDT. No, sir. I am afraid I do not have that information.
We will be happy to try to look into that and provide it for the
record if you would like. '

,3 3
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[The following information was received for the record4
In 1981, 640 bjllion cigarettes or 32 billion packages (20 cigarettes per package)

were sold. An eight cent Federal excise tax per package generated $2.5 billion in
revenue in 1981.

Thus, the Federal excise tax would have to be raised to 43 cents per package to
generate revenues of $13.6 billion (assuming 32 billion packages are sold) To gener-
ate $25 billion in revenue, the Federal excise tax would have to be raised to 78 cents
per package (assuming 32 billion packages are sold).

Mr. WHITTAKER I would appreciate it. And in addition, I would
also like to ask what amount above that level of taxation would be
required to recoup the estimated $25.8 billion costs for premature
death and disability? So if' you could bring that to our attention, I
would appreciate it.

Dr. BRAHrrr. Yes, sir.
Mr. WHITTAKER What has been the experience in other countries

with increased levels of taxation on cigarette Troducts in minimiz-
ing of discouraging increased consumption of tobacco?

Dr. BRANDT. Well again, it is difficult to attribute change to any
one variable. The most recent data from England is that cigarette
smoking is dropping at a very rapid rate in that.country. There has
been a significant change over the past 2 to *3 years in the con-
sumption of cigarettes in England. Some persons attribute th.at pri-
marily to the use of the warning labels. Some attribute it to the
increases in taxes. 13.4R

The most recent event that bas happened in that country with
respect to cigarettes has been an increase in the level of taxes.
Whether or not one can attribute any change in human behavior
to any single event is somewh.at problematic. That is the one coun-
try about which we have information at present.

Mr. WEIrrTAKER. In my reading, England is the most recent coun-
try to implement a high level of taxation. Is that the only country
that has implemented that in the last decade?

r. ,BRANDT. it is the only country that I have firsthand experi-
ence about, Mr. Whittaker. Let die see if anyone else on the panel
knows that information.

[Pause.]
Dr. BRANDT. No. Well, we will be happy to look at that and pro-

,.

vide you with that information.
[Testimony resumes on p. 313.]
[The following information has been, received for the record:]

3 0 4
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Dadiground data on the experiences of other countries on

the taxation of cigarettes and cigarette consumption

patterns.

Source: Roemer, Ruth.c.Legislative Action to Combat the '4
Worrd Smoking Eptdemic; A Report to the World
HealthjOrganization. Chapter XII. "Fiscal and
Econome Measures." Draft report, University
of California, Los Angeles, California, 1982.

4_

LEGISLATIVE ACTION TO COMBAT THE WORLD SMOKING EPIDEMIC,

A Report to the World Health Organizaton

by

.Ruth Roemer, J.D.

'School of Pubfic Health

Upiversity of California

Los Angeles, Wifornia

Pk

July, 1981
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Chapter XII. Fiscal and Economic Measures

There are some who allege that dovernmenti Ave a vested interest in

smokimg because of the vast revenue that gets caught by the Chan-

teller's net. I can assure you that this is nonsense. It would be

quite possible to raise this revenue fn Mit other wey.

--O. Ennals, Secretary of State for Health,

United Kingdom, Paper presented to the
Oxford Medical Society, 27 October 1976

The tobacco industry has large stakes
in.defeating efforts to control the

smoking epidemic. The tremendous concentration
of economic m3wer in the seven

transnational tobacco conglomerates, described in a 1979 repori of the United

Nations Conference on ;rade end Development,157 presents a formidable adver-

sary to governments struggling to discotrane their yOung people from taking up

smoking and to persuade smokers.to free themselves from tobacco dependence.

Ranged on the sidtoof the tobacco interests are their enormous financial re-

1P sources, their tbntrol of industrial technoloay for producing, manufacturing,

and packaging tobacco products,
their mastery of sophisticated marketing

techniques, and their secret weapon--the
addictive nature of tobacco.

At the same time, governmenis have a significant ecOnomic interest--

leaving aside humanitarian
concerns--in.protecting thslr people against

premature-death and,chronic disability from smoking resulting in loss of pro-

ductivity. Against the much-vaunted
economic benefits of tobacco production

'must be weighed the ge cosis of smoking. 'In the United States, the ecovic

consequences of smoking were estimated in 197610 total $27.5 billion, of

mhich$19.2 billion represented direct health care costs.158 If governments

ard'anti -smoking fOrces are to combat the powerful.armamentarium of the \

tobacco companies, every strategy that holds promise for diminishing, ind

eventually eliminIting,, smoking in sociity must be explored.

One constellation of measures
that has teen used in only a limited wayis

that of fiscal and economic actions.
These include policies on taxing;

insurance incentives and
disincentives; and economic subsidies.

4 /
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lasie Reasons,

The basic reasons for adoptingfiscal and economic measures are:

1. Te discourage smoking in general and smoking of more harmful brands

in particular.

2. To decredse production 0-tobacco and to provide incentives for

production of less harmful crops.

3. To discourage smoking by young people.

4. To finance smoking,education. socking cesiation activities, and

research on smoking.

Raising Taxes and Prices

,e1

. Three types of taxing pcaicies are described in Guidelines for Smoking

Sintrol--a general tax increase, differential taxes favoring low.tar and nico-

tine cigarettes, and inclusion in the tax structure of a levy to finance sock-

ing,education, smoking cessation activities, and research.159

. General Tax Increase. Raising taxes or prices seam to.deCrease

consweition of tobacco.159 'According to the Royal College of Physicians of.

London, °then the price goes up,,the consumption goes ilown.151, Experience in.

the United Ktngaom shous that five tax increases introduced from 1174 to 197$
.

mare assalated percent-reduction-in-cigarette sales and hastening

the move awey from high tar cigarettes.162 in lelgium, the Federal Republic

of Germany, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, India, and Italy, price increases

reduced sales to some extent.159 Granted that total per capita spending is

more inElum-ttial than prices on per capita.cigarette consulgtion, as one study

ef 47 countries shows,154 nevertheless higher taxes and consequently higher

prtces appear to restrain consumpt ion.155 There is, however. some evidence
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ledicatine that * price increase has 014 temp:Nary inftuence on Sales and

very little influence on consumption; this minisal influence seems to affet

Mill, consumption levels rather than the prevalfence of smoking.166 Despite

thissvidence, the long-term effects of price increases introduced as part of

a
comprehensive crogram of smoking control are not knows, and therefor* this

strategy should be tried as part of an overall program.
167

Differential Taxes. A differential tax s)stem favoring low tar, nicotine,

and carbon monoxide brands is another approach to use of taxes to encourage

less baneful cigarette smoking.
A Canadian analyst suggests that raising

taxes on tobacco products with high tar and nicotine contents could be ac-

complished by one or a combination of the following methods: incrpasing

customs duties on
iSported products, increasing the licensing fee for tobacco

dealers, increasing the excise tax and excise duty paid by manufacturers', in-

creasing the corporation tax by making pr000tion costs qpn-deduCtible, and

increasing the sales tax at the federal and provincial levels.168 As

Guidelines for Smoking Control recoeSends, high-tar cigirettes should become

more expensive, rather than low tar cigarettes' becoming cheaper.1.69

Mew York City has enacted an:ordinance
imp:::sing Wigher taxes on high ter

and nicotine brands.17° The Royal College of Ph)sicianSof London favors

.6introduction of differential taxation
of tobacco products related to the

latest information on health
r1sks."71 The United Kingdom introduced a tax

differential in favor of pile tobacco
because pipe smoking alone is less hers-

irul.than an equivalent amount of cigarette smoking.
The Royal College, how-

.ever; expressed concern lest
heavy cigarette smokers switch to pipes and, alth

continded inhaling of the pipe, increase their risk- The British tax law has

nowbeen changed to confers to the December 18, 1978 guidelines of the

European Economic Council.

3 u 8 .
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Objections Pay be offered to tax increases. One is the adverse impact on

low-imam smokers, possibly a blessing in disguise. Another is that in-

creased taxes may haye only a temporary influence on iales, affecting indi-

vidual daily commotion but not the prevalence of meoking'in a society, as'

mentioned. Nevertheless, despite these objections, more experience is needed

with this strategy. A representative of'the National Board of Health of'

Finland in describing the strong smoking control legislation in Finland stated'

candidly:

tine element in a truly health-Oriented smoking control policy is
missing--namely price policy. There is growing evidence on the importance
of price policy es a determinant of cigarette commption, especially
among young people; and my personal guess is that the time will be ripe
for new legislation on price policy in a few years. Meanwhile price poli-
cy measures that can be carried out yoder the current legislation will be
used so far as politically possible."'

Finland had proposed two measures- -obligatory price checks on cigarettes-twice

a year and differential taxation based on harmful substances. Both measures

received broad approval, but action was postponed because overall revision of

excise taxes was under consideration.by a national commission.

Levy for Antismoking Activities. As ientioned earlier in connection with,

mandating health education,,Iceland requires that the state tobacco monopoly

spend two percent of grbss tobacco sales on information 'on television, radio,

in newspapers, cinemas, and other places warning against the hazards of smok-
,

ing. In Finland 0.5 percent of tobacco tax4revenue must be allocated in the

national budget for health aducation, research, and evaluation in smoking conr

trol. In Venezuela, part of the tobacco tax is used by the National Tobacco

Fund for development in the rural tobacco growing regions.173 In the United

States. the Health Secretary of the State of Pennsylvania advocates a penny a

peck,increase in the state cigarette tax to finance a cancer registry and the

beginning of cancer screening, detection, and.prevention..Progreas.174

3p 9
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jnevrance Incentives and DisincefttiVes

Another form of economic measure affecting smoking is the wooing practice

by the insurance industry in the United States of extending discounts on life

insurance Oremiuss to nonsmokers. This innovation began in 1964, when the

State Mutual Life Assurance Company of America offered a new life insurance

policy exclusively to persons aho, at the time of application, hod not smoked

cigarettes for a year. In 1976, the company extended nonsmoker discounts on

premiums to all its individual non-pension life insurance policy holders mho

were nonsmokers. After 14 years' experience, anal)sis of mortality differ-

thces between insured se,kers and nonsmokers revealed the tragic fact that the

cenpany's smoker policy holders were experiencing mortality almost two and .

half timms that of their nonsmoker counterparts.175 Since 1964, 54 companies

have begun to offer premiums on life insurance policies to nonsmokers at lcmer

than standardrates.175 These companies, also, have all found the mortali6

rate among their nonsmokers much lowr than that of iheir smoker,policy -

holders. In fact, the insurance companies have been so struck by the magni-

tude of differences in mortality rates between smokers and nonsmokers that the

industry has developed an inter-compeny study of thfs'questfon.

While this experience is still considered limited, insurance executives

believe that the mortality differences
between smokers and nonsiokers must be

taken into account for individual insurance
underwriting and pricing our-

.

-poses. A principle in establishing underwriting
classifications is that the

standard group should be the largest group, and those who are either preferred

or sub-standard should be in the minor.ity. According to the 1979 Report of

the U.S. Surgeon General, nonveokers are now
the .larger group, ccaprising 67

percent of the'U.S. population, and new
life insurance business reflects this



301

dominance of nonsmokers.177 Therefore, nonsmokers cin properly be considered

as the population that defines "standard' risks, and.sookers should be defined

as sub-standard. The expeiience of State Mutual Life Assurance Company with

premium discounts and with offering high dividends to nonsmokers has shown

that the net cost for nonsmoker life Insurance policy holders can be, on a 20-

rar. interest-adjusted basis, 30 percent lower on the average than the cost

for corresponding smokers.

The practice of giving insurance incentives based on nonsmoking, if widely

adopted, may,provide additional economic leverage in the struggle to ccabat

the smoking epide4ic. Insurance incentives and disincentives will enlarge the

role of the insurance industry from that of actuarial and financial under-
)

writer to ,that of active participant in the effort to change people's behavior

to more healthful life styles.

Abolishing Subsidies for Tobacco .

An important issue facing national governments and international agencies

is the quistiOn of agricultural subsidies for tobacco production. The contra-

diction between providing incentives for tobacco production and the public

health objective of smoking cessation is clear. Yet, tobacco cultivation is

.an important source oflemployment,.cish income, and export earnings. As the

Focd and Agriculture Organizatift has pointed out, it is among the field crops

with the highest return per unit of area, but has very hi h lab r and capital

input requirements which make it difficult to switch to ot er crops.178.
,

,#

"consumers in various comtries have begun to call for a reduction, and

ultimately aboittion, of subsidies !pr tobacco. -The.first German nonsmokers'

cOngress in 1974 recommended a progressive cut-back in subsidies for tobacco

.growers and use of the fund generated for a large-scale cepaign against
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smoking in EUropean sehools.' In 11$0, this recremendatiortwes renewed. and an'

appeal wineht'ta the Commission Of the European Communities in grussels for

'e iien percent reduction in subsidies for tobacco groutrs. In the United

Statesrthe National-ComTission on Smoking and Health, a body of distinguished

citizens appoint'd to propose national.policy on this subject, recommended

that subsidy of tobacco in the present tobacco price support system in the

United States be phased out over a ten-year period.279 Payments should be*

mode to tamers for not growing tobacco. Assistance should be provided to

fanners to crow less harmful kinits Of tobacco. Research on non-harmful uses

of tobacco,should be expanded. In dune, 19$1 the American Helical Associa-

tion, reversing a IS-year policy, pessed a resolution recommending the end of

federal subsidies to the tobacco industry. The resolution was intjgepy a

third-year medical student.28°

Without minimizing the complexities.end problems of achieving a chaiige in

national and international economic policx on tobacco production, we may

netertheless heed these well-considered
recommendations of concerned consumer

groups. loth the WHO Expert Committee on tWoking and, Health and the World

, Wealth Assembly have urgeS cooperation of international agencies to Achieve

crop aiversification and development of substitute crOps. Imaginative provi-

sion of economic incentives for
produCtion of alternative crops mey be a wcy

i to begin to close the gap between economic policies and public health

objectives.
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Mr WiirrriticER In your opinion, and I will ask the same ques-
tion of Dr Koop, in your opinion what would be the most effective,
and I hate to limit this to the single best method, but in your opin-
ion what would be the best method in which to recommend to the
legislature that we could provide a disincentive to increased tobac-
co usage? '

Dr BRANDT I think that you have to split that up into long-term
versus short-term. I think the long-term solution is going to be for
us to understand why it is that people smoke, and to understand
what can be done to assist people in stopping smoking. That, I
think, is our best solution. I do think it has shown remarkable suc-
cess thus far from a wholv variety of ways that we must begin to
work on.

In the short,terni, I think our best approach is to continue to
alert everybody constantly to the Nkinds of hazards they are run-
ning, and the costs to our basic economy, particularly to our health
care expenditures, of cigarette smoking.

Let me turn to Dr. Koop.
Dr KOOP. I would agree with what Dr. 'Branat has said, essen-

tially. The words that you used, that we could legislate, I think
limit what one's answer might be. Therefore, I would go along with
Dr Brandt that what we are doing, intensified, is the best way.

I think that the primary thing I would like to see accomplished if
we could is to stop ydung people from starting to smoke, and the
way to do that is to study the meanings or motivation, how they
can avoid peer pressure and that sort of thing. But how that can be
legislated, I do not know.

Mr. WinTrAxEn. You_ mentioned in your testimony, Dr. Brandt,
and I have forgotten which agency you related it to, but there were
behavioral studies going into the origin of people beginning to
smoke Do you have any projected date or knowledge of when..that
study will be available?

Dr. BnArirrr. We have two sets going on, one in the National In-
stitute of Drug Abuse, and I will ask Dr. Pollin to address that
question.

Dr POLLIN. We have an ongoing series of studies, Mr. Whittaker:.
It is not any one single study. VVe have found, along with other
agencies studying this problem, that with regard to young people,
for example, techniques which point out to them that initiation of
smoking actually limits their freedom of choice, rather than, as
they often conceptualize it before they get started, thinking of this
as a means of asserting independence, pointing out the limitation
on subsequent freedom of choice, pointing out that they are sub-
jected to peer pressure and helping them to resist peer pressure
has been shown in a number of c iEreftilly controlled studies to be
quite effective; and further, investigations of how to strengthen and
apply this knowledge are currently under way, both with regard to
'cigarettes and other drugs.

Mr. WHITrAKERI Thank you. Thank you,Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank y6u, Mr. Whittaker.
It has been suggested that apiajor benefit qf cigarette advertis-

ing is the promotion of low tail and nicotine brands. The implica-
tion is that these cigarettes are somewhat safer.

Are the so-called light cigarettes safe?,
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Dr. BRANDT. That question deserves two responses. There is no
question that if a person switches from a nonlight cigarette to a
light cigarette withoechanging their smoking habits, that the risk
will be reduced. _However, unfortunately the preliminary evidence
is that many peePle who switch -to the light cigarette first increase
their consumption of cigarettes and second, inhale more deeply and
therefore, expose themselves to the same dose of tobacco smoke
and the carcinogens it contains.

So the answer. to your question is yes, they are safer if the
person.continues to smoke in the same fashion.

Mr. AV AXMAN. Is it also the case that even if they are safer, you
would not consider them safe?

Dr. BRANDT. No, sir. I think all of the evidence indicates that the
only way .you can reduce your relative risk from lung cancer, heart
disease and other diseases associated with smoking is to quit smok-
ing entirely.

Mr. WAXMAN. H.R. 5653 requires the discrOsute of ingredients
used in the manufacture of cigarettes. Does the department cur-
rently have a comprehensive listing of ingredients manufacturers
use in the production of cigarettes?

Dr. BRANDT. We do not now have a comprehensive listing of
those ingredients. We are, however, in negotiation with representa-
tives of the tobacco industry for their voluntary disclosure of those
to us.

Mr. WAXMAN. How long have those negotiations been going on?
Dr. BRANDT. They have been going on for several months.
Mr. WAXMAN. So as of this point, the cigarette industry tas not

disclosed the ingredients it uses in cigarettes to the department.
Dr. BRANDT. We have not yet received .that. However, I am con-

vinced that the tobacco industry )ias negotiated with us in good
faith and is making all attempts to be responsive to our requests.

Mr. WAXMAN. Would you agree that in the case of a product as
dangerous as cigarettes, ingredient disclosure would be appropri-
ate?

Dr. BRANDT. I think that the question really is whether or not
the ingredients are harmful. I think if the additives to cigatettes
are safe, then the issue of whether or not they are revealed to the
public is one of advertising and marketing considerations. I think
on the other hand, if there are additives in cigarettes -that are
harmful, .then there is no question in my mind but that they
should be revealed.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you support tile provision in H.R. 1957 requir-
ing listing of the carbon monoxide conit ofcigarettes?

Dr. BRANI)T. Yes; we do. I might say I could, Mr. Chairman, on
March 31, we will ;elease the advance report from the health and
nutrition examination survey, which shows the blood levels of
carbon monoxide in smokers to be strikingly higher than that in
nonsmokers, irrespective of location of sampling or other variables.
It is clear that increased levels of carbon monoxide put you at

,greaterxisk for heart disease and for certain other illnesses.
It. may be that this finding will lead us to other ways to under-,

stand the mechanism by which this occurs, but it is clear that
there is a strikingly higher, level of carbon monoxide in smokers
than in nonsmokers. -

** -
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Mr WAXMAN The NIDA Division of Research sponsored a meet-
ing in 1919 to evaluate whether or not cigarette smoking was an
addiction What was the conclusion of the task force, and do you
know of any recent evidence contradicting the task force conclu-
sions?

Dr. PcmuN. That task force concluded that cigarette smOking
met all of the requirements to be considered as an addictive proc-
ess, and to my knowledge, there has been no subsequent evidence
which contradicts that finding.'

Mr. WAxmAN. And would you describe for us the recent policy
recommendation of the National Advisory Council on Drug Abuse
regarding cigarettes?

Dr. POLLIN. Yes. Tht Advisory Council recommended that the
wording on the label be changed so that it include the words "Ciga-
rette smoking is addictive and dangerous to your health."

Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Brandt, the Office of Smoking and Health has
been without a permanent director for a considerable period of
time. When might we expect announcement of a new director?

Dr EiRANDT. I hope that we will be able to announce the new di-
rector in the next few months. I must admit to you that the lack of
having a permanent director at this time is my responsibility.
Quite frankly, we have been trying to get this report out, and that
has been the whole problem. We are beginning our search in some
depth at the present time.

Mr. WAXMAN. What is the current and proposed 1983 budget for
the Office on Smoking and Health?

Dr. BRANDT. The current continuing resolution level for the
Office of Smoking and Health is $1.9 million. Our 1983 request is
for $2.1 million.

Mr. WAXMAN. I would like to ask that an article from the No-
vember 1981 issue of "Current Sweden," suggesting that the Gov-
ernment's smoking prevention activities have in fact reduced the
percentive of adults and children who smoke, be made part of the
record. I would like to share that with my colleagues.

[Pause.]
Mr. WAXMAN. If there is no objection, we will make it a part of

the record and leave the record open if anyone ghould wish to
insert any commbnts with regardlo that study.

Hearing no objection, that will be the order.
[The following information was received for the record:1

3 1 a
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The Swedish government began ita anti-smokIng work in 3963, when funds were
appropriated for the first time to provide information on the harmful effects
of tobacco. A more ambitious Iong-term program involving many different types
of activities was presented in a 1973 report from a special research group on
tobacco within the National Board of Health and Welfare (Socialetyrelaen).
Thaa report, which became internationally known as "Sweden's 25-year program
against smoking," entailed a major intensification of anformatIonal work on
the harmful effects of tobacco. It also resulted in legislation requiring
the placement of warnang texts and declarations of contents on tobacco pack-
ages. Somewhat later, another law was passed which imposed restrictions on
tobacco advertisang.

.
..

.

At the national level, information on tobacco has primarily been the re-
sponsibality of two bodies: the National,Board.of Healfh and Welfare and
the National Smoking and Health Association (Nationalfdreningen fbr upp-
lysning om tobakena skadeverkningar, NTS). NTS is backed up by more than,
20 non-profit organizations. Anti-tobaccO campaigns are also carr ed out
by other.government agencies, such as the National Board of Educa ion
(Skolbverstyrelsen). At the regional level, they are handled b e county
councilsigag are part of their preventive health care efforts. 1eiprtant *
contributions to anformatIonal work are alsq made by certain private Or-
ganazataons, most notably the Swedish Cancer Society and the grass-roOts

'-

non-smokere' association known as VISIR (Vi som inte rdker = We who donot
smoke).

--.--:

"A smokeless child od" is the motto for informatio6l work aimed at pre-
venting children a1 young people from starting fo smoke. --

From the time they first visit their l4cal maternity care center, future
parents are,exposed to information on ihe harmful effects of smoking in,
connection with pregnancy and childbirth. This information is offered to-
gether with programs designed to help people stop smoking. Each county
Council organizes its own anti-smoking activities, but in recent years c
the National Board of Health add Welfare has arranged regional advanced
training conferences to supportand intensify these efforts.

,
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Aside from the "parental training" on tobacco-related issues provided in

this way to parents of small children, attempts are made to present tobacco-

related issues to etaff members within the public child care system, i.e.

the pre-school.

Otherwisl, campaigns targeted toward children and young people take place

mainly within the school syitem. Instruction in Swedish schools is governed
primarily by the ccrtents of the officiarcurricula issued by the Cabinet

and Parliament. As early as the 19608, the school curriculum then in force

included directions on how to teich abbut alcohol, narcotics, and tobacco.

At present, a new official curriculum is going into effect. In this context,

a review was undertaken not only of instruction regarding tobacco, but of

the entire'subject area in which tobacco is included -- health education.

In 1981 the National Board of education approved a special program on

"Health Education in the Schools." This program states that the objective

Of school health education is to persuade growing children and teenagers

toradopt habits which promote good health. To accomplish this, a wide range

Of activities is neede4 in the schools. In the long term, these activipies

should increase pupils' awareness of health matters. As part of this, the

distpt connections between health issues and social and environmental con-

ditfons should be made clear.

Health education is an integral part of initruction in the schools. It

should take due account of the pupils' situation, capabilities, and back-

ground. It can be a part of all subjects. All school staff meMbers should

collaborate in hearth education. In teaching this subject, it is also vi-

tal to cooperate with other institutions outside the school system. Above

all, good collaboration with the pupils' !Imes is a prerequisite for the

success of health education work in the schools.

The new program will lead to a redoubling of efforts at both national and

local levels to promote better health via the school system. For example,

the National Board of Education will devote increased energy to providing

teachers with advanced training on health matters, distributing discussio-

nal and informational materials to the schools, and persuading educational

publishers to improve coverage of health issues in their textbooks. At the

'local level, each school is now being asked to establish its own oper-

ational plan, including a local action program for health education.

The fact that a program for health education was recently approved does

not, of course, mean that such activities were previously absent from the

schools. On the contrary, ever since the beginning of government-sponsored

tobacco information, for instance, it-has been an important continuous

task for NTS and other organizations to produce teaching and informational

materials for use in the schools. A current example of this is the teachers'

manual that NTS pmblished in 1980. Called "Teaching About Tobacco" (Att

undervisa om tobak), it contains practical tips on ways of including tobacco-

related issues in school instruction in a varietY of'different subjects.

Day-to-day instruction and the work of regular teachers are fundamental

elements in the anti-smoking work of the Swedish school system. This does

not, of course, exclude also arranging extra campaigns and special-subject

days with an anti-smoking theme. Sometimes outside experts, for instance

advisers from NTS, lecture in the schools as a supplement to the work of -

regular teachers. ,
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Tobacco-related information to young people is also provided outside the-,
schools, for example in various youth clubs.. VISIR has a separate youth
league, currently with about 10,000 members in.school clubs throughout
the country. During the past three years a special campaign has also been
carried out in the mess media. Its aim has baen to "advertise non-smoking."
In other words, it has refrained entirely from mentioning the harmful ef-
fects of smoking and has instead simply presented "the non-smoking enema:
'tive" as something new, youthful, and modern. A separate organizatibn has
been formed for this campaign. Known as the Foundation for a Non-Smoking
Generation, it is sponsored by the Swedish Cancer Society, NTS, VISIR,
national and regional government agencies, insurance companies and other
enterprises, etc. Using outdoor posters, 'advertising films in movie houses,
campaign newspapers, postcards, radio and TV spots, decals, campaign sweat-
shirts, debates and school contests, endorsements by youth celebrities,
rock concerts, and other modern marketing techniques, the foundation has
made it fashionable not to smoke.

Work among adults

Informational activities are also the most important element of campaigns
against the tobacco habit among adults. But only a small proportion of this
information is disseminated via direct mass communications from national
organizations to the public at large.

General information on the harmful effects of tobacco is provided to smok-
ers via warning texts on tobacco packages and in tobacco advertisements.
Both the National Board of Health and Welfare and NTS, as well as other
organizstibns, also produce general inforMational material in the form of
brochures, posters, decals, books, films, etc., which are av.ailable to anY-
one. Sometimes such materials have been distributed free in mass editions.
A few years ago, for example, the National Board of Health and,Welfare
published a small brochure entitled "Advice to Smokers" (Rad till rokare)
which was distributed free of charge via all pharmacies and post offices
in Sweden.

Of cotirse, television, daily newspapers, and other media sometimes conduct
information campaigns about smoking on their own initiative. In the fall
of 1980, for example, Sweden's largest morning newspaper, Dagens Nyheter,
attracted a lot of attention with a series of articles about the medical
effects of smoking, with the theme "Smoke or Live." It was illustrated y

with pictures by the famed Swedish medical photographer Lennart Nilsson.
Inforiotion to the public also aseumes other forms, such as when local
VISIR clubs sponsor lectures, exhibitions at libraries, and the like.

But general information is not sufficient and crucial in actually per-
suading people to stop smoking. For this reason, the organizations have
chosen to allot more funds to building up programs of local information.
The ictea is that all smokers in a given vicinity should be able to ob- .

tain information on smoking as well as help in quitting the habit -- for
instance via personal contacts with the staff of their local health care
center or with people at their own workplaces. An important task is thus
to recruit and train the "key people" who can carry out such work on a
local basis. For a number of years, the National Board of Health and Wel-
fare as well as many county councils have trained "tobacco information

officers." These are people who L.- by virtue of their position as teachers
or as officials of,trade unions, study associations, or other "popular
movements" -- can organize informational activities and simple quit-smoking

323
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sessions, for instence in study circle form, se part of their daily work.

Right now NTS is preparing 0 training program for doctors and nurses in
occupational health centers and for safety delegates so that they can
provide inforeation at workplaces and help people whO went to quit smok-
ing. For a number of years, the Swedish Cancer Society.has worked on the
issue of smoking within the health care delivery system, among other
things so that all doctors and other health care personnel will include
tobacco information and help people quit the habit as pert of their ordi-

nary contacts with patients.

The "kiy person" system is based on the concepk,that,many amokers want
to quit and can dO so on their own, frovided that they receive simple
information on how to do so and can also obtain personal support linden-
couragement from their immediate,environment during the initial, diffi-
cult period. Simple everyday efforts can yield large results, if they
reach many people. .

tome smokers may have such great difficulty-in quitting that this "simple"
program is not sufficient. To deal with the neede of "tough cases," special
quit-mmoking clinics have been established by a number of county councils.
There ere also similar privaiely run clinics. The clinics use several dif-
ferent Methods, including medications, conversational therapy, hypnosis,

tc.

Legislation

Sweden has aIso passed certain legislation dealing with tobacco. Its pur-
pose is to provide information and to influence the attitudes and "social
climate" that surround smokirig.

A law on labeling of tobacco products ppecifies that all tobacco packages
must carry a warning text. Cigarette packages are required to show one of
16 messages approved by the National Board of Health and Welfare. The most
recent series of texts was approved in the spring of 1981 and will go into
use no later than the beginning of 1982.

Cigarette packages also display a declaration of contents. It states the
quantities of carbon monoxide, tar, and nicotine in the smoke from a ciga-
rette of the brand in question. In order that the consumer may judge whether
a particular level is above or below average, the declaration also includes'

the average for all brands sold in Sweden.

For practical reasons, other tobacco products besides cigarettes are not
required to carry a declaration of contents including the above-mentioned
quantities. On the other hand, all tobacco packages must be furnished with

a warning text.

A law concerning restrictions on tobacco advertising stipulates that "par-
ticular moderation" should be observed in markpti bacco products. This

basic rule implies, among other, things, that y rtj rsmsy not use methods

which are "obtrusive or aggressive or which u e the se of tobacco:"

In practice this means that numerous types of adv Iisi may not be used

for tobacco. The types that are completely banned are direct advertising

(e.g. in mailboxes), organized distribUtion of free samples, prize contests,
outdoor advertising, and the like. (Radio and TV coMmercisls do not exist
in Sweden). Tobacco ads are still alrowed in newspapers and magazines, but
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art regulated by a number of rules. Such ads may not appear in weekly
asgezines snd the like which are primarily intended for people under
20. Nor may tobacco sdiortisements appear on the sports pages
of newspapers, or in sports magazines. Full-page tobacco ads ere not per-
mitted.

In Sweden, one no longer sees tobacco advertiaements of the glamourizing
type using models, "status oWects. etc. The Isw also stipulates that the
warning texts required on tobacco packages must also appear in tobacco
ads.

Smoking on the decline

Sweden has.never been a hesvy-smoang country. The increase in smoking
which did occur following World War II ended around 1970: Since then,
-the percentage of people who are habitual smokers has declined among
men and has not increased among women. In the pest,copple of years, a
decline has also been noted,among women:

Since 1976, NTS has conducted annual, nationally representative surveys
of smoking habits. The results show a steadily declining percentage of
adults aged 18-70 who are smokers (see Table 1).,

Table 1. Smoking habits among adults etch year, 1976-1980, isjpercent

MWMWMWM1976 1977 1978 1979 1980

M W

Smoke daily 43 34 39 31 38 ., 34 37 3I 31 26

Smoke occasionally 8 7 9 8 11 ' 10 9 7 10 7

Don't smoke 49 59 52 60 51 56 53 61 59 66

No reply 0 0 0 '0 1 0 0 0 0 0

The number of daily smokers among men has fallen continuously during these
five years, from 43% in 1976 to 31% in 1980r. This,decline has gone on since
the early 1970s, when the proportion of men who smoked daily was around 50%.
As'for women, the number of daily smokers has remained stationary at roughly *

35% since.the early 19708. Duringothe past two years, however, there has
been a steady drop to the current figure of 26%.

The percentage of men who smoke daily is, on the whole, larger than the per-
centage of women who do so. This is primarily because pen, but not women,
include pure pipe and cigar smokers. The percentage of men and women who
smoke cigarettes is, however, the same: 26%. Pure pipe and cigar smoking in-
crease with age. As a consequence, a larger percentage orolder men than
younger menamoke, whill among women the smoking habit is the most wide-
spfead in younger and ebecially middle-aged groupi (Cf. Table 2). One might
ale* note that in young age categories, smoking is more common among women
then among men, whereas the opposite is true of older age categories. There
are also substantial differences between groups with different educational
levels. For both men and women, smoking is considerably leas.common among
the highly educaied than among others.
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Table 2. Smoking habit., 1980, by age and sex, in percent

0 Age 18-24 25-34 35-54 55-70' Allmwmwmw-mwmw
Smoke daily 25 27 31 32 31 30 33 16 31 26

Smoke occasionally 16 13 13 10 10,'-5 5 4. 110, 7

Don't smoke 59 60 55 57 58 64 , 63 BO 59 66

'No reply 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

The smoking habits of the youngest age categoriee have been surveyed sin;ri\

1971 in large-scale studies conducted annually by the National Board of
Education. These studies have shown the following trend (See Table'3). It
should be observed that those who are classified here as "smokers" are
those who answered Yes to the question "Do you smoke?" In other words,
this category includes both daily and occasional smokers.

Table 3. Smokers in the nine-year compulsory school,,percent

13-year-oids 16-year-olds
a

Boys Girls Boys Girls
Year

1971 14 16 41 47

1974 10 12 31 45

1977 s 9 11 25 40
,

1979 6 8 21 34

1980 5 6 21 33

The decline in smoking has also been reflected in the sales figures for
tobacco products during recent years. But although cigarette sales, for

instance, are now clearly lower in terms of weight, the number of ciga-
rettes sold is virtually unchanged. One explanat on for this may be

that the dwindling number of smokers,norilthelessamoke more cigarettes
than previously. This should be seen against the backdrop of a strong
shift during the 1970s to small, less potent cigarettes. Those who still
smoke appear to have become more "careful" in their choice of what to

smoke.

New plans for the future

A parliamentary commission of inquirl presented a final report in 1981

entitled "The Declining Use of Tobacco -- final Report of the Commission

on Tobacco." Its recommendations imply an endorseMent-and en augmentation

of tht thrust of anti-tobacco work to date. Above all, informational work
should be given greater fundirig. But the commission also recommends some

additional legislation.'

'Broader informiation

Most of the commission's recommendations for ction thus concern infor-

mational.activities..Existing information must_be broadened.in,a number

,
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of wp5,s, the commiasion believes. It is not enough to proviRe informatinn
on the harmful effects of tobacco, but instead other kinds of information
are needed too. For example, information on different methods of quitting
smoking, how to deal with various withdrawal symptoms, other ways of eatis-
fying the needs previously met by smoking, etc. In the same way, Informa-
tion to young people must be broadened so that it helps them avoid starting
to smoke.

1
In addition, there is' a need for informatienal activities dealing with the
damage that smoking ma)$ cause to yOung people, and making it clear by what
mechanisms people Ire persuaded to begin smoking. In gradea 4-6 of the com-
pulsory school (ages 10-12), most pupils are firmly convinced that they do
not want t9 start smoking, but only a few years later, many of tbem have
nonetheless done so. 'They have not been prepared for the way it happens.
They cannot see through habit-forming mechanisms, and they have received
tc little training in how to Choose their own attitudes and values and

up for them when subjected to peer pressures.

uS the school system, health education should be allotted an even stronger
position than now. According to the commission, all teachera ought to re-x,
ceive basic training in health education, either as part of their regular
undergraduate studies or through on-the-job courses. In addition, a more
extensive supplementary training program in health education ahould be per-
manently established. It is important that there be positions for health
educatora both within the school system did the county boards of education.

School premises are among the public places (see below) included in the
commission's proposat for a law on restricting smoking. But this is not
sufficient. The school's are "the environmsnt where teenagers in acute
danger of beginning to smoke spend a very large part of their time." The
school system thus bears a special responsibility. Rules on smokiny vary
from school to school. The commission proposes that the rules gradually
be changed, on the basis of a nationwide recommendation on "tobacco-free

' schools."

The National Board of Education should receive greater funding for the pur-
pose of providing grants to encourage youth organizations to undertake
special.anti-tobacco programs. These may assume tlie form of attitude-chahg-
ing campaigns such as "A Non-Smoking Generation," or other less spectacular
efforts as part of the regular activities of these organizations.

4- Long-term, patient informational work and treatment at the grass-roots
level will yield good results, the commission believes. Smoking is, of
course, already on the decline. If the commission's aims are fulfilled,
fewer than 15% of Swedish adults.will be using tobacco in 20 years, The'
"finai objective" of the commission is that "use of tobacco be reduced to
2 level which is as close to total abolition as is practically possible./'

A society that encourages reduced tobacco use

The commisaion has a clearly expressed desire to avoid restrictive measures
firmuch as posaible. But some restrictions are nonetheless necessary, it
believes. One of the commiasion's demands is that advertising by the state-
owned Svenaka Tobaks AB and by all other tobacco companies be subjected to
rules as strict 2S those already applicable,to alcohol adveikising in Sweden.
In other words, a total ban on tObacco ads.
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keepareto law should be pissed whiOh places,limitationa on smoking in:
public premises. (as in Finland). According to the commiesion, this is
amcag the mosturgently needed measures. The conaission maintains that

the purpose of such a las.is that "do one shouldbe subjected, against,
his or her will, to unpleasantness or health hazards due to tobacco
smoke in public premises.",

Included among public premises are, of course, such rooms as theater and
movie house lobbies, post offices, railroad stations, etc., but also
others like hoapital waiting roome and lounges, day care centers, schools,
and natiohal and local government buildings generally.

Thrix.41 this recommendation, the coMmission would like to achieve Mutual
consideration between smokers and non-smokers. The prOposal thus leaves
open the option of establishing separate smoking rooms.

In principle, the aim of the proposed Iaw applies equally td all rooms

-where groups of people congregate Itien if they are not public places.

As a supplement to the law, the cOmmission thus suggests that the National
Board of Health and Welfare and the Naticnal Board of Occupational Safety
and Health issue joint national recommendations on smoktng at Workplaces.

Publichealth more important than tax revenues

The commission also discusses the dual role of the public aector in
disseminating'information against the use of tobacco, while earning rev.:

.our attitude toward the tobacco tax. It ehTild not be increased only wh
enues from the tobacco tax. In the fature, it will be necessary to

the national government neede more revenues. In the commission's view, -

the tax should be used as an inttrument,of public health policy. Tile prices,
Of tobacco products should rise at the same rate as all'other prices, and
this should be accomplIshed through annual adjustmentstoF the tobacco tax.
The relative price Of cigarettes in 1976 should bereptOred as soon as
possible. ;This means that the commission advocates an immediate, rather
dramatic price hike. For example, a package of ordinary cigarettes which
cost 4.95 kronor* in 1970 would cost 13.50 kronor in 1980, compared with
the current price of the same &tem in a tobacco shop -- 10.60".kronor. dut
-the commission does not regard it as a "drastic increase" to restore the
1970 price level in real terms. The proposed price hike would have'been
even greater.if the comnission had chosen to recommend that the cost ot

cigarettes be raised by the same percentage as the increase in food prices

during the 1970s.

More imporiant than tgis iniiial tax hike, however, is the principle It-

self: the tobacco tax should be used to assure that tobaccos products never
become cheaper in relation to Other goods due to inflati

4 This "health-motivated" use of the tobacCo tax should be continued, even

though in the long term it means that government revenues from the tax,

will decline because more and more people will quit smoking. In this way,

ythe commietion removes the basis for the argument that the government is
guilty Oral"double standard." But the commission points out that declin-

ing revenues from the-tdiaqco tax are not a real loss to society. A re-

duction in'the use of tobacco not only benefits public health, but also

the national economy.

0
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The tax should also be used to promote a shift away from excessively

strong cigarettes. Strong cigarettes should be subjected to even larger
tax hikes then weak ones. The authorities should be given power to han
the very.strongestcigarettes, the commission states.

Reduced tobacco use 4 a "must"

The commission's proposals for action have been sent out to various gov-
ernment agencies, private organizations, companies, etc. for their written
comments, which are due by November 1, 1981. Only after that may the Cabi-
net decide whether to present a Bill to Parliament on the subject. This
will perhaps occur no earlier than the fall 1982 session.

In dny event, the recommendations of the commission will lead to Inten-
sified work to combat the use of tobacco, 'even if the Cabinet should
choose not to go along with all the details.

The commission is aware that its recommended program of action will entail
increased pressure on tobacco users. But the panel believes-that there are
no alternatives. The harmful effects of tobacco are alarmingly great. Knowl-

. edge of this is increasing all the time. This fadi alone constitutes a
source of heavy pressure on smokers. It is worse to leave them to their
fete than for the public sector to implement an aggressive program of ac-
tion against the use of tbacco.

Mr. WitxmAN. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Dr. Brandt, in response to a question of my col-

league, Mr. -Whittaker, you indicad that statistics showed the
drop iii consumption. Do you have those statistics witfi you?

Dr. BRAM/. No, sir, I do not.
Mr. BuLEY. Will you submit them to us, because that is at vari-

ance with testimony we have heard before.
, [The following information was received for thp recordj
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SMOKING PREVALENCE

IN

SELECTED COUNTRIES WITH SMOKING CONTROL ACTIVITIES

In many Western and developed Countries the prevalence of cigarette smoking
has declined over the past hi to 20 years as a direct result of information and
educaticn programs aimed at discouraging smoking among various segments of
theadult and adolescent populations.

In the United States, Canada and Great Britain these programs have been active
since the early 19603 when the first scientific reports concerning the effect
of cigarette srooking and tobacco use on health first beCame known. There have
been considerable differences in the style and intensity of these programs by
the various countries. Most have included some form of regulatory control in
additica to educational and informational programs. Warning labels have been
required on cigarette packages as well as in advertising and many countries restrict
advertising in certain media. In adcfition most developed countries have active
programs of Information and education by government agencies as well as by
voluntary health and community organizations. Mote recently other countries,
most notably Sweden, have embarked on.very aggressive-programs to eliminate
smokmg among adolescents and have vovied to raise a generation of nonsmokers
by the year 2000.

Rarely have these programs been instituted or carried out in isolation. In other
words legislation requiring warning labels or other regulatory measures have
occurred concurrent with, or in conjunction with, educational programs at the
national, State and local level or with other actions taken by governments such
as release of official reports or specific information programs designed to discourage\,
smoking. These concurrent actions make evaluations very difficult when attempting
to ascertain what effect, if any, an individual action by a government or other
legislative body has had on consumption of tobacco.

It is clear however, that concerted, systematic actions by various governmental
agencies and health programs have had an Impact on smoking behavior in those
countries where such measures have been implemented. For some segments/of
the population, such as adult females and adolescent girls, these declines have
lagged several years behind their male counterparts. However, even these segments
of the population are notv showing substantial declines in prevalence.

Surveys have repeatedly observed that when attention is paid to the smoking
and health problem, the public responds. When th&attention is minimized,
particularly at the national level, the public is less inclined to change their
behavior and in some cases previous gains in the decline in smoking.prevalence
could be reverseil.

Presented below are the results of smoking prevalence surveys among five countries
which have some form df active smoking control program at the national level.
Data are presented for varying periods so that a more comprehensive picture
of the changes over time in smoking prevalence will be evident.
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UNITED KINGDOM

Surveys of smoking in the United Kingdom have bee; conducted by a variety
of organizatIcns. The Tobacco Research Council provides data up to 1975, however
more current information on prevalence is provided by the General Household
Surveys which are officially supported and conducted by the U. K. government.

The percentage of smokers has declined among both males and females in the
United Kingdom. In 1960, 61 percent of males and 42 percent of females were
classified-as smokers. By 1971, the percentage had declined to 45 percent males
and 37 percent females. These declines are remarkably similar to those observed
ice many other countries, particularly in Canada and the United States.

1
The table belov/ provides prevalence fee various surveys and time periods for
males and females in the United Kingdom.

Percentage of Smokers in ,the United Kingdom for Males
and Females for Various Years,1 960 through 1978

t
1960* 1965* 1970* 1975

a .
1978

Males 61 .54 55 48 / 45

Femalg- 42 42 44 39

<
37

Tobacco Research Council Survey
** General Household Survey

UNITED STATES ,

The percentage otahe United-States population who smcke cigarettes regularly
is at its lowest portt in many years. In 1980 slightly under one-third of adults
were cigarette smokers. Over 36 percent of adult males smoked (36.7 percent)
and only 28.9 percent of adult females smoked. Corresponding figures for 1970
were 43.5 percent males and 31.1 percent females. These declines are remarkable
when they are compared to figures of smoking prevalence for 1955, the first
year the government officially began collecting national smoking behavior information.

Similar declines have been observed among teenagers in the United States. The
table below gives an overview of long-term trends of smoking behavior for adults
in the United States.

Estimated percentage of regular cigarette smokers among adults,
United States, 1955 through li9a0 4"

1955 1965 1970 1980

Males 52.6 51.1 43.5 36.7

Females 24.5 33.i 31.1 28.9

J'

*
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WEST GERMANY

Overall, smoking among adults In West Geimany has declined between 1%5 and
1980. The percent of all adults who smoked was 46 percent in 1965 and this decreased
to 40 percent in 1910. Declines have been more pronounced among males than
among female cigarette smokers.

In 1965 61 percent of males were regular cigarette smokers compared to 24 pucent
for females. This had decreased to 50 percent among men in 1975 and further
declined to 49 ipercent In 1980. In females, however, an Increase was noted between
1965 and 1975 (24 percent to 29 percent) wIth no cange noted between 1975
and 1980.

The table below presents data for adults for the three time periods..

Percent of Adult Cigarette Smokers Among
Men,and Women in West Germany

for 1965, 1975 and 1980

1969 1975 1980

Males 6 1 543 49
Females 24 29 29

CANADA

The prevalence of smoklng among Canadians closely parallels that In the United
States both In trends over time as well as the percentage of the adult population
who smoke. Canadians, however, tend to have a slightly higher percentage of
smokers than does the United States.

In 1966 slightly over 56 percent of the male population 20 years of age and older
were regular cigarette smokers (56.7 percent). By 1975 this had declined to 45.6
percent and by 1979 had further decreased to 40.4. The decline among females,
however, has not been as dramatic as among males, a trend often noted in other
countries, including the United States. For Jemales 34.0 percent were regular
-cigarette smokers in 1966. This decreased to 32.0 percent in 1975 and 30.7 percent
in 1979.

Similar declines were noted among teenagers in Canada (ages 15 through 19).
Boys tend to have slightly higher percentages of smokers in the teenage group
compared to females, however, this gap is narrowing with girls currently smoking
at approximately the same rate as boys (i.e., 29.5 percent versus 28 percent)

Percent of Regular Cigarette Smokers in the Male and Female
Canadian Population 20 Years of Age and Older

1966 1970 1975 1979

Males 56.7 51.1 45. 6 40.4

- Females 34.0 33.6 32.0 30.7

J..
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SWEDEN

The percent of the adult population in Sweden who are cigarette smokers has declined
over the last five year period, 1976 through 1980. This decline has been observed
for both males as well as females. Males have shown a steady, consistent decline
from 43 percent in 1976 to 3l percent in 1980. Corresponcang figures for females
are 34 and 26 percent. In 1970 the prevalence of daily smoking among smokers was
42 percent and for females 34 percent. The percentage of cigarette-only smokers
among males was 26 percent in 1980, the same cigarette smoking rate as for females.

Adolescent smoking has also declined over the period 1975 through 1979, however
girls are smoking at higher rates than boys, a trend noted in several other countries,
inclucang the United States. Twelve percent of 13 year old boys smoked in 1975
versus 13 percent of girls. By 1979 the corresponding figures were 6 and 8 percent
respectively. In 1975 32'percent of 16 year old boys were smokers compared to
45 percent of girls. These figures had decreased to 21 and 34 percent for males
and females respectively in 1979.

Table 1 and Table 2 'lye these as well as figures for intermittent reporting periods
for The above grows.

Table 1 Percent of daily smokers in the Swedish adult 1
population, ages 18 to 70 years of age, 1970 to 1980

1970 1976 l971` 1978 1979 1980

Males 42 43 39 38 37 31
Females 34 34 31 34 32 26

Table 2 Percent of adolescent student smokers ages 13 and 16 in Sweden
for 1975, 1977 and 1979

1975 1977 1979

Boys - age 13 12 9 6
Boys - age 16 32 25 21
Girls - age 13 13 II 8
Girls - age 16 45 40 34

*Males = includes smokers of pipes, cigars and cigarettes
Females = cigarette smokers only

a

:.

,
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Mr. BLILEY. Dr. Koop, do you not think, in the final analysis,
that the reason that warning labels have not been as effective as
they might is that when people make the decision to smoke and
they go to the chine, they are just interested in getting their
brand. They have aIreq,dy made their decision. Much the same as
you said that your father would never quit, they have made this
decision and they do not stop to read the warning labels anyway.

Dr.. KOOP. My father has been dead for about 20 years. He never
had the advanta* of a warning label'. I have no idea how he would
have responded if he had seen one, especially if he had seen one
that was specific and talked .about cancer of the lung or emphyse-
ma.

Mr. BLILEY. In fact, you do not know how anyone else would re-, spond if they see one, do you?
Dr. KOOP. No, I do not, but I do not think
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Dr. Koop. That is all of my questions.
Mr. WAXMAN. If the gentleman would yield to me
Mr.,BULEY. I Would be glad to yield.
Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Koop, did.you want to say anything more?
Dr. KooP. I just wanted to say that I do not think we can say

flatfootedly that the warning on cigarettes has not been effective
Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Whittaker.
Mr. Wiimmont. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I, too, wanted Dr.

Koop to have an opportunity to fmish hiii answer.
Mr. WAXMAN. Gentlemen, thank you very much. This testimony

has been very helpful. I want to congratulate you on the work you
are doing in this area, and I hope we will be able to work together
to try to deal with this preventable cause of so many serious ill-
nesses in this country.

Dt Ba/a.nyr. We will be pleased to work with you. Thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Without objection, the testimony of Glenn G. Mc-

Namara, M.D., president of the American College of Cardiology,
will be made a part of the record. With no objection, that will be
the order.

That concludes our business today. We will meet* tomorrow at
9:45 in room 2123. Wkstand in recess.

[Mr. McNamara's' tatement and additional material submitted
by Chairman Waxm ollow:]
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Dear Mr. Chaitman and
'Members Of the Subcommittee:

I am Dan G. McNamiza, M.D., F.A.C.C., Professor of

Pediatrics and Chief of the Caraiology Section,

/Myr= College of Medicine and Texal Children's

Hospital. Iat also President bf the American

College of Cardiology, a professional medica1 spe-

cialty society representing over 11,500 physicians,

scientists and educators who specialize in diseases

of the heart and circulatory system. ACC is-dedtt":,

cated to ensuiing-oPtimal care for persons with .

cardiovascular disease and those wiih the potential

for developing cardiovascular disease and, through

educational and socioeconomic activities, to contri-

bute significantly to the prevention of cardiovas-

-336 .
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cular diseas. It is in py capacity as President

ol the College that this statement is made on,

H.R. 5653, the "Comprehensive Smoking Prevention

Education Act of"1982."

One main concern of the College is whether consumers

receive sufficient and acCurate information4A4m.the

demonstrated relationships between cigarette smokins,

andlcardiovascular disease. The College believes

that consumers'are provided with insufficient infor-

mation on the demonstrated relationships between

cigarette smoking and cardiovascular disease and

that this lack of information weakens a physician's

role in altering a patient's smoking behavior.

As the Federal Trade Commission noted in its "Staff

Report on the Cigarette Advertising Investigation"

(May. 1981), which we commented on (attached), a

"substantial portion of the public remains unin-

formed about the hazards of smoking,!sand that FTC

tests "indicate that the (cuirent) warning is neithet

noticed nor read by the vast majority of people."

Even though the current warning indiCates that the

Surgeon General has determined that cigarette smoking

is dangerous to one's health, 171 of all smokers

ana 24% of heavy smokers do not know that smoking .

337-
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is hazardous tO hMalth. Additionally', as noted,

consumers themselves agree that the current

warning is inadequate.

Why hot iirovide,the pUblic with the type and

quality of information sought? As the FTC report

notes, nearly "two out of every three questioned

during the 1978 Roper survey for the Tobacco

Institute, believe that the current warning is

mot "adequate" and indicated they preferred a

health warning that describes the specific health

riSks of smoking."

A 1978 Gallup survey of smokers and nonsmokers

found that 32% were not aware of the statistical

relationship between cigarette smoking and heaii

attack; tiiat 37% of smokers did not know this

relationship; and that among heavier smokers, 40%

did not know the increased risk for heart attack

associated with cigarette smoking. The 1979 Chilton

Study, conducted by the FTC, found that 25% of the

general population and 31% of smokers did not knaw

that 'smoking greatly increased their risk of heart

attack despite research that concluded that it

doubles a person's risk of heart attack. In addi-

tion, consumer knowledge of the relationship among

cigakette smoking, birth control pills and heart

,f
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attadk is low, despite the fact that women who

smoke and take birth control pills have approx-
.

imately.ten times the risk of a heart attack of

women who do -neither.

Therefore, the College agrees that the current

cigarette warning is not effective relative to

the public's'need to know and act on the.strong

scientifically-validated statistical'relationship

between cigarette smoking and cardiovascular

disease. The College agrees with the need to

improve on type and content of .the required

cigarette wa ing labels.

Therefore, in reviewing the FTC report and its

--=-yonclus*Vhs, the.College endorses the concept of

rotational warnings as being more effective than

the current warning.

TheoCollege believes that the labeling approach and

specific warnings contained in H.R. 5653 (as modi-

fied below for icientific acceptability) will assist

, consumers in making conscious, more informed deci-

sions about smoking, because they Will have more

definitive information. on the specific hearth con-

sequences of amoking. This type Of information,

also,will assist carAioloiists, other physicians and

33 9
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other health professionals in communicating the

risis of smoking to their patients.

The College would recommend that "Warning: Cig-

arette Smoking is a Major Cause of Heart Disease"

be amended as follows: "Current scientific evidence

indicates that Cigarette Smoking is a Major Risk

Factor for Coronary Heart Disease." The College

would also recommend that "Cigarette Smoking may

cause Death from Heart Disease, Cancer or Emphysema"

be revised as follows: "Current scientific evidence

indicates that cigarette smokers are predisposed

to suddent death," and "Current scientific evidence

' indicates that there is a significant relationship

between cigarette smoking and heart disease, cancer

or emphysema."

In addition, the College believes that one aspect
4

of the wording of the bill relating to the coordi-

nation of researchilrOnduct of research and the

authority of the Secretary to carry out the pro-

visions of this bill through grants, may need clar-

ification to avoid duplication with research on

cigarette smoking effects being conducted by NHLBI,

and other Institutes at NIH. If coordination

means the implementation bf a systematic exchange

3 40
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of information on the research being supported

by different agencies, this would be useful.

If, however, the purpose is to provide the Office

of Smoking and Health with authority to direct

the research of Institutes, the College believes

it would be counter-productive and undesirable.

However, authority to conduct eypes of researCh

that do not fall% clearly under the authority of

.the dategorical Institutes could be appropriate

for the Office of Smoking and Health: Examples

of such would be in monitoring national trends

of cigarette consumption in different age groups,

surveillance of the composition of tar, nicotine,

Carbon monoxide and other potentially harmful

constituents of cigarettes and maintaining the

periodic rePorting of new research findings.

In addition, the College also believes that the

es,

Congress should'review all the current material_

on the connection between cigatette smoking and

the costs to society through increased medical

costs and reduced productivity in order to provide

a basis for further cigarette sipoking prevention

efforts.

I trust that these comments that relate to our

support for your efforts in this area will be of

assistance to you and the Committee. We would

be pleased to provide you with any other assis-

tance.

3 4
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The goviorihle Memo A. Waxman '
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Committee on Energy sad Commerce
U.S. Mouse of lepresentatives
Waskiestea, D.C. 20315

Dear Mr. Chairmen:
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heade4-6i' Dr. Edward Brunk, Assistant S.
your March 11 hearings on cigarette 1
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DEPARIARN't Or It [ALTO Islit1M AN SIR VICES Pubic Health Sernee

Alcohol Drug Mute. Ina
*nut Health Administration

Nabonsi kleatuse ert Dru Abu.'
oo Ashore Lane

Raba*. IAD 20$57

Resolution on

Cigarette Labeling

The. following Resolution, introduced by Councilmeober Morris A.
Lipton, ?4.D., was passed unanimously by Council onieptenkter 23,
1981. '

'Me N;tional Advisory Council on Drug Abuse strongly
recycaends to the Surgeon General that words be added
to the warning on cigarette packages. The label-Should
read 'The Surgeon General has determined that cigarette
smoking is addictive and dangerous to your health.'"
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NATIONAL UST= ON DRUG ABUSE

TECNNICALNIVIEN Ow cumuraN
mom As AN ADDICTION

7hursday and Friday, aninst 23 and 24, 1979

IMAL REPORT

lioderators:

Norman A. Xrasneeor, Ph.D.
Pierre P. Renault, M.D.

INTRODUCTION

This report summarizes the Technical Review on Cigarette Smoking as an
Addiction that took place on Thursday and Friday, August 23 and 24, 1979.
This task force meeting was sponsored by the National Institute on Drug Abuse
(NIDA), Division of Research, to evaluate the scientific evidence that exists fitr
and against cigarette smoking as an addiction and to arrive at a cow ensus on
this question based on the available scientific evidence.

Macro Systems; Inc., assisted NIDA in the conduct of the meeting. This

summary report was written by Dr. Charles R. Schtister of the University of
Chicago. The Appendix presents the agenda for the meeting and a list of ;he
participants with institutional affiliations, addresses, and telephone numbers

344
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TECHNICAL REVIIW ON CIGARETTE SMOKING AS AN ADDICTION:
RIPORT ON. 'UM TASK FORCE ON SMOKING

1. STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM
..

Cigarette smoking is the single most importadt environmental factor con-
tributing to early death and disabRity in the United States. In 1978, 33 per-
cent of the population, age 17 and over, were current cigarette smokers
Induction into smoking begins in the great majority of individuals before 21

i, ,years of age and in over half, before 18 year,. of age. Despne teenagers' dis-
claimers that their cigarette smoking can be voluntarily curtailed, the onset of
smoking at this age results in a high probability of sustained lifelong u'se. Of
teenagers who smoke more than one or two casual cigarettes, 85 percent escalate
to a lifestyle of regular smoking. /t is estimated that only 2 percent of smokers
consume cigarettes on an occasional basis. In general, the number of cigarettes
canalised by smokers averages 30 per day. Each inhaled puff of cigarette
smoke delivers a dos* of drag to the brain resulting in 50-70,000 such doses
per person every year. There is no other form of drug-taking that occurs
with such regularity and frequency.

Despite widespread public acknowledgement of the health consequencesvf
silo/zing and the documented statements made by the great Majority of smokers
that they would like to quit, a very large number have been unsuccessful in
their attempts. More specifically, of the 33 perces:dad Ameri-mas, age 17 and
over, who aie smokers, three out of four express a desire to quit. Indeed,
ovehr 60 percent of these current smokers claim to have made at least one serious
attempt-. During 1978 alone, --over-313 pKtdiiiit-(17 million) attempted to quit
smoking. Unfortunately, the /orig-term probability of success on any given quit
attempt is onli 20-25 percent. Even those who seek professional help and are
successful in completing an organized smoking cessation program show a
percent return to smolcbsg within one to two years. Furthermore, the probe-
bRity *relapse over time to cigarette smoking shows remarkable similarity to

,
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that observed with alcohol and heroin use. It is of interest to note that indi-
viduals who use both heroin and cigarettes report that they. would find it easier
to give up heroin than cigarettes.

2/ DEFINITION OF ADDICTION AND AN ADDICTING SUBSTANCE

Before proceeding to consider whether current evidence allows the cate-
gorization of cigarette smoking as an addiction, we must define this term In 4.)

its broadest sense, addiction is a state characterized by the repeated inges-don

of a substance that is to= and leads to undesirable social consequences This

definition encompasses other terms often used to describe nonmedical drug use,

such as abuse, habituation, and dependence An addicting substance is one

that has. (1) pharmacological propertdes leading to compulsive use, (2) a capa-
bility of producing organ and/or behavioral toxicity, and (3) a use pattern
associated with adverse social consequences In addition, this term is generally
applied when the ingestion of such substances is viewed by a large segment of -
the society as undesirable.

3. ANIMAL STUDIES

There have been two general approaches to obtaining data to determine
whether tobacco can be viewed as an addicting substance: (1) the study of

cigarette smoking 2.e.r se, and (2) studies of nicotine alone, since its pharma-

cological actions suggest that it is the most Ificely component in tobacco leading

to its repetitive use. A variety of behavioial studies of the action.of nicotine
have been carried out in animals One of the methods used in the animal labora-

torL.to_ determine the addiction potential of drugs is the _drug self-administration

procedure. There is a good correspondence between drugs that are self-
administered by laboratory animals and those that ae common drugs of addic-

tion in humalis. This generality holds true for drugs within the opioid, seda-

tive, and psychomotor,stimulant class. Furthermore, drugs which are not

addictive substances are not self-Administered by animals

3 4
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Several studies have demonstrated that intravenous nicotine can maintain
self-administration behavior in rats and monekys, but the environmental condi-
tions under which this occurs appear more limited than with drugs such as
opiouis or psychomotor stimulants. Nicotine appears to be a substance which
has the armacological properties necessary to lead to its repeated ingestion.
Doses o1 nicotine which are otherwise self-administered may even function as
punishers to suppress behavior under certain environmntal conditions. The
existence of these aversive effects of nicotine may account in part for changes
in human .cigarette smoking after variations-in nicotine content or treatment with
....:corsie or nicotine antagonists. Effects of ilarmocological treatment ssith
nicotine antagonists can alter smoking behavior in humans and suppress n.cotine
self-administration in animals Clearly, further studies are needed to determine

range of conditions over which nicotine will maintain or suppress behavior,
the critical factors controlling these properties of nicotine, and the ways in
which pharmacological treatments can alter smoking behavior or self-administration
of nicotine.

There has also been limited research on actual cigarette smoking in animals.
-The majority of monkeys given free access to cigareites will smoke, but in a

rather sporadic fashion. Certain animals, however, will regularly smoke and
obtain nicotine blood levels comparable to those obtained by human cigarette.
smokers.

se studies of smoking behavior and nicotine self-administration in am-
maljupport the view that nicotine is the primary constituent in cigarettes that
maintains their compulsive use.

4. HUMAN S uDEES

Although it is still not unequivocally clear that nicotine is the cgrS) agent
responsilile for the development of physical dependence on tobacco or the main-
tenance of moll:big belevior, it is certainly the leading contender. Proof of
nicotine's primary role still awaits a demonstration that the cigarette withdrawal
syndrome is similar to the nicotine withdrawal syndrome. However, there have

31 7
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been several studies implicating nicotine's role in the subjective aspects of smok-
ing as well's* the freogiancy. For instance, subjects have been given cigarettes
without nicotine ('or with greatly diminished nicOtine) and they fail to report
their customary enjoyment of smoking. Some subjects seem to enjoy the low-
nicotine cigarettes, but it is possible WU they are able to extract more.nicotine
by chinging their manner of. smoking (e.g., increased inhalation). Another
type of eiperiment involves delivering nicotine to subjects via another route of
administration besides inhalation. Subjects of these experiments do not experi-
ence the usual degree of satisfaction, that they get from their customary ciga-
rettes, although in some instances they do report some satisfaction from the
nicotme.

Further evidence implicating the role of nicotine in cigarette smoking is
provided by human studies that have directly measured cigarette smoking
behavior. These studies have shown. (1) increases or descreases in nicotine
dose in cigarettes are associated with compensatory changes in smoking which
tend to maintain nicotine blood levels within certain limits, (2) manipulation of
urinary excretion of nicotine either upwards or downwards is also associated
with compensatory changes in smoking which tend to maintain nicotine blood
levels within certain limits, (3) pretreatment with nicotine (intravenously or
orally) produces compensatory decreases in smoking; and (4) pretreatment with
a nicotine antagonist produces elevation in smoking.

S. PHYSICAL DEPENDENCE AND TOLERANCE

As with other classic drugs of abuse such as the opioids and sedatives,
tolerance and physical dependence are important characteristics of a drug because
,tliey may exacerbate the user's tendency to continue its use. Tolerance, for
instance, reduces the pharmacologica effects of drugs and may lead, to more
frequent administration of higher doses of the drug, which in turn marproduce
greater risks of toxicity or untoward effects on the user.

Tolerance has been demonstrated tor the effects of smoking cigarettes
and also to the effects of many of the components of cigarettes. Nausea and



345

dimness is common among novice smokers, but disappears wah experience.
Metabolic Wlerance can be demonstrated in smokers to various components of
cigarette smoke (e g , nicotine, "tar", benzypyiene, carbon monoxide, other
compounds) as well as to a wide variety of drugs such as barbiturates and
chlorpromazine Receptor tolerance can be demonstrated to some extent to cer-
tain components of tobacco smoke. For instance, nicotine given intravenously
has been shown to have a greater physiological effect upon nonsmokers than on
smokers Similarly tolerance to behavior, such as activity level, has been
demonstrated in a wide variety of animal studies Behavioral tolerance tc nico-
*.ine also has been demonstra ed in animals, i e , animals learn to compensate
for decrements in performance while under 'the influence of the drug

There is also evidence of physical dependence to tobacco Clear signs of
withdrawal appear when heavy smokers abruptly quit, although there appears to
be considerable variability in its manifestation When a smoker stops smoking
suddenly, he/she frequently shows a decrease in heart rate, sometimes in blood
pressure, and a decrease in excreted epinephrine and norepinephrzne and its
metabolities Other endocrinological changes may also occur. .Furthermore,
there is a decrease in Mean EEG frequency, an increase in appetite and weight,
and an impairment in performance on psychomotor tasks and in concentration.
Disturbances in arousal and sleep may occur, and anxiety, irritability, and
aggression increase Finally, there is an increase in craving for smoking which
decreases with time Despite this reported increase in craving, the extent to
which physical dependence on tobacco or nicotine' atfluences the frequency of
smoking.reinains to be determined. Human experiments indicate that, following
a period of deprivation, irritability and the probability of smoking increase.

.

summary, although experimental findings are limited, it is clear that
tolerance and physical dependence do occur with cigarette smoking, but the role
they play in the maintenance of smoking remains to be explored.

CIGARETTE SMOKING AS AN ADDICTION

It would seem clear from the evidence presented that tobacco smoking pro-
duces pharmacological effects which often lead to compulsive use. As stated
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provly ia oUr &Make of addiction, it is alcressary to demonstrate that an
addicting subatance prodUCes organ and/or behavioral toxicity. Although the

acute behavioral effects of sao/nng are mild in ctsparison to those produced by

most addicting substances, the multiple deleterious health effects of cigarette
'Making, including mortality and disability sad their attendant social conse-
quencis, are now well established. Few question that the regular use of
tobacco leads to a wide range of organ toxicity.

7. CONCLUSIONS

It was the opinion of the.group after reviewing the evidence regarding the
compuls%ve use, the toaicity, and the adverse social consequences, that cigarette
smoking behavior should be considered a form of addiction, and tobacco in the
form of cigarettes, an addicting substance..

8 LMPLICATIONS REGARDLNG CIGARETTE SMOKING AS AN ADDICTION

(1) The group concluded that cigarette smoking is an addiction. The

broadest implication of this conclusion is that cigarette smoking should now
be re-examined in .light of the range of policy considerations which we
presently considezed germane to)ilhe classic forms of drug addiction such
as addiction to the narocitics, si.rdatiees, stimulants, or alcohol.

(2) Given that cigarette smoking is considered an addiction, it could be
contended that it should be viewed as a disease. Such a categorization

would allow the application of the methods and conceptual formulations of

. _public health to epplied to the.smoking problem._

(3) Basic resea-ch efforts should be focused on the analysis of cigarette

smoking behavior in humans. Research programs should elucidate the
behtvioral and pharmacological variables which influence both the mainte-

nance and elimination of cigarette smoking behavior. The role of nicotine

in the initiation and maintenance of cigarette smoking should be explored
with special attention to other components of smoke that may modulate its

effects.
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(4) Rksearch on 'zsychosocial influences shot& not be deetaphasized, but
-projects should be sought which Int' to evaluate psycliosocial and pharma-
codynamie influences within the same conteil.

(S)' 'Bolo research effort: shOuld'be focused on tie analysis of nicotine
self-adminiatration in laboratory animals The range of condgions neces-
sary for the establishment, maintenance, and elimination of nicotine self-
administration should be studied.

(6) Ref earch efforts should be directed toward establishing an adecate
animal model of cigarette smobng behavior.

(7) Research should be undertaken to establish valid, low-cost, and pref-
erably noninvasive measures of cigarette smoking to be used as outcome
measures in clinical treatment research Examples-of such measures include
urinary niconne or expired-air CO leve .

(8) Physiologial and psychologlcalhanges that occur during repeated
administration (tolerance and physical dependence) and upon smoking ces-
sation (withdrawal) should be characterized in detail The contribution of
these changes to the clinical phenomenon of relapse to smoking should be
established.

This report has summarized the Technical Review on Cigarette Smoking as
an Addiction Additional information about the-meeting may be obtained from
Dr. Pierre Fenault, NIDA Division of Research.
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[Whereupon, at 9:55 a.m.4 the subcommittee was adjourned.]
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COMPREHENSIVE SMOKING PREVENTION -
EDUCATION ACT OF 1982

FRIDAY, MARCH 12, 1982

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT,

COMMITTEE ON ENERGY AND COMMERCE,
Washington, D.C.

The subcotamittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:50 a.m. in room
2123, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Henry A. Waxman
(chairman) presiding.

, Mr: WAXMAN. The meeting pf--tjhe gubcommitteel will please come
to order. This morning begins the third and final day of public
hearings on the pmprehensive Smoking Prevention Education
Act. Yesterday we heard from the Ilepartment of Health and
Human Services, whkh on behalf of the administration indicated
their support for this-legislation.

The administration now joins a large and growing number of
Congressmen, Senators, and public health organizations in support
of a bill of immense importance to the public health of this coun-
try.

I would like at this time to express the subcommittee's apprecia-
tion for the -niany letters of support we have received from volun-
tary health organizations all across the country. These letters, in
addition to the written statements of organizations which due to
the time constraints were unable to present oral testimony, will be
made a part of the record at the conclusion of our hearing.

Today we set aside time to hear from representatives of the to-
bacco and cigarette manufacturhig industry. Witnesses invited to
testify were recommended by the Tobacco Institute, a Washington-
based trade association.

Our first witness is Edward A. Hoirigan, chairman and chief ex-
ecutive officer of the R. J. Reynolds Co. He will be accompanied by
Horace R. Kornegay, Samuel B. Witt, and Larry Light.

Would you please come forward?
Before recognizing Mr. Horrigan for his statement, I understand

that Mr. Kornegay would' like to make an opening statement. I am
pleased to recognize you at this time and welcome all of you to our
subcommittee hearing.

(351)
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.

STATEMENT OF KliWARD A. AORRIGAN, JR., CHAIRMAN AND 1

CHIKF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, R. J. REVNOLDS TOBACCO CO.,
ACCOMPANIED BY HORACE R. KORNEGAY, CHAIRMAN, THE 1111-

BACCO INSTITUTE, INC.; SAMUEL B. WITT III, VICE PRESIDENT,
SECRETARY, AND GENERAL COUNSEL, R. J. REYNOLDS TOBAC- '
CO CO.; AND LARRY LIGHT, PII. D., EXECUTIVE VICE PREfolowz.---

DE*, TED BATES WORLDWIDE, INC.
Mr. KORNEGAY. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I appreciate the opportunity to introduce the spo esman for our

panel. It is a privilege for me to intrqduce to you nd the subcom-
mittee the chairman of the executive/eOmmittee of the Tobacco In-,
stitute, Edward A. Horrigan, Jr. Mr. Horrigan is also the chairma
and chief executive officer of the R. J. ReynoldgTobacco Co. an:17,1111,

executive vice president and director . J. Reynolds Industries.
He is a graduate of the University nnecticut and the Har-

anvard Business School's advce man ent program. During the
Korean conflict, he served as an Army infantry officer and received
the Silver Star, Purple Heart, and combat infantryman's badge.

He entered die business world in 1954 with Procter & Gamble
and then later became vice president of Thbmas J. Lipton, Inc. He
then moved on to become chairman of the boaid and president of
the Buckingham Corp. He joined R. J. ftemlds Tobacco Interna-
tional, Inc., in 19'78 as chairman and chief executive officer and
was promoted in 1980 to chairman, president and chief executive
officer of R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. e

Mr. Horrigan has received many business and philanthropic
awards, among which are included the ikestigious Horatio Alger
Award, the American Jewish Committee's Award,and the Pop
Warner All American Award for service to youth.

Mr. Horrigan's activities _as a civic _leader include director o\f\
Salem College, the board of visitors of the School of Business Ad- 1
ministration at the University of Connecticut, andAss an honorary
board chairman of the Touchdown Club of America,

Mr. Chairman, it is a pleasure to present to you and the subcom-
mittee Mr. Edward A. Horrigan, Jr.

Mr. HORRIGAN. Good morning, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Kornegay has
introduced me to the committee and you have introduced thote
members to the panel who will be assisting me here in our presen-
tation this morning.

My name is Edward Horritan. I am chairman and chief execu-
tive officer, R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co. and the chairman of the ex-
ecutive committee of the Tobacco Institute, an association of tobac-
co manufacturers.

With me today is Horace Kornegay, chairman of the Tobacco In-
stitute; Larry Light, executive vice president, Ted B4tes, Inc.; and
Sam Witt, vice president, general cpunsel and se.c_relia,....Re J..
Reynolds Tobacco Co. .

We are here at your invitation to express the industry position
R. 5653, the Comprehensive Smoking Prevention Fducation

A 1982.
pectfully submit that this bill is unnecessary because virtu-do.

all everyone is aware of the claimed dangers of smoking. The bill'
represents a waste of taxpayers' money because it would re-

1
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quire the establishment of a bureattcracy that will serve no useful
pu

Trreselevel of awareness about the alleged associations between
smoking and health far exceeds fiublic awareness of most, if not

major contemporary issues facing this Nation.
At leasV 90 percent of the public is aware of the claims made

about smoking and health which demonstrates that the Federal
Cigarette Labeling and ising Act is working. The facts clearly
show that people are i sition to make a free and informed
choice on 'whether or not to smoke.

Given this, why substitute a novel and unproved system for the
present law? Why is there a need to establish yet another Govern-
ment agency to adMinister yet another bureaucratic web of regula-
tions targeted at an industry which manufactures and markets a
legal product' In effect, this bill is a punitive measure directed
against the manufacturers of a lawful product and appears de-
signed to -lead toward the prohibition of smoking.

Let me review some of the premises used to support this bill and
the charges leveled at the tobacco industry.

A number of very broad, sweeping statements relating to smok-
ing and disedse are included in the particulars of the bill. Certain-
ly; there are questions raised by statistical associations relating to
smOking and health which must be answered, But the truth is that
all of the statements presented as established fact in this bill have
been Challenged by the research findings of many eminent scien-
tists, some of whom you will hear today.

There are many more expert witnesses who would have been
willing to testify about the broad range of so-called "findings"
listed in section 2. Just Wednesday, we were told by a member of
your staff that web, 4 of the over 30 expert witnesses willing to tes-
tify could appear. Unfortunately, 1 day is far short of the time re-
quired to adequately inform the committee. We will, nevertheless,
do our best with the limited time made available to us and at this
time I request that the statements of the experts denied the oppor-
tumity to testify be entered into the printed record.

Mr. WAXMAN. Without objection, we will have all of the state-
ments made part of the record. We have had an enormous amount
of interest from public health groups who have requested to testify
in support orthe bill and you have people that wanted to testify
against the bill. We will put them all in the rec'bçd so members of
the subcommittee will have a chance to see them.

Mr. HORRIGAN. In 1969 when the Federal Cigarette _tabeling and
Advertising Act was amended, the full committee of whieb your sub-
committee is a part held extensive hearings. The full committee

. concluded that ' nothing new has been determined with respect to
the relationship between cigarette smoking and human health
since its hearings in 1964 and 1965," and that "the arguments pro
and con with respect to cigarettes are the same now as then,
though supported by a larger statistical base." That is as t-ue
today as it was in 1969. .

After three decades of investigation\ and millions of dollars in-
vested, the smoking and health controversy remains unresolved.
The met result of all of this effort has been that no causal link be-
tween smoking and disease haMeen established.

,
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Yet consider the language of some of the warning labdels pro-
posed in this bilk "Cig rette

w
sn oking is the number one cause,' "is

a major cause," "ill *ure." t credibility can such statements
have in view of the lions of peo le who' have smoked throughout
their etimes and hre not gotten any of the ailments mentioned,
and th millions whohave not smoked who have gotten them.

The tobacco industry is recognized as a leader in seeking the an-
swers to the questions regarding smoking and health. In the past
three decades, the industry has committed, without fanfare, over
$100 million for unrestricted smoking and health research, spend-
ing greater than the tobacco-related research expenditures of all
the voluntary health agencies combined.

. As worded the bill purports to settle by congressional edict
... evolving meclical and scientific controversies. Therefore, it may

. "divVrt scientific talenit and resources from the basic research neces-
to solve the enigmas of chronic disease. .

e are aware that ihere have been some effort ,to build support
for this bill with claims that its provisions would serve as a deter-
rent to smoking among young people, and'that industry advertising
and promotional practices are intended to encourage youthful
smoking. ..........

.
Such charges are without

i
foundation.

Last Friday, two witnesses speaking n support of this billMr.
anKeeshan d Mr. Forsythboth acknowledged that peer pressure

and not our advertising provides the impetus for smoking among
young people. Expert testimony this afternoon will show this belief
is correct.

Our advertising is targeted at smokers and is intended to encour-
age switching from competitive brands. The available evidence
clearly shows that our advertising is not designed to attract new
smokers d any age and is not having that effect.

Our industry has acted responsibly in the past and we see no
reason this bill is needed to further regulate our advertising prac-
tices.

At this point, livill return to specific provisions of this bill. Our,

objectiong to them are stsited in detail in our written submission to
the committee, so I will only highlight some of them now.
....The rotational warning labeling requirements this bill proposes
are technically unwotkable and unwarranted. There are now ap-.
proximately 200 cigarette brands and brand styles on the market.
With new brands being added and old-ones withdrawn regularly,
and vast differences in sales volume and advertising patterns, it
would be virtually impossible for cigarette manufacturers or the
FTC to insure compliance with a system of seven rotating warnings
to appear on "substantially the same number of brands" at any
given time.

There is also no reason to believe these multiple warnings would
in,crease public awareness of smoking and health ibsues. There are
persuasive arguments that such a system is not working in
Sweden, upon whose system this proposal is based. In fact, accord-
ing to the Swedish Government, cigarette consumption has risen
there annually since the new system was'implemented in 19'77.

The bill's requirement of disclosure of "tar," nicotine and carbon
mestoxide levels on packages and in advertising is unwarranted.
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"Tar" and nicotine levels have been 1-eadily available to smokers in
every cigaiette advertisement since 1970. With respect to carbon
fnonoxide, expert scientific testimony today will show that carbon
monoxide exposure through cigarette smoke is not a significant
health issue.

Furthermore, there is no generally accepted method of carbon
monoxide measuretnent, which would make any data presented on
packages and in advertisements subject to question.

The recently added provision requiring listing on cigarette pack-
ages of ingredients is totally unnecessary and ill-conceived.

Cigarette manufacturers use a variety of ingredients to enhance
flavor and appearance and preserve shelf life. These ingredients
are among each manufrteturer's most closely held trade secrets.
There is no justification for denying cigarette manufacturers the
trade secret protection extended to every other consumer product
industry.

You should also consider that as this provision is drafted, the list
of ingredients, combined with the proposed health warnings and
tar, nicotine and carbon monoxide numbers, would turn cigarette
packages into little textbooks, likely causing smokers to ignore it
all.

With regard to the labeling requirements for exported cigarettes,
I will only say that the result would be confusion, chaos, and com-
petitive disadvantage for American products in many overseas
markets. (Attachment A.) [See p. 385.1

Turning to the enforcement provisions, I can only conclude that
the underlying rationale for these proposals is to make it legally
hazardous for cigarette manufacturers to advertise their lawful
products.

The tenfold increase in the fine for violation of the labeling act,
combined with the complexity of the labeling requirements of this
bill, is grossly unfair as inadvertent violations are almost a certain-
ty Furthermore, the provision for an entirely new civil injunctive
action by tyiyone wishing to, claim the law has been violated is. an
unwarranted delegation of the Government's enforcement powers

'Oto private individuals. These provisions are inconsistent with ef-
e forts by the courts and Congress to limit Federal jurisdiction and

ease the overburdening of Faderal courts.
Finally, we do not believe that unbiased scientific research and.,

dissethination of factual information regarding smoking issues re-
quires the establishment of a statutory office of smoking and
health, an antismoking organization within the Federal Govern-
ment.

Since such an organization was created in 1964, its work has
done little to resolve the smoking issue questions and has in fact
been slanted toward dissemination of antismoking propaganda
largely unsupported by factual evidence.

In conclusion, we are firmly opposed to this legislation because
we believe it to be unnecessary, misleading, and, most importantly,
because the medical and scientific assumptions or findings underly-
ing it are incorrect and unsubstantiated.

I am sure that many people will ask why the tobacco industry is
resisting this bill? What's the problem with putting a few new
warnings on cigarette packages and advertising?
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We are not oppOsing the bill because ,we wish to exploit the
youth market as some have falsely charged; nor are we opposing
the bill because of the potential costs of compliance. We oppose this
bill because, despite the appearance -of good intehtions, this is bad
legislation forthe American public and for our industry.

This hill freezes science in its tracks and may divert scientific
talent and resources from the basic research necessary to resolve
those questions. It also seriously erodes the principle of free choice
in a democratic society. In denying a person's right to reject official
information, this bill betrays its fundamental prohibitionist mo-
tives. It says, in effect, that Americans are expressing their basic
freedom of choice in rejecting the arguments of antismoking activ-
ists, and that Government finds this unacceptable.

Therefore, steps must be taken to make Americans conform and
to encourage prohibition of smoking. I do not believe the American
people will accept such a rationale.

We are a responsible and concerned industry. Manufacturing a
lawful product which provides pleasure and satisfaction to 53 mil-
lion Americans. Our industry contributes more than $57 billion an-
nually to the gross national product and generates $22 billion in
Federal, State, and local taxes of all kinds.

We .view this proposed legislation as an unwarranted interven-
tion by the Federal Government into the private lives of its citizens
and a thinly veiled effort to further harass and ultimately elimi-
nate an important American industry.

[Testimony resumes on p. 390.]
[Mr. Horrigan's prepared statement and attachment follow]
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Statesient of Edward A. Horrigan, Jr.
on H.R. 5653 Before The Subcommittee on

Health and The Environment of The
Committee on Energy and Commerce

My name is Edward A. Horrigan, Jr.. I am Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer, R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company.

I am also the qhairman of the Executive Committee of the

Tobacco Institute, an association of tobacco manufacturers

witit headquarters, in Washington, D.C.

With me today are Ilorace R. Kornegity, Chairman of the

Tobacco Institute; DT. Larry Light, Executive Vice President,

Ted Baes, Inc.; and Samuel B. Witt, III, Vice President,

General Counsel'and Secreitary of R.J. Reyftolds Tobacco Company.

We are here at your invitation to express our Industry's

position on H.R. 5653, the "Comprehensive Smoking Prevention

Education Act of 1981."

The purpose of the bill, and I quote, is to "establish a

national program under an,Office of Smoking and Health to

inform the public of the dangers from smoking, to change the

label requirements for cigarettes, and for other purposes."

I respectfully submit that this bill is unnecessary be-
.

cause, in fact, virttally everyone is aware of the claimed

dangers of smoking. The bill also represents a waste of tax-

payers money because it would require the establishment of

a bureaucracy that411 serve no useful purpose.

A 1981 Gallup survey, reported by Secretary Schweiker to

a large _assembly of voluntary health organizations in November
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of that year. found that 'Nfnety percent of the population

agrees that Cigarette smoking Is harmful."

In his 1979 report, ;..he U.S. Surgeon General said that

"notable changee had taken place in pUblic awareness of

claimed smoking hazards and expressed doubt that a higher

level of awareness could have any effect on smoking behavior.

We share this skepticism.

.Indeed, the level of awareness about smoking and health

far exceeds public awareness of most if not all of the major

contemporary issues facing this nation..

Let me provide'some examples: A 2980 Gallup poll revealed

that less than 25 percent of the public knows what the First

Amendment is or what it deals with. Other recent national

surveys reveal that nearly 25 percent do not know what happened

at Three Mile Island; 36 percent.are not aware that the United

States must import oil to meet its energy needs; 45 percent do

not know that automobiles are the major source of air pollu-

tion; and one third do not know whether the Federal budget is

balanced. '1*

ty contraet, at least 90 percent of the public is aware

of the allegations that smoking is dangerous to health. This

level of awareness demonstrates the success of the current

Congressionally-mandated warning statements as well as the

efforts of public and private organizations.

The Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act is_
working. The facts clearly show that the public has been made
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/P aware of the so-called health hazards.of smoking, and that
.--

people Axe J.:j aeposition to make a free and informed choice ol

whether os not to smoke.

Given this fact, why substitute a novel and unproven

system for the present law? There is no need to establish yet

another government agency to administer'yet another \ureau-

cratic web of regulations targeted at an indUstry which manu-

factures and markets a legal product.

I submit that this bill will have little if any impact

upon the remaining few Americans who may be unaware of claims

made against smoking following almost three decades of govern-

ment and private warnings, the Surgeon General's statements on

cigarette packages and broad dissemination of

anti-tobacco propaganda through the public media.

In reality, this bill is a punitive meaaure directed

i4ainst the manufacturers of a lawful product and appears

designed to lead toward the prohibition of smoking. The Aact

that.millions of people choose to conpinue to smoke, despite

the almost universal awareness of the allegations regarding

smoking and health, is frustrating to anti-smoking activists

and advocates. And it is our belief that this frustration

has led them to conclude that those who reject anti-smoking,

arguments and continue to exercise their freedom of choice

are uninformed. Therefore, they seek measures, such as this

bill, designed to force smokers to conform, and ultimately to

result in the prohibitiion of smoking.

'3 6 3
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Lt Am take a few minutes to review iome of the premises

used to support this bill and the aharges leveled at the

Tobacco Industry.

A number of very broad, sweeping statements relating to

smoking, disease and addiction are included in the particulars

of the bill. Certainly the statement that smoking is addictive

is contradicted by the 1964 Surgeon Genera1'e0eport and the

conclusions reached by many experts since 1964. Of course,

there are questions raised by statistical associations relating

to smoking and disease which must be answered. But the truth

is that all of the statements that are presented as established

fact in this bill have been challenged by the research findings

of many eminent scientists, some of whom you will hear from

later in today's proceedings.

There are more than thirty highly respected and knowl-
Ak

edgeable witnesses with expertise in the relevant medical and

scientific disciplines who we understand would have been

willing to testify ibout the broad range of the so-called

"findings" listed in Section 2 of the bill. Only the shortage

of time for these hearings prevented their testimony. Given

the opportunity, they would clearly have been able to distin-

guish hypothesis and speculation from objective medical and

scientific fact, and would have raised serious questions

concerning these "findings."

We respectfully submit that the time has come for this

Committee and the Congress to be fully and fairly informed
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about the smoking and health coloversy. W. have been ad-

vised, however, that all the testimony in opposition to this

bill must be lidited to one day. 'Unfortunately this is far

. Short of the time required adequately to inform the Committee.

W. will, nevertheless, do our best within the limited time-

made available to us.

In 1969, when the Federal, Cigarette Labeling and Adver-

tising Act was amended', the full Committee of which your Sub-

committee is a part held extensive hearings over a period in

excess of two weeks. It heard testimony from Members of

Congress, itate officials, government health and regulatory

agency officials, voluntary health organizations, and numerous

expert witnesses in the fields of medicine, biomedical re-

search, statistics, and other scientific disciplines.

On the basis of these extensive hearings, the full Com-
e

mittee concluded that "nothing new has been determined with

reSpect to the relationship between cigarette smoking and

human health aince its hearings in 1964 and 1966."

Th'eCommittee went on to say that "the arguments pro and

con with respect to cigarettes are the same now as then,

though supported by a larger statistical base." That conclu-

sion is as true today as it was in 1969.

After three decades of investigation and millions of '

dollars investad by the government, the Tobacco Industry and

otlier private organizaSions, the smoking and health controversy

remains unresolved. The net result of all of this effort has
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boon that no causal link btween smoking and disease has been

established. That is not merely the opinicsf Tobacco In-

dustry executives. That is scientific fact,readily available

to anyone willing to make an objective, unemotional study of

the existing evidence.

Yet consider ths language of some of the warning labels

proposed in this bill. "Cigarette smoking is the'number one

cause," *is a major cause," "will in ure." What credibility

can such statements have in view of the millions of people who

have smoked throughout their lifetimes and not incurred any of

the ailments mentinned, and the millions who have never smoked

and who have incurred these ailments?

I thould add that the Tobacco Industry is recognized as a

leader in seeking the answers to the questions regarding

smoking ana health. 'In the past three decades, the indUetry

has committed, without fanfare, over 100 million dollars for

unrestricted, independent research into smoking and health

issues. Our spending has been greater than the tobacco-related

research expenditures of all of the voluntary health agencies

combined.

I submit that one of the effects of the bill would be to

de; significant harm to the sci.entific effort to resolve these

questions./As worded, the bill purports to settle by Congres-

sional edict medical and scientific controversies that are

still evoltiling. Therefore, it may divert scientific talent

and resources from the basic research necessary to solve the

enigmas of chronic disease.

3i; 6
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We are ;ware that there have been some effcftts to build

support for this bill with claims that its provisions would

serve as a deterrent to smokilr among young people and that

Industry advertising and promotional practices are int4ded to

encourage youthful smoking:

Such charges are without foundation.

Last triday, two witnesses speaking in support of this

611 -- Mr. Keeshan and M. Forsyth -- both acknowledged that

peer prim and not our advertising provides the impetus for

ng among young people.

You will hear more about.this Point this afternoon from

the experts who will be presenting their testimony. They will

clearly point out that tho provisions of this legislation can

in no way be justified by the emotionally appealing but unsup-

ported assertion that cigarette adyertising.encourages a

youngster to smoke.

Smoking is an adult practice to be considered only by

those mature enough to make an informed decision.

In 1963, for example, cigarette.companies stoPped all

advertising and promotional activities in school and college

publications and on campus. We also stopped using celebrities

and sports figures in advertising.

In1964, we adopted a cigarette advertising code rohib-

iting advert ng, marketing and sampling directed at young

people. Even though the administrative provisions are no

longer in effect, each company still adheres to the principles

C.
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of this code. I Would, with your permission, like to submit

* summary of these principles and a copy oFour Cigarette

Sampling Code for the record.

In 1969, we offered to cancel all radio and television

advertising because of broadcast's unique reach to young

people, and in 1971, pursuant to Federal legislation, left the

broadcast media.

Our advertising is targeted at smokers and is intended to

encourage switching from competitive brands. The available

evidence clearly shows that our advertising is not designed to

attract new smokers of any age and is not having that effect.

The same Gallup poll I mentioned earlier also reported that

the percentage of smokers found was the lowest ever recorded

by that organization.

Looking at the broader picture regarding cigarette adver-

.
tising, the,record clearly shows that our Industry has been

responsible in its practices.

o In 1954, to meet public demand, we began to advertise

low "tar" and nicotine cigarettes.

o in 1960, after the FTC stated that it had determined

that such advertising could be construed as a health claim, we

voluntarily agreed to eliminate from cigarette advertising all

references to "tar" and nicotine.

o In 1966, when the FTC reversed its position we agreed

that cigarette advertising would disclose "tar" and nicotine

content.

3 6 6
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o In 1967, we began a continuing program of scientific

and technical cooperation with the FTC, with respect to."tar"
Aand nicotine testing.

o In 1970, we began to inclade in otir brand advertising,

the FTC "tarl and nicotine measurements.,

o In 1971, we volunteora,(to depict the cigarette package

in all advertising in such a way as to display legibly the

warning label.

o In 1972, we entered into an agreement with the FTC on

uniform terms of conspicuously displaying the warning label in

advertising.

o In 1981, we reached an agreement with the FTC on an

increase in the size of the warnings.

In short, our Industry has acted responsibly in the past

and we see no reason anyone should feel that we will not

continue to do so in the future. Nor do 4,ie see why this,bill

is needed to regulate further our advertising practices in any

way. -

Getting back to the specific provisions of the bill, the

labeling requirements it proposes are unworkable.

The bill directs the FTC to establish i rotational warning

procedure which can at best be described as a "Rube Goldberg"

contraptioa. Every b0and of cigarettes would have icarry

each of the seven required warnings for no more than one year

during every seven-year period. Then there is the added

provison that at any given time each of the seven,warnings

must appear on "substantially the same number of brands."

94-3117 0 - $2 - 24
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'f Mr, Cha man, in December 1981, the FTC reported "tar"

.6
and nicotine tata on 200 cigarette brand styles. New brands

introduced and old/Ones withdrawn. It isliare frequentl

highly unlikely that the FTC or,gny other agency will be able

to develop an ng but a purelyorbitrary-formula for rotating

the warning st f tements among the various brands.

Even if a rational formula could be devised, how could we

make sure that each warning statement ii presented to the

public an equa

for each brand

among all bran

number of time

Technics

ever to belie

any more effe

present state

of the FTC S

number of times? Sales volume and,advertising

vary greatly. Equalizing warning statapents

s will have no relationship at all to the

that each statement is exposed to the public.

.complexities aside, there is no reason whatso-

e that the proposed rotational warnings would be

tive imincreasing public awareness than the

ent. The proposal is based on a recommendation

aff, which in turn was based on some undisclosed

preliminary esearch regarding a rotational warning system

used in Swe n.

The Staff admits that the "effectiveness" of Sweden's

system cann t be measured, and Mr. Waterson li6st Friday:Atm

March 5, plesented persuasive testimony to the effect that

this system is not working to reduce consumption in Sweden.

While the FTC Staff concedes that the "effectiveness" of the
4

Swedish s. stem cannot be evaluated, the fact is, that according

to the S edish Government, cigarette consumption has risen

.
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each yea/ since the new Aystem was implemented in 1977. I

also ca li I your attention to the fact that the rotational

warping systap in Sweden was part of a total program designed

to abolish smoking: *hich is the Vtimate goal -- despite

' denials 7-- of many of the anti-emoking..organizations which

'support this bill.

In light of.these facts, and your statement that the 4

,purpose of this legislation is not'to prohibit smoking, ihe

- obvious estion arises: Is the Proposed rotational system fTh1.

necessary -olilppropriate? We are convinced that the answer is
...

that.it is neither.

Also unwarranted, in our opinion, is ,t bill's require-

tient fokdiaclosure of "tar," nicotine, and caibon monoxide

levels nn peCkages and in all advertising..

'AA indicated earlier, since 1970 cigarette manufacturers

have voluntarily disclosed the "tar" and nicotine levels in

cigarette advertising. 'Thie information le Widely avairae
&

to the public. Smokervwho choose their brand on the basis of

"tar". and niooSine levels can readily obtain this information

ofrom cigarette advertising.

As e matter of fact, the average "tar" yield of cigarettes

sold in this country has dropped rod.38 milligrams in 1956 to,
-

12,6' milligrAms in .1,1...40°71Mo seventy percent of all ciga-

rettes sold are in the low (tar" caiegory.

With respect to carbon monoxide, there is no purpose to0
be gained by the determination or publication ol yields. Ais

,

3 7 i



the scientific record Will show, the conclusion that exposure

to carbon monoxide from cigarette smoking is significant in_

terms of health is unwarranted. Furthermore, no single method

,.
of carbon monoxide measuretent in Cigarette smoke has gained

general acceptance in the scientific community. Therefore,

any data presented, by any method, will be subject to question.

These issues shoUld be resolved in the scientific community:

W. firmly believe that a required disclosure of carbon monoxide

yields is ill conceived.

Just last week a new provision was introduced that would

require each package to list "any chemical substance" that may
4

become a component or otherwise affect the characteristics of

cigarettes. It is worded so ambiguously that manufacturers

could n t detsrnine what substances they were required to

-disclose

Any'attempt to'use this labeling requirement for ciga-

rettes will simply be unworkable. The-net effect of this

provision and the related provisions of section 4 would be to

turn cigarette packages into little textrtoks. Consider what

the bill would require on every package -- a warning statement,

a listing of ""tar," nicotive, carbon monoxide, and "chemical '

substances" It seemi likely that consumers: confronted with

sugh swelter,of detailed information, will simply ignore all

of it. .

This provision would also.require cigarette manufacturers
-

tokdisclCse trade secrets that manufacturers of gther consumer
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products are not required to disclose. digarette manufacturers

use a varity of substances in their products to enhance

flavor and appegYince and to preserve shelf life. The identity
n

1of additives used by each manufacturer is among the most

,closely guarded of their trade secrets, for such ingredients

play a Aubstantial role in maintaining conaumer acceptance.

Manufacturers of oLier consumer products'are not required

to disclose trade secrets of this kind. .Tere is no justifi-

cation for denying cigarette manufacturers tha trade secret

protection that is available to every other consumer product

industry.

The basic defect in this provision, and indeed in all of

section 4, is that it is an attempt to provide a quick and'

easy "solution" to a'prablem that has not yet even been ade-.

quately defined.

We4have been and continue to be engaged in constructive

And fruitiul dcussions with Assistant ecretary Brandt and

Alliother-HES officials on this matter wi a view to making

available necessary inforiation to HHS under appropriate

procedures and safeguards. Secretary Brandt has recently

stated that he is "pleased with" our "cooperailive spirit" and

that he is "confident that substantial future progress can be

made" in resolving thikzestion. The present bill would

short-circuit this effort to'resolve any legitimate concerns.

In other words, the-wifict of the bill is to "shoot first and

ask questions later."

14
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The bill also propOses.to extend the labeling requirements

to exported cigarettes. The present law wisely loavs package

labeling to the government of each importing country. .Miny

countries require statements regarding smoking and health to

be included in cigarette packages and advertising. Many do

not.

France, for example, requires a single warning, "Abuse is

dangerous." Iceland had a compulsory warning but abandoned

it. In the United Kingdom, cigarette packages carry three

\''\ warnings. Sweden is yinique in requiring a smorgasbord of,

sixteen warnings. ,

This bill wouldrequire American exports to carry a U.S.

warning statement,e41:Ssompetitive btands in many foreign
. .

markets would carry eons. In countries which require their

,own warning label, U.S. cigarettes would hate to carry two or'

mere warning statements' In/some countries the sale of cigaV\

rettes bearIng any warning,statement other than that required

4; go,
by local law may be prohibited. In any event, the result

would be chaos, confusion, and competitive disadvantage.

With all due respect, it would be presumptuous of the

United States to decide for the,rest-of the world what state-

ments thould be,included on cigarette packages.

I would now like to address the proposed amendments to

the enforcement provisions of the present law. Mr. Chairman,

I an forced to conclude that the underlying ptionale is

simply to make it legally hazardous for cigarette manufacturers

to advertise their lawful products.

7 4

.
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The bill would increase the fine for violation of the Act

from $10,000 to $100,000. In the seventeen years the present

law has been in effect, there have been no violations. That

fact alone argues against any increase at all in the penalty --

.much less a tenfold increa-se.

Furthermore, in view of the complexity of the new pro-

posal, the increase is &Lao grossly unfair. Inadvertent

violations of the complex rotational yarning system, which is
4

likely to be further complicated by FTC requirements, are'

almost a certainty.

Supposer for example, that it ts determined that one

manufacturer had printed warning statement "B" on the packages

of two of its brands for a total of one year and one month,

while warning statement "D" was printed on the packages of

those brands for only eleven months. That manufacturer would

be in vi ation of the prohibition against presentation of any

1 4

one of the &ming statements for more than one year in a

seven-year period; it would,also be in violation of the re-

quirement that all statements be given equal time. Even

though the effect of these violations would appear to be at

most tril.hal, the manufacturer would be subject to huge poten-

tial penalties. A law that permits such mousetrapping can

wily be calleeinequitable and punitive iri intent.

In addition) an even greater opportunity for abuse is

created by the provision that establishes'an entirely neW

civil injunctive action for anyone who wishes to claim that
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the tawhas been violated. This provision is an unwarranted

delegation of the government's enforcement powers to private

individuals. It is not only defective from legal and policy

standpoints, At is legislative mischief-making at its worst.

I've been advised that just this January, the Supreme

Court confirmed that the Constitution requires that a party

invoking the jurisdiction of the Federal courts must show that

it has personally suffered actual or,threatened injury as a

'result of the challenged conduct. The Court condemned the

.

widespread use of the Federal courts by individuals and groups

to challenge actions to which they are philosophically or
\..re

politically opposed. It seems clear, then, that the civil

action provisions of this bill would not pass muster under

this Constitutional requirement.

Congress has recognized that the Federal courts are

seriously overburdened, and has begun to take steps to limit

Federal jurisdiction; ySt, here is a proposal that would open

those courts to unlimited litigation over the arcane details

of the bill's rotational warning system. ,

These civil action provisions seem calculated to encourage

li-arassment suits against cigarette manufacturers hy individuals

and groups opposed to smoking in general. The vague and
cAe

ambiguous requirements of the propos6 rotational warning

system will provide an apen invitation to litigate disputes

over whit constitutes proper compliance. With the incentive

of awards of dosts and attorneys' fees provided by the bill,

3 7 6
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lawsuits alleging the most trivial violations of the law will

be ncouraged. Surely that is neither a fair nor appropriate

use of our judicial system.

We must also register our vigorous opposition to the

bill's elimination of the six-month Congressional review

period with respect to trade regulation rule-making proposals.

In enacting the Federal Cigtrette Labeling and Advertising

Act, Congress sodght "to establish a comprehensive federal

program to deal with cigarette labeling and advertising." The

Legislative history and language of the Act and its subsequent

amendments make it Abundantly clear that Congress determined

that such a comprehensive uniform policy should be legisla-

tively formulated and articulated. Elimination of Congres-

sional ovtiview of the FTC on en issue of such national impact

would b. inconsistent with this sound policy.

Let me now turn to Section 3(a) of the bill, which would

establish a statutory Office-of Smoking.and Health. As I

stated eaAier, this Industry has aiways favored objective

scientific research and the dissemination oefactual health

information to the public. However, we do not believe that

those goals call for an anti-smoking organization within the

Federal government. When such an oxganization was created in

1964, the Senate Appropriations Committee questioned whether

the funds might be better spent on research rather than propa-
,

ganda. A Public Health Service official assured the Committee-

that "the money would not be used to propagandize, ,but only to

makh the health facts availalile to the people."
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Has that pledge been carried out? Let me provide one -

.example which is not 4tYpical. Last year, the Office of

Smoking and Health produced a $68,000 publicity Campaign. It

was built around.four telemision commerclals featuring Brooke

Shields. The theme was thit'smoking is-unglamorous. Or as
4

the teenkge starlet put it in one short message: "If there's

anything I hate, it's )01,adhing my hair and*then being with

people who smoke. Yecch." Hardly a message of.health facts,

you will agree.

Of course, the .0-/fice of. SMoking and Health produces ore

t than advertising campaigns. It also publishes annual rep, ts

which ars supposed to provide Congress with current Lnformation

about the health consequences of smoking.

The timing.bf the reports, however,.bears virtually no

relationship to the tonduct of scntijic'researob or the.pub-
,

lication of results. Studies take years to nomplete. -Even on

completion, their findings are tentative and subject to veri-

,.

fication by other studies. The evidence simply cannot be

packaged to meet-a sCheduled annual repOrt. As a result, the

reports to Congress have been used as Media events high in

propaganda content and low in scientific substance.

Additionally, bureaucratic pressure to show "progress"

reeults in esclaating the rhetorical style of these reports to

nNiercome their scientific shortcomings. Rather than presenting

a balanced view of all available information on the complex

questions under study, the repOrts consistently have omitted.

ta
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any reference to scientific research which does not hew to the

"official" lin. Similarl Y. WW1 further research demonstrates

results which are indonsistent with previous findings_ these

developments are rarely noted.

For example, for many years'a highly controversial exper-,

iment involving inhalation of cigarette smoke by dogs -- under

very artificial conditions -- was cited as proof of lung

cancer causation. The Government spent millions of dollars

repeating that experiment in ap effort to duplicate the re-

ported rsults but cancelled these experiments -- which ran

longer than the initial experiment -- when it became apparent

that the dogs did not devel p cancer.

The Surgeon Gener s recently issued report, however,

fails to mention the cancellation of these experiments and the

fact that the initial results could not be replicated and

therefore were hot reliable. The bias inherent in such omis-

sions is inconsistent with sound scientific practice and the

goal of informing the public.

Testimony has previously been given to Congress by several

respected researchers concerning the repetitive and misleading

mature of the Surgeon General's annual reports.

We question whether Congress should reward the Office of

Smoking and Health with the status conferred upon it by this

bill%

We question whether the prosecutional arm of the anti-

smoking movement should be invested with authority to coordinate

3 7
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and thereby control the scientific research activities of \t,

- other government agencies. This bill would subject even the

National Institutes of Health to such "coordination". Just

how the decision-making processes and peer review systems of

the NIE1 would be "coordinated" is unclear. The potential for

mischief is, hoWever, obvious.

In conclusion, we are firmly olgtosed to ERis legislation

because we believe it to be unnecessary, misleading and, most

importantly, because the medical and scientific assumption-s or

"findings" unskerlying it are incorrept and unsubstantisated.

I am sure that many people, after scanning the headlines

or listening to the evening news, will ask: Why is the Tobacco

Industry resisting this bill? What's the problem with putting

a few new warnings on cigarette packages and advertising?

We are not opposing the bill because we wish to exploit

the youth market as some have falsely charged; nor are we

opposing the bill because of the potential costs of complying

with its requirements.

We oppose this bill because, despite the appearance of

good intentions, this is bad legislation -- not only for our

Industry but the American public as we/1.

This bil zes science in its tracks. It purports to

settle by C ngression#1 edict medical and scientific contro-'

versies that are still evolving; and thereby it may divert

scientific talent and resouces from the basic research neces-

sary to solve the enigmas of chronic disease.
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This bill also seriously erodes the principle of free".

choice in a democratic society. It says, in effect, that if

you don't conform, you are uninformed, and that the Government

must take corrective action. In denying a person's right to

reject "official" information, the bill betrays its fundamental

prohibitionist motives. The proponents of the bill object .to

the fact that Americans are expressing their basic freedom of

choice in rejecting the arguments of anti-smoking activists;
,

they find this independence unacceptable, and therefore,

propose steps intended ultimately to result in the prohibition
A

of smoking.

We are a responsibie,and concerned industry, manufacturing

a lawful product which provides pleasure and satisfaction to

millions. Our Industry contributes more than fifty-seven

billion dollars annually to the Gross National Product and

generates twenty-two billion dollars in Federal, state and

local taxes lpf all kinds.

This proposed legislation is an unwarranted intervention

by the Federal 4overnment into the private lives of its citi-

zens, and a thinly veiled effort further to harass and ulti

mately eliminate an importadt American Industry.
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Princes ,Ccvernint

Cigarette Ai:hen:sin: ane Sart:inc

7%ese advertising principles apply tc al: forms of advertising
including vehicle decals, posters, pamphlets, matchbook covers, and
point cf purchase materials in tne Lnited States, Puerto Rico, and
U.S. territorial possessions.

1. No advertising shall appear in publications directed
primarily to those under 21 years of age, including
school, college or university media (such as athletic,
theatrical or other programs)., comic books or comic
supplements.

2. No one,depicted in Cigarette advertising shall be or
appear to be under 25 years of age.

3. Cigarette advertising shall not suggest that smoking is
essential to social prominence, distinction, success or
sexual attraction, nor shall it picture a person smoking
in an exaggerated manner.

4. Cigarette advertising may picture attractive, healthy
looking persons provided there is no suggestion their
attractiveness and good health is due to cigarette smoking.

S. Cigarette advertising shall not depict as a smoker anyone
who is or has been well known as an athlete, nor shall it
show any smoker participat'ing in, or obviously just having
participated in, a physical activitv requiring stamina or
athletic conditioning beyond that o.f normal recreation.

6. No sports or celebrity testimonials shall be used or those
of others who would have special appeal to persons under
21 years of age.

7. Persons who engage in sampling shall refuse tq give a
sample to any person whom they ktow to be under 21 years
of age or who, without reasonable identification to the
contrary, appears to be less than 21 years of age.

8. Sampling shall not be conducted in any public place within
two blocks Of any centers of youth activities, such as
playgrounds, schools, college campuses, or fraternity or
sorority houses.

9. Persons who engage in sampling shall not urge any adult

21 years of age or over to accept a sample if the adult

declines or refuses to accept such sample.
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S ATEMINT OF PURP15SE

Cigarette sampling is a form of cigarette
advertising conducted through the free
'distribution of sample packages of

. cigarettes directly to adult smokers. The
purpose of this Code is to ensure that certain
standards are observed in connection with
cigarette sampling, particularly avoiding the
distribution of cigarettes to minors and the
disruption of pedestrian or vehicular traffic,
and to provide a means whereby
compliance with those standards can be
monitored and enforced.
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ARTICLE I .

-

DEFINITIONS

1. "Sampling" means giving or distributing
without charge packages of cigarettes in a
public place for commercial advertising
purposes ("cigarette samples"), but does
mit include isolated offerings of
complimentary packages or the distribution
of such packages to wholesale or retail
customers or to company shareholders or
employees in the normal course of business.

2. "Public place" includes any street,
sidewalk, park, plaza, public mall, and the
public areas of aholiping centers and
office buildings.
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ARTICLE II

RESTRICTIONS:ON CIGARETTE
SAMPLING

f. Persons who engage in sampling-shall
refuse to give a sample to any person
whom they know to.be under 21 years of
age or who, without reasonable
identiacation to the contrary, appears to be
less than 21 years of age.

-2. Sampling shall not be conducted in any
public place within two blocks of any
centers of youth activities, such as
playgrounds, schools, college campuses, or
fraternity or sorority houses.

3. The mails shall not be used to distribute
tinsolicited cigarette samples.-

4. Parsons who engage in sampling shall'
not urge any adult 21 years of age or over
to accept a sample if the adult declines or
refuses to accept such sample.

- 386

st-



1

383

-

5. Nb cigarette samples shall be
distributed by a sampler,in a public place
to any person in a vehicle.

6. Persons distributing ciprette saMples
shall secure theii stocks,of samplesin safe
locations to avoid inadvertent distribution
of samples contrary to the provisions of
this Aitic let

\
7. Persons distributing cigarette samples
shall avoid blocking or othetwise . .

significantly impairing the flow of
paestrian traffic.

8. In theevent that ciroumstances arise
a.particulv 1Ocation that make it unlikely

that sampling can be conducted in a manner
consistent with,the provisions of this
Article, sampling shall be stopped, at that

'location until suoh circumstances abate.

9. Person's distributing samples shfill
promptly dispose of empty,sample boxes
and shall take reasonable steps to ensure
that no litter remains in the immediate area
of sampling as a result of sampling
activities.

' t 087
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ARTICLEIII

14

COMPLIANCE AND
ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS

1. Each cigarette manufacturer that
subscribesAo this Code shall impose by
contract on all independent contractors
who conduct cigarette sampling owthe
manufacturer's behalf a set of sampling
standards no less-stririgent thin those
contained in ihis Code. In addition, each
cigaiette r6anufacturer shell require such
sampling contractors to inform all
personnel employed by the contractor who
engage;u1 sarapling activities of the
proviiions of this Code, both orally and
in writing.

2..Persons who engage in sampling shall
be monitored on a periodic basis by '
supervibory personnel of the cigarettp
manufacturer and/or independent
contiactor for whom the sampling activities
are being conducted to ensure compliance
with, the proviSions of this Code.

3. Each cigarette manufacturer that
subscribes to this Code shall take all
reasonable steps to ensure that any person
who engages in sampling and knowingly
violates any of the prolrisions. of Article II
of tbis code shall be discharged from

-emplbyment as a cigarette sampler.

388,
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SUMMARY OF PROSUMS
/' FfUtittliO SY export,. novistora

OF H.R. 5.1153

1. Principal Language Problem. Section 4 (b)(S) requires

that the label statements, on packages of cigarettes for

export from the U.S. "be printed in the principal

AOr
language of the country .to which the cigarettes are

exported."

"..

(a) Several countries and colonies are multilingual, .g.

Belgium, Finland, Switzerland, Canada, Cyprus, Hong

-Kong, tc: What would be the "ppincipal" language?

(b) Som cigarettes exported from the U.S. are warehouseA
"

-after manufactUring and the ultimate foreign destina-

tion is not known. For examp.le, one major U.S.

cigarette manufacturer warehouses exported Cigarettes

in Antwerp in bond for distribution to several

,Buropean countries and duty free shops. 'At the time

of manufacture the ultimate destination and

"principal" language is not known.

(c) Section 4 (b)(S) is ambiguous as to whether the

requirement is for the principal language of the

"country of first export or the country of ultimate

use:

389
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2. Rotating Warnings Problem. Section 4 (a)C1) of the bill

requires rotating label warnings for cigarette exports.

(a) The present law wisely leaves package labeling to the

government of each importing country. Many countries

require statements regarding smoking and health to be

included in cigarette packages'and advertising. Many

do not.

.Prance, for example, requires a single warning,

"Abuse is Dangerous." .Iceland had 0 compulsory

warning but abandoned it. In the United Kingdom

cigarette packages carry three rotating warnings.

Sweden is unique in requiring a smorgasbord of

sixteen rotating warnings.

H.R. 5653 would require hmerican exports to carry

U.S. warning statements, while competitive brands in

.many foreign markets would carry none. In some

countries the sale of cigarettes bearing any warning

statement other then that required by local law may

b prohibited. In any event, tWe result will be

chaos, confusion, and cOmpetitive disadvantage.

(b) Section 4 (a)(1)(A) requires a warning that the
-

consumer write to the Surgeon General in Washington,

D. C. for norm information on "Specific Dangers of

39,3
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. Cigarette Smoking, This requirement is useless and

ill conceived in its application to exports. It's

hard to imagine soMenne from Saudi Arabia writing the

U.S. Surgeon General. Would the U.S. Surgeon General

respond in Arabic?

(C) Some foreign laws require label warnings to be in two

or even three languages:" For example, Canada

requires warnings in French and English: Belgium

warnings are in French, German and Dutch. Since the

warnings required by Canada and Relgium are different

than any of the warnings under H.R. 5653,.the

Canadian package may be required to have two warnings

in Frefich and two in English and the BelgiUm package

may be required to have six different warnings.

3. Tar. Nicotine and Carbon Monoxide. Section 4 (c)

requires diclosure of the leuel of tar, nicotine and

carbon monoxide on the pack.

(a) H.R. 5653 requires that the level of tar, nicotine

and carbon mon6xide be based on the levels

established annually by the Federal Trade Commission.

The.Iaws of several foreign countries (e.g. Germany,

Canada. United Kingdom, Egypt and Australia) require .

testing methods which may result in tar and nicotine

levels different than the levels obtained from the,

391
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Fedexlil Trade Commission method. Discrepancies

between the rTc method and the methods required under

the foreign laws would confuse consumers and may

expose U.S. manufacturers to fines and prohibition of

sal. of their products in these countries.

(b) The system in some countries does not permit

disclosure of,tar, nicotine and carbon monoxide

numbers on the Isbell For example, the United

KingdOm divides tar levels illto five groups and the

label can only show the tar group and not the nismber..

Some countries have other systems or regulations

regarding disclosure of tar and nicotine and carbon

monoxide which conflict with the requirements of H.R.

5653.
0

4. Cobgiessional Purpose. Section 2 of the Cigarette

Labeling and Advertising Act (15 USC 1331) is not amended

by H.R.'5653. That Section st-ates that one purpose of

the Act was to not impede commerce by rdiverse,

nonuniform and confusing cigarette labeling.and

advertising rsguIations." The consumer confusion and

conflicts with foreign law created by H.R. 5653 are

contrary to that Congressional intent..

S. Sovereign Hights. H.R. 5653 would interfere with the

Abwereign rights and interests of foreign nations.

3 92
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Beforo acting to regulate exports in the manner

contemplated by H.R. 5663, Members of Congress and this

Subcommittee should ask themselves how they would react

if a foreign government were to impose on UsS. consumers

regulations which are at variance with U.S. policy and

law. There can be little doubt that there Would be

serious objection.

The question of warning labels on cigarette packages

involves competing national interests and differences of

perspective on individual and corporate rights and

responsibilities. Each society has a right to strike 's

What it considers to be the proper balance among these

competing interests, and it is essentially irrelevant

that other societies might reach differtant conclusions.

It is kn inherent right of sovereignty to make decisions

such as these without outside interference.

6. Conflicts With U.S. Export Administration Act. H.R. 5653

would mark a major departure from U.S. law and policy in

its attempt to regulate T.S. exports with respect to ,

matters which have nothing' to do with U.S. seCurity, U.S.

foreign.poncy or domestic shortages. Such a change in

course should not be taken without thorough consideration

by the Congress and the principal committees that have

been involved in setting U.S. export policy for many

years.

393



390

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Horrigan, makirig
your position clear on this legislation.

It has been 18 years since the first Surgeon General's report indi-
cating that cigarette smoking is a danger to people's health Since
that time we have had report after report, including the latest Sur-
geon General's report relating cigarette smoking to cancer We
have had leading scientific experts in this country, the National
Cancer Institute, and the National institute on Drug Abuse tell us
that cigarette smoking is addictive and that it is a leading source of
lung and ileart disease.

In light of all that, Flow do you explain your unwillingness to
even make a connection between cigarette smOking and these
health problems?

Mr, FIORRIGAN. Mr. Chairman, to begin with, we really do not be-
lieve that our industrSr is unwilling in any sense of the word. I
mentioned in my testimony that we are a concerned and a respon-
sive industry. That is supported by the fact that while the Surgeon,
General's report continues to publish new statistics, our tobacco in-
dustry continues to earmark millions of dollars annually on an on-
going basis in unrestricted, arm's-length research to answer the
very questions raised in the Surgeon General's report.

One other point raised in your question with regard to cigarettes,
with regard to addiction. There is absolutely no proof that ciga-
rettes are addictive and that was referred to in an earlier Surgeon
General's report.

Mr. WAXMAN. You are putting money into trying to prove or dis-
prove an absolute scientific certainty. It's difficult to 'establish a
scientific certainty. We have to make judgments based on the evi- 4

dence. The most respected scientifit experts in this country have
made a conclusion based on what they see as much more than
mere coincidence between cigarette smoking and dramatic in-
creases in healA and lung disease.

How do yoid explain the strong correlation between those who
smoke and those who seem to have the largest incidence of cancer
and heart and lung disease.

Mr. HORRIGAN. There are obviously new statistical evidence and
links between various sicknesses and cigarette smoking. I cannot
agree with you that all of the scientific or medical community
agrees with the interpretation of those findings.

'this morning we have a panel of scientists who will present their
views and I only wish that all of those sdientists who wanted to
participate this morning could have been here, because the scientif-
ic community is not unanimous in their judgments on this point

Mr. WAXMAN. There seems to be a preponderance of opinion
among the leading scientific experts in this country that are in-
volved in public health and heading up the major governmental ef-
forts to combat heart disease, lung disease and cancer. They have
all come before us and said without any equivocation, without any
doubt in their minds, that there is a clear link between cigarette
smoking and these illnesses.

You are telling us that there is no link? Is that correct?
Mr; HORRIGAN. I am saying that science to date after much re-

search including over $100 million funded by our industry,/indi-
cates that no causal link has been shown. That is what I am ad-
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vised. I am not a scientist, Mr. Waxman. Thlt is veKy doctors asked
or scientists asked to participete here this morning, to perhaps
answer in greater depth the questions that you raise.

We share your concern. That is obviously why we earmark the
dollars that we do every year in research that builds more evi-
dence, not, statistics, but continues not to prove a causal link.

Mr WAXMAN. You also earmarked a large number of dollars in
order tit/ promote cigarette smoking in this country, isn't that cor-
rect"' You do spend money for advertising and other promotional
efforts?

Mr. HORRIGAN. That's right. The filee enterprise system, I think
we have a lawful product and a right to compete in the market-
place for the smoking public.

Mr WAXMAN Could you give us the figure that you would annu-
ally spend on advertising and also give us the figure of how much
you spend on scientific research as to the danger or potential
danger of your product?

Mr. HORRIGAN. Yes, sir. First of all, I don't have the numbers,
obviously precisely by company, but on behalf of the industry, I
would 'say our estimates of industry advertising is in the range of
$900 million The industry earmarks in excess of $10 million a year
in research I don't think we should "truthfully relate advertising
dollars to research dollars, but rather take the research dollars
spent by many c:,ther organizations, health organizations, or indus-
tries, and I believe that our numbers are recognized as underlying
a far more significant commitment to this concern.

Mr WAXMAN. You indicate you have been having what you call
constructive and truthful discussions with Assistant Secretary
Brandt and other Department of Health and Human Services' offi-
cials on this question of smoking. Then, you express your unhappi-
ness with their support for this legislgtion. You claini, in other
words, the effect of the bill is to shoot flFst and ask questions later.

Do you feel that the administration did not hear you out or un-
derstand the arguments at ,you had to make against the legisla-
tion that they are now sp(porting?

Mr. HORRIGAN. I believe Mr. Koruegay could answer that in
greater depth. We believe we are having productive discussions
with that agency regarding that particular issue. In that forum, we
are getting a fair hearing. I do think with regard to the severityi-

--7 the serious impact of this bill that our industry is not being given
the proper time to air its views properly and provide you with our
responsibility to keep you as well-informed to answer all of the
questions possible. The time frame on this particular situation, we
beliesve, is very tight indeed.

Mr. WAXMAN. You are spending money on trying to come up
with a scientific certainty. Do you have any estimate from your sci-
entific people as to a time when they will be able to tell us that
cigarette smoking is or is not harmful?

Mr. HORRIGAN. I wish that I could, Mr. Chairman. I think like
any pursuit, any medical or scientific pursuit of any known disease,
I don't think anyone could have answered years ago whether they
would have found the ariswer to polio vaccine. I don't think science
can work to a timetable. The important thing is not to cut off medi-
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cal research and scientific researcli,-but to continue in search of
the answers. But I really can't give a timetable.

Mr. WAXMAN. Have you been influenced in terms of your own
personal view of the potential dangers of cigarettes from all of the
evidence that has come about in the last 18 yeats?

Mr. HORRIGAN. I think my own personal experience might be
somewhat unique and approriate here. I am not a so-called tobacco
industry executive who has spent his life in this business. I just
joined the tobacco industry 4 years ago. In looking,at this industry,
while the opportunity from a career standpoint wees a good one, but
because of the publicity surrounding this industry I obviously had
to ask myself a lot of questions about it.

And I found out an awful lot about this industry that are little-
known facts. I would never have taken a career position in this in-
dustry if I had any concerns about the product that I was responsi-
ble for marketing.

Mr. WAXMAN. You know, the product liability laws require man-
- ufacturers to warn about the dangers associated with a product.

The Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act requires the
current health warning displayed on cigarette packages. If we were
to repeal that warning on cigarette packages or the warning re-
quired on advertising, what obligation do your lawyers tell you
that you would have to advise the public about the potential dan-
gers of smoking your product?

Mr. Wm. Mr. Chairman, I don't think the intention is to repeal
the obligapon to have a warning.

Mr. WAXMAN. We are obviously not trying to do that but it was
one of the suggestions in opposition of this legislation that the Gov-
ernment should not be involved in this area. If we took you up on
the premise that the Government.should not be involved in trying
to urge people not to smoke and struck from the law the requke-
ment that there be a warning that cigarette smoking is dangerous
to your health, you would-thenlave a legal obligation to warn con-
sumers if your product offered some danger to them.

What do -your lawyers tell you you would. have to advise the
public if the Government didn't require you to display the current
warning label?

Mr. Wrrr. That is a very complicated question. If you would
allow me, sir, and if your staff would give us some direction as to
precisely what sort of answer you prefer, I will consult with our
lawyers and give you an apptopriate answer. But in the environ-
ment we are acting under at the moment, I don't think it's appro-
priate for me to try to speculate, given the fact that there is a sub-
stantial amount of product liability litigation underway and given
the fact that it is, as I said, a very complicated and somewhat diffi-
cult area to deal with ad hoc.

Mr. WAXMAN. Without objection from my colleagdes, I will have
the record held open so that we can get that information from you'
at a later date. [See p. 415.] But I would submit to you that to ade-
quately warn the consumers under all of the product liability iaws
that I have seen from jurisdiction to jurisdiction throughout this
country, you would have to give a lot more information and a sig-
nificantly more detailed warning than what is now- re9uired under. .
the law.
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I would think it would come pretty close if not exceed in detail
the warning labels we are calling for in this legislation. See if your
lawyers agree with. that conclusion.

Mr. WAXMAN. Let me now recognize some of my collea guel. who
have questions for 'Mr. Horrigan and menibera of fhe panerw

Mr BLILEY Thank you, Mr. Chairman and thank you, members
or the panel. I appreciate you coming here to bring some light on
this subject. I have a few questions for Mr. Horrigan.

You mentioned a Gallup poll that found 90 percent' of the popu-
lation is away of the health claims associated with cigarette smok-
ing. Are you aware of any other evidencepolls, surveys, that
show the extent of the public knowledge of this issue?

Mr. HORRIGAN. Yes, sir. There was a survey and a report or
statement that goes way back to 1968 where a Government official
said that you could go to a rooftopI forgot the exact quoteand
shout about the dangers of cigarette smoking and there would be
nary a person that is not aware of the dangers of cigarette smok-
ing.

Furthermore, with regard to polls, I think there NA a poll back
in 1979 or 1980, a Gallup poll. The specific breakout with regard to
teenagers found that 96 percent of teenagers believed that smoking
was injurious to their health. You call, tell by my accent I am a
New Yorker, not from North Carolinalltut we have an expresssion
down there. "If it ain't broke, don't fix it." We think your Surgeon
General's warning is working yery effectively.

Mr BLILEY. Your people ,who advise you and do statistical re-
search for you in behavioral "ffiattersI know we will have some
people later,who are experts in this field testifyis it possible, in
your opinion, through changing warning labels or through the lan-
guage of this bill, to raise the percentage of awareness as a result?

Mr. HORRIGAN. In our judgment, we do riot believe you could
raise that level of awareness. If you take the business of market-
ing, a 90-percent awarehess level for any brand message would be
regarded as an extraordinary success. There is another phrase
called "singlemindedness versus clutter." Advertisers worry about
being on television a,nd the clutter effect in losing their effective-
ness.

--Fut we believe genuinely that the singlemindedness of the Sur-
geon General's wqrning achieves that level of awareness, is accom-
plishing what truly is your intention here. I think that to add per-
haps a more broader perspective to your question, I would like to
ask Dr. Light to commentAom his viewpoint on this particular
question.

Dr. LI6HT. Thank you. I don't have specific numbers on all adver-
tising campaigns, but I must say,'based on my personal experience
and Judgment, this particular message has achieved numbers that
would be truly considered to be remarkable.
-.Some of this is not surprising. I don't believe there has been any

single advertising message that has had the kinds of support that
this one has had. There have been millions of impressions and mil-
lions of dollars spent. .0

It has apkared in all forms since 1971, it hag appeared consist-
'ently, in the same fornt since 1972. And the result of all of this is
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truly extraordinary awareness. When I talk about awareness, I
don't mean that people plemorize specific words.

People do not memorize advertising. What people do is they re-
member overall impressions. And all of the research that I have
beentable to review suggests that consumers have registered the in-

- tended net impression of the warning statement.
I also think that there are a couple of principles we ought to

keep in mind, advertising principles. That is this whole issue of
singlemindechtess and consistency. In the advertising business, we
ha.some principles of how to produce effective messages. There
are fiye of them. Keep it simple; make it clear; say it' often; be con-
sistent; be singlemirided.

The warning statement as currently structured, in my opinion,
meets these guidelines.

So it is not only that we have had a lot of support for it over the
years and a lot of impressions made, but frankly, you have followed
the principles ogood communication.

So, again, I am not surprised that we have these extraordinary
' high awareneis levels. There is, sk saying that familiarity breeds

contempt. A lot of adVertising people seem to buy that because
they call it wearout. The truth is that familiarity breeds trust, not
contempt.

Consistency is what We are after in advertising, not variability.
Variability breeds confusion. And, in my judgment, I think the ro-
tational system that is proposed wouldn't help, it will hurt. Think
of companies that when they built an awareness level of 60, 70, and
80 percent, how careful they are to make a change.

They don't want to abandon some asset they have built over the
years bemuse they recpgnize any change will lower awareness, not
mcrease it. So, frankliy, I see no benefit at all to this rotational
strategy. .

My hypothesis is that it would probably hurt rather than help.
Mr. 'BLILEY. In your'tdstimony, Mr. Horrigan, you referred to

Sweden. You pointed out, I believe, that cigarette consumption, that
is the nuipber of cigarettes sold in Sweden, is not down. But the
chairman of the gibcoMmittee introduced into the record yesterday
an article published by the Swedish Institute Tiled Current
Sweden, dealing with this subject,.

It was dated November 1981. I don't know if you have seen it or
fn not.

Mr. Hoxiunax. I have not, sir.
Mr.. Buim. It was interesting to note that they agree with you

on page 7 in here, it states that the total number of cigarettes sold
in Sweden has not changed. Has the total number of cigarettes
changed in Great Britain, that is, to your knowledge,.as a result of
or since the rotational warnings went on there?

Mr. MERMAN. The market in the United Kingdom, I believe, is
either flat to slightly' declining. I think it is a combination 'of rea-
sons in that particular market, but I can't really say precisely what
these numbers are.

Mr. &rum They couldn't say in tb.at what they were, either. I
believe the price of a pack of cigarettes in Sweden, with kronor
value of 18 cents, would put it in the neigborhood of $2 a pack,
which is considerably more expenalve thah it is in this country.

3.9 8
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I thank you. ,

There have been several references in these hearings about the'
aniount of money that cigarette manufacturers spend on advertis-
ing and a large increase in that spending after the industry ceased
advertising on radio and TV.

I have b9en thinking about how the cost of everything else has
gone up over the years. I wonder if anyone in the industry has ever
compared what was spent to advertise cigarettes, say, 10. years ago,
to what is being spent today?

Mr HORRIGAN I have, Mr. Bliley, on many occasions, because I
have to juitify our marketing budgets to my board of directors. So.
we come up with comparisons to show rates of advertising.

That question is often raisedfor example, in a process such as
this To pit that in perspective, if yOu go back to about 1968, there

; were some 168, I think, brands or brand styles in the market. You
relate that to a marketing or total budget in thdse days or expendi-
ture level in the range,of some $300 million.

Give or take, it figures out to an average per brand in terms of
marketing support of about $2.5 million rix. brand. Now, it doesn't
work out necessarily that way because you weigh your advertising.

4- Iriou take the total dollars, that is how it came out. Since then,
there has been a multiplicity of brands and brand styles introduced
in the marketplace Given the number of brands in the market-
place today, an& taking my number that I quoted to the chairman
earlier this morning of an excess of some $900 million, which in
real ddllars compared to that $300 million bick in 1970 would be
more like one-half billion dollars, then you are still talking about
brand Support on a per-brand basis of $2 to $2.5 millions

Sb your rate of intensity on a per-brand basis has not increased.,
Mr &Puy Thank yoU. You also talkedabout the tobacco ificlus-

try refraining from sampling to adolescen'ts. How do you go about
accomplishing tills?

Mr HORRIGAN. There is a cigarette code of sampling within the
cigarette industry, which we all rigidly adhere to. We have written
pamphlets with regard to the sampling laws, for example, we do
not satnple in or near or around college campuses or schools.

We have our own code here with regard to the distribution of
samples, the need to verify a certain person's age before cigarette
sample is distributed. I would tell you that our industry is so com-
petitive that if, for any reason, as you move out and assign this re-
sponsibility to promotion firms or agencies, if there is any violation
of this, at the local level, it is brought immediately to the attention
of the company who has that particular problem.

It is stopped immediately. We yery faithfully do this.
Last but not least, I think it follows a_series of changes over the

years, to continue to modify our practiFes to respect our Govern- C.

ment's concern and our own concern about appealing to youth.
Mr BLILEY You say that the tobacco industry sees no reason to

include the warning label on cigarettes that are exported, But,
what about 'cigarette exports to developing nations? Don't you
think they should be warned of the controversy surrounding smok-
ing and health?

Mr HORR1GAN. First of all, smoking is a behavioral pattern exer-
cised or expressed throughout the world. With regard to Third

.3.9s
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World countries, there are certain requirements with regard to
warnings and different governments have different requirements.

They are obviously honored by all cigarette manufacturers. The
cigarettes that are marketed in those countries, meet the particu-
lar preferences of those countries. The trend towardAightness that
we see in America is emerging on a worldwide basit, but it is not
as mature yet in other countries of the world.

Mr. ButEy. Do you know approximately how much, Mr. Horri-
gan, it would cost the cigarette manufacturer annually to rotate
warning labels. For example, how much would it cost R. J. Reyn-
olds?

Mr. HORRIGAN. There is an estimate developed on an' industry
basis, but to be very honest,' as I indicated in my testimony, our
concern this morning is not one of economics*. It is in the range of,
I think, for the total industry a cost of some $40 million.

So it is not a question of lack of ability to do this, the economics
of it are not, in our judgment, an issue.

Mr. BLILEY. I see. But this $40 million could go into higher em-
ployee wages or some other factor, since it has not been shown, at
least to this member, that by rotating labels, that it has had any
effect on consumption.

And I think that in Government, the burden of proof is on us, if
we are going to put a burden on somebody, to interfere with their
rights to advertise, that we must show overwhelming evidence that
it is going to be effective.

I thank you very much. I thank the indulgence of the Chair and
my colleagues for allowing me this time.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Bliley.,
Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you. I would like to ask the counsel,

Mr. Witt, a question or two, if I may. Mr. Witt, have there been
any juries any place in the country who have oh appropriate
instructions of the judge, brought inks verdict of liability against
the 'Seller of cigarettes on the allegatiOn of a plaintiff in a lawsuit
that the smoking of cigarettes impaired that plaintiff's health?

Mr. Wrrr. It is my understanding that there have been no ver-
dicts brought in against the tobacco industry on that basis.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. You mention that there are some cases
ing around the country now. Are there some awaiting trial on
issue?

Mr. Wrrr. i can consult with my colleagues behind me and find 4.
precise answer to that.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. What I would like to do, when you consult
with them, is ascertain if plaintiffs counsel have been successful in
getting by a suit in a civil case to the point where the judge has
submitted the case to a jury. If you have the answer to that, I
would appreciate it?

Mr. Wrrr.*If you would like, I will fmd the answer. I don't want
to take the subcommittee's time to chat with my friends while
other more important matters may be discussed. But I will fmd the
answer and get it for you.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I would also like to know what instruction
plaintiffs counsel are giving or requesting the judges give, to juries
on the issue of approximate cause? That is the causal relation, epi-
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demiologically speaking, between the smoking ofcigarettes and the
onset of disease or debilitating disease to plaintiffs?

For instance, I would like to know, are judges including, in their
jury instructions, the statement appearing on packages of ciga-
rettes as it presently exists, when they instruct juries? Do you
knqw that?

Mr. Wrrr. A broad answer, which we will be glad 'to expand upon.
if you wish, is that the instructions as you liave put them have not
gone to juries. In every case juries have found for the tobacco in-
dustry.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I see. Interesting. Thank you.
I would like to ask this: Are you in what I call the advertising

business, Mr. Light?
Dr. LIGHT. That is Dr. Light and that is what we call it.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I am glad to have the opportunity to meet one

of the experts of your trade, sir. Becatise I, too, am a consumer in
America. And I have an opportunity from time to time, I have chil-
dren in my home, like most of us, I suppose, and they turn on the
TVto view your work product. When the TV is on, I sometimes
hear these advertisements that you shiiie with the American
public, selling the products of your clients. Would you mind out1in+4.
ing those specific things that you say sell products to consxmers or
America again?

The first was what? Keep it simple.
Dr. LIGHT What I was outlining there were sonte principles of

communication for building awareness.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. Yes.
Dr. LIGHT. Keep it simple, and I think that is, in my judgment,

the most fundamental one of all, in fact, we have an expression
that some of us use called KISS, k-i-s-s, it stands for "Keep It
Simple, Stupid.''

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Yes. What is the next one?
Dr: LIGHT. Make it clear.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. All right, clear.

, Dr. LIGHT. The third is say it often.
Ur. DANNEMEYER. Often, well, now, that is interesting.
Dr. Lfutrr..,,Vie fourth is be singleminded. And finally, be consist-

ent.
Mr DANNEMEYER. And consistent. Well, I don't expect that my

comments will change the tactics or assessment of the advertising
industry one wit, sir, but one consumer to you, with all due respect,
I think that the basic premise of the advertising industry of this
country is insulting.

I find it offensive and demeaning to the intelligence of the
Aiherican people. And for whatever it is worth, in my assessment
Of how I will spend my money, for those products who advertise
their wgres on the principle of often, where the theory is, I sup-
pose, the more you beat people over the head, the more you are
going to sell your products, it has the effect.of consciously causing
me to do deliberately the opposite.

Perhaps that is all a part of your scheme. You want to invariably
reach the psyche of the consumer to cause that Pavlovian response
somewhere along the line. To ultimately breakdown and buy your
products. Perhaps I am, you know, susceptible as)well.
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But my friend, let me share with you, I am very sincere about it
and I appreciate the opportunity of finding someone from your in-
dustry and etaring these thoughts with you for whatever k is
worth.

There are yarious ads that appeal to this consumer There is one
at Christmastime, I wouldn't name the product, but it has a sleigh
pulled by a horse going across a snow scene. I tell my wife when-
ever that comes out once a year, "You have to go down and buy
some of that beer because that, to me, appeals to.this consumer s
intellect."

It is beautiful, it is a story and I suppose that the only time they
come on is at Christmas. Whatever that is worth, take that back
and share it with those executives on Madison Avenue as one con-
sumer of America to you people running the airwaves of our
Nation.

Thank you.
Dr. Lour. Thank you very much for the advice.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. It is worth what you paid for.
Mr. WAXMAN. I seem to be hearing what appears to be a contra-

diction in the testimony on at least one point. I understand, Mr
Horrigan, that you are claiming that these warning labels, this in-
formation that we are proposing to have available in cigarette ad-
vertising about the specific health dangers of cigarette smoking,
would riot be effective.

I hearDr. Light saying that the cigarette warning label we al-
ready have is tremendously effective. Is that a contradiction?

Mr. HORRIGAN. I don't believe it is.
Mr. Witichiiri. Dr. Light, why don't I address that to you?
Dr. Liourd think the key is your definition of effectiveness.
Mr. WAXMAN. Are you claiming that inost people in this country

.are aware of the, dangers of smoking because of these warning
labels and the success of the warninriabels is due to -the-faetthat
they are simpl'e, clear,.and singleminded?

Dr. Liam. That is correct.
Mr. WAXMAN. Now, you are-saying they are effective?
Dr. Dom% Absolutely.
Mr. WAXMAN. I thought Mr. Horrigair claimed that we should

not have this label changed because labels, per se, are not effective
in informing people. That is the argumenI have been hearing in
the last couple hearings, that in Sweden anli other places, warning
labels are not an effective way to inform the public.

Mr. HORRIGAN. I can't say that, Mr. Chairman,
Mr. WAXMAN.. You believe the warning labels are effective?
Mr. HORRIGAN. I said that, it is in-my testimony, in my lengthier

submission to your committee.
Mr. WAXMAN. If we want to inform, the public that cigarette

smoking is a major cause of heart disease, that cigarette smoking is
the No. 1 cause of lung cancer, and that cigarette smoking by preg-
nant women may result in birth defects!while you might not
agree with the messagewouldn't warning labels be an effective
meant convey this information?

Mr. ORRIGANI We don't believe it would be; Obviously, we are
here this morning because we objeCt to this legislation on several
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bases, not purely the method of communication. But on several
bases.

Mr. WAxmAN. Your objection is to the substance of the warning?
Mr. HORRIGAN. Our objections are based upon the mechanics of

it, the fact that it is unworkable---
Mr. WAXMAN. Why is it unworkable? You say that it is only a

matter of econmpics I
Mr. HORRIGAN [continuing]. This bill, in its present form, has as-

sociated penalties along with certain requirements. And with the
multiplicity of brands and brand styles and this methodology or ro-
tating warnings, the cigarette industry is being exposed very badly
from a litigation standpoint.

The mechanics of implementation, regardless of cost, are also
burdensome. So those are just some-- ,

Mr. WAxmAN [continuing]. I don't want to be unfair to'anybody.
It seems to me if that is the problem, it can be worked out. We can
talk about how you can implement what we would consider tO be a
legitimate warning label because from our point of view, we want
to inform the public as to the dangers from smoking.

I understand you wouldn't agree with the message we have to
carry, but as far as the mechanics of deliveiing that message, that
seems to me to be something thaf can be worked oul, if that were
the only problem. .

Mr HORRIGAN. Aside from the mechanics, we have also stated
clearly in our testimony that we object to this kind of requirement
dr legialation because the requirements of those statements as put
forth in the package are without foundation. s

We have a right to be heard on that iasue.
Mr. WAXMAN. I understand ydu don't agree with the message we

have to deliver:. I want to clarify the issues we have before us. I
have been hearing that you don't agree with the message we have
to deliver and you don't think this is an effective way to deliver the
message.

We can dispose of this second item. It appears you are in agree-
ment that having warning labels is an effective way of informing
the public'. ...

Mr. HORRIGAN. We are saying that the warning label, as it is
presently constituted, is delivering the message that you have a,
concern for. We do not believe that these will'serve any useful pur-
pose. It will add to the clutter and it is terribly simplistic to say it
can be worked out mechanically, because,.Mr. Chairman, it will be
extremely difficult for yo.ur own FTC as well astthe manufacturers.
You are leaving us in an open field.

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, it seems to me I am getting different mes-
sages here. Maybe that is one of the problems, the message is not
clear and consistent. Dr. Light, you indicated one of the reasons
you think our bill is deficient is that it violates'one of the princi-
ples of advertising, and that is to be consistent and clear. and
simple.

And therefore, you think the warning label already required fol-
lows communications criteria for successful transmission of the
message. Is that a correct statement?

DT. LIGHT. Yes, sir.
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Mr. WAXMAN. I would like to ask of you, why, is it that the ciga-
rette industrl, feels that it must frequently vary the formats of ad-
vertisements and.not rely on the same one? Why do you change
the pictures or graphics? Certain things are consistent, but why are
others changed?

Isn't it to try to get and maintain public attention, because they
do get tired of seeing the same advertisement over and over? [See
p. 187 1 .

Dr. LIGHT. That is a very good example. If you look at it you will
find elements we keep constant and there are elements we have It
is not true we have an ad. The intention is to keep the substance
constant, and vary executional context. Now, if you look at that
campaign, we consider it in fact a classic worldwide example, not
just domestic example, but worldwide example of consistency, not
of inconsistency. .

Yes, it is true that the pictures change. It is also true there are
elements that are consistent. Each has its own purpose That cam-
paign is an example of consistency of message. It is not designed to
say a different thing to the consumer in ad one, versqs ad two,
versus ad three. ,

If we did advertising research on any one of those ads, we would
expect the same message to come through. The message may be ex-
ecuted differently. Why? To get attention. Not to communicate dif-
ferent information. , .

Mr. WAXMAN. How much attention do you think the public is
giving to the little label down here at the bottom that' never
varies? It is,always the same and has what I consider a bland state-
ment, "Warning: The Surgeon,,General has determined that ciga-
rette smoking is dangerous ta your health." The dangers aren't
clarified.

The consumer looks at that and says, "Well, dangerous to your
health, sure," if they see it at all.

Dr. LIGHT. I don't know, but
Mr. WAXMAN. If you were hired by us to do an advertising cam-

paign to communicate the message that people shouldn't smoke be-
cause if they do they are risking their health, of course it is their
decision, but tg communicate that fact to them so they will be
aware of it, would you recommend that the most effective thing we
could do is to put the label down here at, the bottom and never
change it?

Dr. LIGHT [continuing]. You have asked several questions. fiet me
see if I can remember. First, in terms of consistency, let's take the
name Marlboro. It is very consistent. Same type style, same layout,
same name repeated over and over again.

The package design. There are certain things clients keep con-
stant, name, logo, basic theme line, symbols or signs.

Mr. WAXMAN. I don't understand which of my questions you are
answering. It seems to me, the questions I would like you to answer
are, one, do you think that the public, with that same warning
label placed ih the same location, really assesses that 'health mes-
sage as effectively as they could?

And second, if you were advising us as an advertising 6xpert on
how to communicate the message we want to communicate, would
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you recommend the current label as the mo4t effective way to com-
municate this message?

Dr. LIGHT. The, first question as I was trying to say, I believe that
the consistency is not a problem. It is an asset, What it means is
that the consumer can quickly scan that page and by recognizing
familiar symbols without carefully reading every word, reminding
them what is in that symbol.

That is exactly why advertisers Ilse symbols. Now, that white box
with that type style is a symbol. I will pick an example of another
ad. This is an ad in a language you might not understand.

I believe it is Chinese. But there is, becau'se. this ad appeared in
the United States, a Surgeon General's warning in Chinese. But I
believe that if we showed this advertisement to today's consumers
and said, "What do you think is written in this box?" consumers
who do not understand Chinese, they would play back the impres-
sion, the message associated with ihe Surgeon General's warning.

Mr. WAXMAN. The Federal Trade Commission saffl that fewer
than 3 percent of the people who saw a cigarette ad read the warn-
ing label. How do you 'explain- that fact? I am sure 100 percent
could identify these as Marlboro cigarettes.

Dr. LIGHT. That is probably. not true. But let's assume that if I
show people an ad, my impression is that if I show people an adver-
tisement and ask them what that said:they would play back the
Surgeon General's warning. I believe if we did the research proper-
ly and did it as traditional research, we would show them the ad-
vertisement, and then not ask them, what pieces of the ad people
looked at on any given occasion.

People look at advertising campaigns, not at individual ads.
What we are after in measuring the effectiveness of the campaign
is the cumulative tracking studies, such as the Gallup survey, are
what we use in our industry to evaluate what the net impression is
of an advertising campaign.

It seems that that element, warning, that cigarette smoking may
be dangerous to our health, is dangerous to your health, has been
communicated to 90 percent of the people. That is a triumph.

Mr. WAXMAN. That is right.
Dr. LIGHT. Congratulations.
Mr. WAXMAN. Congratulations to you. You are the ones who are

triumphing. You are making a tremendous amount of money, an
unheard of amount of money selling a product, and you are doing,
it very successfully with advertisements that communicate the
message tp buy one brahd or another and to take up the habit of
smoking. Don't congratulate us. We have to pay the bill for those
people when they get lung cancer or heart disease.

We hate to pay for them when they get cancer and their insur-
ance runs out if they had any at all. That is the problem we have.
Please don't congratulate us. I congratulate you. Look at this ad-
vertisement. This must be one of your favorites, certainly one of
your most effective.

It shows Kent cigarettes as a carton of ite cream. "Scoop on
taste. Kent, of course," it says on the bottom. Now is the message
of this advertisement, I' am asking more out of curiosity than any-,
thing else, that smoking cigarettes is as 'good as eating ice cream?
Or is this advertisement saying to people if you stop smoking ciga-

'
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rettes, you are going to get fat because yieu are going to eat ice
cream? I.See p. 260.]

Dr. Licirr. I doubt it is saying either of those two things. Is that
a multiple choice?

Mr. WAXMAN. What,does it say to you as an advertising expert?
Is the message simple, consistent, et cetera?

Dr. LIGHT. As I know, that advertising campaign, they have been
running each ad associated with various food products. Research
seems to suggest that in the low tar category, people are concerned
withthat low-tar cigarettes don't taste very good.

And Kent is obviously hoping with this advertising to communi-
cate that this particular brand has good taste delivery.

Mr. HORRIGAN. Mr. Chairman, pardon me, but back in . your
statement a few moments ago, for the record, you made the obser-
vation that our ads are designed to make people take up sinoking.
And that is not our objective at all. With regard to that particular
campaign, I think, there is your picture; Mr. Waxman, Mr. _Chair-
man, that Li-

Mr. WAXMAN. I will take two of those.
Mr. MERMAN [continuing]. You present yourself to your custoiri-

ers, your voters in a very favorable way. With regard to our indus-
try and our advertising for thoie millions of people who have made
the decision to smoke we present the product in a pleasurable way
becauie to those who smoke, it is a.pleasurable habit,

So we present our product in a pleasurable way in the same way
you, I think, when you run for office, present yourself, but we .do
ndt urge people to take up smoking.

Mr. WAXMAN. I am not an expert in man'y things, but I know
more than most people. about campaigns. I know if there is an elec-
tion going on and no contest, the voter turnout tends to be much
lower. If there is a contest, competing candidates are trying to sell
themselves. They are saying life is going to be more pleasurable if
you vote for one as opposed to the another.

Obviously, candidates are trying to sell their brand, get the
public to vote for them. But the consequence of that campaign is to
increase voter turnout. More people participate in the election. I
believe the impact of advertising, despite your claim it is only to
attract smokers from one brand to another, increases the number
of people who smoke.

Mr. HORRIGAN. Having been introduced, you recognize my 1-3ack-

ground has been in other industries,Jet's saY, where a far more,
open environment exists to compete in the marketplace. Our indus-
try competes in a very restnctive, inhibited environment and
therefore, within that, we know for a fact what is happening to the
smoking population and the incidence of smoking.

So indeed, we have a very competitive industry. But it is in fact
one of us going against the other, and another company going
against the other and it is strictly a .matter of brand preference
and brand switching.

It is clear from the statistics and trend that we are not building
the smoking population of America.

Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Light, the Ted Bates Agency wrote in one of
their advertising memoranda of a proposed campaign to attragt
teenagers, young people to cigarettes.
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The qudte that has been used a nurnber of times in our hearings
and came from a hearing of our oversight committee when 'they ob-
tained the information from the Federal Trade Commission. It as-
serted that for the young smoker, the cigarette is not yet an inte-
gral part of life, of day-to-day life, in spite Gf the fact that they try
to project the image of a regular, run-of-the-milt smoker.

For them, the cigarette, and whole smokineprocess, is part of
the illicit pleasure category. In a young smoker's mind a cigarette
falls into the same category with wine, beer, shaving, wearing a
braor purposely not wearing onedeclaration of independence
and striving for self-identity.

For the young starter, a cigarette is associated with introduction
to, sex life, with courtship, with smoking pot, keeping late studying
hours. This analysis is one of what young people, generally speak-
ing, think about smoking, and I would assume that this informa-
tion is translated into an advertising campaign that can encourage
them to take up this habit, with a particular brand in mind.

It becomes a life-long habit.
Dr. LIGHT. That assumption is incorrect.
Mr. WAXMAN. Oh. Tell me what is incorrect.
Dr. LIGHT. Well, I had only arrived in the city and only joined

Ted Bates several months ago. So I must jell you I only learned
about the Viceroy--

Mr. WAXMAN. What were you doing before that?
Dr. LIGHT [continuing). I was with BBDO. But since the subject

did come up, our legal counsel had briefed me On the issue. I have
read the materials yesterday. And I think, for the record, it might
be useful to review what did happen to that paragraph, because I ,
think the stateMents you have made and assumptions you have
made are incorrect.

Not that Mies been inaccurately quoted, but it is incorrect that
that quote was reflected in any advertising.

Mr. WAXMAN. Where did that quote come from then?
Dr. LIGHT. Well, the circumstances were simple. -The Ted Bates

Agency, as I understand, was apparently in trouble on the Viceroy
brand. There was no secret. The client had told the agency they
were about to lose the account. The account group, being nervous,
and ,that is certainly not a surprise, they are also human, initiated
some research:

The first thing I should point out is that it was not Ted Bates'
research. It was research conducted by a company called MARK,
and the research repoct was written by a fellow called Cannon.

This was qualitative research, and the research report was writ-
ten by the moderator of these focus group interviews.

Mr. WAXMAN. Wasn't the report written for the purpose of
trying to figure out what would be a good test or strategy to sell
cigarettes to young people?

Dr. LIGHT. The research report was written by a moderator who,
I don't know what purpose they ran it. But I can say that wile did
happen was that a--

i
-Mr. WAXMAN. Why can't you magine the purpose? Why do you

think they were doing. that? Do .you think they are sociologist's
trying to figure out what kids like? They are discussing trying to
sell cigarettei, saying what teenagers like.

Etri_

MR
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I will certainly let you complete your statement.
Dr. LIGHT. Thank you. There was a memo issued by an account

executive who, concerned for the job, summarized the results of the
researcleand presented those results to the client.

Now, the key thing is your assumption that advertising was flien
prepared and guided by this misguided research. My impression is,
and I don't know, I haven't talked to Mr. Cannon, but it is that,
knowing that the agency was in trouble and the account persdn
was in trouble, maybe he was trying to ingratiate himself.

In any3case, Brown & Williamson did not request any advertising
be prepared based on that research. Advertising was not prepared
or produced. The point of view in the document was not acted
upon. No ads were ever produced based on that research or based
on those words which you have quoted. And in my opinion, while
the words do exist in a memo, they are quoted out of context and
misrepresent the adveitising process. It sometimes happens that
there is an overzealous account group, maybe a misguided re-
searcher, maybe somebody trying to save his job, in fact, doing just
the opposite.

And unfortunately, an inappropriate memo is issued. But the
truth is there are enough checks and balances on the clients side
and on the agency's side to make sure that those kinds of things do
not happen.

Mr. WAXMAN. I am going to interrupt you. I understand what
you said. You have said it ibr 'the _record. That is the assumption
ybu make. The statement you have for u.4 is that this is not an ac-
curate statement of anything other than ,somebody who was trying
to save his job, and it didn't even lead to an advertising campaign
based on the report's conclusions.

Dr. LIGHT. That is notthere is no advertising reflected on that.
Mr. WAXMAN. I would submit that I would think this person

made the mistake of putting down in writing what goes on in ad-
vertising agencies all the time. And what goes on in advertising
agencies all the time is how are they going to sell a product, and
how are they going to expand the market.

Let me ask you a question along those lines. We have seen statis-
tics that there has been an increase in lung cancer with women.
We also see the statistics that there has been an increase in ciga-
rette smoking among women.

Now, I know it is just statistics and may well be a coincidence,
but can you imagine that perhaps women were taking up smoking
in larger numbers over a period of time because there was some
calculated effort to encourage them to take up smoking?

Mr. Horrigan, it looks like you are anxious to answer that.
Mr. HORRIGAN. If you don't mind, Mr. Chairman, I tvould like to

answer the question, but let's go back a step further. I would like
to speak on behalf of the industry because in corporations, there
are executives who can get themselves in trouble, in Congress
there are people in Congress who can get themselves in trouble. Donot
. Mr. WAXMAN. I w ant you to answer my question.

Mr. HORRIGAN. No._
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Mr. WAXMAN I am going to have to interrupt you. I don't want
to be rude. I asked a specific question, I really want an answer to
it.

MT. HORRIGANA Will answer it.
Mr. WAXMAN. Anything else you want to add,' we will keep the

record open.
Mr. HORRIGAN. Fine. With regard to the incidence of women

smoking, the incidence rate is, in fact, declining. The numbers of
females that a're smoking is increasing as a function of population.
However, when we look at cigarette smoking amongst the female
populatipn, we cannot look at that in isolation.

There is a lot of change in social behavior with regard to females
in America. They are entering into the marketplace and they are
picking up other characteristics. The man who drank a scotch at
the airport and tit up 5 years ago now drinks white wine but the
working girl may stop at the same bar at the airport and 'have a
drink and light up a cigarette. It is a matter of social behavior.

Mr. WAXMAN Bo you imagine the adverstising campaign, "You
have come a long way, baby, directed toward women to encourage
them to be more liberated and with it to take up smoking, may
have had some impact on their decision to take up smoking?

Mr. HORRIGAN. No, Mr. Chairman. In our testimony, we continue'
to hold to the position our advertising is not geared to increasing
the smoking market, but when those people make that decision,
and within that universe that company chooses to make that pars
ticular proposition to a female smoker, not a nOnsmoker.

If I might--
Mr. WAXMAN. Yes.
Mr. HORRIGAN. Pardon me, Mr. Chairman. May I enter some-

thing for the record now? Is it appropriate, or later on?
Mr. WAXMAN. I am sorry, what did you want?
Mr. HORRIGAN. You said I would have a chance to come back and

enter something in the record with regard to earlier comments.
Mr. WAXMAN. If you put it in writing, we will 'appreciate it.
Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I think it is -appropriate to ask the w tness

how long the statement he desires to make is. Is it lengthy, or
what, sir?

Mr. HORRIGAN. A paragraPh, Mr. Dalinemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I think the gentleman should have the oppor-

tunity of responding'. The chairman has pointed out he would have
a chance. And that length of statement, I don't think, will burden
any ,of us. The chairman has been a little aggressive, and I think
he has a right to be, but I think the witness has a right to respond,
too. -

Mr WAXMAN. I think the gentleman is sbeaking from the point
of view of urging fairness. I will do this. I will recognize my col-
leagues, because I have taken up q lot of time. Should either of my
colleagues vfish to yield during their time, offer any additional
comments, they are free to do so.

Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. Horrigan, supposedly in this bill we were discussing rotation-

,. al labeling. But the line of questioning that we have just been
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.
going through appears to me is based on maybe a ban of .advertis-
ing.

. Ban it all. We had testimony yesterday, and last Friday that,
indeed, cigarette advertising has been banned in Norway and in
Poland. And Italy. The evidence we were presented last Friday
with regard to Norway and Poland, that since this has occurred,
there has been no change in the volume oftcigarettes sold in either
Norway or Poland. That Italy has had total ban on cigarette adver-
tising for 20 years, but that consumption is up.

Figures we were given were 60 percent. My question, Do you
agree with that?

Mr. HoyuGAN. Yes, My. Bliley; I do. I have international tobacco
responsibility and I have had consumes product experience around
the world for othef categories. ThOse same particular trends hold
true. You cannot change human behavior or preferences as a func-
tion of stopping a particular advertising medium.

Mr. BLILEY. The second question. Are you aware of any country
that has banned *cigarette smoking in which following the ban,
there has been A change in consumption?

Mr. HORRIGAN. I am not aware of any. I am aware of the other
reports you refer to, and the reverse effect, Mr. Bliley.

Mr. BLILEY. I see. Now, if you have a statement that you want to
put into the record, you can have,it on my time.

Mr. HORAIGAN. Thank you, Mr. Bliley. I deeply appreciate that. I
mentioned in eny testimony that we are here this morning because

, we are a responsible and concerned industry. A statement made
earlier, taking one particular marketing stateMent out of context
and making thegeneral assumption that that applies to how we as
an industry market our products is grossly unfair as a mark upon
our,iffdustry. .,

Dr. Larry Light has commented about how we stay in place. We
have hundreds *of people in the marketing process and we haVe-
checks and controls in place. And the integrity of the people within

k ow company and the respect for the laws and the way we market
' our product is of the highest order. To say that people will trot err

within the process of the business place, the busit}ess market, that
is not the way it is. .

But I do not want anyone to leave here this morning with any,
assumption about. the integrity of our industry otc What our inten-
tions are because that would be grossly unfair, ta *ng one incident
out of context. Thank you. I

Mr. BLILEY. Thank you very much. Speaking tof -out of context,
Mr. Chairman, I had a copy of a letter deliverec to me yesterday,
sent to you on March 10 by, the Roper Organization and signed by
Mr. Burns, with Roper saying that, indeed, while his organization
had been quoted and had done a study, that he didn't agree with
the conclusions that were placed on it by the FTC, and others, and
asked you to include in the record.

Do you intend to do so?
Mr. WAXMAN am surprised you got the letter before I did. I

tohaven't seen t letter. But I am Pleased receive it. Without ob-
jection, the le ter addressed to me on the letterhead of the Roper
Organization by Burns W. Roper, chairman, dated March 10, 1982,

. will be made a part of the record.
[The fetter referred to follows:]
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THE. kOPER:101i6AIZATION INC.

i! march 10, 1962, r %

.The Honorable Henry Waxman
Chairmen, Health Subcommittee
Committee on Itaszvy and Commerce
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515'''

Dear Mr. Chairman:

It is my understanding-that your Stbcommittee is
currently holding hearings on HR 5653. This is the bill that
implements the cigarette libeling requirements recommended in
the Federal Trade Commission Staff Report On The Cigarette
Advertising Investigation, dated Way 118l.

At'least two eurveys conducted by the Roper Organi-
zation are cited extensively in that staff report in support of
the report's contention that stronger and more-varied cigarette
warnings are requited both on cigarette packages and in cigarette fPa

advertising. One of the studies sor-cited is the report of a
private surveywe conducted for the TobaCto Institute in 1978
which wais enaed by the FTC and subsequently publicly'
released by mc. The second was a survey We conducted
specifically the liTC in 1980.

. ..,-.,.

In fts ataff.report, the FTC does not directly attri-
bute the conclusions reached (namely, that stronger and varied
warnings are reqUired) tO Our organization. However, the fre-

quent references to our data ca the implication that the
otriFRoper studies support the re ijit `s conclusions.

.

.

I have no objections to the way the FTC staff reported
the results of our surveys. To the extent that I have checked
those facts, they are correct. / do, however, strongly disagree
with the conclufions the FTC staff reaches based on those facts.

-
Because the FTC report relies.so strongly on Roper data

and because I disagree with their interpretations of that data,
I respectfully request that this letter be incleded in the trans-

cript of your hearings. -

20:1EAST.F$117TY-SECOND STREET NEW VORK, NEW YORK 10017 (212144,0700
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The FTC staff concludes, based on our and other survey
data, that the pUblic is inadequately informed about the dangers

, of smoking. Using exactly the same data on'which they base their
conclusion, I would conclude almost exactly the opposite--that
the ptblic is highly aware of the reported dangers of smoking.

In our 1978 surveyconducted for the Tobacco Institute,
not the Federal Trade Commissionwe diew up a balance sheet in
our summary of the survey's findings. The first two "liabilities"
we cited to the rndustry's position were as follows:

"1. More than nine out of every ten
Americans believe that amoking is
hazardous to a smoker's health.

"2. A majority of Americans believe
that it is probably hazardous to be
around people who smoke, even if
they are not =Oki elves."

I would sUbmit that this hardly represents unwareness of
the 'problem.

In dealing with our 1980 suiVey conducted for the FTC,
the staff report notes on page 5-40:

"Despite'the dangers og garbon monoxide, many
people are unaware of its presence in ciga-

rette.smoke. In the 1980 Roper study, 53%
of the _total sample and 56% of smbkers did
not know that cigarette smoke contains
carbon monoxide."

While I do not quarel with this finding, I do quarrel
with its implication. I would submit that many also dpn't know
that carbon monoxide is dangerous to one's health.

My fundamental quarrel with the FTea contention is
that they are expecting,the public to possess a high level of
detailed, rather technical information that it is wholly unreal-
istic to expect and that can probably never be achieved by any
educational campaign, no matter haw extensive it is, or of what

duration it is.

4
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An analogy: I would submit that most Americans know .

their cars have air pollution equipment installed in them, that
substantially fewer know they have catalytic converters, and that

. very, very few know these catalytic converters contain platinum.
Doesithis mewl we need a campaign'to,acquaint people with the
presenCe of platinum in the catalytic converters that constitute
a major portion of tie air pollution equipment cars?'

On page 5-24 of the FTC staff report, the follawing stf.e/4e-
ment appears based on oui-I978 survey for the Tobacco Institute:

"Sixty-one percent of those polled and 69%
of the non-itmokers polled favored the
proposed new warning. Only 34% of tbCee
polled and 20% of the non-amakers favored
the current warning."

The implication of this citation is that this shaws the,
need for a stronger warning. To me, it shows the reverse. Sixty-
one percent would not favor a stronger warning unless they were
already aware of the dangers.

Many of the FTC staff's conclusions that the public is
unaware of specific dangers resulted from the inpidences of
"incorrect" answers--or guesses--on multiple-choice questions we
asked on behalf of the FTC in our 1980 survey. These were ques-
tions that asked how many times more likely a smoker was than a
non-smoker to get disease X and then offered four or five different
ratios (e.g., less than twice as likely, twice as likely, five
times as likely, ten times as likely, twenty times as likely). In
response to almost alI of these questions, the great majority of
people answered more likely, even if they did not pick the piecise
nuMber of times more likely that the FTC says is correct.

Where the frame of reference was reduced life expectancy,
the great majority answered that the smoker experienced reduced
life expectancy even if they were not able to guess the exact
nuMber of yeafe.

If I were to ask you if the 1sun is a lot farther from the,
earth than the moon is, Or a little farther from the earth than the
moon is, or about.the same distance .from the earth as the moon is,
you would have little troUble answering that it is a iot farther,
thus indicating a high general awareness of the relationship of the
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sua and moon to the earth. But if I ware to adk you whether the

sun is 42.6 time. as far from tho earth as the moon is, or 121.8

times as far, or 266.3 times as far, or 389.1 times as far, it is

possible you would not select the correct answer. (I would not

have, either,and in fact / didn't know what the exact ratio was

until I looked it up and computed it.) But I don't think this

means we need a new educational campaign to make people aware how

much farther the'sun is from the earth than the moon is. .,

I would not argue that more'severe and varied warnings

would lessen pUblic understanding of the dangers. But I would

argue that they are unlikely to increase the awareness much, for

it is already at a very high level.

My main purpose, however, is to dissociate our firm from

the conclusionsthough not the datadrawn from our surveys.

I am soiling copies of this letter to each of the meMbers

of your Subcommittee as well as to our contacts at both the Federal

Trade Commission and the Tobacco Institute. I am aleo including a

copy of a letter I sent to Mx. Andrew SaCks of the FTC at the time

we delivered our 1980 survey, a letter which has since been mode

public. In that letter I indicated that we concluded the survey
showed high general awareness of the rieks of'smoking,

B1(11/maa

4

Respectfully yours,

Burns W. Ropir-'
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THE ROPER ORGANIZATION kic .

ammmicsom,
owwwy December 5, 1980

Andrew tacks. Esq.
fefferal Trade Commission
414 llth Street, N.W.
Room 6415
Washington, D.C. 20058

Dear Mr. Sacks:

Each of my three partners.and I (incidentally, two
zusekers, two non-smokers) have made, a quick review of the results
to your tack*on questions. It has been a quidk review because
of the need to get the print-outs to you before the deadline we
promised.

Nevertheless, quick or not, it is our joint opinion
that the results show a high general awareness of the dangers of
smoking op health that the government, the Cancer Society and
others have been promoting. There are exceptions--breast cancer,
for example--but we would call it a generally high awareness.

There are some differences between smokers and non-smo-
kers, with smokers being somewhat leas inclined to acknowledge
smoking as causal, but we are more impressed by the similarity of
the answers given by smokers and non-smokers than by the differ-
ences.

Earlier I mentioned a high "general" awareness. By that
I mean that while many people give technically wrong numerical
relationships (e.g., "50 times more likely", "10 times as lilsely",
"50% greater", "6 to 8 years less", etc.), most say there is a
significantly greater chance of X, or a significant reduction in
expected longevity, etc.

In this connection, we would point out something I men-
tioned on the phone when I spoke to you, namely; the effect of
the alternatives that are put to respondents when they have only

ass EAST FORTY.SECONO STMET NEW YOU1C. NEW YOMC 10017 1212/ 00 0707
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a general knowledge and not precise information, You will remember

that we aiked Q.3211 with two different sets of aoswer options on
the two different halves of the sample. One scale ran from less
than twice as likely up to 20 times as likely; the other set of
options ran from five times as likely to 50 times ia likely. In

each question there were five options, with the correct answer (10

timers as likely) being the second option (second least frequent)

for the Y sample and the next to last option (second most frequent)

on the X half of the sample. The effect of the options posed to
respondents as well as the measure of people's imprecise knowledge

is shown by the difference in response to the correct answer in

the two sample halves. Nearly four axles as many people gave the

correct answer when it was in the number two position on the list

'as when rt was in the next to last position.

It is our view that this generalized knowledge, rather

than precise knowledge, probably explains a 'good deal of the uncer-

tainty in other questions that abed highly specific time frames or

, ratios, even though we don't have split-sampled evidence to document

that feeling.

j
Sincerel yours,

/4 -0

Burns W. Ropdi

Mr. Buim. I `thank you very, niuch. I have no further questions,
Mr. Chairman.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I sit here and reflect on thfs warning label

and reflect on the fact, if heard dorrectly, that 96 percent of the
people, or was it teenagers in this .cciuntry, were aware

Mr. floRRIGAN. Yes, Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER [continuing]. Of health hazards associated with

smoking, and still we are having a Tot of cigarettes sold in the
country. Maybe we adults should recognize the deficiency in our
label. It says the Surgeon General, and I think a lot of people
wonder who the Surgeon General is.

For those who know, he is associated with the Federal Govern-
ment. I am reminded of that story about the person who comes to
the citizens and says, "I am from the Government, and I want to
help you."

The reactiOn of a lot of people in this country today, unfortunate-
ly, is to put .their hands in their pocket and get out of there as
quic151y as. they can. If wp would put a label on cigarettes that
sayssince I come from Fullerton, Calif., which is the home of the
California Angels, I'll'use a couple of people there whose names are
associated rather extensively in the sports world. If, say for in-
stancp, Rod Carew, most valuable player playing fot the California
Angels,' said that, or if, Mohammed Ali or Reggie Jackson or some-
body elseany of, these names that are famous in American
sportsput their names on that label, we might increase the often-

.. tion level of.people. MaYbe our advertising community would have
an opportunity of responding.

416
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If more women are smoking today, the fact may be that it is the
result of the women's liberation movement in our culture. Perhaps
more women are working outside the home and they feel whatever
pressures there are that cause people to smoke.

My closing comments would be these, Mr. Chairman. I suppose
that someplace in America, sooner or later, a meeting of the Mafia
high command would express the sentiment that some day they
hope some plaintiffs lawyer is going to hit the tobacco industry of
this country with a product liability suit and win because they are
astute enough businessmen to recognize that, as a result, the legiti-
mate tobacco producers would be driven right out of the industry.
And this would just cause the greatest interest on the part of those
interested in the illegal production and sale of cigarettes because
we would be back in prohibition time again.

So I think we have an objective in mind of improving public
health. It is laudable. I support that. The label is there for people
to'read and reflect on hopefully. '

But you know, yesterday in this Chamber, we had a hearing on
clean air. I have to ask, are we labeling coal consumed in pe.Aer-
plants of America, the burning of which is dangerous to your
health? After all, we taxpayers spend, what is it, about $1 billion a
year 'on black lung benefits. And I have forgotten how many people
we kill a year each year mining coal in this country.

I tyA not aware we are labeling coal. Maybe we should in order
to ameliorate human suffering, to ameliorate the adverse impact
on people. Maybe we should label every type of energy produced
and consumed in America because when we are honest about it,
every one of them poses a risk to our health.

Thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Would the gentleman yield?
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I would be happy to yield.
Mr. WAXMAN.. I have listened to what the gentleman was saying

quite carefully. There is a difference it seems to me in what we are
doing in the Clean Air Act, trying to limit the amount of emissions
in the air that people breathe. There is a choice to be made when
someone picks up a package of cigarettes, decides to pull one out
and light it up. That is a different situation than whether you are
going to breathe the air or not.

I think in the one case, the question of the air, we have an obli-
gation to protect the public from breathing hazardous air. In pie
case of cigarettes, I am not for prohibition. People are going to
make a decision for themselves, but I want people to understand
that if they are going to take up cigarette smoking, they are sub-
jecting themselves to real health hazards. And there we have, I
think, the obligation to encouiage the public to be as knowledge-
able as possible.

They certainly have a bombardment of advertising to make ciga-
rette smoking seem attractive. I Olink they ought to be aware as
they make a personal choice, where they have the opportunity to
make a personal choice, about the other side as well.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I appreciate the gentleman's comment.
Mr. WAXMAN. Anything furttler by any members of the subcom-

mittee? 4

94-387 0 - 82 - 2,7 417
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I would comment that the Roper Organization's letter, Which we
made part of the record, was sent by express mail. We will prob-
ably get our copy soon hut it indicates in this letter that they criti-
cize the Federal Trade Commission staff conclusions that the public
is inadequately" informed about the dangers of smoking. This, I un-
derstand, is only one of five polling organizations that looked into
pdblic opinion on the subject.

The Roper letter indicates that in a survey they conducted for
the Tobacco Institute, they found that 9 out of 10 Americans be
lieve that smoking is hazardous.

Mr. Horrigan, Mr. Kornegay, Mr. Witt, Dr. Light, We- thank you
very much for being with us, for giving your views ori these issues,
and for anything else you might want to add to the record. We do
want to be as fair as we can be in getting all the points of view
before us before the Congress makes its decision.

Thank you very much.
.6, Mr. HOREIGAN. Thank you, Mr. Chain clan.

. Mr. KORNEGAY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, very much.
[Testimony resumes on p. 443.]
[The following letter and attached materials were submitted for

the record:]

4.18
7
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April 2, 1982

Edward A. Norrigan,
Chairman and Chief Executilie Officer
R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company ir

401 M. Main Street
WinstonSalem, North Carolina 47102

heat Kr. Rorrigan:

In order to supplement the hearing record of your
testimony on March 12, 1912 regarding the"Comprehensive
Smoking Prevention Education Act, / would app$eciate-your
response to the attached list of questions and requests for
information. Your assistance in responding by the close of
business' April 23, 1982 would be 4reatly appreciated.

Please contact Ripley Forbes of the.Sdbcommittee staff
if you have any questions.

With every good'vish, I an,

MAW/rfm

Sincerely,

VENRY WAXMAN -

Chairman, Subcommittee on
Sealth and the Environment
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(1) Under product liability law, manufacturers are required

to warn consumers about the dangets or risks associated

with hhe use of their products. Please submit a legal
opinion,describing the obligation of the R.J. Reynolds

Company to warn consumers of the risks of smoking

cigarettes in the event the labeling provisions of the

Federal Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act are

repealed. Indicate the specific dangers you would feel

obligated to disclose to discharge your legal

responsibilities.

(2) Briefly describe all cigarette related product liability
litigation in which the R.J. Reynolds Company and other

major U.S. cigarette manufacturers are presently

involved.

(3) /n testimony before the Subcommittee you indicated that

there were approximately 200 Individual cigarette brands

marketed in the United States. Submit a list of these
brands and indicate the market share and units sold of

each for the years 1980 and 1981.

(4), In testimony before the Subcommittee you estimated that
H.R. 5653 could present an additional annual cost to

industry of 640 million. Submit fgr the Subcommittee a
detailed analysis of how this cost figure was computed.-

Indicate how specific costs relating to changes.in
package labels are iSolAted from those attributed to

advertising. With respect to additional adliertising
costs indicate how such costs are allocated between
outdoor advertising, magazine advertising and newpaper

advertising.

(5) Submit a list of those countries in which the R.J.

Reynolds Company or its subsidiaries market cigarettes.

Indicate those countries that requite a'health warning

on either cigarette packages or +advertisements.

(6) How many brands of cigarettes does the R.J. Reynolds

Company sell in.Oreat Britain? Where are the packages

and advertisements produced and printed?

(7) How many brands of cigarettes does the R.J. Reynolds

Company sell in Sweden? Where are the cigarette

packages and advertisements produced and'printed?

(8) Of the R.J. Reynolds Company's three largest selling

brands of cilgarettes, how many 4iffesent magazine and
newspaper advertisements were run in the United States

during 1980 and 1981?

(9) How often are non-painted billboard advertisements,
sponsored by,the R.J. Reynolds Company, replaced or

repaired? How often are painted billboard
advertisements replaced or repaired? In an average year

what is the ratio of non-painted to painted billboard

advertisements?

(10) Describ he p oductioe process used to distribute
magazin ndr, wapaper advertising for publication.
What is th e e coat of typesetting the 'currentf

warning lab 1 com ared with the cost of producing an
individual advertisement?

42o
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R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company
Winston-Salem, N.C. 27102

April 29, 1982

Honorable Homey& Waxman
Chairman, Subcooeittee on Health and the Envircniment
United States- flame of Representatives
Washingtcn, El. C. 20515

Dear Mr: Chaizmans

I refer td your letter to BdWard A. Harrigan, Jr. dated
April 8, 1982 and the list of questions attached thereto. Mr.
Harrigan has wiled that I respond to your letter in his absence.

As you will recall, Mr. Harrigan appeared before your
sdboommittee on March 12, 1982 in his capacity as Chairman of the
Executive Committee of The Tbbacco Institute. ln that capacity,
he testified as spokesman for the tobacco industry and not.as a
representative of R. J. Reynolds Tbbacco COmpany.

Enclosed are respcnses to Questions 1 through 7 attached bo
your letter.

Certain aspects of questions 8 through 10 attcbed to your
letter would require the disclosure by R. J. Reynolds Tbbacco
Company of higbly sensitive information from a competiti
standpoint. FOr example, R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company has its
own internal media department which we believe is able to achieve
certain efficiencies that our competitors cannot. In addition,
all members of our industry omapensate their advertising agencies
on different baSes and we consider it unfair to require our
Company to disblose information ofthis nature.

Accordingly, I respectfully request that you reconsider the
apprcpriateness of questions 8 through 10 in view of Mr.
Harrigan's poeition as an #olustry spokesman and the nature of

vthe information requested.

Very truly yours,

Samuel B. Witt, III, Esq.

SBW:ryin

Atbactments

ToMphone (9191 7T1-5093 Ulu 806483 RJR CENT WSL B Telecopier i9(9) 777-6t85

4 21
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WISTION Is Under product liability law, manufacturers are
required to warn consumer* about the dangers or
risks associated with the use of thir koducts.
Please submit a legal opinion describing the
obligation of the R. J. Reynolds Company to warn
consumers of the risks of smoking cigarettes in the
event the labeling provisions of the Federal
Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act are
repealed. Indicate the specific dangers you would
feel obligated to disclose to discharge your legal
responsibilities.

RESPONSE: In view of the litigation in which Reynolds is
presently involved (see answer to Question 2
below), it is Counsel's opinion that it would
be inadvisable to comment further on this
subject.

QUEST/ON 2: Briefly describe all cigarette related product
liability litigation in which the R. J. Reynolds

'Company and other major U.S. cigarette
manufacturers are presently involved.

RESPONSE: There are three types of cigarette-related
product liability litigation in which R. J.
Reynolds TObacco Company and other major U.S.
cigarette manufacturers are presently
involved: (a) suits aeeking'damages for cancer
or other aklments allegedly caused by
cigarettes; (b) third-party suits seeking
contribution or indemnity with respect to
damages for which defendants may be liable;
and (c) suits seeking damages for fires
allegedly ignited by cigarettes.

QUESTION 3: In testimony before the SubCommittee you If101icated
that there were approximately 200 individual
cigarette brands marketed in the United States.
Submit a list of these brands and indicate the
market, share *nd units sol4 of each for the years
19$0 and 1981.

'RESPONSE: Attached as Exhibit A is a list of all
cigarette brands marketed in the United
States (on which sales volume data is
available) indicating'the units sold of each
for the years 1980 and 1981. Attached as
Exhibit IS is a list of all brands marketed in
the United.States (on which share of market

4 22
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available) indicating the market share
. -of each for the yests 1980 and 1981.

*
QUESTION 4: In testimony before the, Subcommittee you estimated

that H.R. 5653 could present an additional annual
cost to industry of $40 million. Submit for the
Subcommittee a detailed; analysis,of how this cost
figure waecompyted. Indicate.how specific costs
relating to changasAn package labels are isolated
from those.attributed to advertising. With respect
to additional advertising costs indicate how'such
costs'are allocated between outdoor advertising,
magazine advertising and newspaper advertising.

RESPONSE! The Tobacco Industry's opposition to H.R.
5653, as indicated in Mr: Horrigan's
testimony, is mit based-upon the potential
costs of compliance. In the Industry's view,
economics are not the primary issue. The
Tobacco Industry is opposing this bill because
the findings underlying it are incorrect and
unsubstantiated, because it is unnecessary and
because its true objective is the abolitlgon of
smoking.

The'figure given during Mr. Horrigan's
testimony was'a very rough estimate in an
effort to respond Mr: Bliley's question.
Insofar as the costs aksociated with
compliance do not fbrm the basis for our
industry's opposition to this Bill, we simply
have not spent the considerable time, effort
and expense necessary to fully respond to this
question.

In our view, regardless of the costs to-the .
TObacco Industry which would be associated
with compliance, the costs to the judicial
system, the Federal Government and the
taxpayer would be substantial and totally
unwarranted in view of the public's present
level of awareness of the claims made about
smoking and health.

QUESTION 5: Submit a list of those countries in which the R. J.
Reynolds Company or its subsidiaries market
cigarettes. Indicate those countries that require
a health warning on either cigarette packages or
advertisements.

RESPONSE: Attached as,Exhibit C is a .1,ist of those
countries ih which R. J. Reynolds Tobacco
Company and its affiliated companies actively
market cigarettes and which indicates.those

A

1 ' ,4!

4ar

- -I



42°

coUnteies which require health warnings on
cigarette packages or advertisements. While
R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and its
affiliates sell more than fifty brands in one
hundred sixty countries and territories around
the world.'the countries and territories
reflected on the attached list represent our
more aceive markets.

QUESTION 6: How many brands of cigarettes does the R. J.
Reynolds Company sell in Great Britain? Where are
the packages and advertisements produced and
printed? .

RESPONSE: R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and its
affiliated companies sell a total, of eight
brands of cigarettes in the United Kingdom and
the Republic of Ireland. Packaging is"
produced and printed in Germany and
advertisements are generally produced and
printed in the United Kingdom.

QUESTION 7: How many brands of cigarettes does the R. J.
Reynolds Company sell in Sweden? Where are the
cigarette packages and advertisements produced and
printed?'

RESPONSE: R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company and its"
affiliated companies sell a total Of "six
brands of cigarettes in Sweden. Packaging is
produced and printed in Germany and in'Sweden.
Advertisements are generally produced anci
printed in Sweden. .

424 14
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EXHIBIT A

tom US-
V0LUME
YEARS

YEMt 1980 i'EAR 1981p
NAME VOL

O.
O.
O.

.VoL'

AMERICAN LOR0S F 120
AMERICAN LONGS A 120

TOT AMER LONUS

O.
O.
O.

'81.111 DURHAM 11621. 9262.
ToT BULL DURHAM 11621. 9262.

CARLTON FILTER 85 5001/13. 4111829..
CARLTON RENrHOL 70 O. O. .
CARLTON /0 00X O.
CARLT0N 85 80X' 343230. 52979.
CARLTON FILM 10 O. O.
CARLTON'FILrER 100 5524069. 4671360.
CARLTON 100 228/060. 2074383.,MENTHOL
CARLTON mENTHOL 85 1870618. 158.1627.
CARLT0N FIL 100 BOX 462722. 867323.
CARLTON MEN'100 BOX 0. 3953.
CARLTON FILTEH 120 0. 236208.
CARLTON MENTHOL 120 O. 111369.

TO CARLSON .. 15489412. 13779031.
HALF & HALF 64617. 57096.

TOT HALF a HALF 64617. 57896.
ICEBERG MENTHOL 100 0892d. 47544.
. TOT,ICE8ERG 68928. 47544.
LUCKY,STRIKE.REGULAR 6075550. 55/0721.
LUCKY STRIKE F1L 85 , O. O.
LUCKY MIKE FIL 100 60/62. 37300.
LUCKY 100. O. O.
LUCKY TEM 35531. 15279.
LUC SrRIKE LO TAR SP O. 3243.
LUC STRIK LO TAR BOX O. 3204.

ToT LUCKY STRIKE 617184 . 5629741.
MoNTCLAIR 29702. 22061.

ToT MoNTCLAIR 29702. 22001.
LUNG JOHNS F 120 1/901. 13925.
LDNG JOHNS N 12b /365. 5158.

Tor LONG JOHNS 2526o. 19083.
OALL MALL IOW 241.11242. 22498428.
PALL MALL F1L 100 * 0168496. 5/84201.
PALL. MALL MEN 100 =70. O.
eALL MALL FILrER 85 93693. 67805.
PALL mALL EXCRA LtS 141119. 101525.
PALL MALL BOX O. O.
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101AL Us
VOLUME .

YEARS

'YEAR 1980 YEAH 1981

VOL VOL

PALL MALL LfS x 100 316903. .207053.

PALL MALL LTS F 100 . 671386. 423909.'

TOT PALL MALL 31504763. 29142921.

SILVA THINS.F 100 831685. 702067.

SILVA MINS A 100 428665. 338414.

TOT SILVA THINS 1260350. 1040481.

SUPER X MENTH0L 100 O. O.

TOT SUPER A O. o .

rAREYTON FILTER 85 4600705. A110660.

TAREYTON FILTER 100 35688/8. 3280567.

TAREYTON LIGHTS 85 945315. 635944.

TAREYTUN LIGHTS 100 1104443. 893785.

TAREYTON LIGHTS RENT -15121. O.

TARETRKAULTRA MENT 11863. -9198.

101 TRIREY168 10210083. 8911758.

dERdERT TAREYTON 198124. 182019.

TUT H TAREYTON 198124. 182019.

TAILS FILfER 120
TOT TgIST

Q-i210d.
-2108. -2916.
78678. 349496.

-2916.fitISr MENTHOL 1C0

1ALLS MENTHOL 120 110116. .98793.

TOT TAILS 488794. 44d289.

AmERICAN LIGHTS F120 29248. 16621.

ARERIzA8 LIGHTS 14120 10900. 5464.

IOC AMERICAN LIS 40148. 22091.

AEC mISC 9-
0.

'ALL OTHER ATC 0. O.

f0T ATC CIGT.
deLAIR 85
°CLAIR 100

Tiff SELAIR
DUMAURIER'FILTER BOX

ToT OURAGRI4A
FACT FILTER
FACT MENTHOL

TOr FACT
KOOL REGULAR
Om FILTER 85
KOOL FILTER 100
KaoL MILOS 85
K00L BoX

426

65507543. 59309267.
4131720. 3708283.
3050154. 3005705.
7181814. 61/3988.
34317. 29583.

34311. 29583.
o. o.

O. O.

0, O.

639324. 571632.

31741063. 29839066.
8990471. 9166238.
570/043. 5986713.
2114460. 2077740.
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DAfEs 4/19/1962 TOTAL US
2/82 VOLUME

YEARS r

YEArd 1980 YEAR 1901

NAME VOL

KOOL NON awri trio L er O.
KOOL SUPER LIGHTS d5 2166120.
KOoL SUPER LIGHT ICG 22C6344.
;am mILDS 100 659346.
KOOL INTER BOX 1332.
KOOL LIGHTS 85 O.
KOOL LIGHTS 100 t O.
KOOL ULTRA 85 O.0
KOOL ULTRA 100 O.

TOT KooL 54226103.
RALEIW KING 904554.
RALEIGH FILTER d5 5215895.
RALEIGH FILTER ICO 2839547.
RALEIUH LIGHTS 85 1351494.
RALEIOH LIGdTS ICU 931338.
, TOT RALEIGh 1124282d..

VICEROY d5, 6590064.
VICEROY 100 1930349.
VICEROY MILOS O.
VICEROY RICH LfS d5 1162601.
VICEROY RICH-LTS 100 I10325o.

TOT VICEROY 10792270.
ARCTIC LIGHTS d5 285342.
ARCTIC LIGdrS 100 461490.

TOT ARCTIC 746832.
SPIRIT FILTER 85 O.
SPIRIT FILTim 100 G.

TOT SPIRIT O.
BARCLAY FILTER 85 132876.
BARCLAY FILTER 10G 115484.
BARCLAY FILTER BOX T9030.
BARCLAY MENTHOL 85 O.
BARCLAY MENTHOL 100 O.

Tar BARCLAY ,25/190.
ToT iS d s CfuT. 84481414.

CHESTERFIELD REGULAR 558227.
CHESTERFIELD KING 3032038.
CHESTERFIELD FILTiR 51806.
CHESTERFIELD 101 164549.

TOT CHESTERFIELD 3800620.
EAGLES FILTER O.

427

O.
1678693.
1836444.
719130.

O.
276552.
299280.
218064.
224784.

52894336.
815814.

4646578.
2779264.
1290108.

, 1040868.
10578632.
5929865.
1797593.

O.
840354.
822774.

9390586.
65046.
143094.
178140.

O.

O.
O.

29/5349.
2627023.
890820.
697787.
/12584.

7903563.
8//48828.
.502841.
2861361.

38832.
133983.

353701/.
O.
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DATEt 4/19/19o2
2/82

)

TOTAL US
VOLUME
YEARS

NAME

YEAH -19b0
-----

VoL

O.
G.

YEAR 1981

voL

O.
0.

EAGLES 11ENTAoL
ToT EAGLE

EVE FILTER 100 434408. A 361736.

EVE MENTHOL 100 276930. 233344.

EVE LTS FIL 120 doX 103193. 465672.

EYE LiS MEN 120 BoX 90917. 354880.

EYE LfS FILTER IOU O. 0.

EvE.LTS MENTHOL 100 o. O.

ToT EVE 905448. 1415632.

UECAUE FILTER 164094. 586II.

DECADEAENTHOL 40007. 610.

DECADE FILTER 100 22623. 5666.

Tor DECADE 22o124. 64587.

Lag 85 3958.099. 3608377.

L4A BOX 94°44. 80054.

Lag FILTER 100 1169535. 1680548.

L4g LIGHTS NEN WO 155600. 59459.

L4m FLAVOR LIGHTS 201304. 132986.

L4i4 LONG LIGHTS 630385. 481518.

Tar L a A 62I0227. 5448972.

LARK FILTER 1835082. 1607743.

LARK 100 955120. 851471.

LARK II -19. O.

LARKLIGNTS 85 6/840. 55207.

LARK LIGHTS 100 80541. 62825.

TOT LARK 2939164. 2583246.

OMNI MEATHoL 100 0. 10506.

roT °Mat 0. 10506.

ST MORITZ FIL 100 -59. 0.

ST MORITZ MEN 100 -34. 0.

TOT ST MORITZ -93. 0.

GENERICILIGKIS 213336. 2150903.

GENERIC(LIG)LTS g 0. 255522.

GENERIC(LIG)LT'S 100 16d9o. -389126.

(3ENERIC(LIG)LTS 11100 0. 90528.

TOT GESERICCLIG) 230232. 2886079.

vELLO FILTER 0. 0.

VELLO MENTHOL 0. 0.

roT VELL0 0. 0.

L a A MSC 54023. 40691.

ALL oTHER Lag 54023. 40691.

428
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sUATE$ .4/19/1902
2/d2

TOTAL US
VOLUME
YEARS

HARE

YEAR 1980 YEAR 1981

VOL
------

15981030.

VOL

14372345.for L 3 g CIGr.
dISTRO LIGHT FILTER O. 1801.
BISTRO LIGHT MENTHOL o. 1110.

TOT BISTRO U. 2911.
GoLDEN LIGHrS FIL 85 5300973. 4339925.
GOLDEN LIGHTS MEN 85 453501. 344772.
GoLDEN LIGHTS F 100 4240743. 3900108. ,

GOLDEN LIGHTS M 100 1050540. 882920.
ToI GOLDEN LIGHTS 11051823. 9468325.

KENT 85 7549611. 6860159.
KENT 85 BOX 219093. 199481.
KENTAFILTER 100 4301558. 3977991.
KENT MENTHOL 100 131099. 102193.
KENT III 85 . 4760805. 4010285.
KENT III 100 3030449. 3245666.

TOT KENT 20011815. 18395181.
HERITAGE 85 O. 1435.
HERITAGE 100 O. 1425.

ToT HERUAGE O. 2800.
REBEL e5 O. 1971.
REBEL 100 O. k 1743.

Tor REdEL O. 3714.
MAX-FILTER 120 619489. 585359.
AAX MENTHoL 120 321319. 291084.
MAX SLIM LT F 100 RX O. O.
MAX SLIM LT g 100 BX O. 0.

TOT MAX 940808. 876443.
MAVERICK FILIER 85.- . 3430.
gAVERICK FILTER 100 O. 319/.

ToT MAVERICK O. /227.
NEWoRr 85 6150139. 7008149.
NEWORT IJOX 2041130. 3328123.
NENeORT 1132391. 1401223.
NENOORT LIGHIS 85 1228502. 1312073.
HENPORT LIGHTS 85 BX 140211. 273448.
NEAPoRt Nort-MEN Se O. 203905.
NEWoRT NoN-MEN BoX O. 148725.
NENFORT LIGHTS 100 O. 139909.

TOT NEMPORT 11498313. 13815555.
oLU GOLD REGULAR O. O.

GoLD KING 109019. 88191.

429
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DATE+ 4/19/1982
2/19

TOTAL US
VOLUME
YEARS

NAME

_-____,-......--

YEAR 1980 YEAR 1981

voL VoL
,

OLD GOLD FILTER 85 1613173. 1428689.

oLD GOLD FILTER 100 312403. 279391.

OLD GOLD 80X O. O.

oLD GOLD LIGHTS 389134. 370819.

TuT OLD GOLD 2423729. 2167096.

SPRING MERTHOL IOU 93163. ' 71087.

TOT SPRING 93163. 71087.

(RUE FILTER 85 4524749, 3859247.

TRUE MENTROL d5 2166078/ 1910483.

(RUE FILTER 100 2733535. 2552571.

TRUE MENTHOL 100
TRUE ULTRA ORE

1475224.
8406. 1343.

TOT TRUE 10907992. 9733)84.

TRIUMPH FILfER 85 1700735. 1001580.

TRIUMPH MENTHOL 85 7435)8. 439220.

TRIUMPH FILTER 100 4191. , 424952.

TRIUMPW,MENTHot 100 3309. 295976.

,TuT-TRIUM.PH 2451753. 2164734.

ASPEN 85 --- 4228. O.

ASPEN 100 4275. O.

TOT ASPEN 8503. O.

P LORILLARD RISC 1560. 2737.

ALL oTHER P LoR 1560. 2137.

fOT P LoR CIGT. 59395519. 56111654.

ALPINE MENTHOL 85 458691. 392551.

rOT ALPINE 458697. 392551.

al LIGHT 100 dOX 3168. 2256.

TOT HI LIGHT 3168. 2256.

NORMAINOS AEN 85 O. 21301.

OORTHRIODS MEm 100 O. 20445.

rOT NOWTHAINDS ' 0. 41752:

8 4 H REGULAR bOX 2800. 2240.

8 a H FILfER 100 8474484. 8062732.

8 a H MENTHOL 100 6742115. 6892142.

8 & d FIL 100 BOX 1009806. 955612.

8 a H MEN 100 80X 649821. 617857.

u m H KING doX 93160. 87310.

8 & H LTS F 100 5649248. 5970230.

8 t H LTS F 100 110X 10943. 1191.2.

8 1 H LTS X 100 4900362. 5300534.

8 & H LTS x 100 bOX 6499. 7133.

C.

. 4 3.0 1443



427

DArE4 4/19/1902
2/42

M1-

TOTAL US"
VOLUME
YEARS

NAmi

YEAR 1900 YEAH 1941

VOL
--------

VoL

dad DELUX uLTS 110011 O. O.
ddH DELUX (ILO A1004 O. O.

rOT B a tr 27545844. 2790d972.
'BENSON HEDGES MULf F 7d3d10. ' 650157.
diNSoa HEDGES MULT A 42103.

ToT MULTIFILTER d3/3.461. 692260.
ENGLISH OVALS X dOX I/919. 1/575.
ENGLISH OVALS R BOX 11200. 10346.

roT ENGLISH ovALS 29179. 27921.
GALAXY FILTER 1,)463. 15143.

TOT GALAXY 19463. 15143.
AERIr FILTER d5 13645071. 12260337.
MERIT MENTHOL 85 272d576. 2245396.
MERIT FILTER IGO 1615977. 713160.
meRIf mENTHOL 100 2020093. 1970436.
MERIT ULTRA LTS F d5 299d6. 2210359.
MERIT ULIIIA LfS A 45 19279. 1004531.
MERIT ULT LTS F 100 O. 344210.
MERIT ULT US A 100 O. 264495.

Tor Mali' 20059582. 24119324.
MARLBURO d5 35044396. 34634252.
MARLBORO dOX 35805/93. 35448104.
MARLBoR0 FIL.100 10779645. 11171482.
MARLBORO FIL 100 dOX 41d1896. 4472940.
mARLd0R0 MENTHOL 1312188. 1311013.
MARLBORO LIGHTS 05 1439/153. 14814379.
MARLIJORO ME4TH0L 40X 00835. 6139/.
mARL1XoR0 LIGHTS 100 09254310. 03d3436.
mARLOORO LIGHTS BOX 1011209. 4409d00.

ToT AAHLuoim 109585085. 11477046Y.
VARLIAMENT LTS 45 2242953. 2093643.
PARLIAAENT LI'S DOX 2365436. 2259843.
VARLIAMENT LTS 100 2418073. 2786764.
PARLIAmENT ULNA LIS O. O.

TOT pARLIAAtAT 7466462. 7140250.
V MORRIS INTER F UOX 2007. 5 23283.
V MORRIS. INfER A tioX 4835. 5281.

TOT PAW? IhTEll 24910. 28564.
P AORRIS REGULAR 150946. 133998.
e MORRIS MAU 95126/. 459038.

fOr V MORRIS 1114213. 993436.

43i.
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OATEI 4/19/1902
2/02 .

TOTAL US
. VOLUME

YEAgS

NAME

00
YEAR 1980 YEAR 1981

VOL VoL

SARATOGA 11L 120 UOX

....

1536580. 1532132.

SARATOGA MEm 120 dOX 739477. 735093.

Tor SARATOGA 2276057. 226/825.

V. SLIMS F1LTEk 100 4195140. 4225730.

V. SLIMS MENTHOL 100 3870017. 3876602.

V. SLIMS LIS F 100 O. O.

V. SLIMS LTS A 100 Q. O.

V.SLIMS LTS F loo dx -- 2731915. 3322189.

V.SL1MS us A 100 8X 3355192. 4122316.

TOT VA SLIMS 14164872.', 15547437.

BASIC 85 O. O.

BASIC 100 O. ' O.

TOT BASIC O. 0.

AOOLLO-SOYSU O. O.

PLAYERS BOX 15860. 15906.

TOT PLAYERS 15800. 15906.

CAMBRIDGE 85 SP 570825. 419099.

. CAMBRIDGE 85 BOX 95893. 26880.

CAM81PIDGE 100 91,9944. 1024190.

TOT CAMBRIDGE 1586662. 1410769.

-PHILIO AORI4IS-SC ' 3o51. 113.

ALL OTHE PM 3651. 113.

TOT 0 mOk C1GT. 191191270. 199435752.

CAMEL REGULAR . 14068232. 14430421.

CAMEL FILTER 569j666. 6985546.

CAMEL emEN idOX O. 1701

CAMEL LIGHTS 85 5094071. 6=7244%
CAMEL LIGHTS IOU. 1464/51. 1814432.

CAMEL urgas MP 322935. 723952.

TOT CAMEL . 26641655. 30024245.

()ORAL FILTER 1082023. -54.

DORAL MENTHOL 692815. 222.

DORAL 11 FILreR 899820. 1021021.

DORAL II MENTHOL 026950. 150091.

TOT DURAL 3301674.. 1177292.

MORE FILTER 120 3902576. 4195483.

MORE MENTHOL 120 3130116. 3376907.

MORE LTS FIL 100 ROX O. 941726.

A0RE LTS MEN 100 80X O. 18/593.

ToT MORE 7098692. 9307109.

mon 'qua um *41/12. 35270.
'

432
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'0Afis, 4/19/I1B2
2/82

TOTAL US
'VOLUME
YEARS

NAmErrrrrr

erwl

YEAH 1980
444.0.morrrr

VOL

88501.
1574103.
812423.
1085666.
739483.

YEAR 1981

---_----
voLrrraorrrrrrrr

-NOW MENTHOL BOX
NOM FILTER Se
moWIMENTHoL SP
molt FILTER 100
NOW AENTH0L 100

12.

1380920.
/12826.

1221170.
818338.

40A 100 BOX 0: 29538:
TOT,HoW 4541888. 4198074.

SALEM 85 17262874. .16700943.
SALE* IGO 10684/69. 10590660.
SALEM BOX 442160. 19.
SALEM LIGHrS d5 13/6/93/. 13964775.
SALEM LIGHTS IGO 9450278. 9765127.
SALEM ULTRA LTS uS 918552. .1301752.
SALEM ULTRA LTS IGO 1285501. 256164/.
SALEM SLIM LTSIO0 RX 0. 212004.

OT SALEA 53872139. 5509092/.
TEMPO 8868. 0.

TOT (TWO 8868. 0.
VANTAGE FILIER 11453456. 11281658.
VANTAGE mENNOL 2811821. 2734142.
VANTAGE I00 4680274. 4739798.
ilAKTAOE 0LT LI'S 85 2319158. 2141949.
VANTAGE ULT LTS 100 2371104.- 2459181.

TOT YAWAGE 23035813. 23356/2d.
wiNsTod US 42784413. 41550234.
WINSTON Bo4, -, 2632081. 255002/.
WINWN 100 ,} 13620181. 13/84024.
WINSTON MENTHOL 100 #' 433200. U.
INSTON LIGHTS 85 1440/3/0. 14241267.
.NINSTON LIGHTS 100 7394558. 7/96265.
NINSTON WrT LTS 85 239451. 1275029.
:HAMA ULT,LiS 100 2322/5. 2114241.
WINSTON INTER 1JOX . /005. 11305.

Tar AINSTON 81811140. 83422992:
DAWN FILTER 120 O. O.

for DAMN O. Brie

MEAL FILTER 630974. -18.
dEAL MENTHOL 193571. 6.

Tar REAL 824545. -12.
URooKwoo0FILTE4 1941. 0.,

raTLIROoKaacH./ 194/. 0.
rOT'aJd CIGT. 201744304. 207183958.

wISC COMPANIES 123329. 125283.
TOT NISI: LUMP 123329. 125283.

ToT OTHERS 123329. 125283.
for INGLISTRY 016875792. 026501768.

-00

$4-3$7 0 - $2 2$

t.
t .433
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EXHIBIT

OATE8"4119/1902 TOTAL US
2/d2 Som

YEARS

NAmE

YEAR 19u0 YEAR 19d1
00....M.M.7Mb

SoN
01

SOA

AMERICAN Lom0S F 120 .00 .oc

AMERICAN WNW A 120 .00 4:oo

TOT AMER LUNGS 00 .0o

BuLL DURHAA .00 .00

Tor BULL DURHAA 1 .00 .co

CARLIoN,FILTER d5 .8i .66

CARLTON mENNOL 79 .00 .00

CARLTON 7o BOX .00 .00

CARLTON 85 80X .0o .01

CARLTONHFILTER,70 .00 .00

CARcrom"FILTER ioo .90 .75

CARLTON MENTHOL 100' .3/ . 33

CARLToN MENTHOL d5 .30 .25

CARLTON FIL 100 boX .08-- .14

CARLTON MEN 100 BoX .00 .00

cARLTo$ FILfER 120 .00 .04

CARLTON MEKIHM 120 .00 .03

TOT cARLT9N 2.51 2.20

HALF 1. HALF .01 .01

TOT HALF HALF .01 .01

ICEBERG MENTHoL Igo .01 .01

foT ICEUERG .01 .01

LUCKY STRIKE REGULAR .9d .d9

LuCKY'STRIKE'FIL db .00 .00

LOCKY STRIKi FIL 100 . .01 .01

LUCKY 100 .00 .00

LUCKY TEN .01

LOC MIKE 1.0 TAR SF .00 , .00

LUC sritlic Lo fAR BOX .00 .00

fOf LUCKY STRIKE 1000 .90

MONTCLAIR .00$ .00

MoNTCLAIR Tor-9e
.oO

LUNG JOHNS F 120 .00 .00,,

LONG JOHNS 120 .00
Tor LONG JOHNS .00 k .00

PALL MALL KING 3.91 3.59

PALL MALL FIL 100 i.00
OALL MALL MEN 100 .00 .00

PALL MALL FILTER d5 .01

PALL *ALL EXTRA Lrs .02 .02

PALL MALL boX .00 .00-,

434
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0AfEs 4/1v/198/ roTAL-US
2/82 SOM

YEARS

YEAR 1V80 YEAu

SOm

.05

.11

5.11
. .13

.07

.20

1981

SoA

.04

.07
4.65
.11

.05

.17

PALL MALL US m 100
PALL MALL LIS F 100

Tar PALL MALL
SILVk TdINS F 100
SILVA MINS-A 100

Tor SILVA 'CHINS
SUPER X AERrHoL WO .00 .00

Tor SUPER m .00 .00
rANEYrON FILrER 85 .15 . .60
TAREYTom FILTER 100 .. .58 .52
rAREYfON LIONTS 85 .15 .10
TAREYrON LI3dTS 100 .18 .14
rAREYrON LIGHIS mita . oc .00
rAREYroN ULTRA XENT. .00 .00

TOf TAREYTON I.60 1.42
HERdERT rueirroN .03 .03,

TOT R TAREYTON .03 .03
Gast' MENTdOL 100 .00 .00

ror reasr .00 , .00
TALe5 FILTER 120 .00 . .06
TAILS MENTHOL 120 .02 .02

TOT TALLS .08 .07
AmERICAR LIUHTS FI20 .00 .00
ANERICAN LIUNTS kI20 .00 ^.00

TOT AMERICAN LTS .01 .00
AN MISC . oo .00

ALL OTHER Abe .00 .00
MAN %ACT. 10.03 9.47

dELAIR 85 .07 .00
BELAU 100 .49 .48

TOT UELAIR 1.16 1.08
DUMALIRIER FILTER dOX .01 .00

TOT DOMAdRIER .01 .00
FAcr FILTER .00 .00
FACT mENTH0L .00 .00

TOT FACT .00 .00
4001. itEWLM .10 .09
MX% FILTER- 85 5.!15 4.76
OOL FILTER 100 1.46 1.46
KOOL mILDS 85 .93 .90
KOOL BOX .34 .33

'435
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DATE2'.4/19/1982
2482

NAME

KooL mai BENTHUL
KUM SUPER LIGHTS 85
1(00L SUPER LIGHT 100
OM MILOS 100
KooL IRTER BoX
KooL LIGHTS d5
KooL LIGHTS 100
KoOL ULTRA 85
KooL ULTRA 100

Tor KooL
RALEIGH KING
RALEIGH FILTER 85
RALEIGH FILTER 100
RALEIGH Lloras 85
RALEIGH LIGHTS 100

TOT RALEIGH
VICEIMY 85
vICER0Y 100-
VICEROY AMOS
vICERoY RICH Lf
vICERoY RICH LT
.ToT VICEROY

ARCTIC LIGHTS 85
mime LIGHTS 100

.ToT ARCTIC
sma FILTER 85
SPIRIT FILTER 100

TOr SPIRIT
BARCLAY FILTER 85
BARCLAY FILTER 100
BARCLAY FILTER BoX
BARCLAY NERTH0L 85
BARCLAY MERTH0L 100

TOT BARCLAY
ror B & d CIGT.

CHESTERFIELO REGULAR
CHESTERFIELD KIM;
CHESTERFIELD FILTER
CHESTERFIELD 1UJ

rot* CHESTERFIELD
EAGLES Fara

432

TOTAL-US
Sod
YEARS

XEAR

SUM

433

YEAR 198i
----- -_____-_-

SUB

.00 .00

.35 .27

.36 .29

.11 .11

.00 .00

.00 .04

.00 .05

. 00

.00 .04

8.79 13.44

.15 .13

.85 .74

.46 .44

.22 .21

.15 ..17

1.82 1.09

1.07 .95

.31 .29

. 00 .00

.19 .13

.18 '13
1.75 1.50

.05 .01

. 0/ .02

.12 .03

.00 .00

.00 . oo

.00 .00

. 02 .47

. 02 .42

.00 .14

. 00 .11

.00 .11

.04 1.26

13.70 14.01

.09 .08

. 49 .46

. 01 .01

.03 .02

.62 -:56

.00 .00
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DUE& "4/1V/1902 , TOTAL US
. 2/da SOA

YEARS

NAt4t

EAGLES AENTH0L
TUC EAGLE

YgAa 19d0
_-__-_---__-_-
. SON,

Noh

.00

.00

YEAR
--------------

19d1

SON

.

.00

.00
EVE FILTER ICO WI .06
EVE mENTH0L IOU .0,4 .04
EVE us FIL 120 BoX .02 .07
EVE LI'S AEA 120 BOX .01 .06
EVE LTS FILTcR ICO
EVE LI'S AENTH0L 100

.00

.00
y

.00
, .00

TOf EVE-, .15 .23
DECADE Faux .03 .01
DECADE AENTHOL .01 .00
UECAVE FILTER IGO .00 .G0

Tor DECADE .04 '.0I
LIU d5 .04 .58
L&A d0X .02 .01
L&A FILTER 100 .19 , .17
IAA LIGHTS AEN IGO .03 .01
L&M FLAVOR LIGHTS- .03 .02
L&A LONG LIGHTS .10 .08

TOT L & m 1.01 .87
LARK FILCER .30 .26
LARX IOU .15 .14
LARK II .00 .00 ,

LARK LIGHTS 85 .01 .01

LARK LIGHTS 1G0 .01 .01
TOT LARK .4d .41

OMNI mENTHOL 100 .00 .00-
101' OMNI .00 .00

ST MORITZ FIL IOU .00 .00
SC MORITZ met+ IOC

ToT ST AoRITZ
.00
.00

y
.00

- .00
GENERIC(LIG)LTS .03 .34
0ENERIC(LIOLTS a* .00 .04
0EMERIC(LIOLTS 100 .00 , .06

- GENER ti.:( L103 LTS AI 00 .00 .01
TOT,OENERIC(LI0) .04 .46

VELLO FILTER .00 .00
VELLO MENTHOL

rm. VELLo
.00
.00

.00

.00
L 6 A NISC .01 .01

ALL ()HEN IAA .01 .01

437,



DATE: 4/19/19d2
2/d2

NAME

'TOT L cc m CLOT.
dIsTgo LIGHr FILTER
BISTRO LI0HrmENTH0L

ToT BISTRO
GOLDEN LIGHTS FIL 85
GOLDEN LIGHTS MEN 85
GoLDEN LIorrs E 100
GOLDEN LIGHTS M 100

ToT GOLDEN LIGHTS
KENT 85
KENT d5 BOX
KENT FILTER 100 I
KENT MENTHoL 100
KENT III 85
ENT III 100
TOT KENT

HERITAGE 85
HERITAGE 100

TUT HERITAGE
--;------REBEL 45

REBEL 100
TOT REBEL

gAx FILTER 120
MAX MENTHOL I20
MAX SLIM LT F 100 BX
MAX SLIM LT m 100 BX,

ToT MAX
MAVERICK FILTER 85
MAVERICK FILtEil I00
' T0T MAVERICK
MinFORT 85
NENFORT.BOX '

NEWPORT 100
NENFORT LIGHTS 85
NEWPORT LIGHTS 165 10(
NEOPoRT RON-MEN SP

,

NiobsORT NON-MEN doX
NEWPORT LIGHTS 100

434

TOTAL US
SON
YEARS

,YEAR 19d0

SOm

4 .33

--------

YEAR 1981

'SUM

2.55
.00 .00

.00 .00

.00 .00

.d6 .69

.07 .06

09 .021'

.17 .14

1.79 1.51

1.22 1.09

.04 k .03

.70

.02 (

(
.03
.02

.77 .04

.49 .52

3.24 2.94
.00 .00

e .00 .00

.00 .00

.00 : .040

.G01 .00
* .00 .00

.10 .09

ik
.05
:.00

.05

.00
.09 .00
.15 .14

.00 .00

.00 .00

.00 (,rt . co
1.00 1.12*
.46 .53

tIll .22

.20 -21

e .02 .04

'.00' .03

.0o .02

.00
_

.02

rar NENPoRt
. I.d6' I 4.21

oLD GOLD REGULAR .00 L .00

OLD GOLD KInG .02 I .1 .01
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uArEi 4/19/1902
2/d1

TOTAL US
SOU

YEARS

YEAR 19d0 YEAR 1901

SUM

.23

NAME

OLD COLD FILTER o5

SOM

.2o
oLD GOLD FILTER 100 .05 .04

31.0 GOLD BOX .00 .00
AULD GoLD LIGHTS .06 .06

Tor oLD GOLD .39 .35
SoulMG MENTHOL, LOU .02 .01

rof SPRING .02
TRUE FILTER d5 .73 .02

TRUE MENTHOL 05... .35 .30
TRUE' FILTER 100 .44 .41

TRUE MENTHOL 100 .24 .22
TJRUE ULTRA ONE

Tor TRUE
.00

1.77
.00

1.55
TRIUmOH FILTER 85,
ralumm mENTHOeS5

.28

.12
.10
.07

TRIUMPH FILTER 100 .00 .07
TRIUMPH MENTHOL 100 .00 .05

Tor TRIUMPH .40 .35
ASPEN 05 .00 .00
ASPER 100 .00 .00

TOT' ASPEN .00 .00
0 LORILLARD mISC .00 ..00

ALL OTHER 0 LOR .00 .00
TO 0 LOH CICT. 9.63 9.05

ALPINE mEmrdoL 05 .04 .06-
roT ALPINE .01 .00

HI LICHT IGO bOX .00 .00
TOT HI LIGHT .00

NORTHRINUS Alit. d5 .00 .00
NoRTHRIRDS MEN loo .00 .00

or NORIHRItIOS .00
d & H AUULAH dOX .00 .00

d H FILTER 100
d H mENTHOL IOC

d d. H FIL 100 80X
1.09

I.

1.29,
1.10,
.15

b 6 H AEN 100 bOX .11 .10
d H KING dOX .02 .01
8 41 H LTS F 100 .92 .95
8 d. H as F IGO dOX .00
8 & H as Ai loo .o0 .05
d d LTs m 100 UOX .00 .00

4 3
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0A fEs 4/19/1902
2/04

/0TAL US
SOA

YEAtIS

MAME

Bari UtLUX ULfS F113011
DELUX ULTS 41000

TOT B 1 11
BENSON HEWES mar F
diNSON HEDGES mULl

TOT MULT I LTER
ENGLISH OVALS K bOX
ENGLISH OVALS R BOX

YEAR 1900----------
SOA--------

.00
.00

4.47
.13
.01
.14
.00
.00

YEAR 1901

SON

.00
.00

4.45
.1G
.01
.11
.GG
.00

TOT ENGLISH OVALS .00 .00
GALAXY F I LTER .00. . GO

Mr GALAXY .00 .00
'MERIT FILTER d5 2.21 1.96

T MENTHOL t.15 .44 .3o
MERIT FILTER 100 1.23 1.23
mER IT MENTHOL 1GG .33 .31
MERIT ULTRA LI'S F 05 .00 :35
mER IT uLrHA LCS u d5 .00 .1 /
MERIT ULT LTS F I GO .06-----rGO--
MERIT ULT LTS M 100 '.00 .04

Tar mER I 1. 4.22 4.49
MARLBORO d5 5.68 5.53
MARLBORO 110X 5.d0 5.66
MARLBORO FIL ICC 1./5 1 .*Iti

MARLBORO F IL 100 BOX .6d . 11

-----4A-RLBORO-MEN CHOI_ . 22
mARLdORO LICHTS 05 2.33 2.36
MARLUORO MENTHOL UOX .01 .01
MARLd01/0 LIGHIS 1.12 1.34
MARLBORO LIGHTS Rox .1/ /0

ToT AM/Lim/HO 17./6 10.32
PARLIAMENT LI'S 05 .37 .33
PARLIAMENT urs BOX .3d .3o
PARLIAMENT ITS WU .40 .44
PARLIAMENT ULNA LTS .00 .00.

ror PARL I AAEMT 1.21 1.14
MORN IS INTER F 0OX .00 .00

P MORRIS !KEN A HOX .00 .00
fo P.44014 INTErt .00 .00

P MOWS piEuut.mi .03 .02
e MORRIS KING .1 .14

TOL' P /40Ra IS l d .10

44u.
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DATEI 4/19/19b2
. 2/82

dAmE

YEAR 1980

TOTAL US
SON
YEARS

YEAR 1981

SON

SARATOGA FIL 120 doX .25 .24
SARATOGA NEM 12Q,BOX .12 .12

TOrAARAroGA .37 .36
V. SLIMS FILrtR 100 .68 -, .67
V. SLIMS MENTHOL Ioq .03 .02
V. SLIMS LI'S P ICO .00 .00
V. SLIMS LTS N IOU .00 I .00
V.SLImS LIS F 10u 8X .44 .53
V.SLIMS LtS A 100 BX .54 .66

ror VA SLIMS 2.30 2.48
8ASIC 85 .00 .00
BASIC 100 .00 .00

ror BASIC .00 .00
APOLLO-SOYSU .00 .00
PLAYERS BOX .00 .00

TOT PLAYERS .00 .00
CAMBRIDGE o5 sP .09 .07
CAA8RIDGE 85 80X .02 .00
CAMBRIDGE 100 .15 .16

Tor CANBRIDGE ' .2o .23
PHILIP MORRIS MISC .00 .00

ALL OTHg8,PM .00 .00
roT P MOH CIGT. 30.99 31.83

CAMEL REGULAR , 2.28 2,30
CAMEL-MICR -,- :02 1.12
CAMEL FILrER 80X .00 .00
CAMEL LIGHTS 85 . .d3 .97
CAMEL Licas 100 ..___.24 .29
CAMEL LIGHTS HP ---.05 .12

ror CAMEL 4.32 4.79
DORAL FILrt4 . .18 .00
DORAL MENTHOL .11 .00
DONAL II FILTER .15 .16
DORAL II AbliHoL .10 .12

TO( DORAL .54 . .28
MORE FILrER 126 .64 .67
MORE MENTHOL 120 .51 .54
MORE tTS FIL 100 BOX .00 .15
MORE us mEN ICO 80X .00 .13

Tor MORE 1.15 1.49
mon PILFER 80X .04 .01
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OA fEs 4/1 WI 902,-
2/02

4' YEAH 1900

TOTAL US
50A

YEARS

442

,

442

ILTER Sr .26 .22

nod MENTdoL SP .13 .11

don FILTER 100 .Id .19
don MEATH0L 100 .12 .13

Nod 100 BoX .00 .00

Tor Non /4 .0 /
SALEM 85 2.00 2.67

SALEM 100 1.13 I. 09
SALEM Box .0 7 . 00

SALEM LICA TS dti 2-.23 2.23

SALEM LIOdTS I GO 1.53 I .5o

SALEA ULTRA LTS 05 .lo .21

SALEM ULTRA. Lrs IGO .21 .41

SALEM SLIM LTS I 00 BX . 00 .03

Tor SALEA 0. /3 8. /9

fEmPo . 00 .00 .

TOT TEMPO . 00 .00

VANTAGE FILTEN 1. do I .80
VANTAGE mEn THOL .40 .44
VANTABE 100 . 76 . /6
VANTAGE ULT LTS o5 .38 .34

VANTAGE UU US I 00 .3 8 .39

Tor VAN rAGC 3. d3 3. /3

fliiiSTOK 05 ------6:94-- --------- -4..03-

MAMA BOX .43 .42

d I ASTON 100 2.21 2.20

NI ASTON MEd frIOL 110 .0 / .00
dINSTON LIGHTS 155 1.35 2.1 /
N1NSTON UGH I'S 1 00 1.20 1 .24

N1NSION LILT Lrs 05 .04 .20

il INS TON IX( LIS I 00 .04 .34

altisrori INTER 00X 00 .00

ror A lsZStOes 13.20 13.32

JA.dt. r.: ILTER 120 .00 .00
col' UAnn . 00 .00

REAL r,IL TER .10 .00

REAL MEHTH)L . .03 .00
for REAL .13 .00

0,1006100 0 FILTER 5---- .00 .00
for Hnoox,:ow .00 .00

NIT 11.141 CIUT . 32.70 33.07

A1SC COMPANIES .02 .02
for A1SC COMP .02 .02

foT oTHERS .02 .02

rut' INOuSTRY 100.00 100.00

')

YEAR 1901

438

YEAH 1900

TOTAL US
50A

YEARS

,

YEAR 1901



Market

WESTERN EUROPE

Andorra
Austria
Belgium
Canary Islands

Denmark
Finland
France
Germany (West)
Greece
Iceland
Ireland
Italy

Luxembourg
Malta
Netherlands
Norway
Portugal
Spain
Sweden
.Switzerland

United Kingdom

EASTERN EUROPE

Bulgaria
Czechoslovakia

Germany (East)
Hungary

-----Pelend--
Romania
Yugoslavia

MIDOLE EAST (Inland)

Bahrain
Kuwait

UAE
Iraq -
Lebanon
Oman

Qatar
Saudi Arabia

OTHER MICOLE EAST

Cyprus

439

Exhibit C

ACTIVE RJR INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

Warning Required on

Peel Advertising Comments

No
No
Yes

No
No
Yes

Yes

Yes

No
No
Yes
No
No

No
Yes

Yes

No
No
Yes
Yet

Yes**

No

No
No
Yes

No
No
No

Yes
Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes

No
No

Yes

No

No
Adverlising-banned.

No Certain media binned. Copy is restricted.
Yes

No Certain media banned
Advertising banned.

Yes

* Advertising banned by law.
No

No Certain media banned.
No Certain media banned4

Advertising banned.
Yes

No
Yes

No Certain media banned. Some other voluntary
restrictions.

Yes** ** Warnings by voluntary agreement but nbt law.

"
Media advertising banned.
Advertising *unofficially' banned.

* Advertising banned.

* Media advertising banned.
J' *Advertising -banned

Advertising banned.
Media advertising banned.

Yes

Yes

Yes

No
No

Yes Yes

coma

Most advertising banned.

Most advertising banned.

Certain media banned.
Certain media banned
Advertising banned.

443



Market

AFRICA

Algeria*

Dahomey (Benin)
Egypt
Ethiopia

, Ivory Coast
Liberia
Libya

zitigauritania
Morocco
Senegal
South Africa

Togo
Tunisia

NORTH AYERICA

Puerto Rico
Canada
Mexico

CENTRAL/SOUTH AMERICA

Argentina
Belize
Brazil
Ecuador
Paraguay
Peru

Venezuela

440

Warning Required on

Pack Advertising Comments

No
No

Yes
No
No

No

Yes

No

No
No,

No

No

No

Yes
Yes

Yes

4

No

No

No

Yes

No
Yes
Yes

No
No

Yes
No
No
No

No

No
No

No
No

No

Yes

Yes

No

No
No

No
Yes

No
Yes

Yes

WEST INDIES

14111mat Yes Yes

Barbados No No

Bermuda Ho No

Cayman Islands No No

Leward-Windward Is. No No

,Netherland Antilles No No

U.S. Virgin Islands Yes Yes

444

Certain media banned. e

Certain media banned.
Advertising will be banned 11/82.
TRH will be required on packs in 1982 but no

warning required.

Advertising banned.

U.S. Law applies.



Market

PACjFIC ISLANDS

441

Warning_Required on
tisk Advertisinq Comments

,

American Samoa Yes Yes U.S. Law applies .

French Pacific Yes** ** Pack warning effective 12/82. *Adv. banned
Islands now except for existing contracts. Total

ban 12/82.
Pacific Trust NA KA Part of Micronesia

Territory
Guam Yes Yes U.S. Law applies
Micronesia No No

COMMUNIST ASIA

China

EASTERN ASIA

No No Advertising generally banned except in
limited cases.

Warning reouired by voluntary agreementAustralia Yes No*
Hong Kong No

where pack included in ad
No

Japan Yes Yes
Malaysia Yes Yes
New Zealand Yes 'Yes
Philippines No No (
Singapore , Yes Advertising banned.
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'Nay 12, 19$2

Samuel 3. Witt, III
wee President
R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company
wineton -Salem. North Caroline 27102

Dear Mr. Witt:

NNW WI
441111$01 ~Pt .1VICK aglaele

PIONS OW OMNI

x have received your letter of April 29, 1182 reaponding to

the Subcommittee's request for information to supplenent the
testimony of Mr. Idward Kerrigan, Jr. on 'larch 12, 19$2.

During public testimony before the Subcommittee on March 12,

1182 I requested en opinion on the effect of repeal of the Federal

Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act. Specifically, I inquired
if a repeal of that Act woad obligate the-R. J. Reynolds Tobacco

Colpeay under product liability law to adequately warn consumers
of the flake cigarette usSnight pose to their health. You

°
indicated that if allowed additional tine you woad be pleased to

respond to this question. Despite that assurance, You did not

'I
respond to the question.

If the Subcomnittee is to properly evaluate the effect of

pending legislation and the testimony of individuals concerning

such legislation, it_sest have the cooperation of individuels to

whom it directs requests for information. Failure to supply the

infornation agreed to not only makes it impossible for this

Subcommittee to do its job, but is also an affront to the Menbers

of the Subcommittee.

In addition your unwillingness to respond to questions -

10 of the Subcomiittee's request concerning the production process

and costs of cigarette advertising is disappointing. I regret
that-you-could-notim-sers-responglive-to the Subcommittee's

inquiry.

The Subcommittee's request for information, your April 29th
response and this letter will be made a permanent part of the

hearing record on N.R. 503, the *Comprehensive Smoking eeeee ntion
iducation Act of 19$2..*

Sincerely,

41.01Kw."--
A. WAXMAN

Cluirnan, Subcommittee on
Nealth and-the invironment
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Mr WAXMAN Our next panel of witnesses are Hans J. Eysenci,,
Institute of Psychiatry in London, Theodore Blau, a psychologist
from Tampa, Fla., Yoram Wind, professor of marketing, the When-
ton School of Finance and Commerce, Philadelphia, and Roger D.
Blackwell, professor of marketing, Ohio State University.

We are pleased to welcome you to our hearing today. We have
your complete statements and they will be made a part of the-
record in full I know the statements are quite lengthy. I also un-
derstand that you have been informed that we would likp ru to
summarize your statements. We would like you to keerit to as
close to 5 minutes as possible so we will have an opportunity for
questions and answers. .

Dr. Eysenck, why do we not start with you, sir.

STATEMENTS OF HANS J. EYSENCK, PH. D., D. SC., PROFESSOR OF
PSYCHOLOGY, INSTITUTE OF PSYCHIATRY, UNIVERSITY OF
LONDON; YORAM J. WIND, PROFESSOR OF MARKETING, WHAR-
TON SCHOOL. UNIVERSITY OF PENNSYLVANIA; ROGER D.
BLAC WELL, PROFESSOR OF MARKETING, OHIO STATE UNI-
VERS Y; AND THEODORE H. BLAU, PH. D., PENNSYLVANIA

UNIVERSITY

Dr EYSENCX I am Hans J. Eysenct professor of psychology at
the Institute of Psychiatry, University of London and psychologist
to the Maudsley and Bethlem Royal hospitals in London.

I received my Ph. D. in 1940 and my D. Sc. in 1964, both from
the University of London. I was senior research psychologist at
Mill Hill Emergency Hospital from 1942 through 1946. In 1949 and
1950 I was a visiting professor at the University of Pennsylvania in
Philadelphia.

Between 1950 and 1954, I was a reader in psychology at the Uni-
versity of London's Institute of Psychiatry. In 1954 I was a visiting
professor at the University of California at Berkeley.

I am a fellow of both the British Psychological Society and of the
American Psychological AssoCiation.

I have founded and edited three psychological journals, and I am
on the editorial boards of some 15 other international psychological
journals. I have written or edited for publication approximately 35
technical books and over 600 articles dealing with- various aspects
of the psychological field, particularly with respect to personality,
intelligence, behavior therapy, and behavioral genetics.

I have conducted research in the area of smoking for over 20
years and have authored two books, the most recent of which is en-
titled "The Causes and Effects of Smoking," as well as numerous
articles on this subject.

I will not read my whole statement, of course, as you said, but
just make a few major points.

A widely accepted theory asserts that cigarette smoking cauks
lung cancer, coronary heart disease, and many other diseases with
which it is statistically linked. It is not always realized that (a)
such a theory is far from proven, and is beset by many anomalies
and doubts, and that (Whhere is an alternative theory which it
based on undeniable facts which are not explained by the causal
theory.

447
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The present position seems to be that either theory may explain

the tragic incidence of lung cancer and coronary heart diseaseto
which this brief account will be restrictedor that both may be
needed to complement each other.

One important point I want to make concerns the isolatio of
smoking from other correlated habits such as drinking, living it
staying out late, wenching, et cetera; that is to say a certain sty
of life, the totality of which may increase the rate of living so tha
smokers are biologically olderthan nonsmokers at a given age, for
reasons only partly involved with smoking.

Nonsmokers are different types of persons from smokers, are
generally more self-protective, and the personality traits and habits
thus linked with nonsmoking may be more relevant to the longev-
ity of nonsmokers than their refmal to smoke.

The most impressive evidence for the causal theory has been the
report that physicians who gave up smoking showed less lung
cancer than members of the general public who continued to
smoke. Thus, it might appear that giving up smoking has saved the
lives of those who did so.

But this proof is only aCceptable if those who continue to smoke,
and those who later on give up smoking, are essentially identical
with respect to their health before some of them gave up smoking
Clearly, if those who later on give up smoking are already much
healthier than those who later on continue to smoke, then the final
differences in health may be due to the already existing differences
before anyone gave up smoking, rather than to the cessation of this
habit.

But there is good evidence to show that smokers and ex-smokers
already differed with respect to their health record before the ex-
smokers gave up smoking. Similarly, there is evidence that from
the point of view Of personality and genetics, ex-smokers are differ-
ent from continuing smokers. Thus this alleged proof is based on
an erroneous assumption.

Thepe objections to the causal theory, and others made in 'my
book, do not prove the theory to be wrong; they simply argue that
it is still only a theory, not a scientific law. More convincing proof
is required before the theory can be accorded a more advanced
status. But further than that, there are numerous facts suggesting
an alternative theory, and these facts cannot easily be integrated
with the causal theory.

Yet a proper theory demands that attention be paid to all rele-
vant facts, and thus again the causal theory is found wanting.

The alternative theory, first suggested by the eminent geneticist
and statistician, Sir Ronald Fisher, suggests that genetic factors
are important in causing lung cancer; that genetic factors are
active in causing people to maintain the smoking habit; and that
possibly the same genetic factors may be involved in both these
trends, thus producing the observed correlation Letween smoking
and cancerinsofar as such a correlation is real.-

There is evidence that genetic factors do play a part in the causa-
tion of lung cancer; this is not in doubt. I have brought forward
evidence to show ihat genetic factors are relevant to the mainte-
nance of the smoking habit. Thus there is evidence for both the as-
sumptions on which Fisher's argument was based.
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The origin of the smoking habit, on the other hand, is hardly at
all influenced by genetic factors. It appears from our genetic analy-
sis and from the direct study of the problem by Professor Spiel-
berger that the origin of the smoking habit is due to peer pressure;
parental influences play a much smaller part, and advertising
almost none.

My own contribution has been to suggest that the mediating
factor between cancer and smoking may be the personality of the
people involved. Thus it iS assumed that people of a certain person-
ality are more likely than others to die of lung cancer irrespectire
of smoking It is also assumed that people of a certain personality
are more likely to smoke than others.

There is direct evidence for both these propositions. MY original
work with Dr. Kissen, an eminent British oncologist, showed very
marked personality differences between lung cancer patients and
patients suffering from nonmalignant tumors, with the personality
assessment made before diagnosis. Since then, a large-scale study
in East Germany has replicated our findings. Other studies, also in-
dicating a relation between lung cancer and personality, are cited
in my book.

In a similar way, my early work with Tarrant and Woolf estab-
lished a correlation between personality and 'smoking, and many
studies in different countries have since confirmed our findings,
and added new ones. We may thus say that the fundamental as-
sumption of Fisher's genetic theory have found empirical support,
and we may add that there is also some modest support for my own
attempt to integrate these two major fields.

Unfortunately, there has been too little work along these unusu-
al and somewhat unorthodox lines to say that the results are any-
thing more than suggestive, and the theory linking them is still in
a very elementary stage; nevertheless, as far as the findings go

they support the genetic rather than the causal theory, although
_they_cinnotnecessarily contradict the latter.

Recently some progress has been made on the theoretical devel-
opment of the genetic hypothesis by linking it with research on
stress, in particular the differential effects of chronic and acute
stress, and the "inoculation" theory of stress. However, in the ab-
sence of large-scale research into the refinements of this theory,
and more widespread familiarity with the criticisms of its details,
not too much should be claimed for it other than that'it presents a
viable niternative to the causal theory.

In the case of coronary heart disease as in the .ease of lung
cancer, proof for the causal influence of smoking is still lacking
and is by no means as clearcut and decisive as is often alleged.
There is evidence in the case of CHD of genetic factors, and there
are published correlations with personality; here, too, there ap-
pears an important element of stress determining the appearance
of coronary heart disease, and stress is intimately linked with per-
sonality.

No formal theory of genetic determination of CHD has yet been
put forward, but it seems likely that such a theory is needed as an
alternative, or perhaps as complementary, to the causal theory for
an explanation of the many gaps and anomalies in the latter.

94-387 0 - $2 - 19 4.49.
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One important function of the genetic theory has been that of ex-
plaining the reasons why people smoke, and to link these reasons
with their differential personality patterns. Work along these Jines
has had the important effect of suggesting new and improved ways
of teaching people to give up smoking. The causal theory Of smok-
ing causing disease has nothing to say on this topic.

Another important function of the genetic theory has been to
suggest better designs for research in this complex field; a good ex-
ample is the use of the discordant twin method by Cederlof, Lund-
man, and others, that is to say, the investigation of the illness, pat-
terns of identical twins of whom one smokes, the other not. If this
type of research had been carried out on the large and internation-
al scale required, instead of investing in the redundant and scien-
tifically not very valuable replication and correlational studies, we
would know far more about the relation between smoking and dis-
ease than we do now.

Such studies allow us to ,look at environmental factors, including
those of smoking, while controlling for genetic factors; ttiis is essen-
tial if any convincing results are to be achieved.

In summary I would like to state that the causal theory of smok-
ing as being responsible for lung cancer and coronary heart dis-
ease, while it has found strong support, is far from being estab-
lished, and has many gaps, anomalies, apd. contrary findings to
contend with; these are too frequently glossed over and dismissed
as.unimportant, when in reality they may be found to discredit the
causal theory in whole or in part.

An alternative theory, based on genetics and implicating person-
ality factors, is Much less well developed, more complex, and at
present not too well known to many oncologists; nevertheless there
are many well-established facts which suggest that in part if not in
whole it can-account for-the-major findings.

At the very least, this alternative theory suggests novel research
methodologies which would serve to overcome the difficulties of the
older methods and remedy their lack of proper controls. The possi-
bility has also been ralsed that the two theories may be comple-
mentary, rather than opposed to each other; this possibility too
should be looked into from the experimental point of view. What is
certain is that at the moment no final decision can be made about
whether or the degree to which cigarette smoking may cause lung
cancer or coronary heart disease, how it interacts with other fac-
torsstress, personality and so onor how can we best protect the
health of our citizens in relation to these diseases.

[Testimony resumes on p. 459.]
[Dr. Eysenck's prepared statement follows:)
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Statement of Professor Hans J. Eysenck

I am Hans J. Eysenck, professor of psychology at the

Institute/X-Fsychiatry, University of London and psychologist

to the Maudsley and Bethlem Royal hospitals in London.

I received my Ph.D. in 1940 and my D.Sc. in 1964, both

from the University of London. I was Senior Research Psycho-

logist at Mill Hill Emergency Hospital from 19420through

1946. In 1949 and 1950 I was a visiting professor at the

University of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia. Between 1950

and 1954, I was a Reader in Psychology at the University of

LeSion'd Institute of Psychiatry. In 1954 I was a visiting

professor at the University of California at Berkeley.

I am a Fellow of both the British Psychological Society

and of the American Psychological Association.

L
I have founded and edited three psychological journals,

and-I-am-on the di-torial-boards of-some-15 other inter-

national PaYehological journals. I have written or edited

for publication approximately 35 technical books and over

600 articles dealing with various aspects of the psychological

field, particularly with respect to personality, intelligence,

45i



4-

- 448

behaviour therapy and behavioural geneOics. I have conducted

restsrch in the area of smoking forirver 20 years,and have

authored two books, the most,..recent of whi is entitled

TheoCauses and Effects of Smoking, as w,J.l as n erous

acticles on this subject.

A widely accepte4 theory asserts that cigarette smoking

causes 1Lig cancer, coronary heart disease, and many other

diseases with whichtilt is statisticaliallpiked. It is not

always re ed that (a) such a theory is far from proven,

and is by many anomalies and doubts, and that (b)
%

there is an alternative theory which is Lied on pmdeniable

facts which are not explained by the causal theory. The

present position seems to be that either theory may explain

the tragic incidence of lung cancer and coronary heart .

disease 4to eh this brief account will be iostricted), or

that both mayehe needed to complement eich other.

There is agreement that smokin is neither a necessary

por a_sufficient cause of lung cancer. Of 100 heavy smo ers,

less than 10 will develop lung cancer; h nce smoking is not

a sufficient cause. And of 100 people who develop lun

cancer, approximately 10 will be non-smokers: pence smoking

is not a. necessary cause. ThIs simgle fact (the precise,,

'
numbers differ of course from country to countryOut ind4cate

,

4 5
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the coiivot order of magnitude) suggests that the scientific

proof for any,pazticular,thepry will be difficult to arrive

at, and that any such theory will almost certainly be complex

and multi-faceted.

dzib Much of the evidence cited in favour of the causal

theory is statistical, but many statisticians have severely

criticized the evidence oh statistical grounds. Such

suggested proofs as the correlation.between smoking and

lung cancer within a given country, or between lung cancer

and number of cigarettes smoked between countries, are

evidence of correlation, not bf causation; one of the first

lessons the budding statistician learns is that correlation

does not imply causation. (There is a very high correlation

between countries linking meat eating and cancer of the large

inteStine, yet we do not conclude that eating meat causes

cancer of the large intestine!). Hence this method of

demonstration, while suggestive, is far from compelling.

This would be so even if the figures usually quoted could

be taken seriously; however, there are good reasons for

doubting their accuracy.

The figures quoted are based on clinical diagnosis of

lung cancer, but these are very unreliable and imprecise.

If me take as our cr terion autopsy data, and compare these
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with routine diagnosis, we find that prior to World War 1,

--..\out f 100 people found on autopsy to have died of lung

cancer, only 3 were so diagnosed. This is typical of the

very obvious under-diagnosis of lung cancer then prevalent.

In recent years, exactly the opposite has been found, namely

an over-diagnosis of lung cancer of up to 200% and morel

Whether these changes in diagnostic preference are completely

responsible for,the alleged tremendous increase in lung cancer

over the years or not, and whether it may in part account for

the observed correlation between lung cancer and smoking, it

is impossible to say;-all we coin say is that.with the basic

data so completAly unreliable, the statistics-based on them

are suspect.

Another important point concerns the isolation of smoking

from other, correlated habits, inch as drinking, living it

up, staying out late, wenching, etc., i.e. a certain style of

life the totality of which may increase the "rate :Of living",

so that smokers are biologically older than non-smokers at a

given age, for reasons only partly involved with smoking.

Non-smokers are different'types of persons from smokers, are

generally more self-protective, tnd the personality traits 11

and habits thusainked with non-smoking may be more relevant

to the longevity of non-smokers than their refusal to,

smoke.

.454
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It is often suggested that sex differences, with males

showiqe sore lung cancer, are the product of the tendency of

sales in the past 50 years or so to smoke more. However, as

several authorities whom I quote in my book have pointed out,

similar sex ratios to those observed now were found before

cigarette smoking became popular. Again, it is found that

changes in the rate of increase of lung cancer diagnosis

occurred simultaneously: for men and women, although the

women, who took up smoking much later than men, should have

shown these changes at a much later date than men.

If the 'causal theory is true,.then we would expect a

definite dose-response relationship; in other words, the

heavy smoker should be stricken with cancer earlier than the

light smoker. Yet the amount smoked makes no appreciable

difference to the manage at which the person is reported

first to the clinic. .Again, inhalation should make lung

cancer much more likely than smoking without inhaling, yet

the ,figures show if anything an opposite trend. These two

observations are difficult to reconcile with the causal

theory of smoking.

A
The most Impressive evidence for the causal theory has

/ been the report that physicians who gave up smoking showed

leas lung cancer than members of the general public who

4 55
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costinued to-Smoke. ThUs, it Might appear that giving up

Smdking has saved the lives of those who did so. But this

proof is only acceptable if those who continue to smoke,

and those who later on give up smoking, are essentially

identical with respect to their health before some of them

gave up smoking. Clearly, if those who later on give up

smoking are already much healthier than those who later on

continue to smoke, then the final differences in health may

be due to the already existing differences before anyone gave

up smoking, rathe; than to the cessation of this habit! But,

there is good evidence to show_that smokers and eX-smokers

already differed with respeceto their'bealth record-before

the ex-smokers gave up smoking. Bimilarly, there is evidence

that from the point of view of personality ex-smokers are

different from continuing smokers. Thus this alleged proof

is based on an erroneous assumption.

These objections to the causal theory, and others made

in ay book, do not prove the theory to be wrong; they simply

argue that it is still only a theory, not a scientific law.

sore convincing proof is required before the theory can be

accorded a more advanced.status. But further than that,

there are numerous facts suggesting an alternative theory,

and these facts cannot easily be integrated with the causal

theory. Yet a proper theory demands that attention be paid

to all relevant facts, and thus again the causal theory is

found wanting.

456
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The alternative theory, first suggested by the eminent

geneticist and statistician Sir Ronald Fisher, suggests that

genetic factors are important in causing lung cancer; that

genetic factors are active in causing people to maintain the 41*

smoking habit; and that possibly the same genetic factors may

be involved in both these trenfis, thus producing the observed

correlation between smoking and cancer (insofar as such a

correlation is real). There is evidence that genetic factors

do play a part in the causation of lung cancer; thi. s is not

in doubt. I have brought forward evidence (in addition to

already very convincing evidence produced by many other

people) to show that genetic factors are relevant to the

maintenance of the smoking habit. Thus there is evidence

for both the assumptions on which Fisher's argument was

based.

'The origin of the smoking habit, on the otherhand,

is hardly at all influenced by genetic factors. It appears

from our genetic analysis and froM the direct study of the

problem by Professor Spielberger that the origin of the

smoking habit is due to peer pressure; parental influences

play a much smaller part, and advertising almost none.

My own contribution has been to suggest that the mediat-

ing factor between cancer and smoking may,be the personality

of the people involved. Thus it is assumed that people of

457
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a certain personality are more likel'y than others to die of

lung cancer irrespective of smoking. It ifs also assumed that

people of a certain personality are more likely to,smoke than

others. There is evidence for both these propositions. My

original work with Dr. Kissen, an eminent British oncologist,

showed very marked personality differences between lung cancer

patients, and patients suffering from non-malignant tumours,

with the personality assessment made before diagnosis. Since

then, a large-scale study in East Germany has replicated our

findings (themselves replicated in another study by Kissen),

and has f6Udd similar personality traits to those characteristic

of lung cancer patients in women with cancer of the breast.

Other studies, also indicating a relation between lung Cancer

and personality, are cited in my book.

In a similar way, my early work with Tarrant ind Woolf

established a correlation between personality and smoking,

and many studies in different countries have since confirmed

our findings, and added new ones. We may thus say that the

fundaiental assumption of Fisher's genetic theory have found

empirical support, and we may add that there is'also some

modest support for my own attempt to integrate these two

major fields. Unfortunately there has been too little work

along these unusual and somewhat unorthodox lines to say that

/WO,
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th. results are anything more than suggestive, and the theory

linking them Is sti11 in a very elemental,' stage; neyertheless,

as far as the findings go they suppOt the geitetic rather than

the causal theory, although they do not necessarily contradict

the latter. It seems unfortunate that the premature crystal-
,

lization of spuriouS ort odoxies has.4evented the genetic

theory from attracting suf cient research grants to work it

out in sufficieni detail, and to carry out the research

necessary to put it on a more acceptable footing..

Recently some progress has been made on the thebretical

development of the genetic hipothesis by linking it with

research on stress, in particular the differential effects

;*
'of chron C and acute stress, and the "inoculation" theory

of str e s. However, in the absence of large-scale research

into the refinements of this'theory, and more widespread

familiarity with and criticisms of its details, not too much

should be claimed for it other than it preSents a viable

alternati7 to the causaI.theort.

In relation to the causal theories of coronary heart

disease (CUD), similar criticisms apply as do in the case

of lung cancer. There are considerable unreliabilities in

diagnosis; there are large number; of factors other than

smoking which have been associated and which are not usually
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controlled fOr in studies of tbe effects of smoking; inhalers

do not on the whole differ from non-inhalers in disease

proneness; the statistical relation between cigarette smoking

and CHD disappears in many countries, e.g. Finland, Holland,

Yugoslavia, Italy, Greece and Japan; there is an absence of

dose-response relationship, i.e. there is little or no relation

between duration oflobeavy cigarette smoking and risk of

slicardial infarction; and the correlation between number of

cigarettes smoked and CHD is not linear; ex-smokers in some

studies appear to be safer than non-smokers; some types of

CHD, such as angina pectoris (which comprises some 20% of

CHD in men) fail to show even a statistical correlation with

cigarette smoking; mime typesoof smoking (cigar, pipe) fail

to show even a statistical Correlation with CED; etc. These

are anomalies or failures of the cauSal theory which demand

an explanation before the causal theory can be accepted.

Some of these facts are much more readily explained in terms

of a genetic-personality theory; thus the differential effects

of cigarette vs. pipe/cigar smoking may find an explanation

in terms of the known differences in personality type

associated with these different Smoking patterns.

The general conclusion would seem to be that in the

case of CHD, as in the case of lung cancer, proof for the

caueal influence of smoking is still lacking and is by no
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means-as clear-cut and decisive; as is often alleged. There

is vidence in the case of CHD of genetic factors, and there

are published correlations with personality; here too there

appears an important element of stress determining the

appearance of CHD, and stress is intimately linked with

personality. No formal theory of genetic determination of

CHD has yet been put forward, but it seems likely that such

a theory is needed-as an alternative (or perhaps as comple-

cmentary) to the causal theory for an explanation of the many

gaps and anomalies tn the latter.

One importet function of the senetic theory has been

that of explainingChe reasons why people smoke, and to link

these reasons with their differential personality patterns.

Work along these lines has had tile important effect of

suggesting new and improved ways of teaching people to give

sp smoking. The causal theory of smoking causing diselise has

nothing to say on this topic. Another important function of

the genetic theory has been to suggest better designs for

research in this complex field; a good example is the use of

tbe discordant'twin method by Cederlof, Lundman and others,

i.e. the investigation of the illness patternwof identical

twins of whom one smokes, the other not. If this type of

research had been carried out on the large and international

scale required, instead of investing in the redundant and
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aCleatitinally Set very Valuablt replication of correlational

studios, sv would know far more about the relation between

smoking and disease than we do now. Such studies allow us

to look at environmental factors, including those of smoking,

while controlling for genetic factors; this is essential if

any convincing results are to be achieved.

In summary 2 would like to state that ale causal theory

of smoking as being responsible for lung cancer and coronary

heart disease, while it has found strong support, is fax

from being stablished, and has many gaps, anomalies and

contrary findings to contend with; these are too frequently

glossed Over ankl dismissed as unimportant, when in reality

they may be found to discredit the Causal theory in whole

:
9r in part. An alternative theory, based on genetic and

tmplicating personality factors, is much less well eveloped,

fr,
more complex,_and at present not too well, known to oncologists;

nevertheless there are many well-established facts which

suggest that in part if not in whole it cam account for the

major findings. At the very leist, this alternative theory-,

suggests novel research methodologies which would serve to

overcome the difficulties of the older methods and rmiedy

their lack of proper controls. The possibility has also

been raised that the two theories may be complementary,

rather than opposed to each other; this possibility too

thould be looked into from the experimental point of view.

What is certain is that at the moment no final decision can

be made about whether or the degree to which cigarette

smoking may cause lung cancer or coronary heart di ,

how it interacts with other factors (stress; personality),

or how we can best protect the health of our citizens in

relation to these diseases. "In ignorance, abstain!" warned

the famous French scientist, Claude Bernard; hasty action on'

the basis of partial,knowledge is unlikely to be in the best

interests of those most concerned, namely.the prospective

victims of lung cancer and coronary heart di

4 et 2
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank 'you very much, Dr. Eysenck.
Dr. Wind.

STATEMENT 0 jF YORAM J. WIND

Mr WIND. Thank you. I am foram Wind. Since 1973 I have been
a professor of marketing at the Wharton School. I am the previous
editor of the Journal of Marketing. I haVe been at Wharton since
receiving my doctorate from Stanford in 1967.

My specialty is marketing research, including consumer behav-
ior Over the years I have consulted to numerous companies and
published extensively in various areas of marketing and consumer
behavior.

I have been asked by the Tobacco Institute to present my views
as an expert in marketing and consumer behavior on the theoreti-
cal and facttial support for certain of the provisions in the bill. I
am appearing here today not only as an expert but also as an ex-
smoker And I can understand, therefore, the motivation underly-
ing the bill.

Yet, I find the proposed labeling requirement td be conceptually
unacceptable and empirically unsupported. The proposed bill suf-
fers from two major problems which if we will use a medical anal-
ogy, can be viewed as, one, analyzing or giving the wrong diagnosis.

The bill is premised on the notion that consumers are not aware
of the relations between smoking and health issues. It seems to me
based on the evidence we have, including FI'C's staff report and
other studies as discussed earlier today, that there is ample evi-
dence to suggest that there is extremely high awareness of the
problem.

The second problem is that even if we assume for a minute that
the diagnosis is correct, that there is a lack of awareness, *re is
no conceptual nor empirical support to suggest that the labeling re-
quirement will have any effect on achieving the objective of the
bill.

These are the two major problems that I will try to address
myself to. Concerning the first point on the current high level of
awareness, it as quite evident from my written statement and the
earlier statements today, that there is enough evidence to suggest
'there is a very high level of awareness of the relation between
smoking and health problems.

The FTC report cites the 1978 Gallop survey which indicates over
90 percent of the public believes smoking is hazardous to health. A
aimilar high percentage responds affirmatively to more specific
issues in many of the studies that were conducted.

For example, 90 percent believe smoking during pregnancy can
affect the smoker's baby, 87 percent of adults are of the view smok-
ing has been found to be associated with cancer and so on. The re-
sponses at this high level are truly remarkable.,A measured aware-
ness 4f 90 percent can be considered deficiency only if one takes as
a standard against it perfect information of 100 percent.

This is totally unattainable, it is conceptually unreachable. It is
impossible Human cognitive abilities, differences among people, se-
lective perceptions, will never allow us to get on any issue, 100 per-
cent awareness. There are numerous studies, some of them cited in
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,rny statement, that suggest on other issues, more critical issues,
you nevFvet such 'high response rates.

The staff report, on which I believe some of the proposed
bill is based, also misinterprets a fair amount of the data that it
suggests as basis for its conclusions. There are basically six major
problems with the staff report

First, the staff improperly focuses on responses to specific ques-
tions. It establishes whether the popplation knows or does not
know a certain fact based on a response to a single item. It is con-
trary to evertallig that we kno* about measprement theory.

No test is on a single item. You are working on pattern of
responses, yet all of the studies focused on a specific question. Can
you measure your knowledge of economic, p-sychology, human be-
havior, any area based on a single question?

Second, the staff assumed that anyone that responded incorrectly
to one out of a number of multiple response options basically did
not lipow the answer. Imagine a telephone situation when you are
being interviewed, you are given like 5 different options find if you
miss the one correct answer you are classified now as basically pro-
viding the wrong answer.

Similarly, the staff interprets "do not know" in a quite erroneous
manner. Basically their definition of do not know is anyone who
missed the correct answer. But there might be another interpreta-
tion.

Mark Twain in "Life on the Mississippi" said, "I was gratified to be
able to answer promptly, and I did. I said I didn't know."

Recognizing this specific problem, the Research Center at the
University of Michigan for example points out that the answer "I
have no opinion on that" can mean merely, I am thinking, and ad-
vises that it is a good idea to probe all of the "do not know" re-
sponses. No probing was done in any of the studies that I reviewed.

The third problem is that incorrect responses can be'attributed
to lack of understanding of the specific question, or the options pro-
vided. If you will examine fully some of the questionnaires that are
the basis for the studies, you will see that it is extremely difficult
to answer them. I urge you to try to be a respondent and try to
answer them.

The fourth problem relates to two very basic issues. None of the
studies on the relation between consumer awareness of smoking
and health issues focused on either the basic questions of the reli-
ability of the data, or validity of the data. Those are two critical
components in any measurement; if we are trying to generalize
from the findingsto the general population.

Fifth, the staeport does not present a norm against which to
compare several results. Without a norm, given the fact we ruled
out before the possibility of 100 percent awareness as an acceptable
or even attainable objective, we can never know what does the
number mean. Is it high, low, medium? There are 'no norms pro-
vided. Yet in any educational testing, or any other testing situation
we always have to have norms for comparison.

Six, and most fundamentally, the report's conclusions are based
to a large extent on confusion between the terms awareness, belief,
and knowledge. And let me quote here the staff definition of
awareness. I think it is very illuminating. Their definition is, and I
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quote. "Those who say they do not believe, do not believe true
statements Believe false statements. Underestimate on a multiple
choice question or answer, `do not know' or 'uncertain.'" This
suggests a major confusion-Between belief and awareness.

If I take positions of belief as statement of unawareness, I am
getting a complete confusion that invalidates all the information
provided in terms of percentage of people who are unaware.

There are a number of examples I can quote, you have them in
my statement and I will not go into them now, but you might want
to refer to them or go back to the original staff feports.

These six problems suggest to me quite conclusively that the di-
agnosis on which the bill is based, that there is no high awareness
as to the relation between cigarette smoking and health hazard is
incorrect. It seems to me that there is a very high one.

The second point that I have is the fact that the warning system
suggested will not help us achieve the objective. There is no way,
no conceptual way that can support the rotational system as a way
of achieving the objective of the bill. The only basis, empirical
basis, this that I am familiar with is a study done by Burke that
has four major problems.

One, the study restricted the warning statements only to ciga-
rette advertising, ignored completely the package labeling. Did not
test them at all.

Two, the sample was a nonrepresentative sample based on select-
ing people in malls as opposed to trying to have a random probabil-
ity sample that wotild have allowed us to generalize the results to
the population at large.

Three, the study included only two of the warnings you are con-
sidering today. Even then, worded differently.

There is no defensible empirical basis to suggest that any of the
proposed labels makes any sense, that they will achieve their objec-
tive.

Fou'r, when you look at the results, even with all these limita-
tions, and if you control for the formatthey tested in their study
four different formats and three messagesthere is no significant
difference between the awareness of the message based on the cur-
rent one, and their proposed ones, which basically suggests that,
even if you forget all the problems of the study, their data really do
not support the conclusions that the committee is suggesting here.

In conclusion then, it seems to me that, one, the basis on which
the bill is based, the notion that we are in a situation as stated by
the committee, that the consumers are unaware of the dangers of
smoking is incorrect and, unsupported by fact.

Two, the hope that a prescription to replace the current Surgeon
General's warning with a rotational system of seven different warn-
ings will have any positive effect on consumer awareness about
smoking and health'issue is really speculative. We do not have any
support for this either conceptually or empirically.

I urge the committee therefore to reconsider the advisibility of
the labeling provisions and I will be happy to answer any questions
you might have.

[Testimony resumes on p. 474.]
[Mr. Wind's prepared statement follows:]

44.0t7 j q2 465



_

462

STATEMENT OF PROFESSOR YORAM J. WIND FOR
SUBMISSON TO THE SUBCOMMITTEE pri HEALTH

AND THE ENIF/RONMENT

/
I am Yoram (Jerry) Wind. Since 1973.1 have served

1

a P..Jrofessor of Marketing at the Wharton SAool of the Univei:sity

of Pennsylvania, and am the pist editor of.the Journal of Market-

lag. I have beer; on the faculty at Wharton since receiving my

doctorate degree from Stanford University in 1967. My specialty

is marketing iesearch, with particular emphasis on the analysis

and measurement of consumer behavior. During the paalk fifteen

years I have servd as a rsearch consultant for various

government agencies and about 100 companiee and bave,publisyed

extensively in many areas of marketing. A resume of my educe-

tional background and professional activities, and a bibliography

of my publications, are attached to this statement.

I-Save been asked by The Tobacco Institute to present

my views, as an.expert in marketing and consumer behavior, on

the theoretical and factual support fo'r certaih of the provisions

of H.R. 5653. My testimony will deal with the propolsed findings

that existing government and private programs, including the

Surgeon General's warning statement, have not adequately in-

formed the public about smoking and health,issues, and the

proposal to replace 'the currenryterning,statement with a

rotational system of seven different warning statements. My

comments are baeed on an evaluation of a document isaued in

May 1981 by the Staff of the Federal Trade Commission entitled

Report on the Cigarette Ad4ertising Investigation, which I
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understand was submitted to Congress and was based on a*

rational, that appears to b. similar to that underlying the

labeling provisions of the present bill. I also hsve reyiewed

the consloor studies and surveys that are principally relied

uPon in that Report.

My conclusion can be stated in one sentence: to the,

extent that the labeling and &Iv:hi-Using proposals contained

in H.R. 5653 are based on the recommendations and conclusions

set forth in the FTC Staff Report, those prposals are without .

factual or theoretical support and are unlikely to achieve the

bill's objective.

I base that conclusion on two key points:

ririt, the level of ptiblic awareness about various

smoking and heSlth issue:, as demonstrated by the studies and

surveys cited inthe FTC Staff Report, is extraordinarily

high -- much higher than one would expect to result from

normal adgertising and marketing methods. The efforts of the

s FTC Staff to minimize the extent' f public awareness on these

issues are based on misinterpretation and misuse of the studiesf

cited in th. Report and a fundamental confusion between aware-

nese and belief. The conclusion presented in ,the proposed

bill that "present Federal, State, and private initiativei

have been insufficient in conveying the health messages to the

Americ Public" (Sec. 2(7)), is not consistent with the

fi ngs ot the studies relied upon,by the FTC Ste? Report.

Htcond, there is neither theoretics/ nor empirieal

support for the proposition thap the rotational warning system

*
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proposed in H.R. 5653 and recommended by the FTC Staff would

have any positive impact on the/evel of public awareness about

smoking andtealth issus. Replacement of the current warning

= statement vitt seven different rotational warnings thus would

be totally arbitrary.

I would like to elaborate on each of these points.

With respect to.the existing level of public aware--

nese, the FTC Report begins its analysis with the admission

that "most people are generally aware" of the claims about

smoking and health. The report cites a 1978 Gallup Opinion
4

poll, which indicates that more.than 90 percent of th4 public

believesIthat smoking is hazardous to health. Similar high

percentages respond affirmatively,to more specific issues:

over 90 percent of the public believes that heart disease has
4

ts.

beed found to t4 associated with smoking; almost 90 percent

4believes that smoking during pregnancy cAn affect the smoker's

baby; 87 percent of adults mre of the view that smoking has

been found to be associated with cancer of the mouth ihd with

chronic bronciitis; well over 80,percent either "think" or

"know" that smokers are many more times as likely to develop

lung cancer as nonsmokers.

These isponses are remarkale National surveys

and polls consistently identify substantial 8egm4nts of the

American public who are unaware of major public isiues and

46b
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facts -- the en'ergy crisis, the identity of the President and

other publi4 leaders -- the examples are numerous.

A measured level of 90 percent awareness can be con-

si'deied "deficient" only if it is compared to a standard of

perfect awareness. Rut it should be obvious that Such a sten-
.

dard is both theoretically and practically impossible. The

limits of,human cognitive abilities and selective perception

mechanisms insure that 100 percent of any group will never

be aware. of or in agreement about any fact or issue. That

is why there is a distribution of responses in any test,

. particularly 4 test involving multiple choice questions

such as the 5tud4es cited in the FTC Staff Repo;t.

An equally important defect is the FTC staff's

fundamental misinterpretation of the results of the consumer

studies on which it relies. Six major misinterpretations can

be identified.

First, the Staff improperly focussed on responses to

specific questions, rather than on patterns of responses.' The

Staff assumeahroughout its discussion of public awareness

, that if a nuMber of people are not aware'of a specific detail

about the smoking and health issue -- for example, the claim

that Smoking during iregnancy increases the risk of still

birth and misca;riage -- those people are not aware of the

general proposition that encomp that detail -- that is,

the assertion that smoking during pregnancy increases the

risks of adverse effects on the baby,

<-1.\
/
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ibis assumption is contrary to the actual results of

the studies cited In the report, which show that most people

are aware of all of the significant claims about smoking and,

health. It also violates fundamental principles about measure-

ment of knowledge or awareness, which call for the development

of an overall knowledge score or scores based on response to

multiple items. Can your knOwledge of a aubject, let's say

conomics, politics or health, be assessed accurately by your

response to a single question on each topic? Yet this is

analogous to the FTC Staff'a reliance on the rOponse to a

single question on the healtli ffects of smsoking.
I

The seAndsarea of misinterpretation is the.siaff'1/23

assumption that anyone who responds incorrectly to multiple

choice questions invoiving detailed statistics or Tedical

knowledge is insufficiently aware of the fact or.issup in-

volved in the guestion. Respondents were asked numerous

quesgtions involving Precise deta49,4;N\such as "Out of every

hundred people who get lung cancer, how many die from it,"

4; and we provided with six alternative answers. According

to the Staff, anyone who picked other than the answer that the

Staff called correct -- 95 -- "did not appreciate the severity

of lung cancer." In fact, however, the vast majority of

respondents chose either 45; 75, or 95, indicating that they

believe that lung cancer has a high mortality rate of at ieast

1 of every 2 of those suffering from the disease. That belief

P

hardly supports the Staff's conclusion.

N
0
er,
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Similarly, the Staff interpreted "don't know"

answers to such questions as a lack of awareness on the part

of the respondent. BUt such an answer is equally susceptible

to the interpretation that the respondent is aware of the

"statement presented but is unaure of the precise statistics

involved. /n my previous example, a person who believed that

most people with lung cancer die from that disease, but who

was not sure whether the correct proportion is 85, 90, 95, or

97 out of 100, might &newer "don'tAicnow." The Report would
..

erroneously have included that person in the category of those

who "do not appreciate the severitgof lung cancer."

Still another interpretaiion of the "don't know"

answer is the one offered by Mark Twain in Life on the

Mississippi: "I was gratified to be able to answer promptly,

and I did. I said I didn't know." Recognizing this, the

Interviewer's Manual of the Survey Research Center of the

University of Michigan points out that the answer "I have

no opinion on that" can mean merely "wait a minute, I am

thinking" and advises that it is a good idea to probe all
.

"don't know" responses. No probing was conducted in the

studies relied upon by the FTC Staff.

Third, many of the so-called "incorrect" responses

to the studies couid have resulted from simple lack of under-

standing of the questions. The studies primarily relied upon

in the Report On the issue of public awareness were based on

4-7.1
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telephone surveys. /n such interviews, it is not reasonable

to expect a high percentage of correct &nswers to complex

questions such as those that were asked in the studies.

Let me give you an example of one such question.

Imagine that I have called you out of the blue, explained who

I am, and ask you a long series of questions. Even if you

have remained interested and alert throughout the interview,

you must respond to such questions as this one:

"iflow Mkny Americans living today will eventually die

from dis eeeee related to smoking cigarettes? None, one out of

two. one out of six, one out of ten, or one out of a hundred?"

The ambiguity of the phrasing -- does the word

"Americans" refer to a.IT Americans or only those who smoke? --

as well as the precise statistical answers presented turn such

surveys into a guessing game rather than a test of knowledge

or awareness.

Fourth, none of the studies cited in the Report in-

cluded supporting data as to the reliability and validity of

their findings. That is, no evidence was offered to show

that the series of questions asked were,a reliable measure of

pubkic awareness or knowledge about any particular issue. For

example, how many respondents would provide the same answers

if they were reinterviewed a few weeks later? Furthermore,

no validation of the results was providqg. Indeed, given the

focus of till FTC Staff Report on substantive conclusions, if

it wets submitted to ayrofessional publication such as the
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Journal, of Marketing during ay editorship, or Marketing Science

today, it would be rejected due to the lack of any validation

procedures for the studies upon which its conclusions are'based.

Fifth, neither the Staff Report nor the studies

presented any norm against which to compare the survey results.

In the classic text on testing, Educational Measurement,

William Angoff of the Educational Testing Service statel:

"By now it has become almost axiomatic that
raw scores on a test yield no meaning unless
they are accompanied by relevant supplementary
data that will place the score in an appropriate
interpretive context."

In other words, it is impossible validly to conclude

that the answers to a particular survey itef represents a

high, low or medium level of awareness in the absence of,a

standard that would show what answers are'to be expected.

Sixth, and most fundamentally, the Report's conclu-

sions, and ib a large extent the studies upon which those con-

clusions are based, reflect a hopeless confusion of,the very

distinct conce pts of awareness versus knowledge and belief.

The Staff Report'defines "unaware" as:-

. . . those who say they do not believe true
statements ; believe false statements; under-
estimate on a multiple choice question or
answer don't know' or uncertain." (ETC
Staff Report at p. 17 note b, emphasis added)

There is no conceptual justification for combining these five
0

diverse responses. Belief is not awareness or knowledge;

looking ior exact response on a multiple choice question in.
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search of tho precise "correct" answer is not reasonable,

*don't know* is both a function of the question wording and

the item of concern; and uncertainty does not necessarily

. represent lack of awareness.

One example of thia,faulty definition of "awareness"

is the FTC Staff's misUse of the 1980 Roper Study cited in

the Report. Thaytudy asked people "how true you personally

think" a particular atatement is. The interviewer was in-

structed to introduce those questions to the respondents as

follows: "Now I'm going to reads you some statements about

smoking and health, and for eac one I'd like you to tell

me your beliefs about how true the statement is." Respondents

were permitted to answer only'"know it's true," "think it's

true," "don't know if,it's true," "think it's not true," or

"know it's not true." The Staff concluded that those respond-

ing in the latter three categories are *unaware" of the informs-

. tion conveyed by the specific statements made. It is obvious,

however, that a respondent coUld be aware of a claim (for

example, that smoking increases the risk of heart attack)

yst disagree with it.

The FTC Staff consistently misused the studies in this

respect to support its erroneous conclusions about awareness.

Let me read another example from page 3-19 of the Report:

"According to the Gallup Opinion Index, June,
1978, 19% of the population do not believe
that smoking causes'lung cancer . . . . Among
all smokers, 28% did not believe smoking
caused lung cancer while among heavier smokers,
nearly one-third -- 31% -- did not believe or

. stz4
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know about the link. . . . Projected nation-
wide, these data suggest that tens of millions
of Americans, both smokers and non-smokers,
do not know that cigarette smoking causes lung
cancer.

The Staff's conclusion simply does not follow Brom the dad.

This fundamental type of error -- confusing consumer awareness

with consumer belief -- undiirmines any recommendations that

might be based on a premise that the public is not adequately

4informed about smoking and.fisalth.

I/.

The FTC Staff Report -- and presumably the present

bill -- proceed from the premise that the public is inadeqUately

2nformed about smoking and health issues to the conclusion

that a new system of warning statements is necessary to

rectify this inadequacy. As I have attempted to demonstrate,

the available data do not support the premix's. But it is*"

equally disturbing that the new system of warning statements

recommendird by the Report and by H.R. 5653 are not likely to

achieve any positive impact on consumer awareness about 10

smoking and health issues.

There is no evidence that specific warnings such as

those proposik in H.R. 5653 wOuld result in any increase in

public awareness. The only study of which.I am aware that

relates to this issue is a study conducted for the FTC Staff

by Burke Mirketing Research to test the recall of different

types of proposed warning statements and formats. This study

4 75
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-his three major limitations. One:.N0.0.is restricted to warning

statements.in cigarette advertising, not packaging. Two, the

.sample of respondents is not representative of the American

public, and thus the projectability of the study's results is

questionable, Three,the study included only two new warning

statements and the current statement as a control; the two

statements tested are not among those prposed by the present

bill. ,Ik
Given these limitations, it is clear that the study

does not provide empirical support for the present proposal.

But ven'were one to aesume away the limitations"and accept

the results of the study as valid, they demonstrate only(

that consumers best recall those matters that they already

had learned from the present warning statement and from the

numerous other sources of information about smoking and health.

Thus, for example, the study found that a Specific lung cancer

warning was "no more effective than tho non-cancer warnings

'in eliciting mentions of the relationship between smoking

and cancer." . 1

Indeed, it is quite possible that the rotational

warnings proposed bY H.R. 5653 would have an opposilte effect

of what is intended by the bill's sponsors. The present

Surgtonpeneral's warning statement is ibedded in the pub-

lic consciousness, as well or better known than the proposi-

tion that people should wear seat belts. If instead appear

statements linking smoking to specific health problems,

s.

4.
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consumers might well conclude that the Surgeon General has

changed his opinion and no longer considers smoking to be v

generally hazardous to health. Moreover, by focussing on

specilic problems, the warnings become significantly less

relevant to various segments of the population. Teenagers,

for example, are unlikely to be concerned about emphysema or

heart disease; single men and olde'r women are not likely to

pay attention to a warning that smoking may cause problems

during pregnancy. Neither the FTC Staff Report nor the

present bill appears to have given any consideration to these

poteniial consequences of rotational warning system.

III. .

In conclusion, nothing in the studies cited by the

FTC Staff or the rationale suggested in the bill itself sup-

ports (a) the diagnosis that the public is unaware of the

claimed health hazards of smoking and (b) the prescriptiOn

that the replacement of the current Surgeon General's warn-

ing with a rotational system of sev'en different warnings

will have any positive effect on consumers' awareness about

smoking and health issues. The labeling proposals simply

are unsupported by facts or theorie J about consumer behavior.

Reno', I urge this Subcommittee to r

i

consider the advisability

of the labeling provisions of H.R. S653.
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Mr, WAXMAN. Thank you very much. We will have questions in
a minute.

Dr. Blackwell.
IP

STATEMENT OF ROGER D. BLACKWELL, PH. D.

Dr. BLACKWELL. Mr. Chairman, I am Roger Blackwell, a profes-
sor of marketing at Ohio State University, specializing in the anal-
ysis of buyer behav ior and development of marketing steategy My #

1Ph. D. degree was earned at Northwestern University, with a con-
centration in cons'umer behavior.

I have authored, or coauthored, 14 books and over 50 articles
published in professional or business journals that report research
that I and others have conducted cotrerning the communications
process, consumer decision processes mvolved in buying and using
goods and services, and variables involved in marketing strategy.
One of my most recent books is the fourth edition of "Consumer
Behavior," published this year.

I have been asked to review section 4 of the bill that would
change the present labeling requirements to something else. The

, rotational system of warnings proposed by section 4 is of course
somewhat similar to the report and recommendations made by the
staff of the Federal Trade Commission. In my opinion, the change
in the warning statement proposed by section 4 is fundamentally
flawed.

First, the labeling provisions of section 4 would replace a highly
successful program of informing consumers about the claimed
health risks of smoking with a program of unknown and potential-
ly counterproductive consequences. All of the studies conducted
about consumer awareneis of smoking and health issues lead to the
conclusion that people are universally aware of the claims that
smoking is hazardous to health, and you can go back into the
smoking section of a plane and simply verify that by talking to
people and asking them.

So why abandon this pro-gram in favor of a course that is not
only uncharted >but, as I hope to demonstrate, likely to lead to re-
sults quite the opposite of those apparently intended by the bill's
sponsors? ,

The other basic flaw in section 4 is that the system of rotated'
warnings attributing specific health problems to smoking will prob-
ably lead to one of two unhappy effects. Either consumers will er-
roneously believe that they will perso4ally suffer the specific
health problems identified in the warning statements and say yes,
I will have a heart attack or get lung cancer, and if people did that,
and you know only some will, then Congress is mandating a law .
which deceives some people. Now that is one possible consequence.

The other possible consequence, and probably the more likely
one, is that people would read the ad and saYr some peoP1e will get
heart disease, or lung disease. But we know that these are minoritSr,
phenomenons, those are risk factors that only apply .,to a certain
proportion of the people.

Most of the people will, as human nature always is, say that is
for the other person. Now let me explain just a little bit about the
point. .
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The point is important tu v.hether people do have the informa-
tion about whether it is haAirdous or not. Professor Wind has quite
wellisummariced those data, and those data are desi.ribed in pages
3 thiough 7 of my statement, so I would not repeat them, the prob-
lems with the assertion that people do not know the fact that a lot
of information is disseminated on this subject.

Professor Wind and I did not interact before, but our analysis
was very similar Mr Chairman, I think one of the most interest-
ing things Is, if you supplied these studies tu all of the leading con-
sumer behavi9r professors, or people who are used to 'analyzing a
panel of people who would objectively evaluate it, I just do not see
how you would come.to any other conclusions from those experts
other than the on e. that people do know, or do believe, that smok-
irg is hazardous. -

Now, so I will not repeat those specifics. They are in the state-
ment. But those are the empirical evidence. The other problem,
and I think this is the one that bothers intellectuals, bothers every-
body perhaps, that if people know this they would act on it. But it
would be-wrong to conclude that consumers are not adequately in-
formed just because they do not act upon it.

As a matter of fact, the studies done by the FTC, commissioned
by the FTC, flatly refute this position. The 1980 Chilton study
came to the ,onclusion as follows, and I am quoting from page 22,
'Factual knowledge about the health consequences of smoking was
not found to be significantly related to current smoking behavior."

In other words, the FTC's own commission studies indicate if
ople had this information, no more difference between knowledge

evels of smokers compared with nonsmokers were found to be sig-
nificant at the 0 03 level of significance than were to b expected
by chance.

So basicayy my position is that if you are trying to p in infor-
mation that would be more relevant to some people, thos who are
at risk in heart attacks, you are by definition putting in orma-
tion that is relevant to the people who do not consider themselves
in those risk categories.

My objection, and I am a nonsmoker and I suspect I empathize
quite a bit with the view of wanting people to not smoke as much,
but my position is you would be creating a rule which said to mari'y
people, this is for people who are older, the ones who get heart at-
tacks and the ones who get lung cancer.

For example, people over 65 have almost 2,000 percent more
lihood of malignancy than young people. We now have a syste in
which parents and peers, who probably influence the real decis
to Smoke, can say the Surgeon General has determined that smok-
ing is hazardous to your health.

And what we are doing is trying to talk about a system that
would replace that with one that consequences that are uncharted,
and everything In the empirical evidence that does exist and in
consumer behavior theory indicates that there is no reason to be-
lieve that this will be more effective, and in fact there are some
ve'ry strong probabilities that it would be counter to the intentions
that probably many well-meaning people intend for this bill.

Thank you.
[Testimony iiesumes on p. 486.]
[Dr. Blackwell's prwared statement follows:]
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STAWENT OF DR. ROGER D. BLACKWELL

My name is Roger D. Blackwell. I am Professor of

Marketing at the Ohio State University% specializing in the

analysis of.buyer behavior and development of marketing strategy.

my Ph.D. degree was earned at Northwestern University, with a

concentration in consumer behavior. I have authored or co-

authored fourteen books and over fifty articles published in
,...

professional or business journals that report research that I

and Others have conducted ooncerning the c2pmunications pro-

cess, consumer decision processes involved in buying and using

goods and services, and variables involved in marketing strategy.

One of my most, recent boo is the fourth edition pf Consumer

Behavior, published this y,ar. The book describes psychological

%
principles involved in buy g and consumption and is the most

widely adopted textbook in the field. A complete list of my

publications is s4ied with this statement.

This is my personal statement and should not be con-
s

strued to refleckthe views of the Ohio State University or any

other institution with which I am or have been affiliated.

I have been asked to analyze Section 4 of H.R. 5653,

which would change the present labeling requireMents for cigarette

packages and.advertisements. The rotational system of warning

statements proposed by Section 4 of the bill is similar to a

recommendation made last yeat by the Staff of the Federal Trade

Commission in a Report on cJ.garette advertising, and I have

evaluated the findings and conclusions of tfiat Report as well.

*4
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In my opinion, the change in, the warning statement

pioposed by Sectioi 4 is fundamentally flawed: First, the .

labeling provisions of Section 4 would replace a highly success-

ful program of informing consumers about the claAmed health

risks-Of szsoking.with a-program.of unknown and potentially

counterproductive consequences. All of thestudies conducted

about consumer awareness of smoking and health issues lead to

the conclusion that people are universally aware of the claims

that rsokingis hazardous to health. Why abandon this program

in favor of A course that is *ot only uncharted but, us I hope

to demonstrate, likely to lead to results quite the opposite of

those apparently intenyled by the bill's apron:At?

The other basic flaw in Section 4 is that the system

of rotated warnings attributing specific health problems to

smoking will probabl§ leekg to one of two unhappy effects:

either consumers will erroneously believe that they mill per-

sonally suffer the specific health probfems identified in them_ /

"lwarnAng statements, even though such problems affect only a
0

minority of the smoking and nonsmoking populaiion, in which case

the warnings would be deceptive; or vonsumers will correctly

perceive that only a small proportion of the population is at
I

risk from the stated health problems, and will thus conclude

that the Surgeon General and other health authorities have now

decided that smoking is not hazardous to all people. Since it

appears that the specific diseases identified in the proposed

warning:s4stems apply primarily t8 older people, the probable

84-387 0 - 82 - 31 91(
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ffect of the law would be to reduce drastically the impact of .

the warning statement on young people.

The iotational warning system propfted in the prbsent
.

bill and the FTC Staff Report apparently is based on the assump-

tion that present public awareness of the claimed health conse-

quences of smoking is "insufficient." Finding 7. in,Section 2 of

H.R. 5653 states thia "present Federal, State and private initia-

tives LiVe been insufficient" in conveying information about the

claimed health consequences of smoking to the American public.

.Similarly, the Fre Staff Report asserts that "additional action

designed to provide consumers with more information about the

health consequences of,smoking is necessary." (Report at p. 21)

For several reasons, this assumption is dubious.

In the first place, determination of what constitutes

a "sufficient" level of awareness in such a complex area is both

difficult and subjective, although it appears to me that, bi any

standard, the level of awareness about the claimed health hazards

mf smoking' is astonishinglypigh. A basic question is'the amount'

of information a consumer can reasonably be expected. 1..._22..21.were

of in connection with a decision to use any particular product.

Many ,of the questions posed in the surveys cited by the FTC

Staff required a detailed scientific knOwledge about questions

of smoking and healih, including a complete awareness of every

health,problem that has been attributed to smoking, the specific

size of the increase claimed in the risk of incurring each problem
. -

if one smokes, the percentage of each pitrticular health condition

that is attributed to smoking, and the proportion or number of

482
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people who dim frau a given health cOndition. From the consulter

viewpoint, what value is there in posieseing such a complex

array of'informatiqn? When one considers the tremendous amount

of infbrmation to which the consumer is exposed every day, and

the fact that consumer; a. not possess unlimited processing

capacities, it clearly wool& seem more functioial for the con-

sumer to retain in memory the overall impliaition of these

numerous bits of information about the claimed consequences of

smoking, i.e., that smoking Is dangerous: That is precisely the

'information conveyed by the'present Surgeon Generali warning

statement;

Proper evalCation of the adequacy of consumer aware-

ness also Is hampered hy the fact that there is no baseline for

comparison. for example, how does consumer awareness abqut

smoking and health compard to the information consumers possess

about the health,hazards attributed to otfie4 products such as'

autatobiles, liquor, and hang-gliders? Mithout such comparison,

juagments eihout the sufficiency of the level of consumer awareoess

are highly sublective and cannot;serve validly awe basis for '

tie far-reaching changes embodied im lection 4 of the hill.

'Moreover,ian examination of the studies on which

the FTC relies for the proPosition that consumers are not

sufficiealy aware of the dangers associated with stoking

reveals.that those studies are defective in several important

respects.

4 3
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Perhaps most significant is that maiy of the survey

/measures assessed beliefs rather than awariness. The distinc-

I g

tion between belief 'and awareness is a critical one giyen the

existing controversy over the health threats presumed t9 be

posed by smoking. Consider the likely situation of a survey

participant who recognizes that smoking has been foumd to be

associated with particular health problems but finds the evidence

insufficient for demonstrating that smoking causes these health

prob141Is. Thus, the person is aware of the claimed link between

ambking And some healtkproblems but.does not believe that

smoking causes the problems. AS stated in the 1980 Burke Mar-
(

keting Research Focus Group Study commissioned bg the FTC:

"Further doubt about the direct relation-
ship of smoking and cancer seems to be related
to the fact that these persons had known smokers
who had lived long lives without contracting
cancer and non-smokers who had suffered from
that disease." (Burke Studi-Inalysis at p. 4.)

Maa of the measures employed in the studies asked the

respondents to indicate their agreement with or the correctness

of statements such as "smoking causes X." .Respondents who

clisagreed with these "supposedly true" statements arle categorized

as'unaware. ,AlternaZively, these respondents may be aware of

the medical evidence but have concluded that while smoking is

"related" to X, it does not "cause" X. Evidence supportincrthis

alternative explanation is provided by the 1980 Chilton study

conducted for the rTC Staff. At one point survey participants
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wire asked whether heart disease "had been found to be associated

with cigaretie smoking. ODy7etion 42e). Only 9.8% of the teen-

agers aed 9.3% of the adults interviewed answered incorrectly

(i.e., "No" and "Don't knowl responses). Later in the interview,

these same persons were asked whether the statement 'cigarette

smoking is a major cause of heart disease" (Question 52) was

true or false. 26.8% of the teenagers and 39.6% of the adults
sook.

were presumed to be "unaware" of the.claim embodied in this

statement. Such response variations between questions involving
4

the same disease, but which differ in positing smoking as either

the cause of or simply associated with that disease, strongly

suggest that many persons classified as "unaware" in fact are

aware of smokihg's asserted relationship to various health

risks. These persons simply do not believe that smoking.caudes

these health:problems.

Question wording has long been recognized as a critical

area in survey research. The FTC Staff Report acknowledges that

". . conservative- sounding statements have been found to le

more likely to generate agreement . . . ." (Report at.p. 3-3)

By the same token, statements employing extreme wording or

phrases are likely to inhibit agreement. Thus, the amount of

Almeement with the statement "smoking is by far the greatest

cause of lung cancer" used in tri 1980 Roper Study was probably

lower than had the statement been phrased "smoking is the greatest
_-

cause of lung cancer.' Wording ambiguity can also influence the

respohse patterns to a question. Phrases repeatedly appearing

in the Roper Study such as "by far," "greatly increases," and

485
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'significantly increases," are very subjective. For example,

some people may per-ceive a 30% risk increase as a significant

increase, while others may not.

It is interesting to note that the FTC Report Cites

evidence that people tend to ignore or discount statistical

information in making judgments. (Report at pp. 4-14 and 4-15)

//Given this evidence, it seems inconsistent to employ measures of

"statistical knowledge* for assessing the level of awareness

concerning the claimed effects of smoking. Measures of this

,type, however, were frequently employed as indicatori of con-

sumers' awareness about the asserted dangers of smoking (e2.

"What percent of lung cancer cases are caused by'cigarette

smoking?"..- Chilton 19807 'Smokers are at least ten times as

likely to develop lung cancer than non-smokers" - Roner 1980).

For these reasons, it would appear that current stn4iiks.

have underestimated consumers' awareness aboUt the health hazards

asisociated with smoking. 14ere is, unfortunately, no way of

predicting how much underestimation error exists in these data:

But in view of the fact that these same studies consistently

report awareness levels in the 80 to 90 percent range, it is

fair to conclude that public awareness of the various aricak

aboUt.smoking and health is as a practical matter universal.

It would be wrong to conclude that consumere are

not adequately informed about the clamed health consequences

of smoking simply'becaese many consumerS continue to smokt. The

FTC Staff Report states several times that.smokers are,not as

4 8 6
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well inforeed as nonsmokers, implying that sch informational

differences are responsible forthe decision whether or not to

smoke. That conclusion is flat1y'refuted by the 1980 Chilton

'Study, the very study cited by.the FTC Staff to demonstrate the

supposed difference in the levels of awareness between smokers

and nonsmokers. The conclusion reached y the Chilton Study was

as follows;

"Factual.knowledge.about the health
consequences of smoking was' not found to
be significantly related to current smoking
tiehavior. No more differences between
knowledge levels of-smokers compared with.
non-smokers were found to be significant
at the 0.05 level than were to be expected
by chance." (page 22)

Thi& important finding tlka consumer knowledge has no)

relationship to smoking behavior refutes the notion that people -

who smoke do so bemuse they are("uninformed" about the Claimed

dangers of smoking. The lack of a relationship between aware-

ness and smoking also demonstrates,that increasing consumers'

awareness about the health hazards attributed to smokin4 is

unlikely to influence their smoking behavior. Consequently, to

the extent that the present bill is based on a desire to reduce

smoking -- and putting aside the question whether behavior

modification is an appropriate goal for government in this

country -- the warning statements proposed by Section 4 are

simply irrelevant.

Given'these facts, a change of the sort contemplated

by Section 4 should not be undertaken unless there is significant

evidence that'the proposed system of roiatedcwarnings would better
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achieve the goal of informing the public. The little evidence

' that exists not Only fails to support that proposition, but in

fact contradicts it.

,An initial study for the FTC Staff was undertaken in

1910 by Walker Research to assist in'the selection of specific

warning statement-s, while another study conducted by Burke

Marketing Research examined consumers' recall of various warnings.

,Importantly, neither study examined the impact of such warnings

on consumer awareness. There axe accordingly no data to indicate

that a rotational system such as that proposed by the bill would

meet the objective of providing consumers with "sufficient"

awareness about the claimed codseguences of smoking, particularly

if )tuffiCiency is gauged by the very detailed measures used in

the surveys cited by the Tic Staff.

What the studies do delonstrate is that consumers are

likely to discount warnings that link smoking to specific health

problems. In .its Summary of Key Findings, for example, the

Burke Focus Group Study states:

"The messages related to birth control
pills and heari attacks tended to confuse
the paiiicipants, who did not thoroughly
understand the synergistic effects which
form the basis of the message. These two_
statements relating to oral contraceptiVel
also had the least personal relevance and
were rather easily dismissed as being
intended 'for someone else'. (Emphasis
added.)

.e/

The Study thus concludes:

4 8 8
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°It seems that the birth control message'
, could have relovando to a highly select group
of people who could be best reached through
very specific media. The message might be lost
to the population as a whole." (Burke Focus
Group Study Analysis at p. 6.)

That same conclusion appears to apply with' equal

validity to each of the specific disease warnings contemplated

by H.R. 5653.

Thus,.even the preliminarY research that has been done

tends to support the conclusion that the proposed rotational

warnings would be considered irrelevant by some consumers, as

compared to the present warning statement that announces to

every consumer the Surgeon General's conclusion that "smoking is

dangerous to your health.'

These findings are particularly significant in view of

one of the major premises-of the FTC Staff Report, and pre-

sumably of the present bill: that consumers should perceive
ow

information concerning smoking and health to be personally

relevant. Since it is basic to human nature to conclude that

risks apply to' "the other person," specific warnings,that might

be more perionally relevant to some consumers would by definition

be personally irrelevant to most other consumers. For the

individual who sees these diseases as unlikily to occur per-

sonally, then the proposed new wainings would be less relevant.

Such individuals are particularly likely to be young consumers

who may be making the,decision of whether to smoke or not.

While the'decision to smoke isnot related to adveitising, at

least in the present situation parents or peers can say to
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people who are deciding to smoke that "the Surgeon General,has

determined that smoking is dangerous to"your health."' Under the

proposed new warnings, the logical conclusion wOuld be that the

Surgeon General has no longer determined that smoking is gen-

rally unhealthy, but only unhealthy for certain older segments

of the population or for pregnant women.

Ae an analyst of consumer behavior and deaision making,

I am of the opinion that 'H.R. 5653 may well have the opposite

effect of that which appears to be intended by its sponsors. I

am concerned that H.R. 5653, no matter how laudable the inten-

tions of the sponsors, is not desirable legislation if the goal

* is to have the geheral population, and especially smokers, aware

of the health'hazards that are alleged to occur from smoking.

Mn \cum/NJ:In Edau.

STATEMENT OF THEODORE H. BLAU, PH. D.

Dr. BLAU. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity of ap-
pearing here today. I will be brief and submit details of the re-
search background of my statemonts to vour staff.

My name is Theodore Blau. I hold a doctorate in psychology, re-
ceived from the Pennsylvania State University in 1951. I have been
in independent practice of clinical psychology and consulting psy-

chology in Tampa, Fla., since 1953.
Formerly, I was professor of psychiatry at the Medical School of

the University of South Florida, and professor of psychology at
that school and others. I hold a diplomate in clinical psychology
from the American Board of Professional Psychology as well as the
diploma from the American Board of Forensic PsychologSr.

I am a member and past president of the American Psycholo8-
cal Association and am currently president of the American Psy-
chological Foundation. I am also a member of the Evaluation Re-
search Society and have conducted evaluation studies for private
corporations as well as evaluation research for various branches of
the U.S. military and other elements of the Government. I am the
author of 1 book, a number of chapters and approximately 50

articles.
For several years, I have been involved in an- evaluation of the

research and current state of knowledge about the psychological as-
pects of cigarette smoking. The evaluation includes a thorough
review of historical factors, current theories and research, quality
of the research and publications pertaining to dependence, addic-
tion, laboratory and applied research and cultural aspects of smok-
ing behavior.

In addition to this literature review, I have also communicated
with active researchers working in the area. I am presently wOng
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the section entitled "Smoking Behavior" that will -be published in
tile ."Wiley Encyclopedia.of Psychnlogy." ..,( - .

It is my understanding tliat proposed bill H.R. 5653 would man-
date a warning on cigarette packages stating.that cigarette smok-
ing is addictive. I will address myself today to that conclusion..,
. For almost -100 years the smokin,g habit has been an issue never
lacking proponents as well as opponents. Some who smoke seem
unable to,give up the cigarette habit, at least during certain dec-
ades of their lives. Others can quit with apparent ease..

Few specific areas of applied psychological research have re-
ceived greater attention than the cigarette smoking habit. Despite
this intense scientific focus on the behayioral as well as psysiologi-
cal aspects of cigarette smoking, no general agreement 'ampng sci-

....." entists exists in answer io the question of whether cigarettes or
their cbntents are addictive. - - .

The behavior and responses of cigarette smokera are quite differ-
ent than those observed in individuals who are addicted. to heroin
and other substances that are demonstrably addictive. -

The scientific literature demonstrates the following:
There is apparently no difference in the severity of cessation re-

sponses between light smokers and heavy smokers. Research also
has shown that these effects are felt more severely by those who

, reduced dosages but did not sto15 ccrmpletely than by those who ab-
stained totally. .

A third aspect reported by variOus researchers is that smoking
cessation effects are relatively mild and in some cases non-existent.
They are of a, nature which might be expected to follow -ihe loss of
psychological rewards from any loved object to which a person was
long accustomed and which could be conceived of as forming an im:
portant part, of the way the individual sees themselves and their
behavior.

It has been reported that many smokers are able to refrain from
srodking for relatively long periods of time for practical, safety or
religious reasons and to do so without apparent discomfort. Some
examples are coal miners who may not smoke at the pitface, Ortho-

- dox Jews who give up smelfing at sundown on Friday and cease
smoking until sundown oh.-Saturday, and so forth. Such behavior
does net fit conventional views of addictipn.

Whereas the effects of use and withdrawal are consistent and
N predictable with known addictive substances despite a wide range

of uses, descriptions of tobacco effects are extremely varied and in-
--, consistent. In this regard, tobaccco use is More like the use, of caf-

feine rather than alcohol or opiates.
It has been reported by Costa, in 1980, that the continuance of

smoking appears more related to a wide range of psychosocial mo-
tives Such as pleasure, stimulation, sensory motor manipulation,
and reduction of negative effect than an addiction factor.

The U.S. Department of HEW reported in 1977 that 95 percent of
those people who quit smoknag do so on their own. This is not only
a phenomena in sharp contrast to experience with demonstrably
addictive substances but one which remains to be explored.

Clearly, many areas of smoking behavior are as yet unexplored
including why some smoke very heavily and some do not. Carefully
controll d animal studies must be done before a scientific descrip-
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tion of the smoking habit can be expected. Promising work with
Rhesus monkeys has been reported by Kiyoshi and Yanagitain

' Japan and researchers at the Southwest Research Institute
' Rogershave reported conditioning laioratory baboons to smoke

cigarettes. These developments suggest that we may be able to
study cigarette smoking in a properly controlled laboratory settizig

Until such controlled animal experiments with reliable models of
self-administration of tobacco can be devised and conducted as they
have been with morphine, cocaine, and alcohol, the concept of to-
bacco addiction will probably remain a hypothetical constvict only
partly understood as suggested by Jarvik, 1977. And so, gentlemen,
at this time the scientific data do not support the statement. Ciga-
rette smoking is addictive.

I would very briefly like to tell you my clinical experience with
smoking. During the past 30 years I have worked Eind sontinue to
work with people who smoke cigarettes. In revieiAing my experi-
ence with the thousands of people that I have seeh profesionally,

, many of whom were heavy smokers, I find some continued, some
quit with stress, and some quit with little or no stress. These pa-
tients of mine in no way acted like the patients that I have seen
who struggle to be released from the addictions of opiates or alco-
hol or amphetamines.

Cigarette smokers are very attached to their smoking behavior
They are often annoyed or distressed when they are not allowed to
smoke. However, I have also noted people have equally strong at:
tachments to tennis, jogging, candy, rock music, Coca-Cola, mein-
bers of the opposite sex, and hamburgers; particularly in, my ado-
lescent patients.

With children, one sees very strong attachments to playmates,
parents, certain articles of clothing, TV, blankets, and teddy bears.
Removal from these activities, persons or objects can result in agi-
tation, sleeplessness, irritation, depression, and other uncomfoct-
able symptoms. They vary considerably in intensity and duration,
as do the effects of abstinence-front tobacco smoking.

I, myself, smoked cigarettes for 34 years. Two to three packages a
slay for the last 10 years of the habit. I stopped at the age of 35, 1

, year before the first Surgeon General's report, and have not_
smoked since. I was somewhat uncomfortable for a short period ok .

time, but was nevpr highly uncomfortrable. The craving never
reached the level .that I have experienced in medical weight loss
programs or in alcoholic rehab clinics.

In short, although cigarette smoking is a common and pervasive
habit, I can find no convincing basis in the scientific literature or -
in my own professional, clinical experience to justify labeling it or
treating it as an addiction.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank-you very much, Dr. Blau.
Dr. Wind, I was interested in your evaluation of the FTC report.

You reached the conclusion that we shouldn't take that Federal
Trade Commission report as the basis for this legislation. The
people evidently, in your opinion, know about the dangers of smok-
ing; is that correct? .

Mr. WIND. Yee.
Mr. WAXMAN. They nevertheless still smoke. Dp you believe, on

the other hand, that the advertising campaigns by the tobacco in-
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dustry have a causal relationship to the large numbers of people
that smoke?

Mr. WIND. I don't understand your question.
Mr. WAXMAN. Do you believe a lot of people smoke because of

advertisements?
Mr. WIND. I don't think there is any evidence to suggest Vat is

the.relative iniportance of advertising. Smoking like any other be-
havior is a function of many things. There are many factor's affect-
ing it. I don't think that knowledge of the dangers strictly stems
from having the label there.

Mr WAxmAm. Listen to my question. People smoke for many rea-
sons. Do you think one of the factors that encourages people to
smoke is the cigarette advertising? ,

Mr. WIND:I doubt it:I have not seen any evidence to suggest the
importance of advertising in generating demand for smoking. Typi-

. _cally, the data that I have seen focuses on switching, that advertis-
inraffects the switching from one brand to another, to a lower tar
cigarette and the.like.

Mr. WAXMAN. klave you seen evidence of_this effeck? Have you
seen studies? Are you basing these conclusions on sciantific stud-
ies?

Mx. WIND. There are some studies that show basically that ad-
vertising is related to brand switching.

mr. WAXMAN. Do you think advertising at any point helps
market a product and increases demand for the product?

Mr. WIND. Certainly. The introduction of any new product. But
advertising is only one factor. In any introduction of new product,
demand is a function of youF promotion, distribution, word-of
mouth effects,, experience with the product et cetera. Furthermore
we have to look at one other factor. We are talking about a fre-
quently purchased and used product. Advertising typically can help
you in the introduction of such a new product, generate trial.

The repeat is not a function of advertisihg. The repeat is typical-
ly a function of the expetience.with the brand and everything else
surrounding the other inputs people get.
, Mr. WAXMAN. It's fair to say while there are many factors that

go into the introduction of a new product, advertising is one factor
that does promote the irial of a new product?
--Mr WIND. Correct. This is typically one of the effects.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you disagree with that statement, Dr. Black-.well?
'Dr. BLACKALL. Not basically, no.
mr. WAXMAN. So we can have people try cigarettes, and often-

times we are finOing young pe-bple trying cigarettes because of a lot
of different factors, one of which is advertising. Dr. Blau says that
cigarette smoking is not addictive; is that a correct statement?

Dr. B.LAu. There is no scientific basis for a statemenf that ciga-
rette smoking is addictive:

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you think that the use of cigarettes, has some
kiati of relationship to people wanting to continue using them a
little bit more than other kinds of products that might be used very
often? h

Dr. BiAti. I think that is a question of very seriotis concern. I
made a -Visit to Dr. Evaxw' laboratory in Houston. He works specifi-

..,
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cally with the- question of how do people start smoking, vihat keeps
teenagereksmoking.

I see a group every Week made up of seven people between 7 apd
13 years of age. During the past few years I have observed the gen-
esis of,the smoking habit. One thing impressive from the research,
I might point out, is that there are some indications as to how
these teenagers drawn into the habit. The first element is the
parental model, he second is the sibling .model, the third, peer

# group pressure..
I am quite taken by the fact tcat many of my heaviest smokers, r

my teenagers that I work with, don't read. They are ;very poor
readers:They are dropouts from school.

Mr. WAXMAN. So there are different factors?
Dr. MAIL Many factors.
Mr. WAXMAN. Once they take up using the cigarette product,

isn't there some attachment that keeps them smoking? More than
just the original reasons to take it up?

Dr. MAIL Yes, sir. I think there are probably a multitude of fix:
tors that have been ,reportesi in tlie literature. There are indica-
tions that the habit, after an initM averbive response becomes
pleasurable, for some it relieves tension, it's a social grace in some
people's mind. For a small group of gitalled sliddlers, it's impor-
tent to have something to do with one's Iiinds. It arouses some. It
tranquilizes otlitrs.

The amount of research which is done has stirred many ques-
tiont that vnust be explored and answered. I am fully confident in
the future we Will have a definitive answer as to how people learn
to smoke, why they.continue to smoke. Andy from that, clear-cut di-
rections as to how to go about preventing the inception of a habit

Mr. WAXMAN. Do yp4 believe the reason people continue to
smoke after they start dnoking has less to do with advertising and
more to do with these other factors?

Dr. MAIL I am afraid auk I Must plead innocent on kndwledge
of the advertising factors. I can only speak for the other factors. I
think they are terribly strong, the psychosocial factors in my obser-
vation, and evaluation of the data.

Mr. WAXMAN. Let me ask.the marketing people. Dr. Wind, what
do you think? Do you think that the reason wily peoplecontinue to
smOke relates more to the reasons that Dr. Blau said, the pleasure
response, tranquility response? Once they try this new product, ad-

tvertising is not as important a factor?
Mr. Wm*. I think it would be very dangerous to try to speculate

here. This is an empirical question. There are procedures today
that allow us to fmd exactly what is the relative impact of advertis-
ing on behavior, in various areas, and I think what we .have to do
is- conduct a study. I am not familiar with a specific study that
looked at this question, comparing the effect of advertising versus
peer group, parent and others in terms of what is their influence. I '
think such a study can be conducted and provide the right guide-
lines.

There is one other thing to remember here, which is that ciga-
rettes in some respect are really not like apy other product. Most
other products do not have counter communication. There is a tre-
mendous amount of educational matrial, influential material and
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communication against smoking. So the person, in making the.deci-
sion, is basically bornbarded with both pro and con arguments for
it, and makes his decision in some manner.

So I would suspect, stvictly speculation, that can be verified in
empirical testing, that--aavertising would have less of a role here
because of this counter communication than in other situations.

Mr. WAXMAN. Because of the kind of communication? Are you
speculating?

Mr. WIND, That is speculation.
Mr WAXMAN. Yout don't want to speculate on whether advertis-

ing plays a lesser role in whether people continue to smoke?
Mr WIND. It's a hypothesis that has to be tested. This would be a

good hypothesis for a research projest.
Mr. WA.X11tAN. Unfortunately, -*""e have a limited budget so I

won't contract with you for that study. Perhaps the tobacco indus-
try 'will do that for us.

Do you think that if I asked you in your marketing expertise,
ho% I could achieve the objective of discouraging young people
from taking up the habit of smoking, and ehcouraging people who
smoke, to quit, that there would be sople effective way of doing that
over Enid aboNe what we are doing now, through the warning label
that is on the package and through the messages that come
through from hearings like this and Surgeon Generar&reports?

Mr. WIND. My guess would be that probably yes, even though
you are eictremely effective today. You have a very high level of
awarness. If you are trying to change people's behavior, and you
are trying to influence people to change their behavior by reducing
smoking, I think there are ways in which marketing can help in
the following waT

One, we oar conduct a series of studies to find out why peof51e
smoke, why people don't smoke, why people quit. Once we under-
stand the reasons, why, we will go to second step, whieh will be,
let's try to generate a series of alternative strategies that we hope
will lead to the right results.

Three, once these are generated go back to the consumers and
try to test them to see whiCh of these strategies is the best in
achieving the right objective. None of these was done in the specif-
ic situation here.

The Fre report came with a number of suggestions. They started
generating about seven options, but they are a relatively limited
range of options. Why not try to open this? Why not base the op-
tions on some insight and understanding why people smoke, why
they continue smoking? I think the whole approach is faulty. It's
not a marketing approach to deal with the problem. I think there
are approaches that could help and providoguidelines.

Mr. WAXMAN. You think we should have marketing results to in-
dicate what would be the most effective way, not just of communi-
cating a message which you feel has already been communicated,
but communicating a message in a way that would change behav-
ior?

Mr. WIND. That is your objective?
Mr. WAXMAN. There Are ways of doing that, I assume?
Mr. WIND. Yes, there are.
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Mr. WAXMAN. Just as there are ways of encouraging people to
take up cigarettes? Have you done marketing studies on why
people smoke, why they pick it up, what groups would be influ-
enced most by kinds of smoking promotions? Is thartione?

Mr. Wm. I personally am not aware of such studies, but if you
are trying to do it. That is the approach.

Mr. WAXMAN. Don't people *come to marketing experts to fighre
out a strategy to promote their objectives?

Mr. WIND. Yes, they do.
Mr. WAXMAN. Do you think that the cigarette cNttpanies and to-

bacco companies go to marketing experts to try to figure out how
to promote people to smoke cigarettes?

Mr. WIND. I assume they do. TheY have niarketing consultants
and research firms working for them. They have their own market-
ing research departments. I don't know whether they follow the
procedure we just described before in trying to increase the sale of
ci)garettes to nonsmokers.

Mr. WAXMAN. If you have a lot of money, you can afford to do a
lot of different things, hire marketeers, outside experts, try things
and see if it works and if not, abandon it. You can change your ad-
vertisements or try new strategies and abandon old ones. The only
limitation on that is money?

Mr. WIND. Not necessarily. You are assuming a symmetry. I said
in response to the first question that you had that you can prob-
ably, if you find out the causes for smoking versus nonsmoking, the
causes that lead people to quit, to be able to design effective pro-
grams that will encourage and help you achieve your objective
which is reduction in smoking. Given that there is so much pres-
sure against smoking, I am not sure that there is a symmetry here
That by finding these reasons, you will be able to design strategies

. that will increase the number of smokers.
Mr. WAXMAN. There is a pressure to take up on smoking as well?
Mr. WIND. I fmd it very difficult to ascept. There is no advertis-

ing or other message that will convince me to go back to smoke
Mr. WAXMAN. I don't think advertising, as you pointed out so

correctly, is the only factor that influences behavior.
Mr. WIND. I have difficulty
Mr, WAXMAN. I think seeing an athletic event sponsored by the

R. J. Reynolds .Co., might well, if I am a younger person interested
in athletics, influence me. You know the R. J. Reynolds Co. spends
a lot of money pronioting various athletic events. I would think
that is one of the benefits they get from that.

I think the marketing strategists can figure out a lot of ways to
promote products or devise a strategy to encourage gales of the
product. Dr. Blackwell, you claim those warning labels are going to
fool people, they will be deceived into thinking that they will not
get the disease.or that only old people will get the disease; is that
coiTect?

Dr. BLACKWELL. I claim there Will be some confusion that will
come from those among some people. There is some evidence of
that, of course, in the FTC studies.

Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Wind says wd shouldn't even pay attention to
the FTC studies?
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Dr BLACKWELL There are many studies. The children's study,
the Walker study and--

Mr WAxistAN Do you think most pregnant women understand
that cigarette smoking may result in birth defects or spontaneous
abortions?

Dr BLACKWELL [Continuing]. I doubt that mothers do. That is not
the &Bale thing as saying therefore the way to coriect that is that.
The way to correct that is to use specialized 'media with informa-
tion in public releases, publit information, rather than a television
adnot a television ad, but a print ad that would go to everyone
and cause those people to consider that an irrelevant message.

Mr WAXMAN. Dr. Blau, I have just two questions for you. Would
you agree that the epidemiological evidence reveals strong statisti-
cal correlation between smoking and various health riskslet me
ask this of Dr. Eysenck, you are probably better qualified. If there
was epidemiological evidence that gives a strong correlation be-
tween smoking and various health risk factors, shouldn't this play
an important part in public health policy?

Dr EYSENCK Evidence has been published to that effect. But it
has certain drawbacks. The units in which if-deals are quite incom-
parable In other words, you are dealing with diagnoses. We knoik
at the moment lung cancer is being over-diagnosed. In other ivords,
'when you compare diagnoses with postmortem, then only a cZrtain
proportion of those diagnosed as having died of lung cancer, in fact
are found to have done so.

And it was severely under-diagnosed at the beginning of the cen-
tury, in the beginning of the curves shown in the Surgeon Gener-
al's report, by a tremendous amount. We found, for instance, the
people actually dying from lung cancer, only 4 percent were diag-
nosed.

Mr WAXMAN You don't believe epidemiological evidence reveals
a strong statistical correlation between smoking and various health
risk factors?

Dr EYSENCK It iS so faulty it is very difficult to draw any proper
scientific conclusion from the data.

Mr WAXMAN. Dr. Blau, you stated, apparently with some confi-
dence, that there is no general agreement among scientists as to
whether cigarettes are addictive. The Director of the National In-
stitute on Drug Abuse and the Assistant Secretary of Health made
it clear that in their opinion smoking was in fact addictive, and
this was also the conclusion of the .National Advisory Council on
Drug Abuse and a special task force of independent researchers
convened by NIDA's Division of Research.

That sounds like a consensus of opinion. Are you asking us to be-
lieve- these distinguished physicians and researchers were wrong
and' you are right?

Dr BLAU. I appear beforeyou as an evaluation scientist. Evalua-
tion is the assessment of merit. It's sort of like asking the goats to
guard the lettuce patch when you ask scientista.to make long range
general statements about their research. The very essence of sci-
ence is 'caution One of the outstanding researchers in tobacco, Dr.
Stanley Schacter, a memberl of the distinguished board that you
just mentioned said, and I qjiote from a Government publication,
"Most of us who do research on smoking have at syne time cham-
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pioned the hypothesis that cigarette smoking with nicotine as the
active agent is an addiction."

Sometimes, however, it's difficult to figure out why that covic-
tion is so strocg. The data supporting the proposition are not par-
ticularly good. In fact, looked at with a ruthless eye, they are
rather flimsy. When scientists are asked to weigh the evidence
with care in terms of the fong range implications, they generally
agree that we have a long way to go before we can give a scientific
support to the statement, cigarette smoking is addictive

r. WAXMAN. Thank you very much.
Mr. Bliley.
Mr. Bum'. Mr. Chairman, thank you, gentlemen.
I believe Dr. Wind, that you said in your testimony that with 90

percent of the people knowing the dangers, that it would be very
difficult to change. Do you believe that 1Dy going to a system of ro-
tational warning labels, that it's possible to increase the awareness
above 90 percent?

Mr. Wm). No; I doubt whether you will be able to find any pro-
cedure, any marketing gimmick, strategy approach, that will in-
crease awareness in general population more than 90 percent I am
not familiar with any case

Mr. Bum'. I don't want to interrupt you but I don't want to con-
sume too much time. Are you iaying that there is nothing that we
can do that will increase the awarenes of the dangers, not just la-
beling, but anything else that would increase the 90 percent?

Mr. WIND [continuing]. You are correct. In all of my life as a re-
searcher, scientist, in all of the material I have seen, I have never
seen a study that will document that there is more than 90-pe5cent
awareness of any phenomena.

Mr. ButEY. Dr. Blackwell, I have observed casually and keenly
since this legislation has come along, but for a number of years, ob-
erved people including my wife buying cigarettes. I have never

seen a person pick up a pack of cigarettes in store or a counter,
reads a warning label and put them down. I have never seen a
person walk up to a cigarette machine, put coins in it, or about to
put coins in, reads a warning and turn away and walk away.

I have seen them walk away when they didn't have the correct
change but not for reading any label. Have you done 'any studies or
are there any studies that show that indeed I am wrong in that
people dp comealong arid pick up these things and read warning
labels and-then discard it?

Dr. BIACICWELL. No. That is an astute observation. I have seen no
studies that would refute that.

Mr. BLILEY. I. see. We have teen talking aitlit studies and re-
search to evaluate why people gOoke and why hey stop, or not, as
the case may be. How much Would it cost, in your opinion, Dr.
Wind, to do a study for the benefit orCongress and this committee
in particular, as to what causes people to smoke, and what causes
people to stop?

Mr. WIND. I don't think I will be able to. answer with a specific
number. It's not a single study. It's a, program of research. You
have tp. use different .approaches to tpy to answer. Some of them
are not\ as effective in getting a valid answer. You have to commit
yourself to a program of research that might cost, you know, a few
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hundred thousand dollars over a period of time, to find out the
causes and then to try to move into generating strategies and then
evaluating them.

Mr. BLILEY. $400,000 or $500,000?
Mr WIND. I really cannot pinpoint the number. But I would say

it's likely.
Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Blackwell.
Dr. BLACKWELL. That would be a good start on it, yes.
Mr. BLILEY. How long, 2 or 3 years?
Dr BLACKWELL. I don't think you will answer it definitively for

every person. But you can isolate sorike of the major causes of
major segments in a few years and a few hundred thousand dollars.

Mr. BLILEY: I see.
Mr. WIND. Time is difficult to assess because you are dealing

with a program of research. The next step depends on the results
of the first one. So it is an evolutionary problem. You need a com-
mitment, instead of coming with a proposal that is not based on an
empirical basis, and suggests seven labels, to commit yourself to
slay, I will make a bill based on empirical data that responds to a
real problem out there, and that is the best way of achieving my
objective.

Mr. Bumf. Thank you.
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. It probably would cost us

less money than setting up another bureaucracy at HHS and
achieve better results in a couple of years. I yield back the balance
of my time.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Dannemeyer.
Mr. DANNEMEYER. I have a question for Dr. Eysenck.
You state that the personality of the peoPle involved is a mediat-

ing factor between cancer and smdking. Can Iyou, present for this
subcommitee a ,personality description of a smoker?

Dr. EYSENCK. Well, in 'several different countries the people who
smoke tend to be typically extraverted, social people, people who
like to go out in the world, mix with other people, who like to have
strong sensory experiences. People also tend to drink and have
other social habits of that kind, that is one type of smoker.

Another one is the nervous and emotionally somewhat unstable
individual. They smoke for a different reason, of course, the extro-
vert smokes because he easily gets bored and he has to have some

n kind of drug that elevates the level of arousal, which smoking does.
The more emotionally unstable type of person needs something to
sedate him, to calm him down, a kind of librium more easily acces-
sible and more pleasurable than a drug. So he smokes.

Then you have people who are generally nonconformists, who
are somewhat antisocial. They also tend to smoke. So you have dif-
ferent types of personalities that go in for smoking and they do so
for different reasons. There is a large amount of evidence available
at the moment about motives ,for smoking and they-are intimately
linked with personality.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Thank you. We previously had a gentleman
here from the advertising fraternity, now we have two professors
from the advertising fraternity. I can only assume that you have,
in the ceurse of your tenure in academia, had the privilege of in-
structing students who have found their way into the advertising
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community. So I will ask you gentlemen again: Do you believe that
it advances the cause of the advertising community to respect these
principles? Keep it simple, clear, repeat it often, be singleminded,
and consistent?

Dr. Wind, do you think that is a fair assessment of what the ad-
vertising community should-be doing? 6s

Mr. WIND. There is a distinction between what they should be
,doing and what they are doing. Should is a normative statement It
suggests that we have a theory that tells us hol* advertising works
Unfortunately, despite all of the research that has been going on
over the years in marketing and advertising, we do not have,
today, a theory that tells us exactly how advertising works. There
are different models and hypotheses that suggest what are the ra-
sonable ways of proceeding and getting some- output. Different
agencies have different philosophies. Different agencies use differ-
ent approaches. That is the reason different manufacturers select
different agencies that bring different philosophies.

The notion of simplicity, yes, it has some merit. Many years ago
it was coined in marketing as the unique selling proposition, that

4 you are trying to come ,up with a single megsage, with a single
benefit. There are studies in the cognitive psychology area talking
about the limitation of the cognitiye ability of people, that typically
people cannot proceis too much information. So you are working
on relatively simple type of one or two major benefits.

But I think the key issue here is not so much the fact that I have
a theory here that guides me to come up with the single simple ap-
proach, but the fact that the inarket is heterogeneous. That we are
not talking about g homogeneous population out there that a single
message will appeal to every one of them.

If every single ad on TV will appeal to you, apparently they are
doing something wrong because you are not the target segment of
every one of these products. What they are trying to do, is deal
with

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Why do so many exclude me?
I must be different?
Mr. WIND. Yes, I would asssume that you don't buy all of the

products advertised on TV. Neither do I. For the ones you buy, ad-
vertising could have been one of the inputs that provided you some
information. There are a lot of comparative, advertiSing that pro-
vides you comparisons amlong brands. There are some sophisticated
adsJook at industrial advertising. I think it dangerous to gener-
alize and say all advertising is poor, all adv rtising is insulting. I-
t,hink some is. But it's possible that some of the advertising which
is insulting is not aimed at us. And they placed it at the wrong
media or they had a poor execution or someone did not know.*

Mr. DANNEMEYER. Dr. Blackwell, would you care to respond to
that?

Dr. BLACKWELL. I was listening to Dr. Light's" comment and he
qualified to say this wasn't principles of advertising but principle
of communications generally. If.one were giving a political speech,
for example, or a lecture in the classroom, Joe McGinness where a
book called "The Selling of A Presjdent" a few years ago. Many
newspaPers. have said the same thing.-That is true of communica-
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tion in general To keep it simple, single-minded; because of limits
of cognitive processing.

That is probably true for what might be called the middle 65 per-
cent of the total population. There are people on either tails of
those distribution. I don't know which tail you would be on, but
that is probably happening. And

Mr DANNEMEYER. Ask our chairman, he will tell you where I
am.

,

Dr BLACKWELL. There are many qualifications to those simple,
basic communications. Advertising tends to be to the masses. In
communication theory, there is something known as one-sided com-
munication and two-sided communication. In a onetsided communi-
cation you only present what you want people to know. In a two-
sided communication, you tell them what is wrong with your pi-od-
uct as well as what is right with it.

Now as a generalization, it's more effective to use a one-sided
communication with the masses of the popuJation. But for people
who have high education or high intellectsnot that those are
always the samefor those kind of -people the two-sided communi-
cation may be more effective. Dr. Light was quite correct in stating
the principals that are generally accepted for communications with
the masses. But there are qualificafions, of course.

Mr. DANNEMEYER. I thank you.
Mr. WAXMAN. Would it be fair, then, to conclude from what you

are suggesting that the cigarette advertising .with the warning
label that it carries today, may convey a dual message to a rather
elite group of people? The dual message Would include not only the
call to switch to this brand or take this brand, but also that there
may be some health problem to taking up smoking, and that this
message is not being communicated to the masses or a larger
group?

Dr, BLACKWELL. I got a little lost with the first part of the ques-
tion. ,

lylr WAXMAN. It you are stating that where there is a dual mes-
sage communicated, it is communicated primarily to an elite group
that is a little bit more willing to read and understand that there
are two sides to the advertisement, would it be fair to conclude
from that, that most people, in the moregeneral Population, don't
get the dual message when they see an, advertisement for ,ciga-.rettes?

Dr!iBLACKWELL. The higher complex message would be better re-
ceived vyith people with higher education, in general. The more
simple, clirect or one-sided, which ar'ethere are two or three
things going on there, the very simple message would communicate

,better with the masses. That may have an application to this. .
For example, theTresent warning would be most effective, if you

could make the leap of faith from general research to the specific
here, the message as it is now constituted would probably be far
more effective to the masses of the population than these. .

But for people with a high amount of education or the elite of
the Nation or something, they might have some more effectiveness
from some of these. So tbese are the kind of issues--

'Mr. WAXMAN. Wouldn't it go to the question of whether any.
warning message gets communicated at all, whatever the content?

,
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Aren't you. saying only certain people pick up a warning meisage
and most don't? .

Dr. BIACKWELL. I don't think I am saying most don't. Most un7
cferstand this, A simple message is better. ,

Mr. WAXMAN. You are not saying the reason most people under-
stand that smoking is dangerous is because of the label?

Dr. BLACKWELL. I am saying people do understand it for a variety
of reasons, including the label.

Mr. WAXMAN. What I am asking is whether the warning label,
insofar as it is effective, is effective only with people who read it?
Is it fair to say most people don't read all of the advertisements
and that those of the higher intellectual levels who have more time
to read the advertisement at a particular moment are most likely
to read the whole thing and get the dual message, while those who
only get an impression from the ad do not get the dual message?

Dr. BLACKWELL. Once they get the message, there is no reason
for them to continue to read it all of the time. As Dr. Light said,
theyPan see the symbol and it tells them.'

Mr. WAXMAN. Changing the message does not reinforce the com.-=
munication; is that a fair statement?

Dr. BLACKWELL. I wouldn't say that. I would say repetition. '
Mr. DANNEMEYER. How about if we put on there, like Reggie

Jackson said it rather than the Surgeon General. Or that Fred
Lynn or Bob Grich said it. These are names that are known in the
sports world in southern California. .So is Vince Ferragamo; whr
hot put his name on there. Do you think that would improve the
credibility of the message?

Dr. BLACKWELL. No, because it really can't be. improved. If no one.-
knew the meSsage, if people really didn't think cigarette smoking
was hazardous, your suggestion would be perhaps appropriate But
hdvt can you improve, above 90 percent? ,

Mr. WIND. Can I interject a point? I think it's dangerous to try to
generalize from other areas. Some of the work on the two-sided
message was not really done in this context. It was done in experi-
ments primarily in psychology. We are trying to project the reMilts
from there to the specific situation here.

I would submit it is an interesting hypothesis that has to be
tested. The same thing with the notion of endorsement by known
personalities. There is an issue here, yes, a lot of personalities are
known by some, not necessarily everybody, but even 'those familiar
with them, what is their credibility ,with respect to smojdng? Do'
they have the credibility to deliver a message that-peoplg believe?

Mr. DANNEMEYER. They are athletes. Presumably, to make a
living, they have to preserve the ability of their bodies to perform
over timeergo, smoking is inconsistent with that.'Therefore, if you
want to be like them, don't smoke?
. Mr. WIND. What do they know about bealth? Not all testimonials
are effective. What you want to do is test it. Test and see, to ivhat
extent--

Mr. DANNEMEYER. The advertising world apparently selects ce-
lebrities from the entertainment industry or sports industry and
they put thbir faces on ads, the inferente being that person is suc;
cessful, therefore if you smoke or buy the products, you will enjoy

5 u 2 ;
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the same suecess I don't know what they are getting after but I
guess that is what they seek to do.

Mr WIND. John Wanamaker once said 50 percent of advertising
is ineffective. Which half? A lot of this is wasted, a lot of the adver-
tising is not very good. What we can do is experiment. Use ap-
proaches to test and see which personality, whither it's the Sur-
geon General, whether it's a sports personality, a politician or who-
ever, will be the best, most credible individual to deliver it.

Mr. DATINiMEYER. Pat Jerry Brown on that label.
Mr BLILEY. I thank my colloague for yielding. A couple of times

during the course of te hearing this morning the matter has come
up about cigarette adveltising and sports celebrities. In the state-
ment of Mr. Horrigan, or rather attached to the statement, is a list
of principals governing cigarette advertising. And No. 6 and I
quote. "No sports or celebrity testimonials shall be used or those of
others who would have special appeal to persons under 21 years of
age."

So if anyone has the impression they are using sports celebrities
in trying to improve their market with young people, I would just
like this to be a part of the record.

Mr. WAXMAN. If the gentleman would yield to me, I think my
colleague. from California has the time. The R. J. Reynolds Co. sup-
ports sporting events. Business Week ,reports that in 1982 the com-
pany will increase the number of sports car races from 16 to 19, as
well as support 32 golf tournaments. I submit that they do this be-
cause I think they expect some promotional benefits to come from
it, not just good will for the R. J. Reynolds Co. as a .good citizen.

Mr BLILEY. If the gentleman would yield, they are not using-
players or participants to advertise the product. They might spon-
gor the events, but they are not using the participants, such as
Reggie Jackson or I believe with a race car, Richard Petty might be
more appropriate to advertise the brand of RrJ,Reynolds. -

Mr. WAXMAN. Anything further, Mr. Dannemeyer?
Gentlemen, I want to thank you for your participation. You have

given us a lot to think about. I am particularly interested in the
ideas of the marketing experts because it seems to me that we have
to do a )ot more to be as effective as we hope to be.

In my 'opinion, that is in support of the legislation, we ought to
do something rather than merely rely on what we have done to
date But we should also do more than what I am proposing in this
legislation If we added to money spent on cancer research and de-
voted it to develop effective strategies to change behavior, we prob-
ably would be doing a lot of good in lessening cancer rates in this
country I would submit that you are absolutely correct, Dr. Wind,
a lot of advertising money is wasted.

But, the tobacco industry has a lot of money to waste in promote
ing their product. We don't have a lot of money to discourage
smoking.

We will recess and come back at 2 o'clock.
. [Whereupon, at 12.35 p.m., the subcommittee recessed, to recon-
vene at 2 p.m., the same day.]
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MVER RECESS

(The subcommittee reconvened at 2 p.m., Hon. Henry A.
+Waxman, chairman, presiding.]

Mr. WAXMAN. The meeting of the subcommittee will please come
to order.

Our final witnesses will testify as a panel this afternoon. Arthur
Furst is director emeritus of the Institute of Chemical Biology,
University of San Francisco, Harvey Science Center. Theodore D.
Sterling is from the Computing Science Program, Simon Fraser
Univers 4y. Also we have Edwin R. Fisher of the Shadyside Hospi-
tal Pathology Laboratory. And, lastly, we have Sheldon Sommers, of
the Lenox Hill Hospital, N.Y.

I would like to welcome you to our hearing today and have you
come forward. Gentlemen, your prepared statements will be made
part bf the record in full.

What we would like to ask of you is to summarize your state-
ment in around 5 minutes so we ean have an opportunity for ques-
tions and answers.

Dr. Furst, why don't we start with you. -

STATEMENTS OF SHELDON C. SOMMERS, M.D., NEW YORK CITY,
N.Y.; ARTHUR FURST, PH. D., DIRECTOR EMERITUS, INSTITUTE
OF CHEMICAL BIOLOGY, UNIVERSITY OF SAN FRANCISCO;
THEODORE D. STERLING, RESEARCH PROFESSOR, SIDON
FRASER UNIVERSITY; AND EDWIN IL FISHER, M.D., PITTS-
BURGH, PA.
Di. SOMMERS. It is my understanding tliat I am to speak first, if I

may.
Mr. WAXMAN. If you have worked out any arrangement, that is

fine with us. Dr. Sommers, please proceed.
Dr. SOMMERS. I am Sheldon Sommers,.M.D4 a physician special-

izing in pathdlogy, currently clinical professor of pathology at Co-
lumbia University College of Physicians & Surgeons, New York,
N.Y., and University of Southern California School of Medicine,
Los Angeles, Calif. Also, L am consultant in pathology, Lenot Hill
Hospital, N.Y.; chairman, New York State Mental Hygiene Medi-
cal Review Board; and president-elect, Arthur Purdy Stout Society
of Surgical Pathologists.

am past president of the New England Pathological Society and
New York 'Pathological Society.

Since 1936, except for World War II years, I have been engaged
in medical research with particular reference to cancer, endocrine
and gastrointestinal diseases, with over 300 publicationsabout 10
percent dealing with lung cancer, and also some on pancreatic
cancer. I am coeditor of Pathology Annual and Diagnostic Gynecol-
ogy & Obstetrics and serve on the editorial boards of five other
medical journals. My curriculum vitae and publication list are at-
tached.

For the past 6 months, I have served as' scientific director, Coun-
cil for Tobacco Research USA, Inc. This is a funding agency for bio-
medical research in the area of smoking and health, funded by to-
bacco manufacturers. The budget for research grants.in 1982 is $7
million.

-
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Applications are acted up5n by a Scientific Advisory Board, and
those approved with a favorable rating are funded for up to 3 years
with- an opportunity for continuationgrants thereafter. The C,oun

i
-

cil..for Tobacco Research exerts no nfluence upon the grantees,
who may freely publish what they find as they choose. About 80
active grants now exist in the United States and abroad.

My appearance at this hearing is voluntary, and the opinions ex-
. pressed are personal, not representing those of any organization.

They are the result of over 45 years of study, investigation and
practice in the field of pathology and clinical-pathologic correla-
tions of diseases, some of which have been attributed to cigarette
smoking.

One approach to cancer causation investigation is epidemiolog-
ical and statistical Epidemiological statistics involves an experi-
mental group and a control group. For a valid comparison the
groups must be alike as nearly as possible in all respects except for
the item being investigated.

In studies of cigarette smoking, matching smokers and non-smok-
ers by sex and age was Ahieved. It has been assumed in all other
respects the two groups were comparable. This is not true since in
body build, extroversion or introversion, marital history, alcohol
use, use of non prescription medications, police records, military re-
cords and other aspects, cigarette smokers are demonstrably differ-
ent from nonsmokers.

The fallacy of one-to-one comparisons of smokers and non-smok-
ers with respect to mortality was pointed out in a monograph by,
Rose and Bell in 1971. They studied predictors of.longevity in war
veterans in Boston reexamined at intervals. 'One-on-one compari-
sons placed cigarette smoking No. 1 as a predictor of early death
like many other studies. Multifactorial statistical analysis dropped
smoking to somewhere below No. 30 as a predictor and dissatisfac-
tion with job became No. 1. The lesson is that in the present rela-
tively undeveloped state of, epimiology, to beware of facile and
sweeping conclusions.

Two other points about _statistical epidemiology. Every textbook
states them, every active scientist knows them. Epidemiologic stud-
ies by the nature of the mathematics so far developed deal mainly
with random populations but smokers are self-selected as are non-
smokers Comparisons of selected populations using mathematics,
valid only for random populations, cannot be expected to provide
valid answers.

Second, epidemiology cannot prove cause and effect. All it can
demonstrate is a relationship; the nature of th relationship, causal
or otherwise has to be worked out by other m thods, usually ex-
perimental.

The Council of Tobacco Research in 1970 undertook a large scale
research program to investigate whether cigarette smoking causes
lung cancer in animals. Almost $14 million went into the project in
12 years. To take account of heredity, inbred mice were used and
tested for and vaccinated against respiratory viruses. To show
these animals could develop the major types of human lung can-
cers, pure chemical carcinogens were introduCed down their tra-
cheas. They were known to metabolize these carcinogens into the
biologically active forms. About 20 percent in younger mice and
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over 95 percent in older mice deVelOped "human-type" lung can-
cers as a result of exsures to these pure chemical carcinogens.

Thereafter thousands of mice were exposed daily to fresh whole
cigarette smoke of either low nicotine and high tar or high nicotine
and high, tar content up to maximum tolerance during their whole
lives, up to 40 months in some cases. At one point there were
11,000 animal manipulations per day including sham smoking and
control mice. After all these years of cigarette smoking practically
zero lung cancers developed and not one cae of the human type
cancer most often blamed on smoking.

There was no question, the cigarette smoke had penetrated into
their lungs since this was worked out quantitatively. In other ex-
periments mice were primed with intratracheal pure carcinogenic
chemicals, then exposed to cigarette smoke during their whole
lives. No increase in lung cancer occuired over the incidence found
after using pure chemicals alone and in one experiment smoking
was associated with a reduced lung -cancer rate.

Ths number of animals and computerized information are so
abundant that statistical analysis by modern experimental analysis
is still continuing. Some 40 publications have in part already ap-
peared or are in part in prospect. In the field of science knowledge
is gained through experiment and interpretation. In the scientific
method a theory is proposed. Thereafter experithents confirm or
refute it.

If the latter, a new theory is developed. It is a continuous evolu-
tionary process and needs a critical and open mind. One must be
constantly alert for surprises as Louis Thomas has written. Lung
cancer is high on the list of statements in the bill H.R. 5653 attrib-
uting-diseases to cigarette smoking. There are two general methods
of investigating the cause of cancers in humans or animals. One is
the epidemiologic and statistical method already discussed. The
seco3d is the biomedical method. Cause might be defined biological-
ly as. something both necessary and sufficient to cause a condition

Cigarette smoking is not a necessary factor in human lung
qancer which existed for centuries in radium miners before ciga-
rettes were invented. Lung cancer accompanies scarring processes
in tilt lung due to TB, connective tissue diseases and various other

,ablibrinalities in nonsmokers.
It also fails to meet the causal criterion of being sufficient. The

fact is that,the vast majority of smokers, more than 90 percent of
even heavy smokers do not develop lung cancer. Hence, cigarette,
smoking is neither necessary nor sufficent in the development of
human lung cancer and by the biological definition is not" the
cause. Like many other diseases of older age lung cancer appears
to be multifactorial which means the disease is associated with
many things in addition to smoking.

Practically all active researchers now agree on this point. Fat-
tors include No. 1, hepedity. Families with 'a high incidence
of lung Cancer are known. Sex and race. Men have three times the
lung cancer of women; blacks and orientals differ from whites in
incidence. Urban. Certain urban areas have high lung cancer rates
which can't be accounted for by smoking. These areas are charab

'terized by in some cases severe winter weather inversion patterns
with high air pollution. No. 4, occupation. As already noted
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some 20 occupation; invollie increased risk. Some workers smoke,
&hers do not. Immune competence. Individuals with demonstrably
reduced immunity have developed lung cancer. This may explain

, some familial cases and increase a- cancer with age.
Six, hormones. Hormones accelerate some metabolic, processes

leading to human lung cancer. Seven, aging, the mean age of lung
canter diagnosis has been reported as about 67 years and said to be
rising to older ages in some populations. Currently researchers do
not know which if any of these or other factors play a role in the
causation of lung cancer.

In surhmary, a massive experiment toAemonstrate that cigarette
siaoking can catise lung cancer in animals has proved negative.
One knows how important an experimental model is in cancer re-
search from the excitement that attended the claims years ago that
cancers of lung or larynx had been produced by cigarette smoke in
animals

HOwever, no model so far developed withstands an objective
analysis of the pathology of the alleged cancers. Lung cancer like
many other human cancers remains a major biological mystery.
Epidemiologic studies report a statistical asSociation between ciga-
rette smoking and lung cancer. However, the bidmedical experi-
mentation does not support the smoking causation hypothesis.

[Dr. Sommers' prepared statement followsq
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STATEMENT OF SHELDON C. SOMMERS, M.D.

I am Sheldon C. Sommers, M.D., a physician specializing

in pathology, currently Clinical,Professor of Pathology at

Columbia University College of Physicians & Surgeons, New York,

N.Y and University of Southern California School of Medicine,

Los Angeles, California. Also I am consultant in pathology,

Lenox Hill Hospital, New York; Chairman, New York State Mental

Hygiene Medical Review Board; and President-Elect, Arthur Purdy

Stout Society of Surgical Pathologists. I am past pesident of the

New. England Patholo,ical Society and New York Pathological Society..

Since 1936, except for World War'-ii-541krs, I have been

engaged in medical research with particular reference to cancer,

endocrine and gastrointestinal diseases, with over 300 publications

about 10 percent dealing with lung and lung cancer, and also some

on pancreatic cancer. I am coeditor of Pathology Annual and

Diagnostic Gynecology 4 Obstetrics and serve on the editorial

boards of five other meaical jounals. My curriculum.vitae and

publication list aro attached.

For the past six months, I have served as Scientific

Director, Council for Tobacco Research USA, Inc. This is a,funding

agency for biomedical research in the area of smoking and health,

funded by tobacco manufacturers. The budget for research grants

in 1962 is 7 million dollars. Applications are acted upon by a

Scientific Advisory Board, and those approved with a favorable rating
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axe funded for up to three years with an opportunity for continuation

:grants thereafter. The Council for Tobacco Research exerts no in-

fluence_upon the grantees, who may freej.y toublish what they find

as they choose. About eighty active grants now exist in

the U.S. and abroad.
Ot

My appearance at this hearing is voluntary, and the

opinions expressed are ylrsonal, not representing those of any

.4rganization. They are the reeUlt of over 45 years of study,

investigation and practice in the field of pathology and clinical-

pathologicorrelatioas of diseases, some of which have'been at-

tributed to cigarette smoking.

In the field of science, knowledge is gained through"

experiment and interpretation, the scientific method. A theory is

.Proposed. Thereafter, experiments'confirm or refute it.. If the

latter, a new theory is developed. It is a continuous evolutionary,

process, and needs a critical and open mind. Onemust be constantly

alert for surprises, as Lewis Thomas wrote.
4

Lung cancer is high in the list of statements in Bill BR 4957

attributing diseases to cigarette smoking. There are two general

methods of investigating the cause of cancers in humans or animals.

One is the biomedical method. Caine might be defined bioloiically

as something bOth necessary and sufficient to cause a conditiOn.

Cigarettd smoking is not a necessary factor In human lung cancer,

which existed for centuries in radium miners before cigarettes

were invented. Lung cancer accompanies scarringsprocesses in the

lung due to TB, connective tissue diseases and various other

1
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abnormalities in nOnemOkers.

Also cigarette smoking fails to meet the causal .

criterion of being sufficient. The fact is that the vast majority

seolcIrs, more.than 90% of even heavy smokers, do not develop

lung cancer. Hence cigarette smoking is neither necessary nor '-

sulficient in the development of hummn'lung cancer, and by the

biological definition is not the cause.

Like many othir diseases of older age, lung cancer appears

to be multifactorial, which means the disease is associated with

many things, in addition to smoking. Practically all active re-

'.
searchers now agree on this point. These include:

(1) Heredity. Yamilies with lung cancer are known.

Other families have decreased Yung function.

(2) Sox and Race. Hen have three to iix times.more

lung cancer than women. Slacks and orientals differ Tm whites in

incidence.

, (3) Urban. Certain urban areas have high lung cancer

rates which sannot be accounted for by smoking. These ardas are

characterized.by severe winter weather inVeialon patterns with

high mr pollution.

(4) Occupation. As already noted, some twenty occupations

involve increased risk. Some workers smoke while others do not.

(5) Immune competence. Individuals with demonstrably

reduced immunity halos developed lung cancer. This may explain

some family cases, and the increase-of cancer with age.



(4) MOrmones. Adrenal and sex nes accelerate some

metabolic processes leading to human lung caIc.r.

(7) Aging. The mean age of lung cancer diagnosis has

been reported as about 67 years, and said to 41 rising to older

'ages in some populations.

Currently, researchers do not know which, if any, of these

or other factors play a role in the causation of lung cancer.

The outer approach to cancer causation investigation is

pideeiologic and Statistical.

Edpidemiologic statistics involVes an experimental group

and a 'Control group. bor.& valid comparison, the groups must be

alike as nearly as possible in all respects except for the item

being investigated. In studies of ciga.rette smoking, matching

smokers apd nonsmokers by sex and age was achieved, and it has been

assumed that in all other respects the two groups were comparable.

s is not true, since in body build, extroversion-introversion,

mari blitory, alcohol use, use-of nonprescription medications,

police records, military records and other aspects, ciglrette

smokers are demonstrably different from nonsmokers.

The fallacy of a one-to-one comparison of smokers and

nonsmokers with respect'to mortality was pointed out in a monograph

by Rose and Bell in 1971. They studied predictors of longevity in

war veterans from Boston, rezexamined at intervals. One-on-one

comparisons placed cigarette smoking as a predictor of early

death, like many other studies. Multifactorial statistical analysis
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dropped smoking to somewhere below *30 as a predictor, and *dis-

matisfaction with lob' became fl. The lesson is that in the present

relatively undeveloped state of epidemiology 'to beware of facile

and sweeping conclusions.

Where do the data on deaths from lung cancer and other,

conditions come from? The diagnoses are largely from death

certificates. Bost are not supported bY iutopsy examinations. A

death certificate is an authorization for burial not requiring

permission of the coroner or medical examiner. It is a legal but

not a scientific document. nes death certificate dthgnoses

are compared to autopsy diagnoses of lung cancer, errors in the

death certificates have been found, to range from 30 to 60 percent.

New studies in the U.S. and other countries in the past two years

again show this large error.

The basic data for lung cancer incidence thus are of poor

quality and uncertain verification. The problem is getting worse

since the ACS dropped their requirement for accreditation of hos-

pitals to have 20% minimum autopsies. All pathologists have noted

a decline by half or two-thirds of U.S. autopsies'. Soon'we mly

have so few that new disease's like legionnaires' disease cannot

be effectivelx investigated. Recall that legionnaires' disease

WAS blamed on cigarettes among other things, andthat it was

comunity hospital routine autopsies which permitted identification

of the responsible organism.

Beside the inadequate epidemiologic matching and the
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defective WO VIACfar data from death certificates, one othet:

event has occurred which bears upon the annual quantification of

lung caLcer. The rules hi7/e been changed.

It the revision of the International Causes of Death,

lith edition, called ICD-S to ICD-9, for reporting mortality the

two rubrics: Primary Lung Cancer and Lung Cancer Not Otherwise

Specified (NOS) were for the first time combined. Lung cancer NOS

could begin,in lung or have spread to lung from many different

body sites. Lung metastases are among the three most common lo-

cations for all major internal cancers. What in essence ICD-9

did was to guarantee e continued increase in the reported kung

cancer mortality, conveniently disregarding that half or more of

these cancers began elsewhere in the body ana spread to the,

lUngs.

Two last points 'about statistical epidemiology. Every

textbook states them. Every active scientist knows them. Epi-

demiologic studies by the nature of the mathematics so far developed

deal mainly with random popoulations. But smokers are self selected,

as are nonsmokers. Comparison's of selected populations using

mathematics valid only for random populations cannot be expecteh

to provide valid answers.

Second, epidemiology cannot prove cause and effect.

All it can demonstrate,is a relationship. The nature of the re-

lationship, causal or otherwise, has to 4e worked out by other

methods, usually experimental.

94Z3$7 0 112 33
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The CTR in 1270 undextook a large scale research program

to investigate whether Cigarette smoking causes lung cancer in

animals. Almost 14 million dollars went into the project in twelve

years. To take account of heredity, inbred mice were used, and they

were tested for and vaccinated against respiratory viruses. To

show that these animals could develop the dejor types of human

lung cancer, pure chemical carcinogens were introduced down their

tracheas. Biochemically, these particular Mice were known to

metabolize these carcinogens into the biologicalry active forms.

About 20% developed 'human types lung cancers as a result of ex-

posure to these pure chemical carcinogens.

Thereafter, tlousanda of mice wereexposed daily to -

fresh whole cigarette spoke of either low nicotine and high tar

or high nicotine and high tar content up to maximum tolerance

during their whole lives, up to 40 months in some cases. At one

point, there were 11,000 animal manipulations per day, including

,sham smoking and control mice. After all these years of cigarette

smoke exposure, practically zero lung cancers developed, and not

one case of squamous cell carcinoma, the human cancer most often'

blamed on smoking. There was no question that phe cigarette

smoke had penetrated into their lungs, since this was worked oUt

quantitatively.

In other experiments, mice were primed with intratracheal

pure carcinogenic chemicals and then exposed to cigarette smoke

during their whole lives. No increase in lung cancer occurred over

the incidence found after using pure chemicals alone, and in one

experiment the smoking was associated with a reduced lung cancer

51 4 .
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rate. The numbers of animals and the computerized informCtion

are so abundant that statistical analysis by modern experimental

sietboas is still continuing. Some 40 publications have in part

already appeared or are in progpect.

In summery, a massive experiment to demonstrate that

cigarette smoking can cause lung cancer-in animals has proired

negative. One knows how important an experimental model is in

cancer research from the excitement that attended the claims

years ago that cancers of lung or larynx had been produced by

cigarette smoke in animals. However, no model solfar developed

withstands an objective analysis of the pathology of the'alleged

cancers.

In summary, lung cancer, likemany otherohuman cancers,

remains a major,biological mystery. Epidemiologic studies report

a statistical association between cigarette smoking and 4Ing

cancer. However, the biomedical experimentation does not support

the smoking causation hypothesis.

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Dr. Soinmers. Have. you worked out
who will speak next?

Dr. Furst. '

STATEMENT OF ARTHUR FURST, PH. D.

Dr. FuRsT. My statement is on file with you, but I am going to
abbreviate the statement to save some time.

As a resident of California since 1919 and as director emeritus
of the Institute of Chemical Biology at_the University of San Fran-
cisco, I applaud Congressman Waxman's continuing efforts to im-
prove the health of tbe American people."-His concern is certainly
appreciated. I question, however, the scientific basis of his proposal
H.R. 4957to amend the Public Health Service Act and the Federal
Cigarette Labeling and Advertising Act. I would therefore Bice to
submit a full written statement for this subcommittee's considera-
tion:

I have read H.R. 49,57 with great interest, for L have spent over
30 years in scientific research, much of it studying the guestions of
smoking and health. My original laboratory work on carcinogenesis
antedate the first Surgeon General's Report on Smoking and
Health. -

Over the years, I hve studied the possible effects on animals of
both whole smoke and various smoke coniponents. I have also in-
vestigated the carcinogenicity of a wide variety of substances, part
ticularly the heavy metals, and I have carefully monitored the
world literature on experimental carcinogenesis. Perhaps this back-

4.
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ground will help explain my concerns about H.R. 4957, which
makes such flat, dogmatic statements about It scientific area which
I know to be fraught with uncertainties.

A congressional finding that "cigarette smoking is tile number
one cause of lung cancer" implies a scientific certainty that I, as
scientist, believe to be unwarranted. My Skepticism arises primar-
ily from my extensive knowledge of and first-hand experiefite with
animal experiments on tobacco smoke and lung cancer.

For many years, I tried to induce lung cancer in animals with
cigarette smoke, with no success, despite the most sophisticated
smoking machines available. Not only were my colleagues and I
unsuccessful, but so was every other investigator.

There have been a very small number of published reports of
lung cancers occurring in experimental animals during smoke in-
halation experiments. Anyone attempting te interpret these as
showing that smoking causes lung cancer must understand _that
animals, like humans, do spontaneously develop lung cancer even
hi- the absence of any suspected carcinogen.

Moreover, the design and conduct of meaningful animal experi-
mentation -require a great deal of sophistication. I have reviewed a
vast number of research proposals and reports in the past 30 years,
and I can assure you that a large number of the, experimental de-
signs or the conclusions drawn from the experimental data do not
stand up to rigorous scientific scrutiny. One of the simplest re-
quirements that is often overlooked is the need to select from litter
mates the pontrols and the experimental animals. Even with exact-
ly the same strain of mice, the animals' spontaneous rate of tumor
appearance will vary from one supplier to another; this can cause
serious problems with the interpretation of the data. Thus, even if
positive results are obtained in one experiment, a replication using
animals from a different litter may yield nothing unusual.

Based on my own research and familiarity with the literature, I
have concluded that no reliable, reproducible animal studies have
shown that the inhalation of cigarette smoke causes lung cancer. I
might add that skin-painting .experiments are inappropriate for
studying the question of tobacco smoke and cancer. We must insist
that animal experiments Simulate, as closely as possible, the
human experienceand skin-painting, as well as certain other ex-
perimental techniques, fail to mimic adequately human inhalation.

The animal data are significant negative evidence. They basically
contradict the popular interpretatip of the epidemiological data.
Why4? We must have good researcb-'to find out.

I heartily agreS with the recommendation that more research
must be funded and conducted. Yet, I must emphasize that nega-
tive results can also be very important. Scientific knowledgein .
this case, of lung cancer causat- nadvances 'only by publication of
both successes and failures. is why I have been troubled that
so little information is given in the re rts by the Surgeon General
about the negative expe men resul in the lung cancer areat

Yes, the requirement t at the Offic Smoking and Health "col-
lect, analyze, and disseminate" smoüng, and health information is
excellent if b9th positive and nega vet dings are reported. Only
with this unbiased approach can the s of both science and the
public in general be met. I feel cozç11ed to say that the past per-

,

L,
/

,



513

formance by official agencies has been characterized by highly se-
lective .reporting.

I am not criticizing the Surgeon General personally. I do feel
however, that ES consultants, who.I am sure were motivated by
good intentions, did not feel it necessary to be absolutely complete.

I am not in any way advocating smoking; as a scientist, I am con-
cerned with presenting the best information to the public, both

)
positive and negative. I am also very concerned that if all the dis-
eases noted in this bill are assigned by Federal law to s (1 oking,
there will be a severe decline in research on and attempted control
of nuthy known.or suspected environmental causes of disease.

For example, this Federal law can only have an adverse effect on
efforts to clean up our envirodment, to continue smog controls in
cars, and to remove the particulates and noxious gases in the at-

. 'mosphere.
4 I respectfully suggest that Congress should encourage good re-
search;1 have been advocating this for 30 years. If we had received
adequate funding of good research years, ago, then many of the
question& raised today might have been answered. Science, not pub-
licity campaigns, will solve our problems.

[Dr. Furst's prepared stiltement follows:]

I
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=mom cr ARTHUR FURST, M.O.

As a citizen and a resident of California since 1919, / Applaud

Ccngresasan Weimen's continuing efforts to improve the health of the American

people. Els concern is certainly appreciated. I question, baosvei, the sci-

entific heals of his propceal (LR 4957) to amend the Public Health Service

Act and the Federal Cigarette Labeling And AdvartitingAct.

- As the attached copy of rry curriculum vitae shows, I hold the only

DAstinguished University professorship (Emeritus) at the Unitrersity of San

Francisco. I so the Eire:bar (Emeritus) of the Institute of Chemical BioIogY

PM, and I have been a professor of pharmacology at Stanford University

School of Medicine and a (visiting) clinical professor of pathology at the

C011ege of Physicians and Surgeons of.Columbia Chimes:sib/. / am listed in

Who's Who in the Wbrld and Wbrld Who's Who in Science. I am a consultant

(temporary) to the World Health Organization. ln fact, / was a member of the

international ix:eking group that wrote IARC Mx:graphs Volume 2 and 23 on

Evaluation of the Carcinogenic Risk of Chemicals to Humans. I am crunommtlY

organizing an international conference on the toxicity and reproductive

hazarda of heavy metals. I also consult frequently with governmental agencies

and private industries cn a vaxiery of environs:eta/ health problems.

I have read &EL 4957 with great interest,-fOr / have spent over

thirty years in scientific research, much of it studying the questions of

smoking and health. my original laboratory work on carcinogenesis antedates

the-first Surgeon s Report on SmOking and Health. Over the years, /

have studied the possi,Ie effects On animals of both whole smoke and various

smoke °opponents. I have also investigated the carcinogenicity of a wide

variety of si1etan9s, particularly the hedVy metals, and I have carefully

HARNEY SCIENCE CENTER
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94117
4t5/60.54415.
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monitored the world literature cn experimental carcincgenesis. Perhaps this

backgrosmi will help explain my =cams about H.R. 4957, which makes such

flat. dogmatic statements about a sclerntific area which I knad to be fraught

with uncertaLties.

A Congressional finding that "cigarette =Icing is the nurir one

cause of lung lancer" irplies a scientific certainty that I, as a scientist,

believe to be unwarranted. My skeptimUmm arises primarily from my extensive

knoolete of and first-hand experience with animal experinents cn tctacco

smoke and lung colder.

For many years, I* tried to induce lung cancer in anhmals with

cigarette smoke, with no success, despite the most scphisticated smoking

machines available. hbt Snlylore my colleagues and I untuccessful, but every

other investigator who atterpted to induce 3.64 cancer in animals by inhala-
iion,of fresh smoke als0 feiled.

Mere have been a very snail number of published reports of lung

cancers cccurring in experimental animals during smoke inhalaticn experiments.

Anyone attespting to interpret these as shooing that smokin/ causes lung can-

cer must understand that animals, liko.humans, do spontaneously develcp lung

cancer even in the absence of any suspected carcinogen. 7be key question that

an investigator must ask hirelf is whether any cancers that develop in his

animals are actually a rem&lbf the experimental exposure. For.example,

rodents have a ,fairly high spontaneous rate of actenooarcfr.ara (malignant
tonics) and adendoa (=malignant tumors') development. I have exarined the

data cn the reports of increased adenocarcinaoa in smoke-exposed animals and

Woe found no difference between the incidence reported in the experimental
animals and the normiel baseline, spontaneous rate.

I. HARNEY SCIENCE CENTER
SAN FRANCISCO. CAUFORNIA 94117
445/666.5415
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Y--

The lung cancer cell type traditicmdly associated with human

Moking is squaw= cell carcinare. _The spcmtaneous rate of this cancer ie

omisitierably lewer them that of adenrcarcincre in mXkuts, but it too does

-occur naturally in these animals There have been very fed reports of a

'humus cell cancer in amknioccend animals, and generally the authors rade

no coma* on them findings. I assure that they concur with re that they

were Meirg nothitx;more than spcntaneous production.

toe of the animal experiments that has received the most attention

is that cm beepnecgs =Acted by Auerbach et al. 'Nave years ago, they

claimed to haye succeeded in producing lmng cancer in their beagles, but

because -their efgatimental meths wgre seriously flawed, I qmsider their

=elusions to be unfounded. Became the Auerbach experiment cccasicnally

resurfaces as virtually the only example of a positive inhalatimal study

result, I feelconielled to repeat sure of the criticism of that study that I

voicei in l97i. Any tire this experiment is praised, there sems to be no

aphasia cm thniMet that the dogs received the smoke through a trade:storm.

rais in no wey resembles =en smoking. Unless the pictures I have seen are

wrong, the smoke was initially forced into 'the lungs thrcugh the trachea by

use of a pumpl This wee wittaut regard to the motel respiration rate of the

dogs. Further, several of the dogs died from infections, aspiration of

foreign material, etc., which is unusual in a well =trolled experiment.

This experiment flas no meaningful relationship to the*htmen experience, and

--am; repprts of tmors stfoild be considered in light of the fact that the

experimental data were not made available to an independent panel for evalu-

ation, as requested. Also, since beagle dogs do get lung cancer

spccdxmouslY, a, discussion of this fact would have been useful to readers

interested in evaluating the Auerbach work.

HfMINEY SCIENCE CENTER
SAN FRANCISCO. CAUFORNIA 04117
415/6643-6413
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lbe design and =Lot of meaningful animal everirentation require

a great deal of eADhistication. I,have reviewed a vast number of research

proposals ind reports in the past 30 years, and I can assure you thfxt 4\large

muter of theeetixrimental designs s the' oottchisions drawn from the experi-

mental dabs do not stand'up to rigorous scientific scrutiny. (ate of the

simplest mevirements that is ofbei overlooked is the oeed to' select fram

litteratabas the controls and the experimental animals. Evenwith exactly the,

same strain of mice,, the animals' SINNIUWACUS rate of tumor appearance will

vary from cne sopplier to ammthtur), this can cause serious problems with the :-

interpretation of the data.- Thus, even if positive results are obtained in .

one everiment,areplication using animals fromadifferent litter may yield

nothingtmmsual.

It-is also extremely important tome "clean* animals. Pdrasitds or

infectilus diseases in the animels can seriously affect experimental results,

even if the animils are successfully treated befobe the experiment begins.

!Or example, ue can't be sure what effect.the perasite infestation in

Dontenwill's Syrian Golden hatreters had on his inhalation study results.

diditArly, the possibility ,ihat'Auerbadh's beagles had lung worms causes

concern. In my 041 work, I always trY to avoid using uncldan animals by

checking them very carefully before beginning an experiment. If I discover

later th.a my animals are not clean, I terminate the experiment and start

againudth nod animals. Mat /ls the only way that I can feel certain that the

infestation or infection will not affect the experimental findings.

In smeary, based on my am research and familiarity udth the

literature, I .i9IIAB commiluded that no reliable, reproducible animal studies

-m0- have shoat that the inhalation of cigarette snoke'clettajky cancer. I might
140

add that skin-painting experiments are inappropriate for studying the question

HARNEY SCIENCE CENTER
SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94117
4130116664IS
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of tcbaozo smoke and. cancer. We wart insist that animal eiperitrents simulate,
as ciceely as possible, the haren experience and skin-painting, as well as
certain other experimental techniques, fail to mimic adequately human

inhalaticn.

Varicus grape =winced of sacking's (-Aiwa role in lung cancer
devektonent have atterpted to ignore or explain away the negative results in
animal inhalation studies. For exempla, I was are challenged in a scientific
meeting about the mice I used in ny spoke inhalation studies. The individual
argued that this atrain oould not develcp lung cancer, anti that is why I
failed, But this is not true, because we have docarented well the production
of lung Over a period of years we published a series

of papers our technique of instilling carcinogens in the lungs of
mice, the sensitivity of varicus strains of mice tip carcinogens, and the res-
pave of the animas to different
histological types .of lung carcer is camm
carcinogens. It is even possible to rate
carcinogens as intluzers of lung cancer.

. Yes, deVelciorent of all
animals treated with varicus

y the potency, of

In experinental carcinsgenesis, replication by independent investi-
gators is essential to establish the validity of the findings. Other

researchers have been successful in replicating my experimental production of
lung cancers. For sample, in the latest issue of Cancer research (vol. 41),
Henry, et al., published a complete confirmation of my reeearch. They used

the sane technique, strain of mouse, chemical, and reported the sane time of
lurq cancer appearance. It is in this context of successful lung cancer
induction techniques that the failures of spoke inhalation studies should he

'Jigged.
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I

. In gereral, the major health claire against cigarette smoking are
4 based mainly cn epideadological studies. Fran the standpoint *of science,

epideniolcgical studies can cnly point cut statistical asseciaticns between a
factor (such as arcking) and disease; they carmot prove a causal relaticnship.
Yet, the findings in H.R. 4957 are stated as causal relationships, as though
all is proven. Thos, as a scientist with over 30 years experience in labora-
tory research, I must disagree with those findings cn the grcunds that they
are overstatements of the scientific krnwledge all' is not proven sin the. /molting and health- area.

s
I heeirtily agi:ee with the re:amended= that,anre research mist be

ftznded azxl =ducted. Yet, I rust eephasize that negative results can also be
very brortant.- Seientific knawledge (in this case, of lung carrer.causaticn)
advances only by publicaticn of both successes and failures This is why I
have been trTbled that so little inforantice is given in the reports by the
Surgecn General about the negative experimental results in the bong cancer
area." A case in point is Cr. A. 'Wenner's avrk which shared that hamsters, as
a result of their eXposure to cigarette stoke, not only failed to develcp lung
cancer, hut also lived lcagerl Yes, the requirement that the Oftice cn
Snicking and Health "collect, analyze, and dismal:ate smoking and health
infornetica la excellent if both positive and negative firxlings will be
reported. Only With this unbiased approach can the needs of both science and
the public in general be net. I feel =veiled to say that past perforrnance by
official agencies has been characterized by highly selective reporting.

I am particularly disturbed- by- the-- latest -11992) Report- of the
Surgeon General Health Coaseguences of Smoking. Like so neny of its
predecessors, it often .anits references to material contradictory to the
positicns it has adopted. Silly the missions? Seri, should a goverment

HARNEY SCIENCE CENTER
SAN FRANCISCO. CALIFORNIA 94117
415/6664415
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domaeatt selectively present only that part of the evidence that supports its

position?

In General, this Report provides no new information that would make

me change weird about the lack of Good Sciert.ific information cn smoking and

health.

I egree with the Report's reccmscendation that major reeearch efforts

stculd be devoted to elucidating the medunlime of lung cancer development.

At this pcdnt, we hsve a numierof theories, not proof, and in many instances

notvery good theories.

/he writers of the Report assure that_the case against cigarette

making is proven, and that the isdk of krrwleage about the mech.aniems

involved is only the finishing talak--r not really essential to prove the

Icannot disagree more strcmgly. Unlike the writers of the Surgece

General's Report, I believe that until we have that proof, any conclusions

regarding causation are premature.

°I disagree with the Report's discussion of the animal inhalatice

experiments using Syrian gcaden hamsters (memy of them conducted by

Contenwill, et al.) A sumairy section of the Report says that 'studies cn

amoke inhalation with the hamster nod appear suitable" for evaluating the

"tumarigenic potential" of cigarette woke. 7tas seems highly inocapatible

with the Report's earlier comment that 'Why these inhalation experiments with

hamsters did not induce =eine* of the lung remains bo be elucidated. Lung

cancer can te induced in feasters: by using a variety of sdbstances. Also,

significant amounts of cigarette smoke do reach the hamsters' lungS:So

don't the hamsters get lung cancer after to tdbacoo smoke?

HARNEY SCIENCE CENTER
SAN FRANCISCO. CALIFORNIA 04117
41516666415
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The 1982 Report concludes that inhalation studies have basically

_failed to induce lung cancer in animals, but then it react:rends that further

research effortSin this area Should receive limited priority. / find that

inomprebensible. The animal data are significant negative evidence. They

basically contradict tile popular interpretation of the epidemiological data.

Why? leanest have good researdh to find out.

/ am not in any way advocating smoking; as a wientist, / am con-

cerned with presenting the best irkametion to the pUblic, both positive and

negative. / am also very concerned that if all the dicpAgeR noted in this

bill aim assigned federal lam to smoking, tEmetudll be a severe decline in

research on and attecpted contriC of many known or su.spected environmental

causes of disease. FM example, this federal law can only'have an adverse

effect on efforts to clean up our enviroment, to continue smog controls in

cars, and to remove the particulates and noxious gases in the atmosphere.

/ have lectured through:at California in programs on the Biology of

Cancer sponsored by the Acerican Cancer Society. Such contact His led re to

believe that the public is well informed on what the preaMbIe in H.P4 4957

refers to as the °dangers of enticing." Every package of cigarettes, every

megazine ad, and every billboard ad carries the Surgeon General's warning.

FUrthermore, the American Lung Association,,the Arexican Cancer Society, and

the Herat of Dimes are continually funding radio and TV announcements against

wicking.

/ cannot agree, therefore, with this legislative requirement that

the goverment speni.even more time and effort.to inform the public as though

they are ignorant of all the warnings that have been broadcast over the past

nearly 20 years: /t seems to me that the public is indeed well informed, and

that perhaps they have simply decided that they wish to iake their own

decision. / would prefer to have these ndllions of dollars spent on good

research, and not mums publicity campaigns.

Again, / respedlully suggest that Congress should encourage good

research; / have been advocating this for 30.years. /f we had received ade-

quate funding of good research years ago, 4len many of the questions raised
today might have been answered. Science, not publicity caspaigns, will solve

ourimtblecs.
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Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Dr. Furst.
Dr. Sterling.

STATEMENT OF THEODORE D. STERIANG

Mr. STERLING. Mr. Chairman, members of the panel, thank you
for the courtesy in receiving my contribution. I am Theodore Ster-
ling, university research professor at Simon Fraser University in
British Columbia. I have previously taught at several universities
in the United States. I have served as an adviser to the U.S Food-
and Drug Administration, the Federal Trade Commission, the Na-
tional Science Foundation, the National Security Agency, National
Academy of Sciences, the Veterans' Administration, and to several
U.S. and Canadian labor unions.

I have been elected a fellow of the American Association for the
Advancement of Science and of the American Statistical Associ-
ation. My major professional work concerns the collection and
analysis of scientific data from experiments and from survey stud-
ies. Much of my research has centered on learning about the ef-
fects of environmental exposures on the health of many.

I am opposed to the bill under discussion today because,/ believe
its far-reaching "findings" do not have adequate scientific support
Further, if this bill becomes law, it could unreasonably divert at-
tention and resources away from crucially important areas of
public healh research.

My interest in the possible health effects of cigarette smoking
goes back to the late 1950's. Since then, in a number of published
articles, I have expressed my concern that many smoking and
health studies have taken approaches which have oversimplified
what in reality is an extremely complex problem.

The bulk of the data on smoking and health has come from stud-
ies of population groups, that is, from epidemiological studies.
These data have been analyzed using statistical methods to deter-
mine whet er there are associations between certain factors and
disease enaiDoints.

As a statistician, I am frequently astonished to see how many
people, even many who should know better, treat statistical associ-
ations as proof of cause-and-effect relationships. The findings in the
act being discussed today seem to be a perfect example of this
misuse of statistics.

In my written statement, which I understand has been submitted
for the record, I have described my published critiques of smoking
and health studies. Briefly, I have evaluated in depth two of the
major prospective mortality studiesthe American Cancer Society's
"Million Persons" study and the U.S. veterans studyand I hive
found that both of these studies had major methodological flaws
which may well invalidate their widely quoted conclusions.

Smoking has also been statistically linked with "excess" illness
and disability. I have re-analyzed the data on which this claim is
said to be based and I have found that they may not, in fact, war-
rant this conclusion.

Further, I contend that smoking and health studies have for the
most part ignored possible confounding factors. Modern society has
created a multitude of sources for toxic airborne particles and

5 9
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fumes. These are as different as the vinyl cover of a sofa, the kitch-.-
en gas stove; the heating air duct, the automobile tail pipe, and the
huge smokestacks of a steel mill. But nowhere are people exposed
to such high concentrations of fumes and dusts as they are in the
industrial workplace.

Yet, tiere has been comparatively little effort to collect and ana-
lyze data on occupational exposures. For example, even in 1982, I
know of only one cancer registry that collects appropriate detailed
information on lifetime work exposures among all the many cancer
registries that i4quire about the smoking habits of the respiratory
cancer cases in their files.

Population studies such as the ACS and veterans studies either ,

did not obtain information on industrial exposures, or, if some lim-
ited information was available, it was not subjected to critical anal-
ysis.

In my own investigations, I have found that there' is a strong
tendency for a higher proportion of individuals who do dirty work
to smoke, compared to individuals who do clean work. So I have
asked. Does smoking kill workers or working kill smokers? It ap-
pears to me that the increased incidence of disease, ascribed to
smoking by epidemiological studies that fail to control adequately
for occupation, could well be due to occupational factors.

In my written statement, I have summarized a number of studies
of lung disease in occupationally exposed workers. Some of these
have failed to find any significant effect due to cigarette smoking,
while others have found even higher disease rates among nonsmok-,ers than among smokers.

Some of my associates and I are currently conducting a study
seeking to untangle the possible influences of smoking and expo-
sure to toxic dust and fumes. While the analysis of all our data is
not yet complete, it is nevertheless clear that the association previ-
ously claimed between smoking and respiratory cancers has been
greatly magnified because other factors were not considered.

As- humans living in a frighteningly complex world, we grasp
with relief at what appear to be simple answers. But the complex
facts about the causation. of lung disease will remain incomplete if
we continue to simplistically blame cigarette smoking and continue
to ignore the myriad of environmental agents we all encounter.

I believe that this legislation would add little to present public
health efforts, it would merely reinforce the state of imbalance and
confusion which now exists in investigations of the, health conse-
quences of the microchemical environment.

[Mr. Sterling's prepared statement follows:]
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Statement,

Professor T. D. Steeling

I am Theodor Sterling, University Research Professor at
Simon Fraser University, Burnaby, British Columbia. I have also
taught at the following universities: Alabama, Cincinnati,
Michigan State, Princeton, and Washington Univeisity at St. Louis.
I have serVed as an advisor to the Food and Drug Administration,
the Federal Trade Commission, the Matlonal Science Foundation,
the National Security Agency, the National Academy of Sciences,
and the Veterans Administration. I am a Fellow of the American
Association for the Advancement of Science and of the American
Statistical Association. My major professional workconcerns the
-collection and interpretation of scientific data anethe design,
execution and analysis of experiments and of survey studies.
Much of ay research has centered on learning about the effects of
environmental exposures on the hilIth of animals and men.

I wish to coaaent on the proposed Comprehensive Smoking
Prevemtion Education Act of 1981. I am opposed to this proposed
legislation because I believe its far-r.ohing "findings" do not
have adequate scientific support. Further, if it becomes law,
this Act could unreasonably divert attention and resources away
froa crucially iaportant areas of public health research.

My comments are based on ay analyses of reports of
other investigators and ay own research efforts in the smoking
and health areas.

Smoking and Wealth Studies

My the possible health effects of cigarette
smoking goes back to the late 1950's. In a number of published
articles, I here expressed ay concern about mani smoking and
health studies, primarily because the approaches taken have
oversimplified what in reality is an emZremsly complex problem.
I have pointed out specific flaws in the design and execution of
many of these studies.

/1r.-

The bulk of tha data on smoking and health comes from
studies of population groups, that is, from epidemiological
studies. These data are analyzed using statistical methods to
deterMine whether there are associations between certain factors
and di eeeee end-points. As a statistician, I am frequently
astonished to see how aany people, even many who should know
better, treat statistical associations as proof of cause-and-
effect relationships. The findings in the propoied Act seem to
be a perfect example of this misuse of statistics. Scientiets.



525

4

aad nonscientists alike must heed the words of a well-known
epidemiologist, who vary recently eiid:

Ipidemiological studies, even prospective
ones . . Cl440,t prove cause-and-effect
when the end-point, 'effect', is an outcorie
1 a chronic non-comadhicable condixion.1

In order for statistical associations to provide
reliable directions for further research, the data froi
which they are derived must be accurate and these data must be .
analysed using appropriate,methods, t-aking ail possible confound-
ing .factors into account. Unfortunately, these scientific
standards frequently have not been iet in epidemiological studies
of smoktag and health.

I have,eyaluated in depth two of the major prosptctive
mortality itudiel":' The largest of these was the "million persons"
study conducted by eke Ameriein Cancer Society (ACS) some years
ago. Although one would hope that results from such a large and
expensi,va study would be reliable, after detailed consideration,
I find that the conclusions about the possible relationship of
smoking and mortality say not be valid because of the biased
procedures used to select the population.2.4

The data from this large study population were gathered
by volunteer workers, and it appears that many of the voluneeers
had preconceived views on smoking and di In otiker words,
siece the purpose of the study was to show a link between smoking
and di , the volunteers would'be more likely to choose ill
subjects who smoked. Indeed, some of the disease patterns of the
ACS population were quite different from those of the U.S. popula-
tion. For example, the ACS women had twice the percentage of
breast cancer deaths and three times the percentage of lung
cancer deaths, compared to U.S. females generally. Likewise, the
percent of ACS males who died of lung cancer was twice that of
all U.S. males: Tat the overall death rate for ACS nen was about
the sass as that for U.S. males and that for ACS women was somewhat

, lower than that for U.S. women.

The ACS population was also very different from the
general U.S. population with respect to age distribution, educa-
tional attainment, racial strocturdekand place of residence. It
is clear that these one million mes-and women were not representative
of the U.S. population. Certainly, results Of,the ACS study
cannot leiitimately be projected to the general population, yet
this has been and is still being done. And astonishingly, the
ACS has recentli announced it will soon begin a second "million
persons" study, using the same procedure of subject recruitment
by "dedicated" volunteers!

1
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A smaller AMirican mortality study, which is still
widely quoted, used information obtained from U.S. veterans. I

have exteneively re-analyzed these data and have found that
approximately twenty-five percent of the subjacts had been
misclassified with respect to smoking habits." ?or example,
large numbers of misclassifications were made among current
smokers of more than,one form of tobacco end among all categories
of former smokers. These misclassification errors directly
affect.the,,number of deaths by smoking classes and number of
years at risk used to determine mortality ratios. Thus, it is
appropriate to ask whether conclusions based on these extensive
isclassifications can possibly be valid. This question is
particularly significant since the veterans' data are periodically
updated and the results used as further evidence of the adverse
health effects.ot smoking.

As everyone is aware, smoking has also been statistically
linked with "excess" morbidity, that is, "excess" illness and
disability. I have re-analyzed the data from the Health Interview
Survey,5 on which this claim is imidltp_be based, and I have
found that these daia may npt, in face,- warrant the conclusion
that cigarette smoking leads to increased disease and disability.6
Specifically, I found that female smokers by and large report
fever die eeeee and disabilities than female non-smokers. Also,
moderate smokers, both male and female, very often report the
fewest number of di eeeee s and have the lowest prevalence rates
oven when compared Ao non-smokers. I did not use special methods
to analyze the data to arrive at these conclusions -- these same
observatiohs for fimale,smokers and moderate smokers appear
clearly in the Tables in the chapter on morbidity in the 1979
Surgeon General's Report on Smoking and HeAlth.7

In addition, when I examined the Health Interview
Survey methods, I observed that several potential sources of bias
were simply ignored. For example, much of the information was
obtained from proxy responses, the method used to adjust for age
distribution differences betWeen smokers and non-smokers may
have been inappropriate, and some known differences between
smokers and non-smokers, such as occupation, were not considered.

The following statement, also from the morbidity chapter

in the 1979 Surgeon General's Report on Smoking and Health,
clearly supports my contention that studies on smoking and health

have ignored possible confounding factors.

Host large scale studies on smoking and health
have tended to investigate the role of smoking
independently of other behavioral variables,
such as alcohol consumption and other life style
factors, occupational and env4m6nmental hazards,
'and certain psychologidal faCtors, These vari-
ables are known to be related to health status
and many are also related co smoking' habits.7

5 3 u
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Occupational leposures and Smokin&

For many years, / have been concerned with and heve
studied in depth the affects of various environmental agents on
the health of man. Modern society has created-4 multitude Of
sources for toxic airborne particles and fuses. All of us carry

. an accuaulativ body burden from by-products of carbonisation,
froa dusts, and from a variety of chemicals and substances which
are released into our environment. Thecsources are as different
as the vinyl Cover oil a sofa, the kitchen gas stove, the heating
air duct, the automobile tail pipe, and the huge smokestacks of a
steel sill. But nowhere are people exposed to such high concentra-
tions of fuses and toxic dusts as they are in the induatrial
workplace.

Yet.there has been comparatively little effort to
collect and analyse data on occunational exposure*. For example,
as difficult as it may be to believe in 1982, I know of only a
single cancer registry that collects appropriate detailed information
on occupation and lifetime work exposure among all the many
cancer registries that inquire about the smoking habits of the
respiratory cancer cases In their files. It was not until 1970
that an institute (MIOSH) to study the diseases of the workplace
was established. In the opinion of many.: NIOSH was not funded
adequately until 1976 -- and even that relatively modest funding
was cut again recently. And it vas not until 1980 that the
American Lung Association convened a special Task Force on
Occupational Realth.

In contrast, there have been many, many publicly funded
studies seeking to associate smoking with disease and simultane- -
,ously neglecting the environment of the smoker. Population
studios such as the ACS and veterans' studies either did not
obtain information on industrial exposures or, if some limited
information was available, it was not subjected to critical
analysis. Onless we begin to attend to the importance of tge
workplace and eaposures to chemicals in the past, we may deprive
ourselves of the ability to take effective measures to prevent
the constant increeses in respiratory disease rates.

Only recently have studies appeared whi* have addressed
the question of the health experience of special groups of indus-
trial workers. For example, asbestos workers, uranium workers
end chemical workers have received attention from epidemiologists.
/ have observed that'even many ot these investigators gather data
on smoking habits with such more'thoroughnesi than they do data
on type and duration of exposures. Their analyses of the observed

patterns, in my view, place disproportionate emphasis on
smoking histories in drawing conclusions.

My own investigations have justified my concern that a
narrow focus or'smoking has masked the effects of micro-chemical
end occupational environments. I have been prompted by my results
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to ask: does smoking kill workers or working kill 5mokers?9
Evidence in support of the latter has been detailed in a paper I
presented at the American Lung Association's Occupational Health
Task Force Meeting in April, 1980.9 Here I will briefly summarize
that paper.

While there are many reasons for the confusion between
the possible ffects of smoking and other variables, the major
complication arises because the prevalence of smoking is highest
among those individuals who are xposed to possible deleterious
occupational factors.10,11 per instance, 71 percent of construction
painters are current smokers while only 27 percent of teachers
have that habit.11 In fact, when occupations are arranged by
prevalence of smoking, 29 out of 40 occupations in which smoking
is most prevalent are also those with high exposure to dusts and
fuses, while in oaly 4 of the 40 occupations with the lowest
prevalence of smoking are workers exposed to such hazards."

There is a strong tendency for a higher proportion of
individuals who do dirty work to smoke, compared to individuals
who do clean work. Thus, in a statistical sense, the category
smoker say be primarily an index for worker exposed to occupatiOnal
hazards. It follows that any comparison between smokers and non-
smokers implies a comparison between groups that probably differ
significantly in their exposures to dusts and fumes in the workplace.
In short, the increased incidence of disease, ascribed,to smoking
by epidemiological studies that fail to control adequately for
occupation, could well be due to occupational factors. Obtaining
an accurate occupational history is difficult,and time consuming,
patticularly because important exposures may have occurred twenty
or more years ago.

/ Studties of Industrjtl Workers

I turn no a dAscussion of,ricent and long overdue
studies of lung dis e in occupationally exposed workers; sop
of these have faile o find any significant effect due to cigarette
smoking, while others have found even higher disease rates among
%non-smokers than among smokers:

In a study of zinc and lead miners, Axelson, et 21.12
report a greater risk for lung cancer among nonqisnokers compared
to imokers. Another study of miners' mortality bf Dela,lgren,
reported in 1979, showed that non-smoking miners had'a higher
mortality from lung cancer than smoking miners.13 Axelson emphasized
that these Swedish srudies deal with a lifetminers-

whereas most other mining populations have been studied by
follow-up of

means of cohorts with a follow-up of not more than about 25-30
years or less.14 In other words, the completeness of the follow-
up leads to results with added reliability.

An inverse relationship between smoking and iung cancer
was also found among workers exposed to chloromethyl methyl

4
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ether." The author, W. Weiss, who is known for his militant
opposition to smoking, Observed; "The data suggest that continued
cigarette smoking entailed factor whi,ch partially inhibited the
carcinogepic effects of chloromethyl ethers."

Pinto" found elevated lung cancer mortality rates in
his study population.of arsenic exposed workers, compared to the
general population. lie commented that these elevated rates were
"not due to smoking" in his workers. Further, he reported that 4
the differences between the elevated standard moitality rktios in
the three groups (smokers, ex-smokers and non-smokers) were not
statistically significant.

A study of ch.rysotile asbestos miners in Canada17
reported that "Lung cancer deaths occurred in non-smokers, and
showed a greater increase:of incidence with increasing exposure
than did lung cancer in smokers . . . ." This is one of the very
few studies that estimated Hvels of asbestos dust exposure among
the workers,

Sdme scientists have claimed that occupational expesures
and cigarette smoking increase the risk of disease. In fact,
Finding (6) of HAL-4957 accepts this view. The recent studies

' discussed above do not support this hypothesis. In fact, Axelson
...and Weiss separately raised the possibility that smoking may have
protective properties for same types of work.

The claim of interaction is heard most often regar,ding
asbestos and smoking, but even here the evidence needs to be
examined carefully.- Although the welk known study of insulaticip
workers by Hammond and Selikoff18,18,L8 has indicated an apparihtly
large effect on lung cancer rates due to the claimed interaction
of smoking and asbestos, that "effect" has hecome smaller with

' successive "reports, as increasing numbers of lung cancers occur
among non-smoking workers. It is important to note that the
latastezeport by these investigators has shown a five-fold relative
risk of lung cancer mortality for smoking and non-smokipg workers
exposed to asbestos.

In addition, there are serious problems with the
Hammond-Selikoff study. For example, there were no smoking
histories available for over 6,000 of the 17,60 insulation
workers. This prompted a cancer researcher to note ". . . the
large fraction of subjects with unknown smoking habits makes
uncertain'any quantitative assessment of the joidePeffect of
smoking and tsbestos."21 Also,. I have pointed out chat in these
insulation workers, the proportion of deaths due to cancer of all
sites was the same for both smokers and non-smokers.8 Approxilately
451 of all deaths were due co cancer in these workers. In contrast,
the proportion of expected deaths from cancer (based on age-
specific U.S. mortality rates for white males) was only about
In. These figuFes.strikingly indicate the dangers of asbestos
exposure foe all workers, whether they smoke or not.
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In many of these reported studies, conclusions about
the possible ielativi effects of smoking and occupational exposures
were almost an afterthought. There have been feu studies designed
for the express purpose of evaluating elle poseible interaction of
smoking and occupation. In order to fill that void', a number of '

associates at the.Sinai Hospital in Detroit and the Rhode Island
Hoepitall of Brown University have joined me in a study seeking to
uptangle,the possible in luences of the life history of smokipg
and exposure to toxic d st and fumes on patients in lung, cancer,
heart, dentel and other hospital services. We have developed a
thorough questionnaire nd a practical interviewing procedure So
determfne whether an izndividual has beeM exposed to occupational
4hazards, and the extent of any such exposures.

fhile'the analysis of all our data is nol yet.complete,
At is oevertheless clear that the a:satiation previously claimed
between smoking sod respiratory cancers has been greatly magnified,
becauee other factors werf not considered. The much-publicized 1

"aesociation" between haert disease and Smoking may be similarly
exaggerated. Indeed, if our preliminary findings are substantiated
when dent analysis is complete, the statistical association
reported by others between smoking and heartidiseqe* may have to
be completely re-evaluated.

Conclusions

530
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My purpose here has been to present some results of
scientific investigations that,aro not widely publicized, and to
show that an almost exclusive focus on cigarette smoking may have
seriously hindered the scientific study of chronic diseases. I

i

believe I have r-early dedonstrated that ,the possible effects of
smokint and occup tional exposures have not yet.been disentangled.

. f
, As humans living in a frighteningly complex world, we

grasp with relief at,what appear to be simple answers. Indeed,
the readinw with which the existing evidencq has been accepted
as demonstriting that cigarette spokini is the major antecedent
for lung di is, perhaps, a Ast strikiig example of our
desire to gasp our world simpfe and orderly. .

.

.

Nature, on the other hand, is not concerned with what ,

we befieve causes disease, and the real world is not always
simple. In the case of lung disease, in facE, it is highly
complex. The factual knowledge about the antecedents of lung
disea will remain incomplete if we continue to simplistically *

blamecigatette smoking and continue to ignore the possible
effec s of the workplace on the health of worker

I am afraid that the bill under consid at on d

tend to reinforce what has beenothe dominate appr ii of health
scienqists -- the search for antecedents of dise se in the behavior

/°.
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and life-styles of individuals. Attempts are constantly made to P..

link di sssss to individual habits such as nutrition, exercise or
the lack of it, alcohol, and, of course, smoking. For example,
the new American Cancer ,Society study mentioned earlier is targeted
_on the effects of certain life-style factors on cancer.

In contrast, the idea that the day-to-day environment
exerts a major influence on the health of large population groups,
although suspected by some, has not been adequately considered.
One needs only to recall the criticisms heaped upon Rachel Carson's
Silent Spring twenty years afb to realize the truth of this
statement. The fact that many people are exposed to substantial
concentrations of volatilAwfunes and toxic dusts, particularly in
the workplace, has not received sufficient attention from epidemi-
ologists and public health officials.

In conclusion, I believe that the fActs I have presented
support y contention that the "findings" in the bill are based
on insufficient sate. This ;egislation would add little to
present public health efforts; it would merely reinforce the
state' of imbalance and confusion which Aow exists in investig
of the health conseq,2pnces of the micro-chemical environment.

4

,5 3.6

'

-No



532

References

1. keys,,A., et al., "The Diet and All-Causes Death Rate in the
Seven Countries Study," Lancet II: 58-61, July 11, 1981.

Z. Sterling, T., "A Critical Reassessment of the Evidence-
Rearing on Saoking as the Cause of Lung Cancer," Am J Public
Health 65(9): 939-953, Septeaber, 1975.

3. Sterling, T., "StatIstical Problems in Multi-variate (Etiologicaj)
Surveys," Canadian J Scat 7(2): 205-215, 1979.

4. Sterling, T. ind J. Weinkai, "What Happens When Major Errors
aro Discovered Long After an Important Report has Been
Published?," Presented at the American Statistical Associa-
tion Annual Heating, Augsst 16, 1979.

5. U.S. Public Health Service; "Cigarette Smoking and Health
Characteristics, United States .-- July 1964-June 1965,"
Vital and Health Statistics, PHS Publication No. 1000,
Series 10, No. 34, Washington, D.C.: U.S. avernment Printing
Office, 1967.

6: Sterling, T., "A Review of the Claim that Excess Morbidity
and Disability Can Be Ascribed to Smoking," J Am Scat Assoc
66(334): 251-257, June, 1971.

A, 7. U.S. Public Health Service, "Chapter 3. Horbidity,"'Smokidg
and Health. A Report of the Surgeon General, Department of
Health, Education, and /leiter*, -0,Milt-turb44cation No. (PHS)
79-50066, 1979.

8. Sterling, T., "Does Smoking Kill Workers or Working'Kill
Saokers?," Int J Health Serv 8(3): 437-452, 1978.

9. Sterling, T., "Ssoking, Occupation and Respiratory Dises*se,"
Presented at. the Aaerican Lulls Association Occupational
Real-th--Taalr.-Paite-Mest-iug,--Ap-ril 9, 1980.

10. Sterling, T. and J. Weinkaa, "Smoking Characteristics by
Type of Eaployaent," J Occup Hed 18(11): 743-754, 1976.

11. Sterling, T. and J. Weinkam, "Smoking Patterns by Occupa-
tion, Industry, Sex, and Race," Arch Environ Health 33(6):
313-317, 1978.

12. Axelson, 0. and L. Sundell, "Hining, Lung Cancer and Smoking,"
Scand J Work Environ Health 4: 46-52, 1978.

536



533

1
13. Dahlgren, I., "Lung Cencer, CarAiovapcular Disease and

Smoking in a Croup of Miners," Lakartidningen 76: 4811-
i *814,1179.

14. Axelson, O., "Effects4of Low Level and Background Radiation
from Radon Daughters," Presented at Vancouver, B.C., Royal
Commission Hearings, January, 1980.

15. Weiss, W., "The Cigarette Factor in Lung Cancer Due to
Chloromethyl Ethers," J Occup Med 22: 527-529, 1980.

16. Pinto, S., et al., "Mortality Experience of Arsenic-exposed
Workers," Arch Environ Health 33: 325-331, 1978.

17. McDonal4, J., et :h., "Dust Exposure and Mortality is
Chrysotile Mining, 1910-75," Br J Ind Med 37: 11-24, 1980.

1S. Hammond, E. and I. Selikoff, /4te1atios of Cigarette Smoking
to Risk of DeaW of Asbestos-associated Disease Among
Insulatio; Workers in the United Statesi" Biological Effects
of Asbestos, ed4sP. Bogovski (Lyon, France: IARC, 1973),
pp. 312-317.

19. ' Selikoff, I. &act, E. Hammond, "Multiple Risk Factors is
Environmental Cancer," Persons at High Risk of Cancer, ed.
J. Fraumeni (New York: Academic Press, 1975), pp. 467-483.

20. Hammond, E., et al., "Asbestos Exposure, Cigarette Smoking
and Death Rates," Ann NY Aced Sci 330: 473-490, 1979.

21. SaraCci, I., "Asbestos and Lung Cancer: An Analysis of the
Epidemiological Evidence on the *sbestos-Smoking Interaction,"
Int J Cancer 20: 323-331, 1977.

. -

Mr. WAxmAN. Thank you very much, Dr. Sterling.
Dr. Fisher.

/
STATEKENT _OY ERWIN TISHEFLM.D.

Dr. FISHER. Mr. Chairman, I am Edwin R. Fisher of Pittsburgh,
Pa I am currently professor of pathology at the University of Pitts-
burgh School of Medicine and director of laboratories at the Shady-
side Hospital in Pittsburgh, Pa.

In addition, I am a consultant in pathology at the Veterans' Ad-
ministration Hospital in Pittsburgh and the Brownsville General
Hospital of Brownsville, Pa. I am a 1947 graduate of the University
of Pittsburgh School of Medicine. I received postgraduate training
at the Cleveland Clinic, Cleveland; Ohio, and the National Insti-
tutes of Health, Bethesda, Md.

I was certified by the American Board of Pathology in both ana-
tomic and-clinical pathology in 1952. I am a member of the honor-
ary medical society Alpha Omega Alpha and Sigma Xi, the honor-
ary society for scientific advancement.

I was the recipient of the Parke Davis Award in Experimental
Pathology in 1963 and the Man of the Year in Medicine in the .eity
of Pittsburgh in 1966.

I an a member of many scientific societies, including the Ameri-
can iation of Cancer Research and the American Society for
the Study of Arteriosclerosis.

I am the author of 490 scientific publications in American and
international journals and textbooks.

I have served on th editorial boards of the journal Cancer and of
the American Journal of Clinical Pathology as well as the board of
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scientific directors Of Ellis Fishel Cancer Hos ital, Columbia, Mo ,
and the board of reviewers for the American Society of Atheroscle-
rosis and am the project pathologist for the National Surgical Ad-
juvant, Breast and Colon Projects of the National Cancer Institute

I should ffirst like to direct my remarks to personally conducted
experiments concerning the possible atherogenic effects of nicotine
per se. Atherogenesis is the process which results in the disease
which we commonly regard as harderijng of the arteries, technical-
ly called atherosclerosis.

We have also conducted such experiments with actual cigarette
smoke which, of course, includes the relationship of carbon monox-
ide to the atherosclerotic process. Reprints describing these experi-
ments are being submitted as part of this statement.

In these experiments it was clearly demonstrated in the rabbit
that realistic doses uf either nicotines or cigarette smoke failed to
initiate, exacerbate, to otherwise influence the atherogenic process
in that species.

You will,notice that I used the designation "realistic doses I
think that.is Nery important. There have been some studies which
have exhibited minor or questionable changes with the use of an
equivalent dose of 600 or more cigarettes a day in man. This is
such a large number that I think man would find it difficult to find
the tiine to smoke them.

Another point which I would like to emphasize is this. One could
justly say you found nothing in the rabbit, but can the experience
in the rabbit apply to man? What the scientific experiment in the
laboratgry can do is indicate where we shouldlook--"Srid perhaps
what we should look for in the clinical setting and I might add that
this conclusion also rightfully applies to epidemiologic studies.
They are not conclusive in themselves.

With these two points in mind, I should like to continue. It nright
be well to emphasize that there is no pharmacologic or other study
of any scientific Nalidity or acceptability to me that indicates that
nicotine adversely affects coronary blood flow. Indeed, most of the
studies reveal that this agent actually accentuates and enhances
coronary blood flow. Accounts relating adverse effects of cigarette
smoke on angina patients, that is, persons who suffer chest pain as
a result of arteriosclerotic heart disease, should not be interpreted
as indieatinethat cigarette smoke is etiologically related to the ar-
teriosclerotic process.

Of course, there are many things which a person with angina
should not be doing. The issue is whether smoking causes the con-
dition which manifests itself as angina. That is arteriosclerosis, and
the answer to that is it has nOeen demonstrated to do so

Further, it should be noted that the studies which purport to
show that smoking already affects persons with angina involved
very few patientsless than 10. I submit to you and every scientist
in the country that that is not a valid scientific sample upon which
to base any conclusions.

I have reviewed the scientific literature on the subject of coro-
nary heart tlisease and smoking and find other studies which sup-
port my experimental work. For example, studies of workers ex-
posed to carbon monoxide over long periods of time find that the
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exposed workers do not have an increased incidence of atheroscle-
rosis as compared to the general population.

Other studies raise serious questiqns about the smoking causa-
tion hypothesis For example, as has been mentioned earlier today,
studies of twins in Sweden are very illuminating on this subject.
When the researchers looked at monozygotic twins, that is, identical
twins, they found th& there was not an increased rate of coronary
heart disease in the smoking twin as compared to the non-smoking
twin This led the researchers to conclude that their studies "can
be interpreted as showing that both the development of ischaemic
or coronary heart disease and death from it are under a relatively
strong genetic influence." A conclusion with which I heartily agree.

Likewise, a 1979 study of cardiovascular disease in Switzerland
found that while Swiss women have increased their smoking over
the last quarter century, their rate of cardiovascular disease has
declined significantly during the same period.

Thus, in conclusion my own experiemental work and review of
the scientific literature, and I must add, critical review of the sci-
entific literature, leads me to the conclusion that cigarette smoking
has not been scientifically established to be a souse of atherosclero-
sis, nor has it be found to aid or abet this process,

Thank you very much.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, gentlemen, for your testimony.
Dr Fisher, do you think we have enough of a scientific basis to

even have a warning label or justify the warning label we now re-
quire on cigarettes stating thg the Surgeon General has deter-.
mined cigarette smoking is dangYous to your health?

Dr FISHER. I believe that the warning as indicated, I would per-
sonally regard as slightly extreme from the scientific standpoint.

I would like it to be stated, may be dangerous to your hec alth. r
am willing, however, to accept is dangerous, with my own sci ntific
degree of skepticism. If I had my druthers, I would like to s may
be dangerous.

Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Sommers,-What are your viewgon that? Do
you think the present warning label is unwarranted?" ,

Dr SommERs. No, I would agree with Dr. Fisher on that point.
Mr WAXMAN. Do you think that it would be fair to say that lung

cancer may be caused by cigarette smoking?
Dr. SOMMERS. It is a possibility.
Mr. WA.XMAN. Dr. Sterling, what do you think about that? Do

you think that "smoking cigarettes causes lung cancer," would that
be a fair statement to make?

Mr. STERLING. I would agree with Dr. Sommers on that.
Mr WAXMAN. Do you think it is unwarranted to say cigarette

smoking may cause death from heart disease, lung cancer or em-
physema? Is that a statement you could agree to? How about you,
Dr. Fisher.

Dr FISHER. It may, as long as may is underlined. Not as a warn-
ing but as a general statement of issue, that it may.

Mr. WAXMAN. Why not as a warning?
Dr. FISHER. Or may not.
Mr. WAXMAN. Why not as a warning if you think it is a legiti-

mate statement to make?
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Dr. FISHER. Well, I think we could- therefore run a long list of
events that I think we ought to have, you know, saturated fats of
warnings, that this may cause heart disease. I think we could run a
very,,Iong list of events. I think whether one say,s health, that is
even more inclusive than what is proposed by the rabels.

Mr. WAXMAN. Do any of you disagree with the proposition that it
would be prudent for people to avoid smoking cigarettes in order to
avoid the possibility of heart disease, lung disease, emphysema and
cancer?

Dr. SOMMERS. Did you say prudent?
Mr.. WAXMAN. Yes.
Dr. SOMMERS. Well, I can't completely agree with your statement

because prudence imolves evaluation of relative risks, and some
people are evidently at no risk from disease, and others may be at
medium or high risk. To say this generally to all the people makes
it appear that they are all at equal risk. This is not the fact

Mr. WAXMAN. Does it? It seems to me if we had the ability to
figure out which people are high risk and which are not, if they
were predisposed, we could be more careful about it But if you
don't know whetlitr you are an individual at risk or not at risk,
based on some genetic predisposition, wouldn't it be prudent for
you riot to take a chance?

Dr. FISHER. Of course, we are, you know, as humans, at risk for
many things, whether we smoke or don't smoke. Indeed we take
atherosclerosis, hardening of the arteries. This is a disease that
started in the cradle. Ends in the grave.

Mr. WAXMAN. Yes, that is what we are worried about.
Dr. FISHER. Now can we identify the risks of those in the cradle"'

Now it would be very optimum to be able to do thati yes. If we are
going to approach it from that standpoint, I can see merit in it, in-
vegigation into identifying risks.

Mr. STERLING. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. WAXMAN. Do any of You, see patients or do you all work on

research? Do any of you see patients?
Dr. SOMMERS. I see an occasional patient, yes.
Mr. WAXMAN. What do you recommend to your patients?
Dr. SOMMERS. It depends on why the patient comes to see me
Mr. WAXMAN. Well, the AMA has a policy statement that doc-

tors should recommend to their patients not to smoke.
Dr. SOMMERS. I am not a member of the AMA.
Mr. WAXMAN. Do you disagree with their positions on medicare?
Dr. SOMMERS. No, I don't disagree with their position, but it in

some cases would be well for an individual to smoke. If they have
had severe psychic or psychologic problems. In other situations it
would be--

Mr. WAXMAN. Do you have any evidence of that?
Dr. SOMMERS [continuing]. Bad for them to smoke. Oh, yes, Dr

Eysenck commented on that. He explained the different groups of
smokers, the very nervous persons who find solace in smoking and
others.

Mr. WAXMAN. Aren't there other outlets for that than smoking a
cigarette and taking the chance you could be one of those genetical-
ly disposed people?
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Dr SOMMERS. J,Yes; for example, going to the doctor is another
outlet But many human beings don't like to go to doctors and they
find release and sonie 'kind of benefit from smoking. It is their
habit.

Mr. WAXMAN. Are those the only two choices?
Dr. Swamis. Oh, no, there are many possible choices.
Mr. STERLING. Mr. Chairman?
Mr. WAxmAN. Yes, Dr. Sterling.
Mr STERLING I have come a long way to present work which I

think is serious. You are asking me whether it is prudent not to
smoke I would suppose it is prudent to invest wisely. It is prudent
not to drive. a car. It is prudent not to work in a paint shop. It is
prudent not to use solvent without a face mask. But is this really
what you are after here,,what is prudent in life?

Mr. WAXMAN. Well, it seems to me that if you have the high sta-
tistical correlation, people getting those diseases that are so dread-
ed, that are killersheart disease, lung disease, and cancerthat
if you are running an increased risk of that, there are other ways
to learn to relax. There are other ways to handle your personal
problems than to smoke a cigarette. It doesn't seem to me that
smoking is a rational, prudent thing to .do. (fet people do it and
they make a decision to, continue smoking. But I do not thillk that
in calculating the risks and benefits they could ever come up with
a calculation where smoking.is more of a benefit than a risk. Do
Srou disagree with that?

Mr STERLING. Mr. Chairman, precisely, and forgive me for seek-
ing another grouhd for discussion, it is precisely that point to
which we could address ourselves with some intelligence.

The reason there is a correlation between smoking and lung
cancer in large part is due to -the fact that smoking is done by blue-
coi ar ivoikers who work in foundries, do welding, work in paint
shops, and so on. These are the people who do a large amount of
smoking.

Now, you say to them: "Isn't it prudent that you should give up
cigarette smoking?" From my experience I would say to them:
"Isn't it prudent that you should give up working in a paint shop?"

Mr WAXMAR. No, no. I think the question is, Isn't it prudent we
ought to require industry to minimize the exposure of their em-

1 ases?
ployees to dangerous oheiciiiatals that may well cause them to be at
greate risk for all these

Mr. STERLING. Absolutely, and I know
Mr. WAXMAN. This committee is working on a Clean Air Act. We

had a discussion earlier this morning. I make the distinction very
clearly because whether you smoke or not is a voluntary activity.
But breathing air_that is polluted and, perhaps dangerous is noth-
ing you can choose td do.without.

Mr STERLING That is precisely the level of the evidence we have
been talking aboutevidence that creates the illusion that lung
cancer only befalls those who smoke, because the studies which
have examined the antecedents of lung cancer have simply failed
for the most part to include questions concerning the pccupation of
the smoker. r ,
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Mr. WAXMAN Haw do you explain the fact that people who work
in those kinds of high risk occupations seem to be at greater risk
when they also smoke?

Mr. STERLING. I refer to this in my testimony. You know, there
are a number of studies, some done by people who have been tradi-
tionally unfriendly to smoking, such as Dr. Weiss, which have
found that in some occupations the prevalence of lung cancer is
higher for nonsmokers than for smokers. Yet we fail to find these
studies quoted in the general smoking and health literature. I

think they are important studies. There are a number of studies
from Sweden on miners, there are studies in this country, of chlor-
omethyl methyl ether workers, in which we find this kintloof rela-
tionshipof a greater prevalence of lung cancer among nonsmok-
ers than smokersI suppose if I were sa inclined, I could make a
case that smoking protects the workers. Perhaps it does because of
the sputum accumulation due to smoking.

Mr. WAXMAN: Do you have any evidence for that?
Mr. STERLING. This hypothesis has been suggested by two very

respected investigators, one of whom has been a leader in advocat-
ing antismoking legislation, I am referring to Dr. William Weiss
who, in his recent reports in the Journal of Occupational Medicine
on the increased prealence of lung cancers among nonsmokers ex-
pos d to chloromethyl methyl ether, hypothesized that smoking of-
fere some protection to chloromethyl ether exposure.

T e same suggestion was made by Dr. Axelson, chairman of the
department of occupational health, in Lindhoeping, Sweden

Mr. WAXMAN. They are both suggesting that if you smoke it is
going to be a defense against lung cancer when you work in a haz-
ardous,occupation?

Mr. STERLING. They have suggested that in order to explain the
data, ikhich_have_come up now_in a_number of studies, that there
may be a defensive mechanism involved. The defensive mechanism
in case of Dr. Axelson and William Weiss was thought to be a
thickening of the lung lissue br increased amount of sputum.

If you ignore such data you do so at your own loss.
Mr. WAXMAN. Do you .think we should recommend it would be .

prudent for people who work in those factories to smoke in order to
run a lesser risk of getting disease?

Mr. STERLING. I did not bring this up. I brought it up in answer
ta your question in which you said isn't it true that in certain occu-
pations we find enhancement of lung cancers due to smokyig And
my answer is no, we do not find it universally at all.

Mr. WAXMAN. I didn't say universally. Don't we find a higher
number of people with lung cancer and heart disease and lung dis-
ease who are exposed not only 'occupationally, but iricrease their
risk by smoking?

Mr. STERLING. I would think that of the studies that could be
quoted studies that had looked both at the occupation and at the
smoking habits of workers exposed to certain occupational risks,
that the majority will 4iow either no effect due to cigarette'smok-
ing, or will show an effect but there will probably bems many if not
more that will show an increase in lung cancer among nonsmokers
than that will show an increase in lung cancer among smokers, I

/
5112



539

would say this has been shown in recent studies relating to arsenic,
as well as to mining, and to chloromethyl methyl ether exposure.

Mr. WAXMAN. Mr. Bliley.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Thank you, gentlemen, for joining us. Dr. Fisher, based on your

experience of over 30 years as a pathologist, I believe you said that
it ,might be all right to say "may" in front of these things. May
cause emphysema or lung dancer. May cause heart disease. But
that if we did so, we would have no more justification for doing
that and if we did do,it we ought to order it on a whole host-of
other products manufacturect in the country.

Dr. FISHER. I think that could be done. My intent, Mr. Bliley, was
that dangerous to your health. I do' not know why anybody would
want to commit themselves to making a firm statement about a
controversial issue in general, let alone in specific. This is where I
fmd a little difficulty,

Mr. BLILEY. You have been in practice for 30 years, and I assume
you are still active as a pathologist?

Dr. FISHER. Yes, sir, I am.
Mr. BuLyi. Would the other panelists generally agree with this,

with Dr. er's response to my question?
Dr. SöMMERS. Yes, I generally agree.
Mr. BLILEY. Dr. Sterling, Dr. Furst?
Mr. Avast Yes.
Mr. BLILEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have no further ques-

tions.
Mr. WAXMAN. You have been invited to participate in this hear-

ing by the Tobacco Institute. They know of your work in this area
and your views on the subject and thought it would be important
for us to hear those views. May I ask whether any of you t ave any
professional relationship with the Tobacco Institute?

Dr. &Mims. I do not have any.
Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Sterling?
Mr. STERLING. No.
Mr. WAXMAN. The answer is no?
Dr. FISHER. No, sir.
Mr. Aram No, sir.
Mr. WAXMAN. Were any of you compensated for your appearance

here this afternoon?
Dr. SOMMERS. I have not been and do not expect to be.
Mr. STERLING. I would expect that my expenses and time spent

in the preparation of my brief will be compensated.
Dr. FISHER. Yes, I have the sme thing.
Mr. WAXMAN. Dr. Furst?
Mr. FURST. I will be co pensated by the law firm that asked me

to appear here today. They will compensate me for my time just as
I will be compensated next week for my time by EPA, and as I was
about 2 months ago by the National Bureau of Standards. As a con-.
sultant I give opinions; I do work on a time Iris.

Mr. WAXMAN. You all are independent professionally froin the
Tobacco Institute and you are here, if you are compensated at all,
as consultants to make a preientation to us?

Mr. FirrisT. Would you repeat that, sir?
Mr. WAXMAN. Pardon?
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Mr. niter. Would you mind repeating.
Mr. WAXMAN. I made two comments. Your professional activities

are independent of the Tobacco Institute, and second, if you are
being compensated at all this afternoon, you are here being c
pensated as consultants to present your testimony on their beha f

Dr. FISHER. That would be fair.
Mr. nagr. Except, as I pointed out I have no contacts whatso-

ever with the Tobacco Institute. It was a law firm that asked me
for my opinion. And they said they would compensate. me for my
time and my expenSes for coming here.

Dr. SOMMERS. Compensation only for travel and hotel expenses
Mr. WAXMAN.Thank you very much, gentlemen. Do iou have

any further questions?
Mr. BLILEY. No further questions, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you for your participation in the hearing.

That concludes our business for the day.
Mr. But.Ey. Mr. Chairman, does this conclude the hearings?
Mr. WAXMAN.Yes, it does.
Mr. BLILEY. I have a closing satement if I might.
Mr. WAXMAN. The gentleman is recognized.
Mr. BLILEY'. I would like to say, Mr. Chairman, at the conclusion

of these hearings that it has been apparent to me throughout these
hearings that we are discussing two different issues. The chairman
appears to be of the opinion that the proof of the success of a label-
ing campaign is how many people quit smoking.

However, the basis of the original law which required warning
labels was not to prevent people from smoking but rather to inform
the public of the suspected dangers. Based on the testimony we
have heard that goal has clearly been accomplished People clearly
know the dangers a&sociatepl with smoking and have freely chosen
to continue. I maintain that the responsibility of Congress to
inform the public has been fulfilled. The testimony we have heard
shows 4 90-percent awareness factor. I believe any further legisla-
tion in this area to be burdensome and unwarranted.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. -

Mr. WAXMAN. Thank you, Mr. Bliley, for expressing your views
on this subject. That concludes oar business. We stand adjourned'

[The letters and statements submitted for inclusion' in these
hearings have been printed as a separate appendix and are identified
as Serial No. 97-1071

[Whereui5orr at 2:50 p.m. the hearing adjourned.]
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